# FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT



Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. an Arizona limited liability company 9311 E. Via De Ventura Scottsdale, Arizona 85258 Telephone: (480) 362-4800 Website: <u>www.kahalamgmt.com</u> Facebook: http://www.facebook.com/NrGizeLifestyleCafe Twitter: @NrGizeSmoothies

We offer *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*® franchises and area representative agreements. As a franchisee, you will operate a restaurant called *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* preparing and serving low-calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, nutritional supplements, and other beverage and food items. As an area representative (if applicable), you will operate as an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchise broker and service representative for us within a defined geographic area.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchise ranges from: (i) \$98,650 to \$341,050 for a traditional franchise unit; (ii) \$77,150 to \$310,550 for a non-traditional unit; (iii) \$119,900 to \$240,550 for a new *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* located within an LA Fitness health club; and (iv) \$78,900 to \$183,050 for the conversion of an existing store located within an LA Fitness health club to an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*. This includes: (i) \$15,250 to \$76,250 for a traditional location; that must be paid to the franchisor or affiliate; (ii) \$5,250 to \$53,750 for a non-traditional location that must be paid to the franchisor or its affiliate; (iii) \$93,000 to \$168,750 for a newly constructed *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* located within an LA Fitness health club to an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* located within the same LA Fitness health club that must be paid to the franchisor or its affiliate. The minimum total investment necessary to begin operation as an Area Representative under an ARA ranges from \$25,500 to \$171,000 which is calculated by using the minimum Initial Development Fee. This includes a minimum of \$3,000 that must be paid to franchisor or its affiliate. The Initial Development Fee is calculated as the greater of: (i) the estimated population in the ARA Territory multiplied by \$.03 plus 4 times the royalty payments we received in the last 12 months on existing stores within the ARA Territory.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully. You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. **Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified the information contained in this document.** 

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for you. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., Attn: Disclosure Document, 9311 E. Via De Ventura, Scottsdale, Arizona 85258 and (480) 362-4800.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don't rely on the disclosure document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as "<u>A Consumer's Guide to Buying a Franchise</u>," which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC's home page at <u>www.ftc.gov</u> for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

### Issuance Date: August 8, 2012, updated October 18, 2012

# STATE COVER PAGE

Your state may have a franchise law that requires a franchisor to register or file with a state franchise administrator before offering or selling your state. REGISTRATION OF A FRANCHISE BY A STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT THE STATE RECOMMENDS THE FRANCHISE OR HAS VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

Call the state franchise administrator listed in Exhibit A for information about the franchisor, or about franchising in your state.

MANY FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS DO NOT ALLOW YOU TO RENEW UNCONDITIONALLY AFTER THE INITIAL TERM EXPIRES. YOU MAY HAVE TO SIGN A NEW AGREEMENT WITH DIFFERENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS IN ORDER TO CONTINUE TO OPERATE YOUR BUSINESS. BEFORE YOU BUY, CONSIDER WHAT RIGHTS YOU HAVE TO RENEW YOUR FRANCHISE, IF ANY, AND WHAT TERMS YOU MIGHT HAVE TO ACCEPT IN ORDER TO RENEW.

Please consider the following RISK FACTORS before you buy this franchise:

- 1. THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT REQUIRES YOU TO RESOLVE DISPUTES WITH US BY LITIGATION ONLY IN ARIZONA. OUT-OF-STATE LITIGATION MAY FORCE YOU TO ACCEPT A LESS FAVORABLE SETTLEMENT FOR DISPUTES. IT MAY ALSO COST YOU MORE TO SUE WITH US IN ARIZONA THAN IN YOUR OWN STATE.
- 2. THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT STATES THAT ARIZONA LAW GOVERNS THE AGREEMENT, AND THIS LAW MAY NOT PROVIDE THE SAME PROTECTIONS AND BENEFITS AS LOCAL LAW. YOU MAY WANT TO COMPARE THESE LAWS.
- 3. THE FRANCHISEE'S SPOUSE AND AREA REPRESENTATIVE'S SPOUSE MUST SIGN A SPOUSAL CONSENT AGREEING TO BE BOUND BY THE TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT, MAKING SUCH SPOUSE JOINTLY AND SEVERALLY LIABLE FOR ALL OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE AGREEMENT, AND PLACING THE SPOUSE'S PERSONAL ASSETS AT RISK.
- 4. AS OF JUNE 30, 2012, 90% OF KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C.'S TOTAL ASSETS ARE INTANGIBLE. YOU MAY WANT TO CONSIDER THIS WHEN MAKING A DECISION TO PURCHASE THIS FRANCHISE OPPORTUNITY.
- 5. THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORT THAT THE FRANCHISOR'S ONGOING OPERATIONS ARE DEPENDENT UPON THE SUPPORT OF ITS PARENT COMPANY AND ITS AFFILIATES. THE PARENT COMPANY HAS NOT GUARANTEED THE FRANCHISOR'S OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE AGREEMENTS. THE PARENT COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE NOT CONTAINED IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AND WILL NOT BE PROVIDED TO FRANCHISEES.
- 6. MUCH OF THE SUPPORT, TRAINING, AND PRE AND POST OPENING OBLIGATIONS TO FRANCHISEES, AND MARKETING AND ADVERTISING SUPPORT SERVICES WILL BE PROVIDED BY AN AFFILIATE OF THE FRANCHISOR, KAHALA MANAGEMENT, L.L.C. THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KAHALA MANAGEMENT, L.L.C. ARE NOT CONTAINED IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AND WILL NOT BE PROVIDED TO FRANCHISEES.
- 7. DURING THE LAST YEAR, A SUFFICIENT PERCENTAGE OF FRANCHISEES LEFT THIS FRANCHISE TO RAISE QUESTION AND YOUR CHANCES FOR SUCCESS.
- 8. THERE MAY BE OTHER RISKS CONCERNING THIS FRANCHISE.

We use the services of one or more FRANCHISE BROKERS or referral sources to assist us in selling our franchise. A franchise broker or referral source represents us, not you. We pay this person a fee for selling our franchise or referring you to us. You should be sure to do your own investigation of the franchise.

Effective Date: See the next page for state effective dates.

# STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

The following states require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington and Wisconsin.

The Franchise Disclosure Document is registered, on file or exempt from registration in the following states having franchise registration and disclosure laws, with the following effective dates:

California	December 7, 2011
Illinois	August 8, 2012
Indiana	August 17, 2012
Maryland	October 15, 2012
Michigan	July 19, 2012
Minnesota	August 21, 2012
New York	August 15, 2012
Rhode Island	September 6, 2012
Virginia	August 27, 2012
Washington	August 13, 2012
Wisconsin	August 17, 2012

In all the other states, the effective date of this Franchise Disclosure Document is the issuance date of August 8, 2012, updated October 18, 2012.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# ITEMS:

Item 1:	The Franchisor and any Parents, Predecessors, and Affiliates.	1
Item 2:	Business Experience	12
Item 3:	Litigation	12
Item 4:	Bankruptcy.	40
Item 5:	Initial Fees	41
Item 6:	Other Fees.	48
Item 7:	Estimated Initial Investment.	57
Item 8:	Restrictions on Sources of Products and Services.	69
Item 9:	Franchisee's Obligations	73
Item 10:	Financing	75
Item 11:	Franchisor's Assistance, Advertising, Computer Systems, and Training	76
Item 12:	Territory	87
Item 13:	Trademarks	
Item 14:	Patents, Copyrights and Proprietary Information.	91
Item 15:	Obligation to Participate in the Actual Operation of the Franchise Business.	93
Item 16:	Restrictions on What the Franchisee May Sell.	94
Item 17:	Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution	95
Item 18:	Public Figures.	105
Item 19:	Financial Performance Representations.	105
Item 20:	Outlets and Franchisee Information.	106
Item 21:	Financial Statements	116
Item 22:	Contracts	116
Item 23:	Receipts.	116

# EXHIBITS:

A State Addenda to Franchise Disclosure Docume	nt
--	----

- B Directory of State Agencies and Administrators
- C Franchisor's Agent for Service of Process

- D Asset Purchase Agreement (For Sale of a Corporate Store or store located within an LA Fitness health club to a Franchisee) with Promissory Note and Security Agreement (if applicable) and State Addenda
- E Form of Franchise Agreement and State Addenda
- F Form of Addendum to the Franchise Agreement for SBA Loans
- G Form of Required Lease Terms
- H Form of Lease Guaranty Acknowledgment
- I Form of Lease Negotiation Acknowledgment
- J Form of Lease Procurement Acknowledgment
- K Pre-Authorized Electronic Funds Transfer Form
- L Form of Single-Unit Facility License Agreement (for LA Fitness locations only)
- M Form of Addendum to the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement for SBA Loans
- N Form of Release and Consent Agreement to Assignment of Franchised Business
- O Table of Contents Confidential Operations Manual
- P List of Franchise Owners
- Q Form of Area Representative Agreement, State Addenda and General Release
- R Table of Contents Confidential AR Operations Manual (For Area Representatives)
- S List of Area Representatives
- T Financial Statements
- U Form of Addendum for Sale of Company-Affiliated Owned Stores
- V Receipts

# ITEM 1: THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS, AND AFFILIATES

The franchisor is Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. To simplify the language in this "Disclosure Document," Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. may be referred to as "Kahala Franchising," "We," "Us," "Our" and the "Franchisor." "You" and "Your" mean the person(s), partnership, corporation, limited liability company, or other entity that buys the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchise. If "you" are a business entity, "you" includes the owners of the business to the extent the owners of the business guaranty or otherwise agree to perform or be bound by the obligations of the business entity.

We have written this Disclosure Document in "plain English" in order to comply with legal requirements. Any differences in the language in this Disclosure Document describing the terms, conditions, or obligations under the Franchise Agreement or any other agreement is not intended to alter in any way your or our rights or obligations under the particular agreement.

Kahala Franchising is an Arizona limited liability company which was formed on December 29, 2008 for the purpose of owning all of the intellectual property assets and franchising business of Kahala Franchise Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kahala Corp. (the "Parent Company" and "Kahala"), and Cold Stone Creamery, Inc., which is an indirect and wholly owned subsidiary of Kahala. As of August 2010, Kahala Franchising is the franchisor of the below listed quick service restaurant brands: Blimpie. Cold Stone Creamery, Cereality. Frullati Cafe & Bakery, Great Steak & Potato Company, Johnnie's New York Pizzeria, NrGize Lifestyle Cafe, Ranch One Grilled Chicken, Rollerz, Samurai Sam's Teriyaki Grill, Surf City Squeeze, and Taco Time. The predecessor franchisor for each of the above-referenced brands was Kahala Franchise Corp., which is an affiliate of Kahala Franchising. As of November 2011, Kahala Franchising is also the franchisor of the America's Taco Shop, Pizza Fresh Take•N•Bake ("Pizza Fresh"), and Kahala Coffee Traders quick service restaurant brands. Kahala Franchising is in the business of franchising to others the right to own and operate a guick service restaurant using the applicable trademarks for the particular brand and according to the terms, conditions, methods, and system standards indicated in the Franchise Agreement and corresponding operations manual.

Kahala Franchising is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kahala Corp., a Florida corporation. Kahala Management, L.L.C. ("Kahala Management"), an affiliate of Kahala Franchising and also a wholly owned subsidiary of Kahala, is an Arizona limited liability company that provides administrative, legal, accounting, sales, real estate and marketing support services to Kahala Franchising. Kahala Management and Kahala shall be collectively referred to as "KAHA." On October 1, 2009, Kahala Franchise Corp. contributed all of its respective rights and interests in the Samurai Sam's, Taco Time, and Great Steak & Potato Company trademarks, service marks, trade dress and other intellectual property, and its respective interests in all existing franchise, license, area representative, area developer and related agreements to which it was a party, to Kahala Franchising through an assignment and instrument of transfer. Kahala Franchise Corp. and Kahala Franchising entered into a license agreement on October 1, 2009 that permitted Kahala Franchise Corp. to continue to franchise the Samurai Sam's, Taco Time, and Great Steak & Potato Company brands until March 31, 2010. In January 2011, Kahala Franchise Corp. contributed all of its Surf City Squeeze, respective riahts and interests in the Frullati Cafe & Bakery, NrGize Lifestyle Cafe, Rollerz, Ranch One, Johnnie's New York Pizzeria and Wafflo trademarks, service marks, trade dress and other intellectual property, and its respective interests in all existing franchise, license, area representative, area developer and related agreements to which it was a party, to Kahala Franchising through a separate assignment and instrument of transfer. Kahala Franchise Corp. stopped franchising the Wafflo brand in December 2007.

SP Franchising, Inc., Malibu Smoothie Franchise Corp., Surf City Squeeze Franchise Corporation, Taco Time International, Inc., Ranch \*1 Group, Inc., Frullati Franchise Systems, Inc., Nicar Franchising, Inc., and Rollerz Franchise Systems, L.L.C. (collectively, the "Franchising Subsidiaries") are indirect and wholly owned subsidiaries of Kahala and affiliates of Kahala Franchising. The Franchising Subsidiaries are also predecessor franchisors of Kahala Franchising.

One of our Franchising Subsidiaries and predecessors, Taco Time International, Inc. ("TTI"), entered into a master franchisor agreement with Taco Time Canada, Inc. dated March 13, 1978. On October 31, 2008, Taco Time Canada, Inc. assigned the master franchisor agreement, all of its rights and obligations under the master franchisor agreement, and all of its Franchise Agreements to MTY TIKI MING Enterprises Inc. ("MTY"). Under this master franchisor agreement, MTY operates as the master franchisor of the Taco Time brand for the entire country of Canada. Neither Taco Time Canada, Inc. nor MTY are affiliates of Kahala Franchising or any of its affiliates. As of December 31, 2011, there were 122 Taco Time franchises in operation in Canada. As of the date of this Disclosure Document, this master franchisor agreement is still in effect. TTI also entered into a Western Washington Area Franchise Agreement with Accord, Inc. dated April 30, 1979, as amended May 2, 1996 (the "Western Washington Agreement"). Under the Western Washington Agreement, TTI assigned its rights to franchise Taco Time in the following counties in the state of Washington to Accord, Inc.: Chelan, Clallam, Cowlitz, Grays Harbor, Island, Jefferson, Pacific, Pierce, San Juan, Skagit, Snohomish, King, Kitsap, Lewis, Mason, Thurston, Wahkiakum, Whatcom, Skamania and Grant; plus the cities of Wenatchee, East Wenatchee and Moses Lake. Accord, Inc. is not an affiliate of Kahala Franchising or any of its affiliates. As of December 31, 2011, there were 71 Taco Time licensed restaurants in operation in Accord, Inc.'s territory in Washington. As of the date of this Disclosure Document, the Western Washington Agreement is still in effect. TTI did not enter into any other master franchisor agreements. We are not offering any Taco Time franchises under this Disclosure Document.

Another one of our predecessors, Blimpie International, Inc., entered into a trademark distribution agreement with Blimpie of California, Inc. dated July 18, 1984, which was amended on April 30, 1992 and further amended on October 28, 1993. Under this trademark distribution agreement, Blimpie of California, Inc. operates as a subfranchisor for the Blimpie brand in that part of California lying, approximately, south of an imaginary line drawn at 36°10' north latitude (the applicable territory to be referred to as "Southern California"). Blimpie of California, Inc. is not an affiliate of Kahala Franchising or any of its affiliates. As of December 31, 2011, there were 16 Blimpie franchises in operation in Blimpie of California, Inc.'s territory in California. As of the date of this Disclosure Document, this trademark distribution agreement is still in effect. Blimpie International, Inc. did not enter into any other trademark distribution agreements that are currently in effect. However, they did jointly own the Blimpie trademarks with Metropolitan Blimpie, Inc. (See Item 1 below regarding the purchase of the Blimpie Assets and the BA Blimpie Assets by affiliates of KAHA). We are not offering any Blimpie franchises under this Disclosure Document.

In April 2004, Kahala Franchise Corp. and The O Zon, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Licensor"), entered into a Trademark License Agreement ("O Zon License Agreement") in which the Licensor licensed to Kahala Franchise Corp. the right to use the Wafflō trademark and Wafflō Maker equipment to make and sell Wafflōs (i.e. ice cream-filled waffle sandwiches with various toppings) at retail locations identified as "Wafflō." Restaurants owned by Kahala Holdings, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company and affiliate of Kahala Franchising, or by Kahala Franchise Corp.'s third party franchisees or licensees may make and sell Wafflōs at retail locations. The term of the License Agreement is for twenty (20) years (the "Initial Term"), and the term shall be automatically extended to cover the full term, including any renewal terms, of all Wafflō Franchise Agreements signed by franchisees with Kahala Franchise Corp. prior to the expiration of the Initial Term. Under the terms of the License Agreement, restaurants owned by Licensor or franchised to

third parties by Licensor may also make and sell Wafflōs at retail locations identified as "Ozon" or "The O Zone Store." In December 2007, Kahala Franchise Corp. ceased offering Wafflō franchises.

In October 2005, Kahala Franchise Corp. and Progressive Pizza Trends, a California corporation ("Progressive Pizza"), entered into an Intellectual Property and Franchising Rights Purchase Agreement ("Johnnie's Franchising Rights Agreement") in which Kahala Franchise Corp. purchased from Progressive Pizza the exclusive ownership of and the exclusive rights to utilize, license and franchise the Johnnie's New York Pizzeria restaurant brand. Additionally, through the foreclosure of certain secured debt owed by Progressive Pizza to affiliates of ours, Kahala Holdings, L.L.C. became the sole owner of Progressive Pizza's three Los Angeles, California area corporate-owned Johnnie's New York Pizzeria restaurants in December 2005. We are not offering any Johnnie's New York Pizzeria franchises under this Disclosure Document.

In January 2006, KBI Holdings, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("KBI"), a whollyowned subsidiary of Kahala, purchased certain assets from Blimpie International, Inc. ("BI") that comprised BI's entire Blimpie restaurant brand and associated franchising system (collectively, the "Blimpie Assets"). The Blimpie Assets included, but were not limited to, all of the following owned by BI: (i) all Blimpie intellectual property (i.e., all trademarks, trade names, trade dress, tag lines, logos, designs, the Blimpie name, and all proprietary information, know-how, methods, and recipes); (ii) all Blimpie Franchise Agreements, Area Representative Agreements, Area Development Agreements, License Agreements, and any other agreements relating to any aspect of the Blimpie brand and franchise system; and (iii) nine Blimpie corporate restaurants.

Also in January 2006, immediately after KBI's acquisition of the Blimpie Assets from BI, KBI entered into a Trademark and Service Mark License Agreement with Kahala Franchise Corp. dated January 23, 2006, whereby Kahala Franchise Corp. was granted: (i) the non-exclusive right to use and license to third parties in the United States and foreign countries the trademarks and/or service marks owned by KBI for use in the operation of franchised and licensed "Blimpie" restaurants (both traditional and non-traditional) and the sale of other related menu items; and (ii) the non-exclusive right to use and license to third parties in the United States and foreign countries the trademarks and/or service marks owned by KBI for use by area representatives and area developers in accordance with the terms and conditions under the Area Representative Agreements (the "Blimpie License Agreement"). The Blimpie License Agreement was terminated on August 6, 2010 by KBI, and KBI simultaneously entered into a new license agreement with Kahala Franchising (the "2010 Blimpie License Agreement") which granted the exact same rights listed above to Kahala Franchising. In January 2011, KBI Holdings, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company, and Kahala Franchise Corp. contributed all of their respective interests in the Blimpie trademarks, service marks, trade dress and other intellectual property, and their respective interests in all existing franchise, license, area representative, area developer and related agreements to which they were a party, to Kahala Franchising through an assignment and instrument of transfer. We are not offering any Blimpie franchises under this Disclosure Document.

In April 2006, our affiliate, Kahala Holdings, L.L.C., entered into a Master Facility License Agreement (the "Master Facility License Agreement"), as amended, with Fitness International, LLC (formerly L.A. Fitness International, LLC), a California limited liability company ("LA Fitness"), covering the juice and snack bar operations at certain future LA Fitness health clubs in the United States and certain existing LA Fitness health club locations. The term of the Master Facility License Agreement is for up to fifteen (15) years (the "Term"), as the Master Facility License Agreement provides for a ten (10) year term for each *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* opened within an LA Fitness health club during the first five (5) years of the Master Facility License Agreement. If your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* is located within an LA Fitness health club, upon signing your Franchise Agreement with us, you must also simultaneously enter into a Single-Unit Facility License

Agreement with Kahala Holdings, L.L.C. that covers the occupancy by you of the applicable LA Fitness health club covered by your Franchise Agreement. A copy of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement that you must enter into with Kahala Holdings, L.L.C. is attached to this Disclosure Document as <u>Exhibit L</u>. Upon the termination or expiration of the Master Facility License Agreement, the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement will automatically terminate (See <u>Exhibit L</u>). Under the terms and conditions of the Master Facility License Agreement, LA Fitness has granted to us a non-exclusive right to open *NrGize Lifestyle Cafes* that are owned and operated by third party *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchisees, who have entered into an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* Franchise Agreement with us, within certain new and existing United States LA Fitness health clubs. The Master Facility License Agreement may restrict your rights as an NrGize franchisee, including the types of products you are allowed to sell in the LA Fitness health clubs. If your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* is located within an LA Fitness health club, you should carefully review the Master Facility License Agreement, a copy of which is annexed as Exhibit D to the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement that is attached to this Disclosure Document as <u>Exhibit L</u>.

In May 2007, KAHA Acquisition V, L.L.C. ("KAHA Acquisition V"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kahala, purchased 100% of the stock in Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. ("Cold Stone"), and certain entities affiliated with Cold Stone including Cold Stone Creamery Restaurants, LLC ("CSC Restaurants"), Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. ("CSC Leasing"), Cold Stone Creamery International, LLC ("CSC International"), and BTB One, LLC ("BTB") (the "Cold Stone Transaction"). Cold Stone, CSC Restaurants, CSC Leasing, and CSC International are collectively referred to as the "Cold Stone Entities."

From its acquisition in May 2007 through March 2008, Cold Stone continued its franchising operations completely independent of Kahala Franchise Corp.'s franchising activities, operating as a wholly owned subsidiary of Kahala Corp. Cold Stone entered into a Trademark and Service Mark License Agreement with Kahala Franchise Corp. effective as of April 1, 2008, whereby Kahala Franchise Corp. was granted: (i) the non-exclusive right to use and license to third parties in the United States and foreign countries the Cold Stone Creamery trademarks and/or service marks owned by Cold Stone for use in the operation of franchised and licensed "Cold Stone Creamery" restaurants (for traditional and non-traditional locations) and the sale of other related menu items; and (ii) the non-exclusive right to use and license to third parties in the United States and foreign countries the trademarks and/or service marks owned by Cold Stone for use by area developers in accordance with the terms and conditions under the area developer agreements (the "Cold Stone License Agreement"). The Cold Stone License Agreement was terminated on August 6, 2010 by Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. and Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. simultaneously entered into a new license agreement with Kahala Franchising (the "2010 Cold Stone Agreement") which granted the exact same rights listed above to Kahala Franchising. We are not offering any Cold Stone Creamery franchises under this Disclosure Document.

Also in May 2007, KAHA Acquisition VI, L.L.C. ("KAHA Acquisition VI"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kahala, purchased certain Blimpie assets from Metropolitan Blimpie, Inc. ("Metropolitan Blimpie"), Blimpie Associates, Ltd. ("Blimpie Associates"), and Blimpie Marketing Productions, Inc. (collectively, "BA") that comprised BA's entire Blimpie restaurant brand and associated franchising system (the "BA Blimpie Assets"). The BA Blimpie Assets included, but were not limited to, all of the following owned by BA: (i) all Blimpie intellectual property rights owned by BA (i.e., all trademarks, trade names, trade dress, tag lines, logos, designs, the Blimpie name, and all proprietary information, know-how, methods, and recipes), including BA's exclusive Blimpie territory comprised of Delaware, Maryland, Virginia, Washington, D.C., portions of New Jersey, portions of New York, and portions of Pennsylvania (collectively, the "BA Territory"); and (ii) all Blimpie Franchise Agreements, Area Representative Agreements, Area Development

Agreements, License Agreements, and any other agreements relating to any aspect of the Blimpie brand and franchise system.

Immediately after KAHA Acquisition VI's acquisition of the BA Blimpie Assets from BA, KAHA Acquisition VI entered into a Trademark and Service Mark License Agreement with Kahala Franchise Corp. dated May 14, 2007, whereby Kahala Franchise Corp. was granted: (i) the non-exclusive right to use and license to third parties in the United States and foreign countries the Blimpie trademarks and/or service marks owned by KAHA Acquisition VI for use in the operation of franchised and licensed "Blimpie" restaurants (for traditional and special locations and non-traditional locations) and the sale of other related menu items; and (ii) the non-exclusive right to use and license to third parties in the United States and foreign countries the trademarks and/or service marks owned by KAHA Acquisition VI for use by area representatives and area developers in accordance with the terms and conditions under the Area Representative Agreements (the "BA Blimpie License Agreement"). On January 1, 2008, KAHA Acquisition VI entered into an Assignment and Instrument of Transfer in which it transferred all of its ownership interest, title and rights in and to the BA Blimpie Assets, including the Trademark and Service Mark License Agreement, to KBI.

In July 2007, KAHA Acquisition VII, L.L.C. ("KAHA Acquisition VII"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kahala, purchased certain assets from Cereality Franchising Corp. and Cereality Operators, Inc. (collectively, "CFC") that comprised CFC's entire Cereality restaurant brand and associated franchising system (the "Cereality Assets"). The Cereality Assets included, but were not limited to, all of the following owned by CFC: (i) all Cereality intellectual property rights owned by CFC (i.e., all trademarks, trade names, trade dress, tag lines, logos, designs, domain names, patent applications, the Cereality name, and all proprietary information, know-how, methods, and recipes); and (ii) all Cereality Franchise Agreements, Area Development Agreements, License Agreements, and any other agreements relating to any aspect of the Cereality brand and franchise system. The corporately owned and operated Cereality restaurants were not included in the Cereality Assets purchased.

Also in July 2007, immediately after KAHA Acquisition VII's acquisition of the Cereality Assets from CFC, KAHA Acquisition VII entered into a Trademark and Service Mark License Agreement with Kahala Franchise Corp. whereby Kahala Franchise Corp. was granted: (i) the nonexclusive right to use and license to third parties in the United States and foreign countries the Cereality trademarks and/or service marks owned by KAHA Acquisition VII for use in the operation of franchised and licensed "Cereality" restaurants (for traditional and special locations and nontraditional locations) and the sale of other related menu items; and (ii) the non-exclusive right to use and license to third parties in the United States and foreign countries the trademarks and/or service marks owned by KAHA Acquisition VII for use by area representatives and area developers in accordance with the terms and conditions under the Area Representative Agreements (the "Cereality License Agreement"). In January 2011, KAHA Acquisition VII and Kahala Franchise Corp. contributed all of their respective rights and interests in the Cereality trademarks, service marks, trade dress and other intellectual property, and its respective interests in all existing franchise, license, area representative, area developer and related agreements to which it was a party, to Kahala Franchising through an assignment and instrument of transfer. We are not offering any Cereality franchises under this Disclosure Document.

In February 2011, Kahala Corp. purchased certain assets from America Corrales, Terry Bortin, Dos Amores L.L.C. and Tres Amores, LLC (collectively, "Amores") that comprised Amores' entire *America's Taco Shop* restaurant brand (the "ATS Assets"). The ATS Assets included, but were not limited to, all of the following owned by Amores: all *America's Taco Shop* intellectual property; including, but not limited to, all trademarks, trade names, trade dress, tag lines, logos,

designs, the *America's Taco Shop* name, and all proprietary information, know-how, methods, and recipes. *America's Taco Shop* restaurants were not being franchised by Amores. Kahala Franchising began franchising *America's Taco Shop* in November 2011.

Immediately after Kahala Corp.'s acquisition of the ATS Assets from Amores, Kahala Corp. assigned all of its rights under any trade name, service mark, trademark, trade dress, private brand name, patent, patent application, and/or copyright, whether registered or unregistered, and any trademark applications, including, without limitation, all rights to the "America's Taco Shop" name and goodwill, to Kahala Franchising through a Trademark Assignment Agreement dated February 11, 2011 (the "ATS Assignment"). We are not offering any America's Taco Shop franchises under this Disclosure Document.

In 2011, Kahala Corp. purchased certain assets from Robert Knox and Karen Knox (collectively, "Knox") that comprised Knox's entire Kahala Coffee Traders restaurant brand (the "KCT Assets"). The KCT Assets included, but were not limited to, all of the following owned by Knox: all Kahala Coffee Traders intellectual property; including, but not limited to, all trademarks, trade names, trade dress, tag lines, logos, designs, the Kahala Coffee Traders name, and all proprietary information, know-how, methods, and recipes. Kahala Coffee Traders restaurants were not being franchised by Knox. Kahala Franchising began franchising Kahala Coffee Traders in November 2011.

Immediately after Kahala Corp.'s acquisition of the KCT Assets from Knox, Kahala Corp. assigned all of its rights under any trade name, service mark, trademark, trade dress, private brand name, patent, patent application, and/or copyright, whether registered or unregistered, and any trademark applications, including, without limitation, all rights to the "Kahala Coffee Traders" name and goodwill, to Kahala Franchising through a Trademark Assignment Agreement in 2011 (the "KCT Assignment"). We are not offering any Kahala Coffee Traders franchises under this Disclosure Document.

The name and principal business address of any predecessors for NrGize Lifestyle Cafe during the 10-year period immediately before the close of Kahala Franchising's most recent fiscal year is: Kahala Franchise Corp., 9311 E. Via De Ventura, Scottsdale, Arizona 85258. Our predecessor, Kahala Franchise Corp., did not conduct the type of business the franchisee will operate, but its affiliate, Kahala Holdings, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Kahala Holdings"), did conduct the type of business the franchisee will operate by operating corporate NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurants since February 2009, and another affiliate, Kahala Restaurants, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Kahala Restaurants"), has been conducting the type of business the franchise will operate by operating any corporate NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurants since January 2010. Kahala Franchise Corp. offered franchises providing the type of business the franchisee will operate from 2006 until March 2010. Kahala Franchise Corp. offered franchises under the following names, which are now being offered by Kahala Franchising as of August 2010: Surf City Squeeze. Frullati Cafe & Bakerv. Rollerz. Ranch Grilled Chicken. One Samurai Sam's Teriyaki Grill, Taco Time, the Great Steak & Potato Company, Blimpie, Cold Stone Creamery, Johnnie's New York Pizzeria, and Cereality.

KAHALA FRANCHISING IS <u>ONLY</u> OFFERING AN *NRGIZE LIFESTYLE CAFE* FRANCHISE UNDER THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, AND IS <u>NOT</u> OFFERING FRANCHISE(S) FOR ITS OTHER BRANDS DETAILED BELOW UNDER THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. EACH OF THE FRANCHISES DETAILED BELOW ARE OFFERED BY KAHALA FRANCHISING UNDER SEPARATE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENTS FOR EACH BRAND.

Kahala Franchising currently offers franchises, under separate Disclosure Documents, for its other quick service restaurant brands detailed above. The following summarizes these other quick service restaurant brands as of December 31, 2011, including the type of restaurant business, number of franchised units in operation as of December 31, 2011, and the date Kahala Franchising, through the applicable Franchising Subsidiaries (for the applicable brands), began offering franchises in those brands: (i) Frullati Cafe & Bakery (restaurants serving sandwiches, salads, smoothies and baked goods), 34 franchises (29 franchises within the United States plus 5 international franchises), franchises have been offered by us from 1999 until 2004 under the name of Frullati Franchise Systems, Inc., from 2004 until March 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchise Corp., and since August 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchising; (ii) Rollerz (restaurants serving gourmet rolled sandwiches, salads, soups and baked goods), 4 franchises, franchises have been offered by us from 2000 until 2004 under the name of Rollerz Franchise Systems, L.L.C., from 2004 until March 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchise Corp., and since August 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchising; (iii) Ranch One (restaurants specializing in grilled and crispy breaded chicken sandwiches and Ranch One famous fries), 19 franchises (14 franchises within the United States plus 5 international franchises), franchises have been offered by us from 2001 until 2004 under the name of Ranch \*1 Group, Inc., from 2004 until March 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchise Corp., and since August 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchising; (iv) Samurai Sam's Teriyaki Grill (restaurants serving Japanese food), 42 franchises (37 franchises in the United States plus 5 international franchises) (plus 2 company-owned outlets), franchises have been offered by us from 2003 until 2004 under the name of SP Franchising, Inc., from 2004 until March 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchise Corp., and since August 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchising; (v) Taco Time (restaurants serving Mexican food), 281 franchises and subfranchises (153 franchises within the United States and 128 international restaurants) (plus 71 licensed and 11 company-owned outlets), franchises have been offered by us from 2003 until 2004 under the name of Taco Time International, Inc., from 2004 until March 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchise Corp., and since August 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchising; (vi) The Great Steak & Potato Company (restaurants serving Philadelphia cheesesteak (and chicken) sandwiches and French fries), 134 franchises (122 franchises within the United States plus 12 international franchises) (plus 1 company-owned outlet), franchises have been offered by us from 2004 until March 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchise Corp. and since August 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchising; (vii) Johnnie's New York Pizzeria (restaurants serving New York style pizza, calzones, salads, and related Italian cuisine menu items), 14 franchises (plus 1 company-owned outlet), franchises have been offered by us from 2006 until March 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchise Corp. and since August 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchising; (viii) Surf City Squeeze (juice bars), 129 franchises (122 franchises within the United States plus 7 international franchises) (plus 5 licensed and 3 company-owned outlets), franchises offered by us from 1994 until 2004 under the name of Malibu Smoothie Franchise Corp. and Surf City Squeeze Franchise Corp., from 2004 until March 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchise Corp., and since August 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchising; (ix) Blimpie (restaurants serving submarine sandwiches and salads), 733 franchises (plus 1 licensed and 6 company-owned outlets), franchises have been offered by us from 2006 until March 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchise Corp. and since August 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchising; (x) Cereality (restaurants serving hot and cold cereals and cereal blends with toppings, oatmeal, and parfaits), 3 franchises, franchises have been offered by us from July 2007 until March 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchise Corp. and since August 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchising; (xi) Cold Stone Creamery (restaurants serving super-premium fresh made ice cream, frozen yogurt, cakes, pies, smoothies, shakes, and other frozen dessert products), 1,423 franchises (1,049 franchises in the United States plus 374 international franchises) (plus 37 company-owned outlets). franchises have been offered by us from May 2007 until April 2008 under the name Cold Stone Creamery, Inc., from April 2008 until March 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchise Corp., and since August 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchising; (xii) America's Taco Shop

(restaurants serving freshly prepared Mexican food including tacos, tortas, burritos, and quesadillas), 0 franchises (plus 3 licensed and 1 company-owned outlet), we began offering franchises in November 2011 under the name Kahala Franchising; (xiii) Pizza Fresh (restaurants serving take 'n bake pizza), 0 franchises (plus 2 company-owned outlets), we began offering franchises in November 2011; and (xiv) Kahala Coffee Traders (restaurants serving coffee and espresso, tea, baked goods, parfaits, sandwiches and merchandise) 0 franchises (plus 2 licensed outlets), we began offering franchises in November 2011.

As of December 31, 2011, there were 99 *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchises and 4 companyowned restaurants. We have been offering *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchises from April 2006 until March 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchise Corp. and since August 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchising. Kahala Franchising does not operate businesses of the type being franchised, but rather, Kahala Holdings and Kahala Restaurants, affiliates of Kahala Franchising, operate many of our corporate-owned restaurants, including businesses of the type being franchised. Any corporate-owned *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurants Kahala Holdings that may operate in the future may compete with franchised restaurants in its vicinity.

Kona Coast Products, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Kona Coast"), is an approved distributor of certain proprietary NrGize Lifestyle Cafe products, including uniforms, printed materials, and other logo items for Kahala Franchising's brands, excluding Blimpie, and is an affiliate of Kahala Franchising. Kahala Holdings and Kahala Restaurants are affiliates of Kahala Franchising that own and operate any Blimpie, Frullati Cafe & Bakery, Surf City Squeeze, Rollerz, Ranch One, Samurai Sam's, Taco Time, The Great Steak & Potato Company, NrGize Lifestyle Cafe. Cereality, and Johnnie's New York Pizzeria company-owned restaurants detailed above. Taco Time Spokane Management, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("TTSM"), is an affiliate of Kahala Franchising that also owns and operates Taco Time company-owned outlets. Blimpie OS1, L.L.C., a Georgia limited liability company ("Blimpie OS1"), and Blimpie OS2, L.L.C., a Georgia limited liability company ("Blimpie OS2"), are affiliates of Kahala Franchising that used to own and operate the Blimpie company-owned restaurants but no longer do so. CSC Restaurants, an Arizona limited liability company, is an affiliate of Kahala Franchising that, along with Kahala Holdings and Kahala Restaurants, owns and operates the Cold Stone Creamery company-owned restaurants referred to in this Item 1. KBI is an affiliate of Kahala Franchising that licenses its rights in the Blimpie trademarks and/or service marks to Kahala Franchising for use in the operation of franchised and licensed Blimpie restaurants. Kahala Advertising, LLC, an Arizona limited liability company ("Kahala Advertising"), is an affiliate of Kahala Franchising that began administering the national advertising funds for each of the brands and the regional cooperatives in 2008. Vires Media, LLC, an Arizona limited liability company ("Vires"), is an affiliate of Kahala Franchising that was formed for the purpose of buying media for all of Kahala Franchising's brands. Neptune Equipment Services, LLC, an Arizona limited liability company ("Neptune Equipment"), is an affiliate of Kahala Franchising that is an approved retailer of equipment that sells, distributes, and coordinates logistics of equipment, menu boards, interior and exterior signage, and smallwares to Kahala Franchising franchisees and licensees. KGC, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company ("KGC"), is an affiliate of Kahala Franchising that provides gift card and loyalty card services to franchisees and to our affiliates that operate the corporate-owned restaurants.

CSC Leasing, another affiliate of ours, was incorporated for the purpose of leasing sites for Cold Stone Creamery restaurants and subleasing them to franchisees. CSC Real Estate Management, LLC, an Arizona limited liability company ("CSC Real Estate") provides real estate management services to Cold Stone and Cold Stone Leasing. Cold Stone Leasing does not operate businesses of the type being franchised nor does it offer or sell franchises of Cold Stone Creamery restaurants. Another affiliate of ours is Cold Stone Creamery International, LLC ("International"), an Arizona limited liability company, which was organized on April 14, 2004 for our international expansion and franchisees outside of the United States. Cold Stone Creamery Asia, LLC ("CSC Asia"), an Arizona limited liability company, was organized on April 14, 2004 and is International's subsidiary. CSC Asia licenses the right to use the Cold Stone Creamery brand for the operation of restaurants in Japan and Korea.

Some Blimpie restaurants are leased by subsidiaries of our affiliate (the "Blimpie Leasing Affiliates") KRES Holdings, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("KRES"), and in turn, subleased by such entities to Blimpie franchisees.

Some existing Cold Stone Creamery restaurants are leased by either of our affiliates, CSC Leasing or Cold Stone (collectively, "Cold Stone Leasing Affiliates"). Blimpie Leasing Affiliates and Cold Stone Leasing Affiliates shall collectively be referred to in this Disclosure Document as the "Leasing Affiliates."

Kahala, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, Tahi Mana, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company, previously offered franchises for a juice bar concept called "Tahi Mana." Kahala's wholly owned subsidiary began franchising Tahi Mana in December 2000 and stopped offering Tahi Mana franchises in 2002. During that time period, there were five (5) Tahi Mana franchises sold, all of which have permanently closed. There are no Tahi Mana franchise locations currently in operation. Additionally, Taco Time International, Inc., one of the Franchising Subsidiaries detailed above, previously offered franchises for kiosk-style retail nut and candy shops called "The Gourmet Nutcracker." Taco Time International, Inc. began franchising The Gourmet Nutcracker in January 1988 and ceased selling these "The Gourmet Nutcracker" franchises in 1991. There was one of "The Gourmet Nutcracker" franchises sold, and it permanently closed in June 1991. There are no "The Gourmet Nutcracker" franchise locations currently in operation. Prior to KBI's acquisition of the Blimpie Assets, BI previously offered franchises for a restaurant called "Pasta Central" which offered pasta dishes for in-store and takeout consumption and other Italian-style food products, including grocery items like pasta and sauces. BI began franchising Pasta Central in 1999 and stopped offering Pasta Central franchises in 2003. During that time period, there were 98 Pasta Central franchises sold, all of which have permanently closed. There are currently no Pasta Central franchise locations in operation. Maui Tacos International, Inc., a majority owned subsidiary of BI, offers a concept called "Maui Tacos" which offers burritos, tacos, taco salads, wraps, tostadas, quesadillas, enchiladas, nachos, and other Mexican-style food products, including grocery items like salsas and chips. Maui Tacos International, Inc. began granting Maui Tacos domestic franchises, area representative territories and international Maui Tacos master license and Franchise Agreements in 1998 and began offering Maui Tacos area development grants in 2003. As of March 31, 2012, there were 12 domestic Maui Tacos franchised restaurants. Maui Taco International, Inc. was not included in the Blimpie Assets purchased by KBI, and thus BI or its parent company continues to operate Maui Taco International, Inc., including offering Maui Taco franchises. Another franchise offered by Maui Taco International, Inc. was a juice bar concept called "Smoothie Island" which offered yogurt-based smoothie fruit drinks and other food and beverage items along with branded clothing. As of June 30, 2008, there were 25 Smoothie Island domestic franchised businesses and no Smoothie Island international franchised businesses, and by December 31, 2011, all 25 of the Smoothie Island stores that were open on June 30, 2008 had closed. The Pasta Central, Maui Tacos, and Smoothie Island franchising concepts offered by BI itself or through its subsidiary, Maui Taco International, Inc., were not included in the Blimpie Assets purchased by KBI, and thus we have no affiliation with any of these three franchises or brands.

Kahala Franchise Corp. previously offered franchises for a kiosk-style ice cream dessert concept called "Wafflō." It began franchising Wafflō in 2005 and ceased offering Wafflō franchises in December 2007. During that time period, there were twenty-one (21) Wafflō franchises sold. As of December 31, 2011, there were five (5) Wafflō restaurants opened; one (1) is in the United

States and four (4) are international. Additionally, Kahala Franchise Corp. previously offered franchises for a premium soft serve frozen dessert product called "Tango." It began offering Tango franchises in May 2007 and ceased selling Tango franchises in November 2007. During that time, there were no Tango franchises sold, and there are no Tango franchise locations currently in operation.

Except as described above, neither we nor any of our affiliates, including the Franchising Subsidiaries, Cold Stone Entities and Leasing Affiliates, have offered any other franchises in any other line of business.

The principal place of business of Kahala Franchising, its predecessors and affiliates, including the Leasing Affiliates, Kahala Management, Kahala Advertising, KBI, KRES, TTSM, Blimpie OS1, Blimpie OS2, KAHA Acquisition V, KAHA Acquisition VI, KAHA Acquisition VII, Kahala Holdings, Kahala Restaurants, Cold Stone, CSC Holdings, CSC Restaurants, CSC Leasing, CSC International, BTB, CSC Real Estate, KGC, Neptune Equipment, and the Parent Company is 9311 E. Via De Ventura, Scottsdale, Arizona 85258. The principal place of business of Kona Coast and Vires is 9048 E. Bahia Drive, Scottsdale, Arizona 85260. The identity and principal business address of Kahala Franchising's agent for service of process is listed in <u>Exhibit C</u> to this Disclosure Document.

### The Franchise

If you qualify, you may (i) construct a new *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant; (ii) purchase one of our *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchises by acquiring an existing business from another franchisee or from us; or (iii) convert all of your existing retail operations from another brand to our *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* brand.

The business the franchisee will operate is a single traditional or non-traditional *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* ("*NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*" or "*NrGize*") restaurant specializing in low-calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, nutritional supplements, and other beverage and food items, at a specific location approved by us, and using the trademarks, trade names, service marks, logotypes, and other commercial symbols we adopt and authorize. A "traditional" *NrGize* restaurant is any *NrGize* location offering the full *NrGize* menu. A "non-traditional" *NrGize* restaurant is an *NrGize* that generally offers a limited version of the full *NrGize* menu in existence at traditional *NrGize* restaurants, at non-traditional locations such as an airport, shopping mall, department store, stadium, entertainment pavilion, amusement park, sports or entertainment venue, train station, travel plaza, cafeteria, retail store, military base, hospital, hotel, casino or high school or college campus. All restaurants, whether traditional or non-traditional, must be developed and operated to our specifications and standards, and sell only those products that we authorize. An *NrGize* restaurant, whether traditional or non-traditional, is also referred to as the "Franchised Business."

*NrGize* restaurants located outside of membership health clubs serve the general public; however, *NrGize* restaurants located inside of membership health clubs serve only the members and employees of the health club. People of all ages consume the products offered by *NrGize* restaurants. Most *NrGize* restaurants may be operated throughout the year; however, sales may fluctuate during the year. You will have to compete with other restaurants, fast food restaurants, supermarkets and other food retailers located in your venue or market area. Some of your competitors may include *NrGize* restaurants operated by other franchisees or by our affiliates. The extent to which you may succeed at any particular location cannot be predicted. Because of the highly competitive nature of the business involved, successful operation of the *NrGize* restaurant will depend in part upon the best efforts, capabilities, management, and efficient operation by the franchisee; as well as the general economic trend and other local marketing conditions.

You must comply with all federal, state, and local laws that regulate commerce in general and the food service industry in particular. In addition to laws and regulations that apply to businesses and restaurant operations generally, *NrGize* Franchised Businesses are subject to: (i) federal, state, and local health codes regarding health, sanitation, and food safety; and (ii) menu labeling and nutrition laws.

### Area Representative Agreement

We also offer qualified parties (individuals or entities who have been approved to become Area Representatives) the rights to purchase a defined geographic area (the "ARA Territory") and become a development services representative for the NrGize brand within the ARA Territory. An Area Representative is not required to own or operate an NrGize restaurant in order to be approved as an Area Representative. The person who purchases the defined geographic area is called an "Area Representative" and is an independent contractor of Kahala Franchising. Area Representatives' services and support obligations in the ARA Territory may include: (i) identification of new potential third party franchisees; (ii) assistance with franchise sales; (iii) advice and guidance regarding location selection and lease negotiations; (iv) assistance in opening new NrGize locations; (v) assistance with store training; (vi) assistance with marketing advice; (vii) Quality Service Cleanliness and Experience ("QSCE") evaluations; and (viii) assistance with collection of the various sums due us from franchisees. Area Representatives and their owners and employees are not agents of Kahala Franchising and may not contractually bind us without our express written authorization. Area Representatives do not offer franchises for sale, but rather, operate as a franchise broker and contract service representative for Kahala Franchising. Therefore, the Area Representative does not have its own uniform franchise disclosure document. but instead, will have this Disclosure Document delivered to a prospective franchisee located within The Area Representatives' personal five (5) year employment history their ARA Territory. disclosure and contact information are disclosed in Exhibit S of this Disclosure Document. Area Representatives may not offer franchises for sale in a registration state unless Kahala Franchising has an effective registration in that state (See the Supplement State Cover Page for the list of State Effective Dates in the registration states). Kahala Franchising is responsible for all costs related to the production of documents and registration of this Disclosure Document. If your state requires that you, as an Area Representative, must register as a broker or seller of franchises, you must register as a broker in that state and pay all associated fees. Kahala Franchising, and not the Area Representative, will enter into the Franchise Agreement with the franchisee for the NrGize restaurant located within the Area Representative's ARA Territory. If you are purchasing an ARA Territory, you will sign our "Area Representative Agreement" or "ARA" which is attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit Q. The total number of NrGize restaurants which you will be obligated to assist us in developing under the Area Representative Agreement and the timetable for developing them is negotiable on a case-by-case basis and will be inserted in the Area Representative Agreement before you sign it. Your defined ARA Territory will also be negotiated before you sign the ARA.

### Remainder of Item 1 Applies Only to NrGize Lifestyle Cafes located within LA Fitness Health Clubs:

An *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* to be located within an LA Fitness health club is a "turn key" opportunity, meaning we or our affiliate(s) will be solely responsible for overseeing and managing the construction and equipping of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*. You will pay us or our designated affiliate the full Initial Franchise Fee of \$15,000 plus the full amount of the NrGize Turn-Key Fees (as defined in Item 5) when you sign the Franchise Agreement. The projected opening date of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* will be indicated in Section 5.5 of your Franchise Agreement (See <u>Exhibit E</u>). We will ultimately be furnishing you with a fully constructed and equipped *NrGize* juice bar

restaurant within an identified LA Fitness health club that meets our and LA Fitness' standards and specifications. All restaurants will be developed and must be operated to our specifications and standards, and sell only those products that we authorize.

In accordance with the Master Facility License Agreement with LA Fitness, there will be no other competing establishments or operations within the applicable LA Fitness health club that offer any comparable food or beverage items. Some of the existing LA Fitness health clubs may have an existing cafe or restaurant, which you could convert to an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*. Kahala has a non-exclusive right to franchise the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* brand in new and existing LA Fitness health clubs. No other cafe or restaurant may be located within an LA Fitness health club that contains an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*.

# ITEM 2: BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

# CEO, Chairman of the Board and Director: Kevin A. Blackwell

Mr. Blackwell has been Chairman of the Board and Director of KAHA from March 1999 to present. Mr. Blackwell was also CEO of KAHA from March 1999 until May 9, 2007 and from September 14, 2007 to the present.

### President and Director: David Guarino

Mr. Guarino has been a Director of KAHA since January 2004. Mr. Guarino served as President of Kahala Franchise Corp. from October 2003 until April 2008 and from August 2008 to the present. From October 1999 until December 2003, Mr. Guarino was Vice President – Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, and Director of KAHA.

### Executive Vice President, and General Counsel: Michael J. Reagan

Mr. Reagan has been Executive Vice President and General Counsel of KAHA since January, 2004.

### Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer: Walt Schultz

From January 2004 to the present, Mr. Schultz has been Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of KAHA.

### Executive Vice President – Franchise Development & Licensing: Chris Henry

Mr. Henry has been the Executive Vice President of Franchise Development & Licensing since November 2008. From July 2004 through November 2008, Mr. Henry was an Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of KAHA.

### Chief Operating Officer and Blimpie Brand President: Jeff Smit

Mr. Smit became the Blimpie Brand President in November 2007 and became the Chief Operating Officer in June 2009. In October 2008, Mr. Smit also began to oversee the Great Steak & Potato, Surf City Squeeze, and Frullati brands. Prior to this, Mr. Smit was the Director of Operations for Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. in Scottsdale, Arizona, from February 2005 until November 2007.

# NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Brand President: Charles Randazzo

Mr. Randazzo has served as the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Brand President since March 2007. Mr. Randazzo has also been a franchise sales representative for KAHA since April 2003.

### Senior Vice President and Assistant General Counsel: Joel Schweidel

Mr. Schweidel had been the Assistant General Counsel of KAHA since May 2007 and was promoted to Senior Vice President in June 2009. From November 1999 until May 2007, Mr. Schweidel served as the Director of Legal Affairs and General Counsel of Blimpie Associates, Ltd. in New York, New York.

### Senior Vice President - Non-Traditional Development: Quentin Smith, Jr.

Mr. Smith joined the KAHA team as the Senior Vice President – Non-Traditional Development in October 2008. Mr. Smith has been serving as the President of Cadre Business Advisors LLC in Phoenix, Arizona, since April 1996.

### Senior Director of Strategic Development: Ernesto Salazar

Mr. Salazar joined the KAHA team as the Senior Director of Strategic Development in June 2010. From June 2007 until June 2010, Mr. Salazar was the Director of Vehicle Sales for Auto Safety House, LLC in Phoenix, Arizona. Prior to that, Mr. Salazar served as the President of The Salazar Company in Phoenix, Arizona, from September 2006 until June 2007.

### Senior Vice President of Operations Services: Kevin Burnett

Mr. Burnett became the Vice President of Operations Services for KAHA in November 2008 and was promoted to Senior Vice President of Operations Services in August 2011. Prior to that, Mr. Burnett was the Senior Director of Operations for Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. in Scottsdale, Arizona, since August 2004.

# <u>Senior Vice President of Restaurant Operations, Johnnie's New York Pizzeria and Kahala Coffee Traders Brand President: Anthony Crosby</u>

Mr. Crosby joined the KAHA team in October 2009 as the Vice President of Restaurant Operations. In addition, in January 2010, Mr. Crosby also became the Johnnie's New York Pizzeria Brand President. In August 2011, Mr. Crosby became the Senior Vice President of Restaurant Operations and the Brand President for Kahala Coffee Traders. From November 2005 until October 2009, Mr. Crosby was an Area Director for Mac Acquisition LLC in Dallas, Texas.

### Vice President of Franchise Development: Jay Goldstein

Mr. Goldstein has worked with the Cold Stone Creamery brand since joining Cold Stone Creamery in Scottsdale, Arizona October 2005. In June 2006, Mr. Goldstein became the Director of Development and Real Estate of Cold Stone Creamery. In January 2008, Mr. Goldstein became the Senior Director of Development of KAHA, and from January 2008 until November 2008, Mr. Goldstein was the Senior Director of Operations for KAHA. Mr. Goldstein was promoted to Vice President of Franchise Development in May 2009.

# Director of Non-Traditional Development (all brands) and Director of Development for Blimpie: Jillian Clothier

Ms. Clothier has been the Director of Non-Traditional Development for KAHA since March 2007. In addition, Ms. Clothier became the Director of Development for the Blimpie brand in November 2010. Prior to that, Ms. Clothier served as the Director of Operations of the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe brand from January 2006 through March 2007. Ms. Clothier also served as the Director of Operations of the Surf City Squeeze brand from May 2005 through March 2007, and served as the Director of Operations of the Rollerz, and Wafflö brands from May 2005 through January 2006.

### Director of Strategic Alliances: Patric Knapp

Mr. Knapp became an Area Director for the Atlantic Cold Stone Creamery region of KAHA in May 2007 and was promoted to the Director of Strategic Alliances in March 2009. As the Director of Strategic Alliances, Mr. Knapp is involved in the sales of all of our brands. Prior to that, Mr. Knapp was a Senior Operations Manager for Cold Stone Creamery in Scottsdale, Arizona, from March 2003 until May 2007.

### Vice President of Real Estate: Jeremy Cook

Mr. Cook has served as the Vice President of Real Estate of KAHA since April 2008. From January 2007 until his promotion in April 2008, Mr. Cook was the Director of Real Estate for KAHA. Beginning in March 2011, as part of his duties as Vice President of Real Estate, Mr. Cook is also involved in the sales of all of our brands.

### Vice President of Operations Services: Kerry Jaccard

Ms. Jaccard became an Operational Excellence Consultant for Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. in Scottsdale, Arizona in October 2004 and was promoted to Senior Operational Excellence Manager. In May 2007, Ms. Jaccard became the Director of Project Management for KAHA and was promoted to Director of Operations Services. In August 2011, Ms. Jaccard was promoted to Vice President of Operations Services where she manages the Training Program for the Kahala Training & Education Center (KTEC) for KAHA in Scottsdale, Arizona.

### Senior Director of Franchise Relations & Ombudsman: Carolyn Stock

Ms. Stock was a Project Coordinator, Program Manager, and Director of Franchise Relations & Ombudsman for Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. in Scottsdale, Arizona, from March 2003 through June 2007. In June 2007, Ms. Stock became the Director of Franchise Relations & Ombudsman for KAHA, and in June 2008, Ms. Stock was promoted to Senior Director of Franchise Relations & Ombudsman.

### Vice President of Franchise Transfers and Renewals: Ammie Litton-Cooper

Ms. Litton-Cooper joined KAHA in August 2004 and became an Executive Assistant in February 2005. In April 2006, Ms. Litton-Cooper was promoted to Director of Franchise Transfers and joined the KAHA's sales team. In January 2008, Ms. Litton-Cooper also became the Director of Franchise Renewals. In October 2008, Ms. Litton-Cooper was promoted to Vice President of Franchise Transfers and Renewals.

## Vice President of Marketing: Steven Evans

Mr. Evans joined the KAHA marketing team in October 2007 as a National Marketing Manager for the Blimpie brand. In October 2009, Mr. Evans also became the Director of Marketing for the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe and Surf City Squeeze brands, and in January 2010, Mr. Evans also became the Director of Marketing for the Taco Time brand. In March 2011, Mr. Evans was promoted to Senior Director of Marketing, and in August 2011, Mr. Evans became the Vice President of Marketing. From November 2004 through October 2007, Mr. Evans was a Regional Manager for BFG Communications in Scottsdale, Arizona.

### Franchise Sales:

### Director of Franchise Development: Dana Mead

Ms. Mead joined KAHA's sales team in March 2011. From October 2007 through August 2009, Ms. Mead was the Regional Vice President of Franchise Sales for Focus Brands in Atlanta, Georgia. Prior to that, Ms. Mead was the Senior Director of Franchise Sales and Marketing for Raving Brands in Atlanta, Georgia from June 2006 until September 2007.

### Vice President of Franchise Development: Nicole J. Rayborn

Ms. Rayborn joined KAHA's sales team in March 1999 as the Director of Franchising. In addition to being a Franchise Sales Representative, from September 2007 through January 2008, Ms. Rayborn was the Director of Development - Western Region and became a Vice President of Franchise Development in November 2008. Prior to that, Ms. Rayborn was the Executive Vice President – Franchise Sales of KAHA from January 2004 until September 2007.

### Franchise Sales Representative: Charles Randazzo

Mr. Randazzo joined KAHA's franchise sales team in April 2003. Mr. Randazzo has also served as the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Brand President since March 2007.

### Franchise Sales Representative: Kyle Chung

Mr. Chung has been a Franchise Sales Representative for KAHA since June 2005.

# **ITEM 3: LITIGATION**

### Pending Arbitration and Litigation Involving Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.

Gaurang and Leena Parikh and Ranch 1 of Sunrise Mall, LLC v. Ranch \*1 Group, Inc., Ranch One/Kahala Brands of NY/Conn., LLC, Kahala Franchising, LLC, Kahala Corp., Malibu Smoothie Franchise Corporation, Petroff, Furst & Associates, Receivables Management Services, AWA Collections, and SFR Funding, Inc.: New York Supreme Court, Nassau County, Commercial Division, Case No. 601397/2011. On or about December 12, 2011 Gaurang and Leena Parikh and Ranch 1 of Sunrise Mall, LLC (collectively, "Plaintiffs") filed a Complaint for Declaratory Judgment and Other Relief against Kahala Franchising, LLC, et al. ("Defendants") alleging deceptive business practices under General Business Law § 349, libel, racketeering activity under 18 U.S.C §1961, et seq., and unfair practice by a debt collector under 15 U.S.C.A. § 1692 et seq. Leena Parikh, under her company name Ranch 1 of Sunrise Mall, LLC, was a former Ranch \*1 and Surf City Squeeze franchisee, and Gaurang Parikh is her spouse. Plaintiffs seek a judgment declaring Plaintiffs owe no monies under their franchise agreements, compelling Defendants to take all necessary action to clear Plaintiffs' credit reports of any negative credit history relating to the franchise agreement, treble damages, \$3,000, attorneys' fees, costs of the suit, and such other relief which the court deems equitable and just. Defendants Kahala Franchising, LLC, Kahala Corp., and Malibu Smoothie Franchise Corporation deny all allegations and will vigorously defend the claims against them. The parties are in the process of negotiating a settlement.

Concluded Arbitration and Litigation Involving Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.

None.

Franchisor-Initiated Lawsuits Filed by Franchisor Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. Against Franchisees During Calendar Year 2011:

Royalty and Advertising Fee Collection Suits:

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. v. Ji Eun Ham and Philip Ham: Superior Court of Los Angeles County, California, Case No. BC55775.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. v. Morgan Holdings, Inc., Keith Morgan, and Jane Doe Morgan: Superior Court of Maricopa County, Arizona, Case No. CV2011-098866.

Trademark Infringement

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. v. Chicken Soup, Inc.: United States District Court, Southern District of New York, Case No. 11 CIV 6561.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. v. Morgan Holdings, Inc., Keith Morgan, and Jane Doe Morgan: Superior Court of Maricopa County, Arizona, Case No. CV2011-098866.

LITIGATION INVOLVING PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

Pending Arbitration and Litigation Involving Predecessor Kahala Franchise Corp.

None

Concluded Arbitration and Litigation Involving Predecessor Kahala Franchise Corp.

None

Franchisor-Initiated Lawsuits Filed by Predecessor Kahala Franchise Corp. Against Franchisees During Calendar Year 2011:

Royalty, Advertising and Turnkey Fee Collection Suit.

Kahala Franchise Corp. v. Tamara Garnett: Superior Court of Maricopa County, Arizona, Case No. CV2011-051159.

# Trademark Infringement, Royalty Fee, Advertising Fee, and Rent Collection Suit:

Kahala Franchise Corp., KBI Holdings, L.L.C., and KRES – GA, LLC v. TK Food Enterprises, Inc. and Tae Kwon Hong: United States District Court, Northern District of Georgia, Atlanta Division, Case No. 1:11-cv-00022-CAP.

# Pending Arbitration and Litigation Involving Predecessor Cold Stone Creamery, Inc.:

Cecil Rolle v. Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. et al; Eighth Judicial Circuit Court, Alachua County, Florida, Case No. 2011-CA-5004. On or about September 30, 2011, Cecil Rolle, a former Cold Stone Creamery franchisee ("Plaintiff") filed a Complaint and Demand for Jury Trial against Cold Stone Creamery, Inc., Kahala Corp. (collectively "Cold Stone"), Cold Stone Franchisee National Advisory Board, LLC, Robert Zarco, Esq., and Zarco Einhorn Salkowski & Brito, P.A. (collectively "Defendants"). The complaint alleges defamation per se and defamation per quod. Plaintiff seeks an award in an unspecified amount for all damages, including interest, costs and any other relief the Court deems proper. Defendants Cold Stone denied all allegations and vigorously defended the claims against them. Plaintiff filed an Amended Complaint on or about January 17, 2012 also alleging conspiracy to defame and including additional defendants. Defendants deny all allegations and have vigorously defended the claims against them. The Cold Stone National Advisory Board, LLC was not named as a defendant in the Amended Complaint. A Clerk's default has been entered against defendant Dan Beem. A motion has been filed to vacate the default. At the beginning of 2012, Cold Stone filed a Motion to Dismiss and Motion for Sanctions, and NIACCFF, Inc., Robert Zarco, Esq., and Zarco Einhorn Salkowski & Brito, P.A. filed a Motion to Dismiss and to Transfer Venue. The Motion to Transfer Venue to Dade County, Florida was granted by the court on April 12, 2012, and the Motion to Dismiss was denied. Cold Stone's Motion to Dismiss has not been ruled upon, and the Plaintiff has filed an Appeal of the order granting the Motion to Change Venue.

O & O Enterprises, LLC, v. Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc.; Andraya Clermont; and Does 1 through 10, inclusive; Andraya Clermont v. O & O Enterprises, LLC; Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. a/k/a Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. a/k/a Kahala Corp.; and Does and Roes 1-10; District Court, Clark County, Nevada, Case No. A-10-616-924-C. In May 2010, O & O Enterprises, LLC ("Plaintiff") filed a Complaint for Damages against Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. and Andraya Clermont ("Defendants") alleging Defendants breached the lease agreement with Plaintiff. Plaintiffs seek no less than \$19,461.03 in addition to legal fees and costs. Defendant Clermont counterclaimed against Plaintiff alleging there is a justifiable controversy regarding the alleged breach of the lease; and cross-claimed against Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc., a/k/a Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. a/k/a Kahala Corp. (collectively "Kahala") alleging Kahala previously relieved Defendant Clermont from any obligation or liability regarding the lease. On November 3, 2010, Clermont filed an Amended Third-Party Complaint asserting a Third-Party Claim against Kahala Corp. for breach of contract, tortious breach of implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, fraud/fraudulent inducement, and breach of duty of loyalty and fiduciary duty. Counterclaimant/Crossclaimant/Third-Party Plaintiff Clermont seeks damages in excess of \$20,000.00, treble damages. Defendants Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc., Cold Stone Creamery, Inc., and Kahala Corp. deny all allegations and will vigorously defend the claims against them.

<u>Cindy Kilman, Joseph "Buck" Kilman, and BCEK, LLC v. Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. (AAA Case No. 76 114 Y 00252 09 LGB )</u>. On or about August 17, 2009, Cindy Kilman, Joseph "Buck" Kilman, and BCEK, LLC (collectively, the "Claimants"), former Cold Stone Creamery franchisees, filed a Demand for Arbitration with the American Arbitration Association against Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. (the "Cold Stone" or the "Respondent") alleging intentional fraud/fraudulent inducement; negligent misrepresentations and omissions; wrongful termination of

four Franchise Agreements and Subleases; breach of implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing: breach of contract; violations of Federal Anti-Trust law including "illegal tying" claims and "exclusive arrangements" under the Sherman Act and Clayton Act; violations of the Arizona Uniform State Antitrust Act, A.R.S. §§ 44-1401, et seq.; violations of the Texas Free Enterprise and Antitrust Act of 1983, Tex. Bus. & Com. Code Ann. §§15.01 - 15.26 (TFEAA); violations of Arizona's Consumer Fraud Act, A.R.S. §§ 44-1521, et seq.; and violations of Texas' Deceptive Trade Practices-Consumer Protection Act, Texas Bus. & Comm. Code Ann. §§17.41, et seq. Claimants were seeking damages in excess of \$1,100,000.00, which included their investment, future profits, and future earnings; interest; costs and expenses of the arbitration proceeding, attorneys' fees; rescission of their four franchise agreements and subleases; and declaratory relief that "None of the Kilmans (BCEK, LLC, Cindy Kilman or Joseph "Buck" Kilman), shall be responsible to Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. for contribution, or otherwise, relating to any rent or additional rent which Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. (or any of its affiliates) may owe or may have been adjudged to owe to any landlord in connection with any of the premises from which the Kilmans (or any one of them) operated their Cold Stone Franchises." Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. denied all allegations and vigorously defended the claims against it. Claimants filed an Amended Demand for Arbitration on or about February 9, 2010 stating with more specificity the allegations of each alleged misrepresentation. Respondent filed a Response to the Amended Demand for Arbitration and Counterclaim in which it alleged breach of contract and sought a dismissal of all claims raised by Claimants with prejudice and damages in the amount of \$85,000 plus reasonable attorneys' fees and costs. The arbitration occurred in March 2011 with the American Arbitration Association. The arbitrator awarded Claimants \$349,542.07 on or about May 6, 2011. On or about May 20, 2011, Respondent filed a Notice of Appeal with the American Arbitration Association. On or about June 15, 2011, the American Arbitration Association asked to set up a conference call to initiate the appeal. When, as of June 17, 2011, Counsel for the Claimants had not indicated any availability for or an agreement to participate in the conference call. Respondent appealed the decision to the Arizona District Court by filing a Complaint, Case No. 2:11-cv-01192, alleging breach of contract. Respondent/Plaintiff sought an order compelling the Claimants/Defendants to submit to AAA jurisdiction for an appeal of the award, reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, and any other relief the court deemed proper. On August 5, 2011, Respondent/Plaintiff filed a Petition to Vacate and Modify Arbitration Award in which it sought an order amending the arbitration award in favor of Respondent/Plaintiff in the amount of \$85,000.00 plus pre- and post-judgment interest, or alternatively, an order vacating the arbitration award, and reasonable attorneys' fees and costs incurred and such other relief as the court deemed just and proper. On or about September 6, 2011, Claimants/Defendants filed a Motion for Temporary Restraining Order and Preliminary Injunction seeking the court to disallow Cold Stone from any further activity in the appeal of the arbitration award and to disallow Cold Stone from enforcing the appeal of arbitration provision in the franchise agreement, and filed an Answer and Counterclaims seeking an Order confirming the final arbitration award, a declaration that the appeal provision in the franchise agreement is unconscionable, and injunctive relief. Cold Stone filed a Motion to Stay on or about September 16, 2011. The Court filed an Order on or about October 26, 2011 granting Defendants injunctive relief, confirming the arbitration award and denying Cold Stone's Motion to Stay and request to vacate or modify the arbitration award. Cold Stone has appealed this case to the United States District Court in Arizona. The Claimant also filed a Motion for Attorneys' Fees and Non-Taxable Expenses in the amount of \$160,000. On or about May 30, 2012 the Court ordered Plaintiff to pay Defendants attorneys' fees in the amount of \$70,000. While the appeal is pending, the parties continue to explore settlement discussions.

Franchisor-Initiated Lawsuits Filed by Predecessor Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. Against Franchisees During Calendar Year 2011:

Breach of Contract:

Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. v. Colonial Creamery, Inc., Edward Reesman and Cynthia Reesman (AAA Case No. 76-114-0183-11).

Lease Related Fees Collection:

<u>Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. v. Sean Buckley, Aurora Vazquez, and Edmond, LLC:</u> Superior Court of Maricopa County, Arizona, Case No. CV2011-051158.

<u>Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. and Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. v. Karren</u> <u>Antonyan, Elizabeth Antonyan, and Four23, LLC</u>: Superior Court of Los Angeles County, California, Northwest Division, Case No. LC092534.

<u>Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. and Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. v. David</u> <u>Pages and Edward Pages</u>: Superior Court of Los Angeles County, California, Southwest Division, Case No. YC064091.

<u>Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. v. Nicholas S. Hahn</u>: Northern District Court of Illinois, Eastern Division, Case No. 2011-CV-7764.

<u>Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. v. Spencer Bank, Susan Bank, Brandywine Creamery, Ltd.</u>: US District Court, Eastern District of Pennsylvania, Case No. 2:11-cv-05019-NS.

Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. v. Richard Golden and Lisa Golden: US District Court, Eastern District of Pennsylvania, Case No. 2:11-cv-05018-NS.

<u>Cold stone Creamery, Inc. and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. v. Stephanie and Richard</u> <u>Lucarelli *et seq.*: US District Court, District of Connecticut, Case No. 3:11-cv-01469-JBA.</u>

Royalty, Advertising, Gift Card and/or Lease Related Fees Collection:

Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. v. Shannon N. Leon, Natheis Heard, and NHSL, LLC: Superior Court of Maricopa County, Arizona, Case No. CV2011-051008.

<u>Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. v. Howard J. Moore, Roxanne M. Moore, Roxmoore, LLC, Sweet</u> <u>Things Ice Cream & Desserts, LLC</u>: Northern District Court of Illinois, Eastern Division, Case No. 2011-CV-6552.

Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. v. Constantino, Taccogna, Bitritto Enterprises, Inc., CS 1920 W. North, LLC, and CS 2187 N. Clybourn, LLC: Northern District Court of Illinois, Eastern Division, Case No. 2011-CV-6783.

Pending Arbitration and Litigation Involving Predecessor Frullati Franchise Systems, Inc.

Dung Nguyen and Phuong Nguyen v. JKML, LLC and Frullati Franchise Systems, Inc. and Kahala Corp.; Circuit Court of St. Louis County, Missouri, Case No. 09SL-CC01633. In April 2011,

Dung Nguyen and Phuong Nguyen (collectively, the "Plaintiffs"), former franchisees, filed a Complaint against JKML, LLC ("JKML"), Frullati Franchise Systems, Inc. ("Frullati") and Kahala Corp. ("Kahala") (collectively, the "Defendants"). In the Complaint, Plaintiffs allege a breach of duty of good faith and fair dealing by Frullati. Plaintiffs also allege that JKML, the former franchisee of the franchised business and party not affiliated with Frullati or Kahala, engaged in fraudulent Plaintiffs further allege that Frullati acted negligently and failed to use misrepresentation. reasonable care by missing deadlines relating to the lease and/or failing to provide notification to Plaintiffs regarding the deadlines. The Plaintiffs did not state any causes of action against Kahala. The Plaintiffs pray for judgment against Defendants jointly and severally for actual and punitive damages in excess of \$25,000 as reasonable under the circumstances as pled, plus their costs, and for such other and further relief the court may deem proper. Defendants Frullati and Kahala deny all allegations of the claims and will vigorously defend the claims against them. In May 2011, Kahala filed a motion to dismiss Kahala Corp. from the lawsuit. On April 24, 2012, the Court granted Kahala's Motion to Dismiss and a dismissal with prejudice was entered. The case against Frullati is still pending.

### Pending Arbitration and Litigation Involving Affiliate Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc.

Afsana Alekozai v. Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc.; United States District Court for the Northern District of California, San Francisco Division, Case No. CV-10 1254. In March 2010, Afsana Alekozai ("Plaintiff"), a former Cold Stone Creamery franchisee, filed a Complaint against Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. ("Defendant") alleging violation of the California Franchise Relations Act (Cal Bus & P C §§2000-20043) for allegedly terminating the Plaintiff's Franchise Agreement without providing Plaintiff with an opportunity to cure; violation of the California Franchise Investment Law (California Corporations Code §§31000-31516); deceit (as defined in California Civil Code §§1709-1710); violation of the California Unfair Competition Law (Bus & P C §§17200-17210); fraud; breach of an express contract provision; breach of fiduciary duty; and breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing. Plaintiff is seeking monetary and punitive damages in an unspecified amount and restitution. Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. denied all allegations and vigorously defended the claims against it. Defendant filed a motion to dismiss and to stay proceedings pending arbitration. On June 25, 2010, the United States District Court entered an Order Granting Defendant's Motion to Dismiss and to Stay Pending Arbitration, which dismissed with prejudice the Plaintiff's causes of action regarding violation of the California Franchise Relations Act and California Franchise Investment Law. The remaining claims against Defendant are stayed pending arbitration of the dispute in Arizona. On or around August 13, 2010, Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. and Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. (collectively, "Petitioner") filed a Petition to Compel Arbitration, in the United States District Court for the District of Arizona, Case No. CV 10-1762-PHX-JAT, against Afsana Alekozai ("Respondent"). On December 21, 2010, the Court entered an Order Granting Petitioner's Motion for Default Judgment, and further Order Granting the Petition to Compel Arbitration. The parties have consented to mediation to settle this dispute.

<u>Afsana Alekozai v. Cold Stone Creamery</u>; American Arbitration Association; Case #76-114-J00048-12 02 NOLG-R. On March 12, 2012, Afsana Alekozai ("Claimant"), a former Cold Stone Creamery franchisee, filed a Demand for Arbitration with the American Arbitration Association against Cold Stone Creamery ("Respondent") alleging that Claimant's Franchise Agreement was wrongfully terminated in 2009. In the demand, Claimant failed to properly identify any existing Cold Stone entity against which relief is sought. It is also not determinable from the demand whether the Arbitration was filed pursuant to the Order Granting the Petition to Compel Arbitration issued by the United States District Court for the District of Arizona, Case No. CV 10-1762-PHX-JAT. In the Arbitration, Claimant is seeking damages in the amount of \$830,000.00, plus attorneys' fees, interest, arbitration costs, punitive/exemplary damages, and lost wages. Although it is indeterminable from the demand which Cold Stone entity Claimant seeks relief from, Cold Stone Creamery denies all allegations and will vigorously defend the claims against it. Cold Stone filed a counterclaim in the Arbitration proceeding seeking recovery of \$12,000 in landlord fees paid by Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. The Respondent named in the Arbitration demand is not an existing Cold Stone Creamery entity and, accordingly Cold Stone will pursue clarification. In a good faith attempt to resolve any and all disputes between Cold Stone and the Claimant, both parties have agreed to a pre-arbitration mediation in an attempt to resolve the claims brought through the current arbitration as well as those remaining from Case No: CV 10-1762 PHX-JAT.

# Concluded Arbitration and Litigation Involving Parent Company Kahala Corp.

<u>Ronald Williams and Jennifer Clayton v. Kahala Corp.</u>; Third Judicial Circuit Court, Madison County, Illinois, Case No. 2010 L 000166. In February 2010, Ronald Williams and Jennifer Clayton, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated (collectively, the "Plaintiffs") filed a Class Action Complaint against Kahala Corp. ("Defendant"), incorrectly naming Kahala Corp. as the franchisor of the Blimpie brand. In the Complaint, Plaintiffs allege violation of the Illinois Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act arising from a claim that the Blimpie restaurants in the state of Illinois do not put double the meat in the Super Stacked sandwiches. The Plaintiffs seek certification of the class, designation of Plaintiffs as representatives of the class and counsel as class counsel, damages to be determined at trial, but in no event greater than \$75,000 per person, plus reasonable attorneys' fees and allowable costs, including reasonable fees and expenses of any necessary expert witnesses, a permanent injunction enjoining Defendant from advertising that its Super Stacked sandwiches, and any other relief the Court deems appropriate. Defendant denied all allegations. In May, 2010, the parties reached a settlement whereby Defendant agreed to donate \$5,000.00 to a local food bank in exchange for Plaintiffs' dismissal of all claims against Defendant.

# Concluded Arbitration and Litigation Involving Predecessor Kahala Franchise Corp.

Richard Kim and Falcon Capital Investment Group, LLC v. Kahala Franchise Corp., Kevin Blackwell, and Kyle Chung; Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles, Case No. BC408903. In March 2009, Richard Kim and Falcon Capital Investment Group, LLC (collectively, the "Plaintiffs"), a Johnnie's New York Pizzeria franchisee, filed a lawsuit against Kahala Franchise Corp., Kevin Blackwell, and Kyle Chung (collectively, the "Defendants") alleging breach of written contract and the covenant of good faith and fair dealing, fraud and deceit, negligent misrepresentation, violation of the California Franchise Investment Law, California Corporations Code Sections 31110 and 31202, and unfair trade practices under the California Business & Professions Code Section 17200, the FTC Act and the FTC Franchise Disclosure Rule. Specifically, Plaintiffs allege Kahala Franchise Corp. failed to provide required assistance and advice, improperly debited the Plaintiff's bank account, collected national advertising fees from Plaintiffs but did not provide national advertising, and that Kahala Franchise Corp. lacked a support structure and national advertising program. Plaintiffs seek general and special damages according to proof; a permanent injunction enjoining Defendants from illegal, fraudulent and unfair acts or practices and equitable relief of rescission, full restitution, and ancillary damages; punitive, exemplary or treble damages according to proof; reasonable attorneys' fees and costs; and an order requiring Defendants disgorge all ill-gotten gains. Defendants denied all allegations against it. The parties entered into a Settlement Agreement on June 30, 2010 whereby Kahala Franchise Corp. paid Plaintiffs the sum of \$375,000 and amended Plaintiffs' Franchise Agreement to reflect,

among other things, Defendants' limited involvement in Plaintiffs' Johnnie's New York Pizzeria franchise. The action was dismissed with prejudice on July 19, 2010.

Bay Area Cereal, LLC, Larry Schaadt and Laila Fields v. Kahala Franchise Corp.; Santa Clara County Superior Court, California, Case No. 109CV136483. In March 2009, Bay Area Cereal, LLC, Larry Schaadt and Laila Fields (collectively, the "Plaintiffs"), Cereality area representatives and franchisees, filed a lawsuit against Kahala Franchise Corp. (the "Defendant") alleging fraud, negligent misrepresentation, violation of Corporations Code § 3121 *et seq.*, and breach of contract (both Franchise Agreement and Area Representative Agreement). Specifically, Plaintiffs alleged that Defendant misrepresented the maturity of the Cereality brand, the expansion of the brand, and the success of franchised restaurants. Plaintiffs sought monetary damages in excess of \$500,000, special, punitive and exemplary damages, pre-judgment interest, attorneys' fees and costs, and rescission of the Franchise Agreement, Area Representative Agreement and guaranties. The action was removed on April 7, 2009 to the United State District Court for the Northern District of California, Case No. CV 09 1516 RS, at which time Kahala Franchise Corp. filed a counter-claim. The parties entered into a Settlement Agreement on January 12, 2010 whereby Kahala Franchise Corp. paid Plaintiffs the sum of \$250,000 and the Franchise Agreement and Area Representative Agreement and Agreement Agreement on January 12, 2010 whereby Kahala Franchise Corp. paid Plaintiffs the sum of \$250,000 and the Franchise Agreement and Area Representative Agreement and Area Representative Agreements were terminated.

<u>Tulsi One, LLC v. Kahala Franchise Corp.</u>; American Arbitration Association, New York, New York, Case No. 18 114 00047 07. On January 5, 2007, Tulsi One, LLC (the "Claimant") filed an arbitration proceeding against Kahala Franchise Corp. ("Kahala") alleging wrongful termination of two Franchise Agreements, unjust enrichment and breach of contract. Claimant sought damages in the amount of \$450,000 and arbitration costs. Kahala denied all allegations. Following an evidentiary hearing, an arbitration award was rendered on November 28, 2007 awarding Claimant \$12,000, along with prejudgment interest at the rate of 9% from January 1, 2006. In January, 2008, Claimant accepted \$12,000 from Kahala in exchange for providing Kahala with a full release, including full satisfaction of the above arbitration award.

CBR Enterprises, LLC, CBR Enterprises South, LLC, and Blimpie of North Bend, on behalf of themselves and other similarly situated v. Blimpie International, Inc., Kahala Corporation, Kahala Franchise Corporation, and KBI Holdings, LLC; American Arbitration Association, New York, New York, Case No. 11 114 00886 06. On April 19, 2006, the named claimants purporting to represent all Blimpie franchisees, filed an arbitration demand against Blimpie International, Inc. ("BI") and Kahala Corp., Kahala Franchise Corp. and KBI Holdings, LLC (collectively "Kahala"), seeking class action status. Claimants alleged that BI/Kahala was in breach of its Franchise Agreements and violated antitrust laws, state deceptive trade practices laws, state franchise laws and the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing by changes to BI's approved manufacturers and suppliers. Claimants also alleged that BI/Kahala tortuously interfered with franchisees' relationships with previously-authorized manufacturers by BI/Kahala's exercise of its right of disapproval. Claimants also alleged that a portion of the Advertising Fee ("AF") and Blimpie Brand Building Fund, Inc. ("BBBF") monies were used for unauthorized purposes. Claimants sought preliminary and permanent injunctive relief, including a declaratory judgment that BI/Kahala's manufacturer agreements are unlawful and a declaration that BI/Kahala may not take action against Claimants in the form of default notices and similar action, an injunction against future manufacturer agreements by which BI/Kahala receives payments from manufacturers, and restraint of BI/Kahala's enforcement of its franchisees' obligations under their Franchise Agreements to purchase required products. Claimants also sought an accounting and damages of: (i) disgorgement of all monies claimed to have been unlawfully paid to BI/Kahala by 3rd-party suppliers since January 1, 2002; (ii) the cost increases franchisees sustained as a result of BI/Kahala's recent manufacturer agreements; (iii) all amounts claimed to have been diverted from the AF and BBBF, and consequential or incidental damages incurred by Claimants or the BBBF; (iv) multiple damages as provided by statute; and (v) attorneys' fees, costs, and disbursements associated with the arbitration. This case was dismissed with prejudice in accordance with the settlement agreement between the parties in the arbitration entitled C.P. Ferrell, Inc., et al. v. Blimpie International, Inc. Case No. 13 114 03098 02 (the "Ferrell Settlement Agreement") (See below in this Item 3). The terms of the Ferrell Settlement Agreement included: (i) a \$437,500 payment by Blimpie to the BBBF (payable in \$12,500 installments for 35 months), an \$87,500 payment towards C.P. Ferrell, Inc., Charles Ferrell, Inc., Chris McGirt, Knee Deep, Inc., Tracar, LLC, Lynn Hennings, Nordstrom Oil Company, George Poulos, Mid-American Systems, Inc., Patricia Lewick, Gary Lundy, BATV, Inc., Brian Taylor, Babb, LLC, Kevin Stanfield, Bradlynn & Associates, Inc., Mark White, WTI Restaurants, Inc., Ted E. Wilcox, Tred's Inc., Robert L. Weitzel, Siesta Ices, Inc., Gibson Pryor and Pryor Management, LLC (collectively, the "Ferrell Claimants") expenses, and a \$350,000 payment towards Ferrell Claimants' attorneys' fees; (ii) certification of a non-opt out settlement class by the Arbitrator consisting of all current Blimpie franchisees, a settlement fairness hearing before the Arbitrator as a class settlement, and confirmation of the settlement/consent award by a court of competent jurisdiction; (iii) agreement by parties to adhere to the current Blimpie vendor approval process and administration of the BBBF according to the current BBBF By-Laws; (iv) releases of Respondents (Blimpie International, Inc. and Jeffrey Endervelt) by class members of all vendor related claims; (v) dismissal with prejudice of the arbitration entitled CRB Enterprises, et al. v. Blimpie International, et al., Case No. 11 114 00886 06.

Golden Big Dipper, L.L.C. v. Nicar Management, Inc., et al., Superior Court of New Jersey, Chancery Division, Essex County, Docket No. ESX-C-226-04. In August 2004, Golden Big Dipper, L.L.C. ("Plaintiff"), a former Great Steak & Potato Company franchisee, filed a lawsuit against Nicar Management, Inc., Kahala Corporation, Kahala Holdings, L.L.C., HJ Duch, LLC, The Port Authority of New York and New Jersey d/b/a BAA Newark, Inc., Kahala Franchise Corp., Hee Joo Duch, Nicar Holding Corp., and Unison Maximus, Inc. (collectively, the "Defendants") alleging (i) breach of contract of the Sublease agreement; (ii) conversion; (iii) fraud; and (iv) tortuous interference relating to the Great Steak & Potato Company franchise located in Newark Airport. Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages in the amount of \$1,000,000. Nicar Management, Inc., Kahala Corporation, Kahala Holdings, L.L.C. (collectively, the "Kahala Defendants") denied all of Plaintiff's claims. The discovery phase is concluded. Kahala Franchise Corp. and certain of the other defendants filed a Motion for Summary Judgment and in a February 2007 ruling on the Motion, the Judge ruled the following: (i) the breach of contract claim is only viable against Nicar Management, Inc.; (ii) the conversion and fraud claims are only viable against Kahala Franchise Corp.: and (iii) all other defendants and causes of action were dismissed (the "Summary Judgment Ruling"). The case settled in July 2007 with no admission of fault by either party and total payments of \$175,000 by the Kahala Defendants.

# Concluded Arbitration and Litigation Involving Predecessor Cold Stone Creamery, Inc.:

Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. v. Jason Pinnock, Jack Pinnock, and Pin Knox, Inc., (AAA Case No. 76-114-00366-08 LGB). On or about October 31, 2008, Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. (the "Claimant") filed a Demand for Arbitration with the American Arbitration Association against Jason Pinnock, Jack Pinnock, and Pin Knox, Inc. (collectively, the "Respondents"), former Cold Stone Creamery franchisees, alleging breach of contracts (Franchise Agreement and Sublease) for two restaurants. Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. sought \$252,434 in damages. Respondents filed an answer and counterclaim on or about December 5, 2008 alleging improperly disclosed kickbacks; fraud; breach of implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing; breach of contract; negligent misrepresentations; violations of the Federal Anti-Trust law including "illegal tying" claims and "exclusive arrangement" claims under Section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1 and Section 3 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 15; violation of Arizona's Uniform State Antitrust Act, A.R.S. §§ 44-1401, *et seq.*; violation of Arizona's Consumer Fraud Act, A.R.S. §§ 44-1521, *et* 

*seq.*; and violation of Pennsylvania's Unfair Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Law, Pa. State. Ann. Title 73, §§ 201-1 *et seq.* Respondents sought damages of approximately \$1,925,000 plus interest; attorneys' fees; arbitration costs and expenses; rescission of their three Franchise Agreements; and dismissal of Cold Stone Creamery, Inc.'s claims against Respondent. In November, 2010, the parties submitted to two-week arbitration with the American Arbitration Association. On December 20, 2010, the arbitrator entered an Interim Award in favor of Claimant Cold Stone Creamery Inc. against Respondents Jason Pinnock, Jack Pinnock, and Pin Knox Inc., jointly and severally, on Claimant's breach of contract claim in the amount of \$477,544.07. The Arbitrator also awarded Claimant and against Respondents on the counterclaims filed by the Respondents. Respondents filed for relief under the Federal Bankruptcy laws. Claimant has filed a Proof of Claim with respect to the Interim Award and its legal fees.

<u>Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. v. Colonial Creamery, Inc., Edward Reesman and Cynthia</u> <u>Reesman</u> (AAA Case No. 76-114-0183-11). On or about July 19, 2011, Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. ("Claimant") filed a Demand for Arbitration with the American Arbitration Association against Cold Stone Creamery franchisees Colonial Creamery, Inc., Edward Reesman and Cynthia Reesman (collectively, the "Respondents"), alleging breach of contract (franchise agreement and sublease) and breach of guaranty in which Edward Reesman and Cynthia Reesman personally guaranteed the obligations of Colonial Creamery, Inc. Claimant is seeking damages in the amount of \$92,328.59 plus interest accruing at a rate of eighteen percent per annum from March 17, 2011 until paid in full, plus reasonable attorneys' fees and costs. Around September 2011, Respondents filed Respondents' Answer to Demand, Affirmative Defenses, and Counterclaim alleging fraudulent inducement and misrepresentation; breach of contract and wrongful termination; and breach of lease guaranty. Respondents/Counter-Claimant seek specific performance and/or award damages, attorneys' fees, and any such further relief as the Panel deems just and proper. Parties have reached a negotiated settlement in which all claims in the Arbitration Demand and in the Counter-Claim are resolved.

Aaron and Karin Tzamarot, Debtors; Aaron Tzamarot, Karin Tzamarot, It's A Mishmash-Creamery Inc., Simply Moving Systems Inc. v. Cold Stone Creamery Inc., Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company Inc., Kahala Corp., Axis Capital NY LLC, Leaf Funding Inc., Resource America Inc., Craig Gruber, and Salamon, Gruber, Newman & Blaymore P.C.; United States Bankruptcy Court Southern District of New York, Chapter 11 Case No.: 09-24277 (RDD), Adv. Pro. No. 11-08362-rdd. In November 2011, Aaron and Karin Tzamarot, individually and on behalf of It's A Mishmash-Creamery Inc. and Simply Moving Systems Inc. as shareholders (collectively "Plaintiffs"), filed a Complaint against Cold Stone Creamery Inc., Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company Inc., Kahala Corp. (collectively "Cold Stone"), Axis Capital NY LLC, Leaf Funding Inc., Resource America Inc., Craig Gruber, and Salamon, Gruber, Newman & Blaymore P.C. (collectively "Defendants"). The complaint alleges fraud, negligent misrepresentation, breach of contract, breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, conversion, breach of implied contractual term, tortuous interference with prospective economic advantage, and breach of fiduciary duty of Cold Stone. Plaintiffs ask for damages in an amount to be determined at trial and such further relief as the Court deems just and proper. Defendants Cold Stone deny all allegations and will vigorously defend the claims against them. Cold Stone filed the Answer with the Court on or about December 5, 2011. Cold Stone also filed a Motion for an Order Dismissing the Complaint or, in the Alternative, Compelling Arbitration on or about February 6, 2012, to which Plaintiffs filed a Motion of Opposition on March 20, 2012. The Court Order, dated May 7, 2012, ruled that: the Tzamarot's May 15, 2005 agreement amended all prior agreements regarding the subject matter between the Plaintiffs and Cold Stone; the current proceeding is not subject to the arbitration provision of the Plaintiffs' and Cold Stone's prior agreement; the two year statute of limitations clause governs all the disputes between Plaintiffs It's A Mishmash Creamery, Inc. and Simply

Moving Systems, Inc. and their claims against Cold Stone are barred due to the two year statute of limitations clause; claims set forth by Simply Moving Systems, Inc. against Cold Stone fails to state a claim; and that any and all claims set forth by It's A Mishmash Creamery, Inc. and Simply Moving Systems, Inc. are dismissed with prejudice.

Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. v. Reid & Andrew, Inc., Tate & Petey, Inc., Gil Schmitt, Ruthann Schmitt, Does 1-10; Superior Court of Maricopa County, Arizona, Case No. CV2010-00348. In January 2010, Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. ("Plaintiff") filed a Complaint against Reid & Andrew, Inc. and Tate & Petey, Inc. (Cold Stone Creamery franchisees) and Gil Schmitt and Ruthann Schmitt (guarantors) (collectively, the "Defendants"). Plaintiff alleged breach of two Franchise Agreements for two Cold Stone Creamery restaurants, and violation of the Arizona Trade Secrets Act, A.R.S. §§44-401 through 44-407. Plaintiffs sought a preliminary injunction and permanent injunction requiring Defendants to cease and desist using Plaintiff's confidential and proprietary information, operating their current ice cream restaurant or otherwise competing with Plaintiff for a period of two years; and manufacturing frozen dessert products at a non-Cold Stone Creamery location. Plaintiffs also sought equitable relief and damages in an undisclosed amount plus attorneys' fees and costs. Defendant Tate & Petey, Inc. asserted a counterclaim against Plaintiff alleging breach of contract and tortuous interference with contractual relations. Plaintiff's application for a Preliminary Injunction was denied after a hearing in March 2010. Plaintiff denied all allegations of the counterclaim. In November 2011, the parties reached an agreement on the terms of the settlement and entered into a Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release of all Claims whereby Plaintiff agreed to pay the Defendants the sum of \$70,000 to dismiss all claims and counterclaims in the lawsuit with prejudice. The settlement payment has been made in full and the case has been dismissed with prejudice.

<u>Mix It Up, Inc. v. Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. (AAA Case No.: 76-114-E-00228-10 LGB )</u>. On or about June 29, 2010, Mix It Up, Inc. (the "Claimant"), a former Cold Stone Creamery franchisee, filed a Demand for Arbitration with the American Arbitration Association against Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. (the "Respondent") that alleged breach of the Franchise Agreement. Claimant sought damages in the amount of \$32,000 plus attorneys' fees, costs, interest, and such other relief as the Arbitrator deemed necessary. Respondent denied all allegations of the claim. In January 2011, the parties reached an agreement on the terms of the settlement and entered into a Settlement Agreement and Release of Claims whereby Respondent agreed to pay the Claimant the sum of \$7,500 to dismiss the arbitration with prejudice. The settlement payment has been made in full and the arbitration has been discontinued.

<u>Grosvenor Urban Retail, LP v. Benjamin DeMeo, et al. v. Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. d/b/a</u> <u>Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Lower Management, LLC, Leroy Lowery, III, Modestine</u> <u>Lowery, and Marc Lowery</u>; Superior Court of the District of Columbia, Civil Division, Case No. 0005951-09. On or about April 2, 2010, Benjamin DeMeo ("DeMeo" and "Third Party Plaintiff"), a previous Cold Stone Creamery franchisee, filed a Summons and Complaint Against Third Party Defendant naming Cold Stone Creamery, Inc., d/b/a Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company ("Cold Stone") and Lowery Management, LLC, Leroy Lowery, III, Modestine Lowery, and Marc Lowery (collectively, "Lowery") as Third Party Defendants. Grosvenor Urban Retail, LP filed a Complaint for Possession of Real Estate in March 2009 in the Superior Court of the District of Columbia against Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Co. and Benjamin DeMeo under case No. 008961-09 (Grosvenor Urban Retail, LP v. Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Co. and Benjamin DeMeo). In April 2009, the Court entered a judgment in the amount of \$71, 838.12 plus 4% per annum in favor of Grosvenor Urban Retail. DeMeo was a guarantor on a lease for a Cold Stone Creamery restaurant, which he sold to Lowery. Grosvenor Urban Retail, LP was the landlord of the restaurant. DeMeo alleges breach of contract against Lowery indicating that when he sold the Cold Stone Creamery restaurant, he was to be removed as a guarantor of the lease, and also alleges breach of implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing against Lowery. In addition, DeMeo alleges common law indemnification and breach of implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing against Cold Stone and seeks indemnification from Cold Stone and Lowery in the amount of any judgment that may be entered against him in the case, including alleged unpaid rent, pre-judgment and post-judgment interest, and attorneys' fees and costs. Cold Stone denies all allegations and will vigorously defend the claims against it. Cold Stone filed a Motion to Dismiss the DeMeo claims asserted in the third party complaint. In August, 2010, the Court dismissed the DeMeo Third Party Complaint, with prejudice. In November, 2010, Grosvenor Urban Retail, LP accepted \$70,000 from Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. and Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. (collectively "Cold Stone") in exchange for providing Cold Stone with a full release, including full satisfaction of the above arbitration award.

Fredy Buraye, Elizabeth Buraye, Eddie Buraye, and Buraye Group, Inc. v. Cold Stone Creamery, Inc., Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc., R & C Global, Inc., Miae Chung, and Conehead Investments, LLC (Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles-North Valley District, Case No. PC043905). On October 23, 2008, Fredy Buraye, Elizabeth Buraye, Eddie Buraye and Buraye Group, Inc. (collectively, the "Plaintiffs") filed a lawsuit in the Superior Court of California against Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. and Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. (collectively, "Cold Stone"), as well as Conehead Investments, LLC, Cold Stone Creamery, Inc.'s Area Developer in Southern California. The lawsuit stems from Cold Stone Creamery, Inc.'s termination of the Plaintiffs' Franchise Agreements. Plaintiffs allege that the termination was unlawful and that Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. made inaccurate and improper representations to the Plaintiffs in order to induce them to enter into the Franchise Agreements with Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. Plaintiffs allege intentional fraud; breach of contract; violation of the California Franchise Investment Law, Corporations Code §§ 31201 and 31303; violation of the California Franchise Relations Act, Business & Professions Code §§ 20020, 20021 and 20040.5; Violation of the California Unfair Competition Law; and for Accounting. Cold Stone filed a motion for demurrer on several causes of action which the Judge granted with leave to amend and Plaintiffs filed an amended complaint on or about February 17, 2009. Plaintiffs seek compensatory damages in excess of \$1,300,000 plus interest, punitive damages, reasonable attorneys' fees, costs of the lawsuit, and a complete accounting. A trial date has not been set and the case is currently in the discovery phase. Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. and Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. deny all allegations and will vigorously defend the claims against them. In September, 2010, the parties reached agreement on the terms of settlement and entered into a Mutual Release and Settlement Agreement whereby the Cold Stone defendants agreed to pay the Plaintiff the sum of \$420,000, in exchange for the dismissal of all of Plaintiff's claims against the Cold Stone Defendants, with prejudice. The settlement payment has been made in full and the case has been dismissed with prejudice.

Phoenix Partners Development Ltd., adv. Kahala Corp. and Cold Stone Creamery, Inc.; AAA Case 76 181 Y 00313 07 DEAR. On October 30, 2007, Phoenix Partners Development Ltd. ("PPD") filed a Demand for Arbitration with the American Arbitration Association alleging breach of contract and tortious interference with contract. Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. answered the Demand for Arbitration and filed counterclaims for breach of contract and breach of promissory notes. Kahala Corp. was dismissed from the arbitration. The arbitration arose from Cold Stone's termination of PPD's Area Developer Agreement for breach of their PPD's Area Developer Agreement based upon PPD's failure to pay several debts to Cold Stone when they came due. PPD's Demand for Arbitration alleges that Cold Stone breached the Area Developer Agreement through its Proactive Store initiative, for not repurchasing the Area Developer territory, and for agreeing to an amount that PPD owed Cold Stone and later refusing to abide by the agreement PPD alleges was reached. PPD seeks in excess of \$4,900,000 in monetary damages. Cold Stone Creamery, Inc.'s counterclaims were based upon PPD's failure to timely pay its debts to Cold Stone when they came due. Specifically, PPD had promissory notes to Cold Stone based upon its acquisition of its Area Developer territories that were due on October 1, 2007 that it did not timely satisfy. Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. also alleged that PPD breached the Area Developer Agreement by not meeting its obligations to its franchisees in its Area Developer territory. The parties entered into a settlement agreement dated February 13, 2010 that provided for no payments to either party and all claims covered by the arbitration were dismissed with prejudice.

Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. and Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. v. Paige Creamery, Inc., P&C Creamery, Inc., Gerard P. Spezio and Sandra Spezio; United States District Court of Massachusetts, Case No. 09-10903-JLT. In June 2009, Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. and Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. (collectively, the "Plaintiffs") filed a Verified Complaint for Injunctive Relief, Declaratory Judgment, Trademark Infringement, Trademark Dilution, Ejectment and Breach of Contract against Paige Creamery, Inc., P&C Creamery, Inc., Gerard P. Spezio and Sandra Spezio (collectively, the "Defendants"), former franchisees of Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. and sublessees of Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. Plaintiffs alleged violation of the Lanham Act, breach of non-competition covenant, breach of two Sublease agreements (for payments of amounts due under the lease and agreement for judgment), breach of guaranty agreements, breach of Franchise Agreement and Subleases, ejectment, and declaratory judgment. Plaintiffs sought preliminarily and permanently restraining and enjoining of Defendants from marketing or promoting their ice cream business using the Cold Stone Creamery trademarks; an accounting of all profits Plaintiffs received as a result of marketing its business since the termination of their Franchise Agreement; preliminarily and permanently restraining and enjoining Plaintiffs from engaging in a business that manufactures, produces, markets or sells ice cream, frozen yogurt or other frozen dessert products within a 10-mile radius of any Cold Stone Creamery restaurant; judgment in the amount due and owing Massachusetts General Hospital and the landlord of the Landmark Cold Stone Creamery restaurant location; amounts due and owing under the Plaintiffs' Franchise Agreements and Subleases; eviction from the landmark location; and compensatory damages, treble damages, attorneys' fees and costs, prejudgment interest and further relief as the Court deems just and proper. Defendants subsequently filed a petition for Chapter 11 Bankruptcy relief (United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Massachusetts, Case No. 09-15180-JNF), which stayed the United States District Court action. The District Court dismissed the Plaintiff's action, subject to Plaintiffs' right to re-open following conclusion of bankruptcy proceedings. Plaintiffs filed adversary proceedings in the Bankruptcy Court which resulted in Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. and Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. obtaining injunctive relief. Plaintiffs' case in the Bankruptcy Court has been closed.

<u>Ice Cream Dreams, LLC v. The Islands Ice Cream Company I LLC, et al.</u> (Circuit Court of the First Circuit, State of Hawaii, 07-1, -0028-01 VSM; American Arbitration Association Case No. 76 114 Y 00010 07 TNM). On January 10, 2007, Ice Cream Dreams, LLC, a Hawaii franchisee ("Plaintiff") filed both a lawsuit and a demand for arbitration against The Islands Ice Cream Company I LLC, Cold Stone Creamery, Inc.'s area developer, and Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. arising out of the purchase of a Cold Stone Creamery restaurant by the franchisee in 2005. The lawsuit seeks to invalidate the provision of the franchisee agreement requiring the arbitration to occur in Phoenix, Arizona and requests that the arbitration be held in Hawaii. The underlying claim involves alleged misrepresentations made by The Islands Ice Cream Company I LLC in connection with the purchase of the Cold Stone Creamery restaurant. The Plaintiff alleges that while Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. was not a party to the sale, it approved the sale of the restaurant. The Plaintiff claims that the price of the restaurant was inflated and is seeking to rescind the purchase. Cold Stone Creamery, Inc denied the allegations. The lawsuit was dismissed on or about May 30, 2007. On or about January 5, 2007, Ice Cream Dreams, LLC filed a Demand for Arbitration with the American Arbitration Association, File No. 76 114 Y 00010 07 TNM. On or about June 14, 2007,

Ice Cream Dreams, LLC also filed a Notice of Appeal to the Intermediate Court of Appeals for the State of Hawaii. A settlement agreement was entered into between the parties and the insurance companies in June 2008. Cold Stone Creamery was not required to pay any monies to Ice Cream Dreams; however, The Islands Ice Cream Company I LLC was required to pay \$26,168.20, which was paid through its insurance companies. Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. was named as an additional insured on the Area Representative's insurance.

Joseph Bischof and Nushi Bischof v. Cold Stone Creamery, Inc.; (Superior Court of Connecticut, Judicial District of Danbury, Docket No. DBD-CV-08-4009481-S). On or about September 29, 2008, Joseph Bischof and Nushi Bischof (collectively, the "Plaintiffs"), former Cold Stone Creamery franchisees, filed a Plaintiffs' Application for Order to Show Cause and Motion for Ex Parte Temporary Restraining Order for Temporary Injunction against Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. (the "Defendant"). Plaintiffs allege violation of Section 42-133f and 42-133g of the Connecticut Franchise Act, violation of Section 42-110a, et seq. of the Connecticut Unfair Trade Practices Act, breach of contract, and breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing. Plaintiffs sought a judgment that the termination of the Danbury Franchise Agreement and Sublease is invalid, reasonable costs and attorneys' fees, and an injunction barring Defendant from engaging in any conduct which is inconsistent with the Plaintiffs being able to continue operating the Danbury restaurant. In February 2009, a settlement agreement was entered into whereby Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. rescinded its notices of termination of the Franchise Agreement and Sublease for the Danbury restaurant and affirmed that each remain in full force and effect, and Plaintiffs agreed to pay Cold Stone Creamery \$73,588 for outstanding past due debt from the Brookfield restaurant. In addition, Plaintiffs filed a Withdrawal of the Action, with prejudice and without costs.

Lesa Myers, LESA LLC v. Conehead Investments, Inc., George B.B. Huggins, Greg Ferrell, Cold Stone Creamery, Inc., Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc., Douglas Ducey, Jim Flaum, David Andow and Donald Sutherland, (Superior Court of California in and for the County of Los Angeles, Case No. BC358836). On September 19, 2006, Lesa Myers and LESA LLC (the "Plaintiff"), a former Cold Stone Creamery franchisee, filed a lawsuit against Conehead Investments, Inc., Cold Stone Creamery, Inc.'s area developer in southern California, and its principals (collectively, "Conehead"). On September 29, 2006, the Plaintiff amended her complaint to add Cold Stone Creamery, Inc., Cold Stone Leasing and certain officers and directors of Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. and Cold Stone Leasing Company, Inc. as Defendants. The Plaintiff alleged that Conehead misled her into purchasing a Cold Stone Creamery franchise from a thencurrent franchisee by misrepresenting the remaining term of the lease. The Plaintiff claimed that the Defendants made false or misleading statements in violation of the California Franchise Investment Law, as well as claims of intentional misrepresentation, negligent misrepresentation, fraudulent suppression of fact, unfair business practices and breach of contract. The Plaintiff alleged that the misrepresentations were material to her decision to purchase the franchise from the then-current franchisee and that the Plaintiff relied upon them in making her decision to purchase the franchise. The Plaintiff sought in excess of \$2 million in damages. The lawsuit was settled while an interlocutory appeal of the trial court's decision to not compel arbitration was pending. Under the settlement agreement dated May 2008, Cold Stone paid Plaintiff \$650,000 and a dismissal of appeal and action with prejudice was filed with the Court.

<u>Praveen Prasad, et al. v. Cold Stone Creamery, Inc., Cold Stone Creamery Leasing</u> <u>Company, Inc., Phoenix Partners Development Ltd., et al.</u>(United States District Court for the District of New Jersey, 06-cv-00648-MLC-JJH) On February 11, 2006, New Jersey franchisees who own two restaurants and the development rights to two others filed suit challenging Cold Stone Creamery, Inc.'s termination of their Franchise Agreements. The termination was based on various breaches of the Franchise Agreements by the franchisees, including the failure to

obey applicable tax laws and infringing upon the Cold Stone Creamery trademarks by displaying Cold Stone Creamery, Inc.'s logos and selling Cold Stone Creamery products at an unauthorized location. The claims that the franchisees have filed against Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. and Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. (collectively, "Cold Stone") in the original and amended complaints alleged that there was no basis for the terminations and that Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. interfered with their attempts to sell their locations to prospective purchasers. Cold Stone filed a complaint seeking to enforce the terminations and the cases have now been consolidated. The franchisees sought an unspecified amount of monetary damages and an order from the court preventing the termination of the Franchise Agreements. Cold Stone sought to amend its counterclaim to supplement the bases of the termination of the Plaintiff's Franchise Agreements for additional breaches of the Franchise Agreements by the franchisees, including failure to comply with the operational standards and failure to pay rent at a franchised location. The Plaintiffs filed a petition for Chapter 13 Bankruptcy relief (United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Trenton, New Jersey, Case No. 07-25974), which stayed the United States District Court action. The Plaintiffs also filed Pro Se' Adversary Proceedings titled Neal K. Prasad and Kimberly A. Prasad v. Cold Stone Creamery, Inc., Franchisor, et al. (United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Trenton, New Jersey, Case No. 07-2775) in December 2007 alleging violations of the Sherman Act Title 15 § 1 et seq., fraud, violation of the New Jersey Franchise Practices Act N.J.S.A. 56; 10-1 et seq., collateral negligence, breach of contract, and negligence, and failure to abide by the automatic stay under the bankruptcy case. The Plaintiffs sought \$14 million plus \$6 million punitive damages plus all court costs, post judgment interest and reasonable attorneys' fees and an injunction to maintain the status guo of all prior contracts to maintain the Cold Stone Creamery restaurant during the Plaintiffs' Chapter 13 proceeding. The parties have resolved the lawsuits. The lawsuits have been dismissed and each party was granted a full release regarding any former or current issues. In July 2008, a settlement agreement was entered into whereby Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. will reduce the royalty rate for the Brick restaurant to 3% and pay \$1,500 per month towards the monthly rent for a period of twelve months, and if franchisees remain in compliance with their Franchise Agreement, the reduced royalty rate of 3% will be renewed for additional twelve-month periods, expiring on October 29, 2012. In addition, if franchisees remain in compliance with their Franchise Agreement, Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. will renew the \$1,500 per month payment towards monthly rent for only one additional twelve-month period. However, if Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. or Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. is required to satisfy any judgment or pay any settlement in connection with the Subleases for the Wall or Toms River restaurants, then the \$1,500 payment for the Brick restaurant will not be renewed for a second twelve-month period.

Ameet Bhatia v. Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. and Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc., (Superior Court of California, County of San Diego, Case No. GIC 971681). On August 23, 2006, Ameet Bhatia, a Cold Stone Creamery franchisee, filed suit against Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. and Cold Stone Leasing alleging breach of his Sublease, interference with contractual relations, breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, intentional misrepresentation and negligent misrepresentation in connection with Cold Stone Leasing's signing an amendment to the lease for Mr. Bhatia's Cold Stone Creamery restaurant premises. Cold Stone Leasing denied that the execution of the amendment caused any damages to Plaintiff. Cold Stone Leasing also alleged that any error in regard to the lease amendment was caused by third-party counsel who had drafted the amendment. Plaintiff sought damages in excess of \$700,000 from the Cold Stone entities. The lawsuit settled during mediation on April 6, 2007 between the parties where Cold Stone agreed to pay Plaintiff a total \$350,000. Outside counsel, who had drafted the amendment, contributed \$150,000 to the settlement payment. <u>Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. and Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. v. Culbreath,</u> (American Arbitration Association Case No. 76 114 00935 05). In August 2005, Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. and Cold Stone Creamery Leasing Company, Inc. (collectively, the "Claimant") filed a Demand for Arbitration seeking to terminate Culbreath's three Franchise Agreements. Claimant alleged that Culbreath had failed to comply with the required operating standards and had failed to meet certain financial obligations. Culbreath filed a counterclaim alleging that Claimant failed to provide promised assistance and consulting, failed to provide tenant improvement monies and interfered with Culbreath's attempt to open his third restaurant. Culbreath sought unspecified damages. On December 28, 2006, the arbitrator entered an interim award upholding Claimant's termination of Culbreath's franchises, deeming us the prevailing party. The arbitrator awarded Culbreath the amount of \$193.70 for undelivered equipment. Claimant's application for attorneys' fees was granted.

The Hickman Group v. Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. (Maricopa County (Arizona) Superior Court, Case No. CV2001-018257). On October 18, 2001, the Hickman Group ("Plaintiff"), a franchisee, filed suit against Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. ("Defendant") for intentional interference with contract, seeking damages in excess of \$500,000. The Hickman Group alleged that the Balelos (one of Defendant's area developers) persuaded a prospective purchaser not to purchase one of the Hickman Group's Cold Stone Creamery restaurants and, as the Balelos' principal, Defendant should be liable for that conduct. Defendant answered that Balelos did not interfere with that transaction and, therefore, that it is not liable for any damages. Defendant asserted that the sale did not proceed due to the unit's poor performance and/or the alleged prospective purchaser's inability to finance the transaction. (Defendant learned that the alleged prospective purchaser filed a petition in bankruptcy shortly after deciding not to purchase the Hickman Group's Cold Stone Creamery restaurant.) On November 15, 2002, Defendant and the Hickman Group entered into a Mutual Release and Settlement Agreement, in which the parties agreed to dismiss the litigation, the Hickman Group was given the right to sell their Cold Stone Creamery restaurant for a limited period of time, the Franchise Agreement would be terminated and Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. would pay the Hickman Group \$35,000. Balelos indemnified Defendant in the litigation and the settlement and reimbursed Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. in that amount. The lawsuit was dismissed on November 26, 2002.

# Concluded Arbitration and Litigation Involving Predecessor Blimpie Associates, Ltd.:

Emfore Corp., v. Blimpie Associates, Ltd., Peter DeCarlo and Louis Gioia.- Supreme Court of The State of New York, County of New York, Index No. 601400/04. On May 10, 2004, Emfore Corp., a Blimpie Associates franchisee filed suit against Blimpie Associates alleging breach of contract, common law fraud and violations of the New York General Business Law. Also named as defendants in the lawsuit is Peter DeCarlo, one of Blimpie Associates' founders and Louis Gioia, Blimpie Associates' Franchise Sales Director. Blimpie Associates, Ltd., Peter DeCarlo and Louis Gioia are collectively referred to as the "Defendants." Specifically, the complaint alleges various material misrepresentations and false earnings claims, and a failure to furnish required training services. The Plaintiff sought monetary damages in excess of \$180,000, attorneys' fees and rescission. Blimpie Associates denied all of Respondent's claims. An order granting Summary Judgment dismissing the Plaintiff's complaint in its entirety was awarded by the NYS Supreme Court on September 18, 2006. On May 6, 2008, the Appellate court affirmed the Supreme Court's dismissal of Plaintiff's common law fraud claims and breach of contract claims and reinstated Emfore's statutory claims. Defendants filed a motion for leave to appeal to the New York Court of Appeals which was denied. On or about May 20, 2009, a Stipulation of Settlement was entered into between the parties and the action was discontinued with prejudice. Under the terms of the settlement, Defendants are to pay Emfore Corp. \$150,000 as follows: \$100,000 on or before June

20, 2009 and the remaining \$50,000 on or before December 1, 2009. Defendants do not admit or acknowledge any liability, breach of contract, misrepresentation, fraud, or any other wrongdoing alleged by plaintiff. In the event of a default of the settlement payments, Plaintiff may enter judgment in the amount of \$250,000 less payments made by Defendants to Plaintiff. The settlement payments required to be paid are the sole obligation of the predecessor Blimpie Associates, Ltd.

Sutphin Hero Sandwich, Inc. and Pascual Valencia v. Blimpie Associates, Ltd. and Walter Izurieta. - Supreme Court of the State of New York, Queens County, Index No. 9837/01. In April 2001, Plaintiff Pascual Valencia, an individual unknown to Blimpie Associates, filed this action against Blimpie Associates, and Walter Izurieta, principal of Sutphin Hero Sandwich, Inc. a former Blimpie Associates franchisee. Mr. Valencia claims that he is a half owner of the stock of Sutphin Hero Sandwich, Inc. In the Complaint, Mr. Valencia alleges various acts of fraud and violations of the New York Franchise Act and seeks an accounting and the recovery of monetary damages. Blimpie Associates denies that is has committed any inappropriate acts alleged by Mr. Valencia and denies that it has committed any violation of the New York State Franchise Sales Act. Blimpie Associates has filed an answer to the Plaintiff's complaint denying all of its charges, and has asserted a cross-complaint against co-defendant, Walter Izurieta. Since the inception, the lawsuit has been dormant.

## Concluded Arbitration and Litigation Involving Predecessor Blimpie International, Inc.:

Shirish Patel, Jayesh A. Patel and Mayur Patel v. Blimpie International, Inc.; Circuit Court of Jackson County, Mississippi, Cause No. 2007-00,216. In August 2007, Shirish Patel, Jayesh A. Patel and Mayur Patel (collectively, the "Plaintiffs"), former Blimpie franchisees, filed a lawsuit against Blimpie International, Inc. (the "Defendant") alleging trespass to chattel, tortious interference with a business relationship, conversion, breach of contract, fraud in the inducement, negligent misrepresentation and unjust enrichment regarding Defendant's termination of their Franchise Agreement. Specifically it is alleged that Defendants took over the operations of the restaurant along with the equipment and inventory in the restaurant. Plaintiffs seek monetary damages in excess of \$25,000, attorneys' fees and costs, expenses for bringing the lawsuit, recovery of the equipment, and compensatory and punitive damages. Defendant denies all allegations and will vigorously defend this action. Defendant filed a Motion to Compel Arbitration and to Dismiss or Stay Proceedings Pending Arbitration (the "Motion") in November 2007. On February 19, 2008, the Court granted the Motion to Compel Arbitration and Stay Proceedings. Plaintiffs have not yet pursued arbitration against the Defendant.

<u>Frank L. Butterworth, III and Hunter, Inc. v. Paul Rogozinski, Speck Enterprises, Inc.,</u> <u>Blimpie International, Inc. and Second Indiana Blimpie Leasing Corp.</u>; Superior Court of Hamilton County, Indiana, Case No. 29D03 0412 PL 1052. On December 1, 2004, Frank L. Butterworth, III, the principal shareholder of Hunter, Inc., a corporate franchisee who formerly operated a Blimpie franchised restaurant in Muncie, Indiana ("Plaintiffs") sued Speck Enterprises, Inc, an Indiana area representative ("Speck"), Paul Rogozinski, Speck's President ("Rogozinski"), Second Indiana Blimpie Leasing Corp., one of Bl's leasing affiliates ("SIBLC") (which was acquired by KBI Holdings in the purchase of the Blimpie Assets) and Bl, alleging fraud, misrepresentation, violation of the Indiana Franchise Act, disclosure and earnings claim violations in connection with Plaintiffs' acquisition of a Blimpie franchise. Plaintiffs sought rescission of the franchise and Sublease agreements, damages of \$125,000, prejudgment interest, punitive damages, costs and attorneys' fees. BI denied all claims against it. BI and SIBLC filed a Motion to Compel Arbitration and Stay Proceedings that was granted on March 9, 2005. On June 30, 2005, Plaintiffs agreed to postpone arbitration against BI and SIBLC until after trial on the merits against Speck and Rogozinski on all of Plaintiffs' claims, and the Court entered judgment on the jury's verdict. Plaintiffs have not given any indication of whether they intend to appeal from the judgment or file an arbitration proceeding against the Company in light of the trial results.

Armen International, Inc. et al. v. Blimpie International, Inc., et al., District Court of Clark County, Nevada, Case No. A489147. On July 21, 2004, Armen International, Inc. ("Claimant"), a former Blimpie franchisee, and Armen Manoukian, the principal of Claimant, filed suit against Bl, Yoko Hatcher, the alleged purchaser of Claimant's 2 franchises ("Hatcher"), Reeser Enterprises, one of BI's Area Representatives, and its principal William Reeser ("Reeser"), alleging that Reeser failed to report Claimant's purchase of the Blimpie franchises to BI, that Reeser kept the franchise fees paid by Claimant, that BI failed to recognize Claimant's Franchise Agreements, and that Hatcher failed to pay Claimant amounts owed under a buy-sell agreement. Claimant is seeking a declaratory judgment to resume operation of the franchises, damages in excess of \$10,000, attorneys' fees and costs. BI denies all claims against it. BI filed a Motion to Compel Arbitration and Stay Proceedings that was granted on January 7, 2005. Plaintiffs have not yet pursued arbitration against BI.

Tina Choi and 8TA.Choi Corp. v. Paul Rogozinski, Speck Enterprises, Inc., Blimpie International, Inc., and Blimpie Pershing Indiana Ventures, Inc.; Hamilton County Superior Court, Indiana, Case No. 29D03-0211. On December 2, 2002, Plaintiffs 8TA.Choi Corp. and Tina Choi, respectively a corporate franchisee who formerly operated a Blimpie franchised restaurant in Mooresville, Indiana and its principal shareholder, sued Speck Enterprises, Inc., a Blimpie subfranchisor in the Indianapolis area ("Speck"), and Speck's president, Paul Rogozinski ("Rogozinski"), BI, and Blimpie Pershing Indiana Ventures, Inc., BI's Leasing Affiliate ("Pershing"), alleging fraud, including violation of the antifraud provisions of Indiana's Franchise Act and common law fraud, disclosure violations, misrepresentation, and earnings claims in connection with plaintiffs' purchase of their Blimpie franchise, and breach of the Franchise Agreement by failure to provide training. The complaint seeks rescission of the franchise and Sublease agreements, damages in an amount not less than \$125,000, prejudgment interest, punitive damages, costs, and attorneys' fees. BI and Pershing denied the allegations in their entirety and filed a motion to stay the case pending arbitration, which was denied. BI sought reconsideration of the court's decision. The appellate court reversed, and the trial court was instructed to enter a stay pending arbitration. On June 30, 2005, Plaintiffs agreed to postpone arbitration against BI and Pershing until after trial on the merits against Speck and Rogozinski. On March 23, 2007, after a three-day trial, the court entered judgment at the close of the evidence in favor of Rogozinski and against Plaintiffs on all of their claims against Rogozinski, and entered judgment on the jury's verdict in favor of Speck and against Plaintiffs on all of their claims against Speck. No appeal was filed by Plaintiffs. Plaintiffs have not given any indication of whether they intend to file an arbitration proceeding against the Company in light of the trial results.

<u>Bixy, Inc. f/k/a Blimpie International, Inc. and X2Y1, Inc. v. KBI Holdings, LLC and Kahala</u> <u>Corp.</u>; United States District Court, Northern District of Georgia, Atlanta Division, Civil Action File No. 1:07-CV-0780. On March 2, 2007, X2Y1 and Bixy ("Plaintiffs") filed a lawsuit against KBI Holdings, LLC and Kahala Corp. ("Defendants") arising out of the Asset Purchase Agreement between X2Y1 and KBI for the purchase of certain assets of Blimpie International and the assumption of certain liabilities. The lawsuit seeks several types of relief. It includes allegations of breach of the Asset Purchase Agreement for a) failing to pay the full purchase price; b) breach of contract and indemnification regarding allegations that KBI has failed to pay certain alleged assumed liabilities under the Asset Purchase Agreement; c) breach of contract alleging that KBI has failed to provide information and failed to confer with Plaintiffs regarding certain purchase price allocation issues; d) alleged breach of contract and request for specific performance regarding certain alleged obligations of KBI to provide access to certain records; e) allegations regarding alleged breach of an agreement regarding a collection agreement for certain Smoothie Island collections; f) allegations of fraud for allegedly failing to discharge certain liabilities after closing; and g) allegations regarding specific performance and request for injunctive relief to enforce certain provisions of the Asset Purchase Agreement which Plaintiffs contend are not being performed. There are also claims for indemnification under the Asset Purchase Agreement for various claims. In addition, there are also claims that there has been conversion of certain monies from certain bank accounts relating to the acquisition. There is also a claim of breach of the Asset Purchase Agreement for an article that was published regarding the asset purchase transaction which Plaintiffs contend was defamatory and was not authorized under the Asset Purchase Agreement. Plaintiff sought \$500,000 in damages, punitive damages in excess of \$10,000,000, attorneys' fees, court costs, interest, and an injunction to prevent any further breaches of agreement. Kahala Corp. and KBI denied all allegations. In addition, KBI filed counterclaims against the Plaintiffs for indemnification for various obligations paid and for Plaintiffs breach of warranty under the Asset Purchase Agreement. The case was settled in February 2009 with no admission of fault by either party and Defendants paid the Plaintiffs \$1,257,000. The case has been dismissed with prejudice.

C. P. Ferrell, Inc., et al. v. Blimpie International, Inc., et al.; American Arbitration Association, New York, New York, Case No. 13 114 03098 02. On August 27, 2002, the Association of Blimpie Franchisees, Inc. purporting to represent all Blimpie franchisees, filed an arbitration demand against BI. On July 23, 2004, an amended petition was filed by C.P. Ferrell, Inc., Charles Ferrell, Inc., Chris McGirt, Knee Deep, Inc., Tracar, LLC, Lynn Hennings, Nordstrom Oil Company, George Poulos, Mid-American Systems, Inc., Patricia Lewick, Gary Lundy, BATV, Inc., Brian Taylor, Babb, LLC, Kevin Stanfield, Bradlynn & Associates, Inc., Mark White, WTI Restaurants, Inc., Ted E. Wilcox, Tred's Inc., Robert L. Weitzel, Siesta Ices, Inc., Gibson Pryor and Pryor Management, LLC (collectively "Claimants"), on a class action basis by 24 of BI's franchisees, and added Jeffrey Endervelt, BI's Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer ("Endervelt"), as an individual respondent. Claimants alleged that BI was in breach of its Franchise Agreements and violated antitrust laws, state deceptive trade practices laws, state franchise laws and the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing by changes to BI's approved manufacturers and suppliers, and that Endervelt used the changes to enrich himself. Claimants also alleged that BI tortuously interfered with franchisees' relationships with previously authorized manufacturers by BI's exercise of its right of disapproval. Claimants also allege that a portion of the Advertising Fee ("AF") and Blimpie Brand Building Fund, Inc. ("BBBF") monies were used for unauthorized purposes. Claimants seek preliminary and permanent injunctive relief, including a declaratory judgment that BI's manufacturer agreements are unlawful and a declaration that BI may not take action against Claimants in the form of default notices and similar action, an injunction against future manufacturer agreements by which BI receives payments from manufacturers, and restraint of BI's enforcement of its franchisees' obligations under their Franchise Agreements to purchase required products. Claimant also sought an accounting and damages of: (i) disgorgement of all monies claimed to have been unlawfully paid to BI by 3<sup>rd</sup>-party suppliers since January 1, 2002; (ii) the cost increases franchisees sustained as a result of BI's recent manufacturer agreements; (iii) all amounts claimed to have been diverted from the AF and BBBF, and consequential or incidental damages incurred by Claimants or the BBBF; (iv) multiple damages as provided by statute; and (v) attorneys' fees, costs, and disbursements associated with the arbitration. A settlement was reached between the parties in November 2006. The terms included: (i) a \$437,500 payment by Blimpie to the BBBF (payable in \$12,500 installments for 35 months), an \$87,500 payment towards Claimants' expenses, and a \$350,000 payment towards Claimants' attorneys' fees; (ii) certification of a non-opt out settlement class by the Arbitrator consisting of all current Blimpie franchisees, a settlement fairness hearing before the Arbitrator as a class settlement, and confirmation of the settlement/consent award by a court of competent jurisdiction; (iii) agreement by parties to adhere to the current Blimpie vendor approval process and administration of the BBBF in accordance with the current BBBF By-Laws;

(iv) releases of Respondents by class members of all vendor related claims; (v) dismissal with prejudice of the arbitration entitled CRB Enterprises, et al. v. Blimpie International, et al., Case No. 11 114 00886 06. A final consent award was rendered by the Arbitrator on November 7, 2007, memorializing the terms of the settlement, and a consent award was confirmed by the Court and judgment was entered thereon on December 10, 2007.

Blimpie of Western Michigan, Inc., et al. v. Blimpie International, Inc., U.S. District Court, Connecticut, Case No. 3:05-cv-01457-RNC. By reading an Associated Press story dated September 23, 2005, BI learned that Blimpie of Western Michigan, Inc., Northern Lakes Blimpie, LC, JRB Enterprises, Southern Oregon Blimpie, Inc., B&C Blimpie, LLC, Blimpie of Long Island, Inc., Blimpie of Northern Indiana, Inc., Finna, L.P., Blimpie of Phoenix, Inc., JTD Enterprises, Inc., Blimpie Treasure Coast, Inc., Connecticut Blimpie Associates, Blimpie of Omaha, Inc., Blimpie of the Dakota's, Inc., Blimpie of Michigan, Inc., SFH Blimpie, Inc., Blimpie of Heartland Development, LLC, Frogg Management, Inc., Americon, Inc., Theatre Confections, Inc., Blimpie Pacific, Inc., Blimpie of South Florida, Ltd., Blimpie of the Keys, Blimpie of Columbus Ohio, Inc., Southwest Blimpie, LC, Llewellyn Distributors, Inc., L&M Blimpie, Inc., Northwest Blimpie, Inc., Blimpie Advantage Development Corp., Southeastern Blimpie Development Corporation, Blimpie of Montana, LLC, Speck Enterprises, Inc., MISAL Development Corp., Sunrise Management, Inc., LJMJ, Inc., Blimpie of Florida's West Coast, Inc., Blimpie of Florida's West Coast Down South, LC, BFWC-North, LLC, BLS, LC, JM Development, LLC, Blimpie-ESC, Inc., Bectom, Inc., TenKen Blimpie Development, LLC, Rocky Mountain Blimpie, Inc. and Blimpie Central, Inc. (collectively "Plaintiffs"), owners of 55 of BI's current or former area representative territories, filed suit on September 15, 2005, seeking declaratory and preliminary injunctive relief against BI. Plaintiffs alleged that BI was in breach of their agreements by (i) modifying BI's Manuals to alter their rights and obligations; (ii) affecting their ability to meet development schedules by BI's delivery of sales and marketing materials and copies of BI's UFOC, and the process by which BI approved or disapproved Plaintiffs' candidates; (iii) BI's handling of advertising monies; and (iv) changes in approved suppliers. Plaintiffs also alleged that BI had (i) breached the covenant of good faith and fair dealing in BI's handling of advertising monies; (ii) damaged them by BI's use of rebates paid to BBBF by suppliers; and (iii) misrepresented BI's intentions with regard to Plaintiffs' obligations in meeting development schedules. Plaintiffs sought to have the Court declare that BI violated the terms of their agreements and to issue preliminary and permanent injunction prohibiting BI from declaring their agreements in default or terminating their agreements. Plaintiffs also sought reasonable attorneys' fees and costs. In connection with BI's payment to Plaintiffs' share of royalty fee collections. Plaintiffs agreed to dismiss their claims and on April 16, 2007, the Court entered an order dismissing the case without prejudice to its being re-filed on or before May 16, 2007. Plaintiffs have not re-filed their case.

Blimpie of Western Michigan, Inc., et al. v. Blimpie International, Inc., American Arbitration Association, New York, New York, Case No. 13114Y0177704. On July 20, 2004, Blimpie of Western Michigan, Inc., Northern Lakes Blimpie, LC, JRB Enterprises, Southern Oregon Blimpie, Inc., S&C Blimpie, LLC, Midwest Central, Inc., Blimpie of Long Island, Inc., Blimpie of Northern Indiana, Inc., Blimpie of Phoenix, Inc., JTD Enterprises, Inc., Blimpie Treasure Coast, Inc., Connecticut Blimpie Associates, Blimpie of Omaha, Inc., Blimpie of the Dakota's, Inc., Blimpie of Michigan, Inc., SFH Blimpie, Inc., Blimpie of Heartland Development, LLC, Frogg Management, Inc., Americon, Inc., Theatre Confections, Inc., Blimpie Pacific, Inc., Blimpie of South Florida, Ltd., Blimpie of the Keys, Blimpie of Columbus, Ohio, Southwest Blimpie, LC, Llewellyn Distributors, Inc., L&M Blimpie, Inc., Northwest Blimpie, Inc., Blimpie of Montana, LLC, Speck Enterprises, Inc., MISAL Development Corporation, Blimpie of Montana, LLC, Speck Enterprises, Inc., MISAL Development Corp., Sunrise Management, Inc., LJMJ, Inc., Blimpie of Florida's West Coast, Blimpie of Florida's West Coast Down South, LC, BFWC-North, LLC, BLS, LC, JM Development, LLC, Blimpie-ESC, Inc., Bectom, Inc., TenKen Blimpie Development, LLC, Rocky Mountain Blimpie, Inc. and Blimpie Central, Inc. (collectively "Claimants"), owners of 56 of BI's former area representative territories, filed an arbitration demand against BI. Claimants alleged that BI was in breach of their agreements by (i) implementation of a Wal-Mart program; (ii) modifying BI's Manuals to alter their rights and obligations; (iii) affecting their ability to meet development schedules by BI's delivery of sales and marketing materials and copies of BI's UFOC, and the process by which BI approved or disapproved Claimants' candidates; (iv) BI's handling of advertising monies; and (v) changes in approved suppliers. Claimants also alleged that BI had (i) breached the covenant of good faith and fair dealing in BI's handling of advertising monies; (ii) damaged them by BI's use of rebates paid to BBBF by suppliers; and (iii) misrepresented BI's intentions with regard to Claimants' obligations in meeting development schedules. The third-party beneficiary claim based upon vendor payments was dismissed with prejudice on or about October 9, 2007 in accordance with the settlement agreement between the parties in the arbitration entitled C.P. Ferrell, Inc., et al. v. Blimpie International, Inc. Case No. 13 114 03098 002. At the same time, the case was administratively closed by the American Arbitration Association. On or about April 15, 2008, KBI entered into a settlement agreement with Claimants under which Claimants agreed to release all claims in exchange for certain payments to be made by an affiliate of KBI to two associations of which Claimants and other Blimpie area representatives are members.

Grupo de Alimentos Zoal S.A. de C.V. and Operadora Bafore S.A. de C.V. v. Blimpie American Arbitration Association, New York, International, Inc., New York, Case No. 50 114 T 00376 05. On September 16, 2005, Claimants, owners of current or former BI and Pasta Central area representative territories in Mexico, filed an arbitration demand against BI. Claimants alleged that BI was in breach of their agreements by (i) failing to provide initial training programs; advice, assistance and training in standards, procedures, techniques and methods comprising the franchise systems; training materials, Franchise Operations and Construction Manuals, Licensee Advisory Manuals, or technical specifications; (ii) BI's handling of advertising monies and/or failure to solicit same from distributors, manufacturers and suppliers; and (iii) BI's abandonment of the franchise systems in Mexico. Claimants sought damages of up to \$2,900,000, plus interest and costs and attorneys' fees. BI denied all of the allegations. The case settled in June 2007 with no admission of fault by either party and the payment of \$600,000 by KBI and its insurers.

James E. and Julie K. Morgan v. Blimpie International, Inc., BI Concept Systems, Inc., and Does 1-40, Superior Court, San Diego County, California, Case No. GIC858152. On December 9, 2005, Plaintiffs, who are Blimpie franchisees, filed suit against BI and BI Concept Systems, Inc. (collectively, the "Defendants"). Plaintiffs alleged violations of the California Franchise Investment Law, breach of contract, fraud in the inducement, negligent misrepresentation, and conversion, alleging that the Defendants, through their agents, misrepresented the time it would take to have the franchise restaurant open for business. Plaintiffs sought monetary damages and injunctive and declaratory relief, rescission of their Franchise Agreement, return of all money paid to BI, and general and special damages, in an amount not less than \$275,000.00, plus unspecified punitive damages. Defendants filed an Answer to this lawsuit. The case settled in June 2007 with no admission of fault by either party and the payment of \$235,000 by Defendants and their insurers.

<u>Blimpie of Las Vegas Regional Development, Inc. and William Reeser v. Blimpie</u> <u>International, Inc.</u>; American Arbitration Association, Las Vegas, Nevada, Case No. 791140007404MAVI. On June 15, 2004, Blimpie of Las Vegas Regional Development, Inc. ("BLV") and William Reeser ("Reeser"), one of BI's area representatives (collectively "Claimant"), filed an arbitration demand that alleged intentional misrepresentation and negligent misrepresentation to induce Claimant to enter into a Subfranchise Agreement in May 1999, breach of contract in the performance of BI's responsibilities in enforcing Franchise Agreements in Claimant's area and breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing in connection with BI's actions in terminating the Subfranchise Agreement on June 19, 2003. Claimant sought damages of \$300,000 and attorneys' fees. On August 30, 2004, BI filed a counterclaim alleging Claimant's breach of contract by failing to develop and manage the territory, failing to inspect franchisees, failing to properly process franchise sales, opening unauthorized restaurants, failing to remit fees to BI and failing to meet the development schedule, as well as trademark infringement. In its counterclaim, BI sought damages not to exceed \$300,000. In May 2006, a settlement agreement was executed by the parties providing, among other terms, for the payment of \$2,500 to BLV in the event KBI grants exclusive rights to a third party for the development of Blimpie restaurants in any part of the Northern Counties of Nevada prior to June 1, 2016, and for the payment of \$4,000 to BLV in the event KBI grants in any portion of Clark County prior to June 1, 2016.

Blimpie International, Inc. v. Blimpie Central, Inc. and John Drudi; American Arbitration Association, New York, New York, Case No. 13 114 00058 04. On January 2, 2004, BI filed an arbitration demand against Blimpie Central, Inc. ("BCI") and John Drudi ("Drudi"), Blimpie Area Representatives in Michigan, seeking declaratory judgment that BI's termination of Respondents' three Subfranchise Agreements in November 2003 was in compliance with the requirements of the Subfranchise Agreements and all applicable laws. On January 16, 2004, BCI, Drudi, and Renae Ruddle, alleged to be the assignee of Drudi's interests in the Subfranchise Agreements and the principal of BCI, filed counterclaims against BI alleging Blimpie's termination of the Subfranchise Agreement Act, on the basis of pretext, discriminatory enforcement, waiver, and absence of good cause, and seeking damages of \$4,000,000. A hearing was held in January 2005, and an award issued on May 17, 2005. The arbitrator found that BI's termination of Respondents' development rights was proper; found that termination of Respondents' \$249,465, and found that the Subfranchise Agreements were terminated. The action was dismissed.

Metropolitan Blimpie, Inc. v. Blimpie International, Inc., QWT Corp., and Blimpie of California, Inc.; American Arbitration Association, New York, New York, Case No. 13 133 02586 02. On October 30, 2002, Metropolitan Blimpie, Inc. (the "Claimant") filed an arbitration demand alleging the default and termination of a license agreement dated July 18, 1984 (the "1984 Agreement") between Claimant and BI by which Claimant granted BI exclusive right to license and sublicense the Blimpie Marks in southern California, a territory where Claimant previously had the exclusive right to license and sublicense the Blimpie Marks. In addition, Claimant alleged the default and termination of a sublicense agreement for southern California, also dated July 18, 1984. between BI and Blimpie of California, Inc. ("BOC") (the "1984 Sublicense Agreement"). The demand included claims against BI for breach of contract, violation of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, unjust enrichment, tort, and breach of fiduciary obligations. The demand included claims against BOC for specific performance of a restrictive covenant contained in the 1984 Sublicense Agreement, unjust enrichment, tort, and breach of fiduciary obligations. Claimant sought a declaratory judgment as to the default and termination of the 1984 Agreement and the 1984 Sublicense Agreement, or alternatively, rescission of the agreements, compensatory damages in the sum of \$100,000, and punitive damages. A hearing was held in August 2003 and the arbitrator rendered a decision on November 10, 2003, which was transmitted to BI's counsel on March 1, 2004. The arbitrator found that the Claimant was required to give notice and allow for cure before a default for non-payment could be declared. All of Claimant's claims were denied, although BI and BOC were directed to pay any payments that are more than 30 days overdue within 15 days of the date of the decision, and to pay interest for 13 months of late payments, also within 15 days of the date of the decision.

<u>JM Development LLC, Julie Voorhies, and Mike Layton v. Blimpie International, Inc.</u>; United States District Court for the District of Wyoming, Civil Action No. 02CV1077-D. On December 5, 2002, plaintiffs, a corporate Blimpie/Pasta Central franchisee and current area representative that opened in Casper, Wyoming in 2001 until its closure in October 2002, and two individual principals (collectively the "Plaintiffs") filed a lawsuit against BI alleging, with respect to Plaintiffs' Pasta Central franchise, breach of contract, violation of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, anticipatory repudiation, and breach of fiduciary duty. The claims also included a third party claim of the individual Plaintiffs for damages arising from their personal obligations under a loan guaranty they executed in connection with their restaurant, and a claim for declaratory judgment of unenforceability of the arbitration, venue, and choice of law provisions of their Franchise Agreement. Plaintiffs sought monetary damages in excess of \$200,000. The litigation was stayed pending arbitration by court order dated April 18, 2003. BI then filed an arbitration proceeding for declaratory judgment in New York, in response to which Plaintiff filed counterclaims identical to its claims in this case. In December 2003, a settlement agreement was executed by the parties providing, among other terms, for the payment \$170,000 to Plaintiffs.

<u>Blimpie International, Inc. v. JM Development, Inc.</u>; American Arbitration Association, New York, New York, Case No. 13 114 01038 03. Following the grant of BI's motion to stay pending arbitration in the matter <u>JM Development LLC</u>, Julie Voorhies, and Mike Layton v. Blimpie International, Inc. described above (the "JM Lawsuit"), on or about April 24, 2003, BI filed an arbitration demand seeking declarations: (i) that BI did not breach its Franchise Agreements with JM Development, Inc. ("JM"); (ii) that BI did not anticipatorily repudiate its Franchise Agreements with JM; (iii) that BI did not breach the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing; (iv) that BI did not breach any fiduciary duty owed to JM; and an (v) award of BI's attorneys' fees, costs, and expenses. On May 19, 2003, JM filed counterclaims in this arbitration restating the claims of the complaint in the JM Lawsuit. In December 2003, a settlement agreement was executed by the parties providing, among other terms, for the payment \$170,000 to JM.

<u>The Coca Cola Company v. Blimpie International, Inc. and Blimpie Brand Building Fund, Inc.</u> <u>- Demand for Arbitration</u>; American Arbitration Association, Atlanta, Georgia, Case No. 30 Y 181 00129 02. On February 4, 2002, The Coca-Cola Company ("Coca-Cola") filed a demand for arbitration against BI and Blimpie Brand Building Fund, Inc. ("BBBF") alleging breach of contract by both respondents by their alleged improper termination of the December 8, 1997, beverage supply contract among Coca-Cola, the BBBF, and BI (the "Contract"), and sought specific performance and unspecified damages. The parties filed cross motions for summary judgment as to the central issue, whether BI and BBBF had the right to terminate the Contract with Coca-Cola. By written order dated September 27, 2002, the arbitrator issued a written opinion granting BI's motion for summary judgment and denying Coca-Cola's motion, finding that BI and BBBF properly exercised its rights to terminate the Contract. The arbitrator awarded damages of \$561,990 to Coca-Cola for unpurchased syrup and the value of certain fountain equipment. BI timely paid the damage award, concluding the proceeding.

John Calder, Janice Freed, and Martin Feinberg v. Charles Leaness, David L. Siegel, Blimpie International, Inc., and Maui Tacos International, Inc.; Supreme Court of the State of New York, Case No. 600396/2002. John Calder, Janice Freed, and Martin Feinberg (the "Plaintiffs"), together with BI, were owners of a Maui Tacos restaurant in New York City that ceased doing business. Plaintiffs filed this action against Charles Leaness, David L. Siegel, Maui Tacos International, Inc., and BI (the "Defendants"), alleging violation of disclosure requirements under New York General Business Law; statutory and common law fraud; breach of contract; and quantum meruit. Plaintiffs sought rescission of the Franchise Agreement, \$180,000 in compensatory damages, \$37,500 in unpaid management fees, punitive damages, interest, attorneys' fees, and costs. Plaintiffs also alleged that Charles Leaness was their partner and breached a fiduciary duty to Plaintiffs, and sought an accounting of profits and funds received. In September 2003, the parties settled this case by the execution of mutual releases and payment to Plaintiffs of the sum of \$200,000.

Blimpie International, Inc. v. Jamm Enterprises, Inc.; American Arbitration Association, New York, New York, Case No. 13 114 00768 00. On August 15, 2000, BI began an arbitration action against Jamm Enterprises, Inc. (the "Respondent") after BI terminated Respondent's Franchise Agreement after Respondent failed to cure within the applicable cure period after receiving proper notice of default. BI sought declaratory judgment that BI was in full compliance with the terms of the Franchise Agreement; that BI was in full compliance with the applicable laws, rules, and regulations governing the issuance of a replacement Franchise Agreement to Respondent in connection with its purchase of an existing Blimpie Restaurant in a third party purchase and sale transaction; that termination of the Franchise Agreement was proper on Respondent's breach and failure to cure within the applicable cure period; and alternatively, that BI could rescind the Franchise Agreement on the basis of fraud in the inducement. BI sought an award of damages, and costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, incurred in connection with the proceeding. Respondent filed a counterclaim alleging that BI failed to comply with the FTC disclosure requirements; that BI breached our obligations under the Franchise Agreement; negligent misrepresentation; fraud; and defamation. BI denied all of Respondent's allegations. A hearing was held in August 2001. On January 2, 2002, the arbitrator issued an opinion finding non-compliance with disclosure obligations and awarding Respondent rescission and damages in the sum of \$92,220, including pre-judgment interest and attorneys' fees. The arbitrator denied all the Respondent's other claims. The arbitrator denied BI's claims in their entirety.

Edward Sheskier, Jr., Diana Dinardo, Sheskidin II, Inc., and Sheskidin Enterprises, Inc. ("Claimants") v. Blimpie International, Inc.; American Arbitration Association, New York, New York, Case No. 13 114 00309 00. As a result of a stay of the legal proceeding entitled <u>Blimpie</u> International, Inc. v. D'Elia, *et al.*, above, the Claimants' brought an arbitration action against BI on April 3, 2000, alleging claims similar to those in the legal proceedings. Claimants also alleged that, in 1994, a franchise salesman provided a false salesperson disclosure form that failed to disclose that he had been held liable in one or more civil actions by final judgment involving fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion, or misappropriation of property, and made a number of improper misrepresentations in violation of applicable law. Claimants sought unspecified compensatory damages, attorneys' fees, and costs. BI denied the allegations. A hearing was held in January and April 2001. On October 30, 2001, the arbitration panel, without stating any reasons for its decision, awarded Claimants \$194,034.32 in damages and \$110,599.56 in pre-judgment interest, but denied Claimants' request for punitive damages and attorneys' fees.

## Concluded Arbitration and Litigation Involving KBI Holdings, L.L.C.

KBI Holdings, LLC v. Mackly Monestime and Oscar Chavarria: Circuit Court of the Twentieth Judicial Circuit, Collier County, FL, Case No. 1004623CA. In July 2010, KBI Holdings, LLC ("Plaintiff"), the owner of the Blimpie Trademarks and certain Blimpie Assets, filed a Complaint against Mackly Monestime (a Blimpie franchisee) and Oscar Chavarria (a Blimpie franchisee) (collectively, the "Defendants") alleging breach of sublicense and breach of contract. Plaintiff seeks eviction and ejectment of Defendants, and demand for judgment for damages, attorneys' fees and costs, and such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper. On November 18, 2010, Plaintiff filed a Motion to Stay and Compel Arbitration. The Court granted the Motion to

Compel Arbitration and Stay Proceedings on or about April 21, 2011. Defendants have not yet pursued arbitration against the Plaintiff.

KBI Holdings, LLC v. D.R.G., L.L.C., Drew Gordon, and RobAnne Gordon; Third Judicial District Court, Salt Lake County, Utah, Case No. 090920297. In November 2009, KBI Holdings, LLC ("Plaintiff"), the owner of the Blimpie Trademarks and certain Blimpie Assets, filed a Complaint against D.R.G., L.L.C. (a Blimpie franchisee), Drew Gordon (a principal of D.R.G., L.L.C. and guarantor of its contractual obligations), and RobAnne Gordon (a principal of D.R.G., L.L.C. and guarantor of its contractual obligations) (collectively, the "Defendants") alleging breach of noncompetition agreement due to Defendants converting their Blimpie restaurant into a Drew's Deli; breach of Franchise Agreement (against D.R.G., L.L.C.); breach of Sublease against D.R.G., L.L.C.); breach of quaranty (against Drew Gordon and RobAnne Gordon); interference with prospective economic relations; and common law unfair competition. Plaintiffs seek preliminary and permanent injunctive relief to enjoin Defendants from operating a competing business for two years, using the Blimpie trademarks in conjunction with the competing business, using the Blimpie system or any of its proprietary or confidential information in connection with the competing business, and soliciting Blimpie customers with the competing business; and monetary damages including royalty and advertising fees, rental obligations, and other amounts to be proven at trial, including attorneys' fees and costs plus interest. In December 2009, Defendants filed a Motion to Compel Arbitration, and Plaintiffs agreed to arbitrate the case. In February 2010, Defendants filed a petition for Chapter 7 Bankruptcy (United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Utah, Case No. 10-21740), which stayed the District Court action.

## Concluded Arbitration and Litigation Involving Multiple Predecessors:

Kahala Corp., Malibu Smoothie Franchise Corp., Frullati Franchise Systems, Inc., Rollerz Franchise Systems, L.L.C., Tahi Mana, L.L.C., and Ranch \*1 Group, Inc. (collectively, the "Predecessor Franchisors") v. Rilwala Group, Inc., Manu Jogani, Pravin Patel, Paresh Jani, Dinesh Ghandhi, Haresh Shah, R.B. Texas Collections, Inc., Jani Foods, Inc., Snehal Jani, Rilwala Goods, Inc., and Does 1-100 (collectively, "Rilwala") (Case No. CV03-2160-PHX-JAT). On November 8, 2003, the Predecessor Franchisors filed a complaint against Rilwala and its principals in United States District Court for the District of Arizona. Rilwala and its principals were Area Developers for certain of the Predecessor Franchisors, and the Complaint was for breach of the area development agreements, the associated promissory notes and related damages. In August, 2004, Rilwala filed a cross claim against the Predecessor Franchisors and certain officers of Kahala Corp. Additionally, certain third parties have joined the litigation and filed their own cross claims against Rilwala and its principals. The cross claim filed by Rilwala against the Predecessor Franchisors alleged Breach of Contract; fraud; Breach of the Covenant of Good Faith and Fair Dealing; Tortious Interference with Existing and Prospective Contractual Relations; Breach of Fiduciary Duty; Corporate Impropriety; Self-Dealing; Violation of Sections 607.1602 and 607.1605 of the Florida Business Corporation Act (Shareholder Right to Inspect); Negligent Misrepresentation; Violation of Section 501.201 of the Florida Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act; Breach of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act (815 ILCS 705/6); Breach of Section 445.1505 of the Michigan Franchise Investment Law; Federal Antitrust Violation; Arizona Antitrust Violation; Civil Conspiracy; Violation of 18 U.S.C. Section 1962 (a), (c), and (d); Federal Securities Fraud Violation (Rule 10b-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934); Illinois Securities Fraud Violation (815 ILCS 5/12); Arizona Securities Fraud Violation (A.R.S. Section 44-1991); and Injunctive Relief Regarding Escrow and Accounting. Defendants sought unspecified compensatory damages, attorneys' fees and costs. In October 2005, the entire lawsuit was settled by mutual agreement of all of the parties, with none of the parties admitting to any fault. The settlement provided for the Predecessor Franchisors to pay Rilwala \$500,000.00 over a fifty-month period, beginning December 1, 2005, at the rate of \$10,000.00 per month. The entire \$500,000 has been paid.

#### Concluded Action Brought by a Public Agency Involving Predecessor Blimpie Associates, Ltd.:

In May 1992, Blimpie Associates, Ltd. and Joseph Dornbush (formerly the President of Blimpie Associates, Ltd.), in response to a claim by the New York Department of Law that it had sold franchises during a period of time when its prospectus had not been updated by amendment, and without the admission of any wrongdoing, consented to the entry of an order in which Blimpie Associates, Ltd. and Mr. Dornbush agreed (i) to entry of a judgment enjoining them from further violations of the New York Franchise Sales Act, and (ii) to pay the sum of \$18,000 to the State of New York as an additional allowance. Upon execution of the consent judgment which was entered on August 25, 1992 and payment of \$18,000 (which occurred in May, 1992), the charges of the State were resolved.

Other than these actions, no litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

## **ITEM 4: BANKRUPTCY**

On January 13, 1997, Surf City Squeeze, Inc., an affiliate of Kahala Franchising, filed a petition to reorganize under Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy Code (United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Arizona, Case No. 97-00451 PHX-GBN). On November 19, 1997, the first modified Joint Plan of Reorganization proposed by the debtor and the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors was confirmed (the "Plan"). Surf City Squeeze, Inc. operated under the Plan until the Case was permanently closed on January 24, 2003. Kahala Franchising is not directly affected by the bankruptcy.

On July 3, 2001, Ranch\*1, Inc. and each of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, including Ranch \*1 Group, Inc., who are affiliates of Kahala Franchising, filed a petition to reorganize under Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy Code (United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York, Case Nos. 01-41853 through 01-41881 (AJG)). On April 4, 2002, the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York entered an Order confirming the Plan of Reorganization jointly filed by Ranch\*1, Inc. and its Affiliates, the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors, and R 1 Franchise Systems, L.L.C. (the "Ranch Plan"). The Ranch Plan, which became effective May 1, 2002, provided for R 1 Franchise Systems, L.L.C., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kahala, to own one hundred percent (100%) of Ranch\*1, Inc. and its subsidiaries (including Ranch \*1 Group, Inc.). Ranch \*1, Inc. and its subsidiaries operated under the Ranch Plan until the Case was permanently closed on January 13, 2011. Kahala Franchising is not directly affected by this bankruptcy.

On June 15, 2004, Progressive Pizza filed a voluntary petition to reorganize under Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy Code (United States Bankruptcy Court for the Central District of California, Los Angeles Division; Case No. LA 04-23161 VZ). The Bankruptcy Court Judge unilaterally dismissed the entire bankruptcy proceedings without notice on October 14, 2005. In March 2005, Progressive Pizza transferred all of the day-to-day operations and control of its Johnnie's New York Pizzeria business and chain to Kahala Holdings in accordance with a Bankruptcy proceedings, Progressive Pizza sold to Kahala Franchise Corp. all of the intellectual property of the Johnnie's New York Pizzeria restaurant concept and the exclusive ownership of, and corresponding rights to utilize, license, and franchise the Johnnie's New York Pizzeria brand restaurant in accordance with the Franchising Rights Agreement. Additionally, through the foreclosure of certain secured debt owed by Progressive Pizza to affiliates of ours, Kahala Holdings, L.L.C. became the sole owner of Progressive Pizza's three Los Angeles, California area

corporate-owned Johnnie's New York Pizzeria restaurants in December 2005. Kahala Franchising and its affiliates have no current relationship with Progressive Pizza.

On February 26, 2001, Employee Solutions, Inc. filed as a debtor a petition to start an action under Chapter 7 of the United States Bankruptcy Code (United State Bankruptcy Court for the District of Arizona, Case No. 01-01993-CGC). The case was terminated on May 25, 2006. Quentin Smith, Jr. was a board member and CEO of the debtor. Mr. Smith is the Senior Vice President – Non-Traditional Development of KAHA.

Other than these actions, no bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.

# ITEM 5: INITIAL FEES

## Franchisees:

For NrGize restaurants located within an LA Fitness health club, you will pay a \$15,000 lump sum Initial Franchise Fee when you sign the Franchise Agreement. There is no reduction in Initial Franchise Fee if you open multiple *NrGize* restaurants within multiple LA Fitness health clubs. For all other traditional NrGize restaurants, you will pay a \$30,000 lump sum Initial Franchise Fee per traditional NrGize franchise restaurant when you sign the Franchise Agreement. The Initial Franchise Fee will be reduced to \$17,500 per traditional NrGize restaurant for your third traditional NrGize restaurant and each traditional restaurant afterward. The range of Initial Franchise Fees for a traditional NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant (not located within an LA Fitness health club) ranges from \$17,500 to \$30,000 depending on whether the restaurant is the franchisee's third or subsequent NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant (i.e., \$17,500) or if the restaurant is the franchisee's first or second *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant (*i.e.*, \$30,000). A "traditional" *NrGize* franchise restaurant is any *NrGize* location offering the full *NrGize* menu. You will pay a \$7,500 lump sum Initial Franchise Fee per non-traditional NrGize unit. A "non-traditional" location is an NrGize event cart, express or co-branded location, or an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe located within a travel plaza, or convenience store, all of which locations generally offer a limited version of the full NrGize Lifestyle Cafe menu in existence at traditional NrGize Lifestyle Cafes. The Initial Franchise Fee is reduced to \$5,000 per non-traditional NrGize restaurant for your third non-traditional NrGize restaurant and each non-traditional restaurant afterward. The range of Initial Franchise Fee for a non-traditional NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant ranges from \$5,000 to \$7,500 depending on whether the restaurant is the franchisee's third or subsequent NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant (i.e., \$5,000) or if the restaurant is the franchisee's first or second NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant (i.e., \$7,500). If you are currently an active or active reserve member of the U.S. Armed Forces, have been honorably discharged from the U.S. Armed Forces ("Eligible Military"), or are a 501(c)(3) organization, you will receive a twenty percent (20%) discount on the Initial Franchise Fee, except for the limited time promotion for Eligible Military below in this Item 5. Therefore, if you are an active or active reserve member of the U.S. Armed Forces, have been honorably discharged from the U.S. Armed Forces, or are a federally recognized 501(c)(3) organization, the Initial Franchise Fee is \$24,000 per franchise for the first two traditional franchise units; \$14,000 for the third and each subsequent traditional franchise unit; \$6,000 for the first two non-traditional franchise units; and \$4,000 for the third and each subsequent non-traditional franchise unit. This does not take into account the 50% promotional discount on the Initial Franchise Fee for Eligible Military listed below in this Item 5 as it is a limited time offer only. (These discounts do not apply to restaurants located within LA Fitness health clubs as those fees are already discounted.)

We began offering a limited time promotion in November 2011 for those who are Eligible Military. The promotion is effective through December 31, 2012 and offers Eligible Military a fifty

percent (50%) discount on the Initial Franchise Fee. After that time, the Initial Franchise Fee discount for Eligible Military will return to our standard twenty percent (20%) discount. (*This discount does <u>not</u> apply to restaurants located within LA Fitness health clubs as those fees are already discounted*.)

There are no refunds of Initial Franchise Fees under any circumstances. We may periodically reduce the Initial Franchise Fee in connection with limited time promotions, new concepts and/or operational programs. If you sign the Franchise Agreement in connection with a transfer or renewal, you will not pay the Initial Franchise Fee.

The initial fees to be paid to us and/or our affiliate(s) before the franchisee's business opens are indicated on the chart below in this Item and in the notes to the chart. The initial fees to be paid to us and/or our affiliate(s) before the franchisee's business opens are the total of the Initial Franchise Fee, Location Review Fee (as defined in the notes below), the cost of opening inventory and supplies, and the cost of equipment, interior and exterior signage, menu boards and smallwares, and ranges from \$5,250 to \$53,750 for a non-traditional location, and from \$15,250 to \$76,250 for a traditional location. For a new build turn key restaurant located within an LA Fitness health club, the initial fees to be paid to us and/or our affiliate(s) before the franchisee's business opens are the total of the initial franchise fee and the cost of opening inventory and supplies, Turn Key Package costs for new builds (includes Leasehold Improvement and Equipment including menu panels, and the Construction Fee and Access Fee charged by LA Fitness), Initial Fee and Reservation Fee charged by LA Fitness and ranges from \$93,000 to \$168,750. For the conversion of an existing restaurant to an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe located within an LA Fitness health club, the initial fees to be paid to us and/or our affiliate(s) before the franchisee's business opens are the total of the Initial Franchise Fee and the cost of opening inventory and supplies, Turn Key Conversion Package (may include all Restaurant Equipment, Furniture, Small Wares, Interior and Exterior Signage and menu panels, as needed), the Access Fee charged by LA Fitness and the Initial Fee charged by LA Fitness and ranges from \$52,000 to \$111,250. These amounts do not include the optional lease guarantee fee that is variable based upon the amount of the underlying guarantee, or the optional lease negotiation fee or optional lease procurement fee as these are fees for optional services that may be requested at the sole discretion of the franchisee, or any applicable Initial Development Fee (the "Initial Development Fee").

We may offer you the option to purchase a license to sell additional signature products in your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant and to use the signature products trademark(s) as signature products are developed. The signature products that would be available for *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchisees to sell in their restaurants are currently under development. We estimate that the fees associated with acquiring license(s) to sell additional products will be between \$2,500 and \$5,000 although these license fees may be modified from time to time.

For the 2011 fiscal year, the formula used to calculate the range of initial fees paid to us and/or our affiliate(s) before the franchisee's business opened was: the total of the initial franchise fee, lease review fee, the cost of opening inventory and/or supplies purchased from Kona Coast (if any), and the cost of equipment, interior and exterior signage, menu boards, and/or smallwares purchased from Neptune Equipment (if any). These amounts did not include the optional lease guarantee fee that was variable based upon the amount of the underlying guarantee, or optional lease procurement fee (as these were fees for optional services that may be requested at the sole discretion of the franchisee), the Document Administration Fee (which is only required if the franchisee requests a re-draft of the Franchise Agreement), or any applicable Initial Development Fee. The factors that determined these amounts were: (i) the Initial Franchise Fee was discounted or waived; (ii) the traditional franchise was the franchisee's first or second traditional franchise; (iii) the traditional franchise was the franchisee's third or subsequent traditional franchise; (iv) the non-

traditional franchise was the franchisee's first or second non-traditional franchise; (v) the nontraditional franchise was the franchisee's third or subsequent non-traditional franchise; (vi) the location review fee; (vii) the cost of opening inventory and supplies purchased from our affiliate, Kona Coast, which depended on the amount purchased; (viii) the cost of equipment, interior and exterior signage, menu boards, and smallwares purchased from our affiliate, Neptune Equipment, which depended on the equipment purchased; (ix) if the store was a new build within an LA Fitness health club, the turnkey package fee; (x) if the store was a conversion of an existing cafe to an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe, the turnkey conversion fee; and (xi) the Initial Fee and Reservation Fee charged by LA Fitness and collected by us for stores located within an LA Fitness health club.

CATEGORY	AMOUNT	METHOD OF PAYMENT	DUE DATE	TO WHOM PMT IS MADE	REFUNDABILITY
Initial Franchise Fee -1 <sup>st</sup> and 2 <sup>nd</sup> traditional location	\$30,000	Lump Sum	Signing of the Franchise Agreement	Kahala Franchising	See Note (1)
Initial Franchise Fee – 3rd traditional location and each afterward	\$17,500	Lump Sum	Signing of the Franchise Agreement	Kahala Franchising	See Note (1)
Initial Franchise Fee – 1 <sup>st</sup> and 2 <sup>nd</sup> non- traditional location	\$7,500	Lump Sum	Signing of the Franchise Agreement	Kahala Franchising	See Note (1)
Initial Franchise Fee – 3rd non-traditional location and each afterward	\$5,000	Lump Sum	Signing of the Franchise Agreement	Kahala Franchising	See Note (1)
Initial Franchise Fee – for NrGize restaurants located within LA Fitness health clubs <u>ONLY</u>	\$15,000	Lump Sum	Signing of Franchise Agreement	Kahala Franchising	See Note (1)
Lease Guarantee Fee (optional)	10% of the total amount guaranteed, up to a maximum payment of \$10,000 (if applicable) (Note 2)	Lump Sum	Signing of the Lease Agreement (if applicable)	Kahala Franchising or its affiliate who guarantees the lease	See Note (1)
Location Review Fee	\$1,250 (Note 3)	Lump Sum	Signing of the Franchise Agreement	Kahala Franchising	See Note (1)
Lease Negotiation Fee (optional)	\$2,500 (Note 4)	Lump Sum	Upon Request to Kahala Management's Real Estate Department for the Service	Kahala Franchising	See Note (1)

CATEGORY	AMOUNT	METHOD OF PAYMENT	DUE DATE	TO WHOM PMT IS MADE	REFUNDABILITY
Lease Procurement Fee (optional)	\$5,000 (Note 5)	Lump Sum	Upon Request to Kahala Management's Real Estate Department for the Service	Kahala Franchising	See Note (1)
Opening Inventory and Supplies	\$0 to \$5,000 (See Note 6)	Lump Sum	At time the order is placed (if applicable)	Kona Coast and/or third party vendor	See Note (1)
Equipment, interior and exterior signage, menu boards, and/or smallwares	\$0 to \$40,000 (Note 6)	Lump sum	When invoiced	Neptune Equipment and/or third party vendor	See Note (1)
The below fe	es only annly i	to NrGize franch	nises located within	an LA Fitness I	nealth club
Turn Key Package for new builds (includes Leasehold Improvement and Equipment including menu panels, and the Construction Fee and Access Fee charged by LA Fitness	\$75,000 to \$150,000	See Note 7	Upon signing of the Franchise Agreement. (Note 4)	Kahala Franchising or its designated affiliate	See Note (1)
Access Fee and Turn Key Conversion Package (includes all Restaurant Equipment, Furniture, Small Wares, Interior and Exterior Signage and menu panels, graphics package, wallpaper and paint, as needed)	\$35,500 to \$92,500	See Note 7	Upon signing of the Franchise Agreement	Kahala Franchising or its designated affiliate	See Note (1)
Initial Fee charged by LA Fitness (Note 8)	\$500 to \$2,500	See Note 7	All upon signing of the Franchise Agreement (Note 4)	Kahala Franchising or its affiliate Kahala Holdings	See Note (1)
Reservation Fee charged by LA Fitness (Note 8)	\$1,000 to \$1,250	See Note 7	All upon signing of the Franchise Agreement. (Note 4)	Kahala Franchising or its affiliate Kahala Holdings	The Reservation Fee is refundable, so long as you perform all obligations under the Single-Unit Facility License

CATEGORY	AMOUNT	METHOD OF PAYMENT	DUE DATE	TO WHOM PMT IS MADE	REFUNDABILITY
					Agreement, 30 days after the expiration or termination of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement (See Exhibit L.

## Notes:

(1) There are no refunds under any circumstances. Kahala Franchising does not offer any financing of the Initial Franchise Fee. We may periodically reduce the Initial Franchise Fee in connection with limited time promotions, new concepts and/or operational programs.

(2) If, after a request by you, Kahala Franchising or any of its affiliates agree, in their sole and absolute discretion, to guarantee your lease with the applicable third party landlord for the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant you are developing, you will pay Kahala Franchising or its affiliate a lease guarantee fee in the amount of 10% of the total amount of the rental obligations being guaranteed under the lease upon the execution of the lease and associated guarantee with the third party landlord, up to a maximum payment of \$10,000. This fee is not refundable (See <u>Exhibit H</u>: Lease Guaranty Acknowledgement). The lease guarantee fee does not apply to NrGize restaurants located within an LA Fitness health club.

(3) You are required to pay us a \$1,250 location review fee for our services of reviewing your lease if you have entered into a lease with a landlord ("Location Review Fee"). The Location Review Fee is non-refundable and can be waived in certain situations at our sole and absolute discretion. The Location Review Fee does not apply to *NrGize* restaurants located within an LA Fitness health club.

(4) A \$2,500 lease negotiation fee shall be paid by you to Kahala Franchising ("Lease Negotiation Fee") upon your request to Kahala Management's real estate department for assistance in negotiating a term sheet to secure a lease or negotiating the actual lease terms with the landlord or broker/agent for the landlord for the location of the *NrGize* restaurant you are developing. This fee is not refundable. This is an optional service, with the determination of whether to utilize Kahala Management's real estate department to be made in your sole discretion. If you request to use this service and have paid the Location Review Fee, the Location Review Fee you paid will be applied towards the \$2,500 Lease Negotiation Fee. The final approval and execution of the term sheet and/or lease and the provisions therein remain the sole responsibility of the franchisee (See <u>Exhibit</u> <u>I</u>: Lease Negotiation Acknowledgment). The lease negotiation fee does not apply to *NrGize* restaurants located within an LA Fitness health club.

(5) A \$5,000 lease procurement fee shall be paid by you to Kahala Franchising upon your request to Kahala Management's real estate department to locate a site, visit the site, and negotiate the actual lease terms with the landlord or broker/agent for the landlord for the location of the *NrGize* restaurant you are developing ("Lease Procurement Fee"). This fee is not refundable. This is an optional service, with the determination of whether to utilize Kahala Management's real estate department to be made in your sole discretion. If you request to use this service and have paid the Location Review Fee, the Location Review Fee you paid will be applied towards the \$5,000 Lease

Procurement Fee. The services provided by our real estate department when the Lease Procurement Fee is paid includes all of the services as provided as part of the Lease Negotiation Fee detailed above in addition to assisting the franchisee in identifying the location (See <u>Exhibit J</u>: Lease Procurement Acknowledgment). The Lease Procurement Fee does not apply to NrGize restaurants located within an LA Fitness health club.

The majority of your opening inventory and supplies will be purchased from approved (6) third party vendors, which may include Kona Coast. You may, but are not required, to purchase inventory and supplies from Kona Coast. In addition, the majority of your equipment, interior and exterior signage, menu boards, and smallwares will be purchased from approved third party vendors, which may include Neptune Equipment, an affiliate of Kahala Franchising. You may, but are not required, to purchase the above-referenced items from Neptune Equipment. We will provide you with one set of our confidential operations manuals and associated documents and written guidelines (collectively, the "Operations Manual(s)"). A list of approved distributors for our approved vendors is maintained by our purchasing department and will be provided to you during the pre-opening and/or construction phase for your Franchised Business. Updates will be provided to you as changes are made (i.e., additions and deletions) to the list of approved distributors for our approved vendors. We may acquire certain used equipment and signage and offer it for sale to prospective or existing franchisees at a price that we believe to be equal to or less than the fair market value of that equipment and signage. If we make that offer to you, you have the option of purchasing that equipment and signage from us or purchasing new equipment and signage from the approved third parties.

This paragraph applies only if your NrGize franchise is to be located within an LA (7) Fitness health club: The NrGize franchise covered by your Franchise Agreement is a "turn key" opportunity. Given this "turn key" aspect, we or our affiliate(s) will be solely responsible for overseeing and managing the entire construction process and equipping of your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe covered by your Franchise Agreement. The Initial Fee and the Reservation Fee indicated in the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement (See Exhibit L), Construction Fee, Access Fee, all Leasehold Improvements, Construction Costs, and Equipment Costs for us to build out and equip your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe at the Site are collectively referred to as the "NrGize Turn-Key Fees." You will pay us or our designated affiliate the full Initial Franchise Fee plus the full amount of the NrGize Turn-Key Fee simultaneously with your execution of the Franchise Agreement and Single-Unit Facility License Agreement covering your new NrGize Lifestyle Cafe. The Construction Fee and Access Fee are non-refundable. The Reservation Fee is refundable 30 days after the expiration or termination of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, so long as you perform all obligations under the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement (See Exhibit L). The Reservation Fee shall be applied against the cost of any damages at the premises as a result of negligence, intentional vandalism or theft. If the cost of the repairs to the damages exceeds the amount of the Reservation Fee being held, you will not receive a refund and will be responsible to pay the difference. All of the other NrGize Turn-Key Fees are not refundable. The conversion of the existing restaurant to an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe will still be "turn key" as we or our affiliate(s) will be solely responsible for overseeing and managing the entire conversion process, which includes changing the signage and menu panels, color scheme and décor, and equipment. The projected opening date of your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe will be indicated in Section 5.5 of your Franchise Agreement (See Exhibit E). Upon signing your Franchise Agreement with us, you must also simultaneously enter into a Single-Unit Facility License Agreement with Kahala Holdings, L.L.C. that covers the occupancy by you of the applicable LA Fitness health club covered by your Franchise Agreement (See Exhibit L).

(8) Our affiliate, Kahala Holdings, L.L.C., has entered into a non-exclusive Master Facility License Agreement with LA Fitness covering the juice and snack bar operations at certain

future and existing LA Fitness health clubs in the United States. You will execute the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement (See <u>Exhibit L</u>) with Kahala Holdings, L.L.C. that covers the occupancy by you of the applicable LA Fitness health club, at the same time you execute the Franchise Agreement (See <u>Exhibit E</u>). You will be required to pay to us, or our affiliate, the following fees charged by LA Fitness: (i) the first and last month's rent, termed an Initial Fee in the Master Facility License Agreement and the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement; and (ii) a security deposit of one month minimum rent, termed a Reservation Fee in the Master Facility License Agreement and the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement.

#### Area Representatives:

If you desire to purchase an ARA Territory and provide certain support and assistance to franchisees on our behalf within the ARA Territory, and if you qualify, we may execute with you an Area Representative Agreement ("ARA") permitting you to operate as a franchise broker and provide certain support services to the franchisees within your ARA Territory. The required minimum number of restaurants to be developed under the ARA shall be agreed upon between Kahala Franchising and Area Representative with no maximum number of units required. A copy of the ARA is attached as Exhibit Q to this Disclosure Document. The "Initial Development Fee" required under the ARA is based on the estimated population, as determined and indicated on the U.S. Census Bureau's website (http://www.census.gov), and the royalty payments we or our affiliates received over the last 12 months and is calculated as the greater of: (i) the estimated population in the ARA Territory multiplied by \$.10; or (ii) the estimated population in the ARA Territory multiplied by \$.03 plus 4 times the royalty payments we received in the last 12 months on existing restaurants within the ARA Territory. The minimum population base in a given Territory is 30,000. Based on a minimum population of 30,000, the minimum Initial Development Fee is \$3.000. Kahala Franchising shall determine, in its sole and absolute discretion, the number of NrGize Lifestyle Cafe that can be opened in an ARA Territory based upon the population and other relevant demographic factors. The entire Initial Development Fee is payable in full at the time of the signing of the ARA and is not refundable unless we determine, in our sole discretion, that the Area Representative has not performed satisfactorily on the franchisee Training Program exams and/or the AR Training Program exams, is not competent in performing the skills necessary to be a franchisee and/or an Area Representative, cannot speak English fluently, does not have an aptitude for being a franchisee and/or Area Representative or has failed to satisfactorily complete the franchisee Training Program and/or AR Training Program, in which case we may terminate the Area Representative Agreement according to Section 3(u)(iii) of the ARA. In that case, the Initial Development Fee will be refunded to Area Representative less a \$25,000 administrative fee that will be retained by us. For the 2011 fiscal year, the formula used to calculate the Initial Development Fee paid to us for the area representative's purchase of an ARA territory was the greater of: (i) the estimated population in the ARA Territory multiplied by \$.10; or (ii) the estimated population in the ARA Territory multiplied by \$.03 plus 4 times the royalty payments we or our affiliates received in the last 12 months on existing restaurants within the ARA Territory. Kahala Franchising did not sell any NrGize ARAs during the 2011 fiscal year and did not receive any Initial Development Fees based upon the estimated population or royalty payments calculations listed above.

In addition to the Initial Development Fee, Area Representative must also file or assist in filing any and all relevant Salesperson Disclosure Forms and/or similar documentation and pay the applicable filing fee(s) to the applicable state to allow the Area Representative to assist us in the sale of *NrGize* franchises within the ARA Territory. The filing fee(s) range from \$50 to \$150.

# ITEM 6: OTHER FEES

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4
Type of Fee	Amount	Due Date	Remarks
Royalty Fee and       Fee         Surcharge (Note 1) –       o         excluding NrGize       to         restaurants located       (i)         within LA Fitness       S         health clubs       \$         Royalty Fee and       T         Surcharge - for NrGize       treestaurants located         restaurants located       restaurants located         within LA Fitness       u         health clubs ONLY       n         "a       o         (f)       (f)         within LA Fitness       u         health clubs ONLY       n         "a       o         (f)       ff         (f)       ff         (g)       ff         (g)	Amount Royalty Fee is the greater of the following: (i) 6% of otal weekly Gross Sales or ii) \$150 per week. Surcharge is a maximum of 510 per week in addition to he Royalty Fee. (Note 2) The Royalty Fee. (Note 2) The Royalty Fee is a flat fee hat is determined on a per- estaurant basis based upon the most current number of card swipes or adjusted average number of daily member check-ins" "Check-ins") based on the nost recent data we have rom LA Fitness as follows subject to increase as detailed below): (i) If the Check-ins are 800 or less, he Royalty Fee is \$300 per nonth; (ii) If the Check-ins are between 801-1,400, the Royalty Fee is \$750 per nonth; (iii) If the Check-ins are between 1,401 and 2,000, the Royalty Fee is 51,000 per month; and (iv) f the Check-ins are over 2,001, the Royalty Fee is 51,250 per month. The applicable monthly Royalty Fee (i.e., \$300, \$750, 51,000 or \$1,250 per nonth) shall be increased 3% annually to account for nflation and compounded annually on January 1 <sup>st</sup> . Surcharge is a maximum of 510 per week in addition to he Royalty Fee.	Due Date Withdrawn electronically from your designated bank account each Thursday (Note 3) Withdrawn electronically from your designated bank account on the 15th day of each month (Note 3)	Remarks"Gross Sales" include all revenue from the Franchised Business excluding sales tax and authorized refunds, credits and allowances.Royalty Fee is determined prior to signing the Franchise Agreement and is a flat rate that is subject to a 3% annual increase. In the absence of card swipe data, such as for new locations, the Royalty Fee is a flat rate of \$750 per month for the first 12 months. After 12 months, the royalty fee will be adjusted to a flat rate for the remainder of the term, based upon the most recent data we have from LA Fitness, as follows (subject to the 3% annual increase): (i) If the Check- ins are 800 or less, the Royalty Fee is \$300 per month; (ii) If the Check-ins are between 801-1,400, the Royalty Fee is \$1,000 per month; (iii) If the Check-ins are over 2,001, the Royalty Fee is \$1,250 per month. The applicable monthy Royalty Fee is \$1,250 per month. The applicable monthy Royalty Fee (i.e., \$300, \$750, \$1,000 or \$1,250 per month) shall be increased 3% annually on

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4
Type of Fee	Amount	Due Date	Remarks
Advertising Fees (Note 1)	Up to 4% of weekly Gross Sales	Same as Royalty Fee (Note 3)	Currently, Advertising Fee is .5% of weekly Gross Sales (except for <i>NrGize</i> restaurants co-branded with Blimpie restaurants located within Wal-Mart stores, the current Advertising fee for <i>NrGize</i> is 2% and except for <i>NrGize</i> restaurants located within an LA Fitness health club, the current Advertising Fee is 0%) which goes to the advertising fund (Note 4).
Additional Persons Training Fee (Note 1)	\$1,000 per person (\$500 per person for the In-Store portion of the Training Program, and \$500 per person for the New Owner Training portion of the Training Program)	2 weeks prior to beginning of training	We train 2 persons free of charge in the Training Program. The Additional Persons Training Fee is for any additional persons who attend the Training Program.
Annual Meeting Registration Fee (Notes 1 and 5)	\$1,000 plus incidental costs to attend	60-90 days prior to the Meeting	We will debit your Depository Account for this fee, which is non- refundable. This fee is charged to all franchisees whether or not they attend the Meeting.
Monthly Service Fee charged by LA Fitness (only applies to <i>NrGize</i> franchises located within an LA Fitness health club)	Either \$1,000 per month, increased annually by 3% compounded, or \$1,250 per month, increased annually by 4% compounded	Withdrawn electronically from your designated bank account on the third day of each month (Note 3)	The amount of the fee depends on whether the space within the LA Fitness health club is a conversion or a new construction.
Pre-Paid Monthly Service Fee charged by LA Fitness and collected in advance by Kahala Holdings (only applies to <i>NrGize</i> franchises located within an LA Fitness health club)	Either \$12,000 or \$15,000	Upon signing of the Franchise Agreement	The amount of the fee depends on whether the space within the LA Fitness health club is a conversion or a new construction. The fee is charged based on the credit-worthiness of the franchisee at the sole discretion of Kahala Franchising and represents the last twelve (12) months of the Monthly Service Fee.

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4
Type of Fee	Amount	Due Date	Remarks
Depository Account	\$3,000 (Must be replenished on a regular basis)	At signing of Franchise Agreement	See Note (3)
Data Fees (Notes 1 and 7)	Up to \$75 per month (Subject to reasonable annual and/or service enhancement increases)	Same as Royalty	Fee for collecting or polling data from your POS System.
POS Help Desk Phone Support Maintenance Contract Fee	\$540 to \$660 yearly	First year fee is included in cost of the FOCUS POS System. Subsequent years' fee is due upon renewal.	Year 2 and after is optional but it is recommended that franchisee purchase this service from Kahala Franchising or its affiliate.
Renewal Fee (Note 1)	\$5,000	When new Franchise Agreement is signed at renewal	Applicable if you renew your Franchise Agreement.
Transfer Fee – Traditional locations (Note 1)	\$20,000 (if transfer occurs within first 24 months of effective date of Franchise Agreement); \$7,500 (if transfer occurs more than 24 months after the effective date of the Franchise Agreement)	Prior to consummation of transfer	Applicable if you sell your traditional franchise. No charge if franchise transferred to a corporation that you control.
Transfer Fee – Non Traditional locations	\$5,000 for non-traditional locations	Prior to consummation of transfer	Applicable if you sell your non-traditional franchise. No charge if franchise transferred to a corporation that you control.
Relocation Fee (Note 1)	\$500	At signing of relocation amendment to Franchise Agreement	Payable if we approve the relocation of your store.
Additional Training Fee in the Event of a Transfer of the Franchise Agreement (Note 1)	\$2,500 for two (2) individuals (\$500 for each additional individual)	Prior to consummation of transfer	Payable when you sell or otherwise assign your franchise to cover Kahala Franchising's costs and expenses to train the new assignee of the Franchise Agreement.
Additional Training Fee (Note 1)	\$300 per person per day	At time of training	Payable if you request additional training after attending the Training Program.

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4
Type of Fee	Amount	Due Date	Remarks
Document Administration Fee (if redraft is requested by franchisee)	\$500 (Note 9)	Lump Sum	Upon your request to us to redraft the Franchise Agreement.
Default Interest under the Franchise Agreement (Note 1)	\$50 plus interest at 1-1/2% per month or maximum legal rate, if less ("Default Rate")	Payable upon assessment	Payable on all overdue amounts under the Franchise Agreement.
Interest and Late Fees under the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement (only applies to <i>NrGize</i> franchises located within an LA Fitness health club)	Annual rate of 12% or the maximum interest rate permitted by applicable law. Any payments received 5 days or more after the due date may be assessed and additional fee equal to 10% of the original payment due plus 1% per day on the overdue amount.	Payable upon assessment	See <u>Exhibit L</u>
Late Report Fee (Note 1)	\$100 per report	Payable upon assessment	Payable if any required financial statement or report is delinquent.
Collection Costs (Note 1)	All collection costs including reasonable attorneys' fees	Payable upon assessment	Payable only if we are required to retain an attorney or collection agency to collect delinquent payments from you. We will also collect as damages any attorneys' fees and costs incurred by us in defending claims that arise due to your actions as an <i>NrGize</i> franchisee.
Non-Sufficient Funds Fee (Note 1)	\$50 for each electronic funds transfer returned for non-sufficient funds; \$25 for each check or draft returned for non-sufficient funds	Payable upon assessment	Payable only if your electronic funds transfer from your depository account or any check you remit to us is returned for non-sufficient funds.
Audit (Note 1)	Cost of Audit plus interest at Default Rate on underpayments or the maximum rate permissible by law (Note 9)	Payable upon assessment	Payable only if audit is caused by your failure to furnish reports or if audit reveals an understatement of fees or assessment of 5% or more.

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4
Type of Fee	Amount	Due Date	Remarks
New Supplier Approval Fee (Note 1)	A charge not to exceed the reasonable cost of the inspection and the actual cost of the test not to exceed \$5,000.	Payable upon assessment	Payable by either you or the proposed supplier if you request our approval of a new or alternative supplier.
Early Termination Fee (Note 1)	The average monthly Royalty and Advertising Fees during the preceding 12-month period multiplied by the number of months remaining in the term of the Franchise Agreement, and the product is divided by 2.	30 days prior to the early closing of the restaurant	You must provide us with 90 days prior written notice of the termination of your Franchise Agreement.
Management Fee	Six percent (6%) of the Franchised Business' Gross Sales (in addition to the Royalty Fee and Advertising Fee) plus our direct out-of-pocket costs and expenses.	Payable with Royalty and Advertising Fee	If we assume the management of your Franchised Business for any period of time.

## Notes:

(1) These fees are collected by Kahala Franchising, are payable to Kahala Franchising, and are non-refundable. These fees are uniformly imposed by Kahala Franchising; however, Kahala Franchising, in its sole discretion, may reduce or waive a one-time fee (*i.e.*, transfer fee, renewal fee, etc.) or may waive or reduce an ongoing fee (*i.e.*, Royalty Fee or Advertising Fees) for a defined period of time. Kahala Franchising does not offer any financing of the Initial Franchise Fee, Construction and Access Fee, Leasehold Improvements and Equipment, Initial Fee and Reservation Fee, or any other fees.

(2) The Royalty Fee for a traditional *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant located within a school or university will be 6% of total weekly Gross Sales with no minimum royalty due to the seasonality of the location, and the Royalty Fee for a non-traditional *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant will be 6% of total weekly Gross Sales with no minimum royalty. In our sole discretion, we may charge, in addition to the Royalty Fee, a Surcharge of up to \$10 per week if your Franchised Business is located in a state that imposes additional reporting requirements on a franchisor. Currently, New York is the only state that has imposed the additional reporting requirements (for example, see <a href="http://www.tax.state.ny.us/pdf/memos/sales/m099s.pdf">http://www.tax.state.ny.us/pdf/memos/sales/m099s.pdf</a> for information franchisors are required to report to the State of New York regarding its franchisees).

(3) At the time you sign the Franchise Agreement, and, if applicable, the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, you will set up a depository account of \$3,000 with your local banking institution. You are required to maintain a balance of \$3,000 in this account at all times. This will mean that you must replenish the depository account to \$3,000 after Kahala Franchising makes any withdrawals that constitute Royalty Fees and Advertising Fees. For *NrGize* restaurants NOT located within an LA Fitness health club, by Monday of each week, you must submit a royalty report to Kahala Franchising of certain statistical data regarding the prior week's revenues, sales and other data, which prior week shall end on the preceding Sunday. Kahala Franchising will withdraw

funds electronically on each Thursday from the depository account. The withdrawals are based upon the figures you report and constitute Royalty Fees and Advertising Fees. If you do not submit a report by each Monday, Kahala Franchising may withdraw the entire \$3,000 on Thursday. Kahala Franchising will return any overage to you upon receipt of your report(s). An Electronic Funds Transfer Agreement by and payable to Kahala Franchising is attached as <u>Exhibit K</u>. For NrGize restaurants located within an LA Fitness health club, you must submit a royalty report to Kahala Franchising on the third (3<sup>rd</sup>) day of each month regarding the prior month's revenues, sales, and other data, which prior month shall end on the last calendar day of the prior month. Kahala Franchising will withdraw the royalty fee electronically on the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) day of each month from the depository account. In addition, Kahala Holdings will withdraw the Monthly Service Fee electronically on the third (3<sup>rd</sup>) calendar day of each month based upon the figures you report.

(4) Kahala Franchising directs that Advertising Fees be paid to us, a national advertising fund designated by us, or, in our sole discretion, to a designated approved regional advertising fund. We encourage the formation of franchisee cooperative advertising associations (each a "Cooperative"). If a Cooperative is formed for your region, you must contribute to the Cooperative or lose your right to vote on decisions the Cooperative makes. The membership of the Cooperative is defined by us according to your market area. Currently, there are no *NrGize* cooperatives, so there are no fees imposed by Cooperatives. Kahala Franchising reserves the right to require Cooperative contributions in the future. For each of our company-owned or affiliate-owned restaurants located within the Cooperative, we will make contributions to the regional advertising fund on the same basis as required of the other *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchise owners in the same geographic market. Corporate or affiliate-owned outlets have the same voting power as franchisee-owned outlets.

(5) If we hold an annual meeting (the "Meeting"), the Meeting will be held at various locations throughout the United States as we may designate in our sole discretion, and may offer valuable continuing education programs. Because the planning and funding of the Meeting must be done well in advance and requires a substantial financial commitment, we have the right to debit your Depository Account for the \$1,000 Annual Meeting Registration Fee at any time sixty to ninety (60-90) days prior to the first day of the Meeting. This fee is not refundable and will be debited from all franchisees' accounts (even if you do not attend the Meeting). If you do not attend the Meeting, we will send to you one full set of the substantive materials that were presented at the Meeting.

(6) Unless your restaurant is located in an enclosed shopping mall or other enclosed structure (such as a sports arena, airport, etc.), within the first six (6) months following the opening of your restaurant, you will spend an estimated amount of Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00), and possibly more depending on market conditions, for the initial promotion and advertising of your restaurant.

(7) You must pay a weekly data polling fee for the collection of data from your restaurant sales for the POS System for your restaurant. Currently, the fee is up to \$75 per month, and is subject to reasonable annual and/or service enhancement increases.

(8) A "non-traditional" *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* is an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* event cart, express or co-branded location, or an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* located within a travel plaza, or convenience store, all of which locations generally offer a limited version of the full *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* menu in existence at traditional *NrGize Lifestyle Cafes*.

(9) The Document Administration Fee in the amount of \$500 will only be charged to you if the franchise documents must be re-drafted by us due to franchisee's request to: (i) change the franchisee's name on the franchise documents from their name as individuals to their entity name in

which they are the sole owners of the entity; (ii) change the franchisee's name on the franchise documents from one entity name to another entity name in which the owners of the entities are the same individual(s); (iii) delete a franchisee's name from the franchise documents; or (iv) such other cases, other than a transfer, in which franchisee requests a name change that requires us to redraft the franchise documents, but does not constitute a transfer of the Franchise Agreement.

(10) Interest begins from the date of the underpayment.

<u>The following table applies to Area Representatives only</u>: In addition to the Initial Development Fee, Area Representatives will be required to pay the following fees and payments as described in the following Table:

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4
Type of Fee	Amount	Due Date	Remarks
Transfer Fee (Note 1)	The greater of: (i) 5% of the gross sales price or other consideration to be received or realized by Area Representative and his Affiliates in connection with the transfer; or (ii) \$30,000	Prior to consummation of transfer	Applicable if you sell your ARA Territory. No charge if ARA is transferred to a corporation that you control.
Renewal Fee (Note 1)	The greater of: (i) 5% of the total Fee Compensation and Royalty Fee Compensation (as defined in the ARA) earned by Area Representative and its Affiliates under the ARA during the 12-month period preceding the renewal; or (ii) \$30,000	Prior to consummation of the renewal	Applicable if you renew your ARA upon the expiration of the Initial Term of 10 years.
Costs of adapting the program to the Territory	\$0-\$15,000	As incurred	Costs of adapting the program to the Territory
Costs of complying with franchise laws applicable to the Territory (Note 2)	\$0-\$15,000	As incurred	Costs of complying with franchise laws applicable to the Territory.
Additional Persons Training Fee	\$1,500 per person	Prior to attending training	Additional training
National advertising campaign assessment	As determined by us, your proportionate share of the cost	Within 10 days after request or invoice	National advertising campaign assessment

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4
Type of Fee	Amount	Due Date	Remarks
Collection costs	33 1/3% of costs and expenses of collecting delinquent payments from franchisees	Within 10 days after request or invoice	Collection costs
No-show	\$500, if you fail to cancel any portion of the training program on less than 14 days' notice	Upon failure to cancel	No-show
Continuing training, annual & other meetings (Note 3)	To be determined by us	Prior to attendance	Continuing training, annual & other meetings
Interest	18% per annum on all overdue amounts and all amounts paid by us on your behalf	As incurred	Interest
Audit	Costs and expenses of the audit	Promptly upon completion if the audit reveals that you have breached any obligation or your financial statements are inaccurate by either 5% of your revenues or 2% of your net	Audit
Premiums and other amounts paid by us if you fail to purchase required insurance	Premium and other amounts paid by us, plus interest (See above)	As incurred	Premiums and other amounts paid by us if you fail to purchase required insurance.
Attorneys' fees & costs	Will vary under the circumstances	As incurred	Attorneys' fees & costs
Currency (Note 4)	Costs of conversion to U.S. Dollars	As incurred	Currency
Document late charge (Note 5)	\$100 per week or part thereof	As incurred	Document late charge
Sharing of payment made to franchisee (Note 6)	One-third of amount paid or waived by us	Promptly upon our payment to franchisee or waiver of amount due	Sharing of payment made to franchisee

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4
Type of Fee	Amount	Due Date	Remarks
Sharing of loss or damages in connection with franchise (Note 7)	One-third or amount suffered or paid by us	Promptly upon our payment to third party or recognition of loss or damages	Sharing of loss or damages in connection with franchise.
Indemnification of us for damages suffered or incurred for your actions or omissions	Will vary under the circumstances (proportionate liability will be conclusively determined by us)	As incurred	Indemnification of us for damages suffered or incurred for your actions or omissions.
Taxes	Sales, gross receipts and similar taxes payable by us with respect to the Initial Development Fee and other amounts payable under the Area Representative Agreement	Within 10 days of invoice	Taxes

## Notes:

(1) This fee is imposed and collected by Kahala Franchising, is payable to Kahala Franchising, and is non-refundable. This fee is uniformly imposed by Kahala Franchising; however, Kahala Franchising, in its sole discretion, may reduce or waive the fee.

(2) Area Representatives may bear their proportionate part of these costs.

(3) Additional training programs and refresher courses may be required upon renewal and from time to time. The frequency of continuing training programs and seminars will not exceed 21 days per calendar year. We may elect, in our sole discretion, to charge a fee for additional training programs. You will be required to bear your own travel, lodging and meal expenditures in connection with attendance. In addition, you (or, if the Area Representative is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity, all equity owners) must attend, at your expense, all annual and other meetings and conference calls of Area Representatives and franchisees that we determine are mandatory for all franchisees and/or Area Representatives, or groups of franchisees and/or Area Representatives (as designated by us), such as franchisees and/or Area Representatives within a particular geographic region. We may impose a charge for your failure to attend those programs, courses, meetings and conference calls.

(4) Computation of any amounts to be paid that require conversion between currencies will be made at the selling rate for United States Dollars quoted by our primary bank on the date on which payment is made.

(5) If you fail to deliver or provide to us any statement, report or other document or information required to be delivered (for example, certificates of insurance, financial statements and evaluation and activity reports), by the applicable deadline, you will be assessed a \$100 late charge

per week, or part thereof (until that statement, document or other information has been delivered or provided), which amount may be increased by us from time to time.

(6) If a franchisee's Franchise Agreement is terminated and we, in our sole discretion, agree to pay that franchisee any amount (or we waive collection of any amount to which we are entitled), or if a court of competent jurisdiction determines that we must pay that franchisee any amount (or that we must waive collection of any amount to which it is entitled), you must promptly pay to us 33 1/3% of the amount that we so pay or waive.

(7) If we or any of our affiliates, in our sole discretion, agree to pay any person any amount or if a court of competent jurisdiction determines that we or any of our affiliates must pay any person any amount, or if we or any of our affiliates otherwise suffer a loss or damages in connection with a franchisee, you must promptly pay to us 33 1/3% of the amount of that payment, loss or damages.

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

# **ITEM 7: ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT**

## YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

<u>Traditional NrGize Lifestyle Cafe</u> (EXCLUDING those located within an LA Fitness health club)

Column 1	Column 2	Column3	Column 4	Column 5
Type of Expenditure	Amount	Method of Payment	When Due	To Whom Payment is to be Made
Initial Franchise Fee (Note 1)	\$14,000 to \$30,000 (Note 1)	Lump Sum	At Signing of Franchise Agreement	Us
Location Review Fee	\$1,250	Lump Sum	At Signing of Franchise Agreement	Us
Rent/Security Deposit (for 3 months) (Note 2)	\$6,000 to \$30,000	(Note 3)	Prior to Opening	Third-party Landlords
Travel and Living Expenses (2 persons) while training, not including salaries, if any, for you and your employees	\$2,500 to \$5,000	As Incurred	During Training	Airlines, Hotels, Restaurants, etc.
Real Estate	(Note 2)	(Note 2)	(Note 2)	(Note 2)
Leasehold Improvements, Restaurant Equipment, Furniture, and Small Wares, Menu Panels, Computer Hardware, Cameras, Security Devices and Security Software, if applicable (collectively, the "POS System"), (Note 3 and 4)	\$60,000 to \$225,000	See Note 3	Prior to Opening	Approved Vendors or Suppliers
PCI Compliance Costs	\$150 to \$1,300	As billed by third party vendor	As billed by third party vendor	Approved Vendor
Opening Inventory (food and paper) (Note 5)	\$1,000 to \$5,000	As Incurred	Prior to Opening	Approved Suppliers
Business Insurance (Note 6)	\$1,000 to \$5,000	Lump Sum	Prior to Opening	Insurance Company/Agent
Miscellaneous Opening Costs (Note 7)	\$4,750 to \$15,500	As Incurred	As Incurred	Approved Suppliers, Utilities, etc.
Grand Opening (Note 8)	\$0 to \$5,000	Lump Sum	Prior to Opening	Suppliers
Depository Account (Note 9)	\$3,000	Lump Sum; Must be replenished on a regular basis	At signing of Franchise Agreement	Your bank (Kahala Franchising and Kahala Holdings has the right to withdraw from this account)
Additional Funds - 3 month initial period	\$5,000 to \$15,000 (Note 10)	As Incurred	As Incurred	Us, Employees, Various Third Parties
TOTAL (Note 11)	\$ 98,650 to \$341,050	· ·	lude real estate costs and/c ot for the initial security dep	

# YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

# Non-Traditional NrGize Lifestyle Cafe

Column 1	Column 2	Column3	Column 4	Column 5
Type of Expenditure	Amount	Method of Payment	When Due	To Whom Payment is to be Made
Initial Franchise Fee (Note 1)	\$4,000 to \$7,500 (Note 1)	Lump Sum	At Signing of Franchise Agreement	Us
Location Review Fee	\$1,250	Lump Sum	At Signing of Franchise Agreement	Us
Rent/Security Deposit (for 3 months) (Note 2)	\$6,000 to \$30,000	As Incurred	Prior to Opening	Landlord(s)
Travel and Living Expenses (2 persons) while training, not including salaries, if any, for you and your employees	\$2,500 to \$5,000	As Incurred	During Training	Airlines, Hotels, Restaurants, etc.
Real Estate	(Note 2)	(Note 2)	(Note 2)	(Note 2)
Architectural and Project Management Fees (Note 3)	\$4,000 to \$10,000	As Incurred	Prior to Opening	Designated and Approved Architect
Leasehold Improvements	\$10,000 to \$125,000 (Note 3)	As Incurred	Prior to Opening	Contractors and approved vendors (Note 3)
Restaurant Equipment, Furniture, and Small Wares (Note 4)	\$20,000 to \$45,000	Lump Sum	Prior to Opening	Approved Vendors and Suppliers
Interior and Exterior Signage and menu panels	\$5,000 to \$20,000	As Incurred	Prior to Opening	Approved Sign Company
Computer Hardware, Software (POS System)	\$8,000 to \$15,000	Lump Sum	Prior to Opening	Approved Suppliers
PCI Compliance Costs	\$150 to \$1,300	As billed by third party vendor	As billed by third party vendor	Approved Vendor
Opening Inventory (food and paper) (Note 5)	\$2,500 to \$7,000	As Incurred	Prior to Opening	Approved Suppliers
Business Insurance (Note 6)	\$1,000 to \$5,000	Lump Sum	Prior to Opening	Insurance Company/Agent
Miscellaneous Opening Costs (Note 7)	\$4,750 to \$15,500	As Incurred	As Incurred	Approved Suppliers, Utilities, etc.
Grand Opening (Note 8)	\$0 to \$5,000	Lump Sum	Prior to Opening	Suppliers
Depository Account (Note 9)	\$3,000	Lump Sum; Must be replenished on a regular basis	At signing of Franchise Agreement	Your bank (We have the right to withdraw from this account)
Additional Funds - 3 month initial period	\$5,000 to \$15,000 (Note 10)	As Incurred	As Incurred	Us, Employees, Various Third Parties
TOTAL (Note 11)	\$77,150 to \$310,550	•	ude real estate costs tion except for the in	s and/or rent for the itial security deposit.)

# YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

New NrGize Lifestyle Cafe located within an LA Fitness health club ONLY

Column 1	Column 2	Column3	Column 4	Column 5
Type of Expenditure	Amount	Method of Payment	When Due	To Whom Payment is to be Made
Initial Franchise Fee (Note 1)	\$15,000 (Note 1)	Lump Sum	At Signing of Franchise Agreement	Us
Initial Fee and Reservation Fee (Note 2)	\$3,000 to \$3,750	Lump Sum	At Signing of Franchise Agreement	Us or our affiliate, Kahala Holdings, L.L.C. (charged by LA Fitness)
Travel and Living Expenses (2 persons) while training, not including salaries, if any, for you and your employees	\$2,500 to \$5,000	As Incurred	During Training	Airlines, Hotels, Restaurants, etc.
Turn Key Package (includes all leasehold improvements – including \$20,000 to \$40,000 Construction Fee and \$2,500 to \$10,000 Access Fee charged by LA Fitness, equipment and signage)	\$75,000 to \$150,000	See Note 3	At Signing of Franchise Agreement	Us or our affiliate (See Note 3)
Computer Hardware, Software (POS System)	\$8,000 to \$15,000	Lump Sum	Prior to Opening	Approved Suppliers
PCI Compliance Costs	\$150 to \$1,300 per year	As billed by third party vendor	As billed by third party vendor	Approved Vendor
Opening Inventory (food and paper) (Note 5)	\$2,500 to \$7,000	As Incurred	Prior to Opening	Approved Suppliers
Business Insurance (Note 6)	\$1,000 to \$5,000	Lump Sum	Prior to Opening	Insurance Company/Agent
Miscellaneous Opening Costs (Note 7)	\$4,750 to \$15,500	As Incurred	As Incurred	Approved Suppliers, Utilities, etc.
Grand Opening (Note 8)	\$0 to \$5,000	Lump Sum	Prior to Opening	Suppliers
Depository Account (Note 9)	\$3,000	Lump Sum; Must be replenished on a regular basis	At signing of Franchise Agreement	Your bank (We have the right to withdraw from this account)
Additional Funds - 3 month initial period	\$5,000 to \$15,000 (Note 10)	As Incurred	As Incurred	Us, Employees, Various Third Parties
TOTAL (Note 11)	\$119,900 to \$240,550	•	ude real estate costs and/or r ot for the initial security depos	

# YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

# Conversion of an existing restaurant within an LA Fitness health club to an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe

Column 1	Column 2	Column3	Column 4	Column 5
Type of Expenditure	Amount	Method of Payment	When Due	To Whom Payment is to be Made
Initial Franchise Fee (Note 1)	\$15,000 (Note 1)	Lump Sum	At Signing of Franchise Agreement	Us
Initial Fee and Reservation Fee (Note 2)	\$1,500 to \$3,750	Lump Sum	Prior to Opening	Us
Travel and Living Expenses (2 persons) while training, not including salaries, if any, for you and your employees	\$2,500 to \$5,000	As Incurred	During Training	Airlines, Hotels, Restaurants, etc.
Turn Key Conversion Package (includes the \$2,500 to \$10,000 Access Fee, Small Wares, Interior and Exterior Signage and menu panels, graphics package, wallpaper and paint, as needed) (Note 4)	\$35,500 to \$92,500	Lump Sum	At Signing of Franchise Agreement	Us or our affiliate
Computer Hardware, Software (POS System)	\$8,000 to \$15,000	Lump Sum	Prior to Opening	Approved Suppliers
PCI Compliance Costs	\$150 to \$1,300 per year	As billed by third party vendor	As billed by third party vendor	Approved Vendor
Opening Inventory (food and paper) (Note 5)	\$2,500 to \$7,000	As Incurred	Prior to Opening	Approved Suppliers
Business Insurance (Note 6)	\$1,000 to \$5,000	Lump Sum	Prior to Opening	Insurance Company/Agent
Miscellaneous Opening Costs (Note 7)	\$4,750 to \$15,500	As Incurred	As Incurred	Approved Suppliers, Utilities, etc.
Grand Opening (Note 8) Depository Account (Note 9)	\$0 to \$5,000 \$3,000	Lump Sum; Lump Sum; Must be replenished on a regular basis	Prior to Opening At signing of Franchise Agreement	Suppliers Your bank (We have the right to withdraw from this account)
Additional Funds - 3 month initial period	\$5,000 to \$15,000 (Note 10)	As Incurred	As Incurred	Us, Employees, Various Third Parties
TOTAL (Note 11)	\$78,900 to \$183,050	(Does not include real estate costs and/or rent for the business location except for the initial security deposit.)		

## Notes:

(1) The Initial Franchise Fee ranges from \$30,000 for your first and second traditional NrGize franchise to \$17,500 for your third or later traditional NrGize franchise. The Initial Franchise Fee is \$7,500 for your first and second non-traditional NrGize franchise, and is reduced to \$5,000 for your third and all subsequent NrGize franchises. If you are currently an active or active reserve member of the U.S. Armed Forces, have been honorably discharged from the U.S. Armed Forces, or are a 501(c)(3) organization, you will receive a twenty percent (20%) discount on the Initial Franchise Fee. Therefore, if you are an active or active reserve member of the U.S. Armed Forces, have been honorably discharged from the U.S. Armed Forces, or are a federally recognized 501(c)(3) organization, the Initial Franchise Fee is \$24,000 per franchise for the first two traditional franchise units; \$14,000 for the third and each subsequent traditional franchise unit; \$6,000 for the first two non-traditional franchise units; and \$4,000 for the third and each subsequent non-traditional This does not take into account the 50% promotional discount on the Initial franchise unit. Franchise Fee for Eligible Military as it is a limited time offer only. (These discounts do not apply to restaurants located within LA Fitness health clubs as those fees are already discounted.) The Initial Franchise Fee is \$15,000 for your *NrGize* restaurant to be located within an LA Fitness health club. The Initial Franchise Fee includes the training fee for two (2) individuals. The Initial Franchise Fee is non-refundable. There is a charge of \$1,000 for each additional person to attend the Training Program (\$500 per person for the In-Store portion of the Training Program, and \$500 per person for the New Owner Training portion of the Training Program).

(2)If you do not own a suitable premises approved by us, you must lease or purchase the premises for your NrGize restaurant. If you decide to lease the premises, the landlord will generally require a security deposit, the amount of which generally ranges from one month of monthly rent to six months of monthly rent. The amount of your security deposit will vary according to your area, the type of location (enclosed mall, strip center, or free-standing building), and various other factors. A lease security deposit may be non-refundable and is paid directly to the landlord of the premises. In addition, in certain lease transactions, the landlord may require you, or if you are a corporation, partnership, limited liability company, or other legal entity, you and your owners, to personally guarantee the lease. In addition, if you decide to lease the premises for your NrGize restaurant, the following fees payable to us may apply: (i) Lease Guarantee Fee - if, after a request by you, Kahala Franchising or any of its affiliates agree, in their sole and absolute discretion, to guarantee your lease with the applicable third party landlord for the NrGize restaurant you are developing, you will pay Kahala Franchising or its affiliate a lease guarantee fee in the amount of 10% of the total amount of the rental obligations being guaranteed under the lease upon the execution of the lease and associated guarantee with the third party landlord, up to a maximum payment of \$10,000 (this is an optional service, with the determination of whether to utilize Kahala Management's real estate department to be made in your sole discretion, and if agreed to by Kahala Franchising or any of its affiliates, in their sole discretion); (ii) Lease Negotiation Fee - a \$2,500 Lease Negotiation Fee (less any Location Review Fee paid) shall be paid by you to Kahala Franchising upon your request to Kahala Management's real estate department for assistance in negotiating a term sheet to secure a lease or negotiating the actual lease terms with the landlord or broker/agent for the landlord for the location of the NrGize restaurant you are developing (this is an optional service, with the determination of whether to utilize Kahala Management's real estate department to be made in your sole discretion); or (iii) Lease Procurement Fee - a \$5,000 Lease Procurement Fee (less any Location Review Fee paid) shall be paid by you to Kahala Franchising upon your request to Kahala Management's real estate department to locate a site, visit the site, and negotiate the actual lease terms with the landlord or broker/agent for the landlord for the location of the NrGize restaurant you are developing (this is an optional service, with the determination of whether to utilize Kahala Management's real estate department to be made in your sole discretion). If you decide to purchase land and construct your own building or buy an existing

building, you can expect to add the cost of the real estate to the total investment indicated in this Item 7 of the Disclosure Document. Real estate costs vary considerably depending on fair market values in your area; size, condition, and location of the premises; and municipal requirements. Construction costs also vary considerably depending on fair market values in your area; size, condition, and location of the premises; labor costs (union versus non-union); and equipment requirements. The minimum square footage needed to establish your *NrGize* is approximately 800 square feet for a traditional restaurant and 500 square feet for a non-traditional restaurant. There is a wide range of probable locations that a *NrGize* restaurant could be in, and therefore, a wide range for the approximate size of the property and building. The probable locations for a *NrGize* restaurant are health clubs and college campuses, with sizes of the property and building the *NrGize* restaurant could be located in ranging from 1,000 square feet for a stand alone location to over one million square feet for a college campus.

This paragraph only applies to NrGize Lifestyle Cafes located within LA Fitness Health Clubs: Our affiliate, Kahala Holdings, L.L.C., has entered into a Master Facility License Agreement with LA Fitness covering the juice and snack bar operations at all future LA Fitness health clubs in the United States and certain existing LA Fitness health club locations. You will execute the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement (See Exhibit L) with Kahala Holdings, L.L.C that covers the occupancy by you of the applicable LA Fitness health club, at the same time you execute the Franchise Agreement (See Exhibit E). At execution, you will be required to pay to us, or our affiliate, the following fees charged by LA Fitness that range from \$1,500 to \$3,750: (i) the first and last month's rent, termed an Initial Fee in the Master Facility License Agreement and the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement (the Initial Fee is non-refundable); and (ii) a security deposit, termed a Reservation Fee in the Master Facility License Agreement and the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement. The Reservation Fee is refundable, so long as you perform all obligations under the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, 30 days after the expiration or termination of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement. The Reservation Fee shall be applied against the cost of any damages at the premises as a result of negligence, intentional vandalism or theft. If the cost of the repairs to the damages exceeds the amount of the Reservation Fee being held, you will not receive a refund and will be responsible to pay the difference (See Exhibit L).

(3) You must, at your own cost and expense, use our designated and approved third party design architect to prepare the initial design drawings for your Franchised Business.

The Landlord may provide some leasehold improvements, but if not, they will be at your expense. The total amount of leasehold improvements for your *NrGize* restaurant will vary greatly, depending on the type of premises for your restaurant (pad site with drive-thru on the high end versus modular kiosk or retrofitted existing restaurant on the low end), condition of the premises, and what improvements you require.

<u>This paragraph only applies to NrGize Lifestyle Cafes located within LA Fitness Health</u> <u>Clubs</u>: The *NrGize* franchise covered by your Franchise Agreement is a "turn key" opportunity. Given this "turn key" aspect, we or our affiliate(s) will be solely responsible for overseeing and managing the entire construction process and equipping of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* covered by your Franchise Agreement. The Initial Fee and the Reservation Fee indicated in the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement Reservation Fee (See <u>Exhibit L</u>), Construction Fee, Access Fee, all Leasehold Improvements, Construction Costs, and Equipment Costs for us to build out and equip your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* at the Site are collectively referred to as the "NrGize Turn-Key Fees." You will pay us or our designated affiliate the full Initial Franchise Fee plus the full amount of the NrGize Turn-Key Fee simultaneously with your execution of the Franchise Agreement and Single-Unit Facility License Agreement covering your new *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*. The Construction Fee and Access Fee total are non-refundable. The conversion of the existing restaurant to an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* will still be "turn key" as we or our affiliate(s) will be solely responsible for overseeing and managing the entire conversion process, which includes changing the signage and menu panels, color scheme and décor, and equipment. The projected opening date of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* will be indicated in your Franchise Agreement (See <u>Exhibit E</u>). Upon signing your Franchise Agreement with us, you must also simultaneously enter into a Single-Unit Facility License Agreement with Kahala Holdings, L.L.C. that covers the occupancy by you of the applicable LA Fitness health club covered by your Franchise Agreement. (See <u>Exhibit L</u>).

(4) This amount includes estimated costs of furniture, furnishings, installations, equipment, trade fixtures, and certain other items on the restaurant premises, the amount and specific items of which will vary depending upon the location, size and condition of a particular restaurant. You must purchase restaurant equipment for your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant from approved vendors and according to our specifications. A list of approved distributors for our approved vendors is maintained by our purchasing department and will be provided to you during the pre-opening and/or construction phase for your Franchised Business. Updates will be provided to you as changes are made (i.e., additions and deletions) to the list of approved distributors for our approved vendors.

<u>This paragraph only applies to NrGize Lifestyle Cafes located within LA Fitness Health</u> <u>Clubs</u>: The *NrGize* franchise covered by your Franchise Agreement is a "turn key" opportunity. Given this "turn key" aspect, we or our affiliate(s) will be solely responsible for overseeing and managing the entire construction process and equipping of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* covered by your Franchise Agreement. The NrGize Turn-Key Fees includes the Equipment Costs. We will purchase the equipment and install it for you in your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant if it is located within an LA Fitness health club as part of this "turn key" aspect. The conversion of the existing restaurant to an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* will still be "turn key" as we or our affiliate(s) will be solely responsible for overseeing and managing the entire conversion process, which includes changing the signage and menu panels, color scheme and décor, and equipment.

(5) As with any retail business, you will purchase inventory continuously as long as you operate your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*.

You must provide public liability insurance in minimum liability limits of One Million (6) Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) (subject to increase), combined single limit (or greater if applicable state laws or regulations require) for each occurrence and with an aggregate of not less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000.00) and maintain other insurance in accordance with state law requirements. Some property owners may require higher levels of public liability insurance under their leases. Initial premiums for public liability insurance are subject to change due to market forces beyond either of our control. Failure to maintain such insurance may result in loss of your franchise. The cost of other coverages, including workers' compensation and employer liability coverage and your discretionary purchases, varies widely. You must obtain all insurance we require from an insurer having an A.M. Best's financial strength rating of "A-" or better. Such insurance must: (i) insure you; (ii) name us, our directors, officers and affiliates as additional insureds (and, if your NrGize franchise is located within an LA Fitness health club, name LA Fitness) as additional insureds; (iii) contain a waiver by the insurance carrier of all subrogation rights against us and our affiliates for casualty losses; and (iv) provide that failure by franchisee to comply with any term, condition or provision of the contract, or other conduct by franchisee, will NOT void or otherwise affect the coverage afforded us.

The minimum ir	nsurance coverage	requirements	are as follows:
	nourunoo oovorugo	10quil ornorito	

TYPE OF COVERAGE	LIMITS/SPECIFICATIONS
General Liability	\$1,000,000 Bodily Injury/Property Damage Per Occurrence / \$2,000,000 Aggregate
Building Improvements and Betterments	100% of Full Replacement Cost – No Coinsurance
Business Personal Property	100% of Full Replacement Cost – No Coinsurance –
	Special Form
Spoilage	\$10,000
Business Income	Actual Loss Sustained or at least 50% of Annual
	Sales
Flood, Earthquake and Volcanic Eruption	Subject to Territory Limitations – required if in a
	designated Flood Zone
Workers' Compensation	Statutory Requirements
Stop Gap or Employer Liability	\$1,000,000 by Disease
	\$1,000,000 each Accident
	\$1,000,000 Policy Limit
Hired and Non-Owned Automobile Liability	\$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit

You must always keep the required insurance coverage in force, and you must comply with any changes we make periodically to our insurance requirements. If your restaurant is located in a flood zone or an area subject to earthquakes, hurricanes, tornadoes, other similar hazards, you may want or be required to obtain additional specific insurance to cover these risks; such insurance may increase your premiums significantly. Upon thirty (30) days' notice to you, we may require you to increase the minimum coverage of the insurance referred to above as of the next renewal date of any policy, and require different or additional kinds of insurance at any time, including excess liability (umbrella) insurance, to reflect inflation, identification of special risks, changes in law or standards of liability, higher damage awards or other relevant changes in circumstances.

At the time you sign your lease or single-unit facility license agreement, as the case may be, and annually, at least 10 days prior to renewal of your insurance coverage, and at any other time on our request, you must provide us with certificates of insurance or copies of insurance policies confirming that you are in compliance with our insurance requirements, as well as evidence that you have paid the premiums you owe for the insurance we require. You will pay your insurance premiums directly to your insurance broker or to the insurance company issuing the policy. You must have insurance and have provided a copy of your certificate of insurance to us which meets our requirements before you may open your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant. Your insurance premiums may be refundable to the extent of the unexpired portion of the coverage. In the event you fail to obtain or maintain the required insurance coverage, we reserve the right, but are not obligated to, obtain the required insurance on your behalf and charge the insurance premium to you.

Note (7): MISCELLANEOUS OPENING COSTS	ESTIMATED TY	PICAL RANGE
Pre-opening Employee Training Payroll	\$1,000	\$3,000
Utility Deposits (e.g., gas, water)	\$1,000	\$2,000
Petty Cash (including cash register "opening banks")	\$250	\$500
Licenses and Permits (including any required deposits)	\$500	\$3,000

Note (7): MISCELLANEOUS OPENING COSTS	ESTIMATED TY	PICAL RANGE
Miscellaneous Expenses (e.g., SERVSAFE training fees, uniforms, menus, security system, interior/exterior landscaping, sound system, business telephone deposit (phone additional), banking pre-opening costs, accountants, lawyers)	\$2,000	\$7,000
ESTIMATED TOTAL	\$4,750	\$15,500

The telephone and utility deposits will generally be refundable in accordance with the terms fixed by the telephone company and the utility companies, respectively.

(8) You may be required, depending on the location of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant, to conduct a grand opening advertising campaign with the opening of your restaurant. You must pay all costs of the grand opening, including publicity costs and promotional costs, plus the full cost of any price reductions or other customer inducements. If applicable, we will assist you with developing and carrying out this grand opening campaign.

At the time you sign the Franchise Agreement, you will set up a depository account (9) of \$3,000 with your local banking institution. You are required to maintain a balance of \$3,000 in this account at all times. This will mean that you must replenish the depository account to \$3,000 after Kahala Franchising makes any withdrawals. For NrGize restaurants NOT located within an LA Fitness health club, by Monday of each week, you must submit a royalty report to Kahala Franchising of certain statistical data regarding the prior week's revenues, sales and other data, which prior week shall end on the preceding Sunday. Kahala Franchising will withdraw funds electronically on each Thursday from the depository account. The withdrawals are based upon the figures you report and constitute Royalty Fees and Advertising Fees. If you do not submit a report by each Monday, Kahala Franchising may withdraw the entire \$3,000 on Thursday. Kahala Franchising will apply any overage to future Royalty Fees and Advertising Fees upon receipt of your report(s). (An Electronic Funds Transfer Agreement by and payable to Kahala Franchising is attached as Exhibit K). For NrGize restaurants located within an LA Fitness health club, you must submit a royalty report to Kahala Franchising on the third (3<sup>rd</sup>) day of each month regarding the prior month's revenues, sales, and other data, which prior month shall end on the last calendar day of the prior month. Kahala Franchising will withdraw the royalty fee electronically on the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) day of each month from the depository account. In addition, Kahala Holdings will withdraw the Monthly Service Fee electronically on the third (3<sup>rd</sup>) calendar day of each month based upon the figures you report.

(10) Cash flow from your operations may not be adequate to cover operating and other costs during the initial phase of business. The range shown estimates your expenses during the first three months of operation. These expenses include payroll costs (excluding any wage or salary paid to you), other miscellaneous expenses and working capital. We cannot guarantee that you will not have additional expenses starting the business. Your costs will depend on factors such as: how closely you follow our methods and procedures; your management skill, experience and business acumen; local economic conditions; the local market for our product; the prevailing wage rate; competition; and the sales level achieved during the initial period. The amount required for additional funds was formulated based upon our years of experience as a franchisor and our affiliate's years of experience operating company restaurants in addition to information provided by other franchisees.

(11) Your initial investment for a new *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant depends primarily upon the size, configuration, location, who pays the costs to develop the real estate and/or construction of the restaurant, and the amount and terms of financing, if any. The initial funds required must be estimated as most costs are not within our control and may change at frequent

intervals. These estimated ranges are based on our experience and information provided by franchisees.

### Area Representative Agreement

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT				
Column 1	Column 2	Column3	Column 4	Column 5
Type of Expenditure	Amount	Method of Payment	When Due	To Whom Payment is to be Made
Initial Development Fee	The greater of: (i) the estimated population in the ARA Territory multiplied by \$.10; or (ii) the estimated population in the ARA Territory multiplied by \$.03 plus 4 times the royalty payments we received in the last 12 months on existing restaurants within the ARA Territory. Minimum is \$3,000 (See Note 1)	Lump Sum	At signing of ARA	Us
Costs of adapting the franchised program to the ARA Territory	\$0 to \$15,000	Lump Sum	As incurred	Us
Costs of complying with franchise laws applicable to the ARA Territory	\$0 to \$15,000	Lump Sum	As incurred	Us or our designee
Travel and Living Expenses (2 persons) while training	\$2,500 to \$5,000	As Incurred	During Training	Airlines, Hotels, Restaurants, etc.
Real Estate	Note 2	Note 2	Note 2	Note 2
Office Equipment and Fixtures (See Note 3)	\$0 to \$20,000	As billed by vendor	As billed by vendor	Equipment vendor
Optional Advertising (See Note 4)	\$0 to \$6,000	As billed	As billed	Media
Insurance	Variable (See Note 5)	As required by insurance broker	As required by insurance broker	Insurance broker or agency
Rental, security, telephone & utility deposits	\$0 to \$7,000	Lump sum	Before commencing business	Landlord, utility companies

#### YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

Column 1	Column 2	Column3	Column 4	Column 5
Type of Expenditure	Amount	Method of Payment	When Due	To Whom Payment is to be Made
Additional Funds for the three month initial period	\$20,000 to \$100,000	Lump sum	As needed	As needed
Minimum Subtotal	\$25,500 to \$171,000	Includes minimum Initial Development Fee of \$3,000. Does not include real estate costs and/or insurance.		

#### Notes:

(1) The Initial Development Fee required under the ARA is based on the estimated population, as determined and indicated on the U.S. Census Bureau's website (<u>http://www.census.gov</u>). Kahala Franchising shall determine, in its sole and absolute discretion, the number of *NrGize* restaurants that can be opened in an ARA Territory based upon the population and other relevant demographic factors.

(2) If you do not own adequate office space, you must lease the land and building for your office.

(3) These costs are optional and are in your sole discretion. These costs will be determined by whether you decide to open an office and will be incurred by you as needed. If you decide to purchase office equipment and fixtures, you are not required to purchase them from an approved supplier.

(4) Any and all advertising done by you is optional.

(5) You should consult with your insurance broker and legal advisor to determine your insurance needs. The Area Representative Agreement requires you to carry insurance of the types and in the amounts contained in our Operating Manual as amended from time to time. These insurance policies must name Kahala Franchising (and any of our affiliates that we reasonably require) as an additional insured.

The insurance policies must insure you, Kahala Franchising (and any of our affiliates that we reasonably require) against any liability that either of you may incur in connection with the operation of your business. The insurance must be placed with an insurance carrier or carriers satisfactory to us and may not be subject to cancellation or any material change except after 30 days' prior written notice to us. The insurance policies must provide that your failure to comply with any term, condition or provision of the contract, and any other conduct by you, will not void or otherwise affect the protection afforded to us (or any of our affiliates that we reasonably require) under the policy. Certificates of insurance with respect to the insurance policies must be provided to us for all insurance policies in effect during the term of the Area Representative Agreement. If you fail to pay any premium when due or any such policy is in default, we may, but are not obligated to, pay any such premium and/or take any action necessary to cure that default. In this event, you must immediately pay to us the amount paid by us or the amount expended by us to cure that default.

None of these expenditures, other than the Initial Development Fee, the rental security deposit, the telephone and utility deposits and the insurance premiums, are refundable. The Initial Development Fee is refundable only under the circumstances stated in Item 5 above. The rental

and security deposit and telephone and utility deposits are generally refundable according to the terms fixed by the landlord, the telephone company and the utility companies, respectively. The insurance premiums may be refundable for future periods according to the terms fixed by the insurance carrier.

#### ITEM 8: RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Except as stated in this Item 8, you have no obligation to purchase or lease goods, services, supplies, fixtures, equipment, inventory or computer hardware relating to the establishment or operation of your *NrGize* restaurant from us or from any of our designees.

The Franchise Agreement requires that all food products, ingredients, equipment, computer hardware and software, furniture, fixtures, décor, signs, computer equipment, supplies and other products, services and materials which you will use in the operation of your restaurant meet our standards and be purchased only from approved distributors and suppliers. If we organize a rollout for a new approved product or a new supplier of an approved product, you will be required to purchase such approved product(s) from our approved distributors of the approved supplier within sixty (60) days of notification from us. We are not an approved supplier of any products or service. Our Parent Company is not a supplier of any products or services. Kona Coast, an affiliate of ours, is currently one of the approved suppliers of proprietary menu items, menu boards, uniforms and other logo items that will be utilized in your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe. You may, but are not required, to purchase these items from Kona Coast. Neptune Equipment, an affiliate of ours, is currently one of the approved suppliers of certain equipment, interior and exterior signage menu boards, computer hardware and smallwares. You may, but are not required, to purchase these items from Neptune Equipment. Kahala Management, an affiliate of ours, is currently one of the approved service providers of phone support maintenance for the software and hardware of the FOCUS POS system for NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchisees, but is the only approved service provider for phone support for Cold Stone Creamery franchisees only. Kahala Management is also an approved service provider of real estate services, including negotiating a term sheet, negotiating the lease terms, and locating a site for a franchisee upon request from a franchisee. You may, but are not required, to use Kahala Management for real estate services. None of our affiliates are currently the only approved suppliers of any products and/or services for NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchisees. You may, but are not required, to purchase phone support service from Kahala Management. There are other approved suppliers who are not affiliated with us for each of the items you will purchase to operate your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe. We currently have other non-affiliated approved suppliers of all equipment, smallwares, furniture, POS Systems, beverage equipment, sound systems and certain ingredients and other logo items utilized in your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe. None of our officers own an interest in any of the approved suppliers not affiliated with us. To become approved, a supplier must demonstrate, to our reasonable satisfaction, it can meet all of our standards and has adequate capacity to supply franchisee's quantity and delivery needs. We will provide you with a list of approved distributors of the approved suppliers for your market area during the pre-opening and/or construction phase for your Franchised Business. You can expect that the items you will purchase in accordance with our specifications will represent over 90% of the total purchases you will make to begin operations and over 80% of your annual operating expense for raw materials, products and supplies.

All requests for approving new or alternative suppliers must be submitted in writing by you and/or the supplier to our Purchasing Department. Each request will be reviewed in accordance with our then-current procedures and the supplier must meet our then-current requirements, which may include that our representatives be allowed to inspect the facilities of the proposed supplier, and that samples from the proposed supplier be delivered, at no charge to us, either to us or to our

designee for testing. Our criteria for approving suppliers is available to franchisees upon written request to our Purchasing Department. A charge not to exceed the reasonable cost of the inspection and the actual cost of the test not to exceed \$5,000 must be paid to us either by you or by the proposed supplier. If approved, in our sole reasonable discretion, we will notify you and/or the supplier in writing within 60 days of our receipt of an approval request. You must not offer for sale or sell any of the proposed alternative supplier's products until you receive our written approval of the proposed alternative supplier. We may, at our option, re-inspect the facilities and products of any approved supplier and revoke its approval upon the supplier's failure to meet any of our then-current minimum standards and specifications. If you receive a written notice of revocation from us, you must stop selling disapproved products and stop purchasing from the disapproved supplier.

We provide all specifications and standards to franchisees and Area Representatives in the Operations Manual. We may modify the specifications and standards from time to time by providing franchisees and Area Representatives with amendments or modification or supplemental inserts to the Operations Manuals, by providing notices or bulletins, or by amending the Operations Manuals.

We have negotiated special pricing arrangements or discounts with some of our suppliers. The arrangements may include special contract pricing, volume discounts, and specific discounts from regular wholesale prices. These discounts are typically passed on to our franchisees. We do not provide any other material special benefits to franchisees based on their purchase of particular approved supplies or their use of particular approved suppliers.

We or our affiliates may also receive rebates and/or allowances, usually ranging between 1% and 5%, from certain suppliers on purchases made by you and other franchisees. The rebates and/or allowances are generally based upon a percentage of franchisee purchases, will be included in our general revenue, and may be used by us for salaries of personnel that assist franchisees increase their profitability, maintaining the customer service hotline, handling of inquiries and complaints from our franchisees' customers, tracking consumer service hotline trends, product research and development, franchisee crew training, supply chain information management systems, and a variety of ongoing programs, including education, marketing, advertising, and franchisee meetings, seminars, conventions, conferences, and events. These rebates are usually based on an amount per unit, per case, per gallon, per pound of product (*i.e.*, properly specified and approved dairy products, paper products, smallwares, beverages and apparel) purchased, and generally range from \$0.01 to \$1.00 per above-referenced units. We may use rebate and allowance funds received from our suppliers to benefit the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe System in our sole and absolute discretion. During 2011, Kahala Franchising and its affiliates recognized total consolidated revenue of \$84,523,030, of which \$16,095,433 was recognized by Kahala Franchising. Various suppliers and vendors of Kahala Franchising and its affiliates contribute marketing and other revenues to Kahala Franchising and its affiliates based upon system-wide purchases from those suppliers and vendors. During 2011, Kahala Franchising and its affiliates earned a total of \$10,708,824 from such vendors, of which \$5,120,527 was directly allocated to restaurant advertising funds, and \$5,588,297 was used for general operating purposes as stated above, which represents 6.6% of the total consolidated revenue of Kahala Franchising and its affiliates. We derived these figures from our internal financial accounting records of Kahala Franchising and its affiliates.

An affiliate of Kahala Franchising that earned revenue from purchases made by us and franchisees during 2011 is Kona Coast. Kona Coast, as a result of sales to the Surf City Squeeze, Ranch One, Rollerz, Frullati Cafe & Bakery, Samurai Sam's, Taco Time, Great Steak & Potato Company, Cold Stone Creamery, Johnnie's New York Pizzeria, NrGize and Cereality franchisees and company-owned restaurants of certain ingredients, uniforms and other

logo items. We estimate your purchases from Kona Coast will be between 0% and 25% of your total annual purchases of ingredients, uniforms and other logo items.

Another affiliate of Kahala Franchising that earned revenue from purchases of equipment, menu boards, interior and exterior signage, and smallwares made by us, our franchisees, and licensees during 2011 is Neptune Equipment. Neptune Equipment provides the following services: purchases your equipment from various approved manufacturers; provides logistics services by arranging for bundled delivery to you; and assists with warranty support of the equipment purchased. Neptune Equipment charges a markup on the equipment and a handling fee for its services. We do not require our franchisees to make any purchases from Neptune Equipment. The services Neptune Equipment offers to our franchisees are completely optional; franchisees have the option of purchasing some or all of their equipment, interior and exterior signage, menu boards and/or smallwares from Neptune Equipment and/or any non-affiliated approved supplier.

Another affiliate of Kahala Franchising that earned revenue from required POS phone support services to Cold Stone Creamery franchisees is Kahala Management. Revenue is derived by collecting \$45 per month per Cold Stone Creamery restaurant. During 2011, Kahala Management earned a total of \$555,510, which represents 0.7% of the total consolidated revenue of Kahala Franchising and its affiliates. We derived these figures from the internal financial accounting records of Kahala Franchising and its affiliates.

Our Leasing Affiliates do not derive revenue as a result of their leasing activities.

In 2011, Vires purchased media for Taco Time, Cold Stone Creamery, Blimpie, Ranch One, and Samurai Sam's. All after tax profits are rebated to the National Advertising Fund or media cooperatives.

We have not arranged any purchasing or distribution cooperatives among our franchisees.

You are required to accept all approved debit and credit cards, along with Kahala Franchising's Stored Value Gift Cards, Loyalty Cards, Frequency Cards, and any other similar Kahala Franchising sponsored electronic card and/or payment program (collectively, the "Gift/Loyalty Card") from consumers at your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant. Prior to the opening of your restaurant, you will be required to acquire an approved debit, credit and Gift/Loyalty card processing system to use during the operation of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant. The components and specifications of this system are specifically identified in the Operations Manuals. Additionally, you must utilize our approved third party payment card processor, as identified in the Operations Manuals, for processing all such debit, credit, rewards, and Gift/Loyalty card transactions.

You must complete a food safety training program at your cost. We recommend the SERVSAFE course available through your local county health department, or we will accept your local county or state required program or any other nationally recognized food safety program. You must provide us with a copy of your certificate prior to attending our Training Program.

We may, from time to time, provide referral incentives to franchisees, employees and others for qualified referrals of prospective franchisees. We may, from time to time, pay membership fees to public, quasi-public and private service providers who refer potential franchisees from identified groups (e.g. veterans or military personnel planning to leave the service).

We may vary the terms of our franchises in connection with testing new marketing, branding, research and development of new menu offerings, and/or operational programs. These tests are generally conducted with experienced, existing franchisees and may include incentives and other

rights which are not available to all franchisees. We reserve the right to sell some of the products associated with the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* brand to different retail outlets such as grocery chains or membership-based retailers, even if those outlets are located within your ARA Territory, if applicable.

You may not maintain a World Wide Web site, social medium site, or otherwise maintain a presence or advertise on the Internet or any other public computer network in connection with the Franchised Business without our prior written approval.

Although not bound to do so, Kahala Franchising may conduct, from time to time, additional research and development with regard to its specifications and standards. The criteria for evaluating any changes in these specifications will be whether such changes in the specifications will improve quality, be more efficient and have greater customer appeal, thus enhancing the *NrGize* brand name and image.

You must, at your own cost and expense, use our designated and approved third party design architect, as detailed in the Operations Manual, to prepare the initial design drawings for your Franchised Business. Except for the design architect designated and approved by us, no other architect may be used by you for the design of your restaurant. You must also, at your own cost and expense, retain a licensed architect of record to prepare the permitted construction set of drawings.

You must purchase an interior and exterior sign package and menu panels in accordance with our specifications indicated in the Operations Manuals and related documents provided to all franchisees. In addition, you must have your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant be consistent in color, design and style with the standards and specifications adopted and approved by us, and as we may modify those standards periodically. You must maintain the appearance and atmosphere of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant, and the equipment and premises used in connection with your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant, in accordance with the standards we may adopt from time to time. Any variations in color, design, style, appearance or atmosphere must be approved in writing by us. Our current standards and specifications are included in our Operating Manual.

You are required to acquire, from an approved supplier, and exclusively use an approved cash register/point of sale computer system and software during the operation of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant. The components and specifications of this system are specifically identified in the Operations Manuals. You shall also be required to own a personal computer or similar device that allows you to send and receive e-mails with us, and a fax machine to allow communication with us.

#### The Remainder of this Item 8 Applies Only to NrGize Lifestyle Cafes located within LA Fitness Health Clubs:

Our affiliate, Kahala Holdings, L.L.C., has entered into a Master Facility License Agreement with LA Fitness covering the juice and snack bar operations at all future LA Fitness health clubs in the United States and certain existing LA Fitness health club locations. Upon signing your Franchise Agreement with us, you must also simultaneously enter into a Single-Unit Facility License Agreement with Kahala Holdings, L.L.C. that covers the occupancy by you of the applicable LA Fitness health club covered by your Franchise Agreement (See Exhibit L). Upon the termination or expiration of the Master Facility License Agreement, the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement will automatically terminate.

Given this "turn key" aspect, we or our affiliate(s) will be solely responsible for overseeing and managing the entire construction process and equipping of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* covered by your Franchise Agreement. You will pay us or our designated affiliate the full Initial Franchise Fee plus the full amount of the NrGize Turn-Key Fee simultaneously with your execution of the Franchise Agreement and Single-Unit Facility License Agreement covering your new *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*. The conversion of the existing restaurant to an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* will still be "turn key" as we or our affiliate(s) will be solely responsible for overseeing and managing the entire conversion process, which includes the graphics package, changing signage and menu panels, color scheme and décor, and equipment, as needed. The projected opening date of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* will be indicated in Section 5.5 of your Franchise Agreement (See <u>Exhibit E</u>). We will ultimately be furnishing you with a fully constructed and equipped *NrGize* juice bar restaurant within an identified LA Fitness health club that meets our and LA Fitness' standards and specifications.

You will be required to purchase an approved cash register/point of sale computer system, including any cameras, security devices and applicable security software, if any, with such determination on the security features to be made in our sole discretion (the "POS System") for you to use exclusively during the operation of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*. You will also be required to own a personal computer or similar device that allows you to send and receive e-mails with us, and a fax machine to allow communication with us.

## ITEM 9: FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other items of this disclosure document.

Obligation	Article or Section in Franchise Agreement	Section in ARA	Disclosure Document Item
a. Site selection and acquisition/lease	2.1 and 2.2	2 and 3	7 and 11
b. Pre-opening purchases/leases	2.2, 3.3 and 4.6	3	5, 7 and 11
c. Site development and other pre-opening requirements	2.1, 2.2, 2.3 and 2.4	3 and 5	7, 8 and 11
d. Initial and ongoing training	4.1, 4.2 and 4.3	3, 6, 13 and 14	11
e. Opening	3.1	3, 4, 8 and Exhibit C to ARA	11
f. Fees	5	3, 7, 8, 13 and 14	5, 6, 7 and 10
g. Compliance with standards and policies/operating manual	4.5 and 9	3 and 6	8, 11 and 14
h. Trademarks and proprietary information	6 and 7	6, 9 and 12	13 and 14
i. Restrictions on products/ services offered	2.6, 3.2 and 9.2	3	8 and 16
j. Warranty and customer service requirements	No obligation imposed	3 and 4	Not applicable

Obligation	Article or Section in Franchise Agreement	Section in ARA	Disclosure Document Item
k. Territorial development and sales quotas	No obligation imposed	1, 2, 3, 4 and Exhibit C to ARA	Not applicable
I. Ongoing product/service purchases	3.2 and 9.3	3	8
m. Maintenance, appearance, and remodeling requirements	2.3 and 13.	Not applicable	7 and 11
n. Insurance	9.5	3(bb)	7
o. Advertising	5.3 and 10	4	6, 7 and 11
p. Indemnification	8.2 and 8.3	11	13 and 14
q. Owner's participation/management/ staffing	4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 9.1 and 9.6	Exhibit G to ARA (Agreement to be Bound and to Guarantee) and Exhibit H to ARA (Restrictive Covenant)	11 and 15
r. Records and reports	5.2 and 11.1	3 and 10	6 and 11
s. Inspections and audits	5.18, 9.7 and 11.2	10	6 and 11
t. Transfer	12	13 and 24	6, 16 and 17
u. Renewal	13	14	6, 16 and 17
v. Post-termination obligations	14.5	3, 11, 16, Exhibit G to ARA (Agreement to be Bound and to Guarantee) and Exhibit H to ARA (Restrictive Covenant)	17
w. Non-competition covenants	14.6	12, Exhibit G to ARA (Agreement to be Bound and to Guarantee) and Exhibit H to ARA (Restrictive Covenant)	15 and 17
x. Dispute resolution	16.3	31	17
y. Other			
Consent of Spouse	Consent of Spouse	Consent of Spouse	15
Principals' Guarantee	9.8; Personal Acceptance of Sections 7.1, 14.6 and 14.8; and Exhibit 4 to Franchise Agreement (Guaranty of Contract)	3(mm) and Exhibit G to ARA (Agreement to be Bound and to Guarantee)	15

\* All references to the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement only apply if your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* is to be located within an LA Fitness health club.

#### **ITEM 10: FINANCING**

We do not offer any direct or indirect financing or financing arrangement, nor will we guaranty your obligations under any note or other obligation, except potentially for the lease for your site or if you purchase a restaurant corporate-owned "as-is" by one of our affiliates, and only in our sole and absolute discretion.

If you are a corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other business entity, each of your shareholders, members, partners or other owners (and their respective spouses, if married) must sign the Guaranty of Contract, which is an exhibit to the Franchise Agreement.

If, in order to obtain the lease agreement for the site of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant, the landlord requires you to obtain a third party lease guarantee, and we or one of our affiliates agrees to serve as such guarantor (with such determination to be made in our sole and absolute discretion), you will pay to us a lease guarantee fee in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the total amount of the rental obligations being guaranteed under the lease during its term up to a maximum payment of \$10,000. Once paid, the lease guarantee fee is non-refundable under all circumstances. We do not offer financing for the lease guarantee fee as it is payable in full upon the execution of the guarantee. Neither we, nor any of our affiliates, are required to serve as a guarantor of your lease for the site of your restaurant. The decision of whether to serve as a guarantor of your lease shall be made at our sole and absolute discretion.

If you purchase a corporate restaurant "as-is" that is owned and operated by one of our affiliates, we may finance up to 100% of the purchase price, at our sole discretion. When you purchase a corporate-owned restaurant from one of our affiliates, you will enter into a "Asset Purchase Agreement" (See Exhibit D). If you finance any portion of the purchase price of the corporate-owned restaurant through Kahala Holdings or Kahala Restaurants, you will also enter into a "Promissory Note and Security Agreement," which is an exhibit to the Asset Purchase Agreement. The purchase price includes the initial franchise fee and all leasehold improvements including furniture, fixtures, and equipment that are contained in the restaurant at the time of purchase, along with any inventory that is in the restaurant at the time of purchase. The lender providing the financing is one of our affiliates, Kahala Holdings or Kahala Restaurants, whichever entity owns the restaurant. The annual rate of interest charged will be between 0% and 12% and will depend on the creditworthiness of the franchisee, the amount being financed, and the dollar amount being paid up-front by the franchisee. There are no finance charges associated with the Promissory Note and Security Agreement. The amount being financed will be required to be re-paid in equal monthly installments and the period of repayment will be between 12 months and 60 months, depending on the amount being financed. The security interest required by us is a first position lien on all equipment. If the franchisee is an individual, the individual franchisee must personally guarantee the debt, including his/her spouse. If the franchisee is a corporation, limited liability company, partnership, or other entity, each of the principals of the entity and their spouses must personally guarantee the debt. The Promissory Note and Security Agreement may be pre-paid in full or in part at any time and from time to time without penalty. The franchisee's potential liabilities upon default include: (i) an accelerated obligation to pay the entire amount due, including all accrued and unpaid interest, if the default is not cured within ten calendar days; and the interest rate will be increased to an annual rate of 18%; (ii) obligation to pay costs and attorneys' fees incurred in collecting the debt; (iii) termination of the franchise; and (iv) liabilities from cross defaults resulting from non-payment or from the loss of business property; on franchisee's other restaurants name in the Promissory Note and Security Agreement and granting either Kahala Holdings or Kahala Restaurants the right to take back the restaurant(s). The Promissory Note and Security Agreement requires franchisees to waive the following legal rights: demand, notice, diligence protest, presentment for payment, and notice of extension, dishonor, protest, demand and nonpayment of the Promissory Note; any release or discharge as a result in any change in security given or change in person or entity who may become liable for the note or any modification of the note; rights to contest or appeal our exercise of the take back rights; and not receiving compensation for the restaurant after the take back rights have been exercised. The Promissory Note and Security Agreement also bars the franchisee's right to contest the take back rights.

We require a first lien position in all equipment as a security interests to be given by the franchisee. We do not intend to sell, assign or discount to a third party any financing arrangement. We do not arrange financing from other sources; therefore, we do not receive direct or indirect payments from placing financing.

*NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* (in LA Fitness health club locations <u>only</u>) is listed on the SBA's Franchise Registry. The SBA's Franchise Registry is an online listing of franchise systems whose franchisees receive the benefit of having their SBA loan application reviewed using a streamlined process. If you obtain an SBA loan, you will be required to sign the SBA loan addendum to the Franchise Agreement and to the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement (See <u>Exhibit F</u> and <u>Exhibit M</u>).

Please note, if you intend to lease the site of your restaurant, the lease must include certain required provisions (See <u>Exhibit G</u>: Required Lease Terms; <u>Exhibit E</u>: Franchise Agreement – Section 2.2 and Exhibit 2).

We do not offer any financing arrangement for the Initial Development Fee. We do not require any security interests to be given by the Area Representative as we do not offer any financing arrangement. In addition, we do not have any financing arrangement with the Area Representative and therefore, we do not intend to sell, assign or discount to a third party any financing arrangement. Because there is no financing arrangement between us and the Area Representative, there are no waiver of defenses or other legal rights executed by the Area Representative. We do not arrange financing from other sources; therefore, we do not receive direct or indirect payments from placing financing.

### ITEM 11: FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING

# Except as disclosed below, Kahala Franchising is not required to provide you with any assistance.

If your Franchised Business will be located in an area that is subject to an ARA, the Area Representative in that area may be responsible for providing to you some or all of the services required to be provided by us, other than the portion of the training program that will be conducted in the Phoenix, Arizona metropolitan area. However, Area Representatives are not authorized to make promises or agreements on our behalf or to agree to modifications to your Franchise Agreement or other agreements relating to your Franchised Business.

Before you open your business, we will provide the following assistance to you for all NrGize franchises except those franchises located within an LA Fitness health club:

1. We may, upon your written request, assist you in selecting a site for your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant. You will be required to lease or purchase the premises for your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant from a third party. Generally, we do not own or lease the premises and Sublease it to you. Most restaurants are developed by franchisees who find their own locations and negotiate their own real estate interests. You must select, and we must approve, an acceptable location that you open within 2 years after we sign the Franchise Agreement. We will notify you if we do not approve the site within 30 days of receiving your site selection information. Our approval of your proposed location and lease terms does not constitute our guarantee of success of your Franchised Business at the location you have selected. We will not unreasonably withhold our approval of the location. The location must be within a geographic area identified in Section 1.1 of the Franchise Agreement. The factors that we will consider in approving your proposed location include, among other things: occupancy costs, proximity to major retail activity and other NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurants, sign visibility, traffic volume and speeds, parking availability, neighborhood economic profile, population density, accessibility, competition and other tenants in the shopping center, mall, or applicable retail structure. If you cannot secure a location acceptable to us and open it within 2 years after you sign the Franchise Agreement, we may terminate your Franchise Agreement after giving you written notice (See Exhibit E: Franchise Agreement—Section 2.1).

2. If you intend to lease or purchase the location for your Franchised Business, the lease or purchase agreement will be subject to our prior approval, and you must provide us with a copy of the lease or purchase agreement at least thirty (30) days prior to execution. The success of your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant will depend upon, among other things, the following factors: how much you follow our methods and procedures; your management skill, experience and business acumen; how much time you spend personally managing your restaurant and supervising its operations; local economic conditions; the physical size and location of the restaurant; the amount and nature of tenant improvements required; the local market for NrGize Lifestyle Cafe products; the prevailing wage rate; and competition. The decision to establish and operate your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant at the location will be made solely by you, without any reliance upon any information provided (if any), recommendation made (if any) or approval given (if any) by us, any Area Representative or any of our or their respective shareholders, directors, officers, employees, representatives, agents or affiliates. You must purchase or lease your business location from independent third parties. If you intend to lease your business location, the lease must include certain required provisions (See Exhibit E: Franchise Agreement—Section 2.2 and Exhibit 2).

3. If we determine that you do not have the financial capacity to perform your obligations with respect to the location or the Master Lease, we may deny approval of the location and/or Master Lease. Our disapproval will be deemed to be reasonable. In that event, we or our affiliates or franchisees may operate a *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant at that site.

4. You are solely responsible for conforming the premises to all codes and ordinances, including the Americans with Disabilities Act (the "ADA"), and obtaining all required permits. You are solely responsible for constructing or remodeling and decorating the location to our system standards and subject to our approval. We do not provide assistance with conforming the premises to codes and ordinances, including the ADA, obtaining permits, or constructing, remodeling or decorating your restaurant. You must provide us with one copy of the plans for your restaurant within 30 days after selection of the site. We will then have 30 days to approve or disapprove of the plans. We must approve any and all changes or revisions to the plans required for your site before you begin construction. Our approval of the plans is solely for complying with our system standards, and not for determining compliance with codes, ordinances, or the ADA.

5. We will identify the furnishings, fixtures, and equipment (including cash registers, point of sale systems, and computer hardware and software), signs, products, materials, and

supplies necessary or authorized for the restaurant to begin operation (See <u>Exhibit E</u>: Franchise Agreement—Sections 2.4, 3.2, 3.3, 4.5, 4.6, and 9.3).

6. We will provide you with all standards of operation that you must use or satisfy before you open the restaurant (See <u>Exhibit E</u>: Franchise Agreement—Sections 4.5 and 9.1).

# Before you open your business, we will provide the following assistance to you for all *NrGize* franchises located within an LA Fitness health club:

1. If you want to locate your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* within an LA Fitness health club, we will assist you in selecting an LA Fitness health club location for your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*. The list from LA Fitness of all available LA Fitness health club locations is automatically pre-approved by our affiliate, Kahala Holdings, L.L.C. You will select an LA Fitness health club location for your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe from a list of available LA Fitness health clubs in your area. As detailed under Items 1 and 8 above, our affiliate, Kahala Holdings, L.L.C., has entered into a Master Facility License Agreement with LA Fitness covering the juice and snack bar operations at all future LA Fitness health clubs in the United States and certain existing LA Fitness health club locations. Upon signing your Franchise Agreement with us, you must also simultaneously enter into a Single-Unit Facility License Agreement with Kahala Holdings, L.L.C. that covers the occupancy by you of the applicable LA Fitness health club covered by your Franchise Agreement (See Exhibit L).

2. For *NrGize* franchises located within an LA Fitness health club, the *NrGize* franchise covered by your Franchise Agreement is a "turn key" opportunity. Given this "turn key" aspect, we or our affiliate(s) will be solely responsible for overseeing and managing the entire construction process and equipping of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* covered by your Franchise Agreement. You will pay us or our designated affiliate the full Initial Franchise Fee plus the full amount of the NrGize Turn-Key Fee simultaneously with your execution of the Franchise Agreement and Single-Unit Facility License Agreement covering your new *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*. The conversion of the existing restaurant to an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* will still be "turn key" as we or our affiliate(s) will be solely responsible for overseeing and managing the entire conversion process, which includes the graphics package and changing the signage and menu panels, color scheme and décor, and equipment, as needed. The projected opening date of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* will be indicated in Section 5.5 of your Franchise Agreement (See <u>Exhibit E</u>). We will ultimately be furnishing you with a fully constructed and equipped *NrGize* juice bar restaurant within an identified LA Fitness health club that meets our and LA Fitness' standards and specifications.

# Before you open your business, we will provide the following assistance to you for *all* NrGize locations:

1. We will provide you with Volumes 1 and 2 of the Operations Manuals (called New Owner Reference and Operations) that contain mandatory and suggested specifications, standards and procedures, and the website address, login and password so that you can access Volume 3 of the Operations Manuals (called KTEC Online) and all of the forms that are a part of the web-based KTEC Online manual. The Operations Manuals are collectively 352 pages. The Operations Manual are confidential and remain our property. We may modify the Operations Manuals as and when we desire, but no modification will materially alter your status and rights under the Franchise Agreement (See Exhibit E: Franchise Agreement—Section 4.5). The Table of Contents of the Operations Manuals is attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit O.

2. We will provide you with the names and contact information of any distributors and/or suppliers you are required or authorized to use to supply you with products or services complying with our standards and specifications. The names and contact information of the approved distributors and suppliers and the written specifications for the approved equipment, signs, fixtures,

opening inventory and supplies will be provided to you during the pre-opening and/or construction phase for your Franchised Business. Updates will be provided to you as changes are made (i.e., additions and deletions) to the list of approved distributors for our approved suppliers. We do not deliver or install any of these approved items (See <u>Exhibit E</u>: Franchise Agreement—Section 9.3).

3. We will make a Training Program available to you and your designated representative after you sign the Franchise Agreement. The following Table indicates the general subject matter, the number of hours of classroom training, and the number of hours of on-the-job training for each subject to be covered during the Training Program, and the location of the training. Our instructors have been adequately trained in the ownership and operation of a NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchise, including having, at a minimum, completed the entire NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Training Program, and having experience in training each of the subjects listed in the table below, with some trainers having five years' experience or more in training each of the subjects. Other personnel involved with on-the-job training of franchisees are Regional Directors of Operation, all who have more than one year experience with on-the-job training. During the classroom portion of the Training Program, New Owner Training will be taught using the following instructional materials: manuals, videos, and tests. In-store training will be taught in a NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant using the following instructional materials: manuals, job aids, videos, and tests. Certain portions of the entire Training Program may be adjusted as necessary as determined by Kahala and based upon your skill sets. Further, substitute instructors may present certain portions of the Training Program.

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4
Subject	Hours of Classroom Training	Hours of on-the-job training	Location
New Owner Training	40		KTEC (Kahala Training & Education Center) in Scottsdale, AZ
In-Store Training		16	Training restaurant in Arizona or such other location designated by us

## TRAINING PROGRAM

a. You or another partner, shareholder or member of your business organization, and your manager must have successfully completed our Training Program to our satisfaction. If you wish to own and operate multiple restaurants, you must continuously employ a minimum number of managers who have successfully completed our Training Program. You and your restaurant managers must be able to read and write English adequately, in our good faith opinion, to satisfactorily complete our Training Program and to communicate with employees, customers and suppliers. If at any time prior to the opening or during the operation of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* you hire a new manager, the new manager must successfully complete the Training Program. The fee for a new manager to attend the Training Program is \$500 per person for In-Store Training and \$500 per person for New Owner System Management Training.

b. The classroom portion of the Training Program will be held at KTEC, which is located at our corporate offices in Scottsdale, Arizona, and the in-store portion of the Training Program will be held at the designated training restaurant in the metropolitan Phoenix, Arizona area, or at such other location(s) as we may designate in our sole discretion. You will need to arrange for transportation, food, and lodging for you and your designated attendee. The costs you incur will depend on the distance you must travel and the type of accommodations you choose. The estimated cost for travel and living expenses for two persons while training, not including salaries, if any, for you and your employees ranges from \$2,500 to \$5,000 (See <u>Exhibit E</u>: Franchise Agreement—Sections 4.1 and 9.6).

c. You must complete the Training Program no more than three (3) months and no less than one (1) day prior to the opening of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant. Both the New Owner Training and the In-Store Training portions of the Training Program will be conducted once a month. We do not currently require you to attend additional training courses or refresher courses. However, if you would like additional training after completing the Training Program, we will provide additional training to you at a cost of \$300 per person per day.

d. In addition to the Training Program, you must ensure that all of your employees are trained in *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* procedures. You are solely responsible for hiring and training your employees. You must also ensure that the manager(s) and all employees whose duties include customer service are able to speak and read English and any other language that may be required to adequately meet the public needs in your restaurant. We believe training is important to the success of the *NrGize* System, and from time to time, we may offer informal training sessions to franchisees. We believe it is in your best interest to attend any such training sessions. From time to time, we will make videotaped training programs available online that you may elect to use in connection with your employee training program.

e. We will provide one of our representatives to come to your restaurant during opening week for up to three (3) days at our expense to work with you and your manager on your grand opening, and on operating and marketing your restaurant. We may, in the future, hold refresher or additional training programs, conferences and seminars. Your attendance at these programs is mandatory. To help us defray the cost of sponsoring these programs, there may be a nominal registration fee, and you will also be required to pay the cost of transportation, food, lodging and other personal expenses of your attendance and those of your personnel at any such program. These programs will be held at locations within the United States that we will specify in our sole discretion (See Exhibit E: Franchise Agreement—Section 4.3).

4. We will provide you, as part of the Operations Manuals, with operating procedures to assist you in complying with our standard methods of record keeping, controls, staffing and training requirements, and production methods, and with policies procedures and resources to support brand consistency and compliance (See <u>Exhibit E</u>: Franchise Agreement – Section 4.5).

5. If you are opening a new restaurant, we will assist you in coordinating a grand opening promotional advertising program or such other advertising program as we may specify (See <u>Exhibit E</u>: Franchise Agreement-Sections 5.3 and 10.2).

At any time that you or any of your affiliates are in breach of the obligations under the Franchise Agreement (for example, your failure to pay for the equipment and signage when required), or any other agreement with us or any of our affiliates, we or our affiliates may defer the performance of our obligations under the Franchise Agreement (for example, our obligation to approve your location in a timely manner) or such other agreement, or defer the opening of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant, until your (or your affiliate's) breach has been cured. Our (or our affiliate's) exercise of that right will not constitute a waiver of our rights under the Franchise Agreement or such other agreement, including, without limitation, our (or our affiliate's) right to terminate the Franchise Agreement or such other agreement.

6. The typical length of time between the earlier of the signing of the Franchise Agreement or the first payment of consideration for the franchise and the opening of the

franchisee's business is 6-12 months for both traditional and non-traditional *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurants. The factors that may affect this time are: lease or purchase negotiations; zoning procedures; financing applications; local ordinances and approvals; obtaining licenses and permits; construction delays; weather conditions; shortages; delayed installation of equipment, fixtures and signs; development or construction not in accordance with our requirements; labor disputes; Acts of God; and other reasons.

#### During the operation of the Franchised Business of all NrGize locations:

1. We will maintain a continuing advisory relationship with you, including consulting with you in marketing, merchandising and general business operations which may help you in improving and developing your Franchised Business (See <u>Exhibit E</u>: Franchise Agreement – Sections 4.3 and 9.1).

2. We will provide you with information on our operating and other standards for your restaurant. We may modify these as, and when, we desire (See Exhibit E: Franchise Agreement – Sections 4.5 and 9.1).

3. We will continue our efforts to maintain high and uniform standards of quality, cleanliness, appearance and service at all restaurants in the System, including making periodic inspections and quality service checks of your restaurant (See <u>Exhibit E</u>: Franchise Agreement – Section 4.3, 9.1 and 9.7).

4. We will provide one of our representatives to come to your restaurant during opening week for up to three (3) days, at our expense, to work with you or your manager on opening, operating and marketing your restaurant (See <u>Exhibit E</u>: Franchise Agreement—Section 4.3).

5. Upon your request, we will assist you or provide recommendations regarding establishing pricing for the products you sell in your restaurant; however, the ultimate decision on the prices you charge is yours. We will not establish the prices for you.

6. We will make you aware of software available for purchase from an approved third party vendor to assist you in administrative, bookkeeping, accounting, and inventory control procedures.

7. Upon your request, we will reasonably assist you in resolving operating problems you may encounter.

We (or, at our election, a third party that may be an affiliate of ours) will establish and 8. administer an Advertising Fund (the "Fund") that will include your Advertising Fees and those of other franchise owners in the System, in accordance with the Franchise Agreement. The Advertising Fee, which is a percentage of your weekly Gross Sales (See Exhibit E: Franchise Agreement - Section 5.3), shall be due and payable with the Royalty Fee (See Exhibit E: Franchise Agreement – Section 5.2). All NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchisees (except those located within an LA Fitness health club) must contribute to the Fund at the same rate, which is currently .5% of your weekly Gross Sales to national advertising. There is no Advertising Fee for your NrGize franchise located within an LA Fitness health club. If an affiliate of ours administers the Fund or places advertising in connection with the System, such affiliate may be paid a fee that will not exceed the fee that would be payable to unrelated third parties for comparable services. For each of our company-owned or affiliated restaurants, we will make contributions to the Fund on the same basis as required of the other NrGize franchise owners in the same geographic market. Unless required by applicable law, we will have no obligation to create a trust account, escrow account or other special account for the Fund, and the monies comprising the Fund may be placed

in our general account(s) if we desire. We may also reserve portions of the Fund for use in a subsequent year.

a. The Fund will be used for marketing, advertising, production and media expenses to promote the NrGize name, System, products and services. The Fund may be used to pay any and all costs of maintaining, administering, directing and preparing advertising, including the cost of preparing and conducting television, radio, magazine and newspaper advertising campaigns and other public relations activities, employing advertising agencies to assist in such campaigns or other activities, and providing promotional brochures and other marketing materials to franchise owners. We are entitled to receive the following from the Fund: reimbursement of our expenses, overhead, and employee salaries for services, materials, supplies, facilities, equipment or capital provided to the Fund, and rent for office space provided to the Fund. Advertising funds not spent in the fiscal year in which they accrue are rolled over to the next fiscal year. We have no fiduciary responsibility to you on our management of the Fund, and no obligation to you to spend the Fund in your market area and/or in your Cooperative area. if applicable. Franchisees in a Cooperative area determine how the funds they contribute to the Cooperative are spent. The Fund is not audited, and the financial statements for the Fund and accounting of the Fund are not available to franchisees.

b. We, or our designee, will direct all advertising programs to be undertaken through the use of the Fund. We will have sole discretion over all creative concepts, materials and media used in such programs and the placement and allocation of such programs. Advertisements generally will be in both print and broadcast media, initially with local coverage. We are not required to use any specific amounts from the Fund in your market. However, we will use all amounts contributed by you to any approved regional advertising funds, if any, in the same geographic area in which your restaurant is located. We may use an outside advertising agency to create and place advertising or we may use our in-house marketing department. The Fund will be used to create new marketing material and promote the products and services offered by *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurants. In the calendar year ending December 31, 2011, for the Advertising Fees we collected, we spent 100% on production, 0% on media placement, and 0% on administrative expenses. None of the Fund was used for the solicitation of franchises.

c. Unless your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant is located in an enclosed shopping mall or other enclosed structure identified in Section 1.1 of the Franchise Agreement, you will be required to insert a regular (white pages) listing and a classified (Yellow Pages) telephone directory advertisement in the main telephone directories serving the geographical area in which the Franchised Business is located, or you must participate in a multiple insertion in the event there is more than one franchise owner in such area. In either case, the telephone directory advertisement must be approved by us in advance (See <u>Exhibit E</u>: Franchise Agreement—Section 10.2).

d. In addition to contributions to the Fund described above, we strongly recommend that you spend not less than 2% of your monthly Gross Sales on local advertising. If your franchise is located outside of an enclosed shopping mall, health club, or other enclosed structure, we strongly recommend that you spend \$3,000 on a grand opening advertising program, and an additional \$2,000 on advertising and promotion within the first six months following the grand opening of your restaurant (See <u>Exhibit E</u>: Franchise Agreement-Section 5.3)

e. All advertising by you in any medium must be conducted in a professional manner, must conform to the standards and requirements in our Operations Manuals, and must display our proprietary marks only in those forms approved by us. You will submit samples to us (through the mail, return receipt requested) and obtain our prior approval (except with respect to the cost of the advertising) of all advertising and promotional plans and materials that you desire to use and that have not been prepared or previously approved by us. If you do not receive our written

disapproval within 15 days from the date of receipt by us of such materials, we will be deemed to have given the required approval. We may make available to you, from time to time, approved advertising, promotional plans and materials for purchase. You will not be obligated to accept or purchase any such advertising, promotional plans and materials offered to you by us (See Exhibit <u>E</u>: Franchise Agreement—Section 3.2 and 10.2).

f. You may not maintain a World Wide Web site or otherwise maintain a presence or advertise on the Internet or any other public computer network in connection with the Franchised Business without our prior written approval (See <u>Exhibit E</u>: Franchise Agreement – Section 3.4).

g. We will not prevent the formation of franchisee cooperatives. Currently, there are no regional or national marketing cooperatives for *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchisees. We encourage our franchisees to form and operate Cooperatives. If a Cooperative is formed for your region, you must participate in the Cooperative or lose your right to vote as to Cooperative matters. The membership of the Cooperative would be defined by us according to your market area. We reserve the right at any time, in our sole discretion, to form, change, dissolve, or merge Cooperatives.

h. Currently, there is no advertising council composed of *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchisees that advises us on advertising policies.

9. We must review substitute locations for your restaurant and you must obtain our prior approval if you desire to relocate your restaurant (See <u>Exhibit E</u>: Franchise Agreement – Section 2.5).

10. We may offer you the option for a one-time renewal of your Franchise Agreement prior to its expiration for a maximum term of up to ten years, if you meet our requirements and, if your NrGize is located within an LA Fitness health club, if LA Fitness has granted to you, us, or our affiliate an extension of the occupancy rights within the LA Fitness health club in which you operate your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*. Upon renewal, you must execute our form of Franchise Agreement being used at the time of your renewal and pay us the applicable Renewal Fee (See <u>Exhibit E</u>: Franchise Agreement – Article 13).

We require you to exclusively use an approved electronic point-of-sale system to 11. record all your sales during the operation of the Franchised Business, the components of which are identified in the Operations Manuals (the "POS System"). We require that the manufacturer or its authorized representative on an ongoing basis service the POS System, at your cost. You will be required to maintain the POS System in good working order at all times, including any cameras, security devices and applicable security software, if any, and to upgrade or update the POS System during the term of your Franchise Agreement as we may require from time to time. The determination of the security features are to be made in our sole discretion. There are no contractual limitations on the frequency or cost for the franchisee to upgrade or update the POS System during the term of the Franchise Agreement. It will be your responsibility to enter into contracts for the maintenance, support, upgrades and updates to the POS System with an approved supplier of such services identified by us on the list of approved vendors and distributors or other notification to you from us advising of suppliers for your market area. Your POS System cost per restaurant will depend, among other things, on your restaurant's size and configuration, the system options you choose and/or we determine (such as drive-thru needs (if any), and printer needs), and the types of telephone and internet access services available. You may be required to obtain a high-speed/always-on internet connection service for your POS System. This requirement shall be defined by the then-current Operations Manuals, which may change from time to time. If high-speed/always-on internet connection service is not available in your area, dial-up Internet access may be used until high-speed/always-on internet connection service becomes available in your area. You may be required, from time to time, to upgrade the POS System's hardware and/or software, at your sole cost and expense, in order to maintain the POS System in conformity with our then-current requirements. You and your employees must complete training for the POS System as we require. If you are buying an existing restaurant with an older cash register system, it is a requirement for the transfer that you purchase and install the then-current POS System in the restaurant. (See Exhibit E: Franchise Agreement – Section 4.6).

We require you to use a POS System that meets our specifications in order а to: (i) assist you in the operation of your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe; (ii) allow us to monitor your gross sales; (iii) enable us to develop chain-wide statistics that may improve purchasing; (iv) assist us in the development of new authorized products or the removal of existing unsuccessful authorized products; (v) enable us to refine existing authorized products; (vi) generally improve system-wide understanding of our marketing efforts; and (vii) obtain new types of information. The POS System must be configured so that we have independent and remote access to the information and data stored in it. This access allows us to exchange/collect data and other information on such basis as we shall from time to time communicate to you. There are no contractual limitations on our right to access the information in your POS System. All approved cash registers are capable of recording accumulated sales and cannot be turned back or reset, and must be able to retain data in the event of power loss. You must purchase the approved electronic POS System from an approved vendor, as we have required our approved supplier to make special modifications to their equipment and systems to comply with our requirements (See Exhibit E: Franchise Agreement - Section 4.6). You must also purchase approved software for your restaurant. The cost of purchasing the POS System, including the software, ranges from \$8,000 to \$15,000. You may also purchase from us a help desk phone support maintenance contract on both the software and hardware for your FOCUS POS System, the cost of which is approximately \$540 to \$660 per year. If you do not have a FOCUS POS System, the cost of the annual maintenance contact varies by the number of POS terminals operating at your restaurant. It is recommended that you also purchase the hardware support for all modules for the first year you operate your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant. The cost is approximately \$150 to \$1,300 per year depending on the equipment installed. This cost is subject to change by the supplier.

b. The approved POS System has in its specifications integrated "card swipe" systems that process debit card, credit card, or other non-cash payment systems including Kahala Franchising's stored value gift cards, loyalty cards, frequency cards, gift certificates, vouchers, and any other similar Kahala Franchising sponsored electronic card and/or payment programs (collectively, the "Gift/Loyalty Card"). You must obtain credit card and gift card processing services from our approved vendors. The charges associated with credit card and gift card transactions are compiled per transaction and therefore will vary from restaurant to restaurant. We estimate that the costs associated with credit card transactions will be between 1% and 4% of your gross sales. Gift card transactions will cost you between 5% to 9% of the gift card redemption. The Payment Card Industry ("PCI") requires all companies that process, store, or transmit credit card information to protect the cardholders' information by complying with the PCI Data Security Standard ("PCI DSS"). Therefore, as a franchisee who accepts credit cards, you are required to be PCI compliant by following and adhering to PCI DSS, completing an annual guestionnaire and guarterly network PCI scans and installing a network firewall appliance for logging, tracking, reporting, and security assessment. The PCI compliance is mandated by the Payment Card Industry. The cost for the quarterly network security scans, network firewall appliance and annual questionnaire ranges from \$150 to \$1,300 per year.

c. You must purchase a computer and connect to the Internet so that you can report your gross sales online, so that we can communicate by email, so that you can use Internet and Extranet services, and so that you can receive other electronic information we send. You also must, at your cost, maintain membership in a designated third party network, and maintain an active email account. We may revise our computer specifications. If we do so, we may require you to upgrade or update your computer. There is no contractual limitation on the frequency and cost of this obligation. You are responsible for backing up and otherwise protecting your data on your computer. You are also responsible for recording and restoring all software license keys. We may require you to upgrade the hardware and software as reasonably necessary to provide reports and information required by us.

12. We require that you permit us to poll your sales information on a daily basis, and that you execute an Electronic Funds Transfer Agreement by and payable to Kahala Franchising (which is attached to this Disclosure Document as <u>Exhibit K</u>), permitting us to weekly debit your account for payment of weekly royalty and advertising fees and debit your account as necessary for product purchases from us or our affiliates. (See <u>Exhibit E</u>: Franchise Agreement – Sections 5.2, 5.3 and 5.4). We may require you to enter weekly inventory information, and if so, would require that you permit us have remote access to that information (See <u>Exhibit E</u>: Franchise Agreement – Section 4.6).

13. The POS System and personal computers contain sales and labor data that can be generated and stored in the systems and that allows for the generation of financial and payroll reports.

#### Obligations to Area Representatives:

1. We grant Area Representative the right to use the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* trade names, trademarks, service marks and logos solely in connection with and in strict compliance with the terms and conditions of the Area Representative Agreement.

2. We will make the AR Training Program available to you and your designated representative after you sign the ARA. Attendance at the AR Training is mandatory for Area Representatives. The AR Training Program will be similar to the Training Program offered to the franchisees. The following table indicates the general subject matter, the number of hours of classroom training, and the number of hours of on-the-job training for each subject to be covered during the AR Training Program, and the location of the training. Our instructors have been adequately trained in the ownership and operation of a NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchise, including having, at a minimum, completed the entire NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Training Program, and having experience in training each of the subjects listed in the table below, with some trainers having five years' experience or more in training each of the subjects. Other personnel involved with on-the-job training of franchisees are Regional Directors of Operation, all who have more than one year experience with on-the-job training. During the classroom portion of the Training Program, New Owner Training will be taught using the following instructional materials: manuals, videos, and tests. In-store training will be taught in an NrGize restaurant using the following instructional materials: manuals, job aids, videos, and tests. Certain portions of the entire Training Program may be adjusted as necessary as determined by Kahala. Further, substitute instructors may present certain portions of the Training Program.

## AR TRAINING PROGRAM

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4
Subject	Hours of Classroom Training	Hours of on-the-job training	Location
New Owner Training	56		KTEC (Kahala Training & Education Center) in Scottsdale, AZ
In-Store Training		24	Training restaurant in Arizona or such other location designated by us

3. You, if you are an individual, or two (2) principals of the Area Representative if Area Representative is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity, must successfully complete our Training Program to our satisfaction. You or two of your principals, if you are a business entity, must be able to read and write English adequately, in our good faith opinion, to satisfactorily complete our Training Program and to communicate with us and franchisees.

4. The classroom portion of the Training Program will be held at KTEC, which is located at our corporate offices in Scottsdale, Arizona, and the in-store portion of the Training Program and at one of our affiliated restaurants in the metropolitan Phoenix, Arizona area, or at such other location(s) as we may designate in our sole discretion. You will need to arrange for transportation, food, and lodging for you and your designated attendee. The costs you incur will depend on the distance you must travel and the type of accommodations you choose. The estimated cost for travel and living expenses for two persons while training, not including salaries, if any, for you and your employees ranges from \$2,500 to \$5,000.

5. You must complete the AR Training Program within sixty (60) days of signing your ARA. Both the New Owner Training and the In-Store Training portions of the AR Training Program will be conducted once a month.

6. In connection with the Area Representative's training, we shall provide Area Representative with one set of our confidential Operations Manuals and associated documents and written guidelines (the "Operations Manuals") that contain mandatory and suggested System specifications, standards and procedures for all franchisees, and we shall provide Area Representative with one set of our confidential operations manuals for Area Representatives ("AR Operations Manuals"). The Operations Manuals and AR Operations Manuals are confidential and remain our property. We may modify the AR Operations Manuals as and when we desire, but no modification will materially alter your status and rights under the Area Representative Agreement. Area Representative shall complete the Training Program for franchisees with a portion of the management training focused on the duties and obligations of an Area Representative. The Table of Contents of the AR Operations Manuals is attached to this Disclosure Document as <u>Exhibit R</u>. The AR Operations Manual contains 34 pages.

7. We shall provide Area Representative with one complete sample set of sales materials, forms, and a copy of this Disclosure Document to use in connection with the Area Representative Agreement. Kahala Franchising is responsible for the preparation and registration of the Franchise Disclosure Document.

8. We will make available during normal business hours our management personnel to consult with Area Representative either in person at our office in Scottsdale, Arizona or by

telephone regarding any issues regarding selling, construction, training, opening, operating and/or supporting an *NrGize* restaurant.

9. While the ARA is in effect, Kahala Franchising shall pay to Area Representative the Area Representative's portion of the applicable fees received by Kahala Franchising from franchisees for services provided by Area Representative in accordance with the payment terms indicated in the ARA.

#### ITEM 12: TERRITORY

#### Franchisees

The franchise is granted only for the location specified in the Franchise Agreement or a location to be approved by us. We will not unreasonably withhold our approval of the.

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from restaurants that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control. You will not receive an option, right of first refusal or other rights under the Franchise Agreement to acquire additional franchises. We (and/or our affiliates) may establish other franchised or company-owned NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurants that may compete with your location, including across the street from your location or in the same venue as your location. We (and/or our affiliates) may co-brand NrGize Lifestyle Cafe with one or more of our other quick service restaurants or allow approved NrGize Lifestyle Cafe stores to sell additional approved menu items under a trademark license agreement we may have with other third-party restaurant concepts. We presently intend to develop NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurants throughout the United States. Except as expressly limited in the Franchise Agreement, we (for ourselves, our affiliates and our designees) retain all rights with respect to NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurants, the Service Marks, all confidential and proprietary information, all copyrighted materials and the sale of NrGize Lifestyle Cafe products anywhere in the world, including, without limitation, the right to implement multi-area marketing programs that may allow us or others to solicit or sell to customers anywhere. We also reserve the right to issue mandatory policies to coordinate such multi-area marketing programs. One or more future NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurants may have an adverse effect on the revenues and profitability of existing NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurants, including your NrGize Lifestvle Cafe restaurant.

In addition, we (and/or our affiliates) may market and/or test, directly or indirectly, NrGize Lifestyle Cafe products or services through channels of distribution other than NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurants operated by us, our affiliates and franchisees, including through the Internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, grocery stores, movie theaters, limited access highway food facilities, mobile units, off-site sales accounts, electronic mail, converting other chains and other distribution opportunities, or vending machines and similar automated dispensing systems ("Other Channels") which generally are not available for us to franchise to you, and typically involve trademark licensing and/or the sale of our branded products. We may also distribute, sell and/or license other persons or entities to distribute and/or sell products through all Other Channels. Where tests prove to be successful, we may expand our sale of products in similar businesses on a regional, national or international level. We reserve the right to establish Other Channels to make sales that may compete with your location using our principal trademarks. These Other Channels could compete with you in the sale of your products. Kahala Franchising is under no obligation to compensate its franchisees on sales Kahala Franchising makes using Other Channels. Kahala Franchising is under no obligation to compensate franchisees for soliciting or accepting orders in the franchisee's territory as the franchisee is granted no exclusive territory. Franchisees may not use Other Channels, including the Internet, catalog sales or telemarketing to make sales except that the franchisee may provide catering services anywhere as long as such services comply with the current version of our Operating Manual. All sales made from catering services must be included in the franchisee's Gross Sales. We reserve the right, directly or through third parties, to manufacture or sell, or both, anywhere, other products which are the same as or similar to those sold in *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurants, but which bear trademarks that are not confusingly similar to any of the trademarks you are authorized to use under the Franchise Agreement.

We reserve the right, either directly or through affiliated entities, to operate or license others to operate businesses other than NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurants anywhere, including in your ARA Territory (if applicable); including, but not limited to, locations of our other quick service restaurant concepts and you agree that we or our affiliates may do so anywhere, including within your ARA Territory, if applicable. The Surf City Squeeze brand is a business that we franchise under a different trademark than NrGize Lifestyle Cafe that sells smoothies, fruit drinks and nutritional supplements similar to those offered by NrGize Lifestyle Cafe. In addition, the Frullati Cafe & Bakery brand is a business that we franchise under a different trademark than NrGize Lifestyle Cafe that sells blended fruit drinks similar to the smoothies offered by NrGize Lifestyle Cafe, and the Cold Stone Creamery brand is a business that we franchise under a different trademark than NrGize Lifestyle Cafe that also sells smoothies similar to those offered by NrGize Lifestyle Cafe. The Surf City Squeeze franchises are offered under the Surf City Squeeze word and design trademarks, the Frullati Cafe & Bakery franchises are offered under the Frullati Cafe & Bakery word and design trademarks, and the Cold Stone Creamery franchises are offered under the Cold Stone Creamery word and design trademarks. The Surf City Squeeze restaurants, Frullati Cafe & Bakery restaurants, and Cold Stone Creamery restaurants are primarily franchised, but may also be operated by an affiliate of Kahala Franchising. Surf City Squeeze franchises have been offered by us from 1994 until 2004 under the name of Malibu Smoothie Franchise Corp. and Surf City Squeeze Franchise Corp., from 2004 until March 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchise Corp., and since August 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchising; Frullati Cafe & Bakery franchises have been offered by us from 1999 until 2004 under the name of Frullati Franchise Systems, Inc., from 2004 until March 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchise Corp., and since August 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchising; and Cold Stone Creamery franchises have been offered by us from May 2007 until April 2008 under the name of Cold Stone Creamery, Inc., from April 2008 until March 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchise Corp., and since August 2010 under the name of Kahala Franchising. A Surf City Squeeze restaurant, Frullati Cafe & Bakery restaurant, and/or Cold Stone Creamery restaurant may be located within the vicinity of your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant. Franchisees for the Surf City Squeeze brand, Frullati Cafe & Bakery brand, Cold Stone Creamery brand, and NrGize Lifestyle Cafe brand are not currently given an exclusive territory. Kahala Franchising will provide support to all of its concepts regardless of the vicinity of a concept to another concept that sells similar products. The principal business address of these similar concepts is the same as Kahala Franchising's address. We do not maintain separate offices or separate training facilities for the similar competing business.

We may merge with, acquire and/or be acquired by any other business, including, without limitation, a business that competes with your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant, or acquire and convert any retail stores, including, without limitation, retail stores operated by competitors, or otherwise operated independently or as part of, or in association with, any other system or chain, whether franchised or corporately owned.

You must obtain our prior approval to relocate your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant*. The approval or rejection by us of any proposed relocation shall be in our sole discretion. In order to relocate your restaurant, you must be in compliance with your Franchise Agreement, the relocation

must be for a legitimate business reason, and we must approve the new location. In connection with any relocation, your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant may not be closed for business for more than 30 days.

Your Franchise Agreement is for a specific location only, so you may not open additional *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurants under the same Franchise Agreement. You must obtain our prior approval to purchase and open additional *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurants. The approval or rejection by us shall be in our sole discretion. In order to purchase an additional *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant(s), you must be in compliance with your existing Franchise Agreement(s), you must qualify to operate additional restaurants, you must enter into our then-current form of Franchise Agreement and pay the initial franchise fee, and we must approve the location.

#### Area Representatives

During the term of your ARA, if applicable and so long as you are not in default of that ARA or any individual Franchise Agreements you may have under the ARA, you will be granted an exclusive ARA Territory in which to operate as a franchise broker and provide certain support services to NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchisees located within your ARA Territory that are sold and opened after the effective date of your ARA. The ARA Territory shall be agreed upon before you sign the ARA. The ARA Territory will be a defined geographic region and its boundaries will be identified as either: (i) political subdivisions, such as counties, cities, or states; or (ii) natural geographic boundaries, such as rivers or mountains. Once you have developed all of the locations according to the development schedule in your ARA, you will have no additional development obligations to maintain the exclusivity of your ARA Territory. You will have no right of first refusal to acquire additional franchises within contiguous territories or within the territorial boundaries as indicated in your ARA. You will have no right of first refusal to acquire additional franchises within contiguous territories or within the territorial boundaries as indicated in your ARA. There is no minimum sales quota at the individual unit level to maintain your ARA Territory. We may terminate the ARA in the event you fail to meet the development schedule. We retain the right to promote and establish NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchises within your ARA Territory subject to your rights as an Area Representative to earn and receive a portion of the revenues generated from the franchisees in the ARA Territory that are sold and opened after the effective date of your ARA. For so long as your ARA is in force, we will not sell another ARA for NrGize Lifestyle Cafe within your ARA Territory. However, we have the right to sell an ARA within your ARA Territory for any of our other guick service restaurant concepts.

Your ARA is for a specific defined ARA Territory only. You must obtain our prior approval to purchase an additional ARA Territory. The approval or rejection by us shall be in our sole discretion. In order to purchase an additional ARA Territory, you must be in compliance with your existing ARA and Franchise Agreement(s) (if applicable), you must qualify to purchase an additional ARA Territory, you must enter into our then-current form of ARA and pay the Initial Development Fee, and we must approve the ARA Territory.

### ITEM 13: TRADEMARKS

We will grant you the non-exclusive right to operate the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* specified in your Franchise Agreement or any amendments to your Franchise Agreement under the *NrGize* trademark. You will also be granted the right to use our other current or future trademarks that we may from time to time designate as being available for use by franchisees in the *NrGize* System. By "trademarks" we mean trade names, trademarks, service marks, logos, Trade Dress (as defined

below), and product identifiers used to identify your Franchised Business. "Trade Dress" is defined as the total appearance and image of the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant, smoothie and fruit drink combinations and packaging, graphics of *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurants and the smoothie and fruit drink combinations and packaging, all advertising and marketing techniques used to promote the franchise, as well as specifically including all signage, menu boards, product displays, and any color schemes and designs utilized in connection with *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurants' interior walls, counters, table tops, chairs, and floors. You must not directly or indirectly contest our right to our trademarks.

You will not have the exclusive right to use the trademarks, nor will you acquire, by use or otherwise, any right, title or interest in or to the trademarks, other than as expressly contained in, and limited by, the Franchise Agreement. Your right to use the trademarks is limited and temporary. Upon expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement, you may not, directly or indirectly, use the trademarks in any manner or for any purpose, and you may be required by us to renovate the premises of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant to eliminate the trademarks and de-identify such premises to remove all Trade Dress, returning it to a "vanilla shell," at your expense.

TRADEMARK	REGISTRATION DATE	REGISTRATION NUMBER
NRGIZE (word mark)	June 17, 2008	3,448,361
NRGIZE (word mark)	August 26, 2008	3,491,598
NrGize Lifestyle Cafe design	December 15, 2009	3,724,788
NrGize Lifestyle Cafe design	March 9, 2010	3,756,820

The following trademarks have been registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office on the Principal register:

All affidavits of use required to be filed to maintain these registrations have been filed.

There are no applications pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office at this time.

No one other than us or our affiliates has an ownership interest in the above-referenced trademarks. Kahala Franchising is the sole owner of the above-referenced trademarks and has all right, title, and interest in and to the trademarks and the goodwill symbolized thereby in accordance with an Assignment Agreement made effective as of August 6, 2010 by and between Kahala Franchise Corp., the Assignor, and Kahala Franchising, the Assignee. This Assignment Agreement transferred the ownership of these trademarks to Kahala Franchising. In addition, the Assignment Agreement be terminated.

No agreements limit our right to use or license the use of our trademarks. You must follow our rules when you use our trademarks. Use of the service marks or trademarks must be accompanied by the registration ( $^{(B)}$ ), service mark ( $^{(SM)}$ ), trademark ( $^{(TM)}$ ) in close proximity to the trademark. You cannot use our trademarks as part of your corporate, partnership, limited liability company or other entity name, or register it as a trade name. You may not use our trademarks in connection with the sale of an unauthorized product or service or in a manner not authorized in writing by us. You may not directly or indirectly contest or aid in contesting the validity of the trademarks or the ownership of the trademarks by us, nor may you directly or indirectly apply to register or otherwise seek to use or control our trademarks or any confusingly similar variation or form in the United States or any other country, nor may you assist any others to do so. You must modify or discontinue the use of a trademark if we modify or discontinue it, at your sole cost. You must immediately notify us of any apparent infringement of, or challenge to your use of, any of our trademarks, or any claim by any person of any rights in any of our trademarks. You must not communicate with any person other than us and our legal counsel in connection with any such infringement, challenge or claim. We will have the sole discretion to take such action as we may deem appropriate to protect our trademarks and the right to exclusively control any litigation, United States Patent and Trademark Office proceeding, or other proceeding arising out of any such infringement, challenge or claim or otherwise relating to our trademarks. The Franchise Agreement does not require us to take affirmative action when notified of these uses or claims, but indicates we have the sole discretion to take such action as we may deem appropriate. You must execute such documents, render such assistance, and do such acts and things as may, in the opinion of our counsel, be necessary or advisable to protect and maintain our interests in our trademarks.

The Franchise Agreement requires that we will indemnify and hold you harmless for, from and against any and all claims, liabilities, causes of action, demands, obligations, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of any claim of infringement or unfair competition in connection with your use of our trademarks, provided that such use is in accordance with the provisions of the Franchise Agreement.

We may, in our sole discretion, modify or discontinue use of any of the above-referenced trademarks and/or use one or more additional or substitute service marks or trademarks. If we decide to do so, you must do so also, at your own expense. The Franchise Agreement does not provide you any additional rights if we require you to modify or discontinue using a trademark. However, if we require you to modify or discontinue use of our trademarks and/or use other trademarks in its place at any time other than upon renewal of the Franchise Agreement, and that requirement is a direct result of proceedings or litigation that determined that our and our franchisees' use of the trademarks infringed upon a third party's rights, we will bear the cost of those modifications or discontinuances.

We do not know of any superior prior rights or infringing uses or effective material determinations of the United States Patent and Trademark Office, Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, trademark administrator of this state or of any court, nor do we know of any pending infringement, opposition or cancellation proceeding that could materially affect your use of our trademark. We do not know of any pending material federal or state court litigation regarding our use or ownership rights in the above registered trademarks or pending applications.

As stated in the Master Facility License Agreement, you do not have any rights to use any intellectual property of LA Fitness, including any of its trademarks or service marks, if your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* is located within an LA Fitness health club.

### ITEM 14: PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

We own proprietary information and rights in numerous items, such as menu formats, advertising designs, processes, techniques, formulae for *NrGize* drinks and smoothies, the method of production and storage of products and information contained in the Operations Manuals and related documents. In connection with the operation of the franchise, we may disclose to you certain information in which we claim proprietary rights. For example, our Operations Manuals incorporate certain information that we believe is protected under the law of trade secrets, including sales and marketing techniques and restaurant operations. In addition, although we have not registered the copyright with the United States Copyright Office, the Operations Manuals are protected against unauthorized copying under United States Copyright laws for 100 years from the

date of creation or 75 years from the date of publication, whichever is shorter. You must use the proprietary information only in the manner required by us and in no other manner. This information is strictly confidential and you may not disclose it to any person, or use any of that information for any purpose, except disclosure to a person who has signed and delivered to us the "Confidentiality Agreement" included in the Operations Manuals, and you may only use this information as necessary in connection with the operation of your Franchised Business. In addition, you must fully and strictly comply with all security measures required by us for maintaining the confidentiality of all information designated by us as trade secrets.

No agreements limit our right to use or license the use of our statutory copyright of the Operations Manuals.

If you reproduce any items or materials suitable for copyright protection, you must make sure that each item bears a copyright notice in the form specified by us. You must use the proprietary information only in the manner required by us and in no other manner. This information is strictly confidential and you may not disclose to any person or use any of that information for any purpose, except disclosure to a person who has signed and delivered to us a confidentiality agreement, and use as necessary in connection with the operation of your Franchised Business. In addition, you must fully and strictly comply with all security measures required by us for maintaining the confidentiality of all information designated by us as trade secrets.

You will not have the exclusive right to use the innovations or any of our patents or patent applications, copyrights or proprietary information, nor will you acquire, by use or otherwise, any right, title or interest in or to the innovations, the copyrights or the proprietary information, other than as expressly contained in, and limited by, the Franchise Agreement. Your right to use the innovations, the claimed subject matter of any patents or patent applications, the copyrights and the proprietary information is limited and temporary. Upon expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement, you may not, directly or indirectly, use the innovations, the claimed subject matter of any patents or patent applications, the copyrights or the proprietary information in any manner or for any purpose whatsoever.

You must immediately notify us of any conduct that could constitute infringement of or challenge to the innovations, the patents or patent applications, the copyrights and our proprietary information. We will decide, in our sole discretion, whether to institute any action in connection with infringement of or challenge to the innovations, the patents or patent applications, the copyrights and our proprietary information, and will control all proceedings and litigation. The Franchise Agreement does not require us to take affirmative action when notified of infringement, but indicates we have the sole discretion to take such action as we may deem appropriate. We are not required to protect your right to use the innovations, the patents or patent applications, the copyrights and proprietary information. As indicated in the Franchise Agreement, we will indemnify you for all damages for which you are held liable in any lawsuit arising out of your proper use of the innovations, the patents or patent applications, the patents or patent applications in compliance with the Franchise Agreement.

We may, in our sole discretion, modify or discontinue use of the innovations, the patents or patent applications, the copyrights and our proprietary information and/or use other information and/or rights in its place. If we decide to do so, you must do so also, at your expense. The Franchise Agreement does not provide you any additional rights if we require you to modify or discontinue use of the innovations, the patents or patent applications, the copyrights and our proprietary information. However, if we require you to modify or discontinue use of the innovations, the patents or patent applications, the copyrights and our proprietary information and/or rights in its place at any time other than upon renewal of the Franchise Agreement, and that requirement is a

direct result of proceedings or litigation that determined that our and our franchisees' use of the innovations, the patents or patent applications, the copyrights and the proprietary information infringed upon a third party's rights, we will bear the cost of those modifications or discontinuances.

We do not own any rights in any patents that are material to the franchise of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant. We have no pending patent applications that are material to the franchise. We do not know of any current material determinations of the United States Patent and Trademark Office, United States Copyright Office, or of any court, nor do we know of any effective determinations or any material proceedings pending in the United States Patent and Trademark Office or of any court regarding the patent application. We do not know of any patent or copyright infringement that could materially affect the franchisee.

# ITEM 15: OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS.

#### Franchise Agreement:

While the Franchise Agreement does not specifically require you or your principals to personally participate in the direct operation of the franchise, it is our intention to select as NrGize franchisees only those who plan to actively participate in the direct operation and daily affairs of the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe. The franchise must be personally managed with on-premises supervision and directly operated by you or another partner, shareholder or member of your business organization, or a manager who must have successfully completed the Training Program. If you are a married individual, your spouse must sign the Spousal Consent to the Franchise Agreement, and, if applicable, to the Use and Occupancy License or Sublease. Each person, corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity that owns, directly or indirectly, an equity interest in the franchised entity (a "Principal"), and each executive officer must sign the Personal Acceptance attached to the Franchise Agreement ("Personal Acceptance") in which the Principal agrees to be bound by the restrictive covenants, the confidentiality provisions and certain other provisions contained in the Franchise Agreement. Each Principal must also sign the Guaranty of Contract ("Guaranty of Contract") attached as an exhibit to the Franchise Agreement in which the Principal agrees to perform, and guarantees, all of the franchisee's obligations to us and our affiliates contained in the Franchise Agreement. (See Exhibit E: Franchise Agreement). If applicable, each Principal must also sign the Guarantee to the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, if applicable, in which the Principal agrees to perform, and guarantees, all of the franchisee's obligations to us and our affiliates contained in the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement (See Exhibit L: Single-Unit Facility License Agreement). We are not seeking to license you to operate an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe if your principals are merely seeking a passive investment.

We strongly recommend that you devote a substantial amount of time to your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant, whether or not you hire a manager. Franchisees that do not devote their full time efforts to the establishment and operation of their restaurants may have lower gross sales, higher operating costs and lesser name recognition in their areas than those franchisees that do devote their full efforts to the business. Examples of the types of functions that you might perform include supervision of employees, inventory checks, review of sales and food costs, local store marketing, bookkeeping and all reasonable efforts to ensure smooth and efficient operations.

Additionally, you must employ on a full time basis at least one (1) on-premises supervisor (the "Manager") for the restaurant. The Manager of the restaurant must at all times be a person who meets our criteria as a qualified restaurant operator. The Manager is not required to have any

equity interest in the Franchised Business. The identity of the Manager must be disclosed to us, and if the Manager changes, you must notify us in writing no later than 15 days following the change. If the Manager is replaced, the new Manager must also complete the Training Program at your sole cost and expense. The Manager must devote his or her entire time during normal business hours to the management, operation and development of the Franchised Business and must maintain the confidentiality of the trade secrets and proprietary information, comply with the use of the proprietary marks, conform to the covenants not to compete, and conform with the operating standards in the Franchise Agreement and Operations Manuals. The Manager is required to sign a Confidentiality Agreement included in the confidential Operations Manuals.

In the interest of safe and efficient job performance, business operation and public health and safety, you must have a Manager on each shift who is able to read and understand our written materials and communicate with your employees and customers in the English language. This requirement will not restrict the Manager or your employees from speaking in any other language with you, other employees or customers, and shall not apply to any employee while on personal time or breaks.

All personnel employed by you in connection with the operation of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant must maintain standards of sanitation, cleanliness and demeanor as may be established by us. All personnel must wear a uniform or other clothing approved by us. In addition, you must ensure that all employees whose duties include customer service have sufficient literacy and fluency in the English language (or such other language that is the primary language in your market) to adequately serve the public at your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant.

#### Area Representative Agreement:

If you are a corporation, limited liability company, partnership, or other business entity, all guarantors must sign the Agreement to be Bound and to Guarantee, which is an exhibit to the Area Representative Agreement. A guarantor is any shareholder, member, partner, or person who owns a five percent (5%) or greater interest in the Area Representative.

### ITEM 16: RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

We require that your business is solely that of an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe, and you may not conduct any other business or activity at the site of the restaurant without our prior written approval. For traditional NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchises, you must offer the full menu prescribed by us, subject to change from time to time in our sole discretion. Non-traditional NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchises may offer a more limited menu than the traditional NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchises, as detailed in the Operations Manuals. We have the right to require you to sell additional authorized products and services from time to time that we believe will be successful. You will be obligated to offer and sell those new products and to participate in all local, regional, seasonal and promotional programs, initiatives and campaigns adopted by us in which we require you to participate. We reserve the right to designate which of our franchisees may, or will be required to, participate in new product or service tests, new or modified product or service offerings and other programs and initiatives that we may periodically develop. If we designate you for participation in any such program, initiative or campaign, you must participate when and as required by us. There are no limits on our right to require you to offer and sell those new products or to participate in those programs, initiatives and campaigns. You may not add any item to your menu unless it is first researched and tested through our research and development center and approved by us in writing. In addition, you may not offer or sell any products or services specified by us in any configuration, form or manner (including items for resale) other than those specifically approved by us. You are prohibited from offering or selling any products or services not authorized or approved by us. You

may only use products, materials, ingredients, supplies, paper goods, uniforms, fixtures, furnishings, signs, equipment, POS System, debit and credit card and Gift/Loyalty Card processing service, and methods of product preparation and delivery that meet our requirements as specified in the confidential Operations Manuals.

If we believe in good faith that any product offered by you may be unhealthy, unsafe or unsanitary, and we request that you discard that product, you must do so immediately. In addition, we may require you to close your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant until we are satisfied that any unhealthy, unsafe or unsanitary condition has been completely corrected.

## ITEM 17: RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

#### THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

	Provision	Section in Franchise Agreement	Summary
a.	Length of the Term of the Franchise	Section 1.4	Term is the earlier of the following: (i) the ten (10) year anniversary of the date the restaurant opens to the public or, if you are acquiring an already operating restaurant, the effective date of your Franchise Agreement; or (ii) the expiration of the term of the real estate lease for the premises of the Franchised Business, excluding any extension or other renewal options. <u>If the franchise is to be located within an LA Fitness health club</u> : Term is the earlier of the following: (i) the five (5) year anniversary of the date of the Franchise Agreement; (ii) the expiration of the term of the single-unit facility license agreement for the premises of the Franchised Business; (iii) the termination or expiration of the Master Facility License Agreement; or (iv) the date that LA Fitness ceases operating a health club at the location where the Franchised
b.	Renewal or extension of the Term	Article 13	Business is located.If you are not in default and satisfy certain conditions, you may renew for the shorter of the following: (i) ten (10) years; or (ii) the term of the new lease for the premises of the Franchised Business excluding any extensions or renewal options.If the franchise is to be located within an LA Fitness health club:If you are not in default and satisfy certain conditions, you may renew for the shorter of the following: (i) five (5) years; or (ii) the term of the new single-unit facility license agreement for the premises of the Franchised Business.

	Provision	Section in Franchise Agreement	Summary
C.	Requirements for you to renew or extend	Article 13	"Renewal" means to sign a renewal Franchise Agreement (which will be in the form of the Franchise Agreement then customarily used by us in the granting of franchises) and all other agreements then customarily used by us in the granting of franchises. The renewal Franchise Agreement may have materially different terms and conditions than the original Franchise Agreement, including higher royalty and advertising fees. If offered, you must: give 120 days' notice prior to the expiration date of the term; not be in default; be in compliance with the terms of the Franchise Agreement and Operations Manuals; not have received more than 3 notices of default or breach of the Franchise Agreement during its term, nor more than 2 such notices during the 5 years immediately before the proposed renewal date; have a premises; sign a new Franchise Agreement which may have materially different terms and conditions than the original Franchise Agreement; pay a renewal fee; remodel or refurbish if necessary; and be current on all financial obligations to us.
d.	Termination by you	Not Applicable	
e.	Termination by us without cause	Not Applicable	
f.	Termination by us with cause	Sections 14.1 and 16.12	We can terminate only if you are in default under the Franchise Agreement or any other Franchise Agreements between you and us.
g.	"Cause" defined— defaults that can be cured	Sections 14.1 and 14.2	You have an immediate cure period of less than 24 hours to cure defaults of your violation of our social media policy regarding posting content containing public displays of affection, confidential information, violations of health or safety standards, foul or obscene language, or images that have not consented to. You have 24 hours to cure defaults of your violation of (i) any law, regulation, or order; (ii) our standards relating to health, sanitation, or safety; or (iii) our policy regarding posting defamatory or offensive comments on social medium sites. You have 48 hours to cure defaults of your violation of our social media policy where you hold out your social medium site to be the official site of <i>NrGize Lifestyle Cafe</i> . You have 7 days to cure defaults of failure to (i) pay us monies owing; or (ii) maintain insurance. You have 14 days to cure other defaults, except those which have no cure period. If a statute in the state or municipality in which the Franchised Business is located requires application

	Provision	Section in Franchise Agreement	Summary
		-	of that state or municipal law, and that statute requires a cure period for the applicable default which is longer than the cure period listed in the Franchise Agreement, the statutory cure period will apply.
h.	"Cause" defined— defaults that cannot be cured	Sections 12, 14.1 and 14.2	Non-curable defaults: failure to open your restaurant within the time period listed in your Franchise Agreement, transferring or attempting to transfer your Franchise Agreement or Franchised Business to a third party, bankruptcy, insolvency and similar events; conviction of felony; repeated defaults even if previously cured; abandonment; trademark misuse; breach of confidentiality or non-competition covenants; fraud with respect to obligations under the Franchise Agreement, and intentionally underreporting weekly Gross Sales.
i.	Your obligations on	Section 14.5	Obligations include complete de-identification and
j.	termination/non-renewal Assignment of contract by us	Section 12.5	payment of amounts due us (also see "r" below). No restriction on our right to assign.
k.	"Transfer" by you— definition	Section 12.1	<ul> <li>(i) Any act or circumstance by which ownership or control in the franchisee changes; (ii) any transfer of any right under the Franchise Agreement or transfer of the Franchised Business; or (iii) any transfer of the assets (including, but not limited to, equipment, fixtures, leasehold improvements and goodwill) located at the premises of the Franchised Business or used in the operation of the Franchised Business.</li> </ul>
Ι.	Our approval of transfer by franchise owner	Section 12.1	We have the right to approve all transfers, but we will not unreasonably withhold approval.
m.	Conditions for our approval of transfer	Section 12.3	New franchise owner qualifies, no existing defaults, transfer and training fees paid, new franchisee completes training for two individuals (additional fee for additional individuals trained), release signed by you, new agreements signed.
n.	Our right of first refusal to acquire your business	Section 12.2	We can match any offer for your business.
0.	Our option to purchase your business	Section 12.2	We can match any offer for your business.
p.	Your death or disability	Section 12.4	If representative of franchisee wants the Franchised Business to continue operating, it must be transferred within 90 days to an approved buyer. Upon non-compliance, all of franchisee's rights under the Franchise Agreement will be automatically terminated.

	Provision	Section in Franchise Agreement	Summary
q.	Non-competition covenants during the term of the franchise	Section 14.6	No involvement in any competing business.
r.	Non-competition covenants after the Franchise Agreement is terminated or expires	Section 14.6	No competing business for 2 years, within 10 miles of another <i>NrGize Lifestyle Cafe</i> or LA Fitness health club.
S.	Modification of the Agreement	Sections 4.5 and 16.14	Confidential Operations Manuals subject to change at any time; otherwise no modifications unless in writing and signed by both parties.
t.	Integration/merger clause	Section 16.15	Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement are binding (subject to state law). Any representations or promises outside the Disclosure Document and Franchise Agreement may not be enforceable.
u.	Dispute resolution by arbitration or mediation	Not Applicable	
۷.	Choice of forum	Section 16.3	Litigation must be in Maricopa County, Arizona.
W.	Choice of law	Section 16.3	Except to the extent governed by the United States trademark laws or the franchise laws of any state, Arizona law applies.

See <u>Exhibit E</u>: Franchise Agreement and State Addenda.

## Single-Unit Facility License Agreement (only applies if your NrGize franchise is located within an LA Fitness health club)

	Provision	Section in Single-Unit Facility License Agreement	Summary
a.	Length of the Term of the Franchise	Section 2	Term is the earlier of the following: (i) the five (5) year anniversary of the date of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement; (ii) the termination of the Master Facility License Agreement; (iii) the termination of Kahala Holdings' right of access to the LA Fitness site where your Franchised Business is located; (iv) the date that LA Fitness ceases operating a health club at the location where the Franchised Business is located; or (v) the expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement.

	Provision	Section in Single-Unit Facility License Agreement	Summary
b.	Renewal or extension of the Term	Section 2	There is no renewal term under the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement; however, if the terms of the Franchise Agreement and the Master Facility License Agreement (in whole or in part, as that Agreement relates to your <i>NrGize Lifestyle Cafe</i> ) are extended, Kahala Holdings and franchisee may extend the Term of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement for a coterminous period. Operator may extend the term for one five-year period (the "Extension Term") subject to approval by LA Fitness, which approval is in the sole discretion of LA Fitness.
C.	Requirements for you to	Not	If offered, you must give 120 days' notice prior to the
d.	renew or extend Termination by you	Applicable Not	expiration date of the term.
u.	remination by you	Applicable	
e.	Termination by us without cause	Section 2 and Section 15	The Single-Unit Facility License Agreement can only be terminated by us or our affiliate, Kahala Holdings, without cause upon one of the following events: (i) the termination of the Master Facility License Agreement; (ii) the termination of Kahala Holdings' right of access to the LA Fitness site where your Franchised Business is located; or (iii) if LA Fitness ceases operating a health club at the location where the Franchised Business is located.
f.	Termination by us with cause	Section 10(b)	We can terminate only if you are in default.
	"Cause" defined— defaults that can be cured	Sections 10(a)(ii) and 10(a)(vii)	(i) You have five days to cure any default for failure to pay any amounts owing under the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement; and (ii) you have three days to cure any default regarding failure to perform any other material provision of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement.
h.	"Cause" defined— defaults that cannot be cured	Sections 10(a)(i); 10(a)(iii-vi); and 10(a)(viii-xii)	Non-curable defaults: (i) failure to begin operating <i>NrGize Lifestyle Cafe</i> by deadline in Franchise Agreement; (ii) <i>NrGize Lifestyle Cafe</i> is closed for 10 days in any 12-month period when the LA Fitness it is located in is open; (iii) bankruptcy, insolvency and similar events; (iv) failure to obtain or maintain insurance; (v) assignment of Franchised Business by franchisee without obtaining prior approval of Kahala Holdings; (vi) repeated defaults even if previously cured; (vii) failure to comply with the LA Fitness health club rules and regulations; (viii) offering any product or service at the <i>NrGize Lifestyle Cafe</i> that is not authorized by LA Fitness; (ix) violation of the non-disclosure provision; and (x) any material breech of any other agreement between franchisee and

	Provision	Section in Single-Unit Facility License Agreement	Summary
			Kahala Franchising or any of its affiliates, including Kahala Holdings.
i.	Your obligations on termination/non-renewal	Section 11	Obligations include: (i) payment of amounts due Kahala Holdings, its parent, subsidiaries and affiliates; and (ii) immediately vacate premises in the same condition when received, ordinary wear and tear excepted (also see "r" below).
j.	Assignment of contract by us	Section 9(a)	No restriction on our right to assign; however, Kahala Holdings shall deliver written notice of such assignment to franchisee within 5 days after being effective.
k.	"Transfer" by you— definition	Section 9(b)	Franchisee must obtain prior written consent of Kahala Holdings.
I.	Our approval of transfer by franchise owner	Section 9(b)	We have the right to approve all transfers, but we will not unreasonably withhold approval.
m.	Conditions for our approval of transfer	Section 9(b)	Approval by Kahala Franchising for the assignment of the Franchise Agreement.
n.	Our right of first refusal to acquire your business	Not Applicable	
0.	your business	Not Applicable	
р.	Your death or disability	Not Applicable	
q.	Non-competition covenants during the term of the franchise	Not Applicable	
r.	Non-competition covenants after the Franchise Agreement is terminated or expires	Not Applicable	
S.	Modification of the Agreement	Section 16(e)	May only be modified in writing and signed by both parties.
t.	Integration/Merger Clause	Section 16(e)	Only the terms of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement are binding (subject to state law). Any representations or promises outside the Disclosure Document and Single-Unit Facility License Agreement may not be enforceable.
U.	Dispute resolution by arbitration or mediation	Section 14(a)	Arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Arbitration Act, and with the then existing rules of the American Arbitration Association for commercial arbitration. Each party shall be entitled to conduct reasonable discovery in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The arbitration shall be binding and shall survive the termination of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement. Judgment on the award

Provision	Section in Single-Unit Facility License Agreement	Summary
		of the arbitration may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction.
v. Choice of forum	Section 14(a)	Arbitration must be in the county in which the <i>NrGize Lifestyle Cafe</i> is located.
w. Choice of law	Section 14(b)	Except to the extent governed by the United States trademark laws or the franchise laws of any state, the law of the state where the LA Fitness heath club in which the <i>NrGize Lifestyle Cafe</i> is located in applies.

#### THE AREA REPRESENTATIVE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the area representative and related agreements. You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

Provision	Section in Area Representative Agreement*	Summary
a. Term of the franchise	14	Initial term of 10 years.
b. Renewal or extension of the term	14	Renewal term of 10 years.
c. Requirements for you to renew or extend	14	"Renewal" means to sign a renewal ARA (which will be in the form of the ARA then customarily used by us in the granting of territories to Area Representatives). You must be (and have been during the term of the ARA) in good standing; you must have been in substantial compliance with the Business Plan(s); provide timely notice of intent to renew; pay the renewal fee; Kahala Franchising has not notified you that it objects to the renewal and returns the renewal fee to you; and sign then-current Area Representative Agreement and sign a general release.
d. Termination by you	Not applicable	You may terminate the Area Representative Agreement on any grounds available by law.
e. Termination by the Franchisor without Cause	Not applicable	
f. Termination by the Franchisor with Cause	15	See (g) and (h)

Provision	Section in Area Representative Agreement*	Summary
g. "Cause" defined– defaults which can be cured	15(a)(i), (a)(vii) and (a)(viii)	Failure to pay us or an affiliate money owed; Failure to obtain or maintain licenses, registrations or permits, if circumstances were beyond the reasonable control of Area Representative; Failure to provide information requested by us in connection with updating or supplementing the Franchise Disclosure Document with respect to Area Representative; Holding yourself out to be an official page of, or video produced by, Kahala Franchising or the <i>NrGize Lifestyle Cafe</i> brand on any form of social medium; Posting defamatory or offensive comments, confidential information, inappropriate displays of public affection, violations of health or safety standards, foul or obscene language, or unapproved images or information about anyone on any social medium site.
h. "Cause" defined-defaults which cannot be cured	13(h); 15(a)(ii) through 15(a)(vii), and 15(a)(ix) through 15(a)(xiii)	Repetitive defaults of material provisions within a 12- month period; Repetitive monetary defaults within an 18-month period; Your bankruptcy; Your insolvency; Failure to satisfactorily complete the franchisee Training Program and/or Area Representative Training Program within 30 days of the Effective Date of the Area Representative Agreement; Termination of a Franchise Agreement or other Area Representative Agreement; Unapproved transfer; Failure to transfer to an approved transferee within 90 days of death; Failure to obtain or maintain licenses, registrations or permits, if circumstances were not beyond the reasonable control of the Area Representative; If you misrepresent or commit fraud in connection with any information or statements; If you fail to comply with any material federal, state or local law or regulation applicable to the operation of your business unless you diligently contest any governmental determination of such failure to comply; If you or any Principal is (or has been) convicted by a trial court of, or has plead guilty or no contest to, a felony or other crime or offense that may adversely affect our goodwill or reputation, our products or the Service Marks; If you or any Principal engage in any conduct that violates any law, regulation or ordinance or commits an act of moral turpitude.
i. Your obligations on termination /non-renewal	16	You will forfeit all fees paid; will receive no payment for good will; must return Area Representative Operating Manual and our other property; must cease marketing franchises and development rights; will receive no further payments; and pay all amounts outstanding to us and our affiliates within 10 days.

Provision	Section in Area Representative Agreement*	Summary
j. Assignment of contract by the franchisor	24	No restrictions.
k. "Transfer" by you-definition	13(a), 13(c), 13(g)(ii), 13(h)	Any transfer of an equity interest in Area Representative and any merger or consolidation of Area Representative; assignment of any right granted under the Area Representative Agreement; transfer of a majority-owned interest in Area Representative; and upon your death, disability or dissolution of marriage, an approved transfer must be made within 90 days.
I. Franchisor approval of transfer by you	13, 15(a)(ix), (m), 24	Our approval must be obtained before any transfer may be made; you must be in good standing to obtain approval.
m. Conditions for the Franchisor's approval of transfer	13	Give us written notice of the terms of the transfer, financial and other information about the transferee and pay a Transfer Fee; the transfer must be for cash; we may exercise our right of first refusal or approve or disapprove of the transfer; if we approve the transfer, the transferee must sign the then-current form of Area Representative Agreement and attend and satisfactorily complete the training program before the closing; the transferee's Principals, officers and employees must be bound by the restrictive covenants, the confidentiality provisions and certain other provisions contained in the Area Representative Agreement; and you must sign a general release of us and our affiliates, pay all amounts outstanding and cure any breaches; you will remain liable for the transferee's obligations under the Area Representative Agreement arising from any negligence or willful misconduct that occurred prior to transferring your Area Representative Agreement.
n. Franchisor's right of first refusal to acquire your business	13(d) and 13(e)	If you want to transfer your rights, we have the right to purchase the rights on the same terms as the transferee.
o. Franchisor's option to purchase your business	13(d), 13(e)	We will notify Area Representative within 30 days after we receive the Required Materials (as defined in the ARA) whether we wish to purchase your rights under the ARA. If we do wish to purchase your rights under the ARA, the transaction will be completed within 60 days after receipt of the Required Materials and at the same terms and conditions offered by the transferee.

Provision	Section in Area Representative Agreement*	Summary
p. Your death or disability	13(h) and 15(a)(xi)	Upon your death or disability, your rights must be transferred to an approved transferee within 90 days.
q. Non-competition covenants during the term of the franchise	12; Exhibit G (Agreement to be Bound and to Guarantee); Exhibit H (Restrictive Covenant)	You and your Principals, officers, managers and employees may not operate a business that (a) manufactures, produces, markets or sells smoothies, blended fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements within or outside of, or for consumption within or outside of, the United States or (b) solicits licensees or franchisees, or offers or sells licenses or franchises, to market or sell smoothies, blended fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements.
r. Non-competition covenants after the franchise is terminated or expires	12; (Exhibit G (Agreement to be Bound and to Guarantee); Exhibit H (Restrictive Covenant)	For the two-year period after the expiration or termination of the Area Representative Agreement, you and your Principals, officers, managers and employees may not operate a business that (a) manufactures, produces, markets or sells smoothies, blended fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements within or outside of, or for consumption within or outside of, the United States or (b) solicits Licensees or franchisees, or offers or sells licenses or franchises, to market or sell smoothies, blended fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements.
s. Modification of the agreement	25	Area Representative Operating Manual may be modified by us without your approval; rules, regulations, policies and procedures may be issued and modified without your approval; all fees (including all initial development fees, royalties, advertising fees and fees and payments relating to audits, transfers, additional training, consulting, interest, late payments or reports and liquidated damages) may be modified without your approval; otherwise, no modifications may be made without both parties' approval.
t. Integration /Merger Clause	27; 38	Only the terms of the Area Representative Agreement are binding (subject to state law). Any representations or promises outside the Disclosure Document and Area Representative Agreement may not be enforceable.
u. Dispute resolution by arbitration or mediation	Not applicable	
v. Choice of Forum	30	Except to the extent governed by the franchise laws of any state, litigation must be in Maricopa County, Arizona.

Provision	Section in Area Representative Agreement*	Summary
w. Choice of Law	30; Exhibit G (Agreement to be Bound and to Guarantee) –15; Exhibit H (Restrictive Covenant) –9(c)	Except to the extent governed by the United States trademark laws or the franchise laws of any state, Arizona law applies.

See Exhibit Q: Area Representative Agreement, State Addenda and General Release.

# ITEM 18: PUBLIC FIGURES

We currently do not use any public figure to promote our *NrGize* franchise System.

## ITEM 19: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC's Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

We do not make any representations about a franchisee's future financial performance or the past financial performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing outlet or ARA Territory, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet or outlets within the ARA Territory. If you receive any other financial performance information or projection of your future income, you should report it to the franchisor's management by contacting Chris Henry, Executive Vice President of Development & Licensing, Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., 9311 E. Via De Ventura, Scottsdale, Arizona 85258; (480) 362-4800, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.

# ITEM 20: OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

#### Table No. 1

#### Systemwide Outlet Summary For years 2009 to 2011

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
Outlet Type	Year	Outlets at the Start of the Year	Outlets at the End of the Year	Net Change
Franchised	2009	68	90	+22
	2010	90	104	+14
	2011	104	99	-5
Company-	2009	0	4	+4
Owned	2010	4	6	+2
	2011	6	4	-2
Total Outlets	2009	68	94	+26
	2010	94	110	+16
	2011	110	103	-7

#### Table No. 2

## Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners (other than the Franchisor) For years 2009 to 2011

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3
State	Year	Number of Transfers
Arizona	2009	0
	2010	0
	2011	1
California	2009	1
	2010	0
	2011	2
Connecticut	2009	0
	2010	1
	2011	0
Georgia	2009	0
	2010	0
	2011	0
Illinois	2009	0
	2010	1
	2011	0

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3
State	Year	Number of Transfers
New Jersey	2009	0
	2010	0
	2011	0
New York	2009	0
	2010	0
	2011	0
Pennsylvania	2009	0
	2010	1
	2011	1
Texas	2009	0
	2010	0
	2011	2
Total	2009	1
	2010	3
	2011	6

#### Status of Franchised Outlets For years 2009 to 2011

Col. 1	Col.2	Col.3	Col.4	Col. 5	Col. 6	Col. 7	Col. 8	Col. 9
State	Year	Outlets at Start of Year	Outlets Opened	Termina- tions	Non- renewals	Reacquired by Franchisor	Ceased Operations – Other Reasons	Outlets at End of the Year
Arizona	2009	5	2	1	0	0	0	6
	2010	6	0	0	0	0	0	6
	2011	6	0	0	0	1	1	4
California	2009	15	5	0	0	0	0	20
	2010	20	1	0	0	0	3	18
	2011	18	1	0	0	0	1	18
Colorado	2009	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2010	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2011	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
Connecticut	2009	4	0	0	0	0	0	4
	2010	4	1	0	0	0	0	5
	2011	5	0	0	0	0	0	5

Col. 1	Col.2	Col.3	Col.4	Col. 5	Col. 6	Col. 7	Col. 8	Col. 9
State	Year	Outlets at Start of Year	Outlets Opened	Termina- tions	Non- renewals	Reacquired by Franchisor	Ceased Operations – Other Reasons	Outlets at End of the Year
Florida	2009	4	13	0	0	0	1	16
	2010	16	1	0	0	0	2	15
	2011	15	1	1	0	0	1	14
Georgia	2009	4	1	0	0	0	2	3
	2010	3	4	0	0	0	0	7
	2011	7	1	0	0	0	1	7
Illinois	2009	4	0	0	0	0	0	4
	2010	4	1	0	0	0	1	4
	2011	4	0	1	0	0	1	2
Indiana	2009	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2010	1	1	0	0	0	0	2
	2011	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
lowa	2009	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2010	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
	2011	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
Michigan	2009	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
-	2010	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2011	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
Minnesota	2009	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
	2010	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2011	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
New Jersey	2009	2	3	0	0	0	0	5
-	2010	5	2	0	0	0	0	7
	2011	7	1	0	0	0	0	8
New York	2009	4	3	0	0	0	0	7
	2010	7	1	0	0	0	1	7
	2011	7	2	0	0	0	0	9
Oregon	2009	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
-	2010	1	1	0	0	0	0	2
	2011	2	0	0	0	0	1	1
Pennsylvania	2009	2	5	1	0	0	0	6
-	2010	6	1	0	0	0	0	7
	2011	7	0	0	0	0	2	5
Texas	2009	17	2	3	0	0	5	11
	2010	11	4	0	0	0	0	15
	2011	15	4	2	0	0	3	14
Virginia	2009	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
-	2010	0	2	0	0	0	0	2
	2011	2	1	0	0	0	0	3

Col. 1	Col.2	Col.3	Col.4	Col. 5	Col. 6	Col. 7	Col. 8	Col. 9
State	Year	Outlets at Start of Year	Outlets Opened	Termina- tions	Non- renewals	Reacquired by Franchisor	Ceased Operations – Other Reasons	Outlets at End of the Year
Washington	2009	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
	2010	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
	2011	2	1	1	0	0	1	1
Washington	2009	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
D.C.	2010	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2011	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
Wisconsin	2009	2	0	0	0	0	1	1
	2010	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2011	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
Totals	2009	68	36	5	0	0	9	90
	2010	90	21	0	0	0	7	104
	2011	104	13	5	0	1	12	99

# Status of Company Owned Outlets For years 2009 to 2011

Col. 1	Col.2	Col.3	Col.4	Col. 5	Col. 6	Col. 7	Col. 8
State	Year	Outlets at Start of Year	Outlets Opened	Outlets Reacquired from Franchisee	Outlets Closed	Outlets Sold to Franchisee	Outlets at End of the Year
Arizona	2009	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2010	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2011	0	0	1	0	0	1
Georgia	2009	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2010	0	1	0	0	0	1
	2011	1	0	0	0	0	1
Illinois	2009	0	1	0	0	0	1
	2010	1	1	0	0	0	2
	2011	2	0	0	2	0	0
Oregon	2009	0	1	0	0	0	1
	2010	1	0	0	0	0	1
	2011	1	0	0	1	0	0
Texas	2009	0	1	0	0	0	1
	2010	1	0	0	0	0	1
	2011	1	0	0	0	0	1

Col. 1	Col.2	Col.3	Col.4	Col. 5	Col. 6	Col. 7	Col. 8
State	Year	Outlets at Start of Year	Outlets Opened	Outlets Reacquired from Franchisee	Outlets Closed	Outlets Sold to Franchisee	Outlets at End of the Year
Virginia	2009	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2010	0	1	0	0	1	0
	2011	0	0	0	0	0	0
Washington	2009	0	1	0	0	0	1
	2010	1	0	0	0	0	1
	2011	1	0	0	0	0	1
Totals	2009	0	4	0	0	0	4
	2010	4	3	0	0	1	6
	2011	6	0	1	3	0	4

#### Projected Openings As Of December 31, 2011

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4
State	Franchise Agreements Signed But Outlet Not Opened	Projected New Franchised Outlets In The Next Fiscal Year	Projected New Company-Owned Outlets in the Next Fiscal Year
California	4	2	0
Kansas	1	0	0
Michigan	1	0	0
Minnesota	1	1	0
Nevada	1	0	0
New York	1	3	0
Texas	1	2	0
Utah	1	0	0
Total	11	8	0

A list of the names of all franchisees and the address and telephone number of each of their restaurants is attached to this Disclosure Document as <u>Exhibit P</u>.

We had 18 franchise owners who had an outlet terminated, canceled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the Franchise Agreements during the year ending December 31, 2011. We also had six (6) franchise owners who had an outlet transfer during the year ending December 31, 2011. We have not had any franchisees who have not communicated with us for the 10-week period before the date of this Disclosure Document. The name, city and state and current business telephone number, or if unknown, the last known home telephone number or email address, of these franchisees are as follows:

# Franchisees who had an outlet terminated, canceled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the Franchise Agreements

	Franchisee Company	Franchisee Name	City	State	Telephone Number or Email Address
1	NicholsMTNrgize, LLC	Michael Nichols	Queen Creek	AZ	(480) 298-0485
2	Freak Fuel LLC	Stephanie and Rafat Musallam	Tucson	AZ	musall5@hotmail.com
3		Priscilla and Chris Miller	San Diego	CA	(858) 775-4355
4	Morgan Holdings, Inc.	Keith Morgan	Cape Coral	FL	(239) 218-9483
5		Jason Graf	Ft. Lauderdale	FL	(954) 683-8280
6		Tamara Garnett	Oxford	GA	(202) 327-1088
7		Sandra Greebel and Ari Greebel	Chicago	IL	(773) 297-1314
8		Dustin Hegreberg	South Elgin	IL	(630) 202-0891
9	Satyam and Poorna Creamery Inc.	Balaji and Jyothsna Chunduri	Harrisburg	PA	(717) 580-9601
10	Life Cafe, LLC	Mark Sullivan	Irwin	PA	(724) 420-8116
11	JKL Synergy LLC	Sylvie Chenier	Allen	тх	(469) 658-5119
12		Richard Threlkeld	Arlington	тх	(214) 850-1558
13	Desmarla, Inc.	Vernon Catron	Flower Mound	ТХ	(254) 220-9774
14	R Monroe LLC	Rachael Monroe	Katy	тх	(832) 623-2834
15	Maxout Nutrition, LLC	Esther Nawas	Sugar Land	тх	(281) 773-5664
16		Hee Tae Kim	Bellevue	WA	maybackboy@yahoo.com
17	Nrgize Northwest, Inc.	Brad and Nicole Van Parys	Tacoma	WA	(866) 846-2727
18		Brad Van Parys	Tacoma	WA	(866) 846-2727

	Franchisee Company	Franchisee Name	City	State	Telephone Number or Email Address
1	Body Balance, Inc.	Caitlyn Lai	Irvine	CA	(714) 856-9888
2	Just JEF, Inc.	Joseph Francis	Riverside	CA	(951) 780-8658
3	Chandler 2100, Inc.	Richard Klang	Bayside	NY	rjkindustries@gmail.com
4	Promax Neutraceuticals, LLC	Stanley Mannino and Chandra Polam	Corapolis	PA	(404) 661-3438
5	Carlo M Juice Bar, L.C.	Carl and Lois Martin	Carrollton	ТХ	(972) 695-6274
6		Wajiha Waheed	Houston	ΤХ	(773) 510-4011

#### Franchisees who had an outlet transfer

We also had no franchisees that had their Franchise Agreements terminated during the year ending December 31, 2011 for restaurants that were not open. We had no franchisees that transferred their Franchise Agreements during the year ending December 31, 2011 for restaurants that were not yet open.

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system. Some of our franchisees have signed confidentiality clauses during the last three fiscal years. In some instances, current and former franchisees sign provisions restricting their ability to speak openly about their experience with the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchise system. You may wish to speak with current and former franchisees, but be aware that not all such franchisees will be able to communicate with you.

If you are purchasing a company-owned outlet from one of our affiliates that was previously owned by a franchisee but is now owned and operated corporately by our affiliate, we will provide you with an addendum to this Disclosure Document disclosing additional information for that outlet for the last five fiscal years. A sample form of the addendum is attached to this Disclosure Document as <u>Exhibit U.</u>

There are no trademark-specific franchisee organizations associated with the franchise system being offered under this Disclosure Document that have been created, sponsored or endorsed by us.

# Area Representatives

#### Table No. 1

#### Systemwide Area Representative Agreement Summary For years 2009 to 2011

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3	Column 4	Column 5
Outlet Type	Year	Area Representative Agreements at the Start of the Year	Area Representative Agreements at the End of the Year	Net Change
Area	2009	6	9	+3
Representative	2010	9	8	-1
Agreements	2011	8	7	-1
Company-	2009	0	0	0
Owned	2010	0	0	0
	2011	0	0	0
Total Area	2009	6	9	+3
Representative	2010	9	8	-1
Agreements	2011	8	7	-1

#### Table No. 2

#### Transfers of ARAs from Area Representatives to New Area Representatives (other than the Franchisor) For years 2009 to 2011

Column 1	Column 2	Column 3		
State	Year	Number of Transfers of Area Representative Agreements		
All States	2009	0		
	2010	0		
	2011	0		
Total	2009	0		
	2010	0		
	2011	0		

Col. 1	Col.2	Col.3	Col.4	Col. 5	Col. 6	Col. 7	Col. 8	Col. 9
State	Year	ARAs at Start of Year	New ARAs	Termina- tions	Non- renewals	Reacquired by Franchisor	Ceased Operations – Other Reasons	ARAs at End of the Year
Delaware	2009	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
	2010	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2011	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
Florida	2009	1	1	0	0	0	0	2
	2010	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
	2011	2	0	1	0	0	0	1
Maryland	2009	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
	2010	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2011	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
New Jersey	2009	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
	2010	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2011	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
New York	2009	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2010	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2011	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
Oregon	2009	1	0	1	0	0	0	0
	2010	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2011	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Pennsylvania	2009	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
	2010	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2011	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
Texas	2009	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2010	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2011	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
Washington	2009	2	0	1	0	0	0	1
	2010	1	0	1	0	0	0	0
	2011	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Totals	2009	6	5	2	0	0	0	9
	2010	9	0	1	0	0	0	8
	2011	8	0	1	0	0	0	7

# Status of Area Representative Agreements For years 2009 to 2011

Col. 1	Col.2	Col.3	Col.4	Col. 5	Col. 6	Col. 7	Col. 8
State	Year	Outlets at Start of Year	Outlets Opened	Outlets Reacquired from Franchisee	Outlets Closed	Outlets Sold to Franchisee	Outlets at End of the Year
All States	2009	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2010	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2011	0	0	0	0	0	0
Totals*	2009	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2010	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2011	0	0	0	0	0	0

#### Status of Company-Owned Area Representative Agreements For years 2009 to 2011

\* Note that territories that are not owned and serviced by an Area Representative are serviced by Kahala Franchising or its affiliate.

#### Table No. 5

#### Projected New Area Representative Agreements As Of December 31, 2011

State	Area Representative Agreements Signed But Not Yet Effective	Projected New Area Representative Agreements In The Next Fiscal Year
All States	0	0
Total	0	0

A list of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of our Area Representatives is attached to this Disclosure Document as <u>Exhibit S</u>. We had one (1) Area Representative who had its Area Representative Agreement terminated, canceled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business during the year ending December 31, 2011. We had no Area Representatives who transferred their Area Representative Agreement during the year ending December 31, 2011. We have not had any Area Representatives who have not communicated with us for the 10-week period before the date of this Disclosure Document. The name, city and state and current business telephone number, or if unknown, the last known home telephone number, of the Area Representative who had its ARA terminated is as follows:

	Company Name	Area Representative Name	City	State	Telephone Number
	Morgan Holdings,		Cape		
1	Inc.	Keith Morgan	Coral	FL	(239) 218-9483

If you buy this Area Representative Agreement, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the system. Some of our Area Representatives have signed confidentiality clauses during the last three years. In some instances, current and former Area Representatives sign provisions restricting their ability to speak openly about their experience with the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchise system. You may wish to speak with current and former Area Representatives, but be aware that not all such Area Representatives will be able to communicate with you.

#### ITEM 21: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attached to this Disclosure Document as <u>Exhibit T</u> are the unaudited financial statements of Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., for the six months ended June 30, 2012 (THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HAVE BEEN PREPARED WITHOUT AN AUDIT. PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEES OR SELLERS OF FRANCHISES SHOULD BE ADVISED THAT NO INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT HAS AUDITED THESE FIGURES OR EXPRESSED AN OPINION WITH REGARD TO THEIR CONTENT OR FORM). Also attached are our balance sheets as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 and our statements of operations, stockholders equity and cash flows as of December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, along with the independent auditor's reports. Kahala Corp. does <u>not</u> absolutely and unconditionally guarantee to assume the duties and obligations of Kahala Franchising to the franchisee under the Franchise Agreement.

#### ITEM 22: CONTRACTS

A copy of the Purchase and Sale Agreement (including the exhibits) with the Promissory Note and Security Agreement (if applicable) that you will be required to sign if you buy a corporateowned restaurant from our affiliate is attached as <u>Exhibit D</u> to this Disclosure Document. A copy of the Franchise Agreement (including the exhibits) that you will be required to sign is attached as <u>Exhibit E</u> to this Disclosure Document. A copy of the Addendum to the Franchise Agreement for SBA Loans that you will be required to sign if you are obtaining an SBA loan is attached as <u>Exhibit</u> <u>F</u>. A copy of the Lease Guaranty Acknowledgment is attached as <u>Exhibit H</u>. A copy of the Lease Negotiation Acknowledgment is attached as <u>Exhibit I</u>. A copy of the Lease Procurement Acknowledgment is attached as <u>Exhibit J</u>. A copy of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement (for LA Fitness locations only) is attached as <u>Exhibit L</u> to this Disclosure Document. A copy of the Addendum to the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement for SBA Loans is attached as <u>Exhibit M</u> to this Disclosure Document. A copy of the Release and Consent Agreement to Assignment of Franchised Business is attached as <u>Exhibit N</u> to this Disclosure Document. A copy of our Area Representative Agreement and General Release is attached as <u>Exhibit Q</u> to this Disclosure Document.

#### ITEM 23: RECEIPTS

<u>Exhibit V</u> to this Disclosure Document is a detachable receipt. You are to keep one copy and return the other copy to us.

# <u>EXHIBIT A</u>

# TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

State Addenda to Franchise Disclosure Document

#### ADDENDUM TO THE KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

THE FOLLOWING PARAGRAPHS ARE ADDED TO THE END OF ITEM 17:

- A. THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE DELIVERED TOGETHER WITH THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.
- B. Neither the franchisor, franchise broker nor any person in Item 2 of the Disclosure Document are subject to any currently effective order of any National Securities Association or National Securities Exchange, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78A et seq., suspending or expelling such person from membership in such association or exchange.
- C. The Franchise Agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy. This provision may not be enforceable under Federal Bankruptcy Law. (11 U.S.C.A. Sec. 101 et seq.).
- D. The Franchise Agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the termination of the Franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.
- E. The Franchise Agreement requires application of the laws of the State of Arizona. This provision may not be enforceable under California Law.
- F. Section 31125 of the California Corporations Code requires us to give you a disclosure document, in a form containing the information that the commissioner may by rule or order require, before a solicitation of a proposed material modification of an existing franchise.
- G. YOU MUST SIGN A GENERAL RELEASE IF YOU RENEW OR TRANSFER YOUR FRANCHISE. CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE §31512 VOIDS A WAIVER OF YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW (CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE §§31000 THROUGH 31516).
- H. BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE §20010 VOIDS A WAIVER OF YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE FRANCHISE RELATIONS ACT (BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE §§20000 THROUGH 20043).
- I. California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights to the franchisee concerning termination or non-renewal of a franchise. If the Franchise Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control.
- J. The Franchise Agreement contains a liquidated damages clause. Under California Civil Code § 1671, certain liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable.
- K. If the Franchisee resides in the State of California or the franchised business is located within the State of California, the venue for any dispute may be within the State of California.

#### ADDENDUM TO THE KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF HAWAII

These franchises will be/have been filed under the Franchise Investment Law of the State of Hawaii. Filing does not constitute approval, recommendation or endorsement by the Director of Commerce and Consumer Affairs or a finding by the Director of Commerce and Consumer Affairs that the information provided herein is true, complete and not misleading.

The Franchise Investment Law makes it unlawful to offer or sell any franchise in this state without first providing to the prospective franchisee, or subfranchisor, at least seven days prior to the execution by the prospective franchisee of any binding franchise or other agreement, or at least seven days prior to the payment of any consideration by the franchisee, or subfranchisor, whichever occurs first, a copy of the Disclosure Document, together with a copy of all proposed agreements relating to the sale of the franchise.

This Disclosure Document contains a summary only of certain material provisions of the Franchise Agreement. The contract or agreement should be referred to for a statement of all rights, conditions, restrictions and obligations of both the franchisor and the franchisee.

A Federal Trade Commission rule makes it unlawful to offer or sell any franchise without first providing this Disclosure Document to the prospective franchisee at the earlier of (1) fourteen calendar days before the signing of any franchise or related agreement; or (2) fourteen calendar days before any payment. The prospective franchisee must also receive a Franchise Agreement containing all material terms at least seven calendar days prior to the signing of the Franchise Agreement.

If this Disclosure Document is not delivered on time, or if it contains a false, incomplete, inaccurate or misleading statement, a violation of federal and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington D.C. 20580 <u>and</u> to Hawaii Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs which administers and enforces the Hawaii Franchise Disclosure Act.

Registered agent in the state authorized to receive service of process:

Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs Business Registration Division Commissioner of Securities Securities Compliance Branch 335 Merchant Street, Room 203 Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

1. The following paragraph is added to Item 17:

Section 482E-6(3) of the Hawaii Revised Statutes provides that upon termination or refusal to renew the Franchise Agreement, Kahala Franchising is obligated to

compensate you for the fair market value, at the time of the termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement, of your inventory, supplies, equipment and furnishings purchased from Kahala Franchising or a supplier designated by Kahala Franchising; provided that personalized materials which have no value to us need not be compensated for. If Kahala Franchising refuses to renew a Franchise Agreement for the purpose of converting your business to one owned and operated by Kahala Franchising, Kahala Franchising, in addition to the remedies provided above, shall compensate you for the loss of goodwill. Kahala Franchising may deduct from such compensation reasonable costs incurred in removing, transporting and disposing of your inventory, supplies, equipment and furnishings pursuant to this requirement, and may offset from such compensation any monies due Kahala Franchising.

2. The following list reflects the status of the franchise registration of the Franchisor in the states which require registration:

A. The states in which this proposed registration is effective: California.

B. The states in which this proposed registration is or will be shortly on file: Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, Rhode Island, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

C. The states, if any, which have refused, by order or otherwise, to register these franchises: None.

D. The states, if any, which have revoked or suspended the right to offer these franchises: None.

E. The states, if any, in which the proposed registration of these franchises has been withdrawn by the Franchisor: None.

3. Section 482E-3(a) of the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law requires the franchisor to give you a copy of the Franchise Disclosure Document at least 7 calendar days prior to signing the franchise agreement. The Receipt is amended to reflect the 7 calendar-day waiting period.

#### ADDENDUM TO THE KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

1. Item 17.f is supplemented with the following language:

The conditions under which your Franchise Agreement may be terminated and your rights upon non-renewal may be affected by Illinois Law, 815 ILCS 705/19 and 705/20.

2. Items 17.f, 17.g, 17.t, 17.v, and 17.w are supplemented with the following language:

This summary applies to both the Franchise Agreement and the Area Representative Agreement.

3. The Summary in Item 17.v is deleted and replaced by the following Summary:

Litigation in Illinois.

4. The Summary in Item 17.w is deleted and replaced by the following Summary:

Illinois law applies.

5. Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act states that "any condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with any provision of this Act is void."

#### ADDENDUM TO THE KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF INDIANA

- 1. Item 17.c may be modified by Indiana Code § 23-2-2.7.
- 2. The Summary in Item 17.r. is deleted and replaced with the following Summary:

For two years after the termination of your Franchise Agreement, you may not establish a similar type of business within your exclusive territory.

3. Item 17.t is supplemented with the following language:

However, you do not waive any rights under the Indiana Statutes with regard to prior representations made by Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. in the Disclosure Document.

4. Items 17.v and 17.w are supplemented with the following language:

Except that under Indiana law, you may have the right to bring an action in Indiana, and have Indiana law apply.

- 5. The Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act, IC 23-2-2.7-1 (10) prohibits the limitation of litigation brought for breach of a Franchise Agreement including any limitation on the forum chosen. Any provision in the Franchise Agreement, specifying a forum contrary to Indiana law, shall not apply to any claims brought under the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act and/or the Indiana Franchise Act, Ind. Code ANN.§§ 1-51 (1994).
- 6. The Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act, IC 23-2-2.7-1 (10) prohibits the limitation of litigation brought for breach of a Franchise Agreement. Any provision in the Franchise Agreement requiring the application of another state's law shall not apply to any claims brought under the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act and/or the Indiana Franchise Act, Ind. Code ANN.§§ 1-51 (1994).
- 7. Indiana Code § 23-2-2.5-9(2) requires a franchisor to give you a copy of the Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of: (i) 10 days prior to signing the franchise agreement; or (ii) 10 days prior to franchisor's receipt of any consideration. The Receipt is amended to reflect the 10 day waiting period.

#### ADDENDUM TO THE KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND

1. Item 5 of the Franchise Disclosure Document and all agreements in this offering are amended to disclose the following:

All initial fees and payments shall be deferred until such time as the franchisor completes its initial obligations under the Franchise Agreement and/or under the Area Representative Agreement.

2. The following amends Item 11 and replaces the last sentence of paragraph 8.a. under the section titled "During the operation of the Franchised Business:"

A Franchisee may, at any time after 120 days following the end of the calendar year, obtain an accounting of expenditures for the Advertising Fund and any Cooperative Regional Funds for the entire preceding calendar year by submitting a written request to Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.'s Chief Financial Officer at the principal business address listed in Item 1 of the Franchise Disclosure Document.

3. The Summary in Item 17.v is deleted, and the following Summary is inserted in its place:

A Franchisee may file a civil lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought within three years after the grant of the franchise.

4. Item 17 is amended to disclose the following:

Any general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

5. The following paragraph is added to the end of Item 17:

The Franchise Agreement provides for termination upon Franchisee's bankruptcy. This provision may not be enforceable under Federal Bankruptcy Law (11 U.S.C. Section 101 et seq.).

#### ADDENDUM TO KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT <u>FOR THE STATE OF MICHIGAN</u>

Section 445.1508(1) of the Michigan Franchise Investment Law requires franchisor to give you a copy of the Franchise Disclosure Document earlier of: (i) 10 business days prior to signing the Agreement; or (ii) 10 business days prior to franchisor's receipt of any consideration.

#### THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE SOMETIMES IN THE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU:

(A) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(B) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude a franchisee, after entering into a Franchise Agreement, from settling any and all claims.

(C) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a Franchise Agreement prior to the expiration of its term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any lawful provision of the Franchise Agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

(D) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a Franchise Agreement without fairly compensating the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration, of the franchisee's inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchised business are not subject to compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i) the term of the Franchise Agreement is less than five (5) years; and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the Franchise Agreement or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the Franchise Agreement or the franchise does not receive at least six (6) months advance notice of franchisor's intent not to renew the Franchise Agreement.

(E) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a Franchise Agreement on terms generally available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not require a renewal provision.

(F) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall not preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration at a location outside this state.

(G) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

- (i) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor's then current reasonable qualifications or standards.
- (ii) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or subfranchisor.
- (iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all lawful obligations.
- (iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the franchisor or to cure any default in the Franchise Agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer.

(H) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the Franchise Agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c).

(I) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been made for providing the required contractual services.

### THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice shall be directed to:

STATE OF MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL ATTENTION: FRANCHISE SECTION P.O. BOX 30213 LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909 (517) 373-7117

#### ADDENDUM TO THE KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

1. The following legends are added to the Risk Factors on the Cover Page:

THESE FRANCHISES HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE MINNESOTA FRANCHISE ACT. REGISTRATION DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE COMMISSIONER OF SECURITIES OF MINNESOTA OR A FINDING BY THE COMMISSIONER THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE, COMPLETE, AND NOT MISLEADING.

THE MINNESOTA FRANCHISE ACT MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR SELL ANY FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE WHICH IS SUBJECT TO REGISTRATION WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE AT LEAST 7 DAYS PRIOR TO THE PAYMENT OF ANY CONSIDERATION, BY THE FRANCHISEE, WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF THIS PUBLIC OFFERING STATEMENT, TOGETHER WITH A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE FRANCHISE. THIS PUBLIC OFFERING STATEMENT CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF CERTAIN MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT SHOULD BE REFERRED TO FOR AN UNDERSTANDING OF ALL RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH THE FRANCHISOR AND THE FRANCHISEE.

IF THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS NOT DELIVERED ON TIME, OR IF IT CONTAINS A FALSE, INCOMPLETE, INACCURATE OR MISLEADING STATEMENT, A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL AND STATE LAW MAY HAVE OCCURRED AND SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20580 <u>AND</u> TO THE COMMISSIONER OF SECURITIES, DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, SECURITIES DIVISION, 85 7<sup>TH</sup> PLACE EAST, SUITE 500, ST. PAUL, MINNESOTA 55101, WHICH ADMINISTERS AND ENFORCES THE MINNESOTA FRANCHISE ACT.

2. The following paragraph is added to Item 13:

The franchisor will protect the franchisee's rights to use the trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes or other commercial symbols or indemnify the franchisee from any loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the name.

Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee's right to use the trademarks. Refer to Minnesota Statues, Section 80C.12, Subd. 1(g).

3. The following statement is added at the end of Item 17.c and 17.m:

Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent to a general release.

4. The following statement is added at the end of 17.v and 17.w.:

Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment

notes. In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or agreement(s) can abrogate or reduce (1) any of the franchisee's rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C or (2) franchisee's rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The franchisor may <u>seek</u> injunctive relief. See Minn. Rules 2860.4400J.

Also, a court will determine if a bond is required.

5. The following statement is added at the end of Item 17:

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.14, Subd. 3-5, which require (except in certain specified cases) (1) that a franchisee be given 90 days notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days notice for non-renewal of the franchise agreement and (2) that consent to the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld.

6. The Summary in Item 17.v is deleted, and the following Summary is inserted in its place:

The Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17, Subd. 5.

7. As of the date of this Disclosure Document, one (1) *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant is in operation in the State of Minnesota, no Area Representative Agreements are currently in effect in Minnesota, and one (1) Franchise Agreement is currently in effect in Minnesota.

#### ADDENDUM TO THE KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF NEW YORK

Information comparing franchisors is available. Call the state administrators listed in <u>Exhibit B</u> or your public library for sources of information. Registration of this franchise by New York State does not mean that New York State recommends it or has verified the information in this Disclosure Document. If you learn that anything in the Disclosure Document is untrue, contact the Federal Trade Commission and New York State Department of Law, Bureau of Investor Protection and Securities, 120 Broadway, 23<sup>rd</sup> Floor, New York, New York 10271.

The franchisor may, if it chooses, negotiate with you about items covered in the prospectus. However, the franchisor cannot use the negotiating process to prevail upon a prospective franchisee to accept terms which are less favorable than those set forth in this prospectus.

The Franchise Agreement and the other documents to be signed by the franchisee provide that we do not grant you any exclusive or protected territory for your restaurant.

The Franchise Agreement and the other documents to be signed by you further allow the franchisor to locate franchised or corporate-owned locations of food concepts similar to *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* in the immediate vicinity of your restaurant. There may also be locations of food concepts similar to *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* that are owned by affiliates of the franchisor already open and operating in the immediate vicinity of your restaurant.

Section 683.8 of the General Business Law of the State of New York requires franchisor to give you a copy of the Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of: (i) the first personal meeting; (ii) 10 business days before the execution of the Franchise Agreement; or (iii) 10 business days before the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

#### FACTORS TO BE CONSIDERED:

Any disputes, differences or controversies that arise pursuant to the Franchise Agreement or breach thereof shall be settled by litigation. All such proceedings shall be held in Phoenix, Arizona. This information should be taken into consideration in determining whether or not to purchase this franchise.

The franchisor represents that this prospectus does not knowingly omit any material fact or contain any untrue statement of a material fact.

#### ADDENDUM TO THE KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

ALTHOUGH THESE FRANCHISES HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW OF THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA, REGISTRATION DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS TRUE, COMPLETE, ACCURATE, OR NOT MISLEADING.

#### NORTH DAKOTA LAW MODIFICATIONS

1. The North Dakota Securities Commissioner requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with North Dakota Law, including the North Dakota Franchises Investment Law, North Dakota Century Code Annotated Chapter 51-19, Sections 51-19-01 through 51-19-17 (1993). To the extent that the Franchise Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. If the Franchisee is required in the Franchise Agreement to execute a release of claims or to acknowledge facts that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement, misrepresentation or action that would violate the Law, or a rule or order under the Law, such release shall exclude claims arising under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, and such acknowledgements shall be void with respect to claims under the Law.
- b. Covenants not to compete during the term and upon termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement are enforceable only under certain conditions according to North Dakota Law. If the Franchise Agreement contains a covenant not to compete which is inconsistent with North Dakota Law, the covenant may be unenforceable.
- c. If the Franchise Agreement requires litigation to be conducted in a forum other than the State of North Dakota, the requirement is void with respect to claims under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.
- d. If the Franchise Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of North Dakota, to the extent that such law conflicts with the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law will control.
- e. If the Franchise Agreement requires mediation or arbitration to be conducted in a forum other than the State of North Dakota, the requirement may be unenforceable under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. Arbitration involving a franchise purchased in the State of North Dakota must be held either in a location mutually agreed upon prior to the arbitration or if the parties cannot agree on a location, the location will be determined by the arbitrator.
- f. If the Franchise Agreement requires payment of a termination penalty, the requirement may be unenforceable under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

g. Section 51-19-08 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law requires franchisor to give you a copy of the Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of: (i) seven days prior to signing the franchise agreement; or (ii) seven days prior to franchisor's receipt of any consideration.

## 2. THE SECURITIES COMMISSIONER HAS HELD THE FOLLOWING TO BE UNFAIR, UNJUST OR INEQUITABLE TO NORTH DAKOTA FRANCHISEES (SECTION 51-19-09, N.D.C.C.):

- A. Restrictive Covenants: Franchise Disclosure Documents which disclose the existence of covenants restricting competition contrary to Section 9-08-06, N.D.C.C., without further disclosing that such covenants will be subject to the statute.
- B. Situs of Arbitration Proceedings: Franchise agreements providing that the parties must agree to the arbitration of disputes at a location that is remote from the site of the franchisee's business.
- C. Restrictions on Forum: Requiring North Dakota franchisees to consent to the jurisdiction of courts outside of North Dakota.
- D. Liquidated Damages and Termination Penalties: Requiring North Dakota franchisees to consent to liquidated damages or termination penalties.
- E. Applicable Laws: Franchise agreements which specify that they are to be governed by the laws of a state other than North Dakota.
- F. Waiver of Trial by Jury: Requiring North Dakota Franchises to consent to the waiver of a trial by jury.
- G. Waiver of Exemplary & Punitive Damages: Requiring North Dakota Franchisees to consent to a waiver of exemplary and punitive damage.
- H. General Release: Franchise Agreements that require the franchisee to sign a general release upon renewal of the franchise agreement.
- I. Limitation of Claims: Franchise Agreements that require the franchisee to consent to a limitation of claims. The statute of limitations under North Dakota law applies.
- J. Enforcement of Agreement: Franchise Agreements that require the franchisee to pay all costs and expenses incurred by the franchisor in enforcing the agreement. The prevailing party in any enforcement action is entitled to recover all costs and expenses including attorney's fees.

3. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, with respect to each such provision, are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

#### ADDENDUM TO THE KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND

## RHODE ISLAND LAW MODIFICATIONS

1. The Rhode Island Securities Division requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with Rhode Island law, including the Franchise Investment Act, R.I. Gen. Law. ch. 395 Sec. 19-28.1-1 – 19-28.1-34. To the extent that the Franchise Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. If the Franchise Agreement requires litigation to be conducted in a forum other than the State of Rhode Island, the requirement is void under Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act Sec. 19-28.1-14.
- b. If the Franchise Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of Rhode Island, to the extent that such law conflicts with Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act it is void under Sec. 19-28.1-14.
- c. If the Franchisee is required in the Franchise Agreement to execute a release of claims or to acknowledge facts that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement, misrepresentation or action that would violate the Act, or a rule or order under the Act, such release shall exclude claims arising under the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, and such acknowledgements shall be void with respect to claims under the Act.

2. Section 19-28.1-8 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act requires a franchisor to give you a copy of the Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of: (i) the first personal meeting; (ii) 10 business days before the execution of the franchise agreement; or (iii) 10 business days before the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

3. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, with respect to each such provision, are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

#### ADDENDUM TO KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT FOR THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

1. The Director of the South Dakota Division of Securities requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with South Dakota law, including the South Dakota Franchises for Brand-Name Goods and Services Law, South Dakota Codified Laws, Title 37, Chapter 37-5A, Sections 37-5A-1 through 37-5A-87 (1994). To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. If the Franchisee is required in the Agreement to execute a release of claims or to acknowledge facts that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement, misrepresentation or action that would violate the Law, or a rule or order under the Law, such release shall exclude claims arising under the South Dakota Franchises for Brand-Name Goods and Services Law, and such acknowledgements shall be void with respect to claims under the Law.
- b. Covenants not to compete upon termination or expiration of the Agreement are generally unenforceable in the state of South Dakota, except in certain limited instances as provided by law. If this Agreement contains a covenant not to compete which is inconsistent with South Dakota Law, the covenant may be unenforceable.
- Regardless of the terms of the Agreement concerning termination, if Franchisee fails to meet performance and quality standards or fails to make any royalty payments under the Agreement, Franchisee will be afforded thirty (30) days' written notice with an opportunity to cure the default before termination.
- If the Agreement requires payment of liquidated damages that are inconsistent with South Dakota law, the liquidated damage clause may be void under SDCL 53-9-5.
- e. If the Agreement requires litigation to be conducted in a forum other than the State of South Dakota, the requirement is void with respect to any cause of action otherwise enforceable under South Dakota Law.
- f. If the Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of South Dakota, matters regarding franchise registration, employment, covenants not to compete, and other matters of local concern will be governed by the laws of the State of South Dakota; but as to contractual and all other matters, the Agreement and all provisions of this Amendment will be and remain subject to the application, construction, enforcement, interpretation under the governing law set forth in the Agreement.
- g. If the Agreement requires that disputed between Franchisor and Franchisee be mediated/arbitrated at a location that is outside the State of South Dakota, the mediation/arbitration will be conducted at a location mutually agreed upon by the parties. If the parties cannot agree on location for the mediation/arbitration, the location shall be determined by the mediator/arbitrator selected.

2. Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the South Dakota Franchise Investment Law, with respect to each such provision, are met independent of this Addendum. This Addendum shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

#### ADDENDUM TO KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT FOR THE STATE OF VIRGINIA

1. The following amends Item 17 and is stated at the end of Item 17:

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or termination stated in the Franchise Agreement does not constitute "reasonable cause," as that term may be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable.

#### ADDENDUM TO THE KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

The State of Washington has a statue, RCW 19.100.180, which may supersede the Franchise Agreement in your relationship with the Franchisor, including the areas of termination and renewal of your Franchise Agreement. There may also be court decisions which may supersede the Franchise Agreement in your relationship with the Franchisor, including the areas of termination and renewal of your Franchise Agreement.

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW shall prevail.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee shall not include rights under the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial may not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the Franchisor's reasonable estimated or actual costs in effecting a transfer.

Surf City Squeeze, Inc., an affiliate of Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., filed for Bankruptcy Protection Code Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code on January 13, 1997. Full disclosure of the particulars of this filing is in Item 4 of this Disclosure Document.

Ranch\*1, Inc. and its subsidiaries, all affiliates of Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., filed for Bankruptcy Protection Code Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code on July 3, 2001. Full disclosure of the particulars of this filing is in Item 4 of this Disclosure Document.

Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, Wash. Rev. Code § 19.100.080 requires a franchisor to give you a copy of the Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of: (i) 10 business days prior to signing the franchise agreement; or (ii) 10 business days prior to franchisor's receipt of any consideration.

#### Effect of Washington Law on Termination

If any provisions governing termination or non-renewal disclosed herein are inconsistent with Washington law, then Washington law shall apply. The applicable law reads as follows:

#### (Revised Code of Washington)

"Section 19.100.180. Without limiting the other provisions of this chapter, the following specific rights and prohibitions shall govern the relation between the franchisor or subfranchisor and the franchisees:

#### \*\*\*\*\*

(2) For the purpose of this chapter and without limiting its general application, it shall be an unfair or deceptive act or practice or an unfair method of competition and therefore unlawful and violation of this chapter for any person to:

#### \*\*\*\*\*

(i) Refuse to renew a Franchise Agreement without fairly compensating the franchisee for the fair market value, at the time of expiration of the Franchise Agreement, or the franchisee's inventory, supplies, equipment, and furnishings purchased from the franchisor and good will, exclusive of personalized materials which have no value to the franchisor, and inventory, supplies, equipment and furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchised business: PROVIDED, that compensation need not be made to a franchisee for good will if: (i) the franchisee has been given one year's notice of nonrenewal; and (ii) the franchisor agrees in writing not to enforce any covenant which restrains the franchisee from competing with the franchisor: PROVIDED FURTHER, that a franchisor may offset against amounts owed to a franchisee under this subsection any amounts owed by such franchisee to franchisor.

(i) Terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term except for good cause. Good cause shall include, without limitation, the failure of the franchisee to comply with lawful material provisions of the franchise or other agreement between the franchisor and the franchisee and to cure such default after being given written notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than thirty days, to cure such default, or if such default cannot reasonably be cured within thirty days, the failure of the franchisee to initiate within thirty days substantial and continuing action to cure such default: PROVIDED, that after three willful and material breaches of the same term of the Franchise Agreement occurring within a twelve month period, for which the franchisee has been given notice and an opportunity to cure as provided in this subsection, the franchisor may terminate the Franchise Agreement upon any subsequent month period without providing notice or opportunity cure: PROVIDED FURTHER, that a franchisor may terminate a Franchise Agreement without prior notice or opportunity to cure a default if the franchisee: (i) is adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent; (ii) makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or similar disposition of the assets of the franchised business; (iii) voluntarily abandons the franchised business; or (iv) is convicted of or pleads guilty or no contest to a charge of violating any law relating to the franchised business. Upon termination for good cause the franchisor shall purchase from the franchisee at a fair market value at the time of termination, the franchisee's inventory and supplies, exclusive of: (i) personalized materials which have no value to the franchisor; (ii) inventory and supplies not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchised business; and (iii) if the franchisee is to retain control of the premises of the franchised business, any inventory and supplies not purchased from the franchisor or on his express requirement: PROVIDED, that a franchisor may offset against amounts owed to a franchisee under this subsection any amounts owed by such franchisee to the franchisor."

#### ADDENDUM TO THE KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF WISCONSIN

THESE FRANCHISES HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE WISCONSIN FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW. REGISTRATION DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE COMMISSIONER THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE, COMPLETE, AND NOT MISLEADING.

#### WISCONSIN LAW MODIFICATIONS

1. The Securities Commissioner of the State of Wisconsin requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, Wisconsin Statutes, Chapter 135 ("Fair Dealership Law"). To the extent that the Franchise Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. The Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, among other things, grants you the right, in most circumstances, to 90 days' prior written notice of non-renewal and 60 days within which to remedy any claimed deficiencies. If the Franchise Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, the provisions of the Franchise Agreement shall be superseded by the Law's requirements and shall have no force or effect.
- b. The Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, among other things, grants you the right, in most circumstances, to 90 days' prior written notice of termination and 60 days within which to remedy any claimed deficiencies. If the Franchise Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, the provisions of the Franchise Agreement shall be superseded by the Law's requirements and shall have no force or effect.
- c. If the Franchise Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of Wisconsin, to the extent that any provision of the Franchise Agreement conflicts with the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law such provision shall be superseded by the law's requirements.

2. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the Wisconsin law applicable to the provision are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

# <u>EXHIBIT B</u>

# TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Directory of State Agencies and Administrators

# DIRECTORY OF STATE AGENCIES AND ADMINISTRATORS

## **CALIFORNIA**

Commissioner of Corporations Department of Corporations 320 4<sup>th</sup> Street, #750 Los Angeles, CA 90013 (213) 576-7500

## <u>HAWAII</u>

Commissioner of Securities Dept. of Commerce and Consumer Affairs Business Registration Division Securities Compliance Branch 335 Merchant Street, Room 203 Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 (808) 586-2722

## **ILLINOIS**

Illinois Attorney General Chief, Franchise Division 500 South Second Street Springfield, IL 62706 (217) 782-4465

## INDIANA

Indiana Secretary of State Securities Division 302 West Washington Indianapolis, IN 46204 (317) 232-6685

## MARYLAND

Office of the Attorney General Securities Division 200 St. Paul Place Baltimore, Maryland 21202 (410) 576-6360

#### <u>MINNESOTA</u>

Department of Commerce Director of Registration 85 Seventh Place East, #500 St. Paul, MN 55101-2198 (651) 296-4026

## NEW YORK

State of New York Office of the Attorney General Investor Protection & Securities Bureau, Franchise Section 120 Broadway, 23<sup>rd</sup> Floor New York, NY 10271 (212) 416-8236

# NORTH DAKOTA

Securities Commissioner State Capitol Bismarck, North Dakota 58505 (701) 224-2910

## RHODE ISLAND

Director of the Rhode Island Department of Business Regulation, Securities Division John O. Pastore Complex, Building 69-1 1511 Pontiac Avenue Cranston, Rhode Island 02920 (401) 462-9500

# <u>VIRGINIA</u>

State Corporation Commission Division of Securities and Retail Franchising P.O. Box 1197 Richmond, VA 23209-1197 (804) 371-9051

## **WASHINGTON**

Department of Financial Institutions Securities Division P.O. Box 9033 Olympia, WA 98507-9033 (360) 902-8760

## <u>WISCONSIN</u>

State of Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions Division of Securities 345 West Washington Avenue 4th Floor Madison, WI 53703 P.O. Box 1768 Madison, WI 53701 (608) 266-3364

# EXHIBIT C

# TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Franchisor's Agent for Service of Process

# FRANCHISOR'S AGENT FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

## **ARIZONA**

CT CORPORATION SYSTEM 2394 E. Camelback Road Phoenix, AZ 85016

## **CALIFORNIA**

C T CORPORATION SYSTEM 818 W. Seventh Street Los Angeles CA 90017

## MARYLAND

MARYLAND SECURITIES COMMISSIONER 200 St. Paul Place Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020

## **MINNESOTA**

COMMISSIONER OF COMMERCE 85 Seventh Place East, Suite 500 St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-2198

## <u>HAWAII</u>

COMMISSIONER OF SECURITIES OF THE STATE OF HAWAII 335 Merchant Street, Room 203 Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

# **RHODE ISLAND**

Director Of The Rhode Island Department Of Business Regulation, Securities Division John O. Pastore Complex, Building 69-1 1511 Pontiac Avenue Cranston, Rhode Island 02920

## **ILLINOIS**

# VIRGINIA

ILLINOIS ATTORNEY GENERAL 500 South Second Street Springfield, Illinois 62706 CLERK OF THE STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION 1300 East Main Street, 1<sup>st</sup> Floor Richmond, Virginia 23219

If a state is not listed, Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. has not appointed an agent for service of process in that state in connection with the requirements of franchise laws. There may be states in addition to those listed above in which Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. has appointed an agent for service of process.

There may also be additional agents appointed in some of the states listed.

For states listed in Exhibit B, the agent for Service of Process is listed in Exhibit B.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. Attn: Kevin Blackwell 9311 E. Via De Ventura Scottsdale, Arizona 85258

# EXHIBIT D

# TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Form of Asset Purchase Agreement (For Sale of a Corporate Store or store located within an LA Fitness health club to a Franchisee)

And

Promissory Note and Security Agreement (if applicable)

## Asset Purchase Agreement

**AGREEMENT**, by and between **[KAHALA HOLDINGS, L.L.C.][KAHALA RESTAURANTS, L.L.C.]**, an Arizona Limited Liability Company ("Seller"), and \_\_\_\_\_\_, a [state] [Corporation/Limited Liability Company, etc.] ("Purchaser"), and shall be deemed entered into as of the date of signature of the last party or party represented to sign this Agreement ("Effective Date").

#### Recitals

- **A.** Seller owns and operates NrGize® restaurant #[store number] (the "Franchised Business") located at [store address, city and state] (the "Premises").
- **B.** Seller [Kahala Holdings, LLC] has executed a Master Facility License Agreement, as amended, with FITNESS INTERNATIONAL, LLC (formerly L.A. Fitness International, LLC), a California limited liability company ("LA Fitness"), with respect to the Premises.
- **C.** Seller desires to sell and transfer to Purchaser, and Purchaser desires to purchase and acquire from Seller, substantially all of the assets owned by Seller ("Agreement") and to be used in connection with the operation of the Franchised Business.
- **D.** In conjunction with the execution of this Agreement, Purchaser has executed a Franchise Agreement with Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company affiliated with Seller.
- E. In conjunction with the execution of this Agreement, Purchaser has executed a Single Unit Facility License with Seller and has complied with all terms and conditions contained therein.

## Agreement

**NOW, THEREFORE,** in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein, the parties hereby agree as follows:

**1.** <u>Sale of Assets</u>. At the Closing (as defined below), Seller shall sell, transfer, convey, assign and deliver to Purchaser, and Purchaser shall purchase and acquire from Seller, all of the furniture, fixtures and equipment and other items owned by Seller and to be used in connection with the Franchised Business (excluding cash, company record books and tax records) (collectively, the "Transferred Assets"), free and clear of all liens, claims, charges, encumbrances and security interests of any nature or type whatsoever. A list of the Transferred Assets is attached hereto as <u>Schedule 1</u> to <u>Exhibit A</u>. Seller makes no representation or warranty, express or implied, regarding the merchantability of the Transferred Assets or the condition or quality thereof AND HEREBY EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE and the parties hereby agree that the Transferred Assets are being purchased in as "AS IS" condition.

## 2. <u>Purchase Price</u>.

(a) In consideration of the sale of the Transferred Assets, Purchaser shall pay:

(i) Simultaneously with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, a nonrefundable deposit in the amount of XXX Thousand Dollars (**\$XX,000.00**) (the "Deposit" [or, if in cash] "Purchase Price"), in cash or by cashiers' or certified check; and

(ii) At the Closing, an amount equal to the difference between the Purchase Price (as defined below) minus the Deposit (such difference is referred to as the "Purchase Price Balance"), in cash or by cashiers' or certified check. OR (ii) XXX Thousand Dollars (**\$XXX,000.00**) (the "Deferred Payment"), payable as set forth in the attached Promissory Note (as defined below);

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, the term "Purchase Price" shall mean an amount equal to the sum of XXX Thousand Dollars and 00/100 (**\$XX,000.00**), which shall be allocated as follows: (i) Thirty-Two Thousand Dollars (**\$32,000.00**) to the initial franchise fee under the Franchise Agreement; (ii) XXX Thousand Dollars (**\$XX,000.00**) to the leasehold improvements and fixtures at the Premises; and (iii) XXX Thousand Dollars (**\$XX,000.00**) for the Transferred Assets, including all equipment, as more fully described in <u>Schedule 1</u> to <u>Exhibit A.</u>

**IF ENTERING INTO A PROMISSORY NOTE:** and (iv) One Hundred Dollars (**\$100.00**) to the UCC-1 filing fee associated with the Promissory Note.

The Purchase Price amount shall not include consumable inventory including, but not limited to, food products, perishables, paper products, cash on hand and other goods (collectively, "Consumable Inventory"). Purchaser shall pay Seller the amount of \$\_\_\_\_\_, in cash or by cashier's check, for the Consumable Inventory on the date of Closing.

## 3. <u>Representations and Warranties</u>.

(a) To induce Purchaser to enter into this Agreement and to perform Purchaser's obligations hereunder, and with full knowledge that Purchaser will rely thereon, Seller represents and warrants as follows:

[ (i) Seller has good title to and rightful possession of the Transferred Assets, and each of the Transferred Assets is and shall, upon the delivery thereof to Purchaser, be free and clear of all liens, claims, charges, encumbrances and security interests of any nature or type whatsoever. ]

## OR

[ (i) Within ninety (90) days of the Closing, Seller shall have good title to, and rightful possession of, the Transferred Assets, and each of the Transferred Assets shall be, upon the delivery thereof to Purchaser, free and clear of all liens, claims, charges, encumbrances and security interests of any nature or type whatsoever. If, after ninety (90) days of the Closing, the liens, claims, charges, encumbrances and security interests have not been released on the Transferred Assets, Seller shall replace the Transferred Assets with comparable equipment of equal or better

value of the Transferred Assets. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Seller has the right to transfer possession of the Transferred Assets as of the date hereof to Purchaser.]

(ii) Seller is a limited liability company duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the law of the State of Arizona.

(iii) Seller has full right, power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement, and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

(iv) This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by Seller and constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of Seller, enforceable against Seller in accordance with its terms.

(v) Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, will conflict with, violate or result in a breach of or default under (with or without the giving of notice or the passage of time, or both): (a) any license, instrument, contract or agreement to which Seller is a party or by which Seller is bound, or (b) the articles of incorporation or the bylaws of Seller. Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, will result in the creation of any lien, claim, charge, encumbrance or security interest of any nature or type whatsoever with respect to the Transferred Assets. Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, will require any consent or approval of, or any filing with, any governmental entity or other person.

(vi) At the Closing, the Transferred Assets are being purchased in as "AS IS" condition and will comprise all of the assets and property necessary to conduct the Franchised Business in accordance with Seller's Operating Manual.

(vii) The development and/or conduct of the Franchised Business, and the ownership and use of the Transferred Assets in accordance with Seller's Operating Manual, complies, or will (as of the Closing) comply, with all applicable federal, foreign, state and local laws, regulations and ordinances; provided, however, that Purchaser may be required to obtain certain licenses and permits in connection with the operation of the Franchised Business.

(b) To induce Seller to enter into this Agreement and to perform Seller's obligations hereunder, and with full knowledge that Seller will rely thereon, Purchaser represents and warrants as follows:

(i) Purchaser is a [type of entity] duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the law of the State of [state].

(ii) Purchaser has full right, power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement, and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

(iii) This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by Purchaser and constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of Purchaser, enforceable against Purchaser in accordance with its terms.

(iv) Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, will conflict with, violate or result in a breach of or default under (with or without the giving of notice or the passage of time, or both): (a) any license, instrument, contract or agreement to which Purchaser is a party or by which Purchaser is bound, or (b) the certificate of incorporation or the bylaws (or other comparable charter documents) of Purchaser. Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, will require any consent or approval of, or any filing with, any governmental entity or other person.

- (v) Purchaser acknowledges that:
  - (a) There are several potential locations for the location of Purchaser's NrGize® restaurant;
  - (b) The decision to establish and operate Purchaser's NrGize® restaurant at the Premises was made solely by Purchaser, without any reliance upon any information provided (if any), recommendation made (if any) or approval given by Seller, any area developer, CSCLC or any of their respective shareholders, directors, officers, employees, representatives, agents or affiliates;
  - (c) Seller's selection and approval of the Premises as a site for a NrGize® restaurant provides no assurance or guaranty as to Purchaser's results of operations in connection with its NrGize® restaurant at the Premises;
  - (d) Purchaser has reviewed the lease (including all amendments and addendums) with respect to the Premises, which is attached hereto as
     <u>Exhibit C</u> and approves of the terms thereof, including rental payment amounts;
  - (e) In connection with Purchaser's review of the lease (as described above), Purchaser has also reviewed the Lease Verification Checklist, attached hereto as <u>Exhibit D</u>, and acknowledges and approves of the terms thereof. Purchaser shall initial <u>Exhibit D</u> where indicated to acknowledge and agree to the terms contained therein; and
  - (f) Purchaser accepts full responsibility for the consequences of Purchaser's decision to open and operate a NrGize® restaurant at the Premises.

## 4. <u>Interim Period</u>.

(a) Between the date hereof and the Closing, Seller has operated the Franchised Business, in accordance with Seller's standard operating procedures for operating NrGize® restaurants and the Franchised Business is ready and open to the public for business.

(b) Within sixty (60) days of the date of Closing, Purchaser shall attend Seller's training program, if so required by Seller.

## 5. <u>Closing</u>.

(a) Subject to the conditions set forth in Sections 5(b) and 5(c) hereof, the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be consummated on \_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Closing") at Seller's office or at another mutually agreeable location.

(b) The obligations of Seller to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are subject to the satisfaction at or prior to the Closing of the following conditions, any of which may be waived by Seller, in its sole discretion. Purchaser shall use its best efforts to cause each and every one of the following conditions to be satisfied at or before the Closing.

[(i) Purchaser shall have delivered to Seller the [Purchase Price] or [Purchase Price Balance], in cash or by cashiers' or certified check;]

OR

[(i) Purchaser shall have executed and delivered to Seller the Promissory Note and Security Agreement attached hereto as **Exhibit B** (the "Promissory Note") in the amount of the Deferred Payment and a portion of the Purchase Price in the form of cash or by cashiers' or certified check;]

(ii) Purchaser shall have executed and delivered to Seller a Franchise Agreement and a Sublease or [Use and Occupancy License] with respect to the Premises, in the form then being executed by new franchisees of Seller, together with the franchise fee and the Premises rent and deposits contemplated thereby; and

(iii) The representations and warranties of Purchaser contained in this Agreement shall be true and correct on and as of the Closing, with the same effect as though such representations and warranties had been made on and as of the date of the Closing; and each and all of the terms, covenants, conditions and agreements to be performed or complied with by Purchaser on or before the Closing shall have been performed or complied with. This provision shall be self-executing, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement by Purchaser shall constitute Purchaser's certification of the conditions stated herein.

Assuming that Seller has satisfied all of the conditions precedent contained in Section 5(c), if any of the requirements of this Section 5(b) has not been satisfied by the Closing, Purchaser shall be in breach of its obligations hereunder.

(c) The obligations of Purchaser to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are subject to the satisfaction at or prior to the Closing of the following conditions, any of which may be waived by Purchaser, in its sole discretion. Seller shall use its best efforts to cause each and every one of the following conditions to be satisfied at or before the Closing.

(i) As of the Closing, there shall have been no material adverse change in the Franchised Business, the Transferred Assets or the Premises, or the condition thereof, since the date of this Agreement, other than changes contemplated by Section 5;

(ii) Seller shall have delivered to Purchaser the Bill of Sale <u>(Exhibit A)</u>, executed by Seller; and

(iii) The representations and warranties of Seller contained in this Agreement shall be true and correct on and as of the Closing, with the same effect as though such representations and warranties had been made on and as of the date of the Closing; and each and all of the terms, covenants, conditions and agreements to be performed or complied with by Seller on or before the Closing shall have been performed or complied with. This provision shall be selfexecuting, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement by Seller shall constitute Seller's certification of the conditions stated herein.

Assuming that Purchaser has satisfied all of the conditions precedent contained in Section 5(b) if any of the requirements of this Section 5(c) (other than the requirement contained in clause (i) if such material adverse change shall be beyond the control of Seller) has not been satisfied by the Closing, Seller shall be in breach of its obligations hereunder.

(d) The rent payable pursuant to the lease for the Premises shall be paid by Seller for the month in which the Closing occurs and Purchaser shall pay to Seller (on a per diem basis, based upon a 30-day month) an amount equal to the rent prepaid by Seller with respect to the period on and after the date of the Closing, via an ACH debit or Seller will bill Purchaser for such pro-rated rent amount.

(e) Seller shall be responsible for all compensation to employees of the Franchised Business for the period through the date of the Closing. Purchaser shall be responsible for all compensation to employees of the Franchised Business for the period on and after the date of the Closing. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, Purchaser shall not be obligated to employ any of Seller's employees after the Closing.

(f) Seller shall be responsible for all costs, fees and expenses relating to the Franchised Business, including but not limited to CAM reconciliation charges, property taxes, etc., on a pro-rated basis for the period through the date of Closing. Purchaser shall be responsible for all costs, fees and expenses relating to the Franchised Business, including but not limited to CAM reconciliation charges, property taxes, etc., on a pro-rated basis for the period on and after the date of the Closing.

6. <u>Notices</u>. All notices, consents, approvals or other instruments required or permitted to be given by either party pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and given by (a) hand delivery, (b) facsimile, (c) express overnight delivery service or (d) certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, and shall be deemed to have been delivered upon (i) receipt, if hand delivered, (ii) transmission, if delivered by facsimile, (iii) the next business day following the date of deposit with the delivery service, if delivered by express overnight delivery service, or (iv) the third business day following the day of deposit of such notice with the United States Postal Service, if sent by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested. Notices shall be provided to the parties at the addresses and facsimile numbers specified below:

If to Seller:	[Kahala Holdings, L.L.C.][Kahala Restaurants, L.L.C.] Attention: General Counsel 9311 East Via De Ventura Scottsdale, Arizona 85258 Telephone Number: (480) 362-4800 Facsimile Number: (480) 362-4797
If to Purchaser:	[name] [address] Telephone Number: Facsimile Number: OR Email:

Any party may change its address or facsimile number by giving notice in writing, stating its new address or facsimile number, to the other party to this Agreement as provided in the foregoing manner.

7. <u>Survival</u>. Each of the representations, warranties and covenants contained herein shall survive the Closing, irrespective of any investigation or inquiry made by, or any knowledge of, any party.

**8.** <u>Successors and Assigns</u>. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the parties and their respective assigns, legal representatives, executors, heirs and successors.

## 9. <u>Amendment, Modification or Waiver</u>.

(a) No amendment, modification or waiver of any condition, provision or term of this Agreement shall be valid or of any effect unless made in writing, signed by the parties and specifying with particularity the nature and extent of the amendment, modification or waiver. Waiver of any matter shall not be deemed a waiver of the same or any other matter on any future occasion.

(b) Failure on the part of any party to complain of any act or failure to act of the other party or to declare the other party in default, irrespective of how long the failure continues, shall not constitute a waiver by that party of its rights under this Agreement.

**10.** <u>Entire Agreement</u>. This Agreement, including the exhibits hereto, contains the entire understanding and agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings between the parties with respect to such subject matter. Each of the exhibits is incorporated in this Agreement by this reference and constitutes a part of this Agreement.

**11.** <u>**Counterparts.**</u> This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be considered one and the same agreement and shall become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by each of the parties and delivered to the other party.

12. <u>Arizona Law to Govern; Jurisdiction</u>. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the law of the State of Arizona, regardless of any conflict-of-law provisions to the contrary. Each party agrees that any litigation between the parties shall be commenced and maintained only in the courts located in the State of Arizona, and each party consents to the jurisdiction of such courts.

13. **Arbitration.** If any controversy or dispute arises between the parties related in any way to this Agreement or the relationship between the parties (including, without limitation, the performance, interpretation or application thereof), the controversy or dispute shall be settled by binding arbitration, except for controversies or disputes where provisional or injunctive relief is sought. To initiate a proceeding, either party shall serve upon the other a written notice stating that that party desires to have the controversy reviewed by an arbitrator and designating an arbitrator, who shall be an attorney having substantial experience in business or business transactions. If the other party objects to the first party's selection of an arbitrator and the parties cannot mutually agree upon the selection of an arbitrator within 30 days after service of the first party's written notice, the arbitrator, who shall be an attorney having substantial experience in business or business transactions shall be selected by the American Arbitration Association upon the written request of either party. Arbitration shall be conducted in Phoenix, Arizona in accordance with the rules then in force of the American Arbitration Association, and the decision and award of the arbitrator shall be binding upon both parties and may be entered in a court of competent jurisdiction. At the request of either party, the arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in secrecy. The costs and expenses of arbitration shall be paid by the nonprevailing party or, if neither party is determined by the arbitrator(s) to be the prevailing party, each party shall pay its own costs and expenses of arbitration plus 50% of the common costs and expenses (including the arbitrator(s)' fee).

**14.** <u>Attorneys' Fees</u>. In the event of any claim, controversy or dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, the prevailing party may recover reasonable attorneys' fees incurred in connection with any court or arbitration proceeding.

**15.** <u>**Remedies**</u> <u>**Cumulative**</u>. The remedies of the parties under this Agreement are cumulative and shall not exclude any other remedies to which any party may be lawfully entitled.

**16.** <u>**Captions.**</u> Captions used throughout this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not be considered in any manner in the construction or interpretation hereof.

**17.** <u>Additional Actions</u>. Each party agrees to do all acts and things and to make, execute and deliver such written instruments as may from time to time be reasonably required to carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement.

**18.** <u>Construction</u>. The parties acknowledge that each party was represented (or had the opportunity to be represented) by legal counsel in connection with this Agreement, the exhibits hereto and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and that each of them and its counsel have reviewed this Agreement, or have had an opportunity to do so, and that any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not be employed in the interpretation of this Agreement or any amendments or any exhibits hereto or thereto.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF,** the parties have entered into this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

## [KAHALA HOLDINGS, L.L.C.] [Na [KAHALA RESTAURANTS, L.L.C]

[Name of Purchaser]

By:\_\_\_

By:\_\_\_\_

Name: Title: Date: Name: Title: Date:

By:\_\_\_\_

Name: Title: Date:

### CONSENT OF SPOUSE

The undersigned is the spouse of the Franchisee identified in the Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of \_\_\_\_\_\_, between his or her spouse and [Kahala Restaurants][ Kahala Holdings] L.L.C. (the "Agreement"), to which this Consent of Spouse is attached.

The undersigned hereby declares that he or she has read the Agreement in its entirety and, being fully convinced of the wisdom and equity of the terms of the Agreement, and in consideration of the premises and of the provisions of the Agreement, the undersigned hereby expresses his or her acceptance of the same and does agree to its provisions.

The undersigned further agrees that in the event of the death of his or her spouse, the provisions of this Agreement will be binding upon him or her.

The undersigned further agrees that he or she will at any time make, execute and deliver such instruments and documents which may be necessary to carry out the provisions of the Agreement.

This instrument is not a present transfer or release of any rights which the undersigned may have in any of the community property of his or her marriage.

DATED \_\_\_\_\_

(Signature of Spouse)

(Print Name of Spouse)

# EXHIBIT "A"

(BILL OF SALE)

## EXHIBIT A Bill of Sale

BILL OF SALE, dated as of \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_, executed by [Kahala Holdings][ Kahala Restaurants] L.L.C. ("Grantor") in favor of [Name of Purchaser] ("Grantee").

FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Grantor does hereby convey, grant, bargain, sell, transfer, set over, assign, alien, remise, release, deliver and confirm unto Grantee, its successors and assigns forever, free and clear of all liens, security interests, claims, charges or encumbrances of any kind, the assets listed on **Schedule 1** attached hereto (collectively, the "Assets"), TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all of the Assets unto Grantee, its successors and assigns to their own use and behoof forever.

The following are excluded assets and are excluded from <u>Schedule 1</u>:

- a. Cash deposits, including, but not limited to, any utility and security deposits, banks accounts, certificates of deposit, securities or evidences of indebtedness received prior to and including the date of this Bill of Sale;
- b. Credit card or house accounts receiveable from sales generated from the Franchised Business and constituting a part thereof, prior to and including the date of this Bill of Sale, any other accounts receivable, or choses of action accruing on or before the Closing, as defined in the Asset Purchase Agreement; and
- c. Consumable inventory including, but not limited to, food products, perishables, paper products, cash on hand and other goods.

**EXECUTED** as of the date first set forth above.

Grantor:

[Kahala Holdings][Kahala Restaurants], L.L.C.

By:\_\_\_

Name: Title:

#### Schedule 1 to Bill of Sale List of Assets

1. All telephone numbers used in connection with the Franchised Business, including, without limitation, the following:

2. All leasehold improvements associated with the Franchised Business.

3. All goodwill associated with the Franchised Business.

4. All of Grantor's furniture, fixtures and equipment, appliances and personal property located at the Franchised Business, including, without limitation, the following:

Quantity Description

Serial Number

## EXHIBIT B PROMISSORY NOTE AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

(Applicable only if Purchaser enters into a Promissory Note and Security Agreement)

#### PROMISSORY NOTE AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

Principal Amount: [\$AMOUNT]

Scottsdale, Arizona [DATE]

1. <u>Promise to Pay</u>. For value received, [NAME], a [\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ corporation / limited liability company] (hereinafter referred to as the "Maker" or "you"), promises to pay to the order of **KAHALA [RESTAURANTS][HOLDINGS], L.L.C.**, an Arizona limited liability company (the "Holder," "we" or "us"), at 9311 East Via De Ventura, Scottsdale, Arizona 85258, or at such other address as the holder of this Note at any given time may designate by written notice to the Maker, in lawful money of the United States of America, the principal sum of [\$AMOUNT] together with all then accrued and unpaid interest and other amounts that are the Maker's obligations under this Note, if any. The Note balance represents the amount owing by Maker to Holder for the loan to Maker to finance the purchase price of the Store (as defined below) in the aggregate amount of [\$AMOUNT] (the "Loan") for the *NrGize*® store at the following location owned by Maker: [STORE ADDRESS] (the "Store").

2. <u>Computation of Interest</u>. Except as otherwise set forth in this Note, this Note shall [not bear interest] or [bear interest at the rate of \_\_\_% per annum] based on a \_\_\_ [month/year] amortization schedule.

Required Payments; Method of Payment. Principal and interest, if any, 3. shall be repaid to Holder in a total of [\_\_\_\_\_ (XX) weekly/monthly] installments, which installments shall be paid in [\_\_\_\_\_ (XX)] equal installments of [\$\_\_\_\_] and one (1) final installment of [\$\_\_\_\_], with the first installment due on [DATE OF FIRST PAYMENT], and the remaining [\_\_\_\_\_\_ (XX)] installments due on the [DATE OF THE WEEK, or DAY OF MONTH] of each consecutive [week / month] thereafter until the final payment due on [MATURITY DATE], all as set forth on the Amortization Schedule attached hereto as EXHIBIT "1" and is incorporated herein by reference. Maker shall make all payments due under this Promissory Note by 12:00 P.M., Arizona time, on the day they are due and shall make all payments in US Dollars (US\$) in immediately available funds. Holder does not have to make or give "presentment, demand, protest or notice" to get paid. Maker waives "presentment, demand, protest and notice." Maker authorizes Holder (or one of its affiliates) to deduct payments out of any amounts Holder (or one of its affiliates) may owe Holder, as well as to collect payments out of Maker's bank accounts via ACH in the same way Holder (or one of its affiliates) are authorized to collect payment under the Franchise Agreement or other franchise documents that Maker (or a related entity) entered into with Holder (or one of its affiliates) for NrGize® store #\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Franchise Agreement"). OR Maker shall open a designated bank account and complete the Electronic Funds Transfer Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit "[2] or [3]" for such account (the "EFT Agreement") authorizing Holder to electronically debit the required payments under this Note. The designated bank account shall be opened and funded, and the EFT Agreement completed concurrently with the execution of this Note.

4. <u>Application of Payments</u>. All payments and other credits shall be applied (a) first, to fees, costs and expenses payable by the Maker under this Note, (b) second, to

accrued and unpaid interest, if any, and (c) third, to principal.

5. <u>Collection Costs</u>. If suit, arbitration, or other legal proceeding or any nonjudicial foreclosure proceeding is instituted or any other action is taken by the Holder to collect all or any part of the indebtedness evidenced hereby or to proceed against the Collateral (as defined below) for any portion of such indebtedness or against any guarantor of the payment of any portion of the indebtedness, the Maker promises to pay the Holder's attorneys' fees and other costs (to be determined by the court and not by jury) incurred thereby. Such fees and costs shall be included in any judgment or arbitration award obtained by the Holder, and shall bear interest at the default rate set forth in Section 11.

6. <u>Optional Prepayments</u>. The Maker shall have the option to prepay this Note, in full or in part, at any time and from time to time, without penalty. The Maker shall identify each optional prepayment of principal as such by written notice to the Holder at the time of payment, and no such prepayment shall decrease or defer the monthly installment payments required by Section 3 above.

7. <u>Security Interest.</u> The indebtedness evidenced by this Note shall be secured by, and Maker hereby grants to Holder, a security interest in the equipment, inventory, leasehold improvements, and all proceeds thereof, and all increases, additions, accessories, accessions, substitutions, and replacements thereto located at the Store including, without limitation, insurance proceeds (the "Collateral"). A description of the Collateral is attached hereto as **EXHIBIT "2**" and incorporated herein by reference. Concurrent with the execution of this Note or at any time after the execution of the Note so long as a balance remains outstanding under the Note, Maker shall execute and deliver to Holder, or alternatively Maker gives Holder permission to file, at Maker's expense, a UCC-1(s) financing statement, evidencing the security interest granted by this Section 7.

## [APPLICABLE IF MAKER IS CORPORATE ENTITY:]

8. <u>Continuing Guaranty Agreement</u>. Maker's obligations under this Promissory Note are guaranteed by each of the persons (and each of their spouses) who owns, directly or indirectly, a five percent (5%) or more interest in your stock or other equity; or any other individuals requested by Holder as consideration for its agreements herein (together, "Guarantors"), pursuant to the Continuing Guaranty Agreement attached hereto as <u>EXHIBIT</u> "and is incorporated herein by reference. Maker represents and warrants that the Guarantors include all of the persons, and their spouses, who own, directly or indirectly, a five percent (5%) or more interest in Maker.

## [OR PERSONAL GUARANTY:]

9. <u>Personal Guaranty Agreement</u>. Maker hereby personally guarantees the full and prompt payment to Holder of any and all indebtedness, interest, obligations and liabilities of said Maker to Holder, with respect to this Promissory Note dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ in the face principal amount of \_\_\_\_\_\_, pursuant to the Personal Guaranty Agreement

attached hereto as **<u>EXHIBIT "</u>**" and is incorporated herein by reference.

10. <u>Maker's Representations and Warranties</u>. Maker represents and warrants the following:

#### A. <u>Collateral</u>.

(i) Maker will make sure that the Collateral is maintained and in good operating condition, necessary to the conduct of Maker's business. All maintenance must also comply with any legal or regulatory requirements.

(ii) Maker will make sure that Maker has not suffered any material adverse change in Maker's financial condition or operations.

(iii) Maker will protect and preserve the Collateral and Holder's security interest therein, and assist Holder in all ways in enforcing Holder's security interests in the Collateral.

(iv) Maker will not incur any debts beyond Maker's ability to pay such debts as they mature.

(v) Maker will pay, before they become delinquent, all taxes and claims, assessments, charges, and the like, as well as all amounts due under all agreements with third parties.

(vi) Maker will take all actions necessary or appropriate to protect the Collateral that consists of technology and proprietary information. This includes, without limitation, filing all applicable documentation with the United States and foreign patent and trademark offices.

(vii) Holder will give Maker prior notice if Holder, or Holder's agents, want to inspect the Collateral. Holder may inspect the Collateral during regular business hours. Holder will take reasonable steps not to interfere with Maker's business operations during any such inspection. If Holder finds during an inspection that Maker is not complying with this Promissory Note or if Maker is otherwise in default under this Promissory Note, Maker (and not Holder) will pay Holder's reasonable travel, meals and lodging costs, Holder's salary costs, and Holder's costs and fees and those of Holder's agents for re-inspection. Maker will promptly cure any problems with the Collateral that are discovered during Holder's inspections.

(viii) Maker will use the Collateral only for business purposes. Maker will obey all legal and regulatory requirements in Maker's use of the Collateral and the conduct of Maker's business.

(ix) Maker will make all additions, modifications and improvements to the Collateral to the extent necessary. Otherwise, Maker will not alter the Collateral without Holder's written permission.

(x) Maker will not remove the Collateral from the Store location.

(xi) Maker has and will continue to have good and merchantable title to all of the Collateral, free and clear of all security interests, liens and other encumbrances, with the exception of Holder's lien described in Section 7 above.

(xii) Maker will not convey, assign, sell, mortgage, transfer, encumber, pledge, hypothecate, grant a security interest in, grant options with respect to, lease or otherwise dispose of all or any part of any interest whatsoever in or to any or all of the Collateral, or any interest therein.

#### B. <u>Insurance</u>.

(i) Until you have made all payments to us under this Promissory Note in full, you will keep the Collateral insured. The amount of insurance, the coverage, and the insurance company must be acceptable to us.

(ii) If you do not provide us with written evidence of insurance that is acceptable to us, we may buy the insurance ourselves, at your expense. You will promptly pay us the cost of this insurance. We have no obligation to purchase any insurance. Any insurance that we purchase will be our insurance, and not yours, and we may insure the Collateral beyond the date of satisfaction of the Obligations.

(iii) Insurance proceeds may be used to repair or replace damaged or lost Collateral or to pay us the present value of the payments described herein.

(iv) You appoint us as your "attorney-in-fact" to make claims under the insurance policies, to receive payments under the insurance policies, and to endorse your name on all documents, checks or drafts relating to insurance claims for Collateral. Upon request by you, we will provide you with copies of any and all documents signed as your attorney-in-fact. We agree to pay you any insurance proceeds received by us in excess of the any and all amounts due us under this Promissory Note.

11. <u>Waivers and Acknowledgments</u>. The Maker, and any sureties, endorsers and guarantors of all or any portion of the indebtedness evidenced by this Note waive: (a) demand, notice, diligence, protest, presentment for payment, and notice of extension, dishonor, protest, demand and nonpayment of this Note; and (b) any release or discharge by reason of (i) any release or substitution of, or other change in, any security given for the indebtedness evidenced by this Note or the obligation of any other person or entity who or which is now or may become directly or indirectly liable for all or any portion of the indebtedness evidenced by this Note, or (ii) any extension or other modification of the time or terms of payment of all or any portion of the indebtedness evidenced by this Note. The Maker, and any sureties, endorsers and guarantors agree that their liability for the indebtedness evidenced hereby shall be joint and several.

#### 12. Default, Take-Back Rights and Additional Remedies.

A. <u>Default</u>. Maker will be in default if any of the following occurs:

(i) Maker does not pay us, within ten (10) days after it is due, any payment that Maker owes us under this Promissory Note, the Franchise Agreement (including, but not limited to, royalty and advertising fees) or any other agreement, loan, lease or other financial arrangement that Maker has with Holder or one of its affiliates (a "Payment Default").

(ii) Any of the financial information that Maker gave us is not materially true and complete, or Maker fails to tell us anything that would make the financial information not materially misleading.

(iii) Maker does something they are not permitted to do, or Maker fails to do anything that is required of them, under this Promissory Note, the Franchise Agreement or any other lease, loan or other financial arrangement that Maker has with us and such breach continues uncured for a period of ten (10) days after Holder has given written notice of such default to Maker, provided that such cure period shall not apply to any covenant relating to insurance covering the Collateral described in Section 8.

(iv) An event of default occurs under the Franchise Agreement, or under any other lease, loan or obligation of Maker (or any guarantor) that exceeds \$50,000 in the aggregate that results in the acceleration or mandatory prepayment thereof.

(v) Maker files bankruptcy, or involuntary bankruptcy is filed against Maker or any guarantor and such involuntary bankruptcy is not dismissed within sixty (60) days.

(vi) Maker is subject to any other insolvency proceeding other than bankruptcy (for example, a receivership action or an assignment for the benefit of creditors) and such proceeding that is involuntary is not dismissed within sixty (60) days.

(vii) Without Holder's permission, Maker sells all or a substantial part of Maker's assets, merges or consolidates (other than with an affiliate where Maker is the surviving entity), or a majority of Maker's voting stock or interests (or any guarantor's voting stock or interests) is transferred.

(viii) There is a material adverse change in Maker's financial condition, business or operations.

B. "Take Back Rights." In the event of a Payment Default (as defined above), Maker hereby grants Holder the following "Take Back Rights" with respect to the Store (as defined in Section 1). Maker shall have five (5) days after receipt of written notice from Holder to cure any such Payment Default. If Maker does not timely cure the Payment Default, Maker hereby grants Holder the irrevocable right to immediately enter the Store and take possession and full ownership of the Store going forward, and further agrees to execute any and all reasonably necessary documents to transfer ownership of the Store, including all assets located therein, to Holder or its designee and to assign the lease for the premises of the Store to Holder or its designee (the "Take Back Rights"). In the event of an uncured Payment Default, Maker further acknowledges and agrees to the following: (i) the Take Back Rights represent Holders liquidated damages for Maker's Payment Default; (ii) that such damages are reasonable under the circumstances; (iii) that Maker shall have no right to contest, and hereby waives any such rights to contest or appeal, Holder's Take Back Rights, including Holder's entry into the Store and subsequent possession, control; and ownership of the Store thereafter; and (iv) that Maker shall receive no compensation or other monetary consideration from Holder for the Store. For purposes of the Take Back Rights under this Section 10, all notices shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, or via overnight delivery service, to the other party at the addresses listed in Section 15.

C. <u>Acceleration</u>. In the event of any default, including a Payment Default, under this Note which is not cured within ten (10) calendar days after the date of such default, the principal sum hereof, together with all accrued and unpaid interest, shall, at the option of the Holder (and without limiting any remedies available to Holder), become immediately due and payable without further notice or demand by the Holder.

D. <u>Consent to Credit Reports</u>. Maker hereby agrees that upon notice of default or upon an uncured default of this Note, the Franchise Agreement or any other agreement between Maker (or a legal entity thereof) and Holder or its affiliates, and with no prior notice, Maker consent(s) to Holder's (or its affiliates' or third-party contractors') acquisition and use of non-business consumer credit reports on Maker in order to evaluate as necessary the financial condition of Maker as principal(s), member(s), manager(s), franchisee(s), and/or guarantor(s) in connection with the collection of monetary obligations as contemplated by this Note, your Franchise Agreement, the Guaranty of Agreement, or any other agreements between Maker (or a legal entity thereof), and Holder or its affiliates. Maker as [an] individual(s) hereby knowingly consents to the use of such credit reports consistent with the Federal Fair Credit Reporting Act as contained in *15 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq.* 

13. <u>Default Interest</u>. After maturity, including maturity upon acceleration as described in Section 11 above, or at any time that Maker is more than ten (10) calendar days delinquent in the payment of money as required by this Note (whether or not Holder has given any notice of default or any cure period has expired), then all amounts outstanding hereunder and any advances thereafter made from the Loan evidenced hereby and any accruing costs and reasonable attorneys' fees which are the obligation of the Maker shall thereafter bear interest at

the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per annum until paid.

14. <u>Indemnity</u>. Maker shall indemnify, defend and hold Holder harmless for, from and against any and all claims, expenses and reasonable attorney's fees actually incurred by us concerning or arising from the Collateral, this Promissory Note, or Maker's breach of any material representation, warranty or covenant. It includes, without limitation, any claims, losses or charges actually incurred concerning, arising out of or in connection with the manufacture, selection, delivery, possession, use, operation or return of the Collateral and any claims, losses or damages actually incurred concerning, arising out of or in connection with this Promissory Note. This obligation of Maker's to indemnify Holder continues even after satisfaction of the Note.

15. <u>No Waiver by Holder</u>. Failure of the Holder to exercise any option hereunder shall not constitute a waiver of the right to exercise the same in the event of any subsequent default or in the event of continuance of any existing default after demand for strict performance thereof.

16. <u>Time of Essence</u>. Time is of the essence of this Note.

17. <u>Notices</u>. All notices required or permitted to be given by either party pursuant to this Note shall be in writing and given by (a) hand delivery, (b) facsimile, (c) express overnight delivery service or (d) certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, and shall be deemed to have been delivered upon (i) receipt, if hand delivered, (ii) confirmation of transmission, if delivered by facsimile, (iii) the next business day following the date of deposit with the delivery service, if delivered by express overnight delivery service, or (iv) the third business day following the day of deposit of such notice with the United States Postal Service, if sent by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested. Notices shall be provided to the parties at the addresses and facsimile numbers specified below:

If to Holder:	Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C.
	Attention: General Counsel
	9311 East Via De Ventura
	Scottsdale, Arizona 85258
	Telephone Number: (480) 362-4800
	Facsimile Number: (480) 362-4797

If to Maker:

Telephone Number: Facsimile Number:

18. <u>Governing Law</u>. This Note shall be construed according to the substantive laws and judicial decisions of the State of Arizona. Any action brought to enforce

this Note may be commenced and maintained in the Superior Court of the State of Arizona in and for the County of Maricopa. Maker and any sureties, endorsers and guarantors irrevocably consent to jurisdiction and venue in such court for such purposes.

19. <u>Release</u>. In exchange for Holder's agreement to finance the Loan, Maker hereby releases, remises and forever discharges Holder, Kahala Corp. and their respective predecessors, successors and assigns, parents, subsidiaries and affiliated corporations, officers, directors, agents, employees and representatives, past and present, of any and all of such corporations, of and from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, suits, debts, dues, duties, sums of money, accounts, reckonings, covenants, contracts, agreements, promises, damages, judgments, extents, executions, liabilities and obligations, both contingent and fixed, known and unknown, of every kind and nature whatsoever in law or equity, or otherwise, under local, state, or federal law, against any of them, including, but not limited to, the Franchise Agreement and the Store, which Maker or its predecessors in interest, if any, ever had, now have, or which it or its heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns hereafter can, shall, or may have, for, upon, or by reason of, any matter, cause, or thing whatsoever, for acts and occurrences prior to and including the date of this Promissory Note written above.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Note has been executed as of the date first written above.

"MAKER"

\_\_\_\_\_, a(n) \_\_\_\_\_

By: \_\_\_\_\_

Its: \_\_\_\_\_

# EXHIBIT "1" TO PROMISSORY NOTE

# **AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE**

(Attached)

#### EXHIBIT "2" TO PROMISSORY NOTE

#### COLLATERAL

All assets owned by [NAME], a [\_\_\_\_\_\_ corporation / limited liability company] ("*Borrower*"), whether now owned or hereafter acquired by Borrower and located at the following location: [Store Address], including, without limitation, the following properties of Borrower:

(a) All accounts, contract rights, rights to payment, accounts receivable, chattel paper, leases, instruments, notes, securities, documents of title, deposit accounts, certificates of deposit and general intangibles;

(b) All inventory, including, without limitation, raw materials, work-inprocess or materials used or consumed in the business of Borrower, whether in the possession of Borrower, warehouseman, bailee or any other person or entity;

- (c) All machinery, furniture, fixtures and other equipment;
- (d) All negotiable and nonnegotiable documents of title;
- (e) All proceeds of any of the above-described property;

(f) All books and records pertaining to any of the above-described property, including, without limitation, any computer readable memory and any computer hardware or software necessary to process such memory:

(g) All rights under contracts of insurance covering any of the above-described property;

(h) All attachments, accessions, tools, parts, supplies, increases and additions to and all replacements of and substitutions for any of the above-described property; and

(i) All products of any of the above-described property.

#### DELETE IF NOT APPLICABLE

#### EXHIBIT "2" TO PROMISSORY NOTE

#### **CONTINUING GUARANTY AGREEMENT**

#### (Applicable only if Maker is a corporate entity or if Holder requires additional guaranty(ies) for loan)

#### CONTINUING GUARANTY AGREEMENT

THIS CONTINUING GUARANTY AGREEMENT is dated as of [Date], and is executed by the guarantors and their spouses listed on the signature page hereof (each a "*Guarantor*" or "*you*") in favor of Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C.., an Arizona limited liability company ("*Kahala*").

A. As an inducement for Kahala to loan funds to [Franchisee], [\_\_\_\_\_\_ corporation / limited liability company], ("*Franchisee*"), and to perform Kahala's obligations under the Promissory Note dated [Start Date] (the "*Note*") in the original principal amount of up to \$\_\_\_\_\_\_, each of you has agreed to jointly and severally guarantee the obligations of Franchisee under the Note.

B. Franchisee and Kahala signed a Franchise Agreement with respect to *NrGize*® Store #\_\_\_\_\_ (the *"Franchise"*) on [Franchise Agreement Date] (the *"Franchise Agreement"*).

C. Each of you owns, directly or indirectly, a 5% or greater equity interest in the Franchise or has agreed to guarantee the Franchisee's obligations pursuant to the Franchise Agreement and Note.

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing, the execution and delivery of the Note by Kahala, and the performance of Kahala's obligations under the Note, each of you agrees, for the benefit of Kahala and its Affiliates (as defined in the Franchise Agreement) as follows:

1. Each of you jointly, severally, and unconditionally guarantees and promises to pay to Kahala and/or its Affiliates and to perform, for the benefit of Kahala and/or its Affiliates, on demand, any and all obligations and liabilities of Franchisee in connection with, with respect to, or arising out of, the Note and all Schedules entered into in connection therewith (the "*Obligations*").

2. This is a guaranty of payment and not of collection. This Continuing Guaranty Agreement will remain in full force and effect until all amounts payable by each Guarantor have been validly, finally and irrevocably paid in full and all Obligations will have been validly, finally and irrevocably paid in full.

Your obligations under this Continuing Guaranty Agreement are joint and several and are 3. independent of the Obligations of Franchisee. A separate action or actions may be brought and prosecuted against any one or more of you regardless of whether an action is brought against the Franchisee, any one or more of you, or whether the Franchisee or the other Guarantors are joined in any such action. Each of you waives the benefit of any statute of limitations affecting your liability under this Continuing Guaranty Agreement or the enforcement of this Continuing Guaranty Agreement. Each of you waives your rights under A.R.S. Section 12-1641, et seq. and Rule 17(f) of the Arizona Rules of Civil Procedure for the Superior Courts of Arizona, which set forth certain rights and obligations among guarantors, debtors and creditors, if applicable, including the right to require Kahala to bring an action against the Franchisee prior to enforcing its rights under this Continuing Guaranty Agreement. Each of you waives any right to require Kahala to proceed against or exhaust any security interest held in the property of Franchisee or to pursue any other remedies that Kahala may have. Each of you waives all requirements as to presentment, demand for performance, notice of non-performance, protest, notice of protest, notice of dishonor, and notice of acceptance of this Continuing Guaranty Agreement and of the existence, creation or incurring of new or additional Obligations or indebtedness.

4. Each of you authorizes Kahala, without notice or demand and without affecting your liability under this Continuing Guaranty Agreement to renew, compromise, modify, extend, accelerate or otherwise change the terms of any present or future Obligations and/or agreements between Franchisee and Kahala. Any change in the Obligations and/or agreements will have no effect on your liability under this Continuing Guaranty Agreement. You will remain liable for the Obligations as set forth in this Continuing Guaranty Agreement if Franchisee fails to satisfy any Obligations.

5. If any one or more of the provisions in this Continuing Guaranty Agreement will be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability will not affect any other provision of this Continuing Guaranty Agreement, and this Continuing Guaranty Agreement will be construed as if such provision had never been contained herein.

6. If Kahala is required to take any legal action to enforce its rights under this Continuing Guaranty Agreement, Kahala may recover from you its costs and expenses in connection therewith, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, whether or not suit is filed, and all costs of collection, suit, and preparation for suit (whether at trial or appellate level).

7. Nothing in this Continuing Guaranty Agreement will constitute a waiver or limitation of any other rights or remedies of Kahala or its Affiliates against Franchisee or any of you. No failure or delay on the part of Kahala or its Affiliates in exercising its rights under this Continuing Guarantee Agreement will operate as a waiver of, or impair, any such right. No single or partial exercise of any such right will preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right. No waiver of any right will be effective unless given in writing, specifying with particularity the nature of the waiver. No waiver of any right will be deemed a waiver of any other right. The rights provided for in this Continuing Guaranty Agreement are cumulative and are not exclusive of any other rights, powers, privileges or remedies provided by law.

8. Each of you agrees that you will not exercise any rights of subrogation that you may acquire due to any payment or performance of the Obligations of the Franchisee pursuant to this Continuing Guaranty Agreement unless and until all amounts payable to Kahala or its Affiliates, and all Obligations for the benefit of Kahala or its Affiliates, due under the Note will have been validly, finally and irrevocably paid and performed in full.

9. This Continuing Guaranty Agreement will be binding upon each of you and your respective successors, heirs and assigns, and will inure to the benefit of Kahala, its Affiliates and their respective successors and assigns.

10. If more than one person signs this Continuing Guaranty Agreement, your obligations will be joint and several. Each of you acknowledges and agrees that Kahala will materially rely upon each of your promises and obligations under this Continuing Guaranty Agreement

11. If the spouse of any Guarantor does not sign this Continuing Guaranty Agreement, such Guarantor represents that he or she is not married.

This Continuing Guaranty Agreement will be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the law of the State of Arizona, notwithstanding any conflict of law provisions to the contrary.

You agree that any litigation in connection with this Continuing Guarantee Agreement will be commenced and maintained only in the courts located in Maricopa County, Arizona, and you consent to the jurisdiction of such courts.

**GUARANTORS**:

(Sign Name)

(Sign Name)

Name: \_\_\_\_\_

Name:

# CONSENT OF SPOUSES

Each of the undersigned spouses of a party to the foregoing Continuing Guaranty Agreement confirms that he/she has read the Continuing Guaranty Agreement, understands and consents and agrees to the terms of the Continuing Guaranty Agreement.

(Sign Name)

(Sign Name)

(Print Name, Spouse of \_\_\_\_\_)

(Print Name, Spouse of \_\_\_\_\_

CONSULT YOUR ATTORNEY. This document has been prepared for approval by your attorney. No representation or recommendation is made by Kahala or its agents or employees as to the legal sufficiency, legal effect, or tax consequences of this document or the transaction to which it relates. These are questions for your attorney.

#### DELETE IF NOT APPLICABLE

#### EXHIBIT "3" TO PROMISSORY NOTE

#### PERSONAL GUARANTY

THIS GUARANTY, dated as of [DATE], is made and given by the undersigned guarantor ("Guarantor"), in favor of Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("KAHALA").

A. KAHALA is prepared to extend credit to Guarantor in the amount of [AMOUNT] (the "Principal Amount") pursuant to a separate Promissory Note dated [DATE] with Guarantor (the "Promissory Note").

B. It is a condition precedent, among others, to KAHALA's inducement to extend credit accommodations to Guarantor that this Guaranty be executed and delivered by Guarantor.

C. Guarantor expects to derive benefits from the extension of credit accommodations to Guarantor by KAHALA and finds it advantageous, desirable and in Guarantor's best interest to execute and deliver this Guaranty to KAHALA. Guarantor is providing this Guaranty at the request of Guarantor to induce KAHALA to extend or continue financial accommodations to Guarantor.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and credit accommodations to be extended to Guarantor and for other good and valuable consideration, Guarantor covenants and agrees with KAHALA as follows:

1. <u>The Guaranty</u>. Undersigned Guarantor (if more than one, jointly and severally), absolutely, irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees and promises to pay to KAHALA, upon demand: (i) the Principal Amount and for all sums payable or to become payable in the Promissory Note, or at the election of KAHALA any one or more installments thereof, if Guarantor fails to pay punctually any one or more amounts when due under the Promissory Note (principal, interest and/or other charges) at the time and in the manner provided therein; and (ii) all other obligations of Guarantor to KAHALA arising under or in connection with the purchase or distribution of goods or services, any agreement between Guarantor and KAHALA executed and delivered in connection with the purchase or distribution of goods or services, and all other documents and instruments evidencing, securing, or executed or delivered in connection with the Promissory Note and all other agreements between Guarantor and KAHALA.

The word "obligations" is used in its most comprehensive sense and includes any and all advances, debts, charges, obligations and liabilities of Guarantor previously, now or hereafter made, incurred or created, with or without notice to Guarantor, whether voluntary or

involuntary, and however arising, whether due or not due, absolute or contingent, liquidated or unliquidated, determined or undetermined, and whether recovery upon such indebtedness may be or hereafter become barred by any statute of limitations, and whether such indebtedness may be or hereafter become otherwise unenforceable (collectively, the Principal Amount together with all other obligations specified above, the "Obligations").

2. <u>Continuing Guaranty</u>. The liability and obligation of Guarantor hereunder shall survive and absolutely, unconditionally and completely continue in full force and effect until indefeasible payment and performance in full of the Obligations, notwithstanding any termination of Guarantor' liability by operation of law, and notwithstanding that the Obligations or any part thereof is deemed to have been paid or discharged by operation of law or by some act or agreement of KAHALA. For purposes of this Guaranty, the Obligations shall be deemed to be paid only to the extent that KAHALA actually receives immediately available funds. Guarantor shall remain liable for any deficiency remaining if KAHALA elects to enforce the Promissory Note or foreclose any security agreement securing all or any part of the Obligations, whether or not the liability of Guarantor for such deficiency is discharged pursuant to statute, judicial decision or otherwise; and agrees not to assert the benefits of any statutory provision limiting the right of KAHALA to recover a deficiency judgment, or to proceed otherwise against any person or entity obligated for payment of the Obligations, after any foreclosure or sale of any security for the Obligations.

Actions Not Required. Guarantor waives any and all right to cause a marshalling of 3. the assets of Guarantor or any other action by any court or other government body with respect thereto or to cause KAHALA to proceed against any security for the Obligations or any other recourse which KAHALA may have with respect thereto and further waives and agrees not to assert: (1) any right to require KAHALA to pursue any other remedy available to KAHALA, or to pursue any remedy in any particular order or manner; (ii) the benefit of any statute of limitations affecting Guarantor's liability hereunder or the enforcement hereof; (iii) demand, diligence, presentment for payment, protest and demand, and notice of extension, dishonor, protest, demand, nonpayment and acceptance of this Guaranty; (iv) notice of the existence, creation or incurring of new or additional indebtedness of Guarantor to KAHALA; (v) the benefits of any statutory provision limiting the liability of a surety, including without limitation the provisions of A.R.S. Sections 12-1641 et seq.; and (vi) any defense arising by reason of any disability or other defense of Guarantor or by reason of he cessation from any cause whatsoever (other than payment in full) of the liability of Guarantor for the Obligations. Guarantor further acknowledges that time is of the essence with respect to its obligations under this Guaranty.

4. <u>Remedies</u>. All remedies afforded to KAHALA by this Guaranty are separate and cumulative remedies and Guarantor agrees that no one of such remedies, whether or not exercised by KAHALA, shall be deemed to be in exclusion of any of the other remedies available to KAHALA and shall in no way limit or prejudice any other legal or equitable remedy which KAHALA may have hereunder and with respect to the Obligations. Mere delay or failure to act shall not preclude the exercise or enforcement of any rights and remedies available to KAHALA. The obligations of Guarantor hereunder are separate and independent of the Obligations of Guarantor and of any other guarantor, and a separate action or actions may

be brought and prosecuted against Guarantor whether action is brought against any other guarantor, or whether any other guarantor is joined in any action or actions.

5. <u>Authorizations</u>. Guarantor authorizes KAHALA, without notice or demand and without affecting Guarantor's liability hereunder, from time to time, to: (a) renew, modify, compromise, extend, accelerate or otherwise change the time for payment of, or otherwise change the terms of the Obligations or any part thereof; and (b) apply any and all payments from Guarantor, Guarantor or any other guarantor, in such order or manner as KAHALA in its discretion may determine.

6. <u>Costs and Expenses</u>. Guarantor agrees to pay or reimburse KAHALA on demand for all out-of-pocket expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees) incurred by KAHALA in enforcing this Guaranty against Guarantor, or arising out of or in connection with any failure of Guarantor to fully and timely perform the obligations of Guarantor hereunder, whether or not a suit is filed.

7. <u>Governing Law</u>. This Guaranty shall be governed by and construed according to the laws of the State of Arizona, irrespective of its choice of law principles.

8. <u>Consent to Jurisdiction</u>. KAHALA may bring any action or proceeding to enforce or arising out of this Guaranty in any court of competent jurisdiction. ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING BROUGHT BY GUARANTOR ARISING OUT OF THIS GUARANTY SHALL BE BROUGHT SOLELY IN A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION LOCATED IN THE COUNTY OF MARICOPA, STATE OF ARIZONA, OR IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF ARIZONA.

9. <u>Waivers and Amendments</u>. This Guaranty sets forth the entire agreement of Guarantor and KAHALA with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior oral and written agreements and representations by KAHALA to Guarantor. No modification or waiver of any provision of this Guaranty or any right of KAHALA hereunder and no release of Guarantor from any obligation hereunder shall be effective unless in a writing executed by an authorized officer of KAHALA. A waiver so signed shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose given.

10. <u>Representations</u>. Guarantor represents and warrants to KAHALA as follows: (a) Guarantor is and will continue to be fully informed about all aspects of the financial condition and business affairs of Guarantor that Guarantor deems relevant to the obligations of Guarantor hereunder, and waives and fully discharges KAHALA from any and all obligations to communicate to Guarantor any information whatsoever regarding Guarantor or Guarantor' financial condition or business affairs, including without limitation any notice of any default by Guarantor; (b) Guarantor has all requisite power to enter into this Guaranty, to execute, to carry out and perform its obligations under the terms of this Guaranty; (c) this Guaranty is a valid and binding legal obligation of Guarantor, and is enforceable in accordance with its terms; and (d) all action on the part of Guarantor necessary for or appropriate to or in connection with the execution, delivery and performance by Guarantor of this Guaranty has been taken.

11. <u>Reliance</u>. If Guarantor is a corporation, limited liability company or partnership, it is not necessary for KAHALA to inquire into the powers of Guarantor or the officers, directors, partners or agents acting or purporting to act on its behalf, and any of the Obligations made or created in reliance upon the professed exercise of such powers shall be guaranteed hereunder.

12. <u>Successors and Assigns</u>. This Guaranty shall inure to the benefit of KAHALA and its successors and assigns and shall be binding upon Guarantor and its successors and assigns. KAHALA may assign this Guaranty in whole or in part without notice.

13. <u>Guarantor Acknowledgements</u>. Guarantor acknowledges that (a) it has been advised by counsel in the negotiation, execution and delivery of this Guaranty, (b) KAHALA has no fiduciary relationship to Guarantor, the relationship being solely that of Guarantor and creditor, and (iii) no joint venture exists between Guarantor and KAHALA.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Guarantor has executed this Guaranty as of the date first above written.

GUARANTOR:

By: \_\_\_\_\_, an Individual

CONSULT YOUR ATTORNEY. This document has been prepared for approval by your attorney. No representation or recommendation is made by Kahala or its agents or employees as to the legal sufficiency, legal effect, or tax consequences of this document or the transaction to which it relates. These are questions for your attorney.

#### IF APPLICABLE

## EXHIBIT "2" or "3" TO PROMISSORY NOTE ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER (EFT) AUTHORIZATION

FRANCHISEE INFORMATION					
Franchisee Name	Store No.	Franchisee Phone No.			
Franchisee Mailing Address (street, city, state, zip)					
Contact Name, Address and Phone number (if different than above)					

BANK ACCOUNT INFORMATION		
Bank Name	Bank Account Number	Bank Routing Number
		5
		[: [:
		9 Characters
Bank Mailing Address (street, city, state	, zip)	
;,,;,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,		
Bank Phone Number		

#### PAYEE INFORMATION

#### Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C.

#### Authorization:

The Franchisee hereby authorizes the Bank to honor and charge the Bank Account for electronic funds transfers or drafts drawn on the Bank Account and payable to the Payee. The amount of such charge shall be set forth in a notice from the Payee presented to the Bank on the day of the week set forth in your Promissory Note and Security Agreement. The Franchisee agrees to execute such additional documents as may be reasonably requested by the Payee or the Bank to evidence the interest of this EFT Authorization. This authority shall remain in full force and effect until the Payee has received written notification from the Franchisee in such time and manner as to afford the Payee and the Bank to act on such notice. The Franchisee understands that the termination of this authorization does not relieve the Franchisee of its obligations to make payments to the Payee.

Signature:

Date:

#### NOTE: FRANCHISEE MUST ATTACH A VOIDED OR COMPLETED CHECK RELATING TO THE BANK ACCOUNT.

#### ATTACH VOIDED OR COMPLETED CHECK HERE

#### EXHIBIT C

#### Master Lease to Premises

(Attached)

#### EXHIBIT D

#### Lease Verification Checklist

By initialing below, Purchaser hereby acknowledges reviewing the attached Lease for the Premises, including all amendments and addendums (<u>Exhibit C</u>), and accepts to be bound by all the terms contained therein:

Purchaser acknowledges and agrees to be bound by all of the terms of the Lease, including, but not limited to, the following:

**INITIALS**:

\_\_\_\_\_

Current monthly rental payment amounts (Purchaser acknowledges are subject to periodic increases as detailed in the Lease), including CAM, NNN, taxes and related fees

Lease term, including any renewal options

#### FOR THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

The Asset Purchase Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Purchaser") and Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Seller"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ and the Promissory Note and Security Agreement attached thereto by \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Maker") for the benefit of Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company (collectively, the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of the Agreement (this "Amendment"):

#### **ILLINOIS LAW MODIFICATIONS**

1. The Illinois Attorney General's Office requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with Illinois law, including the Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, III. Comp. Stat. Ch. 815 para. 705/1 –705/44 (1994). To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act paragraphs 705/19 and 705/20 provide rights to the Franchisee concerning non-renewal and termination of the Franchise Agreement. If the Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Act, the Act will control.
- b. If the Franchisee is required in the Agreement to execute a release of claims or to acknowledge facts that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement, misrepresentation or action that would violate the Act, or a rule of order under the Act, such release shall exclude claims arising under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, and such acknowledgements shall be void with respect to claims under the Act.
- c. If the Agreement requires litigation to be conducted in a forum other than the State of Illinois, the requirement is void under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.
- d. If the Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of Illinois, to the extent that such law conflicts with the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, the Act will control.
- e. To the extent that Sections7 and 11 of the Promissory Note and Security Agreement requires Operator to execute a release of claims or to acknowledge facts that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement, misrepresentation or action that would violate the Act, or a rule

or order under the Act, such release shall exclude claims arising under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, and such acknowledgements shall be void and hereby deleted with respect to claims under the Act.

f. Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act states that "any condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with any provision of this Act is void."

2. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, with respect to each such provision, are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement and Promissory Note and Security Agreement on this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

#### SELLER:

KAHALA [RESTAURANTS] [HOLDINGS], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:		
Name:_		
Title:		

By:	 	 
Name:_		
Title:		

#### FOR THE STATE OF INDIANA

The Asset Purchase Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Purchaser") and Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Seller"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ and the Promissory Note and Security Agreement attached thereto by \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Maker") for the benefit of Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company (collectively, the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of the Agreement (this "Amendment"):

#### **INDIANA LAW MODIFICATIONS**

1. The Indiana Securities Commissioner requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with Indiana law, including the Indiana Franchises Act, Ind. Code Ann. §§ 1-51 (1994) and the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act, Ind. Code Ann. § 23-27 (1985). To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. The Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act provides rights to Franchisee concerning non-renewal and termination of the Agreement. To the extent the Franchise Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Act, the Act will control.
- b. If the Franchisee is required in the Agreement to execute a release of claims or to acknowledge facts that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement, misrepresentation or action that would violate the Act, or a rule of order under the Act, such release shall exclude claims arising under the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act and the Indiana Franchises Act, and such acknowledgements shall be void with respect to claims under the Act.
- c. The Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act provides that substantial modification of the Agreement by Franchisor requires written consent of the Franchisee. If the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with this requirement, the Act will control.
- d. If the Agreement requires litigation/arbitration to be conducted in a forum other than the State of Indiana, the requirement may be unenforceable as a limitation on litigation under the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act §§ 23-2.2.7(10).

- e. If the Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of Indiana, to the extent that such law conflicts with the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act and the Indiana Franchises Act, the Acts will control.
- f. The Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act provides rights to Franchisee concerning the waiver of claims or rights. To the extent the Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Act, the Act will control.
- g. The Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act provides rights to Franchisee concerning the time period to bring an action against the Franchisor. To the extent the Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Act, the Act will control.

2. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the Indiana Deceptive Practices Act and the Indiana Franchises Act, with respect to each such provision, are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement and Promissory Note and Security Agreement on this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

#### SELLER:

KAHALA [RESTAURANTS] [HOLDINGS], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:			
Name:			
Title:			

By:	 
Name:_	
Title:	

#### FOR THE STATE OF MARYLAND

The Asset Purchase Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Purchaser") and Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Seller"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ and the Promissory Note and Security Agreement attached thereto by \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Maker") for the benefit of Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company (collectively, the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of the Agreement (this "Amendment"):

#### MARYLAND LAW MODIFICATIONS

1. The Maryland Securities Division requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with Maryland law, including the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. All representations in the Franchise Agreement and the exhibits attached thereto requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of liability are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.
- b. The Franchise Agreement requires litigation to be conducted in the State of Arizona. The Franchise Agreement is amended to state that the requirement for litigation to be conducted in a forum other than the State of Maryland shall not be interpreted to limit any rights Franchisee may have to bring suit in the state of Maryland. A Franchisee may file a civil lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought within three years after the grant of the franchise.
- c. All initial fees and payments payable to Franchisor before the business opens shall be deferred until such time as all initial obligations owed to the Franchisee under the Franchise Agreement or other agreements have been fulfilled by the Franchisor and the Franchisee has commenced doing business in accordance with the Franchise Agreement.
- d. The Franchise Agreement requires the Franchisee to disclaim the occurrence and/or acknowledge the non-occurrence of acts that would constitute a violation of the Law as a condition of the sale of a franchise. Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law prohibits a Franchisor from

requiring a prospective franchisee to assent to any release, estoppel or waiver of liability as a condition of purchasing a franchise. The Franchise Agreement is amended to state that such representations are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

2. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, with respect to each such provision, are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement and Promissory Note and Security Agreement on this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

#### SELLER:

KAHALA [RESTAURANTS] [HOLDINGS], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	
Name:	
Title:	

By:		
Name:		 
Title:		

#### FOR THE STATE OF MICHIGAN

Section 445.1508(1) of the Michigan Franchise Investment Law requires franchisor to give you a copy of the Franchise Disclosure Document earlier of: (i) 10 business days prior to signing the Franchise Agreement; or (ii) 10 business days prior to franchisor's receipt of any consideration.

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE SOMETIMES IN THE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU:

(A) A PROHIBITION ON THE RIGHT OF A FRANCHISEE TO JOIN AN ASSOCIATION OF FRANCHISEES.

(B) A REQUIREMENT THAT A FRANCHISEE ASSENT TO A RELEASE, ASSIGNMENT, NOVATION, WAIVER, OR ESTOPPEL WHICH DEPRIVES A FRANCHISEE OF RIGHTS AND PROTECTIONS PROVIDED IN THIS ACT. THIS SHALL NOT PRECLUDE A FRANCHISEE, AFTER ENTERING INTO A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, FROM SETTLING ANY AND ALL CLAIMS.

(C) A PROVISION THAT PERMITS A FRANCHISOR TO TERMINATE A FRANCHISE PRIOR TO THE EXPIRATION OF ITS TERM EXCEPT FOR GOOD CAUSE. GOOD CAUSE SHALL INCLUDE THE FAILURE OF THE FRANCHISEE TO COMPLY WITH ANY LAWFUL PROVISION OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND TO CURE SUCH FAILURE AFTER BEING GIVEN WRITTEN NOTICE THEREOF AND A REASONABLE OPPORTUNITY, WHICH IN NO EVENT NEED BE MORE THAN 30 DAYS, TO CURE SUCH FAILURE.

(D) A PROVISION THAT PERMITS A FRANCHISOR TO REFUSE TO RENEW A FRANCHISE WITHOUT FAIRLY COMPENSATING THE FRANCHISEE BY REPURCHASE OR OTHER MEANS FOR THE FAIR MARKET VALUE AT THE TIME OF EXPIRATION, OF THE FRANCHISEE'S INVENTORY, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, FIXTURES, AND FURNISHINGS. PERSONALIZED MATERIALS WHICH HAVE NO VALUE TO THE FRANCHISOR AND INVENTORY, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, FIXTURES, AND FURNISHINGS NOT REASONABLY REQUIRED IN THE CONDUCT OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS ARE NOT SUBJECT TO COMPENSATION. THIS SUBSECTION APPLIES ONLY IF: (i) THE TERM OF THE FRANCHISE IS LESS THAN FIVE (5) YEARS; AND (ii) THE FRANCHISEE IS PROHIBITED BY THE FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT FROM CONTINUING TO CONDUCT SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME BUSINESS UNDER ANOTHER TRADEMARK, SERVICE MARK, TRADE NAME, LOGOTYPE, ADVERTISING, OR OTHER COMMERCIAL SYMBOL IN THE SAME AREA SUBSEQUENT TO THE EXPIRATION OF THE FRANCHISE OR THE FRANCHISEE DOES NOT RECEIVE AT

LEAST SIX (6) MONTHS ADVANCE NOTICE OF FRANCHISOR'S INTENT NOT TO RENEW THE FRANCHISE.

(E) A PROVISION THAT PERMITS THE FRANCHISOR TO REFUSE TO RENEW A FRANCHISE ON TERMS GENERALLY AVAILABLE TO OTHER FRANCHISEES OF THE SAME CLASS OR TYPE UNDER SIMILAR CIRCUMSTANCES. THIS SECTION DOES NOT REQUIRE A RENEWAL PROVISION.

(F) A PROVISION REQUIRING THAT ARBITRATION OR LITIGATION BE CONDUCTED OUTSIDE THIS STATE. THIS SHALL NOT PRECLUDE THE FRANCHISEE FROM ENTERING INTO AN AGREEMENT, AT THE TIME OF ARBITRATION, TO CONDUCT ARBITRATION AT A LOCATION OUTSIDE THIS STATE.

(G) A PROVISION WHICH PERMITS A FRANCHISOR TO REFUSE TO PERMIT A TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP OF A FRANCHISE, EXCEPT FOR GOOD CAUSE. THIS SUBDIVISION DOES NOT PREVENT A FRANCHISOR FROM EXERCISING A RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL TO PURCHASE THE FRANCHISE. GOOD CAUSE SHALL INCLUDE, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO:

- (i) THE FAILURE OF THE PROPOSED TRANSFEREE TO MEET THE FRANCHISOR'S THEN CURRENT REASONABLE QUALIFICATIONS OR STANDARDS.
- (ii) THE FACT THAT THE PROPOSED TRANSFEREE IS A COMPETITOR OF THE FRANCHISOR OR SUBFRANCHISOR.
- (iii) THE UNWILLINGNESS OF THE PROPOSED TRANSFEREE TO AGREE IN WRITING TO COMPLY WITH ALL LAWFUL OBLIGATIONS.
- (iv) THE FAILURE OF THE FRANCHISEE OR PROPOSED TRANSFEREE TO PAY ANY SUMS OWING TO THE FRANCHISOR OR TO CURE ANY DEFAULT IN THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT EXISTING AT THE TIME OF THE PROPOSED TRANSFER.

(H) A PROVISION THAT REQUIRES THE FRANCHISEE TO RESELL TO THE FRANCHISOR ITEMS THAT ARE NOT UNIQUELY IDENTIFIED WITH THE FRANCHISOR. THIS SUBDIVISION DOES NOT PROHIBIT A PROVISION THAT GRANTS TO A FRANCHISOR A RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL TO PURCHASE THE ASSETS OF A FRANCHISE ON THE SAME TERMS AND CONDITIONS AS A BONA FIDE THIRD PARTY WILLING AND ABLE TO PURCHASE THOSE ASSETS, NOR DOES THIS SUBDIVISION PROHIBIT A PROVISION THAT GRANTS THE FRANCHISOR THE RIGHT TO ACQUIRE THE ASSETS OF A FRANCHISE FOR THE MARKET OR APPRAISED VALUE OF SUCH ASSETS IF THE FRANCHISEE HAS BREACHED THE LAWFUL PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND HAS FAILED TO CURE THE BREACH IN THE MANNER PROVIDED IN SUBDIVISION (C).

(I) A PROVISION WHICH PERMITS THE FRANCHISOR TO DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY CONVEY, ASSIGN, OR OTHERWISE TRANSFER ITS OBLIGATIONS TO FULFILL CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS TO THE FRANCHISEE UNLESS PROVISION HAS BEEN MADE FOR PROVIDING THE REQUIRED CONTRACTUAL SERVICES.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS NOTICE SHALL BE DIRECTED TO :

STATE OF MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL ATTENTION: FRANCHISE SECTION P.O. BOX 30213 LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909 (517) 373-7117

#### FOR THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

The Asset Purchase Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Purchaser") and Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Seller"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ and the Promissory Note and Security Agreement attached thereto by \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Maker") for the benefit of Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company (collectively, the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of the Agreement (this "Amendment"):

#### MINNESOTA LAW MODIFICATIONS

1. The Commissioner of Commerce for the State of Minnesota requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with Minnesota Franchise Act, Minn. Stat. Section 80.01 et seq., and of the Rules and Regulations promulgated under the Act (collectively the "Franchise Act"). To the extent that the Agreement and Disclosure Document contain provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

a. Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or agreement(s) can abrogate or reduce (1) any of the franchisee's rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C or (2) franchisee's rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

b. With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.14, Subd. 3-5, which require (except in certain specified cases) (1) that a franchisee be given 90 days notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days notice for non-renewal of the franchise agreement and (2) that consent to the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld.

Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee's right to use the trademarks. Refer to Minnesota Statues, Section 80C.12, Subd. 1(g).

c. Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent to a general release.

d. The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The franchisor may <u>seek</u> injunctive relief. See Minn. Rules 2860.4400J.

Also, a court will determine if a bond is required.

e. The Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17, Subd. 5.

2. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the Minnesota law applicable to the provision are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement and Promissory Note and Security Agreement on this \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

#### SELLER:

KAHALA [RESTAURANTS] [HOLDINGS], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:		
Name:		
Title:		

By:	 
Name:	
Title <sup>.</sup>	

#### FOR THE STATE OF NEW YORK

The Asset Purchase Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Purchaser") and Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Seller"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ and the Promissory Note and Security Agreement attached thereto by \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Maker") for the benefit of Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company (collectively, the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of the Agreement (this "Amendment"):

#### **NEW YORK LAW MODIFICATIONS**

1. The New York Department of Law requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with New York law, including the General Business Law, Article 33, Section 680 through 695 (1989). To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

a. If the Franchisee is required in the Agreement to execute a release of claims or to acknowledge facts that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement, misrepresentation or action that would violate the General Business Law, regulation, rule or order under the Law, such release shall exclude claims arising under the New York General Business Law, Article 33, Section 680 through 695 and the regulations promulgated thereunder, and such acknowledgements shall be void. It is the intent of this provision that non-waiver provisions of Sections 687.4 and 687.5 of the General Business Law be satisfied.

b. If the Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of New York, the choice of law provision shall not be considered to waive any rights conferred upon the Franchisee under the New York General Business Law, Article 33, Sections 680 through 695.

2. The following Items are required to be included within the Disclosure Document and shall be deemed to supersede the language in the Disclosure Document itself:

3. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of New York General Business Law, with respect to each such provision are met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement and Promissory Note and Security Agreement on this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

#### SELLER:

KAHALA [RESTAURANTS] [HOLDINGS], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:			
Name:			
Title:			

By:	 	 
Name:		 
Title:		 

#### FOR THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

The Asset Purchase Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Purchaser") and Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Seller"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ and the Promissory Note and Security Agreement attached thereto by \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Maker") for the benefit of Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company (collectively, the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of the Agreement (this "Amendment"):

#### NORTH DAKOTA LAW MODIFICATIONS

1. The North Dakota Securities Commissioner requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with North Dakota Law, including the North Dakota Franchises Investment Law, North Dakota Century Code Annotated Chapter 51-19, Sections 51-19-01 through 51-19-17 (1993). To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. If the Franchisee is required in the Agreement to execute a release of claims or to acknowledge facts that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement, misrepresentation or action that would violate the Law, or a rule or order under the Law, such release shall exclude claims arising under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, and such acknowledgements shall be void with respect to claims under the Law.
- b. If this Agreement requires litigation to be conducted in a forum other than the State of North Dakota, the requirement is void with respect to claims under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.
- c. If the Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of North Dakota, to the extent that such law conflicts with the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law will control.
- d. If the Agreement requires mediation or arbitration to be conducted in a forum other than the State of North Dakota, the requirement may be unenforceable under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. Arbitration involving a franchise purchased in the State of North Dakota must be held either in a location mutually agreed upon prior to the arbitration or if the parties cannot agree on a location, the location will be determined by the arbitrator.
- e. If the Agreement requires payment of a termination penalty, the requirement may be unenforceable under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

#### 2. THE SECURITIES COMMISSIONER HAS HELD THE FOLLOWING TO BE UNFAIR, UNJUST OR INEQUITABLE TO NORTH DAKOTA FRANCHISEES (SECTION 51-19-09, N.D.C.C.):

- a. Restrictive Covenants: Franchise disclosure documents which disclose the existence of covenants restricting competition contrary to Section 9-08-06, N.D.C.C., without further disclosing that such covenants will be subject to the statute.
- b. Situs of Arbitration Proceedings: Franchise agreements providing that the parties must agree to the arbitration of disputes at a location that is remote from the site of the franchisee's business.
- c. Restrictions on Forum: Requiring North Dakota franchisees to consent to the jurisdiction of courts outside of North Dakota.
- d. Liquidated Damages and Termination Penalties: Requiring North Dakota franchisees to consent to liquidated damages or termination penalties.
- e. Applicable Laws: Franchise agreements which specify that they are to be governed by the laws of a state other than North Dakota.
- f. Waiver of Trial by Jury: Requiring North Dakota Franchises to consent to the waiver of a trial by jury.
- g. Waiver of Exemplary & Punitive Damages: Requiring North Dakota Franchisees to consent to a waiver of exemplary and punitive damage.
- h. General Release: Franchise Agreements that require the franchisee to sign a general release upon renewal of the franchise agreement.
- i. Limitation of Claims: Franchise Agreements that require the franchisee to consent to a limitation of claims. The statute of limitations under North Dakota law applies.
- j. Enforcement of Agreement: Franchise Agreements that require the franchisee to pay all costs and expenses incurred by the franchisor in enforcing the agreement. The prevailing party in any enforcement action is entitled to recover all costs and expenses including attorney's fees.

3. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, with respect to each such provision, are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement and Promissory Note and Security Agreement on this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

#### SELLER:

# KAHALA [RESTAURANTS] [HOLDINGS], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	
Name:	
Title:	

By:	
Name:	
Title:	

#### FOR THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND

The Asset Purchase Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Purchaser") and Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Seller"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ and the Promissory Note and Security Agreement attached thereto by \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Maker") for the benefit of Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company (collectively, the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of the Agreement (this "Amendment"):

#### **RHODE ISLAND LAW MODIFICATIONS**

1. The Rhode Island Securities Division requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with Rhode Island law, including the Franchise Investment Act, R.I. Gen. Law. ch. 395 Sec. 19-28.1-1 – 19-28.1-34. To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. If the Agreement requires litigation to be conducted in a forum other than the State of Rhode Island, the requirement is void under Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act Sec. 19-28.1-14.
- b. If the Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of Rhode Island, to the extent that such law conflicts with Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act it is void under Sec. 19-28.1-14.
- c. If the Franchisee is required in this Agreement to execute a release of claims or to acknowledge facts that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement, misrepresentation or action that would violate the Act, or a rule or order under the Act, such release shall exclude claims arising under the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, and such acknowledgements shall be void with respect to claims under the Act.

2. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, with respect to each such provision, are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement and Promissory Note and Security Agreement on this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

#### SELLER:

KAHALA [RESTAURANTS] [HOLDINGS], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	_
Name:	_
Title:	

By:	 		
Name:		 	
Title:			

#### FOR THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

The Asset Purchase Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Purchaser") and Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Seller"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ and the Promissory Note and Security Agreement attached thereto by \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Maker") for the benefit of Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company (collectively, the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of the Agreement (this "Amendment"):

#### SOUTH DAKOTA LAW MODIFICATIONS

1. The Director of the South Dakota Division of Securities requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with South Dakota law, including the South Dakota Franchises for Brand-Name Goods and Services Law, South Dakota Codified Laws, Title 37, Chapter 37-5A, Sections 37-5A-1 through 37-5A-87 (1994). To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. If the Franchisee is required in the Agreement to execute a release of claims or to acknowledge facts that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement, misrepresentation or action that would violate the Law, or a rule or order under the Law, such release shall exclude claims arising under the South Dakota Franchises for Brand-Name Goods and Services Law, and such acknowledgements shall be void with respect to claims under the Law.
- b. Covenants not to compete upon termination or expiration of the Agreement are generally unenforceable in the state of South Dakota, except in certain limited instances as provided by law. If this Agreement contains a covenant not to compete which is inconsistent with South Dakota Law, the covenant may be unenforceable.
- c. If the Agreement requires payment of liquidated damages that are inconsistent with South Dakota law, the liquidated damage clause may be void under SDCL 53-9-5.
- d. If the Agreement requires litigation to be conducted in a forum other than the State of South Dakota, the requirement is void with respect to any cause of action otherwise enforceable under South Dakota Law.
- e. If the Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of South Dakota, matters regarding franchise registration, employment, covenants not to compete, and other matters of local concern will be governed

by the laws of the State of South Dakota; but as to contractual and all other matters, the Agreement and all provisions of this Amendment will be and remain subject to the application, construction, enforcement, interpretation under the governing law set forth in the Agreement.

f. If the Agreement requires that disputed between Franchisor and Franchisee be mediated/arbitrated at a location that is outside the State of South Dakota, the mediation/arbitration will be conducted at a location mutually agreed upon by the parties. If the parties cannot agree on location for the mediation/arbitration, the location shall be determined by the mediator/arbitrator selected.

2. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the South Dakota Franchise Investment Law, with respect to each such provision, are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement and Promissory Note and Security Agreement on this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

#### SELLER:

KAHALA [RESTAURANTS] [HOLDINGS], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	
Name:	
Title:	

By:	 	
Name:		
Title:		

#### **REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF VIRGINIA**

The Asset Purchase Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Purchaser") and Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Seller"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ and the Promissory Note and Security Agreement attached thereto by \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Maker") for the benefit of Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company (collectively, the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of the Agreement (this "Amendment"):

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or termination stated in the Franchise Agreement does not constitute "reasonable cause," as that term may be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement and Promissory Note and Security Agreement on this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

#### SELLER:

KAHALA [RESTAURANTS] [HOLDINGS], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:		
Name:		
Title:		

By:		
Name:		
Title:		

#### **REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF WASHINGTON**

The state of Washington has a statue, RCW 19.100.180, which may supersede the Franchise Agreement in your relationship with the Franchisor, including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions which may supersede the Franchise Agreement in your relationship with the Franchisor, including the areas of termination and renewal of your Franchise.

In any arbitration involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration site shall be either in the State of Washington or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration, or as determined by the arbitrator.

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW shall prevail.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee shall not include rights under the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act or rights or remedies under the Act, such as a right to a jury trial, may not be enforceable.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this amendment.

Dated this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_.

#### SELLER:

KAHALA [RESTAURANTS] [HOLDINGS], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	
Name:	
Title:	

By:	
Name:	
Title:	

#### FOR THE STATE OF WISCONSIN

The Asset Purchase Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Purchaser") and Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Seller"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ and the Promissory Note and Security Agreement attached thereto by \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Maker") for the benefit of Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company (collectively, the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of the Agreement (this "Amendment"):

#### WISCONSIN LAW MODIFICATIONS

1. The Securities Commissioner of the State of Wisconsin requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, Wisconsin Statutes, Chapter 135 ("Fair Dealership Law"). To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. The Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, among other things, grants You the right, in most circumstances, to 90 days' prior written notice of termination and 60 days within which to remedy any claimed deficiencies. If the Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, the provisions of the Agreement shall be superseded by the Law's requirements and shall have no force or effect.
- b. If the Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of Wisconsin, to the extent that any provision of the Agreement conflicts with the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law such provision shall be superseded by the law's requirements.

2. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the Wisconsin law applicable to the provision are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement and Promissory Note and Security Agreement on this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

#### SELLER:

KAHALA [RESTAURANTS] [HOLDINGS], L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	_
Name:_	_
Title:	

By:	 	 
Name:		
Title:		

#### CONSENT OF SPOUSE

The undersigned is the spouse of the Franchisee identified in the Promissory Note and Security Agreement dated as of \_\_\_\_\_\_, between his or her spouse and Kahala [Restaurants][Holdings], L.L.C. (the "Agreement"), to which this Consent of Spouse is attached.

The undersigned hereby declares that he or she has read the Agreement in its entirety and, being fully convinced of the wisdom and equity of the terms of the Agreement, and in consideration of the premises and of the provisions of the Agreement, the undersigned hereby expresses his or her acceptance of the same and does agree to its provisions.

The undersigned further agrees that in the event of the death of his or her spouse, the provisions of this Agreement will be binding upon him or her.

The undersigned further agrees that he or she will at any time make, execute and deliver such instruments and documents which may be necessary to carry out the provisions of the Agreement.

This instrument is not a present transfer or release of any rights which the undersigned may have in any of the community property of his or her marriage.

DATED \_\_\_\_\_

(Signature of Spouse)

(Print Name of Spouse)

### <u>EXHIBIT E</u>

## TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Form of Franchise Agreement

## **FRANCHISE AGREEMENT**

## between

## KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C.

and

\_\_\_\_\_, a(n) \_\_\_\_\_

ARTICLE	E 1. GRANT OF FRANCHISE; TERM; SYSTEM STANDARDS
1.1	Franchise Grant2
1.2	Location of the Franchised Business; No Exclusive Territory or Other Rights
1.3	Franchisee Representations4
1.4	Term of Agreement4
1.5	System Standards5
1.6	Modification to System Standards6
ARTICLE	E 2. SELECTION OF LOCATION AND FRANCHISE DEVELOPMENT
2.1	Location Selection Procedures7
2.2	Lease and Purchase Approval7
2.3	Construction8
2.4	Signage9
2.5	Relocation9
2.6	Restricted Use of Restaurant Location10
ARTICL	E 3. OPERATIONS
3.1	Commencing Operations10
3.2	Supplies and Promotional Materials; Rollouts11
3.3	Fixtures, Furnishings, and Equipment11
3.4	Internet and Social Medium Sites11
ARTICLE	E 4. TRAINING, ASSISTANCE AND START-UP MATERIALS
4.1	Training Program
4.2	Employee Training12
4.3	Additional Programs; Continuing Assistance13
4.4	Area Representative
4.5	Confidential Operations Manuals14
4.6	Computer Systems; Debit and Credit Card Processing14
ARTICL	E 5. FEES AND DEPOSITS15
5.1	Initial Franchise Fee
5.2	Royalty Fee and Surcharge16
5.3	Advertising Fees
5.4	Depository Account

	5.5	Location Review Fee	.18
	5.6	Lease Guarantee Fee.	.18
	5.7	Lease Negotiation Fee.	.18
	5.8	Lease Procurement Fee	.18
	5.9	Additional Persons Training Fee.	.19
	5.10	Additional Training Fee.	.19
	5.11	Document Administration Fee.	.19
	5.12	Renewal Fee	.19
	5.13	Transfer Fee	.19
	5.14	Relocation Fee	.19
	5.15	Training Fee	. 20
	5.16	Annual Meeting Registration Fee	. 20
	5.17	Late Report, Non-Sufficient Funds and Default Fees.	. 20
	5.18	Audit Fees	. 20
	5.19	Data Fees	.21
	5.20	POS Help Desk Phone Support Maintenance Service Fee; Set Up Fee	.21
	5.21	New Supplier Approval Fee	.21
	5.22	Early Termination Fee	.22
	5.23	Payment Procedures	. 22
	5.24	No Accord or Satisfaction.	.23
AR	TICLE	6. PROPRIETARY MARKS	. 23
	6.1	Ownership and Right to Use.	.23
	6.2	Covenants of Franchise Owners.	. 23
	6.3	Limitations on Franchisee's Use of Proprietary Marks.	.24
	6.4	Non-Exclusive License of Proprietary Marks.	.24
	6.5	Notification of Infringement and Claims.	. 25
AR	TICLE	7. TRADE SECRETS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION	. 25
	7.1	Innovations.	. 25
	7.2	Confidentiality Agreement	. 25
AR	TICLE	8. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES AND INDEMNIFICATION	. 26
	8.1	Relationship of the Parties	. 26
	8.2	Indemnification of Franchisor	. 27
	8.3	Indemnification of Franchisee.	. 27

8.4	Special Power of Attorney	. 27	
ARTICL	E 9. OPERATING STANDARDS AND DUTIES OF FRANCHISE OWNER	. 27	
9.1	General Operating Standards and Compliance with Operations Manuals	. 27	
9.2	Authorized Products and Services		
9.3	Specifications and Standards for Supplies; Approved Suppliers; Rollouts2		
9.4	Compliance with Legal Requirements and Good Business Practices		
9.5	Maintenance of Insurance.	. 30	
9.6	Management of the Franchised Business.	. 31	
9.7	Inspections by Franchisor	. 31	
9.8	Shareholder Guaranty	. 32	
ARTICL	E 10. ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION	. 32	
10.1	Advertising by Franchisor	. 32	
10.2	Advertising by Franchisee	. 32	
ARTICL	E 11. ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES AND REPORTS	. 33	
11.1	Maintenance of Records	. 33	
11.2	Audit by Franchisor	.34	
11.3	Ownership Information	. 35	
ARTICL	E 12. ASSIGNMENT, SALE OR TRANSFER	. 35	
12.1	Prior Consent of Franchisor to Assignment	. 35	
12.2	Advance Notice of Proposed Terms and Right of First Refusal	.36	
12.3	Requirement for Consent to Transfer	. 36	
12.4	Death or Incapacity of Individual Franchisee; Change in Entity	. 38	
12.5	Assignment by Franchisor	. 39	
12.6	Restrictions on Security Interests and Subfranchising.	. 39	
ARTICL	E 13. RENEWAL OF FRANCHISE	. 39	
ARTICL	E 14. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION	. 40	
14.1	Default; Termination.	. 40	
14.2	Opportunity to Cure.	. 42	
14.3	Our Right to Take Over Management	. 43	
14.4	14.4 Remedies.		
14.5	Effect of Termination or Expiration.	.44	

14.6	Covenant Not to Compete; Conflicting Interests
14.7	Continuing Obligations47
14.8	Remedies47
ARTICL	E 15. NOTICES
ARTICL	E 16. CONSTRUCTION AND ENFORCEMENT; MISCELLANEOUS
16.1	Independent Contractors48
16.2	Severability and Substitution of Provisions48
16.3	Applicable Law and Forum; Waiver of Jury; Statute of Limitations49
16.4	No Guarantee of Franchisee's Success49
16.5	Existence of Various Forms of Franchise Agreements49
16.6	Franchise Owner May Not Withhold Payments49
16.7	Remedies Are Cumulative49
16.8	Interpretation
16.9	Waiver
16.10	) Litigation Expense
16.1 <sup>2</sup>	Cross Default
16.12	Cross Termination
16.13	No Third Party Beneficiaries51
16.14	Binding Effect; Modification51
16.1	Entire Agreement; Nature and Scope; Construction51
16.10	51 Terminology
16.17	7 Counterparts
16.18	3 Offerings
16.19	) Time
16.20	) Plurals and Captions
16.2 <sup>2</sup>	Joint and Several Liability52
16.22	2 Trademark Notice
ARTICL	E 17. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS AND REPRESENTATIONS OF FRANCHISEE53
17.1	Certain Representations and Warranties of Franchisee.
17.2	Additional Information Respecting Franchisee54
17.3	Acknowledgements of Franchisee55
ARTICL	E 18. SUBMISSION OF AGREEMENT

18.1	No Offer by	/ Franchisor5	8
------	-------------	---------------	---

#### **Exhibits**

- Exhibit 1 Ownership Information Sheet (applicable only if Franchisee is a business entity)
- Exhibit 2 Required Lease Terms (if applicable)
- Exhibit 3 Electronic Funds Transfer Authorization
- Exhibit 4 Guaranty of Contract Franchise Agreement
- Exhibit 5 Collateral Assignment and Irrevocable Special Power of Attorney
- Exhibit 6 Amendment to Franchise Agreement and Related Franchise Documents for Non-Traditional Locations (applicable only for Non-Traditional locations)
- Exhibit 7 State Specific Addendum (applicable only for the following states: California, Georgia, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, & Wisconsin)
- Exhibit 8 Single Unit Facility License Agreement (LA Fitness health club locations only)
- Exhibit 9 Amendment to Franchise Agreement and Related Franchise Documents for Stores to be Located within LA Fitness Health Clubs (applicable only for newly-constructed stores located within LA Fitness health clubs)
- Exhibit 10 Amendment to Franchise Agreement and Related Franchise Documents for Stores to be Located within Future LA Fitness Health Clubs (applicable only for newly-constructed stores located within future LA Fitness health clubs)
- Exhibit 11 Amendment to Franchise Agreement and Related Franchise Documents for Stores to be Located within LA Fitness Health Clubs (applicable only for conversions of stores located within LA Fitness health clubs)
- Exhibit 12 Bill of Sale (applicable only for stores located within LA Fitness health clubs)
- Exhibit 13 Franchisee Questionnaire

## NRGIZE LIFESTYLE CAFE®

FRANCHISE /	AGREEMENT
-------------	-----------

("Agreement")

#### PARTIES:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company 9311 E. Via De Ventura Scottsdale, Arizona 85258	(" <u>Franchisor</u> ")
a(n)	(" <u>Franchisee</u> ")
Telephone No.:	
RESTAURANT NAME AND NO.:	
EFFECTIVE DATE:	
TRADITIONAL RESTAURANT (YES or NO): _	
IF HEALTH CLUB LOCATION: HEALTH CLUB NAME:	HEALTH CLUB NUMBER:
RESTAURANT DESCRIPTION IF NON-TRADIT	IONAL:

A "<u>Traditional</u>" restaurant offers a full menu selection, and a "<u>Non-Traditional</u>" restaurant generally offers a limited menu selection. Non-Traditional restaurants consist of an event cart, kiosk or co-branded restaurant, or a restaurant located within a facility such as a travel plaza, gas station, convenience store, sports or entertainment venue, airport, military base, shopping mall, college campus or similar locations as determined by Franchisor.

To simplify the language in this Agreement, the terms "we," "us," "our" and the like may be used to refer to the Franchisor, and the terms "you," "your" and the like may be used to refer to the Franchisee.

#### **RECITALS:**

This Agreement is entered into with reference to the following facts and circumstances:

A. Franchisor has over a period of time and at considerable expense developed and established a uniform and unique method of operation, customer service, advertising, publicity, processes, recipes, techniques and technical knowledge in connection with the restaurant business, specializing in low-calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, nutritional supplements, and other beverage and food items. These restaurants do business under the trade name "*NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*" (sometimes referred to as "*NrGize*"). These recipes, techniques, processes and methods constitute "<u>Trade Secrets</u>." All of the knowledge, experience, Trade Secrets,

processes, methods, specifications, techniques and proprietary marks and information of Franchisor are referred to in this Agreement as the "<u>System</u>." The System may be changed, supplemented, improved and further developed by us from time to time.

B. Franchisor has owned and issued franchises to others for the operation of restaurants in the United States of America and in other countries. Franchisor has registered the trademarks and service marks "*NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*" and other related proprietary marks with the United States Patent and Trademark Office and, if necessary, with offices in other countries serving similar functions. These proprietary interests, trademarks, service marks, logos, insignias, copyrights, domain names, trade names and trade dress are referred to in this Agreement as the "<u>Proprietary Marks</u>."

C. Franchisor is engaged in the business of licensing to independently-owned businesses the right to use the Proprietary Marks in connection with the operation and promotion of the System.

D. Franchisee understands and recognizes that: (1) the developments and properties of Franchisor as recited above are of considerable value; and (2) it is of importance to Franchisor and all of its franchisees to maintain the development of the System in a uniform and distinctive manner, allowing Franchisee and all other franchisees of Franchisor to enjoy a public image and reputation greatly in excess of that which any single Franchisee could establish.

E. Franchisee desires to make use of the trademark and service mark "*NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*" and to enjoy the benefits of that mark, the other Proprietary Marks, and the System; and to establish an "*NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*" franchise to be operated in accordance with the methods, practices and procedures set forth from time to time by Franchisor in its confidential operations manuals, construction and design manuals, and related documents, both now existing and hereinafter developed (collectively, the "<u>Operations Manuals</u>"). Franchisor is willing to grant Franchisee the right to do so under the terms, conditions and provisions set forth in the following Agreement. (This Agreement, along with the Appendices, Addenda, Attachments and Exhibits, attached to it and/or executed with it constitute the Franchise Agreement, and are referred to in this Agreement as the "<u>Franchise Agreement</u>" or this "<u>Agreement</u>.")

F. Franchisee recognizes the necessity and desirability of protecting the reputation, goodwill, Trade Secrets, and confidential business information of Franchisor; and that disclosure of Trade Secrets and confidential business information, including specifics of the System to any third party, will cause irreparable damage and harm to Franchisor.

## AGREEMENT:

The parties agree as follows:

# ARTICLE 1. GRANT OF FRANCHISE; TERM; SYSTEM STANDARDS

## 1.1 Franchise Grant.

Franchisor grants Franchisee an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchise that includes the right to use the System and the Proprietary Marks (the "<u>Franchised Business</u>") as provided in this Agreement, at the following location:

Arena, Mall, Facility, or Center Name: (if applicable)	
Street Address:	
City/ State/Zip Code:	("Location")

#### 1.2 Location of the Franchised Business; No Exclusive Territory or Other Rights.

You must operate the Franchised Business only from the Location, including any catering services of NrGize Lifestyle Cafe menu items you provide. You acknowledge that the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchise granted under this Agreement is nonexclusive, that we are not granting you any territorial protection or any other exclusive rights, and that we, directly or through one or more affiliates, reserve the right in our sole discretion, and without compensating you or seeking your prior approval: (i) to establish, and grant to other franchisees or licensees the right to establish, a NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant or any other business using the Proprietary Marks, the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe System or any variation of the Proprietary Marks and the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe System, in any location other than the approved Location (including locations in the immediate vicinity of your Location), on any terms and conditions that we deem appropriate; (ii) to establish, and grant to other franchisees or licensees the right to establish, restaurants other than NrGize Lifestyle Cafe, including, but not limited to, Surf City Squeeze, Rollerz, Frullati Cafe & Bakery, Ranch One, Samurai Sam's Teriyaki Grill, Taco Time. Great Steak. Blimpie. Johnnie's New York Pizzeria, Cereality. Cold Stone Creamery, America's Taco Shop, Pizza Fresh, and Kahala Coffee Traders brand restaurants in any location on any terms and conditions that we deem appropriate (including locations in the immediate vicinity of the Location); (iii) to sell products identified by the Proprietary Marks or other trademarks, service marks or commercial symbols in any location through any distribution channels, including grocery stores, convenience stores, supermarkets, machines, delivery services stores. vending and restaurants other club than NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurants; and (iv) to take any other action that we are not expressly prohibited from taking under this Agreement.

We grant to you during the term of this Agreement, a non-exclusive right and license to operate a single restaurant at the Location only, using the Proprietary Marks and the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe System, subject to the terms, conditions and restrictions contained in this Agreement and in the Operations Manuals. This Agreement is limited to the operation of one restaurant and does not grant you the right to buy, own or operate additional restaurants. Unless you and we have otherwise agreed and signed the Amendment to Franchise Agreement Related Franchise Documents for Non-Traditional Locations ("Non-Traditional and Amendment") or the Amendment to Franchise Agreement and Related Franchise Documents for Stores to be Located within LA Fitness Health Clubs ("LA Fitness Amendment") as described in this paragraph, your restaurant will operate as a traditional-format NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant. If you and we have agreed for you to operate a Non-Traditional restaurant, you and we will sign the Non-Traditional Amendment in the form attached as Exhibit 6 to this Agreement, and incorporated herein by reference, at the same time as you and we sign this Agreement. If you and we have agreed for you to operate an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe located within an LA Fitness Health Club, you and we will sign the LA Fitness Amendment in the form attached as Exhibit 9 to this Agreement, and incorporated herein by reference, for a newly-constructed NrGize Lifestyle Cafe or Exhibit 10 to this Agreement, and incorporated herein by reference, for the conversion of an existing store to an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe located within an LA Fitness Health Club, and the Single Unit Facility License Agreement in the form attached as Exhibit 8 to this

Agreement, and incorporated herein by reference, at the same time as you and we sign this Agreement.

Except as expressly limited in this Agreement, Franchisor (for itself and its affiliates and designees) retains all rights with respect to all Proprietary Marks and the sale of *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* products anywhere in the world, including the right to:

a. Establish and/or operate (or license to any other person or entity the right to establish and/or operate) *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* stores owned or licensed by the Franchisor at any location;

b. Develop, market, own, operate and/or participate in any other business under the Proprietary Marks or any other trademarks (including trademarks identified in the Uniform Franchise Disclosure Document ("<u>Disclosure Document</u>") and other trademarks the Franchisor or its Affiliates own or have the right to license);

c. Develop, lease and/or license the use of, at any location, trademarks other than the Proprietary Marks, in connection with the operation of a system that offers products or services that are the same as, or similar to, those offered by Franchisor on any terms or conditions that Franchisor deems advisable, in its sole discretion;

d. Merge with, acquire and/or be acquired by any other business, including a business that competes with Franchisee's Franchised Business, or acquire and convert any retail stores, including retail stores operated by competitors, or otherwise operated independently or as part of, or in association with, any other system or chain, whether franchised or corporately owned;

e. Distribute, sell and/or license other persons or entities to distribute and/or sell products through all other channels. "Other Channels" of distribution includes sale by or through other channels of distribution including, without limitation, catalog sales, telemarketing grocery stores, limited access highway food facilities, vending machines and similar automated dispensing systems, mobile units, off-site sales accounts, electronic mail, Internet sales, and movie theatres; and

f. Implement multi-area marketing programs that may allow Franchisor or others to solicit or sell to customers anywhere. Franchisor also reserves the right to issue mandatory policies to coordinate such multi-area marketing programs

## **1.3** Franchisee Representations.

Franchisee and all shareholders, partners, and members of Franchisee represent and warrant that each individual is a United States citizen or a lawful resident alien of the United States; that each corporation or other business entity that is a party to this Agreement is and shall remain duly organized and in good standing during the term of this Agreement; and that all financial and other information that Franchisee has provided to us in connection with Franchisee's application for this *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchise is true and accurate.

# 1.4 Term of Agreement.

The term of this Agreement will commence on the Effective Date of this Agreement and will terminate on the earlier of the following: (i) the ten (10) year anniversary of either the date you open the Franchised Business to the public or, if you are acquiring an already operating

Franchised Business, the Effective Date of this Agreement; or (ii) the expiration of the term of the real estate lease for the Location of the Franchised Business, excluding any extensions or other renewal options thereto (the "<u>Term</u>"), unless terminated earlier in accordance with *Article 14* of this Agreement or any other provisions of this Agreement, or renewed in accordance with *Article 13* of this Agreement.

#### 1.5 System Standards.

You shall operate the restaurant in accordance with the System Standards (as defined below) of food quality, cleanliness and customer service; and shall conduct and maintain the Franchised Business and Location so as not to distract from or interfere with the integrity and standards of the System. "System Standards" means the mandatory specifications, standards, operating procedures and rules that we specify in the Operations Manuals or other communications to you from time to time for the operation of restaurants operating under the System. We may change, improve, update and further develop the System Standards as provided herein.

You understand and agree that the operation and maintenance of your restaurant according to the System Standards are essential to the well-being and vitality of the System and to preserve the goodwill of the Proprietary Marks for us and for all other franchisees operating under the System. In particular, you understand that it is critical to the success of the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe System for all restaurants operating under the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe System to present a uniform and professional image to NrGize Lifestyle Cafe customers regardless of which location the customer visits. Therefore, at all times while this Agreement is in effect, you agree to operate and maintain the restaurant in strict compliance with each System Standard, including any periodic modifications or updates we make to the System Standards. We will inform you of System Standards in the Operations Manuals (which we may amend and update as provided in Section 4.5), or via bulletins or notices. Any information in the Operations Manuals or in bulletins or other communications from us to you regarding the operation of the restaurant will be considered a mandatory System Standard, unless it is clear from the express language that the information is merely optional or is intended by us as a suggestion rather than a requirement. By way of example, System Standards may regulate any one or more of the following aspects of the operation of your restaurant:

a. restaurant design, layout, decor, appearance and lighting; periodic maintenance, cleaning and sanitation; periodic remodeling; replacement of obsolete or worn-out improvements, fixtures, furnishings, equipment and signs; periodic painting; and use and lighting of interior and exterior signs, emblems, lettering and logos;

b. types, models and brands of required fixtures, furnishings, equipment, signs, materials and supplies;

c. containers, napkins, bags, cups, matches, menus and other packaging and similar articles;

d. required or authorized food recipes and ingredients, menu items, names for menu items, menu categories and menu layout and design;

e. designated or approved suppliers (which may include us and may be limited to us) of fixtures, furnishings, equipment, signs, products, services, materials and supplies;

f. standards and practices for food preparation and food safety, which may be more stringent than the applicable law in your jurisdiction requires;

g. terms and conditions of the sale and delivery of, and terms and methods of payment for, products, materials, supplies and services you buy from us or from other suppliers;

h. cooperation with and participation in sales, marketing, advertising and promotional programs (including discount coupons, special menu promotions, and entering into product and service agreements directly with third party vendors and service providers as required by Franchisor) and materials and media used in those programs;

i. use and display of the Proprietary Marks;

j. staffing levels for the restaurant and matters relating to managing the restaurant; and qualifications, training, dress and appearance of managers and employees;

k. days and hours of operation of the restaurant;

I. cooperation with and participation in market research and testing and product and service development programs;

m. acceptance of Franchisor's stored value gift cards, loyalty cards, frequency cards, gift certificates, vouchers, and any other Franchisor sponsored similar electronic card and/or payment programs (collectively, the "<u>Gift/Loyalty Card</u>"), credit and debit cards other payment systems, check verification services and use of point of sale computer systems. You agree to enter into a separate participation agreement with KGC, LLC, its successors or assigns;

n. bookkeeping, accounting, data processing and record keeping systems; computer hardware and software; connections to the internet or to proprietary networks; forms, methods, formats, content and frequency of reports to us of Gross Sales, financial performance and condition; adherence to the Operations Manuals or written directions; and furnishing tax returns and other operating and financial information to us; and/or

o. regulation of any other aspect of the operation and maintenance of the restaurant that we decide is necessary or desirable to enhance or maintain the efficient operation, image or goodwill of the Proprietary Marks and the System.

You agree that System Standards contained in the Operations Manuals or which we notify you of in writing, shall constitute binding provisions of this Agreement as if they were an integral part of this Agreement. All references to this Agreement include System Standards as periodically modified and updated.

## **1.6 Modification to System Standards.**

You understand that the quick casual smoothie and fruit drink restaurant market is extremely competitive and always changing and evolving. You understand that for the System to compete and flourish in this competitive environment, we must be able to review the standards, methods and procedures embodied in the System Standards and change them whenever we think it is necessary to adapt to changing market conditions, take advantage of new market opportunities or to improve the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* System. Therefore, you agree that we may periodically modify any System Standard upon thirty (30) days' written notice to

you, and you will implement and follow all our modifications to System Standards. Our modifications to System Standards may accommodate regional or local variations as we feel are appropriate in our discretion. We may also modify System Standards in the case of individual franchisees in our sole discretion. You also understand that we may operate *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurants under a variety of formats (for example kiosks, co-branded facilities or at stadiums, airports, convenience stores, etc.) and that System Standards may vary depending upon the format.

#### ARTICLE 2. SELECTION OF LOCATION AND FRANCHISE DEVELOPMENT

#### 2.1 Location Selection Procedures.

You must select a Location approved by us in writing, for your Franchised Business within two (2) years of the Effective Date of this Agreement. If you cannot secure an acceptable Location for your Franchised Business within two (2) years of the Effective Date of this Agreement, then we may terminate this Agreement by giving you written notice to that effect. Because you have had at least fourteen (14) days to review and consider this investment, we will have no obligation to refund to you all or any part of your Initial Franchise Fee (as defined in *Section 5.1* of this Agreement). You are ultimately responsible for selection of the Location. We will not have any liability to you with respect to your selection of the Location, any assistance we provide you in making your selection or our recommendation or approval of any location. You agree that your selection of the Location will be based on your own independent investigation of the suitability of the Location.

#### 2.2 Lease and Purchase Approval.

If you intend to lease the Location for your Franchised Business, the lease will be subject to our prior approval, and you must provide us with a copy of the lease and details relating to square footage, rental per square foot, the term of the lease, and such other terms as we reasonable require at least thirty (30) days prior to executing the lease. You and your attorneys shall be responsible for negotiating the terms of the lease, which shall be subject to our final approval. If you do not submit all of the required documents to us, we will not approve your lease. We have no liability to you regarding the terms or negotiations of the lease. You must pay us a nonrefundable location review fee of \$1,250 in the form of a cashier's or bank check (the "Location Review Fee") in order to compensate us for our time and effort in reviewing the lease. Each such lease must contain the provisions set forth in Exhibit 2 attached to this Agreement and incorporated herein by reference, and must specifically state that we are a third party beneficiary of the lease. If we cure any default by you under the lease, any amounts that we pay to cure the default will be payable by you to us on demand, together with interest thereon, at the rate of one and one-half percent (11/2%) per month from the date we make such payment; or, if less, at the maximum rate that does not violate applicable state usury laws (the "Default Rate").

If you intend to purchase the Location for your Franchised Business, the terms of such purchase shall be subject to our prior approval, and you must provide us with a copy of the purchase agreement and details relating to square footage, price per square foot and such other terms as we reasonably require, at least thirty (30) days prior to executing the purchase agreement.

You acknowledge and understand that our approval of any specific location, lease or purchase agreement does not in any way guarantee or ensure its success or profitability, or its conformity to applicable laws, and such approvals are only for our own benefit.

## 2.3 Construction.

You must, at your own cost and expense, construct, furnish and equip the a. Franchised Business at the Location selected by you and approved by us, in accordance with plans and specifications approved by us and/or our third party approved architect. Our approval of the plans is solely for complying with our System Standards, and not for determining compliances with codes, ordinances or the legal requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (the "ADA"). You are solely responsible for ensuring that your Location conforms to all codes and ordinances, including the ADA. You must, at your own cost and expense, use our designated and approved third party design architect (the "Design Architect") to prepare the initial design drawings for your Franchised Business. The Design Architect must provide us with one (1) set of the design drawings, which is the detailed plans and specifications including landscaping and parking space, if applicable, (the "Plans") for your Franchised Business. We will provide you with a copy of the Plans upon our approval of the Plans. You must also, at your own cost and expense, retain a licensed architect of record to prepare the permitted construction set of drawings. The permitted construction set of drawings must be submitted to us for our files prior to the start of construction. In addition, you must obtain the appropriate construction documents, and all mechanical, plumbing, electrical and architectural plans must be sealed and stamped, as Franchisor may require, even if the Location's local government does not require same.

b. Any material modifications to the approved Plans must be submitted to us for approval, and you will not undertake any construction until such modifications have been approved by us. Such modifications do not constitute any representation by us that the Plans comply with applicable zoning laws, building codes or other laws.

c. You will be responsible for the cost of obtaining all necessary governmental construction permits and licenses, and you must, at your expense, comply with all laws, zoning ordinances, rules and regulations of any governmental agencies that may govern the construction of the Franchised Business in accordance with the approved Plans. We will have the right, but are not required, to meet with the Design Architect and/or inspect the construction during its course in order to assure that the provisions of this *Section 2.3* are being observed; and you agree to allow our authorized representatives, at any and all times while construction is in progress, to meet with the licensed architect and general contractor and enter onto the Location for this purpose. If we determine in good faith that the provisions of this *Section 2.3* are not being observed, you will, at your expense, immediately take all necessary corrective action.

d. You must, at your own cost and expense, use a general contractor that is licensed, and if applicable, registered in the state where your restaurant is being constructed. The general contractor must have prior experience in the construction of quick-service restaurants.

e. You acknowledge that the design and appearance of the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant is part of the System, and that uniformity is essential to the success of the System. Therefore, you agree that after the restaurant has been constructed, you will not make any material changes to the building plan or design or its appearance without our prior written consent, and you will, at your expense, maintain the interior and exterior decor of the restaurant in a first class condition and in such manner as we may reasonably prescribe from time to time. In addition to any remodeling required by us upon the renewal of this Agreement and upon the assignment of the Franchised Business, as set forth in *Articles 13* and *14*, respectively, you will, upon thirty (30) days' written notice from us, and at your sole cost and expense, remodel and

make all improvements and alterations in and to your Franchised Business as reasonably determined by us to reflect the then-current *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* System specifications, standards, format, image and appearance.

f. A certificate of occupancy for your Franchised Business must be submitted to us approximately six (6) days prior to the day you open your Franchised Business to the public.

# 2.4 Signage.

You will acquire signs for advertising and identifying the Franchised Business as an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant. All signs must be in accordance with the System Standards and specifications of Franchisor and any local governing body (i.e. city, county, etc.). You acknowledge that quality control is essential to protect and promote our Proprietary Marks, standards, and uniform image, and you shall acquire all signs only from approved suppliers. In addition, you shall prominently display on all communications, forms, advertising, business stationery and business cards, and in a sign easily visible to consumers at the Franchised Business, the following words: "INDEPENDENTLY OWNED AND OPERATED."

# 2.5 Relocation.

a. If you desire to relocate the Franchised Business, you may request our consent upon the following conditions:

(i) Not less than sixty (60) days prior to the desired date of relocation (unless prior notice is impractical because of a required relocation in which event notice shall be made as soon as possible), you must make a written request for consent to relocate, describing the reasons for the relocation and providing details respecting any proposed new location.

(ii) Within twenty-one (21) days after receiving your written request, we shall either approve or disapprove in writing such relocation in our sole discretion. In the event of our disapproval of a relocation, you may request an alternative proposed new location pursuant to the provisions of this *Section 2.5*.

(iii) The current term of this Franchise Agreement will not be extended in connection with the requested relocation.

b. In order to have the right to relocate the Franchised Business, you must also meet each of the following requirements:

(i) You must not then be in default under this Agreement, and no event shall have occurred that, with the giving of notice, the passage of time, or both, would constitute a default under this Agreement;

(ii) You must be in complete compliance with the terms of this Agreement, including, without limitation, all financial obligations to us, and the then-current Operations Manuals;

(iii) You must neither have received more than three (3) written notices of default or breach of this Agreement during its term, nor more than two (2) such notices during the five years immediately preceding the effective date of the proposed relocation;

(iv) You must have the right to possession of the relocation site;

(v) You and we must execute an amendment to this Franchise Agreement indicating the address for your relocated Franchised Business;

(vi) The equipment, fixtures and signage used in connection with the operation of the Franchised Business must either meet our then-existing System specifications and standards, or you must agree, within a timeframe required by us, to replace or refurbish such items, and otherwise modify the methods of operation of the Franchised Business at your cost, in order to comply with our System specifications and standards then applicable to new franchise owners and;

(vii) You shall have paid to us a relocation fee in the amount of Five Hundred Dollars (\$500.00) as indicated in Section 5.14 of this Agreement.

c. If we approve the relocation of your Franchised Business, you must open your Franchised Business at the new location within ninety (90) days after you close your Franchised Business at the current Location. During the period of time between the closure of your Franchised Business at the current Location, and the opening of the Franchised Business at the approved relocation address, you will not owe the Royalty Fee (as defined in *Section 5.2* below).

## 2.6 Restricted Use of Restaurant Location

You may not wholly or partially sublet the Location without our prior written consent. The Location may be used only for the operation of an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant in compliance with this Agreement and the Operations Manuals. Franchisee shall not conduct other businesses or activities at the Location without our prior written consent.

## ARTICLE 3. OPERATIONS

## 3.1 Commencing Operations.

You agree to start operating your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant at the approved Location within two (2) years of the Effective Date of this Agreement. You acknowledge that before starting operations you must, at your own expense, do the following (in addition to any other requirements set forth in this Agreement):

a. Complete a food safety training program at your sole cost and expense. We recommend the SERVSAFE course available through your local county health department, or we will accept your local county or state required program or any other nationally recognized food safety program. You must provide us with a copy of your certificate prior to commencing training;

b. Complete the Training Program described in *Section 4.1* of this Agreement;

c. Purchase, lease or otherwise acquire all the signage, supplies, equipment, fixtures, inventory and all other items necessary to operate the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* Franchised Business from the list of approved sources provided by us; and

d. Obtain liability insurance in accordance with the requirements described in *Section 9.5* of this Agreement and provide to us evidence that such insurance has been obtained.

Prior to opening the Franchised Business, you must notify us that you have satisfied all

requirements to begin operations, and provide us with such documents as we may reasonably request that show your compliance with all such requirements. Upon receipt of our acknowledgment that such requirements have been satisfied, you will have five (5) days to begin operations of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant. If you do not begin operations of your restaurant at the approved Location before the expiration of the two (2) year period, then we may terminate this Agreement by giving you written notice to that effect. We will have no obligation to refund to you all or any part of the Initial Franchise Fee (as defined in *Section 5.1* of this Agreement).

# 3.2 Supplies and Promotional Materials; Rollouts.

You agree to sell only those menu items, products and services authorized under the terms of this Agreement and as specified in the Operations Manuals, and you shall use only supplies and ingredients in making those menu items that are in compliance with the standards as set forth in the Operations Manuals or other documents provided by, or approved by, us as they presently exist or may exist in the future. You shall purchase all such services, supplies and ingredients only from approved vendors and utilize approved distributor(s) as specified in the documents provided by, or approved by, us as they presently exist or may exist in the future. You must purchase promotional materials containing the Proprietary Marks, including stationery, business cards, promotional and advertising materials and similar items, from suppliers approved by us, except that we must first approve all such promotional and advertising materials containing any of the Proprietary Marks shall be accompanied by the words "INDEPENDENTLY OWNED AND OPERATED." Additionally, during the term of this Agreement, Franchisee agrees to participate in any Rollout of new products and/or suppliers, as defined in *Section 9.3* of this Agreement.

## 3.3 Fixtures, Furnishings, and Equipment.

Unless otherwise approved by us in writing, you will: (1) acquire fixtures, furnishings, and equipment to be used in the operation of your Franchised Business that is in accordance with the System Standards and specifications set forth by us in the Operations Manuals or other documents provided by, or approved by, us as they presently exist or may exist in the future; and (2) procure the fixtures, furnishings, and equipment from suppliers or vendors previously approved in writing by us.

## 3.4 Internet and Social Medium Sites.

You may not maintain a World Wide Web site, social medium site (including, but not limited to, a Twitter® account or a Facebook® page), or otherwise maintain a presence or advertise on the Internet or any other public computer network (collectively, the "Site") in connection with the Franchised Business without our prior written approval, which we may withhold in our sole discretion. If we grant you written approval, you agree to submit to us for approval before use true and correct printouts of all Site pages you propose to use in connection with the Franchised Business. You understand and agree that our right of approval of all such Site pages is necessitated by the fact that such Site pages will include and be inextricably linked with our Proprietary Marks. If we approve your use of a Site, you may only use Site pages that we have approved. Your Site must conform to all of our website and social medium site requirements, policies and procedures, as set forth in the Operations Manuals or otherwise. You agree to provide all hyperlinks or other URLs that we require. If we grant approval for a Site, you may not use any of our proprietary Marks on the Site except as we expressly permit. You may not post any of our proprietary, confidential or copyrighted material or information on the Site without our prior written permission. If you wish to modify your

approved Site, all proposed modifications must also receive our prior written approval. You explicitly understand that you may not post on any Site (whether yours or someone else's) any material in which a third-party has any direct or indirect ownership interest (including, without limitation, video clips, photographs, sound bites, copyrighted text, trademarks or service marks, or any other text or image which any third-party may claim intellectual property or other rights in). If we grant approval, you agree to list on the Site any website maintained by us, and any other information we require in the manner we dictate. You agree to obtain our prior written approval for any Internet domain name, home page address and/or URL. The requirement for our prior approval set forth in this Section 3.4 will apply to all activities on the Internet or other mail addresses and may conduct individual e-mail communications without our prior written approval. You agree to obtain our prior approval set for obtain our prior approval as provided above if you propose to send advertising to multiple addresses via e-mail.

# ARTICLE 4. TRAINING, ASSISTANCE AND START-UP MATERIALS

## 4.1 Training Program.

We will provide you and one (1) of your employees (i.e., two natural persons), with a training program designed to inform the participants as to the fundamentals of operating the Franchised Business prior to your opening of the Franchised Business. The training program is made up of the "In-Store Training," which is approximately two (2) days, and "New Owner Training," which is approximately five (5) days (collectively, the "Training Program"). All personnel attending the Training Program must have a demonstrable relationship to the management and operation of the Franchised Business. The Training Program and all requisite materials will be provided for you and one (1) of your employees for no additional fee. If you will employ an on-site manager, that individual must complete the Training Program, and must adequately speak and read English. You will be solely responsible for all transportation costs, food, lodging and other personal expenses incurred by you and your employees in connection with the Training Program. The New Owner Training will be conducted at the Kahala Training and Education Center (KTEC) in Scottsdale, and the In-Store Training will be conducted at a training store in Arizona or such other location as we may designate at our sole discretion. You acknowledge that adequate knowledge regarding the operation of the Franchised Business is essential to the success of your franchise and to the promotion of the System. Based upon your prior experience in the food service industry and subject to our approval, we may waive all or a portion of the Training Program. If at any time during the operation of your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant you hire a new manager, the new manager must successfully complete the Training Program.

## 4.2 Employee Training.

You acknowledge that the employees of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* Franchised Business are an integral and important part of the Franchised Business, as they will have substantial contact with customers. You are responsible for the hiring, training, terms of employment and compensation of your employees, and for their compliance with the policies and procedures set forth in the Operations Manuals. You must insure that your employees are able to speak and read English and any other language that may be required to adequately meet the public needs in your Franchised Business. We will make videotaped training programs available online from time to time that you may elect to use in connection with your employee training program.

#### 4.3 Additional Programs; Continuing Assistance.

We will provide one (1) of our representatives to come to your restaurant during opening week for up to three (3) days, at our expense, to work with you or your manager on your grand opening, and on operating and marketing your restaurant. We may, in the future, request that you and your executive personnel participate in refresher or additional training programs. We may also hold an annual conference to introduce new products, discuss sales and marketing techniques, personnel training, advertising programs, merchandising procedures and other appropriate subjects. You may be charged a nominal registration fee for these programs, and you will be solely responsible for the cost of transportation, food, lodging and other personal expenses of your attendance incurred by you and your executive personnel at any such program. Attendance at these additional training programs and conferences is mandatory. They will be held in the metropolitan Phoenix, Arizona area, or at other locations in the United States chosen by us, at our sole discretion.

In addition to the initial training available under *Section 4.1* of this Agreement, we shall provide such periodic supervision and assistance as we deem appropriate, utilizing our field representatives who may visit the Franchised Business from time to time. The frequency and duration of such visits to a Franchised Business by our representatives shall be in our sole discretion. In addition, we will be available on an ongoing basis at our offices for consultation and guidance with respect to the operation and management of the Franchised Business. In addition to the Operations Manuals, we may, but are not required to, from time to time provide you with additional materials relating to the Franchised Business.

#### 4.4 Area Representative.

We may retain the services of an independent third party area representative ("Area Representative") to represent us in the area in which the restaurant is located and perform some or all of the services we provide under this Agreement. The services the Area Representative may perform could include, but are not limited to: (i) assistance in location selection and evaluating and approving the Location; (ii) advice and guidance regarding lease negotiations; (iii) assistance in opening new NrGize Lifestyle Cafe locations; (iv) assistance with store training; (v) assistance with marketing advice; (vi) periodic Quality Service Cleanliness and Experience ("<u>QSCE</u>") evaluations; (vii) assistance with collection of the various sums due us from NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchisees; and (viii) coordination with other NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchisees in your area and general supervision and monitoring of your Franchised Business on our behalf. You agree in advance to our delegation to an Area Representative of some or all of our obligations, and assignment to an Area Representative of some or all of our rights, under this Agreement. You agree that we may require you to submit to an Area Representative any reports you are required to submit to us. Upon our request, you will provide the Area Representative with access, inspection and audit rights to the same extent we have those rights under this Agreement. You are not a third party beneficiary of any agreement between us and any Area Representative, and the Area Representative does not have authority to bind us to any obligation to you or a third party. If we have designated an Area Representative for your restaurant as of the Effective Date, the name and contact information of the Area Representative is shown in Section 17.3h and Exhibit 1 of this Agreement and incorporated herein by reference. We reserve the right in our sole discretion to remove any Area Representative in your area at any time and to appoint any other Area Representative for your area. We have no obligation to appoint an Area Representative in the area in which your restaurant is located, and we have no obligation to appoint a new Area Representative after we have removed an Area Representative.

You acknowledge that Area Representatives and their owners and employees may not contractually bind us without our express written authorization. You further acknowledge no Area Representative has the authority to: (i) enter into agreements or execute any agreements on Franchisor's behalf; (ii) or bind Franchisor in any way without Franchisor's prior written consent. Unless expressly authorized and agreed to in writing by Franchisor, Franchisor disavows any agreements, whether verbal or written, entered into by an Area Representative that in any way attempts to bind Franchisor. You agree to waive any claim or defense in any litigation or arbitration proceeding that an Area Representative is the express or implied agent of Franchisor and that such an assertion by you constitutes a material default under this Agreement.

#### 4.5 Confidential Operations Manuals.

To protect the reputation and goodwill of the System and to maintain the uniform standards of operation under the Proprietary Marks, you must conduct your business in accordance with our Operations Manuals (as defined in the Recitals above), which may be revised, amended, restated or supplemented by us from time to time. All equipment, decor, fixtures, leasehold improvements, supplies and inventory used by you in the operation of the Franchised Business must conform to our System specifications and quality standards and be purchased from suppliers and distributors approved by us.

The Operations Manuals will be provided to you at the New Owner Training referred to in *Section 4.1* above.

So that you may benefit from new knowledge gained by us as to improved techniques in the operation of the Franchised Business, we may from time to time revise, amend, restate or supplement the content of the Operations Manuals. However, no revision, amendment, restatement or supplementation will alter your fundamental status under this Agreement. You will at all times ensure that your copy of the Operations Manuals is kept current and up to date. In the event of a dispute regarding the content of the Operations Manuals, the master copy maintained by us at our corporate office will be controlling. You agree to incorporate and implement any improvements to the System as reasonably required by us, which improvements will be reflected in amendments to the Operations Manuals.

## 4.6 Computer Systems; Debit and Credit Card Processing.

Prior to the opening of your restaurant, you will be required to acquire and to a. exclusively use an approved cash register/computer system during the operation of the Franchised Business. The components and specifications of this system are specifically identified in the Operations Manuals (the "POS System"). You and your employees must complete training for the POS System as we require, and you will be required to use the POS System to produce sales reports, keep inventory control and post sales tax, refunds, credits and allowances and submit that information to us immediately upon our request. You are required to obtain DSL/high-speed internet connection service for your POS System. This requirement shall be defined by the then-current Operations Manuals, which may change from time to time. If neither DSL nor cable is available in your area, dial-up Internet access may be used until DSL or cable service becomes available in your area. The POS System must be configured so that we will have remote access to the information and data stored in it, which may include inventory information. This access will allow us to exchange/collect data and other information on such bases as we will communicate to you from time to time. You will be required to maintain the POS System in good working order at all times, and to upgrade or update the POS System during the term of this Agreement as we may require from time to time. It will be your responsibility to enter into contracts for the maintenance, support, upgrades and updates to the POS System with an approved supplier of such services by us on the list of approved vendors and distributors or other notification to you from us advising of suppliers for your market area. In addition, you shall, within thirty (30) days of receipt of written notice from Franchisor, obtain and purchase, at the sole expense of Franchisee, a cash register system or computerized point of sale system acceptable to us to permit restaurant sales to be polled from the corporate offices of Franchisor. You shall also be required to own a personal computer or similar device with access to the Internet that allows you to report your gross sales online and send and receive emails with us, and a fax machine to allow communication with us. In addition to email with Franchisor, the computer equipment will be used for providing reports to Franchisor, for communicating with Franchisor, and for communicating with third parties involved in the operation of the Franchised Business. We may provide specifications that you must follow for the hardware, software, and Internet provider for such computer equipment. We may require you to upgrade the hardware and software as reasonably necessary to provide reports and information required by us. We may require you to allow us to have independent electronic access to your POS System and the data relating to the Franchised Business.

b. You are required to accept debit and credit cards and Gift/Loyalty Cards from consumers at the Franchised Business. Prior to the opening of your restaurant, you will be required to acquire an approved debit, credit and Gift/Loyalty card processing system to use during the operation of the Franchised Business. The components and specifications of this system are specifically identified in the Operations Manuals. Additionally, you must utilize Franchisor's approved third party payment card processor, as identified in the Operations Manuals, for processing all such debit, credit, rewards, and Gift/Loyalty card transactions. The Payment Card Industry ("PCI") requires all companies that process, store, or transmit credit card information to protect the cardholders' information by complying with the PCI Data Security Standard ("PCI DSS"). Therefore, as a franchisee who accepts credit cards, you are required to be PCI compliant by following and adhering to PCI DSS, which includes, but is not limited to ensuring that your POS System, back office POS computer (if supplied), and any other device that is plugged into the POS network is **only** used for POS business purposes. You are also required to complete an annual questionnaire and quarterly network PCI scans and install a network firewall appliance for logging, tracking, reporting, and security assessment. We require your Franchised Business' POS System, including, but not limited to, terminals, computers, and software to be in compliance with the PCI DSS at all times. The PCI DSS is often updated, and you are required to obtain and comply with all updated standards.

## ARTICLE 5. FEES AND DEPOSITS

You agree to pay each of the following amounts to us in accordance with the following provisions:

## 5.1 Initial Franchise Fee.

The Initial Franchise Fee is Thirty Thousand Dollars (\$30,000.00) (the "<u>Initial Franchise</u> <u>Fee</u>"). The Initial Franchise Fee will be due and payable by you to us by cashier's check, wire transfer or other form of immediately available funds acceptable to us, upon your execution of this Agreement. You and we agree that our grant of the franchise and your payment of the Initial Franchise Fee provided for in this *Section 5.1* does not give you any rights with respect to other franchises, if any, as we in our sole discretion may elect to make available in the future. No portion of the Initial Franchise Fee is refundable.

## 5.2 Royalty Fee and Surcharge.

For the period of time commencing on the later of the date that you sign this Agreement or the date the Franchised Business opens to the public until the end of the first six months your store is opened to the public, you must pay to us a weekly royalty fee equal to six percent (6%) of total Gross Sales (as defined below); and for the period of time commencing on the first day of the seventh month after your store opened to the public, and for the duration of the Term of this Agreement, you must pay to us a weekly royalty fee equal to the greater of the following: (i) six percent (6%) of total Gross Sales (as defined below); or (ii) \$150.00 (the "<u>Royalty Fee</u>"). If we or the landlord of the Location require you to remodel your Franchised Business, or if there is a disaster at your Franchised Business, such as a fire, flood or damage caused by an act of God, you may temporarily close your Franchised Business and must provide us or our authorized representative with notice of such temporary closure within twenty-four (24) hours of such closure. The temporary closure of your Franchised Business shall not exceed ninety (90) days, but may be extended on a case by case basis at our sole discretion and with our prior written approval. During the period of time of such temporary closure, you are not required to pay the Royalty Fee.

In our sole discretion, we may charge, addition to the Royalty Fee, a surcharge of up to \$10 per week if your franchised business is located in a state that imposed additional reporting requirements on a franchisor (<u>"Surcharge</u>"). The Royalty Fee and applicable Surcharge shall be due and payable no later than Thursday of each week, which day may be modified by Franchisor, for the week ending on the preceding Sunday in which applicable Gross Sales (ad defined below) were earned from the Franchised Business. The weekly Royalty Fee and applicable Surcharge shall be paid by electronic funds transfer, as detailed below.

You are required to report Gross Sales to our designated accounting office via the Internet at <u>http://franchisee.kahalamgmt.com</u> as set forth in the Operations Manuals, by the close of business on each Monday for the week ending on the preceding Sunday, commencing on the Effective Date and continuing through the Term of the Franchise Agreement. You shall be required to establish a Depository Account at the time you execute this Agreement as set forth in *Section 5.4* below. Payment of Royalty Fees, Advertising Fees (as defined in this *Article 5*), and all other fees due under this Agreement to us shall be made via electronic transfer of funds from the Depository Account. To accomplish this electronic transfer of funds from the Depository Account, you must complete, sign and deliver to us a current Electronic Funds Transfer Authorization in the form attached to this Agreement as <u>Exhibit 3</u> and incorporated herein by reference.

As used in this Agreement, "<u>Gross Sales</u>" means all sales, money or things of value, received or receivable, directly or indirectly, by Franchisee on account of the Franchised Business, less applicable sales taxes and any documented refunds, credits and allowances given by you to customers in accordance with the Operations Manuals, but without deducting any of Franchisee's costs and expenses. All sales made from catering services must be included in the Gross Sales.

## 5.3 Advertising Fees.

a. Unless your Franchised Business is located in an enclosed shopping mall, health club, or other enclosed structure identified in *Section 1.1* above, and in addition to the Advertising Fees under *Section 5.3b* below, you shall spend on advertising and on promotion at least Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00) within the first six (6) months following the opening of the Franchised Business.

b. You shall pay to us or directly into a national advertising fund designated by us, and/or, at our sole discretion, to a designated Franchisor-approved regional advertising fund (any such funds are referred to below as "<u>Advertising Fund</u>") the amount set forth below (the "<u>Advertising Fee</u>"). Upon thirty (30) days' notice by Franchisor to Franchisee, Franchisor may unilaterally increase the Advertising Fee from its current level not exceed four percent (4%) of Franchisee's weekly Gross Sales. The Advertising Fee currently being collected by Franchisor that is applicable to this Agreement is immediately set forth below this subsection. The Advertising Fee shall be due and payable with the Royalty Fee under *Section 5.2* above. Advertising Fees are the property of the Franchisor and may be deposited by Franchisor into its general operating account.

Current Applicable Advertising Fee payable by Franchisee under this Agreement:

d. Franchisee's own local marketing and advertising should be developed to maximize your particular customer base. You should not rely upon a marketing program or plan by the Franchisor in the success or failure of your own Franchised Business.

# 5.4 Depository Account

You are required to establish, at the time you execute this Agreement, and maintain a depository account (the "Depository Account") at a bank or other federally insured financial institution (the "Depository"). You will initially deposit no less than \$3,000 into the Depository Account and are required to maintain a balance of \$3,000 or more in the Depository Account at all times by replenishing the Depository Account to \$3,000 after Franchisor makes withdrawals. On Monday of each week, you must submit a report to us regarding the weekly period which ended on the preceding Sunday, including details on Gross Sales and other statistical data as provided in the Franchise Agreement, Operations Manuals, or as otherwise specified from time to time by us. We will withdraw funds electronically on Thursday of each week from the Depository Account. The withdrawals are based upon the figures Franchisee reports and constitute Royalty Fees and Advertising Fees as described in Sections 5.2 and 5.3 of this Agreement. If you do not submit a report on any Monday, we may estimate the Royalty Fee and Advertising Fee based upon prior reports and withdraw the estimated amounts up to the entire \$3,000. We will return any overage within thirty (30) days of our receipt of your report(s). We shall not be responsible to you for any interest charges for any overage collected due to your failure to timely report your sales. Additionally, we shall not be responsible for any bank service charges incurred by you which result in the withdrawal of funds from your Depository

c. The Advertising Funds will be used for marketing, advertising, production and media expenses to promote the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* name, System, products and services. Franchisor is entitled to receive the following from the Advertising Fund: reimbursement of expenses, overhead, and employee salaries for services provided; and rent for office space provided to the Advertising Fund. We have no fiduciary obligation to you in connection with the operation of any Advertising Fund. No interest on unexpended Advertising Fees shall be imputed or otherwise charged for the benefit of, or payable to, Franchisee. You understand and agree that the only obligations we have regarding the collection and spending of the Advertising Fees or the administration of the Advertising Fund are the express contractual obligations in this *Section 5.3*. We are not acting as a trustee, fiduciary, agent or in any other special capacity. We do not give any representation or warranty regarding the quality or effectiveness of the advertising and marketing activities funded by the Advertising Fees or of the Advertising Fund, and we will have no liability to you with respect to how these funds are spent.

Account. You shall instruct the Depository to disburse each week to our designated bank, via electronic funds transfer by the close of business on Thursday of each week (or preceding banking business day, if Thursday is a bank holiday), the weekly Royalty Fee and Advertising Fee and other fees due for that week, which week shall end on the preceding Sunday. Under no circumstances shall such access to the Depository Account be deemed control or joint control of the Depository Account by Franchisor. You shall pay us Fifty Dollars (\$50.00) for each electronic funds transfer attempted from your Depository Account pursuant to this *Section 5.4* that is returned for non-sufficient funds. You shall also reimburse us for all other costs incurred by us in collecting or attempting to collect funds due Franchisor from the Depository Account (for example, without limitation, charges for non-sufficient funds, uncollected funds or other discrepancies in deposits or maintenance of the Depository Account balance in accordance with the terms hereof). The Depository Account shall be established and maintained solely for the purposes set forth in this *Section 5.4* and the Operations Manuals.

# 5.5 Location Review Fee.

You are required to pay us a One Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Dollar (\$1,250.00) Location Review Fee for our services of reviewing your lease if you have entered into a lease with a landlord. The Location Review Fee is non-refundable and can be waived in certain situations at the sole and absolute discretion of Franchisor.

# 5.6 Lease Guarantee Fee.

If, in order to obtain the lease agreement for the Location of your Franchised Business, the landlord requires you to obtain a lease guarantee, and Franchisor or one of its affiliates agrees to serve as such guarantor (with such determination to be made in Franchisor's sole discretion), you will pay Franchisor a fee in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the total amount of the rental obligations being guaranteed under the lease during its term up to a maximum fee of Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000.00) ("Lease Guarantee Fee"). The Lease Guarantee Fee will be due and payable to Franchisor upon Franchisor's (or any affiliate of Franchisor) execution of the applicable lease guarantee agreement with the landlord. Neither Franchisor nor any of its affiliates is required to serve as a guarantor of your lease for the Location of your Franchised Business; rather, the decision of whether to serve as a guarantor shall be made in Franchisor's sole and absolute discretion.

## 5.7 Lease Negotiation Fee.

If Franchisee requests and obtains assistance from Franchisor's real estate department in negotiating a term sheet to secure a lease or negotiating terms of the actual lease with the landlord or broker/agent for the landlord for the Location of the Franchised Business, a Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollar (\$2,500.00) lease negotiation fee ("Lease Negotiation Fee) will be payable to us by the Franchisee. The final approval and execution of the term sheet and/or lease and the provisions therein remain the sole responsibility of the Franchisee. If you elect to use the lease negotiation service, the amount of the Location Review Fee paid by you will be deducted from the Lease Negotiation Fee due (i.e., \$2,500.00 - Location Review Fee paid = Lease Negotiation Fee due).

## 5.8 Lease Procurement Fee.

If Franchisee requests and obtains assistance from Franchisor's real estate department in identifying a Location, visiting the Location, and negotiating the terms of the actual lease with the landlord or broker/agent for the landlord for the Location of the Franchised Business, a Five Thousand Dollar (\$5,000.00) lease procurement fee ("Lease Procurement Fee") will be payable to us by the Franchisee. The final approval of the Location and the provisions in the lease, along with the execution of the lease, remain the sole responsibility of Franchisee. The services provided by Franchisor's real estate department when the Lease Procurement Fee is paid includes all of the services as provided as part of the Lease Negotiation Fee detailed above in addition to assisting the Franchisee in identifying the location. If you elect to use the lease procurement service, the amount of the Location Review Fee paid by you will be deducted from the Lease Procurement Fee due (i.e., \$5,000.00 - Location Review Fee paid = Lease Procurement Fee due).

#### 5.9 Additional Persons Training Fee.

During the Training Program, we will train two (2) persons free of charge. If you desire to have more than two (2) people attend the Training Program, you must pay an Additional Training Fee of Five Hundred Dollars (\$500.00) for each such person to attend the In-Store Training and an Additional Training Fee of Five Hundred Dollars (\$500.00) for each such person to attend the New Owner Training, for a total Additional Training Fee of One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) (see Section 4.1 of this Agreement).

#### 5.10 Additional Training Fee.

If, after attending the Training Program, you desire to receive additional training, we will provide additional training time to you at a fee of Three Hundred Dollars (\$300.00) per person per day.

#### 5.11 Document Administration Fee.

A Five Hundred Dollar (\$500.00) document administration fee is payable to us when we must re-draft your franchise documents due to your request to: (i) change your name on the franchise documents from your name as an individual(s) to your entity name in which you are the sole owner(s) of the entity; (ii) change your name on the franchise documents from one entity name to another entity name in which the owners of the entities are the same individual(s); (iii) delete an owner's name from the franchise documents (unless the person has more than a fifty percent (50%) ownership interest, in which case such change would be considered a transfer pursuant to *Section 12.1a* of this Agreement); or (iv) such other cases, other than a transfer, in which franchisee requests a name change that requires us to re-draft the franchise documents.

#### 5.12 Renewal Fee.

A Five Thousand Dollar (\$5,000.00) renewal fee is payable to us when you renew your Franchise Agreement (see *Section 13g* of this Agreement).

## 5.13 Transfer Fee.

A transfer fee of either Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$7,500.00) or Twenty Thousand Dollars (\$20,000.00) is payable to us when you sell your Franchised Business (see *Section 12.3f* of this Agreement).

## 5.14 Relocation Fee.

A Five Hundred Dollar (\$500.00) relocation fee is payable to us when you sign the

amendment to your Franchise Agreement for your relocation (see Section 2.5 of this Agreement).

#### 5.15 Training Fee.

In addition to the Transfer Fee in *Section 5.13* above, in the event of a sale of the Franchised Business, Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor a non-refundable Training Fee of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$2,500.00) to cover the Franchisor's costs and expenses in providing the necessary training for the transferee of Franchisee (training provided is for two individuals, and a fee of \$500 will be charged for each additional individual trained over two).

#### 5.16 Annual Meeting Registration Fee.

If Franchisor holds an annual meeting, the annual meeting will be held at various locations throughout the United States as we may designate in our sole discretion, and may offer valuable continuing education programs. Because the planning and funding of the annual meeting (the "<u>Meeting</u>") must be done well in advance and requires a substantial financial commitment, we have the right to debit your Depository Account for the \$1,000 Meeting Registration Fee at any time sixty-ninety (60-90) days prior to the first day of the Meeting. This fee is not refundable and will be debited from all franchisees' accounts (even if you do not attend the Meeting). If you do not attend the Meeting, we will send to you one full set of the substantive materials that were presented at the Meeting.

## 5.17 Late Report, Non-Sufficient Funds and Default Fees.

If you fail to submit to us any financial statements, forms, reports or records required to be provided under this Agreement by its due date, including your weekly Gross Sales report for calculating your Royalty and Advertising Fees, you must pay to us a late report charge of One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00) per report.

If any fees or assessments due under this Agreement, including Royalty Fees and Advertising Fees, are not paid when due, interest shall accrue on the late payment (from the date payment is due until the date it is paid) at the Default Rate or the maximum legal interest rate (whichever is higher), which amount, plus a Fifty Dollar (\$50.00) late fee, shall be added to each late payment. For any payments made by Franchisee to Franchisor under this Agreement which are returned for non-sufficient funds of a processed check, Franchisee shall be charged a non-sufficient funds fee of Twenty-Five Dollars (\$25.00) per occurrence. Pursuant to Section 5.4 of this Agreement, for each electronic funds transfer that is attempted from the Depository Account but returned for non-sufficient funds, Franchisee shall be charged a Fifty Dollar (\$50.00) non-sufficient funds fee per occurrence.

If, as a result of your failure to remit payments required under any provision of this Agreement, we retain an attorney or a collection agency to collect such payments, you must pay all collection costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees, whether or not legal proceedings are initiated. Our rights under this *Section 5.17* are in addition to any other rights or remedies that we may have as a result of your default under this Agreement.

# 5.18 Audit Fees.

For the purpose of this *Section 5.18*, we will have the right, at any time during business hours, and with or without prior notice to you, to inspect and audit, or cause to be inspected and audited, the business records, cash control devices, bookkeeping and accounting records, sales

and income tax records and returns and other records of the Franchised Business and your entity's books and records.

You hereby grant us access to any computers utilized by you for such purposes and we will have the ability, at all times, via modem, to obtain daily and weekly sales reports and other financial records that the POS System provides. You will fully cooperate with our representatives, the Area Representative, if applicable, and independent accountants hired by us to conduct any such inspection or audit. In addition, in the event such inspection or audit is made necessary by your failure to furnish reports, supporting records or other information, as required herein, or to furnish such reports, records or information on a timely basis, or if an understatement of Gross Sales, resulting in an underpayment of Royalty Fees or Advertising Fees for the period of any audit (which shall not be for less than one month) is determined by any such audit or inspection or audit report, any additional Royalty Fees and/or Advertising Fees as a result of any such understatement, plus interest at the Default Rate from the date originally due until the date of payment and you must reimburse us for such audit or inspection, including the charges of any independent accountants, and the travel expenses, room, board and compensation of such accountants and our employees.

The remedies in this Section 5.18 will be in addition to all other remedies and rights available to Franchisor under this Agreement or otherwise available.

## 5.19 Data Fees.

We may require you to pay us or a third party we designate a data fee of up to Seventy-Five Dollars (\$75.00) per month for polling or collecting data from your POS System.

## 5.20 POS Help Desk Phone Support Maintenance Service Fee; Set Up Fee.

You may purchase from us a help desk phone support maintenance service that covers phone support for both the software and hardware for your FOCUS POS System, the cost of which is approximately \$660 per year or \$55 per month, subject to increase by Franchisor (the "<u>POS Help Desk Phone Support Maintenance Service Fee</u>"). The first year POS Help Desk Phone Support Maintenance Service Fee is included in cost of the FOCUS POS System. If you purchase this service for subsequent years, you may choose to pay the POS Help Desk Phone Support Maintenance Service Fee yearly or monthly. If you choose to pay the fee monthly, there is an additional annual set-up fee of \$25. If you choose to pay the fee yearly, there is no additional set-up fee.

## 5.21 New Supplier Approval Fee.

All requests for approving new or alternative suppliers must be submitted in writing by you and/or the supplier to our Purchasing Department. Each request will be reviewed in accordance with our then-current procedures and the supplier must meet our then-current requirements, which may include that our representatives be allowed to inspect the facilities of the proposed supplier, and that samples from the proposed supplier be delivered, at no charge either to us or to our designee for testing. A charge not to exceed the reasonable cost of the inspection and the actual cost of the test not to exceed \$5,000 must be paid to us either by you or by the proposed supplier. If approved, in our sole reasonable discretion, we will notify you and/or the supplier in writing within sixty (60) days of our receipt of an approval request. You must not offer for sale or sell any of the proposed alternative supplier's products until you receive our written approval of the proposed alternative supplier.

## 5.22 Early Termination Fee.

If you stop operating your Franchised Business before this Agreement expires without obtaining our prior written consent, you must pay us an early termination fee ("<u>Early Termination</u> <u>Fee</u>") for breaching your Agreement. The amount of the Early Termination Fee is calculated as follows:

a. Compute the average monthly Royalty and Advertising Fees paid during the twelve (12) month period immediately preceding the date we receive notification of the closure, or, if your Franchised Business has been open for less than twelve (12) months, the average monthly Royalty and Advertising Fees paid since the opening of the Franchised Business;

b. Multiple the average monthly Royalty and Advertising Fees calculated in a. above by the number of months remaining in the term of the Franchise Agreement; and

c. Divide the resulting total computed in b. above by 2.

For example purposes only: If the average monthly Royalty and Advertising Fees were \$1,000 and there were five years (60 months) remaining in the term of the Franchise Agreement, the Early Termination Fee would be \$30,000, calculated as follows:  $$1,000 \times 60$  months =  $$60,000 \div 2 = $30,000$ .

If you unilaterally terminate your Franchise Agreement prior to the end of the term of the Franchise Agreement, you must give us ninety (90) days prior written notice of the early termination (the "<u>Early Termination Notice</u>"). Within ten (10) days of our receipt of your Early Termination Notice, we will calculate the Early Termination Fee, which will be due and payable thirty (30) days prior to the closure of your Franchised Business. In the event that you do not (i) provide us with the Early Termination Notice at least 90 days prior to the early termination of your Franchised Business and this Franchise Agreement; (ii) remain open for at least ninety (90) days after providing us with the Early Termination Notice; and (iii) pay the Early Termination Fee in full at least thirty (30) days prior to closing of the Franchised Business, the Early Termination Fee due will be increased as follows: it will be calculated by multiplying the average monthly Royalty and Advertising Fees by the number of months remaining in the term of the Franchise Agreement, and will not be divided in half.

If you have not paid your Royalty and Advertising Fees for any period(s) within the twelve (12) months prior to notifying us of your early termination, or if you have not reported your Gross Sales for any period(s) within the twelve (12) months prior to notifying us of your intended early termination, we will estimate the Royalty Fee and Advertising Fee based upon prior reports to calculate the average monthly Royalty and Advertising Fees.

## 5.23 Payment Procedures.

Subject to reasonable advance notice for non-recurring payment amounts, we have the right to debit your Depository Account referenced in *Section 5.4* above, according the terms of your Electronic Funds Transfer Authorization attached to this Agreement as <u>Exhibit 3</u>, for any of the payments described above. If you do not pay all amounts due by the due date, we may suspend our services and support until your payment default is cured. Repeated failure to pay all amounts when due, whether or not the defaults are subsequently cured, can be cause for termination under Article 14 of this Agreement.

# 5.24 No Accord or Satisfaction.

If you pay, or we otherwise receive, a lesser amount than the full amount provided for under this Agreement for any payment due hereunder, such payment or receipt shall be applied against the earliest amount due us. In addition, if interest or late fees are owed, we may apply any amounts paid to the late fees and interest before such amounts are applied to the principal amount owed. We may accept any check or other payment in any amount without prejudice to our right to recover the entire balance of the amount due or to pursue any other right or remedy. No endorsement or statement by you on any check or payment or in any letter accompanying any check or payment or elsewhere shall constitute or be construed as an accord or satisfaction.

# ARTICLE 6. PROPRIETARY MARKS

## 6.1 Ownership and Right to Use.

We warrant to you that:

a. We are the owner of all right, title and interest in and to the Proprietary Marks;

b. We have granted to you the non-exclusive right to use the Proprietary Marks in connection with the operation of your Franchised Business;

c. We have taken and will take all steps reasonably necessary to preserve and protect our rights in the Proprietary Marks; and

d. We will only permit you to use the Proprietary Marks in accordance with the System and its standards and specifications.

## 6.2 Covenants of Franchise Owners.

a. You acknowledge our ownership of the Proprietary Marks, and you agree that during the term of this Agreement and after its expiration or termination, you will not directly or indirectly contest, or aid in contesting, the validity of the Proprietary Marks or our ownership of the Proprietary Marks, nor will you take any action which might impair or prejudice our ownership of the Proprietary Marks. You shall not, directly or indirectly, apply to register, register or otherwise seek to own or control any of the Proprietary Marks, or any confusingly similar mark thereto, whether in whole or in part, in any place or jurisdiction either within or outside the United States; nor will you assist any others to do so.

b. You agree that the license granted pursuant to this Agreement authorizes you to use the Proprietary Marks solely in connection with the Franchised Business only at the Location, and for no other purpose. You have no right to license or sublicense any aspect of the System or the Operations Manuals or any of the Proprietary Marks.

c. You agree to use the Proprietary Marks only in the manner and to the extent specifically licensed by this Agreement. You further agree that any unauthorized use or continued use of the Proprietary Marks after the termination or expiration of this Agreement will constitute irreparable harm subject to injunctive relief.

d. The license granted by this Agreement includes only the Proprietary Marks, now existing or which may exist in the future. This license does not include the right to use any other trademarks, service marks, trade name or trade dress owned by Franchisor or its licensor. You

agree that any and all goodwill associated with and identified by your use of the Proprietary Marks will inure directly and exclusively to our benefit, and that, on the expiration or termination of this Agreement, no monetary amount will be payable to you as a result of any goodwill associated with your ownership or operation of the Franchised Business.

#### 6.3 Limitations on Franchisee's Use of Proprietary Marks.

To develop and maintain high and uniform standards of quality and service and thereby protect our reputation and goodwill and that of the System, you agree to:

a. Operate and advertise the Franchised Business only under the Proprietary Marks authorized by us; and

b. Adopt and use the Proprietary Marks licensed by this Agreement solely in the manner prescribed by us.

You agree that your corporate, partnership or other entity name including, without limitation, trade name, will not include any of the Proprietary Marks, in whole or in part, or any terms confusingly similar thereto, unless first authorized by us in writing.

You agree to submit all advertising promotional materials and all printed matter, including stationery and business cards, and any materials to be used on the Internet to us for our written approval before you may use any of these items.

You agree that we may from time to time change or modify the System, including, without limitation, modifying existing Proprietary Marks or adopting new marks. You agree, at your own expense, to adopt, use and display any such new or modified Proprietary Marks within ninety (90) days of notification from us. However, if we require you to modify or discontinue use of our proprietary information and/or use other information and/or rights in its place at any time other than upon renewal of the Franchise Agreement, and that requirement is a direct result of proceedings or litigation that determined that our and our franchisees' use of the proprietary information a third party's rights, we will bear the cost of those modifications or discontinuances.

Upon your abandonment of the Franchised Business (whether voluntary or involuntary), termination or expiration of this Agreement, you must immediately cease to use, in any manner whatsoever, any of the Proprietary Marks or any other marks which, in whole or in part, may be confusingly similar to any of the Proprietary Marks.

## 6.4 Non-Exclusive License of Proprietary Marks.

You understand and agree that your license to use the Proprietary Marks is nonexclusive; that we, in our sole discretion, can grant to other franchisees the right to use the Proprietary Marks and obtain the benefits of the System, in addition to the licenses and rights granted to you under this Agreement; and that we may develop and license other proprietary marks in conjunction with systems other than the System (including the system for any additional concepts), on any terms and conditions we deem advisable. You will have no right or interest in any such other licenses, proprietary marks or systems.

# 6.5 Notification of Infringement and Claims.

You agree that you will notify us immediately of any apparent infringement of, or challenge to your use of any of the Proprietary Marks, or any claim by any person of any rights in any of the Proprietary Marks. You agree that you will not communicate with any person, other than us and our legal counsel, in connection with any such infringement, challenge or claim. We will have the sole discretion to take such action as we may deem appropriate to protect the Proprietary Marks and the exclusive right to control any litigation, United States Patent and Trademark Office proceeding, or other proceeding arising out of any such infringement, challenge, claim or otherwise relating to any Proprietary Marks. You agree to execute any and all instruments and documents, render such assistance, and do such acts and things as may, in the opinion of our counsel, be necessary or advisable to protect and maintain our interests in connection with any such litigation or proceeding, or to otherwise protect and maintain our interests in the Proprietary Marks.

# ARTICLE 7. TRADE SECRETS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

# 7.1 Innovations.

During the term of this Agreement, Franchisee and its principals, officers, managers and employees may conceive, invent, create, design and/or develop various ideas, techniques, methods, processes and procedures, recipes, formulae, products, packaging or other concepts and features relating to restaurant operations, business practices or the manufacturing, production, marketing and sale of low-calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, nutritional supplements and related goods now in existence and/or later developed, adopted, or improved in connection with the Franchised Business (collectively, the "Innovations"). Franchisee, without further consideration, hereby assigns any and all of its rights, title and interest in the Innovations, including any intellectual property rights, to Franchisor, and also agrees to cooperate with Franchisor and its counsel in the protection of the Innovations, including the perfecting of title thereto in Franchisor. In addition, Franchisee will require all of its principals, officers, managers and employees to sign an agreement in the form set forth in our Operations Manuals and incorporated herein by reference ("Confidentiality Agreement"), and shall be liable to Franchisor for obligating Franchisee's principals, officers, managers and employees to assign all of their rights, title and interest to the Innovations to Franchisor and requiring its principals, officers, managers and employees to cooperate in the obtaining, protecting, maintaining and enforcing Franchisor's right, title and interest in the Innovations.

# 7.2 Confidentiality Agreement.

a. In connection with the operation of the Franchised Business, you will from time to time receive, have access to, or learn certain information and materials that are proprietary to us. You and any person signing this Agreement under the heading "Personal Acceptance of *Sections 7.1, 14.6* and *14.8*" agree that you will keep confidential, and will not use for your own purposes, nor supply or divulge to any other person, any of our Trade Secrets, including our methods of operation, processes, techniques, formulae and procedures and the other proprietary information ("<u>Confidential Information</u>"). You acknowledge that much of the information imparted to you by us is confidential, constitutes Trade Secrets, are unique to Franchisor, and remains the sole exclusive property of Franchisor. Our Confidential Information includes, without limitation, the following:

1. The Operations Manuals and any amendments thereto;

- 2. Ingredients, recipes, and methods of preparation of food products;
- 3. Methods of operation of *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurants;

4. Information about products, services, or procedures before they become public knowledge;

5. Information which relates in any manner to our business or the System, whether oral or reduced to writing, and which is not generally known to, or readily ascertainable by, other persons who might derive economic benefit from its disclosure or use; and

6. Any other information which may be imparted to you from time to time and designated by us as confidential.

b. You and any person signing this Agreement under the heading "Personal Acceptance of Sections 7.1, 14.6 and 14.8" acknowledge and agree that the Confidential Information and any business goodwill of the Franchised Business is our sole and exclusive property, and that you will preserve the confidentiality thereof. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, all items, records or documentation recording or incorporating any Confidential Information will be immediately turned over by you to us or our authorized representative.

c. You agree to take all steps necessary at your own expense, to protect the Confidential Information and Trade Secrets, and to adopt and implement all reasonable procedures prescribed by us from time to time to prevent the unauthorized use or disclosure of any of the Confidential Information. We require that all of your executive officers, agents, directors, shareholders, trustees, beneficiaries, partners and managers who may or are likely to obtain knowledge concerning the Proprietary Information (and who do not sign this Agreement under the heading "Personal Acceptance of Sections 7.1, 14.6 and 14.8") sign the Confidentiality Agreement binding such person to preserve the confidentiality of the Confidential Information as part of the terms and conditions of such person's employment or association with you. You must obtain a Confidentiality Agreement signed by any such person prior to or at the same time that you begin employment of, or association with, that person. This will be a continuing obligation on your part, and will throughout the Term of this Agreement. You must keep each original signed Confidentiality Agreement and provide us with a copy of each Confidentiality Agreement when requested by us or our authorized representative.

d. This requirements under this *Section 7.2* will remain in full force and effect during the Term of this Agreement and after its termination or expiration.

## ARTICLE 8. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES AND INDEMNIFICATION

#### 8.1 Relationship of the Parties.

You and we agree that this Agreement does not create a fiduciary or employment relationship between you, any of your employees, and us, that you are an independent contractor, and that nothing in this Agreement is intended to make either you or us a general or special agent, legal representative, subsidiary, joint venture, partner, employee or servant of the other for any purpose. You shall not enter into any agreement on behalf of or otherwise bind Franchisor for any purpose.

# 8.2 Indemnification of Franchisor.

You agree to indemnify, defend, and hold us and our affiliates (including our parent and subsidiary companies), and our stockholders, directors, officers, members, managers, partners, joint venturers, attorneys, employees, contractors, agents, guarantors, successors and assignees (the "Indemnified Parties") harmless for, from and against any and all claims, liabilities, causes of action, demands, obligations, costs and expenses, damages, liabilities, judgments, proceedings, of every kind and nature, including reasonable attorneys' fees, (individually and collectively, the "Claims") suffered or incurred by any of the Indemnified Parties arising out of or relating to your construction, ownership, marketing, Promotions (as defined in Article 10), operation, including, but not limited to, your failure to comply with PCI DSS or any law, statute, regulation, order, rule, or ordinance, or management of the Franchised Business, except for Claims held to have resulted solely from our gross negligence or willful misconduct. Notwithstanding the foregoing, we will have the right, at our option, to defend any Claim, but you must reimburse us upon demand for the costs of such defense.

## 8.3 Indemnification of Franchisee.

We agree to indemnify, defend, and hold you and your affiliates, and their stockholders, directors, officers, members, managers, partners, employees, agents, successors and assignees harmless for, from and against any and all Claims, liabilities, causes of action, demands, obligations, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of any Claim of infringement or unfair competition in connection with your authorized use of the Proprietary Marks and/or Confidential Information, provided that such use is in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. However, if we require you to modify or discontinue use of our proprietary information and/or use other information and/or rights in its place at any time other than upon renewal of the Franchise Agreement, and that requirement is a direct result of proceedings or litigation that determined that our and our franchisees' use of the proprietary information infringed upon a third party's rights, we will bear the cost of those modifications or discontinuances.

## 8.4 Special Power of Attorney.

Franchisee agrees to cooperate with and assist Franchisor as may be requested by Franchisor from time to time to obtain, protect, maintain or enforce Franchisor's (IP/Trademarks/Service Marks), including, without limitation, executing documents and appearing as a witness. Franchisee hereby appoints Franchisor as his/her/its attorney-of-fact and grants Franchisor an irrevocable Special Power of Attorney, coupled with an interest, with full power and authority for the purpose of executing documents or taking such action as necessary or appropriate as Franchisee might or could do if personally present, hereby ratifying all that Franchisor, as Franchisee's attorney-in-fact, shall lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue of this Special Power of Attorney to obtain, protect, maintain or enforce Franchisor's (IP/Trademarks/Service Marks) if Franchisor is, for any reason, unable to obtain Franchisee's cooperation or assistance. The Special Power of Attorney granted by this *Section 8.4*, shall survive the dissolution, death, incompetence or disability of Franchisee and the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

# ARTICLE 9. OPERATING STANDARDS AND DUTIES OF FRANCHISE OWNER

# 9.1 General Operating Standards and Compliance with Operations Manuals.

You understand and acknowledge that every detail of the operation of the Franchised Business is important in order to develop and maintain high and uniform standards of quality, cleanliness, appearance, service, facilities and techniques, to increase the demand for the System, and to protect our reputation and goodwill and that of other *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchisees. You also acknowledge that the operation of the Franchised Business is your sole responsibility, and that we have no responsibility to obtain customers for you. Mandatory services, System specifications, standards and operating procedures prescribed from time to time by us in the Operations Manuals will constitute provisions of this Agreement as if fully set forth herein.

## 9.2 Authorized Products and Services.

a. You agree that you will not, without our prior written approval, offer at the Location any menu items, beverages, products or services that are not authorized by us for Franchised Business, as set forth in the Operations Manuals.

b. You have complete discretion in establishing the minimum price you charge for your products. Although we may suggest pricing strategy, you will have the final pricing decision.

c. Notwithstanding the terms of *Section 9.2b*, we may conduct periodic promotional campaigns during which a specified product or products are promoted at a specified price. During the promotional period, you may not charge your customers more than the specified promotional price, although you may charge less than the promotional price.

d. We may conduct new marketing, research and development, branding and/or operational program tests, which will generally be conducted with experienced, existing franchisees and may include incentives and other rights that are not available to all franchisees. We reserve the right to sell some of the products associated with the Proprietary Marks to different retail outlets, such as grocery chains or membership-based retailers, even if such retail outlets are located near your Franchised Business.

e. You hereby consent to third party vendors, suppliers and distributors sharing with us any and all information, reports, invoices and related documentation covering and otherwise detailing your purchases for the Franchised Business.

f. You are required to accept debit and credit cards (including, but not limited to, Visa®, MASTERCARD® and AMERICAN EXPRESS®) and Gift/Loyalty Cards from consumers at the Franchised Business. Prior to the opening of your Franchised Business, you will be required to acquire an approved debit, credit and Gift/Loyalty card processing system ("<u>Card Processing System</u>") to use during the operation of the Franchised Business. The components and specifications of this Card Processing System are specifically identified in the Operations Manuals. Additionally, you must utilize Franchisor's approved third party payment card processor, as identified in the Operations Manuals, for processing all Card Processing System transactions.

# 9.3 Specifications and Standards for Supplies; Approved Suppliers; Rollouts

a. You must purchase certain proprietary and/or required equipment and supplies utilized in the Franchised Business only from our designated approved distributors and/or suppliers. If, during the term of this Agreement, we change designated approved distributors and/or suppliers for any of the proprietary and/or required equipment and supplies utilized in the Franchised Business, you shall change to the new designated approved distributor and/or supplier within sixty (60) days of written notification of such change from us.

b. If you desire to purchase or lease any equipment, supplies or inventory items required in the Operations Manuals but not previously approved by us or from sources not previously approved by us, you must submit to us sufficient specifications, photographs, drawings, and/or other information and samples sufficient to allow us to determine whether such equipment, supplies or inventory items meet our System specifications. We may require that our representatives be allowed to inspect the facilities of the proposed supplier and revoke its approval upon the supplier's failure to meet any of our then current minimum System Standards and specifications. We may also require that samples from the proposed supplier be delivered, at no charge to us, either to us or to our designee for testing. A charge not to exceed the reasonable cost of the inspection and the actual cost of the test must be paid to us either by you or by the proposed supplier. We will notify you in writing within sixty (60) days of your request of our approval or disapproval of the proposed product or supplier, with such determination to be made is our sole and absolute discretion. You acknowledge and agree that our approval of any item or supplier of equipment, supplies or inventory not previously approved by us will not, in and of itself, make the supplier of that item an approved supplier for other NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchise owners in the System. We may, at our option, re-inspect the facilities and products of any approved supplier and revoke its approval upon the supplier's failure to meet any of our then current minimum System Standards and specifications. If you receive a written notice of revocation from us, you must stop selling disapproved products and stop purchasing from the disapproved supplier.

c. We will provide to you a list of all recommended and required items of equipment, fixtures, supplies, smallwares and interior decor. This list will be included in the Operations Manuals.

d. At any time or from time to time, Franchisor may at its sole option engage in new product Rollouts to add to or change the menu items offered for sale in the Franchised Business and/or the ingredients or supplier of ingredients utilized in the preparation of the menu items sold in the Franchised Business (the "<u>Rollout</u>"). If Franchisor engages in a Rollout, Franchisee shall participate in the changes that are the subject of such Rollout, including, but not limited to, offering the new menu items, changing the menu items, changing to the new supplier of the ingredients utilized in the preparation of the menu items. If Franchisor engages in a Rollout, it will notify Franchisee in writing of the details of the Rollout and provide Franchisee sixty (60) days from said written notification to take the applicable actions required by the Rollout.

e. You hereby consent to third party vendors, suppliers and distributors sharing with us any and all information, reports, invoices and related documentation covering and otherwise detailing your purchases for the restaurant covered by this Franchise Agreement.

## 9.4 Compliance with Legal Requirements and Good Business Practices.

You must, at your sole expense, operate the Franchised Business in full compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations. You must pay all costs and expenses incurred by, and in the conduct of, the Franchised Business, including but not limited to, all rent, salaries, taxes, disbursements, license or permit fees, traveling expenses and any other business expenses. You must immediately notify us in writing, and in no event, later than three (3) days of your receipt of any demand, action, suit or proceeding, or of the issuance of any order, writ, injunction, award or decree of any court, agency or other governmental instrumentality relating to your Franchised Business. Any such notice must be accompanied by a copy of the demand, complaint, order, writ, injunction, award, decree or other similar document. You must, in all dealings with your customers, suppliers, the public, and us adhere to the highest standards of honesty, integrity, fair dealing and ethical conduct. You agree to refrain from any business practice that may be injurious to the System or the goodwill associated with the Proprietary Marks.

#### 9.5 Maintenance of Insurance.

At all times during the term of this Agreement, you must maintain in full force and effect comprehensive general liability insurance against claims for bodily and personal injury, death and property damage caused by or occurring in connection with the construction, ownership, operation or conduct of the Franchised Business. The insurance must also include coverage for product liability and fire claims.

Such insurance coverage must be maintained under one or more policies of insurance (each of which shall be primary coverage and shall not be contributory or secondary to any other coverage) containing minimum liability limits of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00), combined single limit (or greater if applicable state laws or regulations require) for each occurrence and with an aggregate of not less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000.00). Such insurance policy or policies must be "occurrence" policies and not "claims made" policies; must not provide for a deductible greater than One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) in the aggregate and must provide that no act or omission of ours or of any officer, director or employee of ours or any affiliate of ours shall invalidate or diminish any coverage thereunder.

Such insurance policies must be issued by insurers having an A.M. Best's financial strength rating of at least "A-" or better. The general liability insurance required by this Agreement must: (i) name our parent company, Kahala Corp., as the certificate holder; (ii) name Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., Kahala Franchise Corp, Kahala Corp., their subsidiaries, affiliates, officers, directors, and employees as additional insureds; (iii) contain a waiver by the insurance carrier of all subrogation rights against us and our affiliates and our affiliates' respective officers, directors and employees for casualty losses; (iv) indicate the address of the Franchised Business being insured; and (v) provide that we will receive notice of cancellation of any such policy. Our minimum insurance coverage requirements are as follows:

Type of Coverage	Limits/Specifications	
General Liability	\$1,000,000 Bodily Injury/Property Damage Per	
	Occurrence / \$2,000,000 Aggregate	
Building Improvements and Betterments	100% of Full Replacement Cost – No Coinsurance	
Business Personal Property	100% of Full Replacement Cost – No Coinsurance –	
	Special Form	
Spoilage	\$10,000	
Business Income	Actual Loss Sustained or at least 50% of Annual	
	Sales	
Flood, Earthquake and Volcanic Eruption	Subject to Territory Limitations - required if in a	
	designated Flood Zone	
Workers' Compensation	Statutory Requirements	
Stop Gap or Employer Liability	\$1,000,000 by Disease	
	\$1,000,000 each Accident	
	\$1,000,000 Policy Limit	
Hired and Non-Owned Automobile Liability	\$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit	

Your landlord may require additional insurance, higher coverage requirements, or have specific requirements regarding additional certificate holders and/or additional insureds. You are responsible for maintaining insurance as required by us pursuant to this *Section 9.5*, as well

as maintaining insurance as required by your landlord pursuant to your lease. You must always keep the required insurance coverage in force at all times during the operation of the Franchised Business, and you must comply with any changes we make periodically to our insurance requirements. If your restaurant is located in a flood zone or an area subject to earthquakes, hurricanes, tornadoes, other similar hazards, you may want to obtain additional specific insurance to cover these risks; such insurance may significantly increase your premiums. Upon thirty (30) days' notice to you, we may require you to increase the minimum coverage of the insurance referred to above as of the next renewal date of any policy, and require different or additional kinds of insurance at any time, including excess liability (umbrella) insurance, to reflect inflation, identification of special risks, changes in law or standards of liability, higher damage awards or other relevant changes in circumstances.

At the time you sign your lease and annually, at least ten (10) days prior to renewal of your insurance coverage, and at any other time on our request, you must provide us with certificates of insurance or copies of insurance policies showing that you are in compliance with our insurance requirements, as well as proof that you have paid the premiums you owe for the insurance we require. You will pay your insurance premiums to your insurance broker or to the insurance company issuing the policy. You must have insurance and have provided a copy of your certificate of insurance to us which meets our requirements before you may open your restaurant. We may, at our option and in addition to our other rights and remedies under this Agreement, obtain such insurance coverage on your behalf, and you must promptly execute any applications or other forms or instruments required to obtain any such insurance and pay to us, on demand, any costs and premiums incurred by us. Your obligation to obtain and maintain the insurance described above will not be limited in any way by reason of any insurance maintained by us, nor will your performance of such obligations relieve you of any obligations under *Section 8.2* of this Agreement.

## 9.6 Management of the Franchised Business.

You are directly responsible for all aspects of operating the Franchised Business, and you agree that you will, at all times you operate the Franchised Business, use your best efforts to enhance your Franchised Business and the System. The Franchised Business must be personally managed and directly operated by either you or another partner, shareholder or member of your business organization, or a manager, who must have successfully completed the Training Program referred to in *Section 4.1* above.

If any manager leaves your employment or if your principal owner desires to later delegate control over the operation of the Franchised Business, a replacement manager must be designated by you and must complete the Training Program referred to in *Section 4.1* above to our satisfaction. You must immediately notify us of any change in management or supervisory personnel.

## 9.7 Inspections by Franchisor.

For the purpose of this *Section 9.7*, you must make available to us or our authorized representatives such financial and other information concerning the Franchised Business, and you must permit us or our authorized representatives, to have full and free access to such information at your Franchised Business Location during regular business hours without notice. We and our authorized representatives will have the right to communicate freely with your employees, and make extracts from, and copies of, all such information. Our authorized representative may make announced or unannounced inspections of your Franchised Business to ensure compliance with all of the requirements of this Agreement.

#### 9.8 Shareholder Guaranty.

If you are a corporation, limited liability company, or other business entity, each of your shareholders, members, or other owners (and their respective spouses, if married) must execute and deliver to us a Guaranty of Contract, in the form of Exhibit 4 attached to this Agreement and incorporated herein by reference, as a condition to the validity of this Agreement, at the same time that you sign this Agreement.

In the event any person who has not previously signed a Guaranty of Contract becomes the holder of any class of your stock or ownership interests at any time after the execution of this Agreement, you must cause that person to immediately execute and deliver a Guaranty of Contract to us.

## ARTICLE 10. ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION

#### 10.1 Advertising by Franchisor.

We (or at our election a third party which may be an affiliate of ours) will administer the Advertising Fund that will include your Advertising Fees and those of other franchise owners in the System. If an affiliate of ours administers the Advertising Fund or places advertising in connection with the System, such affiliate may be paid a fee that will not exceed the fee that would be payable to unrelated third parties for comparable services. Unless required by applicable law, we will have no obligation to create a trust account, escrow account or other special account for the Advertising Fund, and the monies comprising the Advertising Fund may be placed in our general account. We may also reserve Advertising Fees for use in a subsequent year.

We will direct all advertising and promotional programs. We will have sole discretion over all creative concepts, materials and media used in such programs and the placement and allocation of such programs. The Advertising Fund will be used for marketing, advertising, production and media expenses to promote the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* trade name, System, products and services. We are entitled to receive the following from the Advertising Fund: reimbursement of expenses, overhead, and employee salaries for services provided; and rent for office space provided to the Advertising Fund. We are not required to use any specific amounts from the Fund in your market. However, we will use all amounts contributed by you to any Franchisor-approved regional advertising funds, if any (see Section 5.3) in the same geographic area in which your Franchised Business is located.

## 10.2 Advertising by Franchisee.

In addition to your Advertising Fees, if applicable, and your grand opening promotional advertising program required under *Section 5.3* above, and unless your Franchised Business is located in an enclosed shopping mall or other enclosed structure identified in *Section 1.1* above, you agree to pay for a regular (white pages) and classified (Yellow Pages) telephone directory advertisement in the main directory distributed in the area where your Franchised Business is located, in such directory categories as we specify, utilizing forms of listing and classified directory advertisements approved by us. We also recommend that, in addition to your Advertising Fee, you spend at least two percent (2%) of your monthly gross sales on local advertising.

Your own local marketing and advertising should be developed to maximize your particular customer base. You should not rely upon a marketing program or plan by the Franchisor for the success of your own Franchised Business.

You must submit to us for our prior approval samples of all local advertising and promotional materials not prepared or previously approved by us. If written disapproval is not received by you within fifteen (15) days from the date of receipt by us of such materials, we will be deemed to have given the required approval.

Under no circumstances may you use, without limitation, the name, image, or voice of a celebrity, public figure, character or other person in connection with the Proprietary Marks or the Franchised Business without our prior written consent. We retain the sole and exclusive right to use, without limitation, the name, services or image of any celebrity, public figure, character or other person in advertising, endorsing or recommending the System.

If you decide to hold a contest, giveaway or sweepstakes (individually and collectively, "<u>Promotion</u>"), you must provide us with at least sixty (60) days' written notice prior to the start of such Promotion. You must also provide to us, with the Promotion notice, a copy of the official rules for the Promotion. As an independent contractor and owner of the Franchised Business, you shall at no time represent that your Promotion is affiliated with, sponsored by or in any way approved or authorized by Franchisor. In addition, as an independent contractor and owner of the Franchised Business, you agree that you are solely responsible for complying with all federal, state, and local laws concerning your Promotion.

# ARTICLE 11. ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES AND REPORTS

## 11.1 Maintenance of Records.

You shall keep full, complete, and accurate books and accounts in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and in the form and manner indicated below or as from time to time further required by us. You agree to submit reports and data to us electronically if we advise you to do so. Franchisee agrees:

a. to submit to us within thirty (30) days after the end of each calendar month, on a Franchisor-approved form, on Monday of each week before the close of business, a signed statement of weekly Gross Sales for the seven (7) day period ending at the close of business on the preceding Sunday;

b. to submit to us, on or before the thirtieth (30th) day of each month, commencing with the opening of the Franchised Business, on a Franchisor-approved form, a profit and loss statement of the Franchised Business for the preceding calendar month prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. to submit to us, within ninety (90) days after the end of each calendar year, commencing with the opening of the Franchised Business, on a Franchisor-approved form, a profit and loss statement and balance sheet (including a statement of retained earnings or partnership account) for the preceding calendar year;

d. to submit to us, at the times required, such other periodic forms, reports and information as may from time to be time be required by us;

e. to preserve, in the English language and for the time periods set forth below, all accounting records and supporting documents related to the Franchised Business (referred to below as the "<u>Records</u>"), including:

- 1. daily cash reports;
- 2. cash receipts journal and general ledger;
- 3. cash disbursements journal and weekly payroll register;
- 4. monthly bank statements, and daily deposit slips and canceled checks;

5. all tax returns, including personal returns of Franchisee, its officers, shareholders, partners and members;

- 6. suppliers invoices (paid and unpaid);
- 7. dated cash register tapes (detailed and summary);
- 8. semi-annual balance sheets and monthly profit and loss statements;
- 9. daily production, throwaway and finishing records and weekly inventories;
- 10. records of promotion and coupon redemptions;
- 11. records of all outside sales; and
- 12. such other records as we may from time to time request.

f. to record all sales on cash registers approved by us, as specified in the Operations Manuals;

g. to file all federal and state tax returns of Franchisee on a timely basis and to provide copies of them to Franchisor. We may, where applicable, require that tax returns from all shareholders, members or partners of Franchisee be provided to us, if Franchisee is other than an individual;

h. During the term of this Agreement, you shall preserve the Records for at least the current fiscal year and for the three (3) immediately preceding fiscal years. For three (3) years after the date of any transfer of an interest in this Agreement, the transferor of such interest will preserve the Records for its last three (3) fiscal years of operation under this Agreement. For three (3) years after the expiration of the term of this Agreement (or after any earlier termination), you shall preserve the Records for the last three (3) fiscal years of operation under this Agreement; and

i. In connection with our efforts to attract additional franchise owners to the System, we will have the right to use (without identifying you, except as required or allowed by law) any financial statements, sales reports, profit and loss statements or balance sheets provided by you and, in connection therewith, you authorize us to disclose any information contained on such financial reports as may be required by any federal or state registration or disclosure law.

## 11.2 Audit by Franchisor.

We will have the right, at any time during business hours, and with or without prior notice to you, to inspect and audit, or cause to be inspected and audited, the Records and cash control

devices of the Franchised Business, and your corporate, partnership or limited liability company books and records (if you are a corporation, partnership, limited liability company, or other entity). You agree that we may access any computers utilized by you for such purposes.

You will fully cooperate with our authorized representatives and independent accountants hired by us to conduct any such inspection or audit. In the event any such inspection or audit discloses an understatement of your Gross Sales for any period in question, you will pay to us, immediately after receipt of the inspection or audit report, any additional Royalty Fees or Advertising Fees due as a result of any such understatement, plus interest at the Default Rate from the date originally due until the date such understatement is paid in full.

In addition, in the event such inspection or audit is made necessary by your failure to timely furnish Records, or if an understatement of Royalty Fees or Advertising Fees for the period of any audit (which period shall not be for less than one month) is determined by any such audit or inspection to be five percent (5%) or greater, you must reimburse us all amounts incurred in connection with such audit or inspection including, without limitation, our employee costs, any independent accountants' and/or attorneys' fees, transportation, room, and meal expenses.

The remedies in this Section 11.2 will be in addition to all our other remedies and rights under this Agreement or under applicable law.

## 11.3 Ownership Information.

You must provide to us with a list containing the name, address, phone number, social security number, and entity ownership interest, for each officer, director, shareholder, partner, member, manager (and of each officer, director, shareholder, partner, member, and manager of an entity owner) or any other person directly or indirectly holding an ownership interest in you on the Ownership Information Sheet attached to this Agreement as <u>Exhibit 1</u>. You must advise us in writing of any changes in such information within five (5) days after such change is effective.

## ARTICLE 12. ASSIGNMENT, SALE OR TRANSFER

Sections 12.1 through 12.4 apply to all transfers, except transfers by Franchisor, which are described in Section 12.5.

## 12.1 Prior Consent of Franchisor to Assignment

a. For the purpose of this Agreement, "transfer" means any act or circumstance by which fifty percent (50%) or more of the ownership or control is shifted from any individual or entity to another; including, without limitation, if Franchisee is a corporation, any changes in the ownership of the stock of Franchisee or the issuance of additional stock of Franchisee or, if Franchisee is a partnership, limited liability company, or limited liability partnership, any change in or addition of partners or members.

b. We are entering into this Agreement based upon our knowledge of and faith in the ability of Franchisee. Therefore, the Franchised Business and all the rights granted by this Agreement are personal to Franchisee and may not be assigned or transferred by Franchisee without Franchisor's prior written consent. Any attempt to assign or transfer: (i) any right under this Agreement; (ii) any interest in any entity holding an interest in this Agreement; (iii) all or any portion of the Franchised Business; or (iv) any assets now owned or later acquired by Franchisee during the Term of this Agreement that are located at and/or utilized in the operation of the Franchised

Business, without Franchisor's prior written consent, will be null and void; and will give us the right to terminate this Agreement and your rights under it, in addition to any remedies which we may have for the breach of this covenant by reason of an attempted assignment or transfer.

c. We shall not unreasonably withhold our consent to an assignment or transfer, so long as it is shown to the satisfaction of Franchisor that the proposed transferee can perform a franchisee's obligations under the then-current form of agreement required of new franchisees. The proposed transferee must execute the then-current form of franchise agreement and all other agreements, legal instruments, and documents used by us in the assignment of our franchises. The then-current form of franchise agreement, and other legal documents, may vary materially from the agreements currently used by Franchisor, including the payment of higher Royalty Fees and Advertising Fees.

# 12.2 Advance Notice of Proposed Terms and Right of First Refusal

a. If you, or any shareholder, member or partner of Franchisee, have received and desire to accept a signed bona fide written offer from a third party to purchase: (i) Franchisee's rights under this Agreement, or any part of it; (ii) any interest in any entity holding an interest in this Agreement; (iii) all or any portion of the Franchised Business; or (iv) any assets now owned or later acquired by Franchisee during the Term of this Agreement that are located at and/or utilized in operation of the Franchised Business, and before making any binding commitment regarding such transfer, you shall notify us and provide us with a complete copy of the offer (letter of intent) which must include the name, address and telephone number for every proposed transferee. Franchisee must also include information as to the identity of all who will own an interest in this Agreement or in the Franchised Business after the completion of the transfer, their respective interests, and the proposed terms and conditions of sale and payment.

b. Franchisor shall have the right and option, exercisable within thirty (30) days after the date Franchisor receives its copy of the offer, to purchase the interest proposed to be transferred, at the price and upon the same terms and conditions specified in the notice.

c. If Franchisor does not exercise this option, and the terms of the unaccepted offer are altered, we must, in each such instance, be notified by Franchisee of the changed offer; and we will again have thirty (30) days to exercise our right to purchase on the altered terms. If Franchisor does not exercise its option, then the transfer may take place on the terms and price set forth in the notice; provided: (i) Franchisor gives its written consent; (ii) the transfer takes place no later than six (6) months from receipt of Franchisor's written refusal to exercise its option to purchase; and (iii) all the conditions set forth in *Section 12.3* below are satisfied.

# 12.3 Requirement for Consent to Transfer

If a transfer of: (i) any right under this Agreement; (ii) any interest in any entity holding an interest in this Agreement; (iii) all or any portion of the Franchised Business; or (iv) any assets now owned or later acquired by Franchisee during the Term of this Agreement that are located at and/or utilized in the operation of the Franchised Business, is proposed and Franchisor does not exercise its right to purchase pursuant to the preceding Section, then Franchisor will consent to the transfer, provided that:

a. Each transferee provides to us a completed application and financial documents, is financially acceptable, is not associated with a competitor of Franchisor, is of good moral character and reputation, and meets Franchisor's criteria, which includes: work experience and aptitude; ability to devote time and best efforts to the Franchised Business; equity interest in the Franchised

Business; ability to speak and read English sufficient in the opinion of Franchisor to communicate with employees, customers and suppliers and to satisfactorily complete Franchisor's training; no conflicting interests; and other criteria and conditions that Franchisor applies to new franchisees;

b. Franchisee provides to us a copy of the purchase and sale agreement, and following our analysis of the terms and conditions of the proposed transfer, Franchisor, in its sole discretion, concludes that such terms and conditions will not interfere with the financial feasibility of the future operation of the Franchised Business;

c. Each transferee shall have completed the Training Program as required under *Section 4.1* of this Agreement;

d. Each transferee enters into all Franchisor current forms of agreements then being required of new franchisees. The terms of the then-current franchise agreement may vary materially from the current agreements used by Franchisor, including the payment of higher Royalty Fees and Advertising Fees. Unless a longer period is agreed upon between Franchisor and the transferee, the term of the transferee's franchise agreement shall be for the unexpired term of this Agreement; and unless a longer term is agreed upon by Franchisor, the transferee will not pay an Initial Franchise Fee as provided in *Section 5.1* of this Agreement;

e. All obligations of Franchisee under this Agreement are fully paid and satisfied; Franchisee is not in default under any provisions of this Agreement or any other agreement with Franchisor; and Franchisee and transferee enter into a written assignment of Franchised Business with Franchisor, including (except where prohibited by law) a general release by Franchisee of all claims against Franchisor;

f. You or the transferee shall have paid to us a non-refundable Transfer Fee in the amount of: (i) Twenty Thousand Dollars (\$20,000.00), if the assignment or sale is consummated prior to the expiration of twenty-four (24) months from the Effective Date of this Agreement; or (ii) Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$7,500.00), if the assignment or sale is consummated after twenty-four (24) months from the Effective Date of this Agreement;

g. In addition to the Transfer Fee in *Section 12.3f* above, either Franchisee or transferee (as agreed to by Franchisee and transferee) shall pay to Franchisor a non-refundable Training Fee of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$2,500.00) to cover the Franchisor's costs and expenses in providing the necessary training for the transferee of Franchisee (training provided is for two individuals, and a fee of Five Hundred Dollars (\$500.00) will be charged for each additional individual trained over two);

h. The transferee agrees to complete all remodeling and improvements as required by us, within the time period specified by us; and

i. Franchisee and transferee agree not to assert any security interest, lien, right or claim now or in the future, in the Franchised Business. Any security interest, lien, claim or right asserted with respect to any personal property at the Location must not include any afteracquired property and must be subject, junior and subordinate to any security interest, lien, right or claim now or in the future, asserted by Franchisor, its successors or assigns.

j. Franchisee agrees to complete and sign a letter of agency, letter of authorization, or equivalent and provide it to transferee so that transferee may keep the existing telephone number when the store is transferred to transferee.

### 12.4 Death or Incapacity of Individual Franchisee; Change in Entity.

a. Death or incapacity of Franchisee that is an individual:

(i) In the event of the death or incapacity of an individual Franchisee, the legal representative of the individual Franchisee may for a period of ninety (90) days from the date of death or incapacitation continue to operate the Franchised Business, provided that the operation is conducted in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and any other agreements with Franchisor.

(ii) If a representative of Franchisee desires to continue the operation of the Franchised Business beyond the ninety (90) day period, then prior to the expiration of this period, the legal representative of the individual Franchisee must apply in writing for the right to transfer the Franchised Business to the person or persons (whether spouse, heir, devisee, purchaser, or any other person), as the legal representative may specify. The application for transfer will be treated in the same manner as any other proposed transfer under this Agreement.

(iii) If the legal representative does not comply with the provisions of the preceding paragraph, or does not propose a transferee acceptable to us under the standards set forth in this Agreement, all rights licensed to Franchisee under this Agreement will terminate immediately and automatically revert to Franchisor. Franchisor shall have the right and option, in its sole discretion, exercisable upon such termination, to purchase all removable furniture, fixtures, signs, equipment and other chattels, but not leasehold improvements, at a price to be agreed upon by the parties or, if no agreement as to price is reached by the parties, at such price as may be determined by a qualified appraiser, approved by both parties, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld. Franchisor shall give notice of its intent to exercise the option no later than twenty-one (21) days prior to termination.

b. Death or incapacity of a shareholder, partner, or member in Franchisee when Franchisee is a business entity:

(i) In the event of the death or incapacity of any shareholder, partner, or member in the Franchisee which is a business entity, the surviving shareholders, partners, or members may for a period of ninety (90) days from the date of death or incapacitation continue to operate the Franchised Business, provided that the operation is conducted in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and any other agreements with Franchisor.

(ii) If the shareholders, partners, or members of Franchisee desire to continue the operation of the Franchised Business beyond the ninety (90) day period, then prior to the expiration of this period, the shareholders, partners, or members of Franchisee must apply jointly with all surviving shareholders, partners, or members in writing, for the right to transfer the Franchised Business (or the interest of the deceased or incapacitated shareholder, partner, or member in the Franchised Business), to the person or business entity as the surviving shareholders, partners, or members may specify. The application for transfer will be treated in the same manner as any other proposed transfer under this Agreement.

(iii) If all surviving shareholders, partners or members do not comply with the provisions of the preceding paragraph, or do not propose a transferee acceptable to us under the standards set forth in this Agreement, all rights licensed to Franchisee under this Agreement will terminate immediately and automatically revert to Franchisor. Franchisor shall have the right and option, in its sole discretion, exercisable upon such termination, to purchase all removable furniture, fixtures, signs, equipment and other chattels, but not leasehold

improvements, at a price to be agreed upon by the parties or, if no agreement as to price is reached by the parties, at such price as may be determined by a qualified appraiser, approved by both parties, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld. Franchisor shall give notice of its intent to exercise the option no later than twenty-one (21) days prior to termination.

### 12.5 Assignment by Franchisor.

You agree and affirm that we may, without your prior consent, sell our business, our assets, our Proprietary Marks and/or our System, in whole or in part, to a third-party; may issue a public offering of our securities; may engage in private placement of some or all of our securities; may merge, acquire other corporations, or be acquired by another corporation; and/or may undertake a refinancing, recapitalization, leveraged buyout or other economic or financial restructuring. You further agree and affirm that we have the right, now and in the future, without your prior consent, to purchase, merge, acquire or affiliate with an existing competitive or non-competitive franchise network, chain or any other business regardless of the location of that chain's or business' facilities, which you acknowledge may be proximate to your Franchised Business, and to operate, franchise or license those businesses and/or facilities as Franchised Businesses operating under the Proprietary Marks or any other marks following our purchase, merger, acquisition or affiliation. With regard to any of the above sales, assignments and dispositions, you expressly and specifically waive any claims, demands or damages against us arising from or related to the loss of our name, Proprietary Marks (or any variation thereof), System and/or the loss of association with or identification of Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. (dba NrGize Lifestyle Cafe).

This Agreement will inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of Franchisor. In conjunction with one or more of the transactions contemplated above, or as otherwise determined by us, we have the right to assign our rights and obligations under this Agreement to any person or entity, without your prior consent. Upon such assignment, we will be relieved of all obligations or liabilities then existing or thereafter able to be asserted under this Agreement.

### 12.6 Restrictions on Security Interests and Subfranchising.

Except as otherwise set forth below in this *Section 12.6*, you shall not have any rights to pledge, encumber, hypothecate or otherwise give any third party a security interest in this Agreement in any manner whatsoever, nor subfranchise or otherwise transfer, or attempt to subfranchise or transfer the Franchised Business, in whole or in part, so long as it is operated as the Franchised Business, without the express prior written permission of Franchisor, which permission may be withheld for any reason whatsoever in Franchisor's sole discretion. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, you shall have the right to pledge your accounts receivable, net of royalties and rent, without our prior written consent for the sole purpose of obtaining financing for the operation of the Franchised Business, provided you are in full compliance with all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any other agreement, arrangement or understanding with us.

# ARTICLE 13. RENEWAL OF FRANCHISE

Subject to the terms and conditions described below, you will have the right to renew your license to operate the Franchised Business for the shorter of the following: (i) ten (10) years; or (ii) the term of the new lease for the Location of the Franchised Business, including any renewal options thereto. In the event you desire to renew your license, you must give us written notice to that effect at least one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the expiration date of the Term. In addition to giving the written notice of renewal referred to above in a timely

manner, in order to have the right to renew the license to operate the Franchised Business for an additional term, you must also meet each of the following requirements:

a. You must not then be in default under this Agreement, and no event shall have occurred that, with the giving of notice, the passage of time, or both, would constitute a default under this Agreement, including, without limitation, all financial obligations to us;

b. You must be in complete compliance with the terms of this Agreement, including, without limitation, all financial obligations to us, and the then-current Operations Manuals;

c. You must not have received more than three (3) written notices of default or breach of this Agreement during its term, nor more than two (2) such notices during the five years immediately preceding the Effective Date of the proposed renewal;

d. You must have the existing right to maintain possession of the Location for a term co-extensive with the term of the renewal, or you must have secured and developed suitable substitute location approved by us;

e. You and we must execute a renewal franchise agreement (which will be in the form of the franchise agreement then customarily used by us in the granting of franchises in connection with the System) and all other agreements, legal instruments, and documents then customarily used by us in the granting of franchises in connection with the System. The renewal franchise agreement will not provide for the payment of an Initial Franchise Fee, and its terms may materially differ from the terms of this Agreement, including the payment of higher royalty fees and advertising contributions. The renewal franchise agreement will supersede this Agreement, but will not terminate your liability to perform any obligations which you have not yet performed under this Agreement, or which survive the termination of this Agreement; nor will the renewal franchise agreement terminate or supersede any Guaranty of Contract or Confidentiality Agreement executed pursuant to this Agreement;

f. The equipment, fixtures and signage used in connection with the operation of the Franchised Business must either meet our then-existing System specifications and standards, or you must agree, within a timeframe required by us, to replace or refurbish such items, and otherwise modify the methods of operation of the Franchised Business at your cost, in order to comply with our System specifications and standards then applicable to new franchise owners; and

g. You shall have paid to us a Renewal Fee in the amount of Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00).

If you do not meet any of the requirements for renewal, we will give you a written notice to that effect which will specify the requirements not met. The written notice will be given to you within sixty (60) days after you deliver to us your written notice of intent to renew.

# ARTICLE 14. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

# 14.1 Default; Termination.

a. Franchisee will be in default under this Agreement:

(i) If: (a) Franchisee becomes insolvent or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; (b) Franchisee files a petition in bankruptcy, or if such a petition is filed

against and consented to by Franchisee, and such petition is not dismissed within thirty (30) days from the filing date of such petition; (c) Franchisee is adjudicated bankrupt; (d) a bill in equity or other proceeding for the appointment of a receiver of Franchisee or other custodian for Franchisee's business or assets is filed and is consented to by Franchisee or is not dismissed within thirty (30) days from the filing date of such bill or other proceeding; (e) a receiver or other custodian is appointed; (f) proceedings for composition with creditors under any state or federal law is instituted by or against Franchisee; (g) the real or personal property of the Franchised Business is sold at levy thereupon by any sheriff, marshal or constable, or sold by a secured party under any state's Commercial Code;

(ii) If Franchisee fails to pay, perform, observe or comply with any of Franchisee's duties and obligations under this Agreement or the Operations Manuals, including failure to pay when due, any sum due Franchisor under this Agreement (including, but not limited to, Royalty Fees and Advertising Fees); or if Franchisee breaches any of its obligations under any lease, sublease, mortgage, equipment agreement, promissory note, vender account, conditional sales contract or other contract arising from, or in connection with, the Franchised Business, to which the Franchisee is a party or by which Franchisee is bound, whether or not we are a party thereto;

(iii) If Franchisee's direct lease or sublease for the Location of the Franchised Business is either: (a) in default and you fail to cure such default as provided in the direct lease or sublease; (b) is terminated for reason of default by Franchisee; or (c) the Location is lost as a result of Franchisee's failure to comply with the Lease Agreement;

(iv) If you fail, within thirty (30) days of the entry of a final judgment against Franchisee in an amount exceeding Two Thousand Dollars (\$2,000.00), to discharge, vacate or reverse the judgment or to stay its execution pending appeal, or to discharge any judgment which is not vacated or reversed within thirty (30) days after expiration of the stay of execution;

(v) If we determine that a serious health or safety problem exists at the Franchised Business, in which case, we may require you to immediately correct the problem or cease operating until the problem is corrected;

(vi) If you, or any owner, co-owner or principal of the Franchised Business, is convicted of a felony, a crime involving moral turpitude, or any other crime or offense that is reasonably likely to adversely affect the System, the Proprietary Marks, the goodwill associated therewith, or our interest therein;

(vii) Except for any reason provided in *Section 5.2*, if you abandon the Franchised Business, which abandonment shall conclusively be deemed established if the Franchised Business is closed for more than three (3) consecutive days;

(viii) Except for any reason provided in *Section 5.2*, If you close or relocate the Franchised Business, without Franchisor's express advance written consent;

(ix) If you fail to maintain an independent contractor relationship with Franchisor;

(x) If you either negligently or knowingly inaccurately report, or fail to report, any information in your franchise application;

(xi) If Franchisee or any owner, co-owner or principal of the Franchised Business commits an act, or permits an act to be committed, that violates any federal, state or local law that adversely impacts the Franchised Business;

(xii) If you fail to participate in any Rollout detailed in Section 9.3 of this Agreement;

(xiii) If Franchisee violates any of the provisions of Sections 2.3, 3.2, 9.2, or 9.3 including, but not limited to, the requirement that Franchisee: (a) sells or offers for sale only those products and services authorized by Franchisor; (b) purchases such authorized products only from suppliers who are approved in writing by Franchisor; and (c) utilizes and/or switches to any of Franchisor's designated approved and/or exclusive suppliers, including a supplier who has entered into a national or regional master supplier agreement with Franchisor; or

(xiv) If you transfer or attempt to transfer any rights or obligations under this Agreement or any other property or assets to any third party in violation of the provisions of *Article 12* of this Agreement.

(xv) If Franchisee or any officer, director, manager, member, or partner of Franchisee (as applicable) becomes subject to U.S. Executive Order 13224.

b. If you fail to cure any default to our satisfaction, within the applicable period following notice from us, if applicable, we may, in addition to all other remedies at law or in equity or as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, immediately terminate this Agreement. This termination will be effective immediately upon the giving of notice pursuant to Article 15.

### 14.2 Opportunity to Cure.

a. <u>Fourteen Day Cure Period</u> - Except as otherwise provided in this Section 14.2, you will have the right to cure your default under this Agreement within fourteen (14) days after written notice of default is given by Franchisor pursuant to Article 15. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following lesser periods will apply under the circumstances described:

b. <u>Seven Day Cure Period</u> - A seven (7) day cure period will apply if you fail, refuse, or neglect to pay when due, any monies owing to us (including, but not limited to, Royalty Fees and Advertising Fees), or to any Advertising Fund, or if you fail to maintain the insurance coverage set forth in this Agreement;

c. <u>48 Hour Cure Period</u> – A forty-eight (48) hour cure period will apply if you use any form of social medium (as defined in the Operations Manuals), including, but not limited to, a Twitter® account, Facebook® page or a video on YouTube®, whereby you hold yourself out to be an official page of, or video produced by, Franchisor and/or the owner of the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* brand, and do not affirmatively state: (i) that you are a third party franchisee and that the opinion and content being expressed are your own and not that of

*NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*; and (ii) the Location of your Franchised Business, as required by the Operations Manual;

d. 24 Hour Cure Period - A twenty-four (24) hour cure period will apply to your violation of any law, regulation, order or our standards relating to health, sanitation or safety; or, except as provided in Section 5.2 above, if you cease to operate the Franchised Business for a period of forty-eight (48) hours without the prior written consent of Franchisor. In addition, a twenty-four (24) hour cure period will apply if you post on any social medium site or direct others to any site or page, post, blog or other social medium site where there are posted any offensive comments about Franchisor, defamatory or other franchisees. the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe brand, other Kahala brands, your or other franchisees' customers, vendors, or any of Franchisor's, your or franchisees' competitors;

e. <u>Immediate Cure Period (less than 24 hours)</u> – an immediate cure period (less than twenty-four (24) hours will apply if you post any content to a social medium site in which the content includes, without limitation, any inappropriate public displays of affection, Franchisor's or others' confidential information or materials, violations of health or safety standards, foul or obscene language, or any images of or information about any persons from whom you did not obtain prior written consent;

f. <u>No Cure Period</u> - No cure will be available (1) if Franchisee is in default under or breaches its covenants or obligations under *Sections 3.1, 14.1a, 14.1c, 14.1f, 14.1g, 14.1h, 14.1n* or *14.1o*, or (2) if Franchisee intentionally underreports weekly Gross Sales, falsifies financial data, fails to promptly provide upon Franchisor's request financial data and records specified in this Agreement, or otherwise commits an act of fraud with respect to its rights or obligations under this Agreement; or (3) if Franchisee is in default under or breaches its covenant against competition set forth in *Section 14.6* of this Agreement; or (4) if Franchisee is in default under or breaches its covenant to observe and obey all applicable laws, rules, ordinances and regulations set forth in *Section 9.4*, or (5) if Franchisee repeatedly fails to comply with the provisions of this Agreement, whether or not subsequently cured; or (6) if Franchisee, having twice previously cured a default or breach of this Agreement, commits the same breach or default again.

g. <u>Statutory Cure Period</u> - If a statute in the state or municipality in which the Franchised Business is located requires application of that state or municipal law, and that statute requires a cure period for the applicable default which is longer than any cure period specified in this *Article 14*, the statutory cure period will apply.

### 14.3 Our Right to Take Over Management.

We have the right (but not the obligation), under the circumstances described below, to enter the Franchised Business and assume the Franchised Business' management for any period of time we feel is appropriate. If we assume the Franchised Business' management, you must pay us (in addition to the Royalty and Advertising Fee) six percent (6%) of the Franchised Business' Gross Sales, plus our direct out-of-pocket cost and expenses. If we assume the Franchised Business' management, you acknowledge that our duty is limited to using our reasonable efforts, and we will not be liable to you or your owners for any debts, losses or obligations the Franchised Business incurs, or to any of your creditors for any supplies or services the Franchised Business purchases. We may assume the Franchised Business' management if you abandon the Franchised Business or if you fail to comply with any provision of this Agreement and did not cure the failure within the time period we specify in our notice to you. You agree to complete and sign a letter of agency, letter of authorization, or equivalent and provide it to us upon our request if we assume the Franchised Business' management so that we may keep the existing telephone, facsimile, alarm, and credit card machine numbers (as applicable) in operation under our phone service provider. You also agree to keep the phone, water, gas, electric service (as applicable) turned on and active for one week after we assume the Franchised Business's management to allow us to switch the services over to us or our affiliate. Our exercise of our management rights under this *Section 14.3* will not affect our right to terminate this Agreement.

### 14.4 Remedies.

a. Interest, Costs and Damages - If you fail to remit when due any payments required under this Agreement, you agree to pay, in addition to the unpaid amounts, all Franchisor's collection costs, expert fees, reasonable attorneys' fees, and costs and expenses, including, without limitation, all fees and costs of court, including all appeals, with interest on the unpaid amounts the Default Rate or the highest permissible rate. If you fail to cure a default, following notice, within the applicable time period set forth in *Section 14.2*, or if this Agreement is terminated as a result of your default, you shall pay to us all damages of any kind and nature whatsoever and all collection costs, expert fees, reasonable attorneys' fees, and costs and expenses, including, without limitation, all fees and costs of court, including all appeals, together with interest at the Default Rate or the highest permissible rate. If you fail to report Gross Sales, we may estimate your Royalty Fee and Advertising Fee based on prior reports, and may sue for and obtain judgment for such estimates unless you prove, prior to the entry of any default order or judgment, that your Royalty Fee and Advertising Fee are different than the estimates.

b. <u>Waiver of Punitive Damages</u> - Both Franchisor and Franchisee waive, to the full extent permitted by law, any right they otherwise may have had to claim, pursue, demand or receive any exemplary or punitive damages arising out of or related in any way to this Agreement and its addenda, appendices, exhibits and attachments.

c. If you breach any of the terms of this Agreement or are in default under this Agreement, we may enforce our rights by injunction, specific performance, or any other remedy available under this Agreement, at law or in equity, including, without limitation, termination. These remedies are cumulative and not exclusive and we may use all remedies available. In addition, we may elect to terminate this Agreement and all Franchisee's rights under it as set forth in *Section 14.5*.

d. If you breach any of the terms of this Agreement or are in default under this Agreement, we have the right to have a receiver appointed to take possession, manage and control the assets of the Franchised Business, collect the profits, and pay the net income for the operation of the Franchised Business as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction. The right to appoint a receiver will be available regardless of whether waste or danger of loss or destruction of the assets exists.

### 14.5 Effect of Termination or Expiration.

Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, we can advise all suppliers of *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* proprietary food items and other supplies bearing any of the Proprietary Marks or service marks to cease delivering the items and products to you.

Upon your abandonment of the Franchised Business (whether voluntary or involuntary), any termination of this Agreement (whether pursuant to *Sections 14.1, 14.2* or *14.4* above or otherwise), or upon expiration of the Term, you must immediately cease to hold yourself out to the public as a franchise owner of the System, and you must comply with the following:

a. Immediately pay to us or any affiliate of ours all sums owing from you to us or such affiliate, including the monthly Royalty Fees and Advertising Fees, for any period prior to the date of termination, the applicable Early Termination Fee, and all amounts owed for services and/or supplies or other items purchased by you from us or any affiliate of ours, or that were financed by us or any affiliate of ours, or which we or any affiliate of ours loaned to you, together with any interest or late fees accrued thereon, together with all other sums due us under this Agreement, and all damages of any kind or nature whatsoever that may be allowed by law;

b. Immediately cease to use, in any manner whatsoever, including, without limitation, in all advertising, the Proprietary Marks, any Trade Secrets, any Confidential Information, any benefits of the System or any part thereof, any methods associated with the Proprietary Marks or the System, any forms, recipes, Operations Manuals, slogans, signs, sign posts, marks, symbols, or devices used in connection with the operation of the Franchised Business; and you must deliver or destroy all of the above-mentioned materials, including, without limitation, any materials containing or referencing any of the foregoing, to us as directed by us. If we do not recover any such items, such items shall be valued at their then-current replacement cost, for purposes of determining the damages owing by you to us for failure to return such items, if we pursue a damage claim as a result thereof;

c. Immediately discontinue all advertising as a franchisee of the System, and thereafter refrain from any advertising that would indicate that you are or ever were a franchisee or licensee of ours, or otherwise were affiliated with us or the System;

d. Immediately take such steps as may be necessary or appropriate to:

(i) delete your listing in the yellow pages or any other directory, if applicable, and terminate any other listings that indicate that you are or were a franchisee or licensee of ours, or otherwise were affiliated with us or the System; and

(ii) transfer to our designee or us any telephone numbers used by you in connection with the Franchised Business. To accomplish this transfer, you must sign the Collateral Assignment and Irrevocable Special Power of Attorney attached to this Agreement as <u>Exhibit 5</u> and incorporated herein by reference, and return it when you return this signed Agreement to us. You acknowledge that between you and us, we have the sole right and interest in all telephone numbers and directory listings associated with any Proprietary Marks, and you authorize us and appoint us and any officer or agent of ours, as your attorney-in-fact, to direct the telephone company and all listings agencies to accept such direction, or this Agreement, as conclusive evidence of our exclusive rights in such telephone numbers and directory listings and its authority to direct their transfer;

e. Immediately take such action as may be required to cancel all fictitious or assumed names, amend any entity name, or dissolve any entity that contains any Proprietary Mark, in whole or in part, regardless of whether the entity name was authorized by us, and amend or cancel any and all equivalent registrations relating to your use of any Proprietary Mark. You acknowledge that between you and us, we have the sole right and interest in all such fictitious or assumed names, entity name, and equivalent registrations, and you authorize us and appoint us and any officer or agent of ours as your attorney-in-fact, to effect the termination or cancellation of such fictitious or assumed names or equivalent registrations should you fail or refuse to do so, and the appropriate federal, state, and local agencies may accept your direction or this Agreement as conclusive evidence of our exclusive rights in such fictitious or assumed names or equivalent registrations, and its authority to direct their termination or cancellation (see Exhibit 5);

f. Comply with the confidentiality requirements and the covenant against competition in this Agreement for the specified period. Franchisee acknowledges that he/she, or (if an entity) its, authorized representative has carefully reviewed the confidentiality requirements and the covenant against competition in this Agreement; and that Franchisee has agreed to be bound by all the requirements and covenants; and

g. Maintain at a place made known to us all books, records and reports required under this Agreement for a period of not less than three (3) years after the date of termination or expiration of this Agreement, to allow us to make a final inspection of your books and records for the purpose of verifying that all amounts owing have been paid.

If you fail to do any of the foregoing, we may pursue against you and/or any guarantor of your obligations under this Agreement any remedy available at law or in equity.

We have the right, but not the obligation, to purchase from you any assets or property (but not leasehold improvements) used in the operation of the Franchised Business for an amount equal to the Value (as defined below), as of the termination date. If Franchisor is required, by law, regulation or court order, to purchase the equipment and/or other tangible assets used in connection with the Franchised Business, the purchase price will be equal to the Value. For purposes of this Agreement, the term "Value" means, subject to applicable law, an amount equal to Franchisee's cost for such assets, less depreciation and amortization using a 200% declining balance method over a 5-year period. If all, or any portion of, Franchisee's assets that are being purchased by Franchisor or its authorized representative are subject to lien(s), Franchisor or its authorized representative may pay, on Franchisee's behalf, the lienholder(s) that portion of the purchase price for Franchisee's assets (which may be the entire purchase price) that is necessary to obtain the release of those assets from the lien(s), in lieu of paying Franchisee those funds. Further, Franchisor may offset any amounts payable to Franchisee pursuant to this Section, or otherwise pursuant to this Agreement, against any unpaid amounts payable to Franchisor or its Affiliates pursuant to this Agreement or any agreement executed in connection with this Agreement.

### 14.6 Covenant Not to Compete; Conflicting Interests.

a. During the term of this Agreement and for a period of one (1) year after your abandonment of the Franchised Business, expiration of the Franchise Agreement, or termination of the Franchise Agreement (whether voluntary or involuntary), Franchisee shall not engage in any business in competition (a "<u>Competing Business</u>", as further defined below in *Section 14.6c.*) with any *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant, nor shall Franchisee have any Conflicting Interest (as such term is defined below) in a Competing Business. The provisions of this Agreement bind Franchisee in any capacity, including as a franchisee, sole proprietor, partner, limited partner, member, employer, franchisor, stockholder, officer, director or employee.

b. During the Term of this Agreement, and for a period of one (1) year after your abandonment of the Franchised Business, expiration of the Franchise Agreement, or termination of the Franchise Agreement, (whether voluntary or involuntary, you shall not divert or attempt to divert any business, customers, or potential customers of *the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* System to any Competing Business, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise. In addition, you shall not at

any time do or perform any act, directly or indirectly, which harms the goodwill or reputation of Franchisor or the System.

c. For purposes of this Section 14.6, "Competing Business" means a business which is primarily engaged in the sale of smoothies, protein shakes, meal replacement shakes, chillers, and all variations thereof, within a geographical area consisting of: (1) during the term of this Agreement, anywhere else; and (2) after abandonment, expiration or termination of this Agreement, within a ten (10) mile radius from the location of any *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant of Franchisor, its third party licensees or its third party franchisees, including the restaurant licensed by this Agreement. The term "*NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant" includes not only the restaurants now in existence, but also those established at a later date. The term of this covenant will be extended by any time consumed in litigation to enforce it in both trial and appellate courts. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that the restrictions in this paragraph are excessive in time, geographic scope, or otherwise, the court may reduce the restriction to the level that provides the maximum restriction allowed by law.

d. For purposes of this Section 14.6, "Conflicting Interest" means an interest by which you, or your executive officers, directors and shareholders (if you are a corporation), or your partners (if you are a partnership), or your members (if you are a limited liability company), or your designated manager, directly or indirectly, have a controlling interest in, lend money to, consult with or otherwise assist any Competing Business. If any of the persons named above do not sign this Agreement under the heading "Personal Acceptance of Sections 7.1, 14.6 and 14.8", then you agree to obtain the execution by such person of a written agreement setting forth the foregoing in a form acceptable to us.

### 14.7 Continuing Obligations.

All your obligations that expressly survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement, including, without limitation, *Sections 14.5* and *14.6*, or by the implicit nature thereof require performance after the expiration or termination of this Agreement, will continue in full force and effect (subsequent to, and notwithstanding, your abandonment of the Franchised Business (whether voluntary or involuntary) the expiration of the Term of this Agreement, or termination of this Agreement), until they are satisfied in full or by their nature expire. The indemnities and obligations set forth in *Article 8* will continue in full force and effect subsequent to, and notwithstanding, the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

### 14.8 Remedies.

Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the restrictions contained in this Agreement, including, without limitation, in this Article 14, are fair and reasonable and necessary for the protection of Franchisor's legitimate business interests and Franchisee intends and agrees that such restrictions be enforceable and enforced to their fullest extent. Franchisee further understands and agrees that, notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, Franchisee's breach of its obligations under this Article 14, will cause Franchisor irreparable harm for which recovery of monetary damages alone would not be an adequate remedy. Franchisor and Franchisee both shall be entitled to obtain timely injunctive relief, including, without limitation, a temporary restraining order, preliminary and permanent injunctions, to protect their rights under this Agreement, in addition to and not exclusive of any and all other remedies available to each party.

### ARTICLE 15. NOTICES

All notices specified by this Agreement or required by law must be in writing and given by personal delivery, sent by carrier (i.e., FedEx®, UPS®, etc.), U.S. mail, or certified mail, return

receipt requested. All notices to Franchisor must be given at the address set forth on page 1 of this Agreement or to such other address as Franchisor may designate in writing from time to time in accordance with this *Article 15*. All Notices to Franchisee may be given at the address set forth on page 1 of this Agreement, at the address of the Franchised Business, at any franchised restaurant of Franchisee, at the residence of Franchisee (if an individual), or at the residence of the principal shareholder(s), partner(s), or member(s) of Franchisee (if a business entity). Notices will be conclusively deemed to be given, delivered, and effective when sent pre-paid and actually left in the custody of an adult agent, employee or resident at a place of business or residence if given by personal delivery; or if given by carrier, twenty-four (24) hours after deposited with carrier, or if by U.S. mail or certified mail, three (3) days after deposited with the U.S. Postal Service. Franchisee has an obligation to promptly notify us pursuant to this *Article 15* whenever its mailing address, phone number and/or email address change.

### ARTICLE 16. CONSTRUCTION AND ENFORCEMENT; MISCELLANEOUS

### 16.1 Independent Contractors.

The relationship between Franchisor and Franchisee is that of independent contractors. Franchisee is in no way to be deemed a partner, joint venturer, agent, employee, or servant of Franchisor. You have no authority to bind Franchisor to any contractual obligation or incur any liability for or on behalf of Franchisor. You shall identify yourself as an independent owner of the Franchised Business in all dealings with customers, lessors, contractors, suppliers, public officials, employees, and others.

### 16.2 Severability and Substitution of Provisions.

Except as provided to the contrary in this Agreement, each Article, Section, subsection, term and provision of this Agreement, and any portion thereof, will be considered severable, and if, for any reason, any such portion of this Agreement is held to be invalid, contrary to, or in conflict with any applicable present or future law or regulation, or as a result of a final, non-appealable ruling issued by any court, agency or tribunal with competent jurisdiction in a proceeding to which we are a party, that regulation or ruling will not impair the operation of, or have any other effect upon, such other portions of this Agreement as may otherwise remain valid, and such other portions will continue to be given full force and effect and bind the parties to this Agreement. If the severed provision is material to this Agreement, Franchisor shall promptly provide a substitute provision to replace the invalid severed provision consistent with then current law and the original intent of the parties.

If any applicable and binding law or rule of any jurisdiction requires a greater prior notice of the termination of, or refusal to renew, this Agreement than is required under this Agreement, or the taking of some other action not required under this Agreement, or if under any applicable law, regulation, or court ruling of any jurisdiction, any provision of this Agreement or any specification, standard or operating procedure prescribed by us is invalid or unenforceable, the prior notice and/or other action required by such law, regulation, or court ruling will be substituted for the comparable provisions of this Agreement, and we will have the right, in our sole discretion, to modify such invalid or unenforceable provision, specification, standard or operating procedure to the extent required to be valid and enforceable. Such modifications to this Agreement shall be effective only in such jurisdiction, unless we elect to give them greater applicability, and otherwise shall be enforced as originally made and entered into in all other jurisdictions.

### 16.3 Applicable Law and Forum; Waiver of Jury; Statute of Limitations.

Except to the extent that the United States Trademark Act of 1946, as amended (15 U.S.C., § 1051 et seq.) or the franchising laws of any state that may be applicable, the laws of the State of Arizona govern all rights and obligations of the parties under this Agreement. Franchisor and Franchisee agree that any appropriate state or federal court located in Maricopa County, Arizona has exclusive jurisdiction over any case or controversy arising under or in connection with this Agreement and is the proper forum in which to adjudicate the case or controversy; provided, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing any action initiated by Franchisor may, at Franchisor's election, be brought in any jurisdiction where Franchisee is domiciled or that has jurisdiction over Franchisee. The parties hereto irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction of, and venue in, any such court, and hereby waiver any objection or defense thereto. THE PARTIES AGREE THAT ALL DISPUTES SUBMITTED TO THE COURT PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRIED TO THE COURT SITTING WITHOUT A JURY, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY STATE OR FEDERAL CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY RIGHTS OR PROVISIONS.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, the parties agree that any claims under, arising out of, or related to, this Agreement must be brought within two (2) years of the date on which the underlying cause of action accrued, and Franchisor and Franchisee hereby waive any right to bring any such action after such two-year period, <u>except</u> for the collection of unpaid Royalty Fees, Advertising Fees, and related monies due to Franchisor or its affiliate under this Franchise Agreement or related documents that govern the Franchised Business.

### 16.4 No Guarantee of Franchisee's Success.

Franchisee has been informed of and acknowledges the highly competitive nature of the business involved, and agrees that the successful operation of its Franchised Business will depend in part, upon the best efforts, capabilities, management, and efficient operation by Franchisee; as well as the general economic trend and other market conditions.

### 16.5 Existence of Various Forms of Franchise Agreements.

Franchisee acknowledges that present and future franchisees of Franchisor operate under a number of forms of franchise agreements and consequently, Franchisor's obligations and rights with respect to its various franchisees may differ materially in certain instances. The existence of different forms or versions of the franchise agreement does not entitle Franchisee to benefit from any such difference; nor does it operate to alter or amend the agreement of the parties set forth in this Agreement.

### 16.6 Franchise Owner May Not Withhold Payments.

You agree that you will not, on grounds of alleged or actual nonperformance or breach by us of any of our obligations under this Agreement, withhold payment of any Royalty Fees, Advertising Fees, amounts due to us or any of our affiliates for goods and/or services purchased by you, or any other amounts due us or any of our affiliates.

### 16.7 Remedies Are Cumulative.

The rights and remedies of the parties to this Agreement are cumulative and not exclusive, and no exercise or enforcement by either party of any right or remedy under this

Agreement shall preclude the exercise or enforcement by such party of any other right or remedy under this Agreement or otherwise available at law or in equity to such party.

### 16.8 Interpretation.

All the terms and provisions of this Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties. However, nothing in this *Section 16.8* may be construed as a consent by us to the assignment or transfer of this Agreement or any rights by you.

### 16.9 Waiver.

Failure of Franchisor to insist upon the strict performance of any term, covenant or condition contained in this Agreement will not constitute or be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of Franchisor's rights to enforce thereafter any such term, covenant or condition and such term, covenant or condition will continue in full force and effect.

### 16.10 Litigation Expense.

If an action at law or suit in equity is brought to establish, obtain or enforce any right by either of the parties to this Agreement, the prevailing party in the suit or action, in the trial and/or appellate courts, will be entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party reasonable attorneys' fees, costs and disbursements incurred in such suit or action.

### 16.11 Cross Default.

A default by Franchisee under this Agreement will be deemed a default of all franchise agreements between Franchisee and Franchisee's principal in his/her individual capacity or any other entity in which Franchisee's principals are members, managers, shareholders or partners ("Franchisee Entity") and Franchisor (and/or any of its predecessors.) A default by Franchisee or a Franchisee Entity under any other franchise agreement between Franchisor (and/or any of its predecessors), and Franchisee will be deemed a default under this Agreement. A default by Franchisee or a Franchisee Entity under any sublease between any affiliate of Franchisor (and/or any of its predecessors) will be deemed a default under this Agreement. A default by the Guarantor(s) of this Agreement or any other franchise agreement Guaranty of Contract (including Franchisor and/or any of its predecessors), will be deemed a default of this Agreement.

### 16.12 Cross Termination.

If this Agreement is terminated as a result of a default by Franchisee under this Agreement or any other agreement related to the Franchised Business, Franchisor may, at its option, elect to terminate any or all other franchise agreements between Franchisee or a Franchisee Entity and Franchiser (and/or any of its predecessors.) If any other franchise agreement between Franchisee or a Franchisee Entity and Franchisee or a Franchisee Entity, Franchisor may, at its option, elect to terminate this Agreement. If any sublease between Franchisee or a Franchisee Entity and any affiliate of Franchisee Entity, Franchisor may, at its option, elect to terminate this Agreement. If any sublease between Franchisee or a Franchisee Entity and any affiliate of Franchisee Entity, Franchisor may, at its option, elect to terminate this Agreement. It is agreed that an incurable or uncured default under this Agreement or any other franchise agreement between Franchisee and a Franchisee and Franchiser (and/or any of its predecessors), will be grounds for termination of this Agreement and/or any and all franchise agreements between Franchisee or a Franchisee Entity and Franchisee Intity of the grounds for termination of this Agreement and/or any of its predecessors), without additional notice or opportunity to cure.

### 16.13 No Third Party Beneficiaries.

This Agreement is not intended to benefit any other person or entity except the named parties hereto and no other person or entity shall be entitled to any rights hereunder by virtue of so-called "third party beneficiary rights" or otherwise.

### 16.14 Binding Effect; Modification.

This Agreement is binding upon the parties to this Agreement and their respective executors, administrators, personal representatives, heirs, permitted assigns and successors in interest. No amendment, change, or modification of this Agreement shall be binding on any party unless executed in writing by you and us.

### 16.15 Entire Agreement; Nature and Scope; Construction.

This Agreement, all exhibits, attachments, addendums and amendments, constitute the entire understanding and agreement between the parties, and there are no other oral or written understandings or agreements between us and you relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. If required to be signed, any state specific addendums contained in Exhibit 7 are incorporated herein by reference. Any representation not specifically contained in this Agreement made prior to entering into this Agreement do not survive subsequent to the execution of this Agreement. We and you have entered into this Agreement for the sole purpose of authorizing you to use the System licensed by this Agreement in the operation of the Franchised Business during the Term of this Agreement in which those specific items designated by us for sale and use in such locations are offered for sale and use in individual. face-to-face transactions with patrons visiting the Franchised Business (and equivalent telephone or mail transactions accepted as a convenience to that customer group). All consideration being furnished by us to you during the course of performance of this Agreement has been determined based on the limited rights and other limitations expressed herein. No other rights have been bargained for or paid for. This provision is intended to define the nature and extent of the parties' mutual contractual intent, there being no mutual intent to enter into contract relations, whether by agreement or by implication, other than as set forth in this Agreement. The parties further acknowledge that these limitations are intended to achieve the highest possible degree of certainty in the definition of the contract being formed, in recognition of the fact that uncertainty creates economic risks for both parties which, if not addressed as provided in this Agreement, would affect the economic terms of this bargain.

Nothing in this Agreement or in any related agreement is intended to disclaim the representations we made in the Disclosure Document. Nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor shall be deemed, to confer any rights or remedies upon any person or legal entity not a party hereto.

### 16.16 Terminology.

In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement, the following terms defined below are incorporated in this Agreement by reference and shall be deemed to include all persons who succeed to the interest of the original, where applicable:

The term "affiliate" means any person who, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with any person;

The use of the terms "includes" and "including" in any provision of this Agreement followed by specific examples used shall not be construed to limit application of the provision to only the specific examples used;

The term "person" means any natural person, corporation, partnership, trust, other entity, association or form of organization;

The term "will" and "shall" shall be synonymous, and shall be mandatory and not discretionary, unless otherwise specifically provided herein; and

The term "you" as used herein is applicable to one or more persons, a corporation, partnership, trust, other entity, association or form of organization as the case may be, and the singular usage includes the plural, masculine, neuter, feminine, and possessive usages.

### 16.17 Counterparts.

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original copy of this Agreement and all of which, when taken together, shall be deemed to constitute one and the same Agreement.

### 16.18 Offerings.

If you are a corporation, partnership or other entity, and if you intend to offer securities, partnership interests or other ownership interests in you through any public or private offering, you shall not use any Proprietary Marks in such public or private offering, except to reflect your franchise relationship with us; nor shall you misrepresent your relationship with us by any statement or omission of an essential statement. You shall indemnify and hold us harmless from any liability in connection with such offering. Nothing in the foregoing shall modify the provisions of *Article 12* of this Agreement, and no such offering shall be made without first complying with any applicable provisions of *Article 12* of this Agreement.

### 16.19 Time.

Time is of the essence of each and every provision of this Agreement.

### 16.20 Plurals and Captions.

Words in the singular number include the plural when the contest requires (and vice-versa). The table of contents and the captions are inserted only for convenience and are not a part of this Agreement or a limitation of the scope of the particular article, section or subsection to which each refers.

### 16.21 Joint and Several Liability.

If Franchisee consists of two (2) or more persons, whatever the form of business entity through which the persons control Franchisee, then all these persons will be jointly and severally liable under the provisions of this Agreement.

### 16.22 Trademark Notice.

Cereality, Surf City Squeeze, Frullati Cafe & Bakery, Samurai Sam's Teriyaki Grill, Taco Time, Great Steak, Rollerz, Ranch One, Johnnie's New York Pizzeria, Blimpie, America's Taco Shop, Pizza Fresh, and Kahala Coffee Traders are trademarks of Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. and/or its licensors. Cold Stone Creamery is a registered trademark of Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. and/or its licensors. All other trademarks referenced in this Agreement are those of their respective owners.

# ARTICLE 17. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS AND REPRESENTATIONS OF FRANCHISEE

### 17.1 Certain Representations and Warranties of Franchisee.

Franchisee represents and warrants that the following statements are true and complete as of the Effective Date:

a. Franchisee does not seek to obtain the Franchised Business for speculative or investment purposes and has no present intention to sell or transfer or attempt to sell or transfer the Franchised Business and/or the Franchise.

b. Franchisee understands and acknowledges the value to the System of uniform and ethical standards of quality, appearance and service described in and required by the Operations Manuals and the necessity of operating the Franchised Business under the standards set forth in the Operations Manuals. Franchisee represents that it has the capabilities, professionally, financially and otherwise, to comply with the standards of Franchisor.

c. If Franchisee is a corporation, limited liability company, partnership, or other form of entity, Franchisee is duly incorporated, organized, or formed and is qualified to do business in the state and any other applicable jurisdiction within which the Franchised Business is located.

d. The execution of this Agreement by Franchisee will not constitute or violate any other agreement or commitment to which Franchisee is a party.

e. Any individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Franchisee is duly authorized to do so and the Agreement shall constitute a valid and binding obligation of the Franchisee and, if applicable, all of its partners, members, or shareholders, if Franchisee is a partnership, limited liability company, or corporation.

f. Franchisee has, or if a partnership, corporation or other entity, its partners or its principals have, carefully read this Agreement and all other related documents to be executed by it concurrently or in conjunction with the execution hereof, that it has obtained, or had the opportunity to obtain, the advice of counsel in connection with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, that it understands the nature of this Agreement, and that it intends to comply with and be bound by this Agreement.

g. Franchisee has read and understands the information and disclosures made in the Disclosure Document provided to Franchisee as acknowledged in *Section 17.3e*. Franchisee understands and acknowledges that estimates for initial startup expenses are estimates only. Franchisee understands that there can be and likely will be additional start-up expenses. Franchisee has had the opportunity to and has consulted or elected not to consult with its attorney and accountant and business advisors before entering into this Agreement.

h. Franchisee acknowledges and understands that Franchisor's past experience indicates that owner-operated restaurants generally perform better than absentee owners with hired managers. This does not mean that you will operate your Franchised Business better or that a manager is not going to operate your Franchised Business successfully. The food

business is a personal business and your success is dependent upon your business skill and judgment. This includes your choice of employees. Your skill in hiring the right people to work in your Franchised Business is very important in determining whether people decide to purchase menu items from your Franchised Business or from another restaurant in the same vicinity.

i. Franchisee understands and acknowledges that ownership of a franchise and the Franchised Business carries certain risks. These risks include the loss of your initial investment, other continued financial losses such as rent payments due under lease obligations and other contractual obligations, the loss of your time and energy in starting up and running your Franchised Business, and loss of earnings and investment income from your investment in the Franchised Business. Franchisee understands and acknowledges that it may make money and may lose money and is entering this business venture with this express understanding. Franchisee is not relying upon anything which is not contained within this Agreement or the Disclosure Document in determining and deciding to become a Franchisee.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, you understand and agree that the System must j. not remain static if it is to meet (without limitation) presently unforeseen changes in technology, competitive circumstances, demographics, populations, consumer trends, social trends and other market place variables, and if it is to best serve the interests of us, you and all other franchisees. Accordingly, you expressly understand and agree that we may from time to time change the components of the System, including, without limitation, altering the products, programs, services, methods, standards, forms, policies and procedures of that System; abandoning the System altogether in favor of another system in connection with a merger, acquisition or other business combination or for other reasons; adding to, deleting from or modifying those products, programs and services which your Franchised Business is authorized and required to offer, modifying or substituting entirely the equipment, signage, trade dress, décor, color schemes and uniform System Standards and specifications and all other unit constructions, design, appearance and operation attributes which you are required to observe under this Agreement; and, abandoning, changing, improving, modifying or substituting the Proprietary Marks. You expressly agree to comply with any such modifications, changes, additions, deletions, substitutions and alterations. You shall accept, use and effectuate any such changes or modifications to, or substitution of, the System as if they were part of the System at the time that this Agreement was executed. Except as provided herein, we shall not be liable to you for any expenses, losses or damages sustained by you as a result of any of the modifications contemplated hereby.

k. Franchisee represents that neither Franchisee nor any of its officers, directors, managers, members, or partners (as applicable) are subject to U.S. Executive Order 13224.

# 17.2 Additional Information Respecting Franchisee.

a. Attached hereto as <u>Exhibit 1</u> is a schedule prepared by Franchisee which contains complete information respecting the owners, partners, members, officers and directors, as the case may be, of Franchisee.

b. The address (written notice of any change in this information after the Effective Date must be delivered to Franchisor pursuant to *Article 15* of this Agreement) where Franchisee's financial and other records are maintained is:



c. Franchisee has delivered to Franchisor or will deliver concurrent herewith, complete and accurate copies of all organizational documents relating to Franchisee, including without limitation, all partnership agreements, certificates of partnership, articles of organization, operating agreements, articles or certificates of incorporation, by-laws and shareholder agreements, including all amendments, side letters and other items modifying such documents.

d. Franchisee has completed and signed the Franchisee Questionnaire attached hereto as Exhibit 12 and incorporated herein by reference.

### 17.3 Acknowledgements of Franchisee.

a. Franchisee acknowledges that it has conducted an independent investigation of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement and recognizes that the success of this business venture involves substantial business risks and will largely depend upon the ability of Franchisee. Franchisor expressly disclaims making, and Franchisee acknowledges that it has not received or relied on, any warranty or guarantee, express or implied, as to the potential volume, profits or success of the Franchised Business contemplated by this Agreement.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_/\_\_\_\_

Franchisee hereby certifies that no employee of Franchisor, no other person b. speaking on Franchisor's behalf, and no Area Representative, if applicable, has: (i) made any oral, written, visual, or other representation, agreement, commitment, claim, or statement that stated or suggested any level or range of actual or potential sales, costs, income, expenses, profits, cash flow, or otherwise; or (ii) made any oral, written, visual, or other representation, agreement, commitment, claim, or statement from which any level or range of actual or potential sales, costs, income, expenses, profits, cash flow, or otherwise might be ascertained, related to an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchise, that is different from, contrary to, or not contained in the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Disclosure Document; or (iii) made any representation, agreement, commitment, claim or statement to me that is different from, contrary to, or not contained in, the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Disclosure Document. I acknowledge and agree that Franchisor does not make or endorse, nor does it allow any of its employees or other persons speaking on its behalf to make or endorse, any oral, written, visual, or other representation, agreement, commitment, claim, or statement that states or suggests any level or range of actual or potential sales, costs, income, expenses, profits, cash flow, or otherwise with respect to an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchise.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_/\_\_\_

c. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisee has received, read and understands this Agreement and the related Exhibits, Attachments and agreements and that Franchisor has afforded Franchisee sufficient time and opportunity to consult with advisors selected by Franchisee about the potential benefits and risks of entering into this Agreement.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_/\_\_\_\_

d. Franchisee understands that the Franchise Agreement, including any amendments and exhibits, contains the entire agreement between Franchisor and me

concerning the Franchised Business, and that any prior oral or written statements that are not set out in the Franchise Agreement, including any amendments and exhibits, will not be binding. I acknowledge and agree that Franchisor does not permit any representations, agreements, commitments, claims, or statements or approve any changes in the Franchise Agreement or any of the amendments and Exhibits to the Franchise Agreement, except by means of a written amendment or addendum signed by all parties to the Franchise Agreement. I acknowledge that nothing in this Agreement or in any related agreement is intended to disclaim the representations Franchisor made in the Disclosure Document.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_/\_\_\_\_

e. Franchisee acknowledges receipt of our Disclosure Document fourteen (14) days prior to the execution of this Agreement or your payment of any monies to us or our agent (or sooner if required by applicable state law).

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_/\_\_\_

f. Franchisee acknowledges that it has not received any financial statements for Franchisor's parent company, Kahala Corp., nor has Franchisee received any financial statements for any of Franchisor's affiliated companies. Franchisee further acknowledges that it has not relied on the financial condition of Franchisor's parent company or any of its affiliated companies when making the decision to purchase the Franchised Business.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_/\_\_\_

g. Franchisee acknowledges, as detailed in *Section 2.3* of this Agreement, that you must, at your own cost and expense, use <u>only</u> our designated and approved Design Architect for the design of your Franchised Business. Except for the Design Architect designated and approved by Franchisor, no other architect may be used by you for the design of your Franchised Business.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_/\_\_\_\_

h. Franchisee acknowledges that the following is your Area Representative (if applicable):

\_\_\_\_\_

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_/\_\_\_\_

i. If an Area Representative is identified in *Section 17.3h.* above, Franchisee makes the following representations with respect to the Area Representative:

(i) I/We have met or spoken to only \_\_\_\_\_, the Area Representative;

(ii) At no time did the Area Representative make any promises or statements, or projections or forecasts, or estimates or warranties or representations or other statement or agreement concerning profits or expenses or costs or actual or projected sales of any kind directly or by implication about *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurants or about the Franchised Business that we desire to develop under this Agreement or about obtaining the

approved Location or about any other matter other than what is contained in the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* Disclosure Document or *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant brochure.

(iii) We have not received any written materials from Franchisor or the Area Representative except for the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* brochure and Disclosure Document; and

If there are any exceptions to Sections 17.3i(i) - (iii) above, identify the item number and list the exception here:

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_/\_\_\_

j. Franchisee acknowledges there have been no other inducements made with any person or entity, including the Identified Area Representative, encouraging us to purchase the Franchised Business, such as a "side deal" or other promise or agreement not included in the Agreement.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_/\_\_\_\_

k. Franchisee acknowledges and understands that *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*, Cereality, Surf City Squeeze, Ranch One, Frullati Cafe & Bakery, Samurai Sam's Teriyaki Grill, Taco Time, Great Steak, Rollerz, Johnnie's New York Pizzeria, Blimpie, America's Taco Shop, Pizza Fresh and Kahala Coffee Traders are trademarks of Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. and/or is licensors. Cold Stone Creamery is a registered trademark of Cold Stone Creamery, Inc. and/or its licensors. All other trademarks referenced in this Agreement are those of their respective owners.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_/\_\_\_

I. Franchisee acknowledges and understands that *Article 6* of the Franchise Agreement covers the use of the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* trademark and prohibition on registration of Franchisor's Proprietary Marks. Franchisee acknowledges the ownership of the Proprietary Marks by us, and Franchisee agrees that during the term of this Agreement and after its expiration or termination, Franchisee <u>will not</u>, directly or indirectly, apply to register, register or otherwise seek to use or control or in any way use "*NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*", or any other of Franchisor's proprietary marks, or any confusingly similar form or variation, in any place or jurisdiction either within or outside the United States; nor will you assist any others to do so. You further agree that your corporate, partnership or other entity name <u>will not</u> include any of the Proprietary Marks or phrases similar thereto as a part thereof. Furthermore, you acknowledge and understand that you are prohibited from filing applications for the registration of Franchisor's trade names used in connection with your Franchised Business.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_/\_\_\_\_

m. Franchisee acknowledges and understands that in the event he/she/it has registered a trade name or entity name containing Franchisor's trademarks, Franchisee will be required to immediately discontinue all further use of the trademark, all Proprietary Marks and any other marks or names confusingly similar thereto in your entity name. Furthermore,

Franchisee will take such action as may be required to amend your entity name and affirmatively cancel and/or terminate and dissolve all fictitious or assumed names or other registrations that contain Franchisor's Proprietary Marks. In the event Franchisee does not comply and/or agree to execute any and all instruments and documents necessary to protect and maintain our interests in the Proprietary Marks, Franchisor will then have power of attorney to execute any documents necessary to protect and maintain Franchisor's interests in the Proprietary Marks, Franchisor will then have power of attorney to execute any documents necessary to protect and maintain Franchisor's interests in the Proprietary Marks.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_/\_\_\_

### ARTICLE 18. SUBMISSION OF AGREEMENT

### 18.1 No Offer by Franchisor.

The submission of this Agreement to Franchisee does not constitute an offer and this Agreement shall become effective only upon the execution thereof by Franchisor and Franchisee. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL NOT BE BINDING ON FRANCHISOR UNLESS AND UNTIL IT SHALL HAVE BEEN ACCEPTED AND SIGNED BY THE PRESIDENT OR OTHER EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF FRANCHISOR.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF** the parties have duly executed and delivered this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

### FRANCHISEE:

\_\_\_\_\_, a(n) \_\_\_\_\_

By:\_\_\_\_\_ Its:\_\_\_\_\_

By:		
Its:		

### FRANCHISOR:

# KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:\_\_\_\_\_\_ Its:

# PERSONAL ACCEPTANCE OF SECTIONS 7.1, 14.6, AND 14.8

Each of the undersigned individually and personally accepts and agrees to be bound by the provisions of Sections 7.1, 14.6, and 14.8 of the foregoing Franchise Agreement.

, an Individual	 	
		(signature)
, an Individual		(signature)
, an Individual		(signature)
, an Individual	Date:	(signature)

### CONSENT OF SPOUSE

(to be executed if Franchisee is a married individual)

The undersigned is the spouse of the Franchisee identified in the Franchise Agreement, dated as of \_\_\_\_\_\_, between his or her spouse and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. (the "<u>Agreement</u>"), to which this Consent of Spouse is attached.

The undersigned hereby declares that he/she has read the Agreement, including each of the documents that are exhibits to or referenced in the Agreement, in its entirety and, being fully convinced of the wisdom and equity of the terms of the Agreement, including each of the documents that are exhibits to or referenced in the Agreement, and in consideration of the premises and of the provisions of the Agreement, the undersigned hereby expresses his or her acceptance of the same and does agree to its provisions.

The undersigned further agrees that in the event of the death of his or her spouse, the provisions of this Agreement, including each of the documents that are exhibits to or referenced in the Agreement, will be binding upon him/her.

The undersigned further agrees that he/she will at any time make, execute and deliver such instruments and documents which may be necessary to carry out the provisions of the Agreement, including each of the documents that are exhibits to or referenced in the Agreement.

This instrument is not a present transfer or release of any rights which the undersigned may have in any of the community property of his or her marriage.

DATED \_\_\_\_\_

(Signature of Spouse)

(Print Name of Spouse)

### LIST OF EXHIBITS TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT:

- Exhibit 1 Ownership Information Sheet (applicable only if Franchisee is a business entity)
- Exhibit 2 Required Lease Terms
- Exhibit 3 Electronic Funds Transfer Authorization
- Exhibit 4 Guaranty of Contract Franchise Agreement
- Exhibit 5 Collateral Assignment and Irrevocable Special Power of Attorney
- Exhibit 6 Amendment to Franchise Agreement and Related Franchise Documents for Non-Traditional Locations (applicable only for Non-Traditional locations)
- Exhibit 7 State Specific Addendum (applicable only for the following states: California, Georgia, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, & Wisconsin)
- Exhibit 8 Single Unit Facility License Agreement (LA Fitness health club locations only)
- Exhibit 9 Amendment to Franchise Agreement and Related Franchise Documents for Stores to be Located within LA Fitness Health Clubs (applicable only for newly-constructed stores located within LA Fitness health clubs)
- Exhibit 10 Amendment to Franchise Agreement and Related Franchise Documents for Stores to be Located within Future LA Fitness Health Clubs (applicable only for newly-constructed stores located within future LA Fitness health clubs)
- Exhibit 11 Amendment to Franchise Agreement and Related Franchise Documents for Stores to be Located within LA Fitness Health Clubs (applicable only for conversions of stores located within LA Fitness health clubs)
- Exhibit 12 Bill of Sale (applicable only for stores located within LA Fitness health clubs)
- Exhibit 13 Franchisee Questionnaire

# **OWNERSHIP INFORMATION SHEET**

(applicable only if Franchisee is a business entity)

### **OWNERSHIP INFORMATION SHEET**

### (applicable only if Franchisee is a business entity)

### FRANCHISEE'S SHAREHOLDERS, PARTNERS, MEMBERS AND/OR PRINCIPAL OFFICERS

NOTE: Franchisee's registration of trade names or entity names containing any of Franchisor's trademarks is expressly prohibited. You agree that your corporate, partnership or other entity name <u>will not</u> include any of Franchisor's Proprietary Marks (*i.e.*, NrGize Lifestyle Cafe, Cereality, Surf City Squeeze, Frullati Cafe & Bakery, Rollerz, Samurai Sam's Teriyaki Grill, Taco Time, Great Steak & Potato Company, Ranch One, Johnnie's New York Pizzeria, Cold Stone Creamery, Blimpie, America's Taco Shop, Pizza Fresh or Kahala Coffee Traders) or any other phrases, marks or names confusingly similar thereto in your entity name.

(Please circle each answer)

1.	Are you a Partnership?	Yes / No
2.	Are you a Corporation?	Yes / No
3.	Are you a Limited Liability Company?	Yes / No

4. If you are a Partnership or Limited Liability Company, please complete the following:

### PARTNERSHIP/LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

Name	Percentage	Residence	Home	Work	Social Security
(each partner)	<u>Ownership</u>	<u>Address</u>	<u>Phone</u>	<u>Phone</u>	Number

5. If you are a Corporation, please complete the following:

### CORPORATION

Name	Number	Residence	Home	Work	Social Security
(each shareholder	) <u>of shares</u>	<u>Address</u>	<u>Phone</u>	<u>Phone</u>	Number

### AREA REPRESENTATIVE (if applicable)

6. Your Area Representative is:

### **REQUIRED LEASE TERMS**

The Terms and Conditions in the Attached Lease Addendum must be included in the Franchisee's lease for the location of the Franchised Business via execution of the attached Lease Addendum or through modifications to the actual lease agreement

(if applicable)

### LEASE ADDENDUM

то

### LEASE AGREEMENT

Dated \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_ between

and

------

Tenant/Franchisee Name

### 1. Use of Premises.

Landlord Name

During the term of the Franchise Agreement (or, if shorter, the term of the Lease), the Premises may be used only for the operation of a quick service restaurant under the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe System, Proprietary Marks, Trade names, and logos, which specializes in the sale of smoothies, fruit drinks, functional drinks, salads, sandwiches, soups, fresh baked goods, and proprietary nutritional products and supplements, and other beverage and snack items. Landlord consents to Tenant's use of such marks, tag lines, signs, décor items, color schemes, and related components of the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchise System as NrGize Lifestyle Cafe may prescribe for the franchisees of its System.

### 2. Assignment and Notices.

a. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Lease, Tenant shall have the right to assign this Lease and all rights hereunder, to Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., ("NrGize Lifestyle Cafe"), an affiliate of *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*, or to a franchisee of *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* (duly approved as such by *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* and meeting the franchise requirements of *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* as of the date hereof) upon the expiration or earlier termination of that certain Franchise Agreement dated \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_ (the "Franchise Agreement"), by and between *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* and Tenant without obtaining Landlord's consent and without the imposition of any assignment fee or similar charge. Landlord shall not accelerate the rent owed hereunder in connection with such assignment(s), so long as *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*, its affiliate(s) or its franchisees assumes in writing the obligations of Tenant under the Lease. Nothing in this Section 2(a) shall serve to extend the term of the Lease or provide *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* any occupancy rights, options to renew or other rights not expressly set forth to Tenant in the Lease.

b. Landlord agrees to furnish *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* with copies of any and all letters and notices to Tenant pertaining to the Lease and the Premises at the same time that such letters and notices are sent to Tenant. Landlord further agrees that, if it intends to terminate the Lease, the Landlord will give *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* the same advance written notice of such intent as provided to Tenant, specifying in such notice all defaults that are the cause of the proposed termination. *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* shall have the right to cure, at its sole option, any such default within the time periods granted to Tenant under the Lease. If neither Tenant or *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* cures all such defaults within said time periods (or such longer cure periods as may be specifically permitted by the Lease), then the Landlord may terminate the Lease, re-enter the Premises and/or exercise all other rights as set forth in the Lease.

c. Prior to the expiration or termination of the Lease, *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* shall have the right to enter the Premises to make any reasonable modifications or reasonable alterations necessary to protect *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* interest in the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* business and the Proprietary Marks and System (as such terms are defined in the Franchise Agreement), or to cure any default under the Franchise Agreement or any development

agreement entered into by *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* and the Tenant or under the Lease, and Landlord agrees that *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* shall not be liable for trespass or any other crimes or tort.

### 3. Notices.

All notices and demands required to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be sent by personal delivery, expedited delivery service, certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, first-class postage prepaid, facsimile, telegram or telex (provide that the sender confirm the facsimile, telegram or telex by sending an original confirmation copy by certified transmission), to the respective parties at the following addresses unless and until a different address has been designated by written notice to the other parties.

If directed to Tenant, the notice shall be addressed to:

Attn:		
Facsimile:		

If directed to Landlord, the notice shall be address to:

Attn: \_\_\_\_\_ Facsimile: \_\_\_\_\_

If directed to NrGize Lifestyle Cafe, the notices shall be addressed to:

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. 9311 E. Via De Ventura Scottsdale, AZ 85258 Attn: Legal Department Facsimile: (480) 362-4797

Any notices sent by personal delivery shall be deemed given upon receipt. Any notices given by telex or facsimile shall be deemed given on the business day of transmission, provided confirmation is made as provided above. Any notice sent by expedited delivery service or registered or certified mail shall be deemed given three (3) business days after the time of mailing. Any change in the foregoing addresses shall be effected by giving fifteen (15) days' written notice of such change to the other parties.

### 4. Amendments.

Landlord and Tenant will not amend, renew, extend or otherwise modify this Lease in any manner which would materially affect any of the foregoing provisions without *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*'s prior written consent.

### 5. Third Party Beneficiary.

Landlord and Tenant agree that *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* is a third party beneficiary of the Lease.

### 6. **Miscellaneous.**

The terms and conditions of this Lease Addendum will supersede any Conflicting terms of the Lease. Any capitalized term not specifically defined in this Addendum shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Lease or Franchise Agreement, as applicable.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Addendum in duplicate as of the day and year set forth in the Lease Agreement.

"LANDLORD"	, a(n)
	By: Title:
"TENANT"	, a(n)
	By: Title:
	By: Title:

# Kahala

### EXHIBIT 3 ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER (EFT) AUTHORIZATION

Store No.	Franchisee Phone No.				
above)					
Principal's Name and Social S	Security Number				
-	Store No. above) Principal's Name and Social S				

### BANK ACCOUNT INFORMATION

Bank Name	Bank Account Number	Bank Routing Number	
		[: [: 9 Characters	
Bank Mailing Address (street, city, state, zip)			
Bank Phone Number			

### PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION

Franchisee hereby authorizes Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. (the "Payee"), to initiate withdrawals from the Bank Account indicated on this form, and hereby authorizes the Bank to honor and charge the Bank Account for electronic funds transfers or drafts drawn on the Bank Account and payable to Payee. The amount of such charge shall be set forth in a notice from the Payee presented to the Bank on the day(s) of the week set forth in your franchise agreement, gift card participation agreement (or similar agreement for the gift card program), and any other agreement you sign that authorizes us or our affiliate to debit your account for the fees, which may be modified by Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. or its affiliates, for the payment of royalty fees, advertising fees, POS support fees, gift card and e-gifting program fees and funds flow, and any other fees, charges and other amounts payable to us or our affiliates for any services we provide or facilitate. The Franchisee agrees to execute such additional documents as may be reasonably requested by the Payee or the Bank to evidence the interest of this EFT Authorization. This authority shall remain in full force and effect until the Payee has received written notification from the Franchisee in such time and manner as to afford the Payee and the Bank to act on such notice. The Franchisee understands that the termination of this authorization does not relieve the Franchisee of its obligations to make payments to the Payee. Payee may assign its rights and obligations under this EFT Authorization to Payee's affiliates or agents. Payee may change its designated affiliates or agents at Payee's discretion.

Signature:	Date:

### NOTE: FRANCHISEE MUST ATTACH A VOIDED OR COMPLETED CHECK RELATING TO THE BANK ACCOUNT.

# ATTACH VOIDED OR COMPLETED CHECK HERE

### GUARANTY OF CONTRACT FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

### RECITALS

A. The undersigned are shareholders, partners, members, or other persons or entities interested in effecting the grant or transfer of this Franchise Agreement.

B. Without this guaranty, Franchisor cannot be assured that there are sufficient assets to operate the franchise, or to protect Franchisor in the event of a default by Franchisee.

C. Franchisor is willing to enter into the Franchise Agreement only if the undersigned personally guarantee faithful performance of all the terms of the Franchise Agreement.

### AGREEMENT

1. In consideration of the above recitals, the undersigned personally guarantee the prompt and complete performance of all the covenants and conditions contained in the foregoing Franchise Agreement.

2. This guaranty is effective until all terms of the Franchise Agreement have been fully and completely performed by Franchisee. No release of Franchisee or discharge of Franchisee under bankruptcy law, or any other law, shall impair or effect the obligations of Guarantor(s) to Franchisor hereunder.

3. Franchisor is not required to proceed first against the Franchisee, but may proceed first against the undersigned or any of them alone or concurrent with proceeding against Franchisee. The obligations of Guarantor(s) hereunder are absolute and unconditional.

4. Franchisee and Franchisor may from time to time alter or modify the Franchise Agreement between themselves, possibly changing or increasing the extent of the undersigned's obligation under this contract. The undersigned consent to any and all modifications or amendments of the Franchise Agreement and the documents and Operations Manuals referred to in the Franchise Agreement, without requiring notice to them or their consent as guarantors.

5. The undersigned agree specifically to be bound by the confidentiality requirements and the covenant against competition in the Franchise Agreement.

6. The undersigned waive notice of acceptance of this guaranty and notice of non-performance or non-payment by Franchisee of any of its obligations or liabilities under the Franchise Agreement.

7. A default by the Guarantor(s) under this Agreement will be deemed a default under all Franchise Agreements guaranteed by the Guarantor(s).

8. Guarantor(s) jointly and severally agree(s) to pay all attorneys' fees, costs and expenses (including any and all Royalty Fees and Advertising Fees and associated interest on such amounts, that are determined to be owing to Franchisor due to underreporting by Franchisee) incurred by Franchisor in enforcing this Guaranty, whether or not suit or action is filed, and if suit or action is filed, then through trial and all appeals, and also in any proceedings or matter in Bankruptcy Court; Guarantor(s) assume all liability for all losses, costs, attorney's fees, and expenses that Franchisor incurs as a result of a

default by Franchisee, including those fees and expenses incurred in a bankruptcy proceeding involving Franchisee.

9. The undersigned hereby agrees that upon notice of default or upon an uncured default of the Franchise Agreement or any other agreement between the undersigned (or a legal entity thereof) and Franchisor or its affiliates, and with no prior notice, the undersigned consent(s) to Franchisor's (or its affiliates' or third-party contractors') acquisition and use of non-business consumer credit reports on the undersigned in order to evaluate as necessary the financial condition of the undersigned as principal(s), member(s), manager(s), franchisee(s), and/or guarantor(s) in connection with the collection of monetary obligations as contemplated by your Franchise Agreement, this Guaranty of Contract, a promissory note, or any other agreements between the undersigned (or a legal entity thereof), and Franchisor or its affiliates. The undersigned as [an] individual(s) hereby knowingly consent to the use of such credit reports consistent with the Federal Fair Credit Reporting Act as contained in 15 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq.

10. The Guaranty is personal to the undersigned and the obligations and duties imposed herein may not be delegated or assigned; provided, however, that this Guaranty shall be binding upon the successors, assigns and personal representatives of the undersigned. This Guaranty shall inure to the benefit of Franchisor, its affiliates, successors and assigns.

11. In the event that any one or more provisions contained herein shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof and this Guaranty shall be construed to bind the undersigned to the maximum extent permitted by law that is subsumed within the terms of such provision as though it were separately articulated herein.

12. This Guaranty shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the State of Arizona, which laws shall prevail in the event of any conflict of law. Any appropriate state or federal court located in Maricopa County, Phoenix, Arizona has exclusive jurisdiction over any case or controversy arising under or in connection with this Agreement and is the proper forum in which to adjudicate the case or controversy, and the parties hereto irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction of any such court. THE PARTIES AGREE THAT ALL DISPUTES ADMITTED TO THE COURT PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION 12 SHALL BE TRIED TO THE COURT SITTING WITHOUT A JURY, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY STATE OR FEDERAL CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY RIGHTS OR PROVISIONS.

13. Each of the undersigned acknowledges that (i) it is a condition to the granting of the Franchise Agreement to Franchisee that each of the undersigned shall execute and deliver this Guaranty to Franchisor, (ii) that Franchisor has entered into the Franchise Agreement in reliance upon the agreement of the undersigned to do so, and (iii) that, as owners of the Franchisee, the undersigned have received adequate consideration to support their execution of this Guaranty. This Guaranty does not grant or create in the undersigned any interests, rights or privileges in any Franchise or Franchise Agreement.

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_, an Individual

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_, an Individual

### COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT AND IRREVOCABLE SPECIAL POWER OF ATTORNEY

### COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT AND IRREVOCABLE SPECIAL POWER OF ATTORNEY

THIS COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT AND IRREVOCABLE SPECIAL POWER OF ATTORNEY ("Assignment") is entered into this \_\_\_\_ day of \_ ("Effective Date") in accordance , 20 Franchise Agreement ("Franchise Agreement") with the terms of that certain between ("Franchisee") and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company (the "Franchisor"), executed concurrently with this Assignment and under which Company granted Franchisee the right to own and operate an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant located at ("Restaurant").

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Franchisee hereby assigns to Franchisor, its affiliates, subsidiaries, successors and assigns, all of Franchisee's right, title and interest in and to: (i) the "Telephone Numbers" and Listings" which include those certain telephone numbers and regular, yellow-pages, special, classified or other telephone directory listings used at any time in connection with the operation of the Restaurant; (ii) any website page or social media addresses and accounts, including, but not limited to, a Facebook® page or Twitter® account that contains any term or any mark confusingly similar to a trademark or other intellectual property owned or licensed by Franchisor; and (iii) any corporation, limited liability company, partnership, or other entity name or trade name filed or formed by Franchisee that contains any trademark or other intellectual property owned or licensed by Franchisor (each an "Entity Name"). This Assignment is for collateral purposes only, and except as specified herein, Franchisor shall have no liability or obligation of any kind whatsoever arising from or in connection with this Assignment unless Franchisor shall notify the (i) telephone company and/or the listing agencies with which Franchisee has placed telephone directory listings (all such entities are collectively referred to herein as the "Telephone Company"); (ii) webmaster/webhost for the website or social media account; and (iii) Secretary of State, Corporation Commission or other state government agency that handles the filing of entity formation documents, to effectuate the assignment pursuant to the terms hereof.

Franchisee hereby appoints Franchisor as his/her/its attorney-of-fact and grants Franchisor an irrevocable Special Power of Attorney, coupled with an interest, with full power and authority for the purpose of executing documents or taking such action as necessary or appropriate as Franchisee might or could do if personally present, hereby ratifying all that Franchisor, as Franchisee's attorney-in-fact, shall lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue of this Special Power of Attorney to obtain, protect, maintain or enforce Franchisor's intellectual property rights if Franchisor is, for any reason, unable to obtain Franchisee's cooperation or assistance. The Special Power of Attorney granted by this Assignment, shall survive the dissolution, death, incompetence or disability of Franchisee and the termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement or this Assignment.

Upon (i) termination of the Franchise Agreement for any reason, or (ii) expiration of the Franchise Agreement without renewal or extension, Franchisor shall have the right and is hereby empowered to effectuate the assignment of the Telephone Numbers and Listings, website and/or social media account, and Entity Name. In such event Franchisee shall have no further right, title or interest in the Telephone Numbers and Listings or the website and/or social media account, and shall remain liable to the Telephone Company for all past due fees and charges owing to the Telephone Company on or before the effective date of the assignment hereunder.

Franchisee agrees and acknowledges that as between Franchisor and Franchisee, Franchisor shall have the sole right to and interest in the Telephone Numbers and Listings, website and/or social media accounts and Entity Name upon termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement. Franchisee appoints Franchisor as Franchisee's true and lawful attorney-in-fact to direct the Telephone Company, webmaster/webhost, and state government agency to assign same to Franchisor and execute such documents and take such actions as may be necessary to effectuate the assignment. Upon such event Franchisee shall immediately instruct the (i) Telephone Company to assign the Telephone Numbers and

Listings to Franchisor; the webmaster/webhost to assign the website and/or social media account to Franchisor; and (iii) state government agency to allow Franchisor to file the necessary documents to change the Entity Name. If Franchisee fails to promptly direct the (i) Telephone Company to assign the Telephone Numbers and Listings to Franchisor; (ii) webmaster/webhost to assign the website or social media account(s) to Franchisor; and/or (iii) file the necessary documents with the appropriate state government agency to remove Franchisor's trademarks or other intellectual property from the Franchisee's Entity Name, Franchisor shall direct the appropriate parties to effectuate the assignment contemplated hereunder to Franchisor.

The parties agree that the Telephone Company, webmaster/webhost, and appropriate state government agency may accept Franchisor's written direction, the Franchise Agreement or this Assignment as conclusive proof of Franchisor's exclusive rights in and to the Telephone Numbers and Listings, website and/or social media accounts, and Franchisor's authority to file the necessary documents to remove Franchisor's trademark or other intellectual property from the Entity Name and that such assignment shall be made automatically and effective immediately upon Telephone Company's, webmaster's/webhost's or state government agency's receipt of such notice from Franchisor or Franchisee. The parties further agree that if the Telephone Company, webmaster/webhost, or state government agency requires that the parties execute an assignment form or other documentation at the time of termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement Franchisee's consent and agreement to the assignment. The parties agree that at any time after the date hereof they will perform such acts and execute and deliver such documents as may be necessary to assist in or accomplish the assignment described herein upon termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Assignment by their duly authorized representatives with full rights, power and authority to enter into and bind the respective Party and to perform all obligations under this Assignment.

### **ASSIGNOR (Franchisee):**

By:\_\_\_\_\_ Print Name:\_\_\_\_\_\_ Its:\_\_\_\_\_

State of \_\_\_\_\_ County of \_\_\_\_\_

On \_\_\_\_\_\_ before me, personally appeared \_\_\_\_\_\_ known to me (or proved to me on the oath of \_\_\_\_\_\_ or through \_\_\_\_\_\_) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity, and that by his/her signature on the instrument the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of \_\_\_\_\_\_ that the foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

(Signature of Notary Public)

(Seal)

Acknowledged by:

ASSIGNEE (Franchisor) KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:\_\_\_\_\_ Print Name:\_\_\_\_\_ Its:\_\_\_\_\_

### EXHIBIT 6 AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS FOR NON-TRADITIONAL LOCATIONS

(Applicable only for Non-Traditional Locations)

### EXHIBIT 6

### AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS FOR NON-TRADITIONAL LOCATIONS

THIS AMENDMENT (the "<u>Amendment</u>") dated \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_, to the Franchise Agreement dated \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_ for the Non-Traditional *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* location at \_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "<u>Franchise Agreement</u>" or "<u>Agreement</u>") by and between Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company, doing business as "*NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*" ("<u>Franchisor</u>") and \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("<u>Franchisee</u>"), is entered into by such parties to amend the Agreement as set forth herein. To the extent this Amendment contains terms and conditions that differ from those contained in the Agreement, this Amendment shall control. The parties agree that a concept or principle provided in one Section of this Amendment shall apply and be incorporated into all other provisions of the Franchise Agreement in which the concept or principle is also applicable, notwithstanding the absence of any specific cross reference thereto. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein will have the same meanings ascribed to such terms in the Agreement.

### The following shall apply to Non-Traditional locations:

1. Pursuant to Section 4.1 <u>"Training Program"</u>, the following shall be added after the last sentence of the existing paragraph: "Notwithstanding the foregoing, for Non-Traditional locations, the total number of days of training and related assistance will be a total of three (3) days."

2. Section 5.1 <u>"Initial Franchise Fee"</u>, shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "Concurrently upon Franchisee's execution of this Agreement, Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor an "Initial Franchisee Fee" for this Non-Traditional location equal to \$7,500.00 (the current initial franchisee fee for a Non-Traditional *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchise). You and we agree that our grant of the franchise and your payment of the Initial Franchises Fee provided for in this *Section 5.1* does not give you any rights with respect to other franchises, if any, as we in our sole discretion may elect to make available in the future. No portion of the Initial Franchise Fee is refundable."

3. Section 5.2 <u>"Royalty Fee and Surcharge"</u>, shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "Commencing on the Effective Date, Franchisee will be required to pay Franchisor a weekly "Royalty Fee" equal to 6% of Franchisee's Gross Sales for the prior week at the Franchised Business. In our sole discretion, we may charge, in addition to the Royalty Fee, a Surcharge of up to \$10 per week if your Franchised Business is located in a state that imposed additional reporting requirements on a franchisor."

4. Section 5.3 "<u>Advertising Fees</u>", paragraph a. shall be deleted in its entirety.

5. Section 5.13 <u>"Transfer Fee"</u>, shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "A Transfer Fee of Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00) is payable to us when you sell your Franchised Business (see Section 12.3(f) of this Agreement)."

6. Section 12.3(f) <u>"Requirement for Consent to Transfer"</u>, shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor a non-refundable Transfer fee of \$5,000.00."

The following shall apply to <u>Non-Traditional locations Co-Branded with another Kahala</u> <u>Franchising, L.L.C. concept ONLY</u> (locations listed as <u>Co-Branded</u> on page 1 of the Agreement under "Outlet Description if Non-Traditional" ONLY):

- 7. Section 5.4, "<u>Depository Account</u>," shall be deleted in its entirety.
- 8. Section 5.5, "<u>Location Review Fee</u>," shall be deleted in its entirety.
- 9. Section 5.6, "<u>Lease Guarantee Fee</u>," shall be deleted in its entirety.
- 10. Section 5.7, "<u>Lease Negotiation Fee</u>," shall be deleted in its entirety.
- 11. Section 5.8, "Lease Procurement Fee," shall be deleted in its entirety.
- 12. Section 5.11, "<u>Document Administration Fee</u>," shall be deleted in its entirety.
- 13. Section 5.16, "<u>Annual Meeting Registration Fee</u>," shall be deleted in its entirety.
- 14. Section 5.19, "<u>Data Fees</u>," shall be deleted in its entirety.

15. Section 5.20, "<u>POS Help Desk Phone Support Maintenance Contract Fee</u>," shall be deleted in its entirety.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on this \_\_\_\_\_day of\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_.

### FRANCHISOR:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:			
Name:			
Title:			

, a(n)
--------

By:		
Name:		
Title:		

By:	
Name:_	
Title:	

### EXHIBIT 7

### STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDUM

(Applicable only for the following states: California, Georgia, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, & Wisconsin)

# AMENDMENT TO KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS <u>FOR THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA</u>

The Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. Franchise Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Franchisee") and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement (this "Amendment"):

### **CALIFORNIA LAW MODIFICATIONS**

- A. THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE DELIVERED TOGETHER WITH THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.
- B. NEITHER THE FRANCHISOR, FRANCHISE BROKER NOR ANY PERSON IN ITEM 2 OF THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ARE SUBJECT TO ANY CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE ORDER OF ANY NATIONAL SECURITIES ASSOCIATION OR NATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, AS DEFINED IN THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78A ET SEQ., SUSPENDING OR EXPELLING SUCH PERSON FROM MEMBERSHIP IN SUCH ASSOCIATION OR EXCHANGE.
- C. THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT PROVIDES FOR TERMINATION UPON BANKRUPTCY. THIS PROVISION MAY NOT BE ENFORCEABLE UNDER FEDERAL BANKRUPTCY LAW. (11 U.S.C.A. SEC. 101 ET SEQ.).
- D. THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT CONTAINS A COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE WHICH EXTENDS BEYOND THE TERMINATION OF THE FRANCHISE. THIS PROVISION MAY NOT BE ENFORCEABLE UNDER CALIFORNIA LAW.
- E. THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT REQUIRES APPLICATION OF THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA. THIS PROVISION MAY NOT BE ENFORCEABLE UNDER CALIFORNIA LAW.
- F. SECTION 31125 OF THE CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE REQUIRES US TO GIVE YOU A DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, IN A FORM CONTAINING THE INFORMATION THAT THE COMMISSIONER MAY BY RULE OR ORDER REQUIRE, BEFORE A SOLICITATION OF A PROPOSED MATERIAL MODIFICATION OF AN EXISTING FRANCHISE.
- G. YOU MUST SIGN A GENERAL RELEASE IF YOU RENEW OR TRANSFER YOUR FRANCHISE. CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE §31512 VOIDS A WAIVER OF YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE

FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW (CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE §§31000 THROUGH 31516).

- H. BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE §20010 VOIDS A WAIVER OF YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE FRANCHISE RELATIONS ACT (BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE §§20000 THROUGH 20043).
- I. CALIFORNIA BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE SECTIONS 20000 THROUGH 20043 PROVIDE RIGHTS TO THE FRANCHISEE CONCERNING TERMINATION OR NON-RENEWAL OF A FRANCHISE. IF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT CONTAINS A PROVISION THAT IS INCONSISTENT WITH THE LAW, THE LAW WILL CONTROL.
- J. THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT CONTAINS A LIQUIDATED DAMAGES CLAUSE. UNDER CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE § 1671, CERTAIN LIQUIDATED DAMAGES CLAUSES ARE UNENFORCEABLE.
- K. IF THE FRANCHISEE RESIDES IN THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS IS LOCATED WITHIN THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, THE VENUE FOR ANY DISPUTE MAY BE WITHIN THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on this \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

### FRANCHISOR:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	 	
Name:		
Title:		

By:		
Name:		
Title:		

#### AMENDMENT TO KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C.

#### FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS

#### FOR GEORGIA RESIDENTS AND FRANCHISEES WHOSE FRANCHISES WILL BE OPERATED IN GEORGIA ONLY

The Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. Franchise Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_\_("Franchisee") and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement (this "Amendment"):

Section 14.6.c. "<u>Confidentiality; Covenant Not to Compete</u>," shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

During the term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years after its termination for any cause, Franchisee shall not engage in any business in competition with any NrGize restaurant. The provisions of this Agreement bind Franchisee in any capacity, including as a franchisee, sole proprietor, partner, limited partner, member, employer, franchisor, stockholder, officer, director or employee. For purposes of this paragraph, "competition" means the franchising, ownership, or operation of a restaurant similar to a NrGize outlet at the location identified in Section 1.1 of this Agreement, or within a geographical area consisting of: (1) during the term of this Agreement, a ten (10) mile radius from the restaurant covered under this Franchise Agreement and from any of the NrGize outlets located on the attached Exhibit "A"; and (2) for a period of two (2) years after termination of this Agreement, a ten (10) mile radius from the restaurant covered under this Franchise Agreement and from any of the NrGize outlets located on the attached Exhibit "A". The term of this covenant will be extended by any time consumed in litigation to enforce it in both trial and appellate courts. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that the restrictions in this paragraph are excessive in time, geographic scope, or otherwise, the court may reduce the restriction to the level that provides the maximum restriction allowed by law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on this \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

#### FRANCHISOR:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	
Name:	
Title:	

By:	
Name:	
Title:	

## Exhibit "A"

Store Address	City	State	Zip Code

# AMENDMENT TO KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.LC. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT & RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS <u>FOR THE STATE OF HAWAII</u>

The Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. Franchise Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Franchisee") and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement (this "Amendment"):

### HAWAII LAW MODIFICATIONS

1. The Director of the Hawaii Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with Hawaii law, including the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law, Hawaii Revised Statutes, Title 26, Chapter 482E-1 through 482E-12 (1988). To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. The Hawaii Franchise Investment Law provides rights to You concerning nonrenewal, termination and transfer of the Agreement. If the Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Law, the Law will control. Among those rights, the law may require that upon termination or non-renewal Franchisor purchase for fair market value Franchisee's inventory, supplies, equipment and furnishings purchased from Franchisor or a supplier designated by Franchisor; provided that personalized materials which have no value to Franchisor need not be compensated for. If the non-renewal or termination is for the purpose of converting the Franchisee's business to one owned and operated by Franchisor, Franchisor may, additionally, be obligated to compensate the Franchisee for loss of goodwill. Franchisor may deduct all amounts due from Franchisee and any costs related to the transportation or disposition of items purchased against any payment for those items. If the parties cannot agree on fair market value, fair market value shall be determined in the manner set forth in the Agreement. If the Agreement does not provide for determination of fair market value of assets for purchase by Franchisor, such amount will be determined by an independent appraiser approved by both parties, and the costs of the appraisal shall be shared equally by the parties.
- b. If the Franchisee is required in the Agreement to execute a release of claims, such release shall exclude claims arising under the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law.

2. Section 482E-3(a) of the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law requires us to give you a copy of the Franchise Disclosure Document at least 7 calendar days prior to signing the Franchise Agreement.

3. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law applicable to the provision are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on this \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

## FRANCHISOR:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	
Name:_	
Title:	

By:	
Name:	
Title:	

# AMENDMENT TO KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT & RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS FOR THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

The Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. Franchise Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Franchisee") and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement (this "Amendment"):

### **ILLINOIS LAW MODIFICATIONS**

1. The Illinois Attorney General's Office requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with Illinois law, including the Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, III. Comp. Stat. Ch. 815 para. 705/1 –705/44 (1994). To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act paragraphs 705/19 and 705/20 provide rights to the Franchisee concerning non-renewal and termination of the Agreement. If the Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Act, the Act will control.
- b. If the Franchisee is required in the Agreement to execute a release of claims or to acknowledge facts that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement, misrepresentation or action that would violate the Act, or a rule of order under the Act, such release shall exclude claims arising under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, and such acknowledgements shall be void with respect to claims under the Act.
- c. If the Agreement requires litigation to be conducted in a forum other than the State of Illinois, the requirement is void under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.
- d. If the Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of Illinois, to the extent that such law conflicts with the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, the Act will control.
- e. To the extent that Sections 17.3(a) and 17.3(c) of the Agreement requires Operator to execute a release of claims or to acknowledge facts that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement, misrepresentation or action that would violate the Act, or a rule or order under the Act, such release shall exclude claims arising under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, and such acknowledgements shall be void and hereby deleted with respect to claims under the Act.
- f. Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act states that "any condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with any provision of this Act is void."

2. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, with respect to each such provision, are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on this \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

### FRANCHISOR:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	 
Name:	 _
Title:	

By:	 
Name:	 
Title:	

# AMENDMENT TO KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS <u>FOR THE STATE OF INDIANA</u>

The Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. Franchise Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Franchisee") and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement (this "Amendment"):

### **INDIANA LAW MODIFICATIONS**

1. The Indiana Securities Commissioner requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with Indiana law, including the Indiana Franchises Act, Ind. Code Ann. §§ 1-51 (1994) and the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act, Ind. Code Ann. § 23-27 (1985). To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. The Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act provides rights to Franchisee concerning non-renewal and termination of the Agreement. To the extent the Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Act, the Act will control.
- b. If the Franchisee is required in the Agreement to execute a release of claims or to acknowledge facts that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement, misrepresentation or action that would violate the Act, or a rule of order under the Act, such release shall exclude claims arising under the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act and the Indiana Franchises Act, and such acknowledgements shall be void with respect to claims under the Act.
- c. If the Agreement contains covenants not to compete upon expiration or termination of the Agreement that are inconsistent with the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act, the requirements of the Act will control.
- d. The Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act provides that substantial modification of the Agreement by Franchisor requires written consent of the Franchisee. If the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with this requirement, the Act will control.
- e. If the Agreement requires litigation/arbitration to be conducted in a forum other than the State of Indiana, the requirement may be unenforceable as a limitation on litigation under the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act §§ 23-2.2.7(10).
- f. If the Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of Indiana, to the extent that such law conflicts with the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act and the Indiana Franchises Act, the Acts will control.

- g. The Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act provides rights to Franchisee concerning the waiver of claims or rights. To the extent the Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Act, the Act will control.
- h. The Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act provides rights to Franchisee concerning the time period to bring an action against the Franchisor. To the extent the Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Act, the Act will control.
- i. The Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act prohibits the Franchisor from operating a substantially identical business to that of the Franchisee's within the Franchisee's territory, regardless of trade name. To the extent this Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Act, the Act will control.
- j. The Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practice Act excludes any indemnification for liability caused by the Franchisee's proper reliance on or use of procedures or materials provided by the Franchisor. To the extent this Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Act, the Act will control.

2. Indiana Code § 23-2-2.5-9(2) requires us to give you a copy of the Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of: (i) 10 days prior to signing the Franchise Agreement; or (ii) 10 days prior to our receipt of any consideration.

3. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the Indiana Deceptive Practices Act and the Indiana Franchises Act, with respect to each such provision, are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on this \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

### FRANCHISOR:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	
Name:	
Title:	

By:			
Name:	 		
Title:			

# AMENDMENT TO KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT & RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS <u>FOR THE STATE OF MARYLAND</u>

The Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. Franchise Agreement and all exhibits thereto between ("Franchisee") and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement (this "Amendment"):

## MARYLAND LAW MODIFICATIONS

1. The Maryland Securities Division requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with Maryland law, including the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. The general release required as a condition of assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.
- b. The Franchise Agreement requires litigation to be conducted in the State of Arizona. The Franchise Agreement is amended to state that the requirement for litigation to be conducted in a forum other than the State of Maryland shall not be interpreted to limit any rights Franchisee may have to bring suit in the state of Maryland. A Franchisee may file a civil lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought within three years after the grant of the franchise.
- c. All initial fees and payments payable to Franchisor before the business opens shall be deferred until such time as all initial obligations owed to the Franchisee under the Franchise Agreement or other agreements have been fulfilled by the Franchisor and the Franchisee has commenced doing business in accordance with the Franchise Agreement.
- d. All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of liability are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

2. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, with respect to each such provision, are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on this \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

## FRANCHISOR:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	 
Name:	
Title:	 

By:	
Name:	
Title:	

### ADDENDUM TO KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C.

## FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR THE STATE OF MICHIGAN

Section 445.1508(1) of the Michigan Franchise Investment Law requires franchisor to give you a copy of the Franchise Disclosure Document earlier of: (i) 10 business days prior to signing the Franchise Agreement; or (ii) 10 business days prior to franchisor's receipt of any consideration.

### THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE SOMETIMES IN THE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU:

(A) A PROHIBITION ON THE RIGHT OF A FRANCHISEE TO JOIN AN ASSOCIATION OF FRANCHISEES.

(B) A REQUIREMENT THAT A FRANCHISEE ASSENT TO A RELEASE, ASSIGNMENT, NOVATION, WAIVER, OR ESTOPPEL WHICH DEPRIVES A FRANCHISEE OF RIGHTS AND PROTECTIONS PROVIDED IN THIS ACT. THIS SHALL NOT PRECLUDE A FRANCHISEE, AFTER ENTERING INTO A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, FROM SETTLING ANY AND ALL CLAIMS.

(C) A PROVISION THAT PERMITS A FRANCHISOR TO TERMINATE A FRANCHISE PRIOR TO THE EXPIRATION OF ITS TERM EXCEPT FOR GOOD CAUSE. GOOD CAUSE SHALL INCLUDE THE FAILURE OF THE FRANCHISEE TO COMPLY WITH ANY LAWFUL PROVISION OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND TO CURE SUCH FAILURE AFTER BEING GIVEN WRITTEN NOTICE THEREOF AND A REASONABLE OPPORTUNITY, WHICH IN NO EVENT NEED BE MORE THAN 30 DAYS, TO CURE SUCH FAILURE.

(D) A PROVISION THAT PERMITS A FRANCHISOR TO REFUSE TO RENEW A FRANCHISE WITHOUT FAIRLY COMPENSATING THE FRANCHISEE BY REPURCHASE OR OTHER MEANS FOR THE FAIR MARKET VALUE AT THE TIME OF EXPIRATION, OF THE FRANCHISEE'S INVENTORY, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, FIXTURES, AND PERSONALIZED MATERIALS WHICH HAVE NO VALUE TO THE FURNISHINGS. FRANCHISOR AND INVENTORY, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, FIXTURES, AND FURNISHINGS NOT REASONABLY REQUIRED IN THE CONDUCT OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS ARE NOT SUBJECT TO COMPENSATION. THIS SUBSECTION APPLIES ONLY IF: (i) THE TERM OF THE FRANCHISE IS LESS THAN FIVE (5) YEARS; AND (ii) THE FRANCHISEE IS PROHIBITED BY THE FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT FROM CONTINUING TO CONDUCT SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME BUSINESS UNDER ANOTHER TRADEMARK, SERVICE MARK, TRADE NAME, LOGOTYPE, ADVERTISING, OR OTHER COMMERCIAL SYMBOL IN THE SAME AREA SUBSEQUENT TO THE EXPIRATION OF THE FRANCHISE OR THE FRANCHISEE DOES NOT RECEIVE AT LEAST SIX (6) MONTHS ADVANCE NOTICE OF FRANCHISOR'S INTENT NOT TO RENEW THE FRANCHISE.

(E) A PROVISION THAT PERMITS THE FRANCHISOR TO REFUSE TO RENEW A FRANCHISE ON TERMS GENERALLY AVAILABLE TO OTHER FRANCHISEES OF THE SAME CLASS OR TYPE UNDER SIMILAR CIRCUMSTANCES. THIS SECTION DOES NOT REQUIRE A RENEWAL PROVISION.

(F) A PROVISION REQUIRING THAT ARBITRATION OR LITIGATION BE CONDUCTED OUTSIDE THIS STATE. THIS SHALL NOT PRECLUDE THE FRANCHISEE FROM ENTERING INTO AN AGREEMENT, AT THE TIME OF ARBITRATION, TO CONDUCT ARBITRATION AT A LOCATION OUTSIDE THIS STATE.

(G) A PROVISION WHICH PERMITS A FRANCHISOR TO REFUSE TO PERMIT A TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP OF A FRANCHISE, EXCEPT FOR GOOD CAUSE. THIS SUBDIVISION DOES NOT PREVENT A FRANCHISOR FROM EXERCISING A RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL TO PURCHASE THE FRANCHISE. GOOD CAUSE SHALL INCLUDE, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO:

- (i) THE FAILURE OF THE PROPOSED TRANSFEREE TO MEET THE FRANCHISOR'S THEN CURRENT REASONABLE QUALIFICATIONS OR STANDARDS.
- (ii) THE FACT THAT THE PROPOSED TRANSFEREE IS A COMPETITOR OF THE FRANCHISOR OR SUBFRANCHISOR.
- (iii) THE UNWILLINGNESS OF THE PROPOSED TRANSFEREE TO AGREE IN WRITING TO COMPLY WITH ALL LAWFUL OBLIGATIONS.
- (iv) THE FAILURE OF THE FRANCHISEE OR PROPOSED TRANSFEREE TO PAY ANY SUMS OWING TO THE FRANCHISOR OR TO CURE ANY DEFAULT IN THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT EXISTING AT THE TIME OF THE PROPOSED TRANSFER.

(H) A PROVISION THAT REQUIRES THE FRANCHISEE TO RESELL TO THE FRANCHISOR ITEMS THAT ARE NOT UNIQUELY IDENTIFIED WITH THE FRANCHISOR. THIS SUBDIVISION DOES NOT PROHIBIT A PROVISION THAT GRANTS TO A FRANCHISOR A RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL TO PURCHASE THE ASSETS OF A FRANCHISE ON THE SAME TERMS AND CONDITIONS AS A BONA FIDE THIRD PARTY WILLING AND ABLE TO PURCHASE THOSE ASSETS, NOR DOES THIS SUBDIVISION PROHIBIT A PROVISION THAT GRANTS THE FRANCHISOR THE RIGHT TO ACQUIRE THE ASSETS OF A FRANCHISE FOR THE MARKET OR APPRAISED VALUE OF SUCH ASSETS IF THE FRANCHISEE HAS BREACHED THE LAWFUL PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND HAS FAILED TO CURE THE BREACH IN THE MANNER PROVIDED IN SUBDIVISION (C).

(I) A PROVISION WHICH PERMITS THE FRANCHISOR TO DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY CONVEY, ASSIGN, OR OTHERWISE TRANSFER ITS OBLIGATIONS TO FULFILL CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS TO THE FRANCHISEE UNLESS PROVISION HAS BEEN MADE FOR PROVIDING THE REQUIRED CONTRACTUAL SERVICES.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS NOTICE SHALL BE DIRECTED TO :

STATE OF MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL ATTENTION: FRANCHISE SECTION P.O. BOX 30213 LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909 (517) 373-7117

## AMENDMENT TO KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT & RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS FOR THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

The Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. Franchise Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Franchisee") and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement (this "Amendment"):

### **MINNESOTA LAW MODIFICATIONS**

1. The Commissioner of Commerce for the State of Minnesota requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with Minnesota Franchise Act, Minn. Stat. Section 80.01 et seq., and of the Rules and Regulations promulgated under the Act (collectively the "Franchise Act"). To the extent that the Agreement and Disclosure Document contain provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or agreement(s) can abrogate or reduce (1) any of the franchisee's rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C or (2) franchisee's rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.
- b. With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.14, Subd. 3-5, which require (except in certain specified cases) (1) that a franchisee be given 90 days notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days notice for non-renewal of the franchise agreement and (2) that consent to the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld.
- c. The franchisor will protect the franchisee's rights to use the trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes or other commercial symbols or indemnify the franchisee from any loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the name.

Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee's right to use the trademarks. Refer to Minnesota Statues, Section 80C.12, Subd. 1(g).

- d. Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent to a general release.
- e. The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The franchisor may <u>seek</u> injunctive relief. See Minn. Rules 2860.4400J.

Also, a court will determine if a bond is required.

f. The Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17, Subd. 5.

2. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the Minnesota law applicable to the provision are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on this \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

### FRANCHISOR:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	 
Name:	 
Title:	

By:			 
Name:			
Title:			

# AMENDMENT TO KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT & RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS FOR THE STATE OF NEW YORK

The Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. Franchise Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Franchisee") and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement (this "Amendment"):

## **NEW YORK LAW MODIFICATIONS**

1. The New York Department of Law requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with New York law, including the General Business Law, Article 33, Section 680 through 695 (1989). To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. If the Franchisee is required in the Agreement to execute a release of claims or to acknowledge facts that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement, misrepresentation or action that would violate the General Business Law, regulation, rule or order under the Law, such release shall exclude claims arising under the New York General Business Law, Article 33, Section 680 through 695 and the regulations promulgated thereunder, and such acknowledgements shall be void. It is the intent of this provision that non-waiver provisions of Sections 687.4 and 687.5 of the General Business Law be satisfied.
- b. If the Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of New York, the choice of law provision shall not be considered to waive any rights conferred upon the Franchisee under the New York General Business Law, Article 33, Sections 680 through 695.

2. The following Items are required to be included within the Disclosure Document and shall be deemed to supersede the language in the Disclosure Document itself:

## **ITEM 3: LITIGATION**

Neither the Franchisor, its Predecessor nor any person listed under Item 2 or an affiliate offering franchises under Franchisor's principal trademark:

- a. has an administrative, criminal or civil action pending against the person alleging: a felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust or securities law; fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion, misappropriation of property; unfair or deceptive practices or comparable civil or misdemeanor allegations.
- b. has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felony charge or, within the ten year period immediately preceding the application for registration, has been convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a

misdemeanor charge or has been the subject of a civil action alleging: violation of a franchise, anti-fraud or securities law; fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of property, or unfair or deceptive practices or comparable allegations.

c. is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree relating to the franchise, or under a Federal, State or Canadian franchise, securities, antitrust, trade regulation or trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending action or proceeding brought by a public agency; or is subject to any currently effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, suspending or expelling such person from membership in such association or exchange; or is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order relating to any other business activity as a result of an action brought by a public agency or department, including, without limitation, actions affecting a license as a real estate broker or sales agent.

3. Section 683.8 of the General Business Law of the State of New York requires us to give you a copy of the Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of: (i) the first personal meeting; (ii) 10 business days before the execution of the Franchise Agreement; or (iii) 10 business days before the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

4. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of New York General Business Law, with respect to each such provision are met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on this \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

#### FRANCHISOR:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	
Name:_	
Title:	

By:	
Name:_	
Title:	

# AMENDMENT TO KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT & RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS FOR THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

The Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. Franchise Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Franchisee") and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement (this "Amendment"):

## NORTH DAKOTA LAW MODIFICATIONS

1. The North Dakota Securities Commissioner requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with North Dakota Law, including the North Dakota Franchises Investment Law, North Dakota Century Code Annotated Chapter 51-19, Sections 51-19-01 through 51-19-17 (1993). To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. If the Franchisee is required in the Agreement to execute a release of claims or to acknowledge facts that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement, misrepresentation or action that would violate the Law, or a rule or order under the Law, such release shall exclude claims arising under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, and such acknowledgements shall be void with respect to claims under the Law.
- b. Covenants not to compete during the term and upon termination or expiration of the Agreement are enforceable only under certain conditions according to North Dakota Law. If this Agreement contains a covenant not to compete which is inconsistent with North Dakota Law, the covenant may be unenforceable.
- c. If this Agreement requires litigation to be conducted in a forum other than the State of North Dakota, the requirement is void with respect to claims under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.
- d. If the Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of North Dakota, to the extent that such law conflicts with the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law will control.
- e. If the Agreement requires mediation or arbitration to be conducted in a forum other than the State of North Dakota, the requirement may be unenforceable under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. Arbitration involving a franchise purchased in the State of North Dakota must be held either in a location mutually agreed upon prior to the arbitration or if the parties cannot agree on a location, the location will be determined by the arbitrator.
- f. If the Agreement requires payment of a termination penalty, the requirement may be unenforceable under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

g. Section 51-19-08 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law requires Franchisor to give you a copy of the Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of: (i) seven days prior to signing the Franchise Agreement; or (ii) seven days prior to Franchisor's receipt of any consideration.

### 2. THE SECURITIES COMMISSIONER HAS HELD THE FOLLOWING TO BE UNFAIR, UNJUST OR INEQUITABLE TO NORTH DAKOTA FRANCHISEES (SECTION 51-19-09, N.D.C.C.):

- A. Restrictive Covenants: Franchise disclosure documents which disclose the existence of covenants restricting competition contrary to Section 9-08-06, N.D.C.C., without further disclosing that such covenants will be subject to the statute.
- B. Situs of Arbitration Proceedings: Franchise agreements providing that the parties must agree to the arbitration of disputes at a location that is remote from the site of the franchisee's business.
- C. Restrictions on Forum: Requiring North Dakota franchisees to consent to the jurisdiction of courts outside of North Dakota.
- D. Liquidated Damages and Termination Penalties: Requiring North Dakota franchisees to consent to liquidated damages or termination penalties.
- E. Applicable Laws: Franchise agreements which specify that they are to be governed by the laws of a state other than North Dakota.
- F. Waiver of Trial by Jury: Requiring North Dakota Franchises to consent to the waiver of a trial by jury.
- G. Waiver of Exemplary & Punitive Damages: Requiring North Dakota Franchisees to consent to a waiver of exemplary and punitive damage.
- H. General Release: Franchise Agreements that require the franchisee to sign a general release upon renewal of the franchise agreement.
- I. Limitation of Claims: Franchise Agreements that require the franchisee to consent to a limitation of claims. The statute of limitations under North Dakota law applies.
- J. Enforcement of Agreement: Franchise Agreements that require the franchisee to pay all costs and expenses incurred by the franchisor in enforcing the agreement. The prevailing party in any enforcement action is entitled to recover all costs and expenses including attorney's fees.

3. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, with respect to each such provision, are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on this \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

#### FRANCHISOR:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:			
Name:			
Title:			

By:	
Name:	
Title:	

# AMENDMENT TO KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT & RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS FOR THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND

The Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. Franchise Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_("Franchisee") and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement (this "Amendment"):

### **RHODE ISLAND LAW MODIFICATIONS**

1. The Rhode Island Securities Division requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with Rhode Island law, including the Franchise Investment Act, R.I. Gen. Law. ch. 395 Sec. 19-28.1-1 - 19-28.1-34. To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. If the Agreement requires litigation to be conducted in a forum other than the State of Rhode Island, the requirement is void under Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act Sec. 19-28.1-14.
- b. If the Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of Rhode Island, to the extent that such law conflicts with Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act it is void under Sec. 19-28.1-14.
- c. If the Franchisee is required in this Agreement to execute a release of claims or to acknowledge facts that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement, misrepresentation or action that would violate the Act, or a rule or order under the Act, such release shall exclude claims arising under the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, and such acknowledgements shall be void with respect to claims under the Act.

2. Section 19-28.1-8 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act requires a franchisor to give you a copy of the Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of: (i) the first personal meeting; (ii) 10 business days before the execution of the Franchise Agreement; or (iii) 10 business days before the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

3. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, with respect to each such provision, are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on this \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

## FRANCHISOR:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	 
Name:	
Title:	

By:	
Name:_	
Title:	

## AMENDMENT TO KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT & RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS FOR THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

The Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. Franchise Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Franchisee") and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement (this "Amendment"):

### SOUTH DAKOTA LAW MODIFICATIONS

1. The Director of the South Dakota Division of Securities requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with South Dakota law, including the South Dakota Franchises for Brand-Name Goods and Services Law, South Dakota Codified Laws, Title 37, Chapter 37-5A, Sections 37-5A-1 through 37-5A-87 (1994). To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. If the Franchisee is required in the Agreement to execute a release of claims or to acknowledge facts that would negate or remove from judicial review any statement, misrepresentation or action that would violate the Law, or a rule or order under the Law, such release shall exclude claims arising under the South Dakota Franchises for Brand-Name Goods and Services Law, and such acknowledgements shall be void with respect to claims under the Law.
- b. Covenants not to compete upon termination or expiration of the Agreement are generally unenforceable in the state of South Dakota, except in certain limited instances as provided by law. If this Agreement contains a covenant not to compete which is inconsistent with South Dakota Law, the covenant may be unenforceable.
- c. Regardless of the terms of the Agreement concerning termination, if Franchisee fails to meet performance and quality standards or fails to make any royalty payments under the Agreement, Franchisee will be afforded thirty (30) days' written notice with an opportunity to cure the default before termination.
- If the Agreement requires payment of liquidated damages that are inconsistent with South Dakota law, the liquidated damage clause may be void under SDCL 53-9-5.
- e. If the Agreement requires litigation to be conducted in a forum other than the State of South Dakota, the requirement is void with respect to any cause of action otherwise enforceable under South Dakota Law.
- f. If the Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of South Dakota, matters regarding franchise registration, employment, covenants not to compete, and other matters of local concern will be governed by the laws of the State of South Dakota; but as to contractual and all other matters, the Agreement and all provisions of this Amendment will be and

remain subject to the application, construction, enforcement, interpretation under the governing law set forth in the Agreement.

g. If the Agreement requires that disputed between Franchisor and Franchisee be mediated/arbitrated at a location that is outside the State of South Dakota, the mediation/arbitration will be conducted at a location mutually agreed upon by the parties. If the parties cannot agree on location for the mediation/arbitration, the location shall be determined by the mediator/arbitrator selected.

2. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the South Dakota Franchise Investment Law, with respect to each such provision, are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on this \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

### FRANCHISOR:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	 
Name:_	
Title:	

By:	
Name:_	
Title:	

## AMENDMENT TO KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS

### **REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF VIRGINIA**

The Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. Franchise Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Franchisee") and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement (this "Amendment"):

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or termination stated in the Franchise Agreement does not constitute "reasonable cause," as that term may be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on this \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

### FRANCHISOR:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:			
Name:	 	 	
Title:			

By:	
Name:	
Title:	

## ADDENDUM TO THE KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT & RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

The state of Washington has a statute, RCW 19.100.180, which may supersede the Franchise Agreement in your relationship with the Franchisor, including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions which may supersede the Franchise Agreement in your relationship with the Franchisor, including the areas of termination and renewal of your Franchise.

In any arbitration involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration site shall be either in the State of Washington or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration, or as determined by the arbitrator.

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW shall prevail.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee shall not include rights under the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act or rights or remedies under the Act, such as a right to a jury trial, may not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the Franchisor's reasonable estimated or actual costs in effecting a transfer.

The Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, Wash. Rev. Code § 19.100.080 requires us to provide you with a copy of the Disclosure Document at the earlier of: (i) 10 business days prior to signing the Franchise Agreement; or (ii) 10 business days prior to our receipt of any consideration.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this addendum.

Dated this \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

#### FRANCHISOR:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	 _
Name:	
Title:	

By:	
Name:_	
Title:	 

## AMENDMENT TO KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS

## FOR THE STATE OF WISCONSIN

The Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. Franchise Agreement between \_\_\_\_\_\_\_("Franchisee") and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), dated \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Agreement") shall be amended by the addition of the following language, which shall be considered an integral part of this Agreement (this "Amendment"):

### WISCONSIN LAW MODIFICATIONS

1. The Securities Commissioner of the State of Wisconsin requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, Wisconsin Statutes, Chapter 135 ("Fair Dealership Law"). To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

- a. The Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, among other things, grants You the right, in most circumstances, to 90 days' prior written notice of non-renewal and 60 days within which to remedy any claimed deficiencies. If the Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, the provisions of the Agreement shall be superseded by the Law's requirements and shall have no force or effect.
- b. The Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, among other things, grants You the right, in most circumstances, to 90 days' prior written notice of termination and 60 days within which to remedy any claimed deficiencies. If the Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, the provisions of the Agreement shall be superseded by the Law's requirements and shall have no force or effect.
- c. If the Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of Wisconsin, to the extent that any provision of the Agreement conflicts with the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law such provision shall be superseded by the law's requirements.

2. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the Wisconsin law applicable to the provision are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on this \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

## FRANCHISOR:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	 
Name:	
Title:	

By:	
Name:	
Title:	

## **EXHIBIT 8**

## SINGLE-UNIT FACILITY LICENSE AGREEMENT

(LA Fitness health club locations only)

#### SINGLE-UNIT FACILITY LICENSE AGREEMENT

This Single-Unit Facility License Agreement ("Agreement") is made as of \_\_\_\_\_\_ by and between Kahala Holdings, LLC, an Arizona limited liability company ("Kahala Holdings") and \_\_\_\_\_\_, a(n) \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Operator").

#### RECITALS

Kahala Holdings and FITNESS INTERNATIONAL, LLC (formerly L.A. Fitness International, LLC), a California limited liability company ("LA Fitness"), entered into a Master Facility License Agreement, as amended (collectively, the "Master License Agreement"), a copy of which is attached as Exhibit D.

LA Fitness operates health and fitness clubs under the name LA Fitness ("Facilities") for club members and their guests (collectively, "Members").

LA Fitness has designated or may designate an area within each Facility (the "Service Area") for providing certain food and beverage products and related services ("Retail Services") to the Members.

Pursuant to the terms of the Master License Agreement, LA Fitness, among other things, granted Kahala Holdings access to the Services Areas at certain Facilities to provide (or license third parties to provide) the Retail Services.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. ("Kahala Franchising"), an affiliate of Kahala Holdings, is the franchisor of NrGize Lifestyle Cafes ("Cafes").

Pursuant to an *NrGize* Franchise Agreement dated as of \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Franchise Agreement"), Kahala Franchising granted Operator the right to provide Retail Services at a Cafe at the Facility identified in attached Exhibit A ("Identified Facility").

Kahala Holdings and Operator are entering into this Agreement in order to grant Operator access to the Identified Facility to operate the Cafe.

**NOW, THEREFORE**, in consideration of the recitals set forth above and the mutual covenants contained herein, Kahala Holdings and Operator agree as follows:

1. <u>Grant of Access</u>. Kahala Holdings hereby grants Operator access to the Services Area at the Identified Facility. Operator shall comply with any term, condition or restriction on that access and on the operation of the Cafe in the Identified Facility as specified this Agreement, in the Master License Agreement, the Franchise Agreement or otherwise in writing by Kahala Holding (or its affiliates). Operator shall not have access to any portion of the Identified Facility other than the Services Area.

2. <u>Term of Access</u>. The Term of this Agreement and the access to the Identified Facility shall commence on the date that the Identified Facility is available for Operator to commence operating the Cafe, as set forth in Exhibit A ("Commencement Date"). Unless terminated pursuant to Section 10, the Term shall expire on the earlier of: (a) \_\_\_\_\_\_, \_\_\_\_\_ [(i.e., five (5) years from the Commencement Date)][( i.e., ten (10) years from the Commencement Date)]; (b) the termination of the Master License Agreement; (c) the termination of Kahala Holdings' right of access to the Identified Facility under the Master License Agreement; (d) the date that LA Fitness ceases operating a health club at the Identified Facility; or (e) the expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement. [Operator may extend the Term for one (1) period of five (5) years (the "Extension Term") subject to approval by LA Fitness, which approval is in the sole discretion of LA Fitness, provided that Operator shall give Kahala Holdings written notice of its exercise of the option to renew at least two hundred ten (210) days prior to the expiration date of the Term.][There is no renewal term under this Agreement; however, if the terms of the Franchise Agreement and Master License Agreement (in whole or in part, as that Agreement relates to the Identified Facility) are extended, Kahala Holdings and Operator may extend the Term for a coterminous period.]

3. <u>Use of the Services Area in the Identified Facility</u>. Subject to any restrictions in this Agreement, the Master License Agreement, the Franchise Agreement or any other agreement relating to the Identified Facility, Operator shall use the Services Area at the Identified Facility solely for operating a Cafe.

4. <u>Fees</u>.

(a) <u>Initial Fee</u>. [Simultaneously with the execution of this Agreement, Operator shall pay Kahala Holdings a non-refundable initial fee, representing the first and last month's minimum portion of the Monthly Service Fee, ("Initial Fee") in the amount of \$\_\_\_\_\_.] or [Simultaneously with the execution of this Agreement, Operator shall pay Kahala Holdings a non-refundable initial fee, representing the first and second month's minimum portion of the Monthly Service Fee, ("Initial Fee") in the amount of \$\_\_\_\_\_.] The Initial Fee is fully earned by Kahala Holdings when paid and will only be credited against the first and last month's minimum portion of the Monthly Service Fee owed by Operator to Kahala Holdings under this Agreement.

Reservation Fee. Simultaneously with the execution of this Agreement, Operator shall (b) ("Reservation Fee"). If Operator fails to timely pay any amounts due to Kahala pay Kahala Holdings \$ Holdings under this Agreement, or commits a default under this Agreement, Kahala Holdings may use, apply or retain all or any portion of the Reservation Fee for the payment of such amount, or for the payment of any other amount which Kahala Holdings is required to pay to any third party due to Operator's default, or to compensate Kahala Holdings for any loss or damage due to Operator's default. If Kahala Holdings uses or applies all or any portion of the Reservation Fee, Operator shall within 10 days after written demand from Kahala Holdings, deposit cash with Kahala Holdings in an amount sufficient to restore the Reservation Fee. Operator's failure to do so shall be a material breach of this Agreement. Kahala Holdings shall not be required to keep the Reservation Fee separate from its general accounts. If Operator performs all obligations under this Agreement, 30 days after the expiration or termination of this Agreement, Kahala Holdings shall refund the Reservation Fee to Operator, without payment of interest. The Reservation Fee shall be applied against the cost of any damages at the Cafe at the Identified Facility as a result of negligence, intentional vandalism or theft. If the cost of the repairs to the damages exceeds the amount of the Reservation Fee being held, Operator will not receive a refund and will be responsible to pay the difference. No trust relationship is created between Operator and Kahala Holdings with respect to the Reservation Fee.

(c) <u>Monthly Service Fee [and Pre-Paid Monthly Service Fee]</u>. In consideration for the rights granted in Section 1, Operator shall pay Kahala Holdings a non-refundable and continuing monthly service fee ("Monthly Service Fee") in the following amount: [\$1,000.00 per month, which will be increased annually by 3% compounded.] or [\$1,250.00 per month, which will be increased annually by 4% compounded.] Operator shall pay the applicable Monthly Service Fee on the third calendar day of each month. As used in this Agreement, the term "Gross Sales" shall have the same meaning as ascribed to that term in the Franchise Agreement. [Simultaneously with the execution of this Agreement, Operator shall pay Kahala Holdings a non-refundable pre-paid monthly service fee, representing the last twelve (12) months of the Monthly Service Fee, ("Pre-Paid Monthly Service Fee") in the amount of \$\_\_\_\_\_.]

(d) Interest and Late Fees. Any payments accepted by Kahala Holdings after the due date shall bear interest at an annual rate which is the lesser of 12% or the maximum interest rate permitted by applicable law. In addition, any payments received 5 days or more after the due date may be assessed an additional fee equal to 10% of the original payment due plus 1% per day on the overdue amount, but in no event shall Operator be charged an amount that is usurious or in violation of applicable law. Kahala Holdings' acceptance of any interest or late fees shall not constitute a waiver of any default by Operator or prevent Kahala Holdings from exercising any other rights and remedies granted under this Agreement. If a late fee is due under this Agreement for three consecutive payments, Kahala Holdings may require Operator to pay the Access Fee in advance on a quarterly basis, as and when designated by Kahala Holdings.

(e) <u>Taxes</u>. In accordance with paragraph 6(f) of the Master License Agreement, Operator shall pay Kahala Holdings any applicable tax levied, including any tax on the Monthly Service Fee (collectively, the "Taxes"). Operator shall pay the applicable Taxes on the third calendar day of each month.

(f) <u>Electronic Funds Transfer</u>. Kahala Holdings may require Operator to make any payments required by this Agreement by electronic funds transfer ("EFT") and, in connection with the EFT, Kahala Holdings may designate any terms and conditions to govern payments by EFT. Operator agrees to comply with any terms and conditions designated by Kahala Holdings relating to EFT. To accomplish the EFT, Operator must

complete, sign and deliver to Kahala Holdings any required documentation, including the form of Electronic Funds Transfer Authorization attached to this Agreement as Exhibit B.

(g) <u>Enforcement Costs</u>. Operator shall reimburse Kahala Holdings for any fees, costs, expenses or other charges incurred by Kahala Holdings to enforce this Agreement, including attorneys' fees and costs.

5. <u>Reports and Audit Rights</u>. Simultaneously with the reporting and/or payment of the Monthly Service Fee, Operator shall submit to Kahala Holdings: (a) a report identifying the Gross Sales at the Cafe during the prior month; and (b) a statement indicating whether the Monthly Service Fee is based upon Gross Sales or represents the minimum payment. Kahala Holdings shall have the right at all reasonable times, both during and after the Term, to inspect, copy and audit the books and records and such other forms, reports, information and data as Kahala Holdings may designate. Operator shall provide to Kahala Holdings any other data, information or reports as Kahala Holdings may reasonably require.

6. <u>Maintenance And Repair</u>. Operator, at its sole expense, shall keep in good order, condition and repair the Services Area of the Identified Facility, including all fixtures, furniture and equipment. Operator shall not make, without Kahala Holdings' prior written consent, any alterations, improvements, additions or installations to the Services Area ("Improvements"). If Operator makes any Improvements without the prior written approval of Kahala Holdings, or uses a contractor not expressly approved by Kahala Holdings, Kahala Holdings may require Operator to restore the Services Area, at no expense to Kahala Holdings. Any approved Improvements shall be made and done in good and workmanlike manner and of good and sufficient quality and material and shall be done in such a manner so as to not impact operations at the Identified Facility. The Improvements shall be the property of LA Fitness and remain upon and be surrendered with the Services Area upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

#### 7. <u>Insurance</u>.

(a) <u>Required Insurance Coverage</u>. Operator shall, at its expense, obtain and keep in full force and effect during the Term of this Agreement: (1) Comprehensive General Liability Insurance (including products liability insurance) in an amount of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence, and with an aggregate of not less than \$2,000,000, of bodily injury and property damage combined or in a greater amount as reasonably determined by Kahala Holdings; (2) fire insurance with a Standard Form Extended Coverage Endorsement in an amount of at least the full insurance value of the improvements, fixtures, equipment and merchandise in the Services Area; and (3) Workers' Compensation insurance coverage to the full extent required by federal, state and/or local law. In the event Operator does not obtain and keep in force and effect the above-detailed required insurance coverage, Kahala Holdings shall have the option, in its sole and absolute discretion, to obtain such required insurance coverage on demand. If the insurance requirements under the Master License Agreement increase during the Term of this Agreement, Operator shall increase its insurance coverage accordingly, at its sole cost and expense, upon thirty (30) days prior written notice from Kahala Holdings.

(b) <u>Insurance Policies</u>. Operator shall deliver to Kahala Holdings copies of the insurance policies required under this Section, or certificates evidencing the existence and amounts of such insurance, prior to commencing operations at the Services Area. Kahala Holdings, LA Fitness, the property manager, the property owner and any other entity or individual designated by Kahala Holding shall be additional insureds in such policies to the extent each has an insurable interest. All insurance policies shall be issued from insurance companies having not less than Best's Triple A rating and shall be in a form satisfactory to Kahala Holdings. No policy shall be cancelled or subject to reduction of coverage or other modification except after 30 days prior written notice to Kahala Holdings. Operator shall, at least 30 days prior to the expiration of such policies, furnish Kahala Holdings with copies of any renewal policies. Operator's insurance carriers must waive all subrogation rights and any other similar rights of recovery against or contribution from Kahala Holdings.

(c) <u>No Representation of Adequate Coverage</u>. Kahala Holdings makes no representation that the types of insurance coverage and minimum coverages specified in Section are adequate to cover Operator's property or obligations under this Agreement. Compliance with the above insurance requirements shall not limit the liability of Operator under this Agreement.

8. Indemnification. Operator shall indemnify and hold harmless (to the full extent permitted by law) LA Fitness and Kahala Holdings and their respective parents, affiliates, subsidiaries, successors, assigns, past and present stockholders, directors, officers, employees, agents, and representatives ("Indemnitees") from and against any and all claims for damage to the person or property of anyone or any entity arising from Operator's use of the Services Area, from the operation of the Cafe at the Identified Facility and from any activity, work or things done, permitted or suffered by Operator in or around the Services Area, the Identified Facility or elsewhere and shall further indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnitees from and against any and all claims, costs and expenses arising from any breach or default in the performance of any obligation of Operator to be performed under the terms of this Agreement (or any other agreement), or arising from any act or omission of Operator, or any of Operator's agents, representatives, contractors, employees or invitees and from and against all costs, attorneys' fees, expenses and liabilities incurred by the Indemnitees as a result of any such use, operation, activity, work, things done, permitted or suffered, breach, default or negligence, and in dealing therewith, including by not limited to, the defense or pursuit of any claim or any action or proceeding involved therein; and in case any action or proceeding be brought against any Indemnitee by reason of any such matter, Operator upon notice from any Indemnitee shall defend the same at Operator's expense by counsel satisfactory to the Indemnitees and the Indemnitees shall cooperate with Operator in such defense. The Indemnitees shall not be required to first pay any such claim in order to be so indemnified. Operator, as a material part of the consideration to Kahala Holdings, assumes all risk of damage to property of any Indemnitee and any injury to persons in, upon or about the Services Area arising from any cause and Operator hereby waives all claims in respect thereof against any Indemnitee. The right of any Indemnitee to indemnification by Operator under this Section shall be independent of the right of the Indemnitees to any insurance proceeds.

#### 9. <u>Assignment</u>.

(a) <u>By Kahala Holdings</u>. Subject to the Master License Agreement, Kahala Holdings shall have the right to freely assign its rights and responsibilities under this Agreement to any third party without the approval of Operator; provided, however, any assignment of this Agreement shall be delivered in writing to Operator within 5 days after being effective.

(b) <u>By Operator</u>. The rights granted by Kahala Holdings to Operator in this Agreement are personal rights and cannot be transferred or assigned (by operation of law or otherwise), directly or indirectly, to any third party without the prior written consent of Kahala Holdings. Any attempted assignment in violation of this Section shall be void. If Kahala Franchising consents to an assignment of the Franchise Agreement, the Operator must assign this Agreement to the same entity or individual. Notwithstanding any assignment of this Agreement, Operator shall remain fully liable under this Agreement until it is terminated or expires.

#### 10. Default and Termination.

(a) <u>Events of Default</u>. The occurrence of any of the following constitutes a material breach or default ("Default") by Operator under this Agreement:

(i) Operator fails to begin operating a Cafe at the Identified Facility by the deadline in the Franchise Agreement.

(ii) Operator fails to pay any amount owed to Kahala Holdings under this Agreement, and such default continues for 5 days after written notice to Operator.

(iii) The Cafe is closed for more than 10 days (when the Identified Facility is open) in any 12 month period.

(iv) Operator makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; files or has filed against it a petition for reorganization or arrangement under any law relating to bankruptcy; the appointment of a trustee or receiver to take possession of substantially all of Operator's assets at the Identified Facility or of Operator's interest in this Agreement; or has filed against it an attachment, execution, or other judicial seizure of substantially all of Operator's interest in this Agreement.

(v) Operator fails to obtain and have current insurance coverage as required by Section 7 and to timely provide proper proof thereof to Kahala Holdings, or Operator fails to reimburse Kahala Holdings on demand for any coverage purchased on its behalf by Kahala Holdings pursuant to Section 7(a).

(vi) Operator makes an assignment under Section 9 without the prior written consent

of Kahala Holdings.

(vii) Operator fails to perform any other material provision of this Agreement (including any amendments or modifications), provided that such failure continues for 3 days after Kahala Holdings provides written notice to Operator of such failure.

(viii) Upon the occurrence of the third Default in the previous 12 month period, regardless of whether the Default is the same or different and regardless of whether the prior Defaults have been cured.

(ix) Operator fails to comply with the LA Fitness Club Rules and Regulations attached as Exhibit D to the Master License Agreement.

(x) Operator offers any product or service at the Services Area that is not authorized by LA Fitness under Exhibit A to the Master License Agreement or otherwise.

(xi) Operator violates the "Non-Disclosure" provisions under Section 24 of the Master License Agreement.

(xii) Operator commits any material breach of any other agreement between the Operator and Kahala Holdings, Kahala Franchising, or their parent, subsidiaries or affiliates or LA Fitness, including, but without limitation, the Franchise Agreement or any other agreement relating to the Identified Facility and Operator fails to cure such breach within the applicable cure period, if any.

(b) <u>Termination and Expiration</u>. Upon the occurrence of any Default identified in Section 10(a) and the expiration of any applicable cure period, Kahala Holdings may terminate this Agreement and the rights granted in this Agreement. Kahala Holdings may upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, provide, or identify third parties to provide, Retail Services at the Identified Facility. Termination of this Agreement or any rights under this Agreement shall not prejudice any other remedy to which Kahala Holdings may be entitled either at law, in equity, or under this Agreement. If this Agreement is terminated prior to the expiration of the Term, Kahala Holdings shall be entitled to all damages provided under the Agreement and as otherwise entitled by law.

11. <u>Obligations Upon Termination or Expiration</u>. Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, Operator shall: (a) immediately pay all monies due to Kahala Holdings, and its parent, subsidiaries, and affiliates relating to the Identified Facility; and (b) immediately vacate the Services Area in the same condition as received, ordinary wear and tear excepted, clean and free of debris. Any damage or deterioration of the Services Area shall not be deemed ordinary wear and tear if the same could have been prevented by good maintenance practices by Operator. Operator shall repair any damage to the Services Area caused by the installation or removal of any trade fixtures, signage, furnishings or equipment. Operator shall remove its personal belongings, materials, merchandise, goods and products from the Services Area and shall leave the Services Area in a "broom clean" condition. When vacating the Service Area, Operator will leave at the Cafe at the Identified Location all machinery, equipment, furniture, fixtures, improvements, tools, and signs as they will immediately be owned by and become the property of LA Fitness in accordance with the terms of the Bill of Sale signed by Operator simultaneously with this Agreement and the Franchise Agreement.

12. <u>Notices</u>. All notices, amendments, waivers, consents, approvals and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing. Any such item requiring delivery must be delivered: (a) in person; (b) by registered, express or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt request; (c) by a reputable, national overnight delivery carrier, provided that a signature upon receipt is required with such delivery; or (d) by a generally recognized courier or messenger service that provides written acknowledgement of receipt by the addressee. Documents are deemed delivered when actually delivered to or delivery is refused at the address for notices. Notices and deliveries must be made to Operator at the address set forth in Exhibit A; and to Kahala Holdings, LLC, Attn: Legal Department, 9311 E. Via De Ventura, Scottsdale, AZ 85258. Operator and Kahala

Holdings agree to provide a copy of any notice under this Agreement to LA Fitness, Attn: Legal Department, 8105 Irvine Center Drive, Suite 200, Irvine, CA 92618.

13. <u>Remedies</u>. Except as otherwise provided for in this Agreement, no remedy conferred by any of the specific provisions of the Agreement is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy. Each and every remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this Agreement, now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. The election of any one or more remedies by either party shall not constitute a waiver of the right to pursue other available remedies.

#### 14. <u>Enforcement Provisions</u>.

(a) <u>Arbitration</u>. Any controversy, dispute or claim between the parties arising out of, in connection with or in relation to this Agreement including but not limited to the negotiation, execution, coverage, scope, performance, non-performance, breach, interpretation, termination, enforceability or validity of this Agreement or any alleged fraud in connection therewith, shall, on the written request of either party served on the other, be submitted to arbitration for resolution. Such arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Arbitration Act, and with the then existing rules of the American Arbitration Association for commercial arbitration. Each party shall be entitled to conduct reasonable discovery pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. Venue for arbitration shall be the county were the Identified Facility is located. The arbitration of all issues, including the determination of any amount of damages suffered by any party hereto by reason of the acts of omission of any party, shall be binding and shall survive the termination of the Agreement. The arbitrator shall be authorized to award the costs and expenses of arbitration to the prevailing party or to otherwise equitably allocate such costs and expenses and to settle the dispute to the mutual satisfaction of the parties. Judgment on the award of the arbitration may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction. To the extent applicable, the parties waive any right to trial by jury.

(b) <u>Choice of Law</u>. This Agreement, and any dispute arising from the relationship between the parties to this Agreement, shall be governed by the law of the state where the Identified Facility is located, including any laws that direct the application of another jurisdiction's laws.

#### 15. <u>Acknowledgements</u>.

(a) Kahala Holdings and Operator acknowledge that this Agreement is not a lease and does not create on behalf of Operator any interest, including a leasehold or other possessory interest, in the Identified Facility, the health club, the property on which the Identified Facility is located, or any portion thereof.

(b) Operator acknowledges that, if the Master License Agreement is terminated or expires, this Agreement shall automatically terminate.

(c) Operator acknowledges that, if LA Fitness ceases operating a health club at the Identified Facility, this Agreement shall automatically terminate.

(d) Operator acknowledges that, if the Franchise Agreement is terminated or expires, this Agreement shall automatically terminate.

#### 16. <u>Miscellaneous</u>.

(a) Any capitalized term that is not defined in this Agreement shall be have the meaning given it in the Master License Agreement or the Franchise Agreement, as the context requires.

(b) All rights and obligations set forth in this Agreement shall be subject to any limitations or restrictions set forth in the Master License Agreement. This Agreement shall not affect Kahala Holdings' obligations to LA Fitness under the Master License Agreement. Operator hereby expressly assumes and agrees to perform all of the obligations and covenants required by the Master License Agreement with respect to the Identified Facility. Kahala Holdings will maintain the Master License Agreement during the Term of this Agreement, subject, however, to any termination or expiration of the Master License Agreement without fault of Kahala Holdings. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Operator shall not be required to pay any amounts due to LA Fitness under the Master License Agreement so long as Operator pays all amounts owed to Kahala Holdings under this Agreement.

(c) This terms of this Agreement shall be construed according to their fair meaning and not strictly for or against either party.

(d) The captions are for convenience and reference only, and the words contained therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this Agreement.

(e) This Agreement, any Exhibits attached hereto, including the guarantee by any entity or individual designated by Kahala Holdings (attached hereto as Exhibit C), and any agreements executed in furtherance of this Agreement constitute the final, complete, and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement pertaining to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersede all prior and contemporaneous understandings or agreements of the parties. No party has been induced to enter into this Agreement by, nor is any party relying on, any representation or warranty outside those expressly set forth in this Agreement, the attachments there to, and the guarantee. This Agreement may be amended only by a writing signed by both parties.

(f) If a court or an arbitrator of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this Agreement to be illegal, unenforceable, or invalid in whole or in part for any reason, the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions, or portions of them, will not be affected.

(g) This Agreement is binding on the parties and their respective permitted successors and assigns. Nothing in this Agreement (except Section 8) gives any rights or remedies to any person other than the parties and their respective permitted successors and assigns, nor does anything in this Agreement relieve or discharge any obligation or liability of any third person to any party. No provision of this Agreement gives any third person any right of subrogation or action over or against any party to this Agreement.

(h) Operator agrees that it and its employees, agents, representatives, invitees, guests will not be disruptive to the operation of the Identified Facility, will not speak negatively to Members about the Identified Facility, any personnel at the Identified Facility, Kahala Holdings, Kahala Franchising, or LA Fitness and will work cooperatively with the LA Fitness staff.

(i) The Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument and any of the parties hereto may execute the Agreement by signing any such counterpart.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, this Agreement has been executed by the parties as of the Effective Date first above written

#### KAHALA HOLDINGS: KAHALA HOLDINGS, LLC.

By:		
Print Name:		
Its:		

#### **OPERATOR:**

By:		
Print Name:		
Its:		

# EXHIBIT A

1.	ddress of Identified Facility (Recitals):	
2.	Commencement Date (Section 2):	
3.	Operator's Notice Address (Section 12):	



# EXHIBIT B ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER (EFT) AUTHORIZATION

# FRANCHISEE INFORMATION Franchisee Name Store No. Franchisee Phone No. Franchisee Mailing Address (street, city, state, zip) Franchisee Mailing Address and Phone number (if different than above) Contact Name, Address and Phone number (if different than above) Principal's Name and Social Security Number

## BANK ACCOUNT INFORMATION Bank Name Bank Accourt

Bank Name	Bank Account Number	Bank Routing Number
		[: [: 9 Characters
Bank Mailing Address (street, city, state, zip)		
Bank Phone Number		

# PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION

Franchisee hereby authorizes Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. (the "Payee"), to initiate withdrawals from the Bank Account indicated on this form, and hereby authorizes the Bank to honor and charge the Bank Account for electronic funds transfers or drafts drawn on the Bank Account and payable to Payee. The amount of such charge shall be set forth in a notice from the Payee presented to the Bank on the day of the week set forth in your franchise agreement, which may be modified by Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. or its affiliates. The Franchisee agrees to execute such additional documents as may be reasonably requested by the Payee or the Bank to evidence the interest of this EFT Authorization. This authority shall remain in full force and effect until the Payee has received written notification from the Franchisee in such time and manner as to afford the Payee and the Bank to act on such notice. The Franchisee understands that the termination of this authorization does not relieve the Franchisee of its obligations to make payments to the Payee. Payee may assign its rights and obligations under this EFT Authorization to Payee's affiliates or agents. Payee may change its designated affiliates or agents at Payee's discretion.

Signature:	Date:

# NOTE: FRANCHISEE MUST ATTACH A VOIDED OR COMPLETED CHECK RELATING TO THE BANK ACCOUNT.

# ATTACH VOIDED OR COMPLETED CHECK HERE

#### EXHIBIT C GUARANTEE

IN ORDER TO INDUCE Kahala Holdings, LLC ("Kahala Holdings") to enter into that certain Single-Unit Facility License Agreement ("Agreement") dated \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_, with \_\_\_\_\_\_, ("Operator") covering the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* store located in the LA Fitness Club located at \_\_\_\_\_\_, the undersigned (the "Guarantor"), hereby personally guarantees the payment and performance of and agrees to pay and perform as a primary obligor all liabilities, obligations and duties (including, but not limited to, payment of the Access Fee) imposed upon Operator under the terms of the Agreement, as if Guarantor had executed the Agreement.

Guarantor hereby waives notice of acceptance of this Guarantee and all other notices in connection herewith or in connection with the liabilities, obligations and duties guaranteed hereby, including notices of default under the Agreement, and waives diligence, presentment and suit on the part of Kahala Holdings in the enforcement of any liability, obligation or duty guaranteed hereby.

Suit may be brought and maintained against Guarantor by Kahala Holdings to enforce any liability, obligation or duty guaranteed hereby without joinder of any other person. The liability of Guarantor shall not be affected by any termination of the Agreement, to the extent that Operator thereafter continues to be liable thereunder.

All sums payable by Guarantor under this Guarantee shall be payable at the principal address of Kahala Holdings, in the City of Scottsdale, Maricopa County, Arizona. Guarantor specifically agrees that any action under this Guarantee may be maintained in Maricopa County, Arizona, and Guarantor specifically submits to the jurisdiction and venue of such courts with respect to any such action.

Guarantor agrees that if Kahala Holdings shall employ legal counsel to present, enforce or defend any or all of Kahala Holdings' rights or remedies hereunder, then, in any such event, Guarantor shall pay any attorneys' fees and expenses incurred by Kahala Holdings.

Guarantor agrees that the Agreement and this Guarantee may be assigned by Kahala Holdings. No such assignment nor any assignment by Operator, with or without the consent of Kahala Holdings, shall operate to extinguish or diminish the liability of Guarantor. This Guarantee shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Kahala Holdings and Guarantor and their respective heirs, successors and assigns.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, this Guarantee shall continue to be effective or be reinstated, as the case may be, if at any time, payment, or any part thereof, of any or all of any liability, obligation or duty guaranteed hereunder is rescinded or must otherwise be restored or returned by Kahala Holdings upon the insolvency, bankruptcy, or reorganization of Operator, any other guarantor of the Agreement or otherwise, all as though such payment had not been made. Notwithstanding any modification, discharge or extension of any liability, obligation or duty guaranteed hereunder or any amendment, modification, stay or cure of Kahala Holdings' rights which may occur in any bankruptcy or reorganization case or proceeding concerning Operator, whether permanent or temporary, and whether assented to by Kahala Holdings, Guarantor hereby agrees that Guarantor shall be obligated to pay or perform any liability, obligation or duty guaranteed hereunder in accordance with the terms of this Guarantee in effect on the date hereof.

#### **GUARANTOR**:

#### [INSERT INDIVIDUAL NAME HERE]

Print Name: \_\_\_\_\_

Date:

# EXHIBIT D

# COPY OF EXECUTED MASTER FACILITY LICENSE AGREEMENT

#### MASTER FACILITY LICENSE AGREEMENT

This Master Facility License Agreement ("Agreement") is by and between L.A. FITNESS INTERNATIONAL, LLC, a California limited liability company ("L.A. FITNESS") and KAHALA HOLDINGS, LLC, an Arizona limited liability company ("KAHALA"). The effective date of this Agreement shall be April 1, 2006 ("Effective Date").

#### RECITALS

A. L.A. FITNESS is engaged in the business of operating health and fitness facilities (hereafter "Facilities" or "Facility") for L.A. FITNESS club members and their authorized guests (collectively, "Members");

**B.** KAHALA, through itself and its third party Franchisees (as defined below), is engaged in the business of providing food, beverage, and related retail services ; and

C. L.A. FITNESS and KAHALA desire to enter into this Agreement, pursuant to which L.A. FITNESS will provide KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES access to the Service Areas (as defined below) at the Facilities and KAHALA and its approved FRANCHISEES will render the Retail Services (as defined below) at the designated Facilities.

**NOW, THEREFORE**, in consideration of the recitals set forth above and the mutual covenants contained herein, L.A. FITNESS and KAHALA agree as follows:

Grant. Upon the terms, provisions and conditions set forth herein, KAHALA (or its affiliates) 1. shall have the exclusive right (and corresponding obligation) to provide, or to identify third parties to be approved by L.A. FITNESS (hereinafter collectively referred to as "FRANCHISEES") to provide, certain Retail Services as described in the attached Exhibit A to Members at the Service Area in the Facilities that: (a) are opened or acquired by L.A. FITNESS during the five year period immediately following the Effective Date of this Agreement (such period to be referred to as the "Exclusive Grant Period") and are 25,000 square feet or greater, provided that L.A. FITNESS determines in its sole and absolute discretion that Retail Services will be provided at such Facilities; (b) are available now and identified on attached Exhibit C; or (c) are now open, but not available, as they become available during the five year period immediately following the Effective Date of this Agreement and are 25,000 square feet or greater (the locations covered by subsections (a), (b), and (c) above shall be collectively referred to as the "Covered Locations"). KAHALA acknowledges that L.A. FITNESS can provide any other services at the Facilities except those Retail Services expressly set forth in Exhibit A. KAHALA further acknowledges that, in order to maintain the rights granted in this Section, KAHALA must provide or identify a FRANCHISEE to provide Retail Services at all of the Facilities identified in Exhibit C and any additional Facilities that are 25,000 square feet or larger designated by L.A. FITNESS during the Term. KAHALA shall forfeit the aforementioned exclusivity if this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Sections 13 and 14 hereof. These rights apply only to Facilities located in the United States of America.

2. <u>Designation of and Access to Services Areas</u>. The Services Area in each Facility shall be the area designated by L.A. FITNESS and will be approximately 250 to 500 square feet. KAHALA (and its FRANCHISEES) cannot provide Retail Services outside of the designated Services Area at any Facility without prior written consent from L.A. FITNESS. During the Term, L.A. FITNESS hereby grants KAHALA access to the Service Area at each Facility, for the sole purpose of providing the Retail Services. Subject to KAHALA and its FRANCHISEE's approved Menu Items detailed in Exhibit B hereto, KAHALA shall comply with any term, condition or restriction on its access to and use of the Services Area as designated by L.A. FITNESS from time to time in writing. KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall not have access to any portion of the Facility other than the Services Area at each Facility and the location of any vending services, if applicable.

3. <u>Covered Locations Term, Commencement Date, Rent Commencement Date</u>. Each of the Covered Locations conveyed to KAHALA during the Exclusive Grant Period for the operation of a Nrgize outlet in the Service Area shall (i) have a term that expires at the end of the Exclusive Grant Period if operated by KAHALA, or (ii) have an individual license term of ten (10) full years from each Covered Locations' Commencement Date if operated by a FRANCHISEE. Each Covered Locations' Commencement Date and Rent Commencement Date shall

be determined as follows: (a) for the Facilities identified on the attached Exhibit C, the Commencement Date shall be the earlier of: (i) the date listed on Exhibit C for each Facility as the opening date; or (ii) the actual date the applicable Nrgize outlet in the Service Area opens for business to the Members, subject to the applicable Commencement Date under this Section 3(a) being no earlier than the date the applicable Facility opens to use by its Members and, so long as KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE is using best commercial efforts in diligently pursing the necessary permits, the applicable Commencement Date being automatically extended to the actual date KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE is issued the permit from the applicable governmental agency that allows the subject Nrgize outlet to be opened to the Members; (b) for those Facilities opened or acquired by L.A. FITNESS during the Exclusive Grant Period that are greater than 25,000 square feet, the Commencement Date shall be the earlier of (i) sixty (60) days after the applicable Facility opens to its Members for business; or (ii) the actual date the applicable Nrgize outlet in the Service Area opens for business to the Members, subject to the applicable Commencement Date under this Section 3(b) being automatically extended, so long as KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE is using best commercial efforts in diligently pursing the necessary permits, to the actual date KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE is issued the permit from the applicable governmental agency that allows the subject Nrgize outlet to be opened to the Members; and (c) for those Facilities currently open that become available during the Exclusive Grant Period that are greater than 25,000 square feet, the Commencement Date shall be the earlier of (i) sixty (60) days after L.A. FITNESS grants KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE exclusive physical access to the Service Area of the Facility; or (ii) the actual date the applicable Nrgize outlet in the Service Area opens for business to the Members, subject to the applicable Commencement Date under this Section 3(c) being automatically extended, so long as KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE is using best commercial efforts in diligently pursing the necessary permits, to the actual date KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE is issued the permit from the applicable governmental agency that allows the subject Nrgize outlet to be opened to the Members (the exact date determined for a Covered Location from sub item (a), (b), or (c) above shall be referred to as the "Commencement Date" and "Rent Commencement Date"). The effective date ("Effective Date") of this Agreement shall be April 1, 2006, and, only as it applies to a Single Unit Facility License Agreement entered into by a FRANCHISEE during the Exclusive Grant Period, will continue for ten (10) full years from the Commencement Date of the last Covered Location conveyed by L.A. Fitness to KAHALA during the Exclusive Grant Period ("Term"), unless sooner terminated pursuant to Section 14. hereof There shall be no guaranteed option to extend the Term; however, during the Term, the parties may execute individual agreements for specific Facilities extending the Term.

For each Covered Location conveyed to KAHALA during the Term of this Agreement, KAHALA and L.A.FITNESS shall each execute a Location Memorandum in the form attached hereto as Exhibit I. The Location Memorandum shall be executed by both parties within thirty (30) days of the Commencement Date. Each Location Memorandum shall provide the following: (i) the L.A. FITNESS Facility number and physical address; (ii) the Commencement Date and Rent Commencement Date of the license to occupy the Service Area; and (iii) the Expiration Date of the license to occupy the Service Area.

#### 4. KAHALA's Status.

(a) KAHALA acknowledges and agrees that, in providing Retail Services under this Agreement, KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES are acting as independent contractors with respect to L.A. FITNESS.

(b) KAHALA will not engage in any behavior which could reasonably create the impression with any person or entity, either directly or indirectly, that KAHALA, including its employees, agents, FRANCHISEES or representatives, are employees, agents, franchisees or representatives of L.A. FITNESS.

(c) L.A. FITNESS and KAHALA agree that the terms of this Agreement do not constitute an employment agreement between L.A. FITNESS and KAHALA, nor between L.A. FITNESS and any one or more FRANCHISEES. It is also understood and agreed that any FRANCHISEE with whom KAHALA enters a franchise relationship does not enter into a franchise relationship with L.A. FITNESS and has no other relationship with L.A. FITNESS other than that of independent contractor.

(d) KAHALA will provide all of the equipment and supplies needed to provide the Retail Services at the Facilities, including but not limited to its own advertising, computers, credit card machines, telephones, phone service, furnishings, fixtures, equipment, smallwares, employee uniforms, clerical supplies and any other items. (e) This Agreement is not a lease and does not create on behalf of KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES any interest, including a leasehold or other possessory interest, in any Services Area, any health club, any Facility or any property on which any Facility is located. L.A. FITNESS does not transfer any property rights hereunder to KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES and shall continue to occupy, run and manage the Facilities with its own personnel. KAHALA's sole right hereunder shall be to perform Retail Services in the Services Areas of the Facilities subject to the conditions and limitations set forth herein. KAHALA specifically covenants and agrees for L.A. FITNESS' benefit, and as a material condition to this Agreement, that neither this Agreement or any of KAHALA's or its FRANCHISEES rights in connection herewith shall constitute a lease; KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES shall not bring any action against L.A. FITNESS or interpose any defense against L.A. FITNESS based upon a theory that this Agreement constitutes a lease; and KAHALA expressly waives any substantive or procedural rights that KAHALA may have that are predicated upon the rights of a tenant of real property. Notwithstanding the provisions of the foregoing sentence to the contrary, should this Agreement be deemed by any court, governmental authority, or quasi-governmental authority to constitute a lease, in such event L.A. FITNESS shall have the rights and remedies of a landlord of real property available at applicable law.

(f) KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall comply with all applicable state and federal statutes, ordinances, regulations, orders, covenants and restrictions of record and requirements in effect including, but not limited to, those which regulate the providing of Retail Services by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES. KAHALA and/or its FRANCHISEES shall have and maintain current all requisite business licenses for the Services Area of each Facility in which Retail Services are performed and pay all associated personal property, sales, use and income taxes associated with conducting their business within the Facilities. KAHALA further agrees that it and its representatives, agents, employees, and FRANCHISEES and each of their representatives, agents and employees will abide by all laws while in the Facilities, including but not limited to laws against harassment and discrimination, as well as all state and federal labor laws.

(g) KAHALA represents and agrees that it is responsible for compliance with any and all federal, state, or local laws, rules and regulations governing franchise sales and the franchisor-franchisee relationship and that it will comply with all such requirements with respect to its relationship to its FRANCHISEES. Moreover, it is understood and agreed that KAHALA's indemnity obligations in Section 11 will apply to and cover L.A. FITNESS regarding any claims brought against L.A. FITNESS relating to this Section, including but not limited to, claims brought by any FRANCHISEE, any government agency, any enforcement agency or any tax agency.

(h) During the Term of this Agreement, and during the term of any Single Unit Facility License Agreement with its FRANCHISEE, KAHALA agrees to the following: (i) it may not charge its FRANCHISEES under the applicable Franchise Agreement a Continuing Royalty in excess of six percent (6%) of Gross Sales as currently set forth in the approved form of Franchise Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit G and (ii) it may not charge its Franchises under the Single Use Facility License Agreement a Monthly Services Fee of more than the greater of \$1,250 or six percent (6%) of Gross Sales per month as currently set forth in the approved form of Single Use Facility License Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit F.

(i) During the first twenty-four (24) months of this Agreement and to promote the uniform Nrgize brand across L.A. FITNESS' Facilities, KAHALA agrees to not charge an initial franchise fee to any currently existing and operating juice bar owner operating in a Facility who agrees to convert the applicable juice bar to Nrgize and have the license for such Service Area fall under this terms and conditions of this Agreement. Further, in an additional effort to promote the Nrgize bar owners to Mr. David Shick at the notice address set forth in Section 21 below or via email at <u>dbshick@kahalacorp.com</u>.

#### 5. KAHALA'S Franchisees.

(a) Prior to executing any agreement with any FRANCHISEE,: KAHALA must screen the prospective FRANCHISEE to verify that the prospective FRANCHISEE meets any criteria specified by L.A. FITNESS in writing to KAHALA from time to time during the Term of this Agreement. During the Term, KAHALA shall provide to L.A. FITNESS any information relating to the FRANCHISEES and their operations at the Facilities, as reasonably requested by L.A. FITNESS from time to time, including an up-to-date list of each

LAFI -- Master Facility License Agt.

FRANCHISEE and the Facility at which each FRANCHISEE provides Retail Services and a copy of the each executed agreement with the FRANCHISEE relating to the Facility. For each Facility at which a FRANCHISEE provides the Retail Services, KAHALA and that FRANCHISEE shall execute an NRGIZE Franchise Agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit G that has already been approved by L.A. FITNESS and a Single-Unit Facility License Agreement (in the form attached as Exhibit F). If L.A. FITNESS is operating a health club at a Facility and the franchise agreement is terminated, expires or, for any other reason, the FRANCHISEE ceases to do business at a Facility, KAHALA shall take over operation of the Services Area or identify another FRANCHISEE to do so.

(b) All persons who perform or manage Retail Services on behalf of KAHALA will be hired, employed, supervised and maintained by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES in accordance with all applicable local, state and federal laws including, without limitation, the Fair Labor Standards Act, Federal Civil Rights Act, Title VII, the ADEA, FMLA, OSHA, and any applicable state Employment Security Act. The parties further agree that KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES shall maintain all legally required insurance (*e.g.* workers' compensation and unemployment) and benefits with regard to their employees, comply with all state and federal wage and hour laws and pay all applicable state, federal and local payroll taxes.

(c) KAHALA understands and agrees that KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES will not be permitted to staff Services Areas with independent contractors, including subcontractors, rather than employees of KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES. However, L.A. FITNESS understands and agrees that KAHALA may appropriately contract with FRANCHISEES to provide the Retail Services in the Service Areas of the Facilities, provided the rights are granted in a manner consistent with this Agreement.

(d) If KAHALA contracts with FRANCHISEES to perform the Retail Services in the Services Areas of the Facilities, KAHALA understands and agrees that the FRANCHISEES are fully responsible for supervising their employees and for the manner and means by which they perform the Retail Services. L.A. FITNESS shall not have the authority or responsibility to hire, supervise, schedule, assign, train, warn, discharge, or discipline any of KAHALA'S or its FRANCHISEES' employees. L.A. FITNESS may give KAHALA notice of any concerns which come to L.A. FITNESS' attention regarding performance or non-performance of any FRANCHISEE's employees. In such circumstances, FRANCHISEE or KAHALA will determine the appropriate action, if any, to be taken regarding such matter or employee.

(e) During the Term of this Agreement, and to the fullest extent permitted by law: (1) KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES may not solicit any current or former employees of L.A. FITNESS for hire; and (2) L.A. FITNESS may not solicit any current or former employees of KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES for hire.

#### 6. <u>Fees.</u>

(a) <u>Reservation Fee</u>. In consideration for the rights granted in Section 1, KAHALA shall pay L.A. FITNESS a fee in the amount of \$7,500 for the eleventh (11<sup>th</sup>) Covered Location and each Covered Location thereafter granted to KAHALA for the operation of an Nrgize outlet in the applicable Service Area during the Exclusive Grant Period. Each \$7,500 Reservation Fee shall be payable to L.A. FITNESS no later than the date L.A. FITNESS provides KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE exclusive access to the Service Area in the applicable Covered Location. Each Reservation Fee is refundable pursuant to the terms and conditions of Section 6(b)(3) below.

#### (b) Monthly Services Fee.

(1) KAHALA shall pay to L.A. FITNESS \$2,500, which amount represents the non-refundable first and last month's Flat Fee (as defined below), as an initial deposit ("Initial Deposit") for the eleventh (11<sup>th</sup>) Covered Location and each Covered Location thereafter granted to KAHALA for the operation of an Nrgize outlet in the applicable Service Area during the Exclusive Grant Period. Each \$2,500 Initial Deposit shall be payable to L.A. FITNESS no later than the date L.A. FITNESS provides KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE exclusive access to the Service Area in the applicable Covered Location.

(2) In consideration for the right to provide Retail Services at the Facilities, for each Covered Location granted to KAHALA for the operation of an Nrgize outlet in the applicable Service Area during the Exclusive Grant Period, KAHALA shall pay L.A. FITNESS a non-refundable and continuing monthly services fee ("Monthly Services Fee") in an amount equal to the greater of: (i) \$1,250 (the "Flat Fee"); or (ii) 6% of Gross Sales for the prior month attributable to the Retail Services (the "Variable Fee"). KAHALA shall pay L.A. FITNESS the Flat Fee for all of the Facilities as one payment on the fifth calendar day of the month (the "Initial Payment"). KAHALA shall not reduce or offset any amount based upon failure by any FRANCHISEE to pay amounts owed to KAHALA. Additionally and if necessary, by the tenth (10<sup>th</sup>) of each month, KAHALA shall remit to L.A. FITNESS a second payment calculated as the total by which the Variable Fee exceeded the Flat Fee for each applicable Facility (the "Second Payment"). During the Term, notwithstanding the fact that any Services Area is not open and operating, if the Facility is open and operating and the applicable Commencement Date has occurred, KAHALA shall pay to L.A. FITNESS the Flat Fee for the applicable Facilities. Unless modified by L.A. FITNESS, as used in this Agreement, the term "Gross Sales" shall have the same meaning as ascribed to that term in the current form of the NRGIZE Franchise Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit G.

(3) If KAHALA fails to timely pay any Monthly Services Fee or any other amount, fee or charge due to L.A. FITNESS hereunder or commits a default with respect to any provision of this Agreement, L.A. FITNESS may use, apply or retain all or any portion of the Reservation Fee for the payment of such amount, fee, payment or other charge or to compensate L.A. FITNESS for any loss or damage which L.A. FITNESS may suffer thereby. If L.A. FITNESS uses or applies all or any portion of the Reservation Fee, KAHALA shall, within 10 days after written demand therefore from L.A. FITNESS, deposit cash with L.A. FITNESS in an amount sufficient to restore the Reservation Fee to the full amount required to be deposited by KAHALA. L.A. FITNESS shall not be required to keep the Reservation Fee, or so much thereof as has not heretofore been applied by L.A. FITNESS, shall be returned, without payment of interest or other increment for its use, to KAHALA within 10 business days of the later of (i) the expiration of the Term hereof, or (ii) the date KAHALA has vacated the respective Service Area and is not otherwise in default of this Agreement. No trust relationship is created herein between L.A. FITNESS and KAHALA with respect to the Reservation Fee.

(c) <u>Access Fee</u>. In consideration for the rights granted in Section 2 KAHALA shall also pay L.A. FITNESS a non-refundable access fee in the amount of \$5,000 (the "Access Fee") for the eleventh (11<sup>th</sup>) Covered Location and each Covered Location thereafter granted to KAHALA for the operation of an Nrgize outlet in the applicable Service Area during the Exclusive Grant Period. Each \$5,000 Access Fee shall be payable to L.A. FITNESS no later than the date L.A. FITNESS provides KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE exclusive access to the Service Area in the applicable Covered Location.

(d) <u>Construction Fee</u>. Except as provided for herein, for the eleventh (11<sup>th</sup>) Facility and each Facility thereafter at which KAHALA or its FRANCHISES is required to provide Retail Services, KAHALA shall also pay to L.A. FITNESS a non-refundable construction fee in the amount of \$35,000 to be applied to L.A. FITNESS' cost of the build-out or conversion of the Services Area at the respective Facility ("Construction Fee"). L.A. FITNESS will only provide at its expense the build-out activities or conversion items to the Services Area referenced in the attached Exhibit H in exchange for payment of the Construction Fee. All additional costs and expenses incurred for KAHALA's intended use will be at KAHALA's sole cost and expense. KAHALA acknowledges and agrees that, for new Facilities opened after January 1, 2007 and each January 1 thereafter during the Exclusive Grant Period, the amount of the Construction Fee paid during the prior year will increase by 4%. For existing Facilities made available to KAHALA during the Term, and Retail Services presently are being provided by a third party, there shall be **no** Construction Fee charged by L.A. FITNESS and KAHALA will be responsible for all costs and expenses incurred in converting the Services Area for KAHALA's use, including the furnishings, equipment and signage.

(e) <u>Commitment Fee</u>. Simultaneously with the execution of this Agreement, and in addition to all other amounts due to L.A. FITNESS, KAHALA shall pay L.A. FITNESS a commitment fee ("Commitment Fee") in the amount of \$500,000. The Commitment Fee will be applied to the fees for the first 10 Service Areas opened at the Facilities listed on Exhibit C, as follows:

Initial Deposit	\$2,500
Access Fee	\$5,000
Reservation Fee	\$7,500
Construction Fee	\$35,000
Total	\$50,000

KAHALA agrees that, except as provided below, the Commitment Fee is fully earned by L.A. FITNESS when paid and is not refundable. In the event this Agreement is terminated prior to L.A. FITNESS conveying ten (10) Facilities to KAHALA for the operation of an Nrgize outlet in the applicable Service Area, KAHALA shall be entitled to a pro rated refund of the Commitment Fee calculated as \$50,000 multiplied by the result of ten (10) less the number of Facilities conveyed to KAHALA prior to termination of this Agreement.

(f) <u>Taxes.</u> In addition to the sums above, KAHALA shall pay all federal, state and local sales, use, privilege, excise, franchise and similar taxes (if any) arising from or based upon this Agreement or the Retail Services provided in the Facilities, other than taxes based upon L.A. FITNESS' income. To the extent such taxes are due based on the payments to L.A. FITNESS, those taxes shall be paid by KAHALA concurrently with the other payments due (*i.e.*, with the Monthly Services Fees or other payments due under this Agreement).

(g) <u>Reports and Audit Rights</u>. KAHALA shall submit to L.A. FITNESS in writing simultaneously with payment of the Variable Fee: (i) the amount of Gross Sales generated during the prior calendar month at each Facility where Retail Services were provided by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES; (ii) a statement for each Facility indicating whether the Monthly Services Fee payment is based upon Gross Sales or represents the minimum payment; and (iii) the aggregate amount of Gross Sales generated during the prior calendar month at all Facilities where Retail Services were provided by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES. L.A. FITNESS or its designee shall have the right at all reasonable times, both during and after the Term on at least ten (10) prior days notice to KAHALA, to inspect, copy and audit the books and records and such other forms, reports, information and data as L.A. FITNESS may designate, applicable to the Retail Services provided by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES at each Facility. KAHALA shall provide to L.A. FITNESS any other data, information or reports as L.A. FITNESS may reasonably require. If the audit shows that there is a deficiency in the payment of any percentage of Gross Sales, 150% of the deficiency shall become immediately due and payable as an additional fee. L.A. FITNESS may require FRANCHISEES to give receipts to all customers and to retain detailed records of each sales transaction for auditing purposes.

(h) <u>Electronic Funds Transfer</u>. L.A. FITNESS may require KAHALA to make any payments required by this Agreement by electronic funds transfer ("EFT") and, in connection with the EFT, L.A. FITNESS may designate any terms and conditions to govern payments by EFT. KAHALA agrees to comply with any terms and conditions designated by L.A. FITNESS relating to EFT. KAHALA shall complete any documentation required by L.A. FITNESS in connection with this Section.

(i) Interest and Late Fees. Any payments accepted by L.A. FITNESS after their applicable due date shall bear interest at an annual rate which is the lesser of 12% or the maximum interest rate permitted by applicable law. In addition, any payments received three (3) days or more after the due date may be assessed an additional fee equal to 10% of the original payment due. The provisions herein for late fees shall not be construed to extend the date for payment of any sums required to be paid by KAHALA hereunder or to relieve KAHALA of its obligation to pay all such sums at the time or times herein stipulated. Neither the demand for, nor collection by, L.A.FITNESS of such late fees shall be construed as a cure of any default on the part of KAHALA. The late fee shall be deemed an additional fee, and the right to require it shall be in addition to all of L.A. FITNESS' other rights and remedies hereunder or at law and shall not be construed as liquidated damages or as limiting L.A. FITNESS' remedies in any manner. It is agreed that said late fee is a fair and reasonable fee under the circumstances, and it shall not be construed as interest on a debt payment. In the event any fee imposed hereunder or under any other

LAFI - Master Facility License Agt.

section of this Agreement is either stated to be or construed as interest, then no such interest charge shall be calculated at a rate which is higher than the maximum rate which is allowed under the usury laws of the applicable state, which maximum rate of interest shall be substituted for the rate in excess thereof, if any, computed pursuant to this Agreement.

(j) <u>Enforcement Costs</u>. KAHALA shall reimburse L.A. FITNESS for any fees, costs, expenses or other charges incurred by L.A. FITNESS to enforce this Agreement, including attorneys' fees and costs.

7. Use of Services Areas. In the Services Area in each Facility, KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES shall provide to the Members the Retail Services described in Exhibit A, including selling or distributing any Menu Items or other items required by L.A. FITNESS. The Retail Services provided by KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall be subject to all restrictions set forth in Exhibit A, as modified by L.A. FITNESS from time to time as provided in Exhibit A. KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall have the exclusive right to perform these Retail Services within the Services Areas of the Facilities starting on the Commencement Date for each Facility and continuing through the Term of this Agreement. L.A. FITNESS shall have the right to inspect, at any reasonable time, any Services Area within any Facility to determine whether KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE are in compliance with this Agreement and any other agreements relating to the Facility. From time to time, L.A. FITNESS may arrange temporary promotions, sometimes involving third parties, to give away items (including food and merchandise) to its Members as part of its own marketing and promotions. Such a temporary promotion shall not exceed 15 consecutive days in length and, at L.A. FITNESS' discretion, if appropriate, will include KAHALA and/or FRANCHISEES.

## 8. KAHALA's Rights and Limitations.

(a) <u>Build-Out Of Retail Services Areas</u>. For all new Facilities, L.A. FITNESS will only provide at its expense the build-out to the Services Area referenced in the attached Exhibit H in exchange for payment of the Construction Fee. All additional costs and expenses incurred for KAHALA's intended use will be at KAHALA's sole cost and expense. Additionally, for the Orange, Connecticut and Lake Success, New York Facilities, and for existing Facilities with previously existing Service Areas where no Construction Fee is applicable, KAHALA shall be solely responsible for the renovation and modification of the Service Area. L.A. FITNESS shall have the right to approve any construction plans for any Services Areas. Once L.A. FITNESS has approved any Services Area to open for business, KAHALA can either commence providing Retail Services at that Services Area or permit a FRANCHISEE to provide Retail Services at that Services Area. If a FRANCHISE will provide the Retail Services at any Facility, KAHALA and the FRANCHISEE will enter into a NRGIZE Franchise Agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit G that includes certain provisions required by L.A. FITNESS.

(b) <u>Dress Code</u>. KAHALA and its employees, agents and representatives and its FRANCHISEES are required to dress in a professional manner while providing the Retail Services in the Facility. KAHALA's employees and any FRANCHISEE's employees shall be required to wear uniforms, the color and style of which are subject to L.A. FITNESS' prior written approval. Such uniforms shall properly identify KAHALA's or its FRANCHISEE's independent nature, and shall in no way indicate or imply that KAHALA or any of its employees, agents, representatives or FRANCHISEES are employees of L.A. FITNESS. KAHALA may make such arrangements with its employees, agents, representatives or FRANCHISEES as it deems appropriate regarding the purchase and maintenance of such standard uniforms. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE shall require the standard uniform to be worn by all its employees at all times while on duty performing Retail Services within the Facility.

(c) <u>Cleanliness</u>. KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES are required to maintain the Services Areas in a spotless, clean, health and sanitary condition at all times. KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall store garbage, trash and other refuse in rat-proof and insect-proof containers inside the Services Areas, and remove the same frequently and regularly and, if directed by L.A. FITNESS, by such means and methods and at such times and intervals as are designated by L.A. FITNESS, at KAHALA's or its FRANCHISEE's sole cost and expense. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES being cited or warned by county, state, or city health inspectors for maintaining unsatisfactory working conditions may become grounds for termination of this Agreement.

(d) <u>Professional Conduct</u>. KAHALA and its employees, agents, representatives, and FRANCHISEES shall, at all times, maintain the highest possible professional standards of conduct while providing

LAFI – Master Facility License Agt.

03/06

the Retail Services under this Agreement, including professional language and appearance. KAHALA shall at all times be aware that the Facility is a health and fitness facility seeking to serve its Members with the highest level of service. KAHALA and its employees, agents, representatives and FRANCHISEES shall at all times abide by the L.A. FITNESS Club Rules and Regulations attached as Exhibit D hereto.

(e) <u>Equipment Use</u>. Except to the extent such individuals are Members, KAHALA and its employees, agents and representatives and its FRANCHISEES are not authorized to use, and agree not to use, nor will they wear KAHALA or FRANCHISEE uniforms while using, the fitness equipment or other services of the Facilities. KAHALA acknowledges and agrees that the equipment and services, are for use by L.A. FITNESS instructors, employees, and Members.

(f) <u>No Rights to Intellectual Property</u>. KAHALA shall not be permitted to use any intellectual property of L.A. FITNESS (including any trademarks or service marks) in any manner or on any document, including but not limited to advertisements for the Retail Services, business cards, stationery, forms, contacts, and/or receipts without the prior written consent of the Executive Vice President, CEO, CFO, or Chairman of L.A. FITNESS. Similarly, L.A. FITNESS shall not be permitted to use any of the intellectual property of KAHALA (including any trademarks or service marks) in any manner or on any document without the prior written consent of the Executive Vice President, CEO, CFO, or Chairman of the Executive Vice President, CEO, CFO or Chairman of KAHALA. Nothing in this Agreement provides either party with any ownership interest in or rights to use any trademarks or service marks owned by the other party.

(g) <u>Parking Regulations.</u> KAHALA and FRANCHISEES' employees, agents, representatives and contractors shall abide by the vehicle parking regulations as set forth by L.A. FITNESS relating to the Facility, including payment of parking fees for employees if required under the L.A. FITNESS Premises Lease.

(h) <u>Signs, Advertising and Storage.</u> KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES shall not place any sign upon the exterior of the L.A. FITNESS Facility. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES shall not place any signs, banners or point of purchase materials in, upon or about the Service Area or the facility without the express prior consent of L.A. FITNESS. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES shall post a sign in a conspicuous location in the Service Area (and include in all other signs and promotional materials used by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE), which identifies KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE's name and states that the Nrgize outlet is independently owned and operated by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE and is not in any way affiliated with L.A. FITNESS. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE shall not store or display any signs or merchandise outside the Service Area.

(i) <u>Hazardous Materials.</u> KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE shall not use or introduce in the Service Area or facility any hazardous or toxic materials.

9. <u>Maintenance, Repairs and Alterations</u>. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES, at its sole expense, shall keep in good order, condition and repair the Services Areas and all fixtures, furniture and equipment in the Services Areas. KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall not make, without L.A. FITNESS' prior written consent, any alterations, improvements, additions or installations to any Services Area ("Improvements"). If KAHALA makes any Improvements without the prior written approval of L.A. FITNESS, or uses a contractor not expressly approved by L.A. FITNESS, L.A. FITNESS may, at any time during the Term of this Agreement, require that KAHALA remove any part of the same at no expense to L.A. FITNESS. All Improvements shall be made and done in good and workmanlike manner and shall use good and sufficient quality and material. Improvements shall be done in such a manner so as to not impact operations at the Facilities and shall be the property of L.A. FITNESS and remain upon and be surrendered with the Services Areas by KAHALA at the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

#### 10. <u>Insurance</u>.

(a) <u>Required Insurance</u>. KAHALA, through itself or its FRANCHISEES for sub items 10(a)(3) and 10 (a)(4) below, shall, at their expense, obtain and keep in full force and effect during the Term of this Agreement: (1) Comprehensive General Liability Insurance in an amount of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence, and with an aggregate of not less than \$2,000,000, of bodily injury and property damage combined ; (2)

LAFI – Master Facility License Agt.

03/06

if the products sold by KAHALA are not covered by the General Liability Policy, Product Liability insurance in an amount of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence, and with an aggregate of not less than \$2,000,000 for merchandise, goods, products, food and beverages sold in the Services Areas and Facilities by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES; (3) Workers' Compensation insurance coverage to the full extent required by federal, state and/or local law; and (4) fire insurance with a Standard Form Extended Coverage Endorsement in an amount of at least the full insurance value of the improvements, fixtures, equipment and merchandise in the Services Areas. In addition to the required insurance coverages above, KAHALA, at its expense, shall obtain and keep in full force and effect during the Term of this Agreement an umbrella excess liability insurance policy in the amount of \$5,000,000.

Insurance Policies. KAHALA shall deliver to L.A. FITNESS copies of the insurance (b) policies required under this Section 10, or certificates evidencing the existence and amounts of such insurance, prior to KAHALA's (or its FRANCHISEE'S) occupancy of the Services Areas. L.A. FITNESS, the property manager, the property owner and any other entity or individual designated by L.A. FITNESS shall be additional insureds in such policies to the extent each has an insurable interest. All insurance policies herein to be procured by KAHALA shall: (i) be issued by insurance companies authorized to do business in the state where the facility is located, with a policy holder's rating of at least A- and a financial rating of not less than IX in the most recently published "Best Insurance Guide"; (ii) be written as primary policy coverage and non-contributory with respect to any coverage which L.A. FITNESS may carry; and (iii) be, with respect to the aggregate amount of insurance required by Section 10(a)(1) and 10(a)(2) of this Agreement, in addition to the insurance required for each Facility as provided in the individual Single-Unit Facility License Agreement. No such policy shall be cancelled or subject to reduction of coverage or other modification except after 30 days prior written notice to L.A. FITNESS. KAHALA shall, at least 30 days prior to the expiration of such policies, furnish L.A. FITNESS with copies of any renewal policies. KAHALA's insurance carriers shall waive all subrogation rights and any similar rights of recovery against or contribution from L.A. FITNESS.

(c) <u>No Representation of Adequate Coverage</u>. L.A. FITNESS makes no representation that the required types of insurance coverage and minimum coverages specified in Section 10 are adequate to cover KAHALA's or its FRANCHISEES' property or obligations under this Agreement. Compliance with the above insurance requirements shall not limit the liability of KAHALA under this Agreement.

Indemnification. KAHALA shall indemnify and hold harmless (to the full extent permitted by 11. law) L.A. FITNESS and its parent, affiliates and subsidiaries and their respective successors, assigns, past and present stockholders, directors, officers, employees, agents, and representatives (collectively "Indemnitees") from and against any and all claims for damage to the person or property of anyone or any entity arising from KAHALA's or its FRANCHISEE's use of any Services Area or Facility, from the conduct of KAHALA'S or any FRANCHISEE's business or from any activity, work or things done, permitted or suffered by KAHALA or any FRANCHISEE in or about any Services Area, any Facility or elsewhere and shall further indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnitees from and against any and all claims, costs and expenses arising from any breach or default in the performance of any obligation on KAHALA's or any FRANCHISEE's part to be performed under the terms of this Agreement (or any other Agreement), or arising from any act or omission of KAHALA or any FRANCHISEE, or any of KAHALA's agents, representatives, FRANCHISEES, contractors, employees or invitees and from and against all costs, attorneys' fees, expenses and liabilities incurred by any Indemnitee as a result of any such use, conduct, activity, work, things done, permitted or suffered, breach, default or negligence, and in dealing therewith, including by not limited to, the defense or pursuit of any claim or any action or proceeding involved therein; and in case any action or proceeding be brought against any Indemnitee by reason of any such matter, KAHALA upon such notice from any Indemnitee shall defend the same at KAHALA's (or FRANCHISEE's) expense by counsel satisfactory to L.A. FITNESS and the Indemnitees shall cooperate with KAHALA (or the FRANCHISEE) in such defense. The Indemnitees need not have first paid any such claim in order to be so indemnified. KAHALA, as a material part of the consideration to L.A. FITNESS, hereby assumes all risk of damage to property of L.A. FITNESS or KAHALA or injury to persons in, upon or about the Services Area arising from any cause and KAHALA hereby waives all claims in respect thereof against the Indemnitees. The right of the Indemnitees to indemnification by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES under this Section shall be independent of the right of L.A. FITNESS to the insurance to be provided pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any provision of this Section 11 to the contrary, KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall have no indemnification obligation to L.A. FITNESS under this Section 11 for accidents or occurrences of any Members or L.A. FITNESS agents,

contractors, or employees occurring in any area in front of the Service Area (the "General Area") so long as L.A. FITNESS, its agents, contractors, and/or employees regularly clean and maintain the General Area at issue.

L.A. FITNESS agrees to indemnify and hold KAHALA, its FRANCHISEES, and its affiliates (including its parent and subsidiary companies), and its stockholders, directors, officers, attorneys, employees, agents, successors and assignees harmless for, from and against any and all claims, liabilities, causes of action, demands, obligations, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or relating to L.A. FITNESS' or its employees and agents' gross negligence or willful misconduct at or around the Facility.

12. Exemption of L.A. FITNESS from Liability. All property kept, stored or maintained in any Facility by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES shall be so kept, stored or maintained at the sole risk of KAHALA. KAHALA hereby agrees that L.A. FITNESS shall not be liable for injury to KAHALA's or its FRANCHISEE's business or any loss of income therefrom or for loss of or damage to the goods, merchandise, products or other property of KAHALA or its employees, FRANCHISEES, agents, representatives, invitees, customers or contractors, whether such damage or injury is caused by or results from theft, fire, steam, electricity, gas, water or rain, or from the breakage, leakage, obstruction or other defects of pipes, sprinklers, wires, appliances, plumbing, air conditioning or lighting fixtures, or from any other cause, whether said damage or injury results from conditions arising upon the Services Areas or upon other portions of any Facility, or from other sources or places, or from new construction or the repair, alteration or improvement of any part of any Services Area or any Facility of the equipment, fixtures or appurtenances applicable thereto, and regardless of whether the cause of such damage or injury or the means of repairing the same is inaccessible, L.A. FITNESS shall not be liable for any damages arising from any act or neglect of any Member or any other licensee, occupant or user of any Facility, nor from the failure of L.A. FITNESS to enforce the provisions of any other agreement of any other licensee, occupant or user of any Facility, nor from the failure of L.A. FITNESS to enforce the provisions of any other agreement of any other licensee, occupant or user of any Facility.

13. <u>Default</u>. The occurrence of any of the following constitutes a material breach or default (herein "Default") by KAHALA under this Agreement:

(a) KAHALA fails to pay any amount as required under this Agreement and such failure continues for five (5) business days after KAHALA's receipt of written notice of such non-payment.

(b) KAHALA makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; files or has filed against it a petition for reorganization or arrangement under any law relating to bankruptcy; the appointment of a trustee or receiver to take possession of substantially all of KAHALA's assets located at one or more Facilities or of KAHALA's interest in this Agreement; or has filed against it an attachment, execution, or other judicial seizure of substantially all of its assets located at one or more Facilities or of KAHALA's interest in this Agreement.

(c) KAHALA fails to obtain and have current insurance coverage as required in Section 10 and to timely provide proper proof thereof to L.A. FITNESS.

(d) KAHALA makes an assignment under Section 23 without L.A. FITNESS' prior written

consent.

(e) KAHALA (or any other person or entity subject to Section 25) violates the "Non-Disclosure" provisions under Section 25.

(f) KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES provide Retail Services that are not authorized by L.A. FITNESS under Exhibit A or otherwise in writing, fail to provide any required Retail Services, or fail to cease offering any Retail Service that was previously authorized by L.A. FITNESS but which is no longer authorized, and such default remains uncured for twenty-four (24) hours after KAHALA's receipt of written notice of such default.

(g) KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES, employees, agents or representatives fail to comply with Sections 6(g), 7, and 8(b) through 8(i) of this Agreement, and the L.A. FITNESS Club Rules and Regulations established by L.A. FITNESS from time to time in its sole discretion (current Club Rules and Regulations are attached as Exhibit D), and such default remains uncured for twenty-four (24) hours after KAHALA's receipt of written notice of such default.

LAFI -- Master Facility License Agt.

(h) KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES fails to perform any other material provision of this Agreement (including any amendment or modification), provided that such failure continues for 30 days after L.A. FITNESS provides written notice to KAHALA of such failure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a shorter period of time is specifically stipulated in this Agreement (including any amendment or modification) for any specific failure to be remedied, that shorter time period shall be enforced instead of the aforementioned 30-day period.

(i) KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES remains in default of any other agreement with L.A. FITNESS or any agreement relating to the operation of the Services Areas beyond the applicable cure period (if any).

Any Default under Sections 13(a) through Section 13(e) above shall be deemed a "General Default." Any Default under Sections 13(f) through 13(i) above shall be deemed a "Facility Default."

#### 14. <u>Termination</u>.

(a) <u>Effect of a General Default</u>. Upon the occurrence of a General Default as set forth under Sections 13(a) through 13(e) above, L.A. FITNESS may terminate this Agreement. Upon the termination of this Agreement, KAHALA's right to provide, and to identify FRANCHISEES to provide Retail Services at the Facilities shall terminate and KAHALA's or its FRANCHISEE's right of access to the Facilities shall terminate. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in any agreement between KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES, upon the termination of this Agreement, KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall, within 3 days after receipt of notice from L.A. FITNESS, vacate all Facilities and remove all personal belongings, materials and products of KAHALA or the FRANCHISEES from all Facilities. KAHALA shall immediately pay all monies due hereunder. L.A. FITNESS shall have the right upon the termination of this Agreement to provide, or identify third parties (including any of the FRANCHISEES) to provide, Retail Services at the Facilities.

Effect of a Facility Default. Upon the occurrence of a Facility Default as set forth under (b) Sections 13(f) through 13(i) above, L.A. FITNESS may terminate the rights granted in this Agreement for the applicable Facility only and any other agreements relating to that particular Facility only. Upon termination of the agreements for a specific Facility, KAHALA's (or its FRANCHISEE's) right to provide Retail Services at that Facility shall terminate and KAHALA's right of access to that Facility shall terminate. Within 3 days after receipt of such notice, KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE shall vacate the respective Facility and remove all personal belongings, materials and products of KAHALA or the FRANCHISEE from the respective Facility. KAHALA shall immediately pay all monies due to L.A. FITNESS for the respective Facility. L.A. FITNESS shall have the right upon the termination of the rights for any Facility to provide, or identify third parties (including any of the FRANCHISEES) to provide, Retail Services at the respective Facility. KAHALA's rights under this Agreement with respect any other Facilities shall continue unless and until those rights are terminated or expire. In the alternative, L.A. FITNESS may, in its sole and absolute discretion, compel KAHALA to terminate the Single Unit Facility License Agreement for the specific Facility and terminate FRANCHISEE's right of access to that Facility. In the event L.A. FITNESS exercises this option, KAHALA will continue to remain obligated to pay the Flat Fee at the Facility through the term of this Agreement, regardless of whether KAHALA or a new replacement FRANCHISEE continues to operate the applicable specific Facility.

(c) <u>Termination Generally</u>. Termination of this Agreement or any rights to provide Retail Services at any Facility shall not prejudice any other remedy to which L.A. FITNESS may be entitled either at law, in equity, or under this Agreement. If this Agreement is terminated prior to the expiration of the Term, L.A. FITNESS shall be entitled to all damages provided under the Agreement and as otherwise entitled by law.

(d) <u>Condition of Services Areas.</u> In addition to the other obligations set forth in this Section, when KAHALA vacates any Services Area, that Area shall be in the same condition as received, ordinary wear and tear excepted, clean and free of debris; except, any improvements made to the Services Area, at the option of L.A. FITNESS, shall remain. Any damage or deterioration of any Services Area shall not be deemed ordinary wear and tear if the same could have been prevented by good maintenance practices by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE. KAHALA shall repair any damage to any Services Area occasioned by the installation or removal of KAHALA's or its FRANCHISEE's trade fixtures, furnishings and equipment. KAHALA shall remove all of

LAFI – Master Facility License Agt.

KAHALA's or its FRANCHISEE's personal belongings, materials, merchandise, goods and products from the Services Areas and shall leave the Services Areas in a "broom clean" condition.

15. <u>Remedies</u>. Except as otherwise provided for in this Agreement, no remedy conferred by any of the specific provisions of the Agreement is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy. Each and every remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder, now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. The election of any one or more remedies by either party shall not constitute a waiver of the right to pursue other available remedies.

Cessation of Business. If L.A. FITNESS closes a Facility or ceases operating any Facility for any 16. reason except for a Sale Transaction (as such term is defined below), upon written notice by L.A. FITNESS to KAHALA, this Agreement and the rights granted to KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE shall terminate as to that Facility (the "Closure Date"). As of the Closure Date, no Monthly Services Fees shall be due to L.A. FITNESS for that Facility. In addition, KAHALA shall comply with the applicable obligations set forth in Section 14. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary and except for a Sale Transaction, if L.A. FITNESS voluntarily ceases operating any Facility covered by this Agreement, KAHALA or the applicable FRANCHISEE shall be reimbursed by L.A. FITNESS for their unamortized actual documented cost of the construction and improvements performed to the Service Area, including the applicable Construction Fee paid to L.A. FITNESS, amortized over 10 years based on the applicable Commencement Date and Closure Date (the "Reimbursement"). The Reimbursement shall be paid by L.A. FITNESS to KAHALA or the applicable FRANCHSIEE within thirty (30) days of the later of the Closure Date or date L.A. FITNESS receives supporting cost documentation. In addition, if L.A. FITNESS closes and replaces a Facility subject to this Agreement, KAHALA or the applicable FRANCHISEE shall have the right of first refusal for any replacement Facility opened within one and a half (1.5) miles of the closed Facility, with such right of first refusal lasting thirty (30) days after KAHALA's receipt of notice from L.A. FITNESS of the replacement Facility location and projected opening date. L.A. FITNESS and KAHALA hereby acknowledge and agree that the terms and conditions of this Section 16 do not apply to any consolidation or merger of L.A. FITNESS and its affiliated entities into or with a third party entity or the acquisition of substantially all of the assets or stock of L.A. FITNESS or its parent and affiliated entities by a third party entity, the result of which would be a new third party owner of the L.A. FITNESS nationwide chain of health clubs (hereinafter, a "Sale Transaction").

17. <u>Interruptions.</u> There shall be no abatement of license payments and L.A. FITNESS shall not be liable in any respect whatsoever for the inadequacy, stoppage, interruption or discontinuance of any utility or service due to riot, strike, labor dispute, breakdown, accident, repair or other cause beyond L.A. FITNESS' reasonable control or in cooperation with governmental requests for direction.

Arbitration. Any controversy, dispute or claim between the parties arising out of, in connection 18. with or in relation to this Agreement including but not limited to the negotiation, execution, coverage, scope, performance, non-performance, breach, interpretation, termination, enforceability or validity of this Agreement or any alleged fraud in connection therewith, shall, on the written request of either party served on the other, be submitted to arbitration for resolution. Such arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Arbitration Act, and with the then existing rules of the American Arbitration Association for commercial arbitration in Orange County, California. Each party shall be entitled to conduct reasonable discovery pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Civil Procedure of the State of California. Venue for arbitration shall be the County of Orange, State of California. The arbitration of all issues, including the determination of any amount of damages suffered by any party hereto by reason of the acts of omission of any party, shall be binding and shall survive the termination of the Agreement. The arbitrator shall be authorized to award the costs and expenses of arbitration to the prevailing party or to otherwise equitably allocate such costs and expenses and to settle the dispute to the mutual satisfaction of the parties. Judgment on the award of the arbitration may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction. To the extent applicable, the parties waive any right to trial by jury. Nothwithstanding anything to the contrary, L.A. FITNESS shall have the right and option to maintain a summary action for eviction, such as an unlawful detainer action, in a court of competent jurisdiction. Furthermore, anything to the contrary notwithstanding, L.A. FITNESS shall have the right and option to maintain an action for injunctive relief and other equitable relief against KAHALA in a court of competent jurisdiction.

19. <u>Choice of Law</u>. This Agreement, and any dispute arising from the relationship between the parties to this Agreement, shall be governed by California law, including any laws that direct the application of another jurisdiction's laws.

20. <u>Entire Agreement</u>. This Agreement, any Exhibits attached hereto, and any agreements executed in furtherance of this Agreement constitute the final, complete, and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement pertaining to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersede all prior and contemporaneous understandings or agreements of the parties. No party has been induced to enter into this Agreement by, nor is any party relying on, any representation or warranty outside those expressly set forth in this Agreement, and the attachments thereto. However, both parties understand that if KAHALA arranges to have a FRANCHISEE provide the Retail Services at any Facility, each such FRANCHISEE shall enter an agreement with KAHALA, in the exact form attached hereto as Exhibit F that has been previously approved by L.A. FITNESS, for each applicable Facility, prior to being permitted to provide Retail Services in a Facility. This Agreement may be amended only by a writing signed by both parties.

21. <u>Severability of Agreement</u>. If a court or an arbitrator of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this Agreement to be illegal, unenforceable, or invalid in whole or in part for any reason, the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions, or portions of them, will not be affected.

22. <u>Notices</u>. All notices, amendments, waivers, consents, approvals and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing. Any such item requiring delivery must be delivered: (a) in person; (b) by registered, express or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt request; (c) by a reputable, national overnight delivery carrier, provided that a signature upon receipt is required with such delivery; or (d) by a generally recognized courier or messenger service that provides written acknowledgement of receipt by the addressee. Documents are deemed delivered when actually delivered to or delivery is refused at the address for notices.

Notices and deliveries to KAHALA must be made at the following address:

Kahala Corp. Attn: Legal Department 7730 East Greenway Road, Suite 104 Scottsdale, AZ 85260

Notices and deliveries to L.A. FITNESS must be made at the following address:

L.A. Fitness International, LLC Attn: Legal Department 8105 Irvine Center Drive, Suite 200 Irvine, CA 92618

#### 23. Assignment.

(a) <u>By KAHALA</u>. The rights granted by L.A. FITNESS to KAHALA hereunder are personal rights and cannot be transferred or assigned, directly or indirectly, to a third party except with the prior express written approval of L.A. FITNESS, which must be signed by the Executive Vice President, CEO, CFO or Chairman of L.A. FITNESS and which shall be given at L.A. FITNESS' sole and absolute discretion. KAHALA shall not have the right to authorize or permit any person other than KAHALA, its employees and its FRANCHISEES to provide Retail Services at any Facility. Any attempted assignment in violation of this Section 22 shall be void. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section 22, KAHALA may, without L.A. FITNESS' consent (but upon written notice to L.A. FITNESS), assign this Agreement to any entity controlled by, controlling or under common control with KAHALA or to any entity resulting from the consolidation or merger of KAHALA's parent, Kahala Corp., into or with such other entity or the acquisition of substantially all of the assets or stock of KAHALA's parent by such entity, provided the assignee shall be fully subject to all terms, covenants and conditions of this Agreement; as used herein, "control" shall mean ownership of at least 51% of the voting interest together with the right and power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a

LAFI - Master Facility License Agt.

03/06

particular entity. A public offering of KAHALA or its parent's shares, recapitalization, reorganization or sale of a controlling interest in KAHALA shall not require L.A. FITNESS' consent or approval.

(b) <u>By L.A. FITNESS</u>. L.A. FITNESS shall have the right to freely assign its rights and responsibilities under the Agreement to third parties without the approval of KAHALA; provided, however, any assignment of this Agreement shall be delivered in writing to KAHALA within 30 days after being effective against KAHALA.

24. <u>Binding Effect</u>. Except as set forth in Section 11, this Agreement is binding on and benefits only the parties and their respective permitted successors and assigns. Nothing in this Agreement (except Section 11) gives any rights or remedies to any person other than the parties and their respective permitted successors and assigns, nor does anything in this Agreement relieve or discharge any obligation or liability of any third person to any party. No provision of this Agreement gives any third person any right of subrogation or action over or against any party to this Agreement.

25. <u>Nondisclosure</u>. KAHALA recognizes that materials used by L.A. FITNESS in the daily operation of its Facilities, including (but not limited to) forms, procedures memos, manuals, training materials, guest lists and member lists, are considered vital to those operations, and the sharing of such materials with competitors or potential competitors of L.A. FITNESS could have a material detrimental effect on the future profitability of L.A. FITNESS. Accordingly, KAHALA shall not, and shall cause its employees, agents, affiliates, representatives and FRANCHISEES not to, use or disclose any such information without the prior written permission of L.A. FITNESS in each instance. If KAHALA (or any other person subject to this Section) knowingly or negligently uses or shares any such materials with a competitor or potential competitor of L.A. FITNESS, or a member of the general public, or causes or permits any such materials to be shared with such parties, KAHALA has committed a Default of this Agreement and is liable to L.A. FITNESS for all costs, damages and losses of any kind resulting from this breach and L.A. FITNESS may take any actions identified in Section 14(a).

26. <u>Cooperation</u>. KAHALA agrees that it and its employees, agents, representatives, invitees, guests and FRANCHISEES will not be disruptive to the operation of the Facilities, will not speak negatively to Members about the Facilities or personnel and will work cooperatively with the L.A. FITNESS staff.

27. <u>Non-waiver</u>. Any waiver of any right or remedy requires the consent of the party waiving it. Every amendment, waiver, consent or approval must be in writing and expressly designated as such. No failure by any party to insist on the strict performance of any provision of this Agreement, or to exercise any right or remedy, will be deemed a waiver of such performance, right or remedy, or of any other provision of this Agreement. Any single waiver shall not be deemed a continuing waiver.

28. <u>Survival</u>. The representations, warranties and agreements in this Agreement will survive: (a) any investigation made by any party; (b) the execution of this Agreement; and (c) the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

29. <u>Additional Documents and Acts</u>. Each party will sign and deliver additional documents and instruments, and perform additional acts that are commercially reasonable and necessary to perform or evidence its obligations in the Agreement.

30. <u>No Presumption</u>. If any claim is made by a party relating to any conflict, omission or ambiguity in the provisions of this Agreement, no presumption or burden of proof or persuasion will be implied because this Agreement was prepared by or at the request of any party or its counsel. The parties waive any statute or rule of law to the contrary. The parties represent and acknowledge that each has had the opportunity to have respective legal counsel review and advise on the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

31. <u>Interpretation</u>. Unless the context otherwise requires: (a) a term has the meaning assigned to it; (b) "or" is not exclusive; (c) words in the singular include the plural, and words in the plural include the singular; (d) "amended," with reference to a law, statute, rule, regulation, charter or bylaws, is deemed to be followed by "from time to time"; (e) "herein," "hereof" and other similar words refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to

LAFI - Master Facility License Agt.

03/06

any particular Section, Paragraph, Subsection, paragraph, clause, or other subdivision; (f) all references to "Section," "Paragraph," or "Exhibit," refer to the particular Section, Paragraph in or Exhibit attached to this Agreement; and (g) "including," when following any general provision, sentence, clause, statement, term or matter, will be deemed to be followed by, "but not limited to...".

32. <u>Construction</u>. This Agreement shall not be construed for or against any party on the basis that such party or its legal representative caused part or all of this Agreement to be drafted.

33. <u>Specific Performance</u>. It might be impossible to measure in money the damage to a party if another party breaches this Agreement. If any such breach occurs, the party damaged might not have an adequate remedy at law or in damages. Therefore, each party consents to the issuance of an injunction or other appropriate interim or provisional relief, and the enforcement of other equitable remedies, against it to compel performance of this Agreement.

34. <u>Headings: Exhibits</u>. The headings in the Agreement are only for convenience and ease of reference and are not to be considered in construction or interpretation. All exhibits, schedules and appendices attached to this Agreement are incorporated herein.

35. <u>Counterparts</u>. The Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument and any of the parties hereto may execute the Agreement by signing any such counterpart.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, L.A. FITNESS and KAHALA hereto have executed this Agreement this day and year first above written.

INTERNATIONAL, LLC L.A. FITNESS

Name/Title: Paul Norris, Executive Vice President Address: 8105 Irvine Center Drive, Suite 200, Irvine, CA, 92618 Telephone: 949-255-7405 KAHALA HOLDINGS, LLC

Name/Title: Kevin Blackwell, Chairman & CEO of its Sole Member Address: 7730 East Greenway Road, Suite 104, Scottsdale, AZ, 85260 Telephone: 480-443-0200

# Exhibit Schedule

J

Exhibit A – Retail Services

Exhibit B – NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Menu

Exhibit C - L.A. FITNESS Locations & Opening Dates

Exhibit D - L.A. FITNESS Club Rules and Regulations

Exhibit E – Intentionally Deleted

Exhibit E – Single-Unit Facility License Agreement Exhibit G – Form of Approved Nrgize Individual Franchise Agreement Exhibit H – L.A. FITNESS Services Area Build-Out Specifications

Exhibit I - Location Memorandum

ï

#### Exhibit A – Retail Services

Permitted Use - The Services Areas shall be occupied and used by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES for the retail operation of an nrgize Lifestyle Café selling, among other menu items, smoothies, blended fruit and vegetable drinks, power smoothies, chillers, fresh juice, variety of lemonades, and other non-alcoholic beverages such as juices, soft drinks, sports drinks, hot and iced tea, hot and iced coffee, and bottled water as well as proprietary functional powders (in drinks only), breakfast items, fresh fruit, nutritional bars, nutritional supplements (in drinks only), sandwiches, salads and healthy meals listed on the menu attached as Exhibit B to the Master Facility License Agreement as Exhibit B (collectively, "Menu Items"). KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall sell only the Menu Items and shall sell any of the Menu Items required to be sold at Service Areas by L.A. FITNESS. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES shall maintain the highest standards in quality and preparation of such Menu Items. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES may alter the Menu, sell periodic promotion items, or sell additional Menu Items to be consistent with other nrgize locations and regional preferences, all subject to L.A. FITNESS' prior written approval. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES shall be permitted to offer samples of L.A. FITNESS approved KAHALA products on or in front of the Services Areas' counters. KAHALA shall also have the exclusive right to provide vending services for beverages and snacks in the Facilities, provided there is suitable space in the Facility for the vending machines and subject to L.A. Fitness' prior approval of the applicable display racks. **KAHALA** acknowledges that under no circumstances will the vending machines be allowed to have third party "advertising wraps" around them or contain multi-color third party illuminated advertising unless L.A. Fitness has provide its express consent. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES may also sell, on a non-exclusive basis, the following: (i) "Kahala" and/or "nrgize-branded" apparel and accessories; and (ii) convenience items, to be defined as chap stick, socks, locks, batteries, swim goggles, swim caps, racquet balls, deodorant, hair bands, weight lifting gloves, head phones, key chains, magazine and workout journals. If KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES offer vending services as described above, KAHALA shall reimburse L.A. FITNESS for all costs it incurs in supplying power to the vending machines, as reasonably determined by L.A. FITNESS.

Any item not listed on Exhibit B may not be sold by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES at the Facility without L.A. FITNESS' prior written approval. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES are strictly prohibited from cooking any food products at the Facility, and from preparing any sandwiches or salads within the Facility (i.e., all sandwiches and salads sold from the Service Area must be brought in fully prepared and pre-packaged). KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES may sell, on a non-exclusive basis, vitamins, minerals, functional powders and nutritional supplements in food or drink products only, and not in connection with any false or misleading diet or muscle building claims. KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall cease selling any Menu Item and any other item sold at the Facility or cease using any ingredient in any Menu Item if L.A. FITNESS, in its sole and absolute discretion, notifies KAHALA in writing that the item may not be sold or used in the Facilities. KAHALA agrees that the web site evaluation services provided by "consumerlab.com", or a mutually acceptable replacement designated by the parties, shall govern the acceptability of vitamins, minerals, functional powders, nutritional supplements and other food products L.A. FITNESS approves for sale by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES at any Facility. KAHALA further agrees that L.A. FITNESS' approval of any given product shall not relieve KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES of their responsibility to ensure that the product is merchantable, safe for consumption, or fit for a particular purpose, including, without limitation, a health club environment. L.A. FITNESS disclaims all express or implied warranties concerning any goods, materials or food products it approves for sale at the Facilities, including, without limitation, any warranties as to merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, quality or profitability. Upon request of L.A. FITNESS, KAHALA shall retain consumerlab.com, or a mutually acceptable replacement designated by the parties, to test products sold by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES for ingredient representations and appropriateness for consumption in a health club environment.

KAHALA further acknowledges and agrees that some Facility Premise Leases may prohibit the sale of certain items listed on Exhibit B. KAHALA will cease selling such items upon written notice by L.A. FITNESS accompanied by the relevant portion of the Premises Lease prohibiting sale of such items.

# **CONSENT OF SPOUSE**

(to be executed if Operator is a married individual)

The undersigned is the spouse of the Operator identified in the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, dated as of \_\_\_\_\_\_, between his or her spouse and Kahala Holdings, L.L.C. (the "Single-Unit Facility License Agreement"), to which this Consent of Spouse is attached.

The undersigned hereby declares that he/she has read the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, including each of the documents that are exhibits to or referenced in the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, in its entirety and, being fully convinced of the wisdom and equity of the terms of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, including each of the documents that are exhibits to or referenced in the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, and in consideration of the premises and of the provisions of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, the undersigned hereby expresses his or her acceptance of the same and does agree to its provisions.

The undersigned further agrees that in the event of the death of his or her spouse, the provisions of this Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, including each of the documents that are exhibits to or referenced in the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, will be binding upon him/her.

The undersigned further agrees that he/she will at any time make, execute and deliver such instruments and documents which may be necessary to carry out the provisions of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, including each of the documents that are exhibits to or referenced in the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement.

This instrument is not a present transfer or release of any rights which the undersigned may have in any of the community property of his or her marriage.

DATED\_\_\_\_\_

(Signature of Spouse)

(Print Name of Spouse)

# EXHIBIT 9

# AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS FOR STORES TO BE LOCATED WITHIN LA FITNESS HEALTH CLUBS

# (APPLICABLE ONLY FOR NEWLY-CONSTRUCTED STORES LOCATED WITHIN LA FITNESS HEALTH CLUBS)

# EXHIBIT 9

#### AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS FOR STORES TO BE LOCATED WITHIN LA FITNESS HEALTH CLUBS (Nowly-Constructed Stores Only)

(Newly-Constructed Stores Only)

THIS AMENDMENT (the "Amendment") dated \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_, to the Franchise Agreement dated \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_ for the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe location at \_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Franchise Agreement" or "Agreement") by and between Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company, doing business as "*NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*" ("Franchisor") and \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Franchisee"), is entered into by such parties to amend the Agreement as set forth herein. To the extent this Amendment contains terms and conditions that differ from those contained in the Agreement, this Amendment shall control. The parties agree that a concept or principle provided in one Section of this Amendment shall apply and be incorporated into all other provisions of the Franchise Agreement in which the concept or principle is also applicable, notwithstanding the absence of any specific cross reference thereto. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein will have the same meanings ascribed to such terms in the Agreement.

# The following shall apply to LA Fitness health club locations:

1. The following <u>paragraph G</u> shall be added to the end of the <u>Recitals</u> section after paragraph "F":

"G. Kahala Holdings, LLC, an affiliate of Franchisor, and FITNESS INTERNATIONAL, LLC (formerly L.A. Fitness International, LLC), a California limited liability company ("LA Fitness") entered into a Master Facility License Agreement, as amended (collectively, the "Master Facility License Agreement") pursuant to which Kahala Holdings, LLC can provide or Franchisor can grant third parties the right to provide certain services at the LA Fitness health clubs. Franchisor is currently issuing franchises to others for the operation of outlets in LA Fitness health clubs."

2. Section 1.4 "Term of Agreement", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "The term of this Agreement will commence on the Effective Date of this Agreement and will terminate on the earlier of the following: (i) the five (5) year anniversary of the date of this Agreement; (ii) the expiration of the term of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement for the Premises of the Franchised Business, including any renewal options thereto (the "Term"); (iii) the termination or expiration of the Master Facility License Agreement; or (iv) the date that LA Fitness ceases operating a health club at the location identified in Section 1.1 above unless terminated earlier in accordance with *Article 14* of this Agreement or any other provisions of this Agreement, or renewed in accordance with *Article 13* of this Agreement.

3. Section 2.1 "<u>Location Selection Procedures</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: You must select an LA Fitness health club Location approved by us in writing, for the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant within twenty-four (24) months after the date of this Agreement. If an acceptable Location for your restaurant in an LA Fitness health club is not secured within twenty-four (24) months after the date of this Agreement, then we may terminate this Agreement by giving you written notice to that effect. We will have no obligation to

refund to you all or any part of your Initial Franchise Fee (as defined in *Section 5.1* of this Agreement) in the event of such a termination.

4. Section 2.2 "<u>Lease and Purchase Approval</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"Section 2.2 <u>Facility License Agreements</u> Once an acceptable LA Fitness club location has been identified to locate your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant, you will enter into an agreement with Kahala Holdings, LLC in the form attached as Exhibit 2 (the "Single-Unit Facility License Agreement"), which will grant you access to the Location. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, you acknowledge that the operation of the Franchised Business at the Location is subject to all terms and conditions in the Master Facility License Agreement and the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement."

5. Section 2.3 "<u>Construction</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"a. As this is a "turn key" franchise purchase, we will oversee and manage all aspects of the on-site construction and equipping of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant to assure it meets our and LA Fitness' specifications and standards.

the b. You acknowledge that design and appearance of the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant is part of the System, and that uniformity is essential to the success of the System. Therefore, you agree that after the restaurant has been constructed, you will not make any material changes to the building plan or design or its appearance without our prior written consent, and you will, at your expense, maintain the interior and exterior decor of the restaurant in a first class condition and in such manner as we may reasonably prescribe from time to time. In addition to any remodeling required by us upon the renewal of this Agreement and upon the assignment of the Franchised Business, as set forth in Sections 12 and 13, respectively, you will, upon thirty (30) days written notice from us, and at your sole cost and expense, remodel and make all improvements and alterations in and to your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant as reasonably determined by us to reflect the then-current NrGize Lifestyle Cafe specifications, standards, format, image and appearance."

6. Section 2.4 "<u>Signage</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "You shall prominently display in a sign easily visible to consumers at the Franchised Business, the following words: "Each NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Restaurant is Independently Owned and Operated"."

7. Section 2.5 "<u>Relocation</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety.

8. Section 2.6 "<u>Restricted Use of Restaurant Location</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "You acknowledge that the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement does not grant you a possessory interest to the Location. You shall not wholly or partially sublet, transfer, assign, or otherwise dispose of the Location without our prior written consent. The Location may be used only for the operation of an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant in compliance with this Agreement, the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, and the Operations Manuals. Franchisee shall not conduct other businesses or activities on the Location without our prior written consent."

9. Section 3.1 "<u>Commencing Operations</u>", Paragraph "c," shall be deleted in its entirety.

10. Section 3.3 "<u>Fixtures, Furnishings, and Equipment</u>" shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"Section 3.3 <u>Equipment</u> Unless otherwise approved by us in writing, and if applicable, you will (1) acquire equipment to be used in the operation of the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* Franchised Business that is in accordance with the standards and specifications set forth by us in the Operations Manuals or other documents provided by, or approved by, us as they presently exist or exist in the future; and (2) procure the equipment from suppliers or vendors previously approved in writing by us."

11. Pursuant to Section 5.1 <u>"Initial Franchise Fee"</u>, Franchisor and Franchisee hereby acknowledge and agree that the Initial Franchise Fee due and payable by Franchisee to Franchisor for the newly constructed *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* located within an LA Fitness health club shall be Fifteen Thousand Dollars (\$15,000).

12. Section 5.2, "<u>Royalty Fee and Surcharge</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"For the period of time commencing on the later of the date that you sign this Agreement or the date the store opens to the public, and for the duration of the Term of this Agreement, you must pay to us a monthly royalty fee equal to \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Royalty Fee"). In the event of a unilateral termination of this Agreement by you, or in the event of a termination arising from or related to your default under this Agreement, we shall be entitled to, in addition to any sums owing through termination, and any other sums allowed by law, the average of the prior 6-month (or if less than 6 months, the Term) royalties multiplied by the remaining number of months on the initial Term of this Agreement, or any extension thereof, less a discount of eight percent (8%). The fixed monthly Royalty Fee will be increased annually on January 1<sup>st</sup> and compounded at a rate of 3%. In our sole discretion, we may charge, addition to the Royalty Fee, a surcharge of up to \$10 per week if your franchised business is located in a state that imposed additional reporting requirements on a franchisor ("<u>Surcharge</u>"). The Royalty Fee and applicable Surcharge shall be due and payable on the 15th calendar day of each month.

OR

In the event we do not have current card swipe information from LA Fitness, including, but not limited to, newly constructed LA Fitness locations, your Royalty Fee will be calculated as follows: (i) for the period of time commencing on the later of the date that you sign this Agreement or the date the store opens to the public, and for first twelve (12) months of this Agreement, you must pay to us a monthly royalty fee equal to Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars (\$750.00) (the "Royalty Fee"); and (ii) for the period of time commencing on the later of the first day of the thirteenth (13<sup>th</sup>) month after you sign this Agreement or the date the store opens to the public, and for the Term of this Agreement, you must pay to us a monthly royalty fee based upon the Adjusted Average Number of Daily Member Check-ins as follows:

Adj. Avg. Daily Check-Ins

Fixed Royalty Fee

0 - 800	\$300.00
801 – 1400	\$750.00
1401 – 2000	\$1,000.00
2001 and up	\$1,250.00

In the event that the Adjusted Average Number of Daily Member Check-ins for the first twelve (12) months is between 0 – 800, Franchisee will not be reimbursed the difference in the Fixed Royalty Fee. Also, in the event of a unilateral termination of this Agreement by you, or in the event of a termination arising from or related to your default under this Agreement, we shall be entitled to, in addition to any sums owing through termination, and any other sums allowed by law, the average of the prior 6-month (or if less than 6 months, the Term) royalties multiplied by the remaining number of months on the initial Term of this Agreement, or any extension thereof, less a discount of eight percent (8%). The fixed monthly Royalty Fee will be increased annually on January 1<sup>st</sup> and compounded at a rate of 3%. The Royalty Fee is due and payable on the 15th calendar day of each month.

You are required to report Gross Sales to our designated accounting office via the Internet at <u>http://franchisee.NrGizejuice.com</u> as set forth in the Operations Manuals, by the close of business on the third day of each month for the preceding month. You shall be required to establish a Depository Account at the time you execute this Agreement as set forth in *Section 5.4* below. Payment of the Royalty Fees and all other fees due under this Agreement to us shall be made via electronic transfer of funds from the Depository Account described in *Section 5.4* below. To accomplish this electronic transfer of funds from the Depository Account, you must complete, sign and deliver to us a current Electronic Funds Transfer Authorization in the form attached to this Agreement as <u>Exhibit 3</u>.

As used in this Agreement, "Gross Sales" means all sales, money or things of value, received or receivable, directly or indirectly, by Franchisee on account of the Franchised Business, less applicable sales taxes and any documented refunds, credits and allowances given by you to customers in accordance with the Operations Manuals, but without deducting any of Franchisee's costs and expenses."

13. In Section 5.3, "<u>Advertising Fees</u>", the word "weekly" is hereby deleted and replaced with the word "monthly".

14. Section 5.4, "<u>Depository Account</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"You are required to establish, at the time you execute this Agreement, and maintain a depository account (the "Depository Account") at a bank or other federally insured financial institution (the "Depository"). You will initially deposit \$3,000 into the Depository Account and are required to maintain a balance of \$3,000 in the Depository Account at all times by replenishing the Depository Account to \$3,000 after Franchisor makes withdrawals. On the third (3<sup>rd</sup>) calendar day of each month, you must submit a report to us regarding the monthly period which ended on the last calendar day of the preceding month, including details on Gross Sales and other statistical data as specified from time to time by us or the Operations Manuals. We will withdraw funds electronically on the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) calendar day of each month from the Depository Account. The

withdrawals are based upon the figures Franchisee reports and constitute Royalty Fees and Advertising Fees as described in Sections 5.2 and 5.3 of this Agreement. If you do not submit a report by the third (3<sup>rd</sup>) calendar day of any month, we may estimate the Royalty Fee and Advertising Fee based upon prior reports and withdraw the estimated amounts up to the entire \$3,000. We will return any overage within 30 days of our receipt of your report(s). We shall not be responsible to you for any interest charges for any overage collected due to your failure to timely report your sales. Additionally, we shall not be responsible for any bank service charges incurred by you which result in the withdrawal of funds from your Depository Account. You shall instruct the Depository to disburse each month to our designated bank, via electronic funds transfer by the close of business on the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) calendar day of each month (or (i) the preceding banking business day if the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) calendar day is a bank holiday, or (ii) the next business day if the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) calendar day is a Saturday or Sunday), the monthly Royalty Fee and Advertising Fee and other fees due for that month, which month shall end on the last calendar day of the preceding month. Under no circumstances shall such access to the Depository Account be deemed control or joint control of the Depository Account by Franchisor. You shall pay us Fifty Dollars (\$50.00) for each electronic funds transfer attempted from your Depository Account pursuant to this Section 5.4 that is returned for non-sufficient funds. You shall also reimburse us for all extraordinary costs incurred by us in collecting or attempting to collect funds due Franchisor from the Depository Account (for example, without limitation, charges for nonsufficient funds, uncollected funds or other discrepancies in deposits or maintenance of the Depository Account balance in accordance with the terms hereof). The Depository Account shall be established and maintained solely for the purposes set forth in this Section 5.4 and the Operations Manuals."

15. Section 5.5 "Location Review Fee", shall be deleted in its entirety.

16. Section 5.6 "<u>Lease Guarantee Fee</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

# "Section 5.6 Construction Fee; Construction and Equipment Costs:

The Initial Deposit (see Section 4.a of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit 2), Reservation Fee (see Section 4.b of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit 2), exact Construction Fee, Access Fee, all Leasehold Improvements, Construction Costs, and Equipment Costs for us to build out and completely equip your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe at the Location are collectively referred to as the "NrGize Turn-Key Fees." The total NrGize Turn-Key Fees are \$ . You will pay us or our designated affiliate the full Initial Franchisee Fee of \$15,000 plus the full amount of the NrGize Turn-Key Fees simultaneously with your execution of this Agreement. No portion of the NrGize Turn-Key Fees is refundable under any circumstances. Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant to the SUFLA, if Franchisee performs all obligations under the SUFLA, then 30 days after the expiration or termination of the SUFLA, Franchisor shall refund the Reservation Fee to Franchisee, without payment of interest. The Reservation Fee shall be applied against the cost of any damages at the Premises as a result of negligence, intentional vandalism or theft. If the cost of the repairs to the damages exceeds the amount of the Reservation Fee being held, Purchaser will not receive a refund and will be responsible to pay the difference.

The projected opening date is \_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Projected Opening Date"). The Projected Opening Date may change depending on various factors including, but not limited

to, union vs. non-union labor, the availability and delivery of construction materials and equipment, timing in obtaining applicable permits, the availability and delivery of equipment, and the delivery of the space by LA Fitness. Franchisee hereby acknowledges and agrees to the following: (i) the Projected Opening Date is a good faith estimate of Franchisor; (ii) Franchisor is not liable in any manner whatsoever to Franchisee for any delays or changes to the Projected Opening Date (including, but not limited to, no liability by Franchisor for any claims by Franchisee for incidental or consequential costs and damages incurred by Franchisee due to the delay); and (iii) any change to the Projected Opening Date will in no way affect the validity or enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Franchise Agreement.

17. Section 5.7 "<u>Lease Negotiation Fee</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety.

18. Section 5.8 "<u>Lease Procurement Fee</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety.

19. In Section 5.17, "<u>Late Report, Non-Sufficient Funds and Default Fees</u>", the word "weekly" is hereby deleted and replaced with the word "monthly".

20. Section 5.18 "<u>Audit Fees</u>", the first sentence of the second paragraph shall be deleted and replaced with the following: "You agree that we may have access to any computers utilized by you for such purposes and will have the ability at all times via modem to obtain daily, weekly, and monthly sales reports and other financial records that the POS System provides."

21. The following Section 8.5 "<u>Indemnification of LA Fitness</u>" shall be added to the end of Article 8 after Section 8.4: "To the extent applicable, you agree to indemnify and hold LA Fitness, its parent, subsidiaries and affiliates, and their respective stockholders, directors, officers, attorneys, employees, agents successors and assignees harmless for, from and against any and all Claims, except for Claims successfully alleged to have resulted solely from LA Fitness' negligence or willful misconduct. Notwithstanding the foregoing, LA Fitness will have the right, at its option, to defend any such Claim, but you must reimburse LA Fitness upon demand for the costs of such defense."

22. Section 9.2 "<u>Authorized Products and Services</u>", paragraph "a," shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"a. You must limit your business at the Premises of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant as specified in the Operations Manuals, and agree that you will not, without our prior written approval, offer any menu items, beverages, products or services that are not authorized by us for *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchise owners, as set forth in the Operations Manuals. Any related or unrelated business not provided for in the Operations Manuals must have our prior written approval. At all times, your operation of the Franchised Business shall be subject to the Master Facility License Agreement (including Exhibit A thereto) and the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement."

23. Pursuant to Section 9.5 "<u>Maintenance of Insurance</u>", Franchisor and Franchisee hereby acknowledge and agree that the insurance policies must be issued by insurance carriers rated Best's AAA or above.

24. Pursuant to Section 9.5 "<u>Maintenance of Insurance</u>", Franchisor and Franchisee hereby acknowledge and agree that all liability insurance policies required under the Agreement must also name LA Fitness as an additional.

25. In Section 11.1, "<u>Maintenance of Records</u>", paragraph "a" shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"a. to submit to us on a Franchisor-approved form, on or before the close of business on the third (3<sup>rd</sup>) day of each month, a signed statement of monthly Gross Sales for the preceding month, which month ends on the last calendar day of the month."

26. In Section 11.1, "<u>Maintenance of Records</u>", paragraph "e.3" shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"3. cash disbursements journal and monthly payroll register;"

27. In Section 11.1, "<u>Maintenance of Records</u>", paragraph "e.9" shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"9. daily production, throwaway and finishing records and monthly inventories;"

28. Section 12.1 "<u>Prior Consent of Franchisor to Assignment</u>", paragraph "b," shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"b. We are entering into this Agreement based upon our knowledge of and faith in the ability of Franchisee. Therefore, this Agreement and all the rights granted by it are personal to Franchisee and may not be assigned or transferred by Franchisee without the prior written consent of Franchisor. Any attempt to assign or transfer: (i) any right under this Agreement or the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement; (ii) any interest in any entity holding an interest in this Agreement; (iii) all or any portion of the Franchised Business; or (iv) any assets, including but not limited to, equipment, leasehold improvements, and goodwill, now owned by Franchisee or later acquired by Franchisee during the Term of this Agreement that are located at and/or utilized in the restaurant operations at the Location, without the prior written consent of Franchisor, will be null and void; and will give us the right to terminate this Agreement and your rights under it, and the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement and your rights under it, in addition to any remedies which we may have for the breach of this covenant by reason of an attempted assignment or transfer."

29. The first paragraph of Section 12.3 "<u>Requirement for Consent to Transfer</u>", (before paragraph "a") shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following paragraph:

"If a transfer of: (i) any right under this Agreement or the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement; (ii) any interest in any entity holding an interest in this Agreement; (iii) all or any portion of the Franchised Business; or (iv) any assets, including but not limited to, equipment, leasehold improvements, and goodwill, now owned by Franchisee or later acquired by Franchisee during the Term of this Agreement that are located at and/or utilized in the restaurant operations at the Location, is proposed and Franchisor does not exercise its right to purchase pursuant to the preceding Section, then Franchisor will consent to the transfer provided that:"

30. In Section 12.6 "<u>Restrictions on Security Interest and Subfranchising</u>", the word "rent" is hereby deleted and replaced with the words "access related fees".

31. In the first paragraph in Article 13 "<u>Renewal of Franchise</u>", the phrase "ten (10) years" is hereby deleted and replaced with the with the phrase "five (5) years."

32. In the first paragraph in Article 13 "<u>Renewal of Franchise</u>", the word "lease" is hereby deleted and replaced with the words "facility license agreement".

33. Paragraph "d" in Article 13 "<u>Renewal of Franchise</u>", is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"d. You must have entered into a new facility license agreement for your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant for a term co-extensive with the term of the renewal, or you must have secured and developed suitable substitute premises approved by us;"

34. Paragraph "b" in Section 14.1 "<u>Default; Termination</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"b. If Franchisee fails to pay, perform, observe or comply with any of Franchisee's duties and obligations under this Agreement or the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, including failure to pay: (i) any sum due Franchisor under this Agreement (including, but not limited to, the Initial Franchise Fee, NrGize Invoice Fees (including any required installment payments of the NrGize Invoice Fees), Royalty Fees and Advertising Fees); or (ii) any sum to Kahala Holdings, L.L.C under the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement; or if Franchisee fails to carry out in all respects its obligations under any equipment agreement, promissory note, vender account, conditional sales contract or other contract materially affecting the Franchised Business, to which the Franchisee is a party or by which Franchisee is bound, whether or not we are a party thereto; or failure to maintain and utilize the security cameras, devices and applicable security software, if any, that are a part of the POS System as designated in the Operations Manuals;"

35. Paragraph "c" in Section 14.1 "<u>Default; Termination</u>", shall be added as follows:

"c. If the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement for the Premises of the Franchised Business or the Master Facility License Agreement is terminated or expires;"

36. Paragraph "b" in Section 14.2 "<u>Opportunity to Cure</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"b. <u>Seven Day Cure Period</u> - A seven (7) day cure period will apply if you fail, refuse, or neglect to pay when due to us any monies owing to us or our affiliate(s) (including, but not limited to, Royalty Fees, Advertising Fees and amounts due under the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement), or to any Advertising Fund, or if you fail to maintain the insurance coverage set forth in this Agreement, or if you fail to maintain and utilize the security cameras, devices and applicable security software, if any, that are a part of the POS System.

37. Paragraph "f" in Section 14.2 "<u>Opportunity to Cure</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"f. No Cure Period - No cure will be available: (1) if Franchisee fails to pay the Initial Franchise Fee when due in accordance with Section 5.1 of this Agreement or all or any portion of the NrGize Invoice Fees when due in accordance with Section 5.5 of this Agreement; (2) if Franchisee is in default under or breaches its covenants or obligations under Sections 3.1. 14.1(a). 14.1(c), 14.1(f), 14.1(g), 14.1(h), 14.1(n) or 14.1(o), or (3) if Franchisee intentionally underreports monthly Gross Sales, falsifies financial data, fails to promptly provide upon Franchisor's request financial data and records specified in this Agreement, or otherwise commits an act of fraud with respect to its rights or obligations under this Agreement; or (4) if Franchisee is in default under or breaches its covenant against competition set forth in Section 14.6 of this Agreement; or (5) if Franchisee is in default under or breaches its covenant to observe and obey all applicable laws, rules, ordinances and regulations set forth in Section 9.4, or (6) if Franchisee repeatedly fails to comply with the provisions of this Agreement, whether or not subsequently cured; or (7) if Franchisee, having twice previously cured a default or breach of this Agreement, commits the same breach or default again."

38. The following paragraph "j" shall be added to Section 14.5 "<u>Effect of Termination</u> or <u>Expiration</u>" after the end of paragraph "i":

"j. Immediately vacate the Premises at which the Franchised Business is operated and otherwise comply with all applicable requirements in the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement. When vacating the Premises, all machinery, equipment, furniture, fixtures, improvements, tools, and signs must be left at the Premises as they will immediately be owned by and become the property of LA Fitness pursuant to the Bill of Sale that is attached as <u>Exhibit 11</u> to the Franchise Agreement, and incorporated herein by reference, and must be signed simultaneously with the Franchise Agreement."

39. Paragraph "c" in Section 14.6 "<u>Covenant Not to Compete: Conflicting Interests</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"с. During the term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years after its termination for any cause, Franchisee shall not engage in any business in competition with any NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant. The provisions of this Agreement bind Franchisee in any capacity, including as a franchisee, sole proprietor, partner, limited partner, member, employer, franchisor, stockholder, officer, director or employee. For purposes of this paragraph, "competition" means the franchising, ownership, or operation of a restaurant similar to a NrGize Lifestyle Cafe outlet at the location identified in Section 1.1 of this Agreement, or within a geographical area consisting of: (1) during the term of this Agreement, anywhere else; and (2) after termination of this Agreement, a ten (10) mile radius from the location of any NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant of Franchisor, its third party licensees or its third party franchisees, including the restaurant licensed by this Agreement, or within a ten (10) mile radius of any LA Fitness health club. The terms "NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant" and "NrGize Lifestyle Cafe outlet" include not only the restaurants and outlets now in existence, but also those established at a later date. The term of this covenant will be extended by any time consumed in litigation to enforce it in both trial and appellate courts. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that the restrictions in this paragraph are excessive in time, geographic scope, or otherwise, the court may reduce the restriction to the level that provides the maximum restriction allowed by law."

40. Section 16.11 "<u>Cross Default</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "A default by Franchisee under this Agreement will be deemed a default of all Franchise Agreements or Single-Unit Facility License Agreements between Franchisee and Franchisor (and/or any of its predecessors or affiliates.) A default by Franchisee under any other Franchise Agreement or Single-Unit Facility License Agreement between Franchisor (and/or any of its predecessors or affiliates), and Franchisee will be deemed a default under this Agreement. A default by the Guarantor(s) of this Agreement or any other Franchise Agreement Guaranty of Contract (including Franchisor and/or any of its predecessors), will be deemed a default of this Agreement."

41. Section 16.12 "Cross Termination", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: If this Agreement is terminated as a result of a default by Franchisee, Franchisor may, at its option, elect to terminate any or all other franchise agreements and Single-Unit Facility License agreements between Franchisee and Franchisor (and/or any of its predecessors or affiliates.) If any other franchise agreement or Single-Unit Facility License agreement between Franchisee and Franchisor (and/or any of its predecessors or affiliates), is terminated as a result of a default by Franchisee, Franchisor may, at its option, elect to terminate this Agreement. It is agreed that an incurable or uncured default under this Agreement or any other franchise agreement or Single-Unit Facility License agreement between franchise agreement or any other franchise agreement or Single-Unit Facility License agreement between franchise agreement and/or any of its predecessors or affiliates), will be grounds for termination of this Agreement and/or any and all franchise agreements and Single-Unit Facility License agreements between Franchisee and Franchisor (and/or any of its predecessors or affiliates), without additional notice or opportunity to cure."

42. Section 16.13 "<u>No Third Party Beneficiaries</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "Except as set forth in Section 8, this Agreement is not intended to benefit any other person or entity except the named parties hereto and no other person or entity shall be entitled to any rights hereunder by virtue of so-called "third party beneficiary rights" or otherwise."

43. In paragraph "i" of Section 17.1 "<u>Certain Representations and Warrants of</u> <u>Franchisee</u>", the words "rent payments due under lease obligations" are hereby deleted and replaced with the words "access fees."

44. The following paragraph "I" shall be added to the end of Section 17.1 "<u>Certain</u> <u>Representations and Warrants of Franchisee</u>", after paragraph "k":

"I. Neither we nor Kahala Holdings, LLC shall have any liability to you for any delays in the construction, equipping, and ultimate delivery to you of the completely built-out *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant cover by this Agreement."

45. Paragraph "g" of Section 17.3 "<u>Acknowledgements of Franchisee</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"g. You acknowledge that this is a "turn key" franchise opportunity, and as detailed in *Section 2.3* of this Agreement, we, or our affiliate(s), will be overseeing and managing the on site construction process and equipping of your

*NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* Restaurant at the Location. You further acknowledge, as detailed in Section 5.5 of this Agreement, you will pay us or our designated affiliate the full Initial Franchisee Fee plus the full amount of the NrGize Turn-Key Fees simultaneously with your execution of this Agreement, and no portion of the NrGize Turn-Key Fees is refundable under any circumstances. Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant to the SUFLA, if Franchisee performs all obligations under the SUFLA, then 30 days after the expiration or termination of the SUFLA, Franchisor shall refund the Reservation Fee to Franchisee, without payment of interest. The Reservation Fee shall be applied against the cost of any damages at the Premises as a result of negligence, intentional vandalism or theft. If the cost of the repairs to the damages exceeds the amount of the Reservation Fee being held, Purchaser will not receive a refund and will be responsible to pay the difference.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_/\_\_\_"

46. The following paragraph "n" shall be added to the end of Section 17.3 "<u>Acknowledgements of Franchisee</u>", after paragraph "m":

"g. Franchisee acknowledges that, pursuant to the Master Facility License Agreement, LA Fitness granted certain rights to the Location to Kahala Holdings, LLC and that, pursuant to the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, Kahala Holdings, LLC in turn granted certain rights to Franchisee. Franchisee further acknowledges that, if the Master Facility License Agreement is terminated for any reason, the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement will terminate and Franchisee must immediately vacate the Premises.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_/\_\_\_"

47. The following paragraph "o" shall be added to the end of Section 17.3 "<u>Acknowledgements of Franchisee</u>", after paragraph "n":

"h. Franchisee acknowledges that, pursuant to the Master Facility License Agreement, LA Fitness may cease operating any LA Fitness health club at any time and, if it does so, the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement will terminate. Franchisee further acknowledges that, in that event, Franchisee must immediately vacate the Premises. When vacating the Premises, all machinery, equipment, furniture, fixtures, improvements, tools, and signs must be left at the Premises as they will immediately be owned by and become the property of LA Fitness pursuant to the Bill of Sale that is attached as an amendment to the Franchise Agreement and must be signed simultaneously with the Franchise Agreement.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_/\_\_\_"

48. The following paragraph "p" shall be added to the end of Section 17.3 "<u>Acknowledgements of Franchisee</u>", after paragraph "o":

"i. Franchisee acknowledges that the Master Facility License Agreement may restrict its rights as an *NrGize* franchisee. Franchisee hereby expressly acknowledges that it has carefully reviewed the Master Facility License Agreement at lease five (5) business days prior to signing this Agreement (a copy of the Master Facility License Agreement is attached as Exhibit D to the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, which is attached to the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* Uniform Franchise Disclosure Document as Exhibit H.)

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_"

48. The following applies only for Franchisees that are Maryland residents and Franchisees whose franchises will be operated in Maryland: All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of liability are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on this \_\_\_\_\_day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_.

FRANCHISOR:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	 _
Name:	
Title:	

FRANCHISEE:

\_\_\_\_\_, a(n) \_\_\_\_\_

By:		 	
Name:			_
Title:			

## **EXHIBIT 10**

### AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS FOR STORES TO BE LOCATED WITHIN FUTURE LA FITNESS HEALTH CLUBS

## (APPLICABLE ONLY FOR NEWLY-CONSTRUCTED STORES LOCATED WITHIN FUTURE LA FITNESS HEALTH CLUBS)

### EXHIBIT 10

#### AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS FOR STORES TO BE LOCATED WITHIN FUTURE LA FITNESS HEALTH CLUBS (Newly-Constructed Stores Only)

THIS AMENDMENT (the "Amendment") dated , 20 , to the Franchise Agreement dated , 20 for an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe location (the "Franchise Agreement" or "Agreement") by and between Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited "NrGize Lifestyle Cafe" liability company, doing business as ("Franchisor") and ("Franchisee"), is entered into by such parties to amend the Agreement as set forth herein. To the extent this Amendment contains terms and conditions that differ from those contained in the Agreement, this Amendment shall control. The parties agree that a concept or principle provided in one Section of this Amendment shall apply and be incorporated into all other provisions of the Franchise Agreement in which the concept or principle is also applicable, notwithstanding the absence of any specific cross reference thereto. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein will have the same meanings ascribed to such terms in the Agreement.

### The following shall apply to LA Fitness health club locations:

1. The following <u>paragraph G</u> shall be added to the end of the <u>Recitals</u> section after paragraph "F":

"G. Kahala Holdings, LLC, an affiliate of Franchisor, and FITNESS INTERNATIONAL, LLC (formerly L.A. Fitness International, LLC), a California limited liability company ("LA Fitness") entered into a Master Facility License Agreement, as amended (collectively, the "Master Facility License Agreement") pursuant to which Kahala Holdings, LLC can provide or Franchisor can grant third parties the right to provide certain services at the LA Fitness health clubs. Franchisor is currently issuing franchises to others for the operation of outlets in LA Fitness health clubs."

2. Section 1.4 "Term of Agreement", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "The term of this Agreement will commence on the Effective Date of this Agreement and will terminate on the earlier of the following: (i) the five (5) year anniversary of the opening date of the Franchised Business; (ii) the expiration of the term of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement for the Premises of the Franchised Business, including any renewal options thereto (the "Term"); (iii) the termination or expiration of the Master Facility License Agreement; or (iv) the date that LA Fitness ceases operating a health club at the location identified in Section 1.1 above unless terminated earlier in accordance with *Article 14* of this Agreement or any other provisions of this Agreement, or renewed in accordance with *Article 13* of this Agreement.

3. Section 2.1 "<u>Location Selection Procedures</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: You must select an LA Fitness health club Location approved by us in writing, for the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant within twenty-four (24) months after the date of this Agreement. If an acceptable Location for your restaurant in an LA Fitness health club is not secured within twenty-four (24) months after the date of this Agreement, then we may terminate this Agreement by giving you written notice to that effect. Any obligations for us to

refund to you all or any part of your Initial Franchise Fee (as defined in *Section 5.1* of this Agreement) are set forth more fully below in Section 5.6 of this Agreement.

4. Section 2.2 "<u>Lease and Purchase Approval</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"Section 2.2 <u>Facility License Agreements</u> Once an acceptable LA Fitness club Location has been identified to locate your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant, you will enter into an agreement with Kahala Holdings, LLC in the form attached as Exhibit 2 (the "Single-Unit Facility License Agreement"), which will grant you access to the Location. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, you acknowledge that the operation of the Franchised Business at the Location is subject to all terms and conditions in the Master Facility License Agreement and the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement."

5. Section 2.3 "<u>Construction</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"a. This is a "turn key" franchise purchase, which is conditioned upon LA Fitness obtaining a construction site to build and achieve "Substantial Completion," as defined herein, of a new LA Fitness health club Location which will incorporate a new *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant. "Substantial Completion" is defined as: "When the LA Fitness health club Location, as a whole, is first used, is first available for use, or after final inspection by the governmental body which issued the building permit." We will only oversee and manage aspects of the onsite construction and equipping of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant to assure it meets our and LA Fitness' specifications and standards. We will not have any involvement with the on-site construction of the LA Fitness facility in general.

b. You acknowledge that the design and appearance of the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant is part of the System, and that uniformity is essential to the success of the System. Therefore, you agree that after the restaurant has been constructed, you will not make any material changes to the building plan or design or its appearance without our prior written consent, and you will, at your expense, maintain the interior and exterior decor of the restaurant in a first class condition and in such manner as we may reasonably prescribe from time to time. In addition to any remodeling required by us upon the renewal of this Agreement and upon the assignment of the Franchised Business, as set forth in Sections 12 and 13, respectively, you will, upon thirty (30) days written notice from us, and at your sole cost and expense, remodel and make all improvements and alterations in and to your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant as reasonably determined by us to reflect the then-current *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* specifications, standards, format, image and appearance.

6. Section 2.4 "<u>Signage</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "You shall prominently display in a sign easily visible to consumers at the Franchised Business, the following words: "Each NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Restaurant is Independently Owned and Operated"."

7. Section 2.5 "<u>Relocation</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety.

8. Section 2.6 "<u>Restricted Use of Restaurant Location</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "You acknowledge that the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement does not grant you a possessory interest to the Location. You shall not wholly or

partially sublet, transfer, assign, or otherwise dispose of the Location without our prior written consent. The Location may be used only for the operation of an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant in compliance with this Agreement, the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, and the Operations Manuals. Franchisee shall not conduct other businesses or activities on the Location without our prior written consent."

9. Section 3.1 "<u>Commencing Operations</u>", Paragraph "c," shall be deleted in its entirety.

10. Section 3.3 "<u>Fixtures, Furnishings, and Equipment</u>" shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"Section 3.3 <u>Equipment</u> Unless otherwise approved by us in writing, and if applicable, you will (1) acquire equipment to be used in the operation of the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* Franchised Business that is in accordance with the standards and specifications set forth by us in the Operations Manuals or other documents provided by, or approved by, us as they presently exist or exist in the future; and (2) procure the equipment from suppliers or vendors previously approved in writing by us."

11. Pursuant to Section 5.1 <u>"Initial Franchise Fee"</u>, Franchisor and Franchisee hereby acknowledge and agree that the Initial Franchise Fee due and payable by Franchisee to Franchisor for the newly constructed *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* located within an LA Fitness health club shall be Fifteen Thousand Dollars (\$15,000.00), made payable as follows: Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000.00) upon execution of the Agreement ("Execution Payment"), and Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00) no later than sixty (60) days prior to the Substantial Completion of the LA Fitness health club Location where the Franchised Business will be located ("Final Payment".)

12. Section 5.2, "<u>Royalty Fee and Surcharge</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"For the period of time commencing on the later of the date that you sign this Agreement or the date the store opens to the public, and for the duration of the Term of this Agreement, you must pay to us a monthly royalty fee equal to \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Royalty Fee"). In the event of a unilateral termination of this Agreement by you, or in the event of a termination arising from or related to your default under this Agreement, we shall be entitled to, in addition to any sums owing through termination, and any other sums allowed by law, the average of the prior 6-month (or if less than 6 months, the Term) royalties multiplied by the remaining number of months on the initial Term of this Agreement, or any extension thereof, less a discount of eight percent (8%). The fixed monthly Royalty Fee will be increased annually on January 1<sup>st</sup> and compounded at a rate of 3%. In our sole discretion, we may charge, addition to the Royalty Fee, a surcharge of up to \$10 per week if your franchised business is located in a state that imposed additional reporting requirements on a franchisor ("<u>Surcharge</u>"). The Royalty Fee and applicable Surcharge shall be due and payable on the 15th calendar day of each month.

## OR

In the event we do not have current card swipe information from LA Fitness, including, but not limited to, newly constructed LA Fitness locations, your Royalty Fee

will be calculated as follows: (i) for the period of time commencing on the later of the date that you sign this Agreement or the date the store opens to the public, and for first twelve (12) months of this Agreement, you must pay to us a monthly royalty fee equal to Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars (\$750.00) (the "Royalty Fee"); and (ii) for the period of time commencing on the later of the first day of the thirteenth (13<sup>th</sup>) month after you sign this Agreement or the date the store opens to the public, and for the duration of the Term of this Agreement, you must pay to us a monthly royalty fee based upon the Adjusted Average Number of Daily Member Check-ins as follows:

Adj. Avg. Daily Check-Ins	Fixed Royalty Fee
0 - 800	\$300.00
801 – 1400 1401 – 2000	\$750.00 \$1,000.00
2001 and up	\$1,250.00

In the event that the Adjusted Average Number of Daily Member Check-ins for the first twelve (12) months is between 0 – 800, Franchisee will not be reimbursed the difference in the Fixed Royalty Fee. Also, in the event of a unilateral termination of this Agreement by you, or in the event of a termination arising from or related to your default under this Agreement, we shall be entitled to, in addition to any sums owing through termination, and any other sums allowed by law, the average of the prior 6-month (or if less than 6 months, the Term) royalties multiplied by the remaining number of months on the initial Term of this Agreement, or any extension thereof, less a discount of eight percent (8%). The fixed monthly Royalty Fee will be increased annually on January 1<sup>st</sup> and compounded at a rate of 3%. The Royalty Fee is due and payable on the 15th calendar day of each month.

You are required to report Gross Sales to our designated accounting office via the Internet at <u>http://franchisee.NrGizejuice.com</u> as set forth in the Operations Manuals, by the close of business on the third day of each month for the preceding month. You shall be required to establish a Depository Account at the time you execute this Agreement as set forth in *Section 5.4* below. Payment of the Royalty Fees and all other fees due under this Agreement to us shall be made via electronic transfer of funds from the Depository Account described in *Section 5.4* below. To accomplish this electronic transfer of funds from the Depository Account, you must complete, sign and deliver to us a current Electronic Funds Transfer Authorization in the form attached to this Agreement as <u>Exhibit 3</u>.

As used in this Agreement, "Gross Sales" means all sales, money or things of value, received or receivable, directly or indirectly, by Franchisee on account of the Franchised Business, less applicable sales taxes and any documented refunds, credits and allowances given by you to customers in accordance with the Operations Manuals, but without deducting any of Franchisee's costs and expenses."

13. In Section 5.3, "<u>Advertising Fees</u>", the word "weekly" is hereby deleted and replaced with the word "monthly".

14. Section 5.4, "<u>Depository Account</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"You are required to establish, at the time you execute this Agreement, and maintain a depository account (the "Depository Account") at a bank or other federally insured financial institution (the "Depository"). You will initially deposit \$3,000 into the Depository Account and are required to maintain a balance of \$3,000 in the Depository Account at all times by replenishing the Depository Account to \$3,000 after Franchisor makes withdrawals. On the third (3<sup>rd</sup>) calendar day of each month, you must submit a report to us regarding the monthly period which ended on the last calendar day of the preceding month, including details on Gross Sales and other statistical data as specified from time to time by us or the Operations Manuals. We will withdraw funds electronically on the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) calendar day of each month from the Depository Account. The withdrawals are based upon the figures Franchisee reports and constitute Royalty Fees and Advertising Fees as described in Sections 5.2 and 5.3 of this Agreement. If you do not submit a report by the third (3<sup>rd</sup>) calendar day of any month, we may estimate the Royalty Fee and Advertising Fee based upon prior reports and withdraw the estimated amounts up to the entire \$3,000. We will return any overage within 30 days of our receipt of your report(s). We shall not be responsible to you for any interest charges for any overage collected due to your failure to timely report your sales. Additionally, we shall not be responsible for any bank service charges incurred by you which result in the withdrawal of funds from your Depository Account. You shall instruct the Depository to disburse each month to our designated bank, via electronic funds transfer by the close of business on the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) calendar day of each month (or (i) the preceding banking business day if the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) calendar day is a bank holiday, or (ii) the next business day if the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) calendar day is a Saturday or Sunday), the monthly Royalty Fee and Advertising Fee and other fees due for that month, which month shall end on the last calendar day of the preceding month. Under no circumstances shall such access to the Depository Account be deemed control or joint control of the Depository Account by Franchisor. You shall pay us Fifty Dollars (\$50.00) for each electronic funds transfer attempted from your Depository Account pursuant to this Section 5.4 that is returned for non-sufficient funds. You shall also reimburse us for all extraordinary costs incurred by us in collecting or attempting to collect funds due Franchisor from the Depository Account (for example, without limitation, charges for nonsufficient funds, uncollected funds or other discrepancies in deposits or maintenance of the Depository Account balance in accordance with the terms hereof). The Depository Account shall be established and maintained solely for the purposes set forth in this Section 5.4 and the Operations Manuals."

15. Section 5.5 "Location Review Fee", shall be deleted in its entirety.

16. Section 5.6 "<u>Lease Guarantee Fee</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

#### "Section 5.6 Construction Fee; Construction and Equipment Costs:

The Initial Deposit (see Section 4.a of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit 2), Reservation Fee (see Section 4.b of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit 2), exact Construction Fee, Access Fee, all Leasehold Improvements, Construction Costs, and Equipment Costs for us to build out and completely equip your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* at the Location are collectively referred to as the "NrGize Turn-Key Fees." The total NrGize Turn-Key Fees range from \$10,000.00 to \$150,000.00, and will depend upon a variety of factors, including but not limited to the amounts of the above mentioned Fees, Costs, and Improvements, each of which shall be documented to

you in detail prior to the Substantial Completion of the LA Fitness health club Location where the Franchised Business will be located. You will pay us or our designated affiliate Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000.00) of the Initial Franchisee Fee simultaneously with your execution of this Agreement, and you will pay the remaining Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00) of the Initial Franchise Fee to us or our designated affiliate no later than sixty (60) days prior to the Substantial Completion of the LA Fitness health club location where the Franchised Business will be located. You shall pay to us or our designated affiliate the full amount of the NrGize Turn-Key Fees no later than sixty (60) days prior to the Substantial Completion of the LA Fitness health club Location where the Franchised Business will be located. In no event shall Franchisee be eligible for any refund until after eighteen (18) months from the Effective Date of this Agreement. Should LA Fitness not obtain Substantial Completion for the LA Fitness health club Location where the Franchised Business will be located, or LA Fitness loses a potential construction site, we will work with you to find another suitable location within 180 days of notice of either of these issues. If no new site is found, Franchisee will be entitled to a refund of their \$10,000.00 Execution Payment of the Initial Franchise Fee no earlier than twenty four (24) months after the Effective Date of this Agreement. No portion of the NrGize Turn-Key Fees is refundable under any circumstances. Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant to the SUFLA, if Franchisee performs all obligations under the SUFLA, then 30 days after the expiration or termination of the SUFLA, Franchisor shall refund the Reservation Fee to Franchisee, without payment of interest. The Reservation Fee shall be applied against the cost of any damages at the Premises as a result of negligence, intentional vandalism or theft. If the cost of the repairs to the damages exceeds the amount of the Reservation Fee being held, Purchaser will not receive a refund and will be responsible to pay the difference.

The projected opening date is \_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Projected Opening Date"). The Projected Opening Date may change depending on various factors including, but not limited to, union vs. non-union labor, the availability and delivery of construction materials and equipment, timing in obtaining applicable permits, the availability and delivery of equipment, LA Fitness' construction timeline, and the delivery of the space by LA Fitness. Franchisee hereby acknowledges and agrees to the following: (i) the Projected Opening Date is a good faith estimate of Franchisor; (ii) Franchisor is not liable in any manner whatsoever to Franchisee for any delays or changes to the Projected Opening Date (including, but not limited to, no liability by Franchisor for any claims by Franchisee for incidental or consequential costs and damages incurred by Franchisee due to the delay); and (iii) any change to the Projected Opening Date will in no way affect the validity or enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Franchise Agreement.

17. Section 5.7 "<u>Lease Negotiation Fee</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety.

18. Section 5.8 "Lease Procurement Fee", shall be deleted in its entirety.

19. In Section 5.17, "<u>Late Report, Non-Sufficient Funds and Default Fees</u>", the word "weekly" is hereby deleted and replaced with the word "monthly".

20. Section 5.18 "<u>Audit Fees</u>", the first sentence of the second paragraph shall be deleted and replaced with the following: "You agree that we may have access to any computers utilized by you for such purposes and will have the ability at all times via modem to obtain daily, weekly, and monthly sales reports and other financial records that the POS System provides."

21. The following Section 8.5 "<u>Indemnification of LA Fitness</u>" shall be added to the end of Article 8 after Section 8.4: "To the extent applicable, you agree to indemnify and hold LA

Fitness, its parent, subsidiaries and affiliates, and their respective stockholders, directors, officers, attorneys, employees, agents successors and assignees harmless for, from and against any and all Claims, except for Claims successfully alleged to have resulted solely from LA Fitness' negligence or willful misconduct. Notwithstanding the foregoing, LA Fitness will have the right, at its option, to defend any such Claim, but you must reimburse LA Fitness upon demand for the costs of such defense."

22. Section 9.2 "<u>Authorized Products and Services</u>", paragraph "a," shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"a. You must limit your business at the Premises of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant as specified in the Operations Manuals, and agree that you will not, without our prior written approval, offer any menu items, beverages, products or services that are not authorized by us for *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* franchise owners, as set forth in the Operations Manuals. Any related or unrelated business not provided for in the Operations Manuals must have our prior written approval. At all times, your operation of the Franchised Business shall be subject to the Master Facility License Agreement (including Exhibit A thereto) and the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement."

23. Pursuant to Section 9.5 "<u>Maintenance of Insurance</u>", Franchisor and Franchisee hereby acknowledge and agree that the insurance policies must be issued by insurance carriers rated Best's AAA or above.

24. Pursuant to Section 9.5 "<u>Maintenance of Insurance</u>", Franchisor and Franchisee hereby acknowledge and agree that all liability insurance policies required under the Agreement must also name LA Fitness as an additional.

25. In Section 11.1, "<u>Maintenance of Records</u>", paragraph "a" shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"a. to submit to us on a Franchisor-approved form, on or before the close of business on the third  $(3^{rd})$  day of each month, a signed statement of monthly Gross Sales for the preceding month, which month ends on the last calendar day of the month."

26. In Section 11.1, "<u>Maintenance of Records</u>", paragraph "e.3" shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"3. cash disbursements journal and monthly payroll register;"

27. In Section 11.1, "<u>Maintenance of Records</u>", paragraph "e.9" shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"9. daily production, throwaway and finishing records and monthly inventories;"

28. Section 12.1 "<u>Prior Consent of Franchisor to Assignment</u>", paragraph "b," shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"b. We are entering into this Agreement based upon our knowledge of and faith in the ability of Franchisee. Therefore, this Agreement and all the rights granted by it are personal to Franchisee and may not be assigned or transferred by Franchisee without the prior written consent of Franchisor. Any attempt to assign or transfer: (i) any right under this Agreement or the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement; (ii) any interest in any entity holding an interest in this Agreement; (iii) all or any portion of the Franchised Business; or (iv) any assets, including but not limited to, equipment, leasehold improvements, and goodwill, now owned by Franchisee or later acquired by Franchisee during the Term of this Agreement that are located at and/or utilized in the restaurant operations at the Location, without the prior written consent of Franchisor, will be null and void; and will give us the right to terminate this Agreement and your rights under it, and the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement and your rights under it, in addition to any remedies which we may have for the breach of this covenant by reason of an attempted assignment or transfer."

29. The first paragraph of Section 12.3 "<u>Requirement for Consent to Transfer</u>", (before paragraph "a") shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following paragraph:

"If a transfer of: (i) any right under this Agreement or the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement; (ii) any interest in any entity holding an interest in this Agreement; (iii) all or any portion of the Franchised Business; or (iv) any assets, including but not limited to, equipment, leasehold improvements, and goodwill, now owned by Franchisee or later acquired by Franchisee during the Term of this Agreement that are located at and/or utilized in the restaurant operations at the Location, is proposed and Franchisor does not exercise its right to purchase pursuant to the preceding Section, then Franchisor will consent to the transfer provided that:"

30. In Section 12.6 "<u>Restrictions on Security Interest and Subfranchising</u>", the word "rent" is hereby deleted and replaced with the words "access related fees".

31. In the first paragraph in Article 13 "<u>Renewal of Franchise</u>", the phrase "ten (10) years" is hereby deleted and replaced with the with the phrase "five (5) years."

32. In the first paragraph in Article 13 "<u>Renewal of Franchise</u>", the word "lease" is hereby deleted and replaced with the words "facility license agreement".

33. Paragraph "d" in Article 13 "<u>Renewal of Franchise</u>", is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"d. You must have entered into a new facility license agreement for your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant for a term co-extensive with the term of the renewal, or you must have secured and developed suitable substitute premises approved by us;"

34. Paragraph "b" in Section 14.1 "<u>Default; Termination</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"b. If Franchisee fails to pay, perform, observe or comply with any of Franchisee's duties and obligations under this Agreement or the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, including failure to pay: (i) any sum due Franchisor under this Agreement (including, but not limited to, the Initial Franchise Fee,

NrGize Invoice Fees (including any required installment payments of the NrGize Invoice Fees), Royalty Fees and Advertising Fees); or (ii) any sum to Kahala Holdings, L.L.C under the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement; or if Franchisee fails to carry out in all respects its obligations under any equipment agreement, promissory note, vender account, conditional sales contract or other contract materially affecting the Franchised Business, to which the Franchisee is a party or by which Franchisee is bound, whether or not we are a party thereto; or failure to maintain and utilize the security cameras, devices and applicable security software, if any, that are a part of the POS System as designated in the Operations Manuals;"

35. Paragraph "c" in Section 14.1 "<u>Default; Termination</u>", shall be added as follows:

"c. If the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement for the Premises of the Franchised Business or the Master Facility License Agreement is terminated or expires, then this Agreement will terminate effective immediately upon the giving of notice pursuant to Article 15;

36. Paragraph "b" in Section 14.2 "<u>Opportunity to Cure</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"b. <u>Seven Day Cure Period</u> - A seven (7) day cure period will apply if you fail, refuse, or neglect to pay when due to us any monies owing to us or our affiliate(s) (including, but not limited to, Royalty Fees, Advertising Fees and amounts due under the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement), or to any Advertising Fund, or if you fail to maintain the insurance coverage set forth in this Agreement, or if you fail to maintain and utilize the security cameras, devices and applicable security software, if any, that are a part of the POS System.

37. Paragraph "f" in Section 14.2 "<u>Opportunity to Cure</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"f. No Cure Period - No cure will be available: (1) if Franchisee fails to pay the Initial Franchise Fee when due in accordance with Section 5.1 of this Agreement or all or any portion of the NrGize Invoice Fees when due in accordance with Section 5.5 of this Agreement; (2) if Franchisee is in default under or breaches its covenants or obligations under Sections 3.1, 14.1(a). 14.1(c), 14.1(f), 14.1(g), 14.1(h), 14.1(n) or 14.1(o), or (3) if Franchisee intentionally underreports monthly Gross Sales, falsifies financial data, fails to promptly provide upon Franchisor's request financial data and records specified in this Agreement, or otherwise commits an act of fraud with respect to its rights or obligations under this Agreement; or (4) if Franchisee is in default under or breaches its covenant against competition set forth in Section 14.6 of this Agreement; or (5) if Franchisee is in default under or breaches its covenant to observe and obey all applicable laws, rules, ordinances and regulations set forth in Section 9.4, or (6) if Franchisee repeatedly fails to comply with the provisions of this Agreement, whether or not subsequently cured; or (7) if Franchisee, having twice previously cured a default or breach of this Agreement, commits the same breach or default again."

38. The following paragraph "j" shall be added to Section 14.5 "<u>Effect of Termination</u> or <u>Expiration</u>" after the end of paragraph "i":

"j. Immediately vacate the Premises at which the Franchised Business is operated and otherwise comply with all applicable requirements in the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement. When vacating the Premises, all machinery, equipment, furniture, fixtures, improvements, tools, and signs must be left at the Premises as they will immediately be owned by and become the property of LA Fitness pursuant to the Bill of Sale that is attached as <u>Exhibit 11</u> to the Franchise Agreement, and incorporated herein by reference, and must be signed simultaneously with the Franchise Agreement."

39. Paragraph "c" in Section 14.6 "<u>Covenant Not to Compete; Conflicting Interests</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"с. During the term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years after its termination for any cause, Franchisee shall not engage in any business in competition with any NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant. The provisions of this Agreement bind Franchisee in any capacity, including as a franchisee, sole proprietor, partner, limited partner, member, employer, franchisor, stockholder, officer, director or employee. For purposes of this paragraph, "competition" means the franchising, ownership, or operation of a restaurant similar to a NrGize Lifestyle Cafe outlet at the location identified in Section 1.1 of this Agreement, or within a geographical area consisting of: (1) during the term of this Agreement, anywhere else; and (2) after termination of this Agreement, a ten (10) mile radius from the location of any NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant of Franchisor, its third party licensees or its third party franchisees, including the restaurant licensed by this Agreement, or within a ten (10) mile radius of any LA The terms "NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant" and Fitness health club. "NrGize Lifestyle Cafe outlet" include not only the restaurants and outlets now in existence, but also those established at a later date. The term of this covenant will be extended by any time consumed in litigation to enforce it in both trial and appellate courts. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that the restrictions in this paragraph are excessive in time, geographic scope, or otherwise, the court may reduce the restriction to the level that provides the maximum restriction allowed by law."

40. Section 16.11 "<u>Cross Default</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "A default by Franchisee under this Agreement will be deemed a default of all Franchise Agreements or Single-Unit Facility License Agreements between Franchisee and Franchisor (and/or any of its predecessors or affiliates.) A default by Franchisee under any other Franchise Agreement or Single-Unit Facility License Agreement between Franchisor (and/or any of its predecessors or affiliates), and Franchisee will be deemed a default under this Agreement. A default by the Guarantor(s) of this Agreement or any other Franchise Agreement Guaranty of Contract (including Franchisor and/or any of its predecessors), will be deemed a default of this Agreement."

41. Section 16.12 "<u>Cross Termination</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: If this Agreement is terminated as a result of a default by Franchisee, Franchisor may, at its option, elect to terminate any or all other franchise agreements and Single-Unit Facility License agreements between Franchisee and Franchisor (and/or any of its

predecessors or affiliates.) If any other franchise agreement or Single-Unit Facility License agreement between Franchisee and Franchisor (and/or any of its predecessors or affiliates), is terminated as a result of a default by Franchisee, Franchisor may, at its option, elect to terminate this Agreement. It is agreed that an incurable or uncured default under this Agreement or any other franchise agreement or Single-Unit Facility License agreement between Franchisee and Franchisor (and/or any of its predecessors or affiliates), will be grounds for termination of this Agreement and/or any and all franchise agreements and Single-Unit Facility License agreements between Franchisee and Franchise or opportunity to cure."

42. Section 16.13 "<u>No Third Party Beneficiaries</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "Except as set forth in Section 8, this Agreement is not intended to benefit any other person or entity except the named parties hereto and no other person or entity shall be entitled to any rights hereunder by virtue of so-called "third party beneficiary rights" or otherwise."

43. In paragraph "i" of Section 17.1 "<u>Certain Representations and Warrants of</u> <u>Franchisee</u>", the words "rent payments due under lease obligations" are hereby deleted and replaced with the words "access fees."

44. The following paragraph "I" shall be added to the end of Section 17.1 "<u>Certain</u> <u>Representations and Warrants of Franchisee</u>", after paragraph "k":

"I. Neither we nor Kahala Holdings, LLC shall have any liability to you for any delays in the construction, equipping, and ultimate delivery to you of the completely built-out *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant cover by this Agreement."

45. Paragraph "e" of Section 17.3 "<u>Acknowledgements of Franchisee</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"e. Franchisee acknowledges receipt of our Disclosure Document fourteen (14) days prior to the execution of this Agreement or your payment of any monies to us or our agent (or sooner if required by applicable state law) and acknowledges that if Franchisee has not opened their location due to LA Fitness' construction timeline, and fees increase from year to year resulting in new disclosure documents, Franchisee will abide by the Disclosure Documents provided and not newer versions thereof. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that this Amendment grants a deferred payment plan of the Initial Franchisee Fee conditioned upon Substantial Completion of the LA Fitness facility.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_/\_\_\_\_"

46. Paragraph "g" of Section 17.3 "<u>Acknowledgements of Franchisee</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"g. You acknowledge that this is a "turn key" franchise opportunity, and as detailed in *Section 2.3* of this Agreement, we, or our affiliate(s), will be overseeing and managing the on site construction process and equipping of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* Restaurant at the Location. You further acknowledge, as detailed in Section 5.5 of this Agreement, you will pay us or our designated affiliate the full Initial Franchisee Fee plus the full amount of the NrGize Turn-Key

Fees simultaneously with your execution of this Agreement, and no portion of the NrGize Turn-Key Fees is refundable under any circumstances. Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant to the SUFLA, if Franchisee performs all obligations under the SUFLA, then 30 days after the expiration or termination of the SUFLA, Franchisor shall refund the Reservation Fee to Franchisee, without payment of interest. The Reservation Fee shall be applied against the cost of any damages at the Premises as a result of negligence, intentional vandalism or theft. If the cost of the repairs to the damages exceeds the amount of the Reservation Fee being held, Purchaser will not receive a refund and will be responsible to pay the difference.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_/\_\_\_"

47. The following paragraph "n" shall be added to the end of Section 17.3 "<u>Acknowledgements of Franchisee</u>", after paragraph "m":

"g. Franchisee acknowledges that, pursuant to the Master Facility License Agreement, LA Fitness granted certain rights to the Location to Kahala Holdings, LLC and that, pursuant to the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, Kahala Holdings, LLC in turn granted certain rights to Franchisee. Franchisee further acknowledges that, if the Master Facility License Agreement is terminated for any reason, the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement will terminate and Franchisee must immediately vacate the Premises.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_/\_\_\_"

48. The following paragraph "o" shall be added to the end of Section 17.3 "<u>Acknowledgements of Franchisee</u>", after paragraph "n":

"h. Franchisee acknowledges that, pursuant to the Master Facility License Agreement, LA Fitness may cease operating any LA Fitness health club at any time and, if it does so, the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement will terminate. Franchisee further acknowledges that, in that event, Franchisee must immediately vacate the Premises. When vacating the Premises, all machinery, equipment, furniture, fixtures, improvements, tools, and signs must be left at the Premises as they will immediately be owned by and become the property of LA Fitness pursuant to the Bill of Sale that is attached as an amendment to the Franchise Agreement and must be signed simultaneously with the Franchise Agreement.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_/\_\_\_"

49. The following paragraph "p" shall be added to the end of Section 17.3 "<u>Acknowledgements of Franchisee</u>", after paragraph "o":

"i. Franchisee acknowledges that the Master Facility License Agreement may restrict its rights as an *NrGize* franchisee. Franchisee hereby expressly acknowledges that it has carefully reviewed the Master Facility License Agreement at lease five (5) business days prior to signing this Agreement (a copy of the Master Facility License Agreement is attached as Exhibit D to the

Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, which is attached to the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* Uniform Franchise Disclosure Document as Exhibit H.)

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_"

48. The following applies only for Franchisees that are Maryland residents and Franchisees whose franchises will be operated in Maryland: All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of liability are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on this \_\_\_\_\_day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_.

FRANCHISOR:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	 
Name:	
Title:	

FRANCHISEE:

\_\_\_\_\_, a(n) \_\_\_\_\_

By:			
Name:			
Title:			

## EXHIBIT 11

## AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS FOR STORES TO BE LOCATED WITHIN LA FITNESS HEALTH CLUBS

## (APPLICABLE FOR ONLY CONVERSIONS OF STORES LOCATED WITHIN LA FITNESS HEALTH CLUBS)

### EXHIBIT 11

#### AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND RELATED FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS FOR STORES TO BE LOCATED WITHIN LA FITNESS HEALTH CLUBS (Conversions Only)

THIS AMENDMENT (the "Amendment") dated \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_, to the Franchise Agreement dated \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_ for the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe location at \_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Franchise Agreement" or "Agreement") by and between Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company, doing business as "*NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*" ("Franchisor") and \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Franchisee"), is entered into by such parties to amend the Agreement as set forth herein. To the extent this Amendment contains terms and conditions that differ from those contained in the Agreement, this Amendment shall control. The parties agree that a concept or principle provided in one Section of this Amendment shall apply and be incorporated into all other provisions of the Franchise Agreement in which the concept or principle is also applicable, notwithstanding the absence of any specific cross reference thereto. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein will have the same meanings ascribed to such terms in the Agreement.

### The following shall apply to LA Fitness health club locations:

1. The following <u>paragraph G</u> shall be added to the end of the <u>Recitals</u> section after paragraph "F":

"G. Kahala Holdings, LLC, an affiliate of Franchisor, and FITNESS INTERNATIONAL, LLC (formerly L.A. Fitness International, LLC), a California limited liability company ("LA Fitness") entered into a Master Facility License Agreement, as amended (collectively, the "Master Facility License Agreement") pursuant to which Kahala Holdings, LLC can provide or Franchisor can grant third parties the right to provide certain services at the LA Fitness health clubs. Franchisor is currently issuing franchises to others for the operation of outlets in LA Fitness health clubs."

2. Section 1.4 "Term of Agreement", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "The term of this Agreement will commence on the Effective Date of this Agreement and will terminate on the earlier of the following: (i) the five (5) year anniversary of the date of this Agreement; (ii) the expiration of the term of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement for the Premises of the Franchised Business, including any renewal options thereto (the "Term"); (iii) the termination or expiration of the Master Facility License Agreement; or (iv) the date that LA Fitness ceases operating a health club at the location identified in Section 1.1 above unless terminated earlier in accordance with *Article 14* of this Agreement or any other provisions of this Agreement, or renewed in accordance with *Article 13* of this Agreement.

3. Section 2.1 "<u>Location Selection Procedures</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: You must select an LA Fitness health club Location approved by us in writing, for the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant within twenty-four (24) months after the date of this Agreement. If an acceptable Location for your restaurant in an LA Fitness health club is not secured within twenty-four (24) months after the date of this Agreement, then we may terminate this Agreement by giving you written notice to that effect. We will have no obligation to

refund to you all or any part of your Initial Franchise Fee (as defined in *Section 5.1* of this Agreement) in the event of such a termination.

4. Section 2.2 "<u>Lease and Purchase Approval</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"Section 2.2 <u>Facility License Agreements</u> Once an acceptable LA Fitness club location has been identified to locate your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant, you will enter into an agreement with Kahala Holdings, LLC in the form attached as Exhibit 2 (the "Single-Unit Facility License Agreement"), which will grant you access to the Location. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, you acknowledge that the operation of the Franchised Business at the Location is subject to all terms and conditions in the Master Facility License Agreement and the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement."

5. Section 2.3 "<u>Construction</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"a. As this is a "turn key" franchise purchase, we will oversee and manage all aspects of the on-site construction and equipping of your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant to assure it meets our and LA Fitness' specifications and standards.

the b. You acknowledge that design and appearance of the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant is part of the System, and that uniformity is essential to the success of the System. Therefore, you agree that after the restaurant has been constructed, you will not make any material changes to the building plan or design or its appearance without our prior written consent, and you will, at your expense, maintain the interior and exterior decor of the restaurant in a first class condition and in such manner as we may reasonably prescribe from time to time. In addition to any remodeling required by us upon the renewal of this Agreement and upon the assignment of the Franchised Business, as set forth in Sections 12 and 13, respectively, you will, upon thirty (30) days written notice from us, and at your sole cost and expense, remodel and make all improvements and alterations in and to your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant as reasonably determined by us to reflect the then-current NrGize Lifestyle Cafe specifications, standards, format, image and appearance."

6. Section 2.4 "<u>Signage</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "You shall prominently display in a sign easily visible to consumers at the Franchised Business, the following words: "Each NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Restaurant is Independently Owned and Operated"."

7. Section 2.5 "<u>Relocation</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety.

8. Section 2.6 "<u>Restricted Use of Restaurant Location</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "You acknowledge that the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement does not grant you a possessory interest to the Location. You shall not wholly or partially sublet, transfer, assign, or otherwise dispose of the Location without our prior written consent. The Location may be used only for the operation of an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant in compliance with this Agreement, the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, and the Operations Manuals. Franchisee shall not conduct other businesses or activities on the Location without our prior written consent."

9. Section 3.1 "<u>Commencing Operations</u>", Paragraph "c," shall be deleted in its entirety.

10. Section 3.3 "<u>Fixtures, Furnishings, and Equipment</u>" shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"Section 3.3 <u>Equipment</u> Unless otherwise approved by us in writing, and if applicable, you will (1) acquire equipment to be used in the operation of the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* Franchised Business that is in accordance with the standards and specifications set forth by us in the Operations Manuals or other documents provided by, or approved by, us as they presently exist or exist in the future; and (2) procure the equipment from suppliers or vendors previously approved in writing by us."

11. Pursuant to Section 5.1 <u>"Initial Franchise Fee"</u>, Franchisor and Franchisee hereby acknowledge and agree that the Initial Franchise Fee due and payable by Franchisee to Franchisor for the conversion of an existing store within an LA Fitness health club to an *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* located within the same LA Fitness health club shall be Fifteen Thousand Dollars (\$15,000).

12. Section 5.2, "<u>Royalty Fee and Surcharge</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"For the period of time commencing on the later of the date that you sign this Agreement or the date the store opens to the public, and for the duration of the Term of this Agreement, you must pay to us a monthly royalty fee equal to (the "Royalty Fee"). In the event of a unilateral termination of this Agreement by you, or in the event of a termination arising from or related to your default under this Agreement, we shall be entitled to, in addition to any sums owing through termination, and any other sums allowed by law, the average of the prior 6-month (or if less than 6 months, the Term) royalties multiplied by the remaining number of months on the initial Term of this Agreement, or any extension thereof, less a discount of eight percent (8%). The fixed monthly Royalty Fee will be increased annually on January 1<sup>st</sup> and compounded at a rate of 3%. In our sole discretion, we may charge, addition to the Royalty Fee, a surcharge of up to \$10 per week if your franchised business is located in a state that imposed additional reporting requirements on a franchisor ("Surcharge"). The Royalty Fee and applicable Surcharge shall be due and payable on the 15th calendar day of each month.

#### OR

In the event we do not have current card swipe information from LA Fitness, including, but not limited to, newly constructed LA Fitness locations, your Royalty Fee will be calculated as follows: (i) for the period of time commencing on the later of the date that you sign this Agreement or the date the store opens to the public, and for first twelve (12) months of this Agreement, you must pay to us a monthly royalty fee equal to Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars (\$750.00) (the "Royalty Fee"); and (ii) for the period of time commencing on the later of the first day of the thirteenth (13<sup>th</sup>) month after you sign this Agreement or the date the store opens to the public, and for the Term of this Agreement, you must pay to us a monthly royalty fee based upon the Adjusted Average Number of Daily Member Check-ins as follows:

Adj. Avg. Daily Check-Ins	Fixed Royalty Fee
0 - 800 801 – 1400 1401 – 2000	\$300.00 \$750.00 \$1,000.00
2001 and up	\$1,250.00

In the event that the Adjusted Average Number of Daily Member Check-ins for the first twelve (12) months is between 0 – 800, Franchisee will not be reimbursed the difference in the Fixed Royalty Fee. Also, in the event of a unilateral termination of this Agreement by you, or in the event of a termination arising from or related to your default under this Agreement, we shall be entitled to, in addition to any sums owing through termination, and any other sums allowed by law, the average of the prior 6-month (or if less than 6 months, the Term) royalties multiplied by the remaining number of months on the initial Term of this Agreement, or any extension thereof, less a discount of eight percent (8%). The fixed monthly Royalty Fee will be increased annually on January 1<sup>st</sup> and compounded at a rate of 3%. The Royalty Fee is due and payable on the 15th calendar day of each month.

You are required to report Gross Sales to our designated accounting office via the Internet at <u>http://franchisee.NrGizejuice.com</u> as set forth in the Operations Manuals, by the close of business on the third day of each month for the preceding month. You shall be required to establish a Depository Account at the time you execute this Agreement as set forth in *Section 5.4* below. Payment of the Royalty Fees and all other fees due under this Agreement to us shall be made via electronic transfer of funds from the Depository Account described in *Section 5.4* below. To accomplish this electronic transfer of funds from the Depository Account, you must complete, sign and deliver to us a current Electronic Funds Transfer Authorization in the form attached to this Agreement as <u>Exhibit 3</u>.

As used in this Agreement, "Gross Sales" means all sales, money or things of value, received or receivable, directly or indirectly, by Franchisee on account of the Franchised Business, less applicable sales taxes and any documented refunds, credits and allowances given by you to customers in accordance with the Operations Manuals, but without deducting any of Franchisee's costs and expenses."

13. In Section 5.3, "<u>Advertising Fees</u>", the word "weekly" is hereby deleted and replaced with the word "monthly".

14. Section 5.4, "<u>Depository Account</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"You are required to establish, at the time you execute this Agreement, and maintain a depository account (the "Depository Account") at a bank or other federally insured financial institution (the "Depository"). You will initially deposit \$3,000 into the Depository Account and are required to maintain a balance of \$3,000 in the Depository Account at all times by replenishing the Depository Account to \$3,000 after Franchisor makes withdrawals. On the third (3<sup>rd</sup>) calendar day of each month, you must submit a report to us regarding the monthly period which ended on the last calendar day of the preceding month, including details on Gross Sales and other statistical data as specified from time to time by us or the Operations Manuals. We will withdraw funds electronically

on the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) calendar day of each month from the Depository Account. The withdrawals are based upon the figures Franchisee reports and constitute Royalty Fees and Advertising Fees as described in Sections 5.2 and 5.3 of this Agreement. If you do not submit a report by the third (3rd) calendar day of any month, we may estimate the Royalty Fee and Advertising Fee based upon prior reports and withdraw the estimated amounts up to the entire \$3,000. We will return any overage within 30 days of our receipt of your report(s). We shall not be responsible to you for any interest charges for any overage collected due to your failure to timely report your sales. Additionally, we shall not be responsible for any bank service charges incurred by you which result in the withdrawal of funds from your Depository Account. You shall instruct the Depository to disburse each month to our designated bank, via electronic funds transfer by the close of business on the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) calendar day of each month (or (i) the preceding banking business day if the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) calendar day is a bank holiday, or (ii) the next business day if the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) calendar day is a Saturday or Sunday), the monthly Royalty Fee and Advertising Fee and other fees due for that month, which month shall end on the last calendar day of the preceding month. Under no circumstances shall such access to the Depository Account be deemed control or joint control of the Depository Account by Franchisor. You shall pay us Fifty Dollars (\$50.00) for each electronic funds transfer attempted from your Depository Account pursuant to this Section 5.4 that is returned for non-sufficient funds. You shall also reimburse us for all extraordinary costs incurred by us in collecting or attempting to collect funds due Franchisor from the Depository Account (for example, without limitation, charges for nonsufficient funds, uncollected funds or other discrepancies in deposits or maintenance of the Depository Account balance in accordance with the terms hereof). The Depository Account shall be established and maintained solely for the purposes set forth in this Section 5.4 and the Operations Manuals."

15. Section 5.5 "<u>Location Review Fee</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety.

16. Section 5.6 "<u>Lease Guarantee Fee</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

#### "Section 5.6 Construction Fee; Construction and Equipment Costs:

The Initial Deposit (see Section 4.a of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit 2), Reservation Fee (see Section 4.b of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit 2), exact Construction Fee, Access Fee, all Leasehold Improvements, Construction Costs, and Equipment Costs for us to convert the existing restaurant to your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe at the Location are collectively referred to as the "NrGize Conversion Turn-Key Fees." The total NrGize Conversion Turn-Key Fees are . You will pay us or our designated affiliate the full Initial Franchisee Fee of \$ \$15,000 plus the full amount of the NrGize Conversion Turn-Key Fees simultaneously with your execution of this Agreement. No portion of the NrGize Conversion Turn-Key Fees is refundable under any circumstances. Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant to the SUFLA, if Franchisee performs all obligations under the SUFLA, then 30 days after the expiration or termination of the SUFLA, Franchisor shall refund the Reservation Fee to Franchisee, without payment of interest. The Reservation Fee shall be applied against the cost of any damages at the Premises as a result of negligence, intentional vandalism or theft. If the cost of the repairs to the damages exceeds the amount of the Reservation Fee being held. Purchaser will not receive a refund and will be responsible to pay the difference.

The projected opening date is \_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Projected Opening Date"). The Projected Opening Date may change depending on various factors including, but not limited to, union vs. non-union labor, the availability and delivery of construction materials and equipment, timing in obtaining applicable permits, the availability and delivery of equipment, and the delivery of the space by LA Fitness. Franchisee hereby acknowledges and agrees to the following: (i) the Projected Opening Date is a good faith estimate of Franchisor; (ii) Franchisor is not liable in any manner whatsoever to Franchisee for any delays or changes to the Projected Opening Date (including, but not limited to, no liability by Franchisor for any claims by Franchisee for incidental or consequential costs and damages incurred by Franchisee due to the delay); and (iii) any change to the Projected Opening Date will in no way affect the validity or enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Franchise Agreement.

17. Section 5.7 "<u>Lease Negotiation Fee</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety.

18. Section 5.8 "<u>Lease Procurement Fee</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety.

19. In Section 5.17, "Late Report, Non-Sufficient Funds and Default Fees", the word "weekly" is hereby deleted and replaced with the word "monthly".

20. Section 5.118, "<u>Audit Fees</u>", the first sentence of the second paragraph shall be deleted and replaced with the following: "You agree that we may have access to any computers utilized by you for such purposes and will have the ability at all times via modem to obtain daily, weekly, and monthly sales reports and other financial records that the POS System provides."

21. The following Section 8.5 "<u>Indemnification of LA Fitness</u>" shall be added to the end of Article 8 after Section 8.4: "To the extent applicable, you agree to indemnify and hold LA Fitness, its parent, subsidiaries and affiliates, and their respective stockholders, directors, officers, attorneys, employees, agents successors and assignees harmless for, from and against any and all Claims, except for Claims successfully alleged to have resulted solely from LA Fitness' negligence or willful misconduct. Notwithstanding the foregoing, LA Fitness will have the right, at its option, to defend any such Claim, but you must reimburse LA Fitness upon demand for the costs of such defense."

22. Section 9.2 "<u>Authorized Products and Services</u>", paragraph "a," shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"а. You must limit your business at the Premises vour of NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant as specified in the Operations Manuals, and agree that you will not, without our prior written approval, offer any menu items, beverages, products or services that are not authorized by us for NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchise owners, as set forth in the Operations Manuals. Any related or unrelated business not provided for in the Operations Manuals must have our prior written approval. At all times, your operation of the Franchised Business shall be subject to the Master Facility License Agreement (including Exhibit A thereto) and the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement."

23. Pursuant to Section 9.5 "<u>Maintenance of Insurance</u>", Franchisor and Franchisee hereby acknowledge and agree that the insurance policies must be issued by insurance carriers rated Best's AAA or above.

24. Pursuant to Section 9.5 "<u>Maintenance of Insurance</u>", Franchisor and Franchisee hereby acknowledge and agree that all liability insurance policies required under the Agreement must also name LA Fitness as an additional.

25. In Section 11.1, "<u>Maintenance of Records</u>", paragraph "a" shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"a. to submit to us on a Franchisor-approved form, on or before the close of business on the third  $(3^{rd})$  day of each month, a signed statement of monthly Gross Sales for the preceding month, which month ends on the last calendar day of the month."

26. In Section 11.1, "<u>Maintenance of Records</u>", paragraph "e.3" shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"3. cash disbursements journal and monthly payroll register;"

27. In Section 11.1, "<u>Maintenance of Records</u>", paragraph "e.9" shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"9. daily production, throwaway and finishing records and monthly inventories;"

28. Section 12.1 "<u>Prior Consent of Franchisor to Assignment</u>", paragraph "b," shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"b. We are entering into this Agreement based upon our knowledge of and faith in the ability of Franchisee. Therefore, this Agreement and all the rights granted by it are personal to Franchisee and may not be assigned or transferred by Franchisee without the prior written consent of Franchisor. Any attempt to assign or transfer: (i) any right under this Agreement or the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement; (ii) any interest in any entity holding an interest in this Agreement; (iii) all or any portion of the Franchised Business; or (iv) any assets, including but not limited to, equipment, leasehold improvements, and goodwill, now owned by Franchisee or later acquired by Franchisee during the Term of this Agreement that are located at and/or utilized in the restaurant operations at the Location, without the prior written consent of Franchisor, will be null and void; and will give us the right to terminate this Agreement and your rights under it, and the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement and your rights under it, in addition to any remedies which we may have for the breach of this covenant by reason of an attempted assignment or transfer."

29. The first paragraph of Section 12.3 "<u>Requirement for Consent to Transfer</u>", (before paragraph "a") shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following paragraph:

"If a transfer of: (i) any right under this Agreement or the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement; (ii) any interest in any entity holding an interest in this Agreement; (iii) all or any portion of the Franchised Business; or (iv) any assets, including but not limited to, equipment, leasehold improvements, and goodwill, now owned by Franchisee or later acquired by Franchisee during the Term of this Agreement that are located at and/or utilized in the restaurant operations at the Location, is proposed and Franchisor does not exercise its right to purchase pursuant to the preceding Section, then Franchisor will consent to the transfer provided that:"

30. In Section 12.6 "<u>Restrictions on Security Interest and Subfranchising</u>", the word "rent" is hereby deleted and replaced with the words "access related fees".

31. In the first paragraph in Article 13 "<u>Renewal of Franchise</u>", the phrase "ten (10) years" is hereby deleted and replaced with the with the phrase "five (5) years."

32. In the first paragraph in Article 13 "<u>Renewal of Franchise</u>", the word "lease" is hereby deleted and replaced with the words "facility license agreement".

33. Paragraph "d" in Article 13 "<u>Renewal of Franchise</u>", is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"d. You must have entered into a new facility license agreement for your *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant for a term co-extensive with the term of the renewal, or you must have secured and developed suitable substitute premises approved by us;"

34. Paragraph "b" in Section 14.1 "<u>Default; Termination</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"b. If Franchisee fails to pay, perform, observe or comply with any of Franchisee's duties and obligations under this Agreement or the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, including failure to pay: (i) any sum due Franchisor under this Agreement (including, but not limited to, the Initial Franchise Fee, NrGize Invoice Fees (including any required installment payments of the NrGize Invoice Fees), Royalty Fees and Advertising Fees); or (ii) any sum to Kahala Holdings, L.L.C under the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement; or if Franchisee fails to carry out in all respects its obligations under any equipment agreement, promissory note, vender account, conditional sales contract or other contract materially affecting the Franchised Business, to which the Franchisee is a party or by which Franchisee is bound, whether or not we are a party thereto; or failure to maintain and utilize the security cameras, devices and applicable security software, if any, that are a part of the POS System as designated in the Operations Manuals;"

35. Paragraph "c" in Section 14.1 "<u>Default; Termination</u>", shall be added as follows:

"c. If the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement for the Premises of the Franchised Business or the Master Facility License Agreement is terminated or expires;"

36. Paragraph "b" in Section 14.2 "<u>Opportunity to Cure</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"b. <u>Seven Day Cure Period</u> - A seven (7) day cure period will apply if you fail, refuse, or neglect to pay when due to us any monies owing to us or our affiliate(s) (including, but not limited to, Royalty Fees, Advertising Fees and amounts due under the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement), or to any

Advertising Fund, or if you fail to maintain the insurance coverage set forth in this Agreement, or if you fail to maintain and utilize the security cameras, devices and applicable security software, if any, that are a part of the POS System.

37. Paragraph "f" in Section 14.2 "<u>Opportunity to Cure</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"f. No Cure Period - No cure will be available: (1) if Franchisee fails to pay the Initial Franchise Fee when due in accordance with Section 5.1 of this Agreement or all or any portion of the NrGize Invoice Fees when due in accordance with Section 5.5 of this Agreement; (2) if Franchisee is in default under or breaches its covenants or obligations under Sections 3.1, 14.1(a), 14.1(c), 14.1(f), 14.1(g), 14.1(h), 14.1(n) or 14.1(o), or (3) if Franchisee intentionally underreports monthly Gross Sales, falsifies financial data, fails to promptly provide upon Franchisor's request financial data and records specified in this Agreement, or otherwise commits an act of fraud with respect to its rights or obligations under this Agreement; or (4) if Franchisee is in default under or breaches its covenant against competition set forth in Section 14.6 of this Agreement; or (5) if Franchisee is in default under or breaches its covenant to observe and obey all applicable laws, rules, ordinances and regulations set forth in Section 9.4, or (6) if Franchisee repeatedly fails to comply with the provisions of this Agreement, whether or not subsequently cured; or (7) if Franchisee, having twice previously cured a default or breach of this Agreement, commits the same breach or default again."

38. The following paragraph "j" shall be added to Section 14.5 "<u>Effect of Termination</u> or <u>Expiration</u>" after the end of paragraph "i":

"j. Immediately vacate the Premises at which the Franchised Business is operated and otherwise comply with all applicable requirements in the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement. When vacating the Premises, all machinery, equipment, furniture, fixtures, improvements, tools, and signs must be left at the Premises as they will immediately be owned by and become the property of LA Fitness pursuant to the Bill of Sale that is attached as <u>Exhibit 12</u> to the Franchise Agreement, and incorporated herein by reference, and must be signed simultaneously with the Franchise Agreement."

39. Paragraph "c" in Section 14.6 "<u>Covenant Not to Compete; Conflicting Interests</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"c. During the term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years after its termination for any cause, Franchisee shall not engage in any business in competition with any *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant. The provisions of this Agreement bind Franchisee in any capacity, including as a franchisee, sole proprietor, partner, limited partner, member, employer, franchisor, stockholder, officer, director or employee. For purposes of this paragraph, "competition" means the franchising, ownership, or operation of a restaurant similar to a *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* outlet at the location identified in *Section 1.1* of this Agreement, or within a geographical area consisting of: (1) during the term of this Agreement, anywhere else; and (2) after termination of this Agreement, a ten (10) mile radius from the location of any *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant of Franchisor, its third party licensees or its third party franchisees, including the restaurant licensed by this Agreement, or within a ten (10) mile radius of any LA Fitness health club. The terms "*NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant" and "*NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* outlet" include not only the restaurants and outlets now in existence, but also those established at a later date. The term of this covenant will be extended by any time consumed in litigation to enforce it in both trial and appellate courts. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that the restrictions in this paragraph are excessive in time, geographic scope, or otherwise, the court may reduce the restriction to the level that provides the maximum restriction allowed by law."

40. Section 16.11 "<u>Cross Default</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "A default by Franchisee under this Agreement will be deemed a default of all Franchise Agreements or Single-Unit Facility License Agreements between Franchisee and Franchisor (and/or any of its predecessors or affiliates.) A default by Franchisee under any other Franchise Agreement or Single-Unit Facility License Agreement between Franchisor (and/or any of its predecessors or affiliates), and Franchisee will be deemed a default under this Agreement. A default by the Guarantor(s) of this Agreement or any other Franchise Agreement Guaranty of Contract (including Franchisor and/or any of its predecessors), will be deemed a default of this Agreement."

41. Section 16.12 "Cross Termination", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: If this Agreement is terminated as a result of a default by Franchisee, Franchisor may, at its option, elect to terminate any or all other franchise agreements and Single-Unit Facility License agreements between Franchisee and Franchisor (and/or any of its predecessors or affiliates.) If any other franchise agreement or Single-Unit Facility License agreement between Franchisee and Franchisor (and/or any of its predecessors or affiliates), is terminated as a result of a default by Franchisee, Franchisor may, at its option, elect to terminate this Agreement. It is agreed that an incurable or uncured default under this Agreement or any other franchise agreement or Single-Unit Facility License agreement between franchise agreement or any other franchise agreement or Single-Unit Facility License agreement between franchise agreement and/or any of its predecessors or affiliates), will be grounds for termination of this Agreement and/or any and all franchise agreements and Single-Unit Facility License agreements between Franchisee and Franchisor (and/or any of its predecessors or affiliates), without additional notice or opportunity to cure."

42. Section 16.13 "<u>No Third Party Beneficiaries</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: "Except as set forth in Section 8, this Agreement is not intended to benefit any other person or entity except the named parties hereto and no other person or entity shall be entitled to any rights hereunder by virtue of so-called "third party beneficiary rights" or otherwise."

43. In paragraph "i" of Section 17.1 "<u>Certain Representations and Warrants of Franchisee</u>", the words "rent payments due under lease obligations" are hereby deleted and replaced with the words "access fees."

44. The following paragraph "I" shall be added to the end of Section 17.1 "<u>Certain</u> <u>Representations and Warrants of Franchisee</u>", after paragraph "k":

"I. Neither we nor Kahala Holdings, LLC shall have any liability to you for any delays in the construction, equipping, and ultimate delivery to you of the completely built-out *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant cover by this Agreement." 45. Paragraph "g" of Section 17.3 "<u>Acknowledgements of Franchisee</u>", shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

You acknowledge that this is a "turn key" franchise opportunity, and as "q. detailed in Section 2.3 of this Agreement, we, or our affiliate(s), will be overseeing and managing the on site construction process and equipping of your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Restaurant at the Location. You further acknowledge, as detailed in Section 5.5 of this Agreement, you will pay us or our designated affiliate the full Initial Franchisee Fee plus the full amount of the NrGize Conversion Turn-Key Fees simultaneously with your execution of this Agreement. You further acknowledge that no portion of the NrGize Conversion Turn-Key Fees is refundable under any circumstances. Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant to the SUFLA, if Franchisee performs all obligations under the SUFLA, then 30 days after the expiration or termination of the SUFLA, Franchisor shall refund the Reservation Fee to Franchisee, without payment of interest. The Reservation Fee shall be applied against the cost of any damages at the Premises as a result of negligence, intentional vandalism or theft. If the cost of the repairs to the damages exceeds the amount of the Reservation Fee being held. Purchaser will not receive a refund and will be responsible to pay the difference.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_/\_\_\_"

46. The following paragraph "n" shall be added to the end of Section 17.3 "<u>Acknowledgements of Franchisee</u>", after paragraph "m":

"g. Franchisee acknowledges that, pursuant to the Master Facility License Agreement, LA Fitness granted certain rights to the Location to Kahala Holdings, LLC and that, pursuant to the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, Kahala Holdings, LLC in turn granted certain rights to Franchisee. Franchisee further acknowledges that, if the Master Facility License Agreement is terminated for any reason, the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement will terminate and Franchisee must immediately vacate the Premises.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_/\_\_\_"

47. The following paragraph "o" shall be added to the end of Section 17.3 "<u>Acknowledgements of Franchisee</u>", after paragraph "n":

"h. Franchisee acknowledges that, pursuant to the Master Facility License Agreement, LA Fitness may cease operating any LA Fitness health club at any time and, if it does so, the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement will terminate. Franchisee further acknowledges that, in that event, Franchisee must immediately vacate the Premises. When vacating the Premises, all machinery, equipment, furniture, fixtures, improvements, tools, and signs must be left at the Premises as they will immediately be owned by and become the property of LA Fitness pursuant to the Bill of Sale that is attached as an amendment to the Franchise Agreement.

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_/\_\_\_"

48. The following paragraph "p" shall be added to the end of Section 17.3 "<u>Acknowledgements of Franchisee</u>", after paragraph "o":

"i. Franchisee acknowledges that the Master Facility License Agreement may restrict its rights as an *NrGize* franchisee. Franchisee hereby expressly acknowledges that it has carefully reviewed the Master Facility License Agreement at least five (5) business days prior to signing this Agreement (a copy of the Master Facility License Agreement is attached as Exhibit D to the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, which is attached to the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* Uniform Franchise Disclosure Document as Exhibit H.)

Franchisee Initials \_\_\_\_\_"

49. The following applies only for Franchisees that are Maryland residents and Franchisees whose franchises will be operated in Maryland: All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of liability are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on this \_\_\_\_\_day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_.

FRANCHISOR:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By:	 	
Name:_		_
Title:		

FRANCHISEE:

, a(n)
--------

By:	 	
Name:	 	_
Title:		

## EXHIBIT 12

## BILL OF SALE

# (APPLICABLE ONLY FOR STORES LOCATED WITHIN LA FITNESS HEALTH CLUBS)

#### **BILL OF SALE**

**FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION** and in consideration of the premises, the covenants and the agreements contained herein and in the First Amendment to the Master Facility License Agreement by and between FITNESS INTERNATIONAL, LLC (formerly L.A. Fitness International, LLC), a California limited liability company, ("<u>Buyer</u>") and Kahala Holdings, LLC ("<u>Kahala</u>"), the receipt and sufficiency of which hereby are acknowledged, the Undersigned ("<u>Seller</u>") agrees as follows:

**1.** As of the close of business on the date hereof, Seller does hereby sell and convey to Buyer, its successors and assigns, forever, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, all of Seller's right, title and interest in the following assets: all machinery, equipment, furniture, fixtures, improvements, tools, signs and other items of tangible personal property ("<u>Assets</u>") located at the following *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*:

. The Assets do not include inventories of food and beverage products, paper products, operational supplies, uniforms, disposable items, heating fuel, cleaning materials, and other items of consumable and/or expendable materials and supplies in the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* on the date hereof ("Inventory") nor do the Assets include items that bear Seller's proprietary marks.

2. TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Assets unto Buyer, its successors and assigns, forever, and Seller does hereby bind itself and its successors to WARRANT and FOREVER DEFEND, all and singular, title to the Assets unto Buyer, its successors and assigns, against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same, or any part thereof, and subject as aforesaid.

3. All of the Assets are being sold and transferred by Seller to Buyer and purchased by Buyer from Seller in "AS IS" condition and "with all faults." **EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THIS BILL OF SALE, SELLER DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES CONCERNING THE ASSETS, STATUTORY, EXPRESS, AND IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND ANY OTHER WARRANTY OF QUALITY IN RESPECT OF THE ASSETS, AND THERE ARE NO OTHER WARRANTIES, STATUTORY, EXPRESS, OR IMPLIED THAT EXTEND BEYOND THE WARRANTIES CONTAINED IN THIS BILL OF SALE.** 

4. This Bill of Sale shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their successors and assigns.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF,** Seller has caused this Bill of Sale to be executed by its duly authorized representative as of the day and year first above written.

#### **ATTEST:**

#### **SELLER:**

By:	By:	
Print Name:	Print Name:	
Title:	Title:	
	Date:	

## EXHIBIT 13

# FRANCHISEE QUESTIONNAIRE

#### FRANCHISEE QUESTIONNAIRE

The undersigned is in the process of negotiating and consummating the purchase of a Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. ("Kahala") Franchise Agreement ("Agreement") for NrGize Lifestyle Cafe.

We have been informed that since the laws of franchising limit the type of information that may be provided to prospective franchisees, the Kahala Legal Department has established a compliance audit program to ensure that all pre-sale negotiations have been lawfully completed.

We understand that if improper sales practices have occurred, the Kahala Legal Department, with appropriate notice prior to Agreement execution, will be able to either rectify and cure the violation or in the alternative reject the franchise sale.

In order to comply with your compliance audit program we hereby make the following acknowledgments and representations concerning events during the course of the negotiations and offer of sale of the Agreement knowing that Kahala will rely thereon in agreeing to accept the franchise sale.

1. In the course of the negotiations and the offer and sale of the Agreement we have met or spoken only to:

List any additional people:

2. Did any of the individuals identified in paragraph number one (1) or any other person or entity acting on behalf of or at the direction of Kahala make any promises, statements, projections, forecasts, estimates, warranties or representations or other statement or agreement (a) concerning the actual or potential financial performance of the franchised or franchisor owned-outlets, profits or expenses or actual or projected sales of any kind directly or by implication concerning NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurants or about the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant that is to be developed or about obtaining the approved location or about any other matter relating to the prospect for financial performance to the prospective franchisee, or (b) about any other matter other than what is contained in the Franchise Disclosure Document ("FDD"), and as stated in ITEM 19 of the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe FDD.

Check one: [] Yes [] No

If yes, please state in detail the oral, written, or visual claim or representation:

3. Did you receive any financial statements for Franchisor's parent company, Kahala Corp., or for any of Franchisor's affiliated companies, or did you rely on the financial condition of Franchisor's parent company or any of its affiliated companies when making the decision to purchase the Franchised Business?

Check one: [] Yes [] No

If yes, please comment, in detail:

Have there been any other inducements made with any person or entity encouraging you to 4. purchase the Agreement such as a "side deal" or other promise or agreement not included in the Agreement.

Check one: []Yes []No

If yes, please comment, in detail: 

5. Did you receive a copy of the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe FDD least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to signing any binding agreement with, or making a payment to Kahala or any of its affiliates in connection with the proposed franchise sale? If you reside in New York, Oklahoma or Rhode Island, or if the location of your prospective franchise is located within one of those states, did you receive a copy of the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe FDD at the earlier of (i) the first personal meeting; or (ii) ten (10) business days prior to signing any binding agreement or payment of any consideration? If you reside in Michigan or Washington, or if the location of your prospective business is located within one of those states, did you receive the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe FDD at least ten (10) business days before the execution of any binding franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration?

	Check one:	[] Yes	[ ] No		
	If no, please com	ment:			
6. Agreer	Have you received, studied, and reviewed carefully the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe FDD and Franchise nent?				
	Check one:	[] Yes	[ ] No		
	If no, please comment:				

Do you understand that the license granted in the Franchise Agreement is for the right to operate 7. a franchise at the authorized location only and includes no exclusive area or protected territory, and that we and our affiliates have the right to issue franchises or operate competing businesses for or at locations, as we may determine, near your authorized location? In addition, do you understand that these locations may include freestanding buildings, strip centers, shopping malls, and other similar locations, as well as non-traditional locations such as office buildings, petroleum stations, food courts, transportation terminals, sports facilities, airports, hotels, hospitals, and college and university student unions, dormitories, and food service areas?

Check one: []Yes []No If no, please comment:

8. Do you understand that the success or failure of your franchise will depend in large part upon your adherence to the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Operations Manual, your skills and experience, your business acumen, your location, the local market for products under our trademarks, interest rates, the economy, inflation, the number of employees you hire and their compensation, competition, and other economic and business factors? Further, do you understand that the economic and business factors that exist at the time you open your franchise may change?

Check one:	[] Yes	[ ] No	
If no, please comm	nent:		

All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of liability are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

[Name of Franchisee]

By: \_\_\_\_

(Name) Title \_\_\_\_\_

DATE

# CONSENT OF SPOUSE

(to be executed if Franchisee is a married individual)

The undersigned is the spouse of the Franchisee identified in the Amendment(s) to Franchise Agreement, dated as of \_\_\_\_\_\_, between his or her spouse and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. (collectively, the "Agreement"), to which this Consent of Spouse is attached.

The undersigned hereby declares that he or she has read the Agreement in its entirety and, being fully convinced of the wisdom and equity of the terms of the Agreement, and in consideration of the premises and of the provisions of the Agreement, the undersigned hereby expresses his or her acceptance of the same and does agree to its provisions.

The undersigned further agrees that in the event of the death of his or her spouse, the provisions of this Agreement will be binding upon him or her.

The undersigned further agrees that he or she will at any time make, execute and deliver such instruments and documents which may be necessary to carry out the provisions of the Agreement.

This instrument is not a present transfer or release of any rights which the undersigned may have in any of the community property of his or her marriage.

DATED \_\_\_\_\_

(Signature of Spouse)

(Print Name of Spouse)

# <u>EXHIBIT F</u>

# TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Form of Addendum to the Franchise Agreement for SBA Loans

# ADDENDUM RELATING TO NRGIZE LIFESTYLE CAFE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (SBA Loan)

THIS ADDENDUM (Addendum) is made and entered into on \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_, by Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., located at 9311 E. Via De Ventura, Scottsdale, Arizona 85258 ("Franchisor"), and \_\_\_\_\_, located at \_\_\_\_\_ ("Franchisee").

<u>Recitals.</u> Franchisor and Franchisee entered into a Franchise (or License) Agreement on \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_, ("Franchise Agreement"). The Franchisee agreed among other things to operate and maintain an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchise located at \_\_\_\_\_\_ designated by Franchisor as Store #\_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Store"). Franchisee has obtained from a lender a loan ("Loan") in which funding is provided with the assistance of the United States Small Business Administration ("SBA"). SBA requires the execution of this Addendum as a condition for obtaining the SBA assisted financing.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises below, and for good and valuable considerations in hand paid by each of the parties to the others, the receipt and sufficiency of which the parties acknowledge, the parties agree as follows:

- Franchise Agreement is in full force and effect, and Franchisor has sent no official notice of default to Franchisee under the Franchise Agreement that remains uncured on the date hereof.
- Under Section 12.6 of the Franchise Agreement, any SBA financed franchise will be granted a lien on the business assets of the franchisee as required in its loan authorization.
- If the Franchise Agreement is terminated and the Franchised Business or its contents are to be sold under Section 14.5 of the Franchise Agreement and the parties are unable to agree as to a purchase price and terms, the fair market value of such premises and property shall be determined by three appraisers chosen in the following manner: Franchisee shall select one and Franchisor shall select one, and the two appraisers so chosen shall select a third appraiser. The decision of the majority of the appraisers so chosen shall be conclusive. The cost of the third appraiser shall be shared equally by the parties.
- Section 12.2 of the Franchise Agreement provides that the Franchisor (or any Third Party Assignee of the Franchisor) may elect pursuant to its Right of First Refusal to exercise said option when the franchisee decides to sell partial interest(s) in the business. This section is hereby amended to reflect that the

Franchisor (nor any Third Party Assignee of the Franchisor) will not exercise the option for any partial sale of the franchisee's business. The Franchisor (Third Party Assignee of the Franchisor) may not become a partial owner of any SBA financed franchises.

- If the Franchisor must operate the business under Section 14.3 of the Franchise Agreement, Franchisor will operate the business for a 90 day renewable term, renewable as necessary for up to one year and the Franchisor will periodically discuss the status with the Franchisee or its heirs.
- This Addendum automatically terminates on the earliest to occur of the following: (i) a Termination occurs under the Franchise Agreement; (ii) the Loan is paid; or (iii) SBA no longer has any interest in the Loan.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly signed and executed this Addendum as of the day and year first above written.

# **FRANCHISOR:**

# FRANCHISEE:

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C. d/b/a NrGize Lifestyle Cafe			
By:	By:		
Print Name: Walter L. Schultz	Print Name:		
Title: Executive Vice President/CFO of its Member	Title:		

# EXHIBIT G

# TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Form of Required Lease Terms

# **REQUIRED LEASE TERMS**

The Terms and Conditions in the Attached Lease Addendum must be included in the Franchisee's lease for the location of the Franchised Business via execution of the attached Lease Addendum or through modifications to the actual lease agreement

# LEASE ADDENDUM

# то

# LEASE AGREEMENT

Dated \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_ between

\_\_\_\_\_and \_\_\_\_\_

Landlord Name

Tenant/Franchisee Name

# 1. Use of Premises.

During the term of the Franchise Agreement (or, if shorter, the term of the Lease), the Premises may be used only for the operation of a quick service restaurant under the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe System, Proprietary Marks, Trade names, and logos, which specializes in the sale of smoothies, fruit drinks, functional drinks, salads, sandwiches, soups, fresh baked goods, and proprietary nutritional products and supplements, and other beverage and snack items. Landlord consents to Tenant's use of such marks, tag lines, signs, décor items, color schemes, and related components of the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchise System as NrGize Lifestyle Cafe may prescribe for the franchisees of its System.

# 2. Assignment and Notices.

a. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Lease, Tenant shall have the right to assign this Lease and all rights hereunder, to Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., ("NrGize Lifestyle Cafe"), an affiliate of *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*, or to a franchisee of *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* (duly approved as such by *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* and meeting the franchise requirements of *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* as of the date hereof) upon the expiration or earlier termination of that certain Franchise Agreement dated \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_ (the "Franchise Agreement"), by and between *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* and Tenant without obtaining Landlord's consent and without the imposition of any assignment fee or similar charge. Landlord shall not accelerate the rent owed hereunder in connection with such assignment(s), so long as *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*, its affiliate(s) or its franchisees assumes in writing the obligations of Tenant under the Lease. Nothing in this Section 2(a) shall serve to extend the term of the Lease or provide *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* any occupancy rights, options to renew or other rights not expressly set forth to Tenant in the Lease.

b. Landlord agrees to furnish *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* with copies of any and all letters and notices to Tenant pertaining to the Lease and the Premises at the same time that such letters and notices are sent to Tenant. Landlord further agrees that, if it intends to terminate the Lease, the Landlord will give *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* the same advance written notice of such intent as provided to Tenant, specifying in such notice all defaults that are the cause of the proposed termination. *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* shall have the right to cure, at its sole option, any such default within the time periods granted to Tenant under the Lease. If neither Tenant or *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* cures all such defaults within said time periods (or such longer cure periods as may be specifically permitted by the Lease), then the Landlord may terminate the Lease, re-enter the Premises and/or exercise all other rights as set forth in the Lease.

c. Prior to the expiration or termination of the Lease, *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* shall have the right to enter the Premises to make any reasonable modifications or reasonable

alterations necessary to protect *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* interest in the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* business and the Proprietary Marks and System (as such terms are defined in the Franchise Agreement), or to cure any default under the Franchise Agreement or any development agreement entered into by *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* and the Tenant or under the Lease, and Landlord agrees that *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* shall not be liable for trespass or any other crimes or tort.

# 3. Notices.

All notices and demands required to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be sent by personal delivery, expedited delivery service, certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, first-class postage prepaid, facsimile, telegram or telex (provide that the sender confirm the facsimile, telegram or telex by sending an original confirmation copy by certified transmission), to the respective parties at the following addresses unless and until a different address has been designated by written notice to the other parties.

If directed to Tenant, the notice shall be addressed to:

Attn:		
Aun	 	 
Facsimile:		
racsinile.		

If directed to Landlord, the notice shall be address to:

Attn: \_\_\_\_\_ Facsimile: \_\_\_\_\_

If directed to *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe*, the notices shall be addressed to:

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. 9311 E. Via De Ventura Scottsdale, AZ 85258 Attn: Legal Department Facsimile: (480) 362-4797 Any notices sent by personal delivery shall be deemed given upon receipt. Any notices given by telex or facsimile shall be deemed given on the business day of transmission, provided confirmation is made as provided above. Any notice sent by expedited delivery service or registered or certified mail shall be deemed given three (3) business days after the time of mailing. Any change in the foregoing addresses shall be effected by giving fifteen (15) days written notice of such change to the other parties.

# 4. Amendments.

Landlord and Tenant will not amend, renew, extend or otherwise modify this Lease in any manner which would materially affect any of the foregoing provisions without *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe's* prior written consent.

# 5. Third Party Beneficiary.

Landlord and Tenant agree that *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* is a third party beneficiary of the Lease.

# 6. **Miscellaneous.**

The terms and conditions of this Lease Addendum will supersede any Conflicting terms of the Lease. Any capitalized term not specifically defined in this Addendum shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Lease or Franchise Agreement, as applicable.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Addendum in duplicate as of the day and year set forth in the Lease Agreement.

"LANDLORD"	, a(n)		
	By: Title:		
"TENANT"	, a(n)		
	By: Title:		
	By: Title:		

# <u>EXHIBIT H</u>

# TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Form of Lease Guaranty Acknowledgment

### Lease Guaranty Acknowledgment

You have informed Kahala Management, L.L.C. (the "<u>Company</u>") that the landlord of the location which you have selected for the operation of your Franchised Business requires, as a condition for you to obtain a lease agreement, that you obtain a lease guaranty from the Company or any affiliate of the Company of your obligations under the lease. You have requested that the Company or any affiliate of the location you have selected or are considering for your Franchised Business. You acknowledge that neither the Company nor any of its affiliates is required to serve as guarantor of your lease for the site of your Franchised Business and that a decision whether to serve as guarantor is within the sole and absolute discretion of the Company.

We are willing to undertake to assist you in obtaining a lease by agreeing to execute and deliver a lease guaranty, in form and substance satisfactory to the Company and its counsel. In consideration for the execution and delivery of a lease guaranty, you hereby acknowledge that you have agreed to pay a lease guaranty fee to the Company in an amount equal to the lesser of (i) ten percent (10%) of the total amount of the rental obligations to be guaranteed under the lease during its term, and any renewal term (inclusive of any charges for real estate taxes, common area maintenance, insurance), or (ii) Ten Thousand (\$10,000) Dollars (the "Lease Guaranty Fee"). The Lease Guaranty Fee will be due and payable to the Company upon the Company's (or any affiliate of the Company) execution of the applicable lease guaranty agreement with the landlord.

Any capitalized terms not specifically defined in this Lease Guaranty Acknowledgment shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms in your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Franchise Agreement dated

The undersigned understands and acknowledges that: (i) notwithstanding the agreement of the Company to execute and deliver a lease guaranty, the execution and delivery of such guaranty and any participation of the Company and/or its agents or employees, including, without limitation, its Area Representatives, and/or brand presidents in the negotiation of an LOI or a lease, and analyzing and/or approving site(s) for the Location of the Franchised Business, you are solely responsible for conducting a review of the proposed site, the LOI and lease terms, and for final Location selection and approval based upon your review, your business plan and model; (ii) you have not relied upon the assistance of the Company in procuring, or in the approval of, an LOI or lease for the Franchised Business, or in its decision to select any proposed site; (iii) each potential site for the Franchised Business is unique and provides different risks and benefits, which may impact the performance of the Franchised Business; and, (iv) as part of analyzing the proposed site, it is your responsibility to meet with the local officials to determine, among other things whether any street, highway, interchange, city, or other changes are planned in the area or access to the proposed site that could negatively affect the performance of the Franchised Business.

Acknowledged and accepted:

By:\_\_\_\_\_

Print Name:		
-------------	--	--

Brand Concept:_	

Date:\_\_\_\_\_

# <u>EXHIBIT I</u>

# TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Form of Lease Negotiation Acknowledgment

### Lease Negotiation Acknowledgment

You have requested that Kahala Management, L.L.C. ("<u>Company</u>") negotiate a term sheet and/or a Letter of Intent ("<u>LOI</u>") to secure a lease, and thereafter to negotiate the terms of a master lease with the landlord or broker/agent of the landlord for the location you have selected or are considering for your Franchised Business. We are willing to undertake to assist you in procuring the LOI, and with such related negotiations. The final approval and execution of the LOI and/or the lease and the provisions of the LOI and lease remain your sole responsibility. You have agreed to pay the Company a fee of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$2,500.00) for such assistance ("Lease Negotiation Fee"), less any Location Review Fee paid by you.

Any capitalized terms not specifically defined in this Lease Negotiation Acknowledgment shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms in your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Franchise Agreement dated \_\_\_\_\_\_.

You may require or elect to seek additional information or guidance other than what is provided by the Company. This would be your sole responsibility.

The undersigned understands and acknowledges that: (i) notwithstanding any participation of the Company and/or its agents or employees, including, without limitation, its Area Representatives, and/or brand presidents in the negotiation of an LOI or a lease, and analyzing and/or approving site(s) for the Location of the Franchised Business, you are solely responsible for conducting a review of the proposed site, the LOI and lease terms, and for final Location selection and approval based upon your review, your business plan and model; (ii) you have not relied upon the assistance of the Company in procuring, or in the approval of, an LOI or lease for the Franchised Business, or in its decision to select any proposed site; (iii) each potential site for the Franchised Business is unique and provides different risks and benefits, which may impact the performance of the Franchised Business; and, (iv) as part of analyzing the proposed site, it is our responsibility to meet with the local officials to determine, among other things whether any street, highway, interchange, city, or other changes are planned in the area or access to the proposed site that could negatively affect the performance of the Franchised Business.

Acknowledged and accepted:

Corporation or Entity:

Ву:\_\_\_\_\_

Date:

# <u>EXHIBIT J</u>

# TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Form of Lease Procurement Acknowledgment

### Lease Procurement Acknowledgment

You have requested that the real estate department of the Franchisor, Kahala Management, L.L.C. (the "<u>Company</u>") assist you in the identification of a location for the development of your Franchised Business (the "<u>Location</u>"), which may include visits to the Location and/or participation in the negotiation of the terms of a lease with the landlord and/or broker/agent of the landlord for the Location of the Franchised Business (the "<u>Procurement Assistance</u>"). We are willing to undertake to assist you in the identification of the Location, and with visits to the Location and related negotiations. You have agreed to pay the Company, upon execution of this Acknowledgment, a fee of Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00) for such assistance (the "Lease Procurement Fee"), less any Location Review Fee paid by you.

Any capitalized terms not specifically defined in this Lease Procurement Acknowledgment shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms in your NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Franchise Agreement dated \_\_\_\_\_\_.

The final approval and execution of the lease and the provisions of the lease remain your sole responsibility. You may require or elect to seek additional information or guidance other than what is provided by the Company. This would be your sole responsibility.

The undersigned understand and acknowledges that: (i) notwithstanding any provision by Kahala Management, L.L.C. and/or its agents or employees, including, without limitation, its Area Representatives, and/or Brand Presidents in Procurement Assistance for the location of the Franchised Business, you are solely responsible for conducting a review of the proposed site, the LOI and lease terms, and for final site selection and approval based upon your review, your business plan and model; (ii) you have not relied solely upon the Procurement Assistance of Kahala Management, L.L.C. in procuring, or in the approval of, an LOI or lease for the Franchised Business, or in its decision to select any proposed site; (iii) each potential site for the Franchised Business is unique and provides different risks and benefits, which may impact the performance of the Franchised Business; and, (iv) as part of analyzing the proposed site, it is your responsibility to meet with the local officials to determine, among other things whether any street, highway, interchange, city, or other changes are planned in the area or access to the proposed site that could negatively affect the performance of the Franchised Business.

Acknowledged and accepted:

Ву:	
Print Name:	
Corporation or Entity:	
Brand Concept:	

Date:			

# <u>EXHIBIT K</u>

# TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

**Pre-Authorized Electronic Funds Transfer Form** 

FRANCHISEE INFORMATION				
Franchisee Name	Store No.	Franchisee Phone No.		
Franchisee Mailing Address (street, city, state, zip)	•			
Contact Name, Address and Phone number (if different than above)				
Employer Identification Number (if applicable)	er Identification Number (if applicable) Principal's Name and Social Security Number			

# BANK ACCOUNT INFORMATION

Bank Name	Bank Account Number	Bank Routing Number	
		[: [: 9 Characters	
Bank Mailing Address (street, city, state,	zip)		
Bank Phone Number			

# PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION

Franchisee hereby authorizes Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. (the "Payee"), to initiate withdrawals from the Bank Account indicated on this form, and hereby authorizes the Bank to honor and charge the Bank Account for electronic funds transfers or drafts drawn on the Bank Account and payable to Payee. The amount of such charge shall be set forth in a notice from the Payee presented to the Bank on the day(s) of the week set forth in your franchise agreement, gift card participation agreement (or similar agreement for the gift card program), and any other agreement you sign that authorizes us or our affiliate to debit your account for the fees, which may be modified by Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. or its affiliates, for the payment of royalty fees, advertising fees, POS support fees, gift card and e-gifting program fees and funds flow, and any other fees, charges and other amounts payable to us or our affiliates for any services we provide or facilitate. The Franchisee agrees to execute such additional documents as may be reasonably requested by the Payee or the Bank to evidence the interest of this EFT Authorization. This authority shall remain in full force and effect until the Payee has received written notification from the Franchisee in such time and manner as to afford the Payee and the Bank to act on such notice. The Franchisee understands that the termination of this authorization does not relieve the Franchisee of its obligations to make payments to the Payee. Payee may assign its rights and obligations under this EFT Authorization to Payee's affiliates or agents. Payee may change its designated affiliates or agents at Payee's discretion.

Signature:	Date:

# NOTE: FRANCHISEE MUST ATTACH A VOIDED OR COMPLETED CHECK RELATING TO THE BANK ACCOUNT.

# ATTACH VOIDED OR COMPLETED CHECK HERE

# <u>EXHIBIT L</u>

# TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Form of Single-Unit Facility License Agreement (for LA Fitness locations only)

### SINGLE-UNIT FACILITY LICENSE AGREEMENT

This Single-Unit Facility License Agreement ("Agreement") is made as of \_\_\_\_\_\_ by and between Kahala Holdings, LLC, an Arizona limited liability company ("Kahala Holdings") and \_\_\_\_\_\_, a(n) \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Operator").

### RECITALS

Kahala Holdings and FITNESS INTERNATIONAL, LLC (formerly L.A. Fitness International, LLC), a California limited liability company ("LA Fitness"), entered into a Master Facility License Agreement, as amended (collectively, the "Master License Agreement"), a copy of which is attached as Exhibit D.

LA Fitness operates health and fitness clubs under the name LA Fitness ("Facilities") for club members and their guests (collectively, "Members").

LA Fitness has designated or may designate an area within each Facility (the "Service Area") for providing certain food and beverage products and related services ("Retail Services") to the Members.

Pursuant to the terms of the Master License Agreement, LA Fitness, among other things, granted Kahala Holdings access to the Services Areas at certain Facilities to provide (or license third parties to provide) the Retail Services.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. ("Kahala Franchising"), an affiliate of Kahala Holdings, is the franchisor of NrGize Lifestyle Cafes ("Cafes").

Pursuant to an *NrGize* Franchise Agreement dated as of \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Franchise Agreement"), Kahala Franchising granted Operator the right to provide Retail Services at a Cafe at the Facility identified in attached Exhibit A ("Identified Facility").

Kahala Holdings and Operator are entering into this Agreement in order to grant Operator access to the Identified Facility to operate the Cafe.

**NOW, THEREFORE**, in consideration of the recitals set forth above and the mutual covenants contained herein, Kahala Holdings and Operator agree as follows:

1. <u>Grant of Access</u>. Kahala Holdings hereby grants Operator access to the Services Area at the Identified Facility. Operator shall comply with any term, condition or restriction on that access and on the operation of the Cafe in the Identified Facility as specified this Agreement, in the Master License Agreement, the Franchise Agreement or otherwise in writing by Kahala Holding (or its affiliates). Operator shall not have access to any portion of the Identified Facility other than the Services Area.

2. <u>Term of Access</u>. The Term of this Agreement and the access to the Identified Facility shall commence on the date that the Identified Facility is available for Operator to commence operating the Cafe, as set forth in Exhibit A ("Commencement Date"). Unless terminated pursuant to Section 10, the Term shall expire on the earlier of: (a) \_\_\_\_\_\_, \_\_\_\_\_ [(i.e., five (5) years from the Commencement Date)][( i.e., ten (10) years from the Commencement Date)]; (b) the termination of the Master License Agreement; (c) the termination of Kahala Holdings' right of access to the Identified Facility under the Master License Agreement; (d) the date that LA Fitness ceases operating a health club at the Identified Facility; or (e) the expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement. [Operator may extend the Term for one (1) period of five (5) years (the "Extension Term") subject to approval by LA Fitness, which approval is in the sole discretion of LA Fitness, provided that Operator shall give Kahala Holdings written notice of its exercise of the option to renew at least two hundred ten (210) days prior to the expiration date of the Term.][There is no renewal term under this Agreement; however, if the terms of the Franchise Agreement and Master License Agreement (in whole or in part, as that Agreement relates to the Identified Facility) are extended, Kahala Holdings and Operator may extend the Term for a coterminous period.]

3. <u>Use of the Services Area in the Identified Facility</u>. Subject to any restrictions in this Agreement, the Master License Agreement, the Franchise Agreement or any other agreement relating to the Identified Facility, Operator shall use the Services Area at the Identified Facility solely for operating a Cafe.

4. <u>Fees</u>.

(a) <u>Initial Fee</u>. [Simultaneously with the execution of this Agreement, Operator shall pay Kahala Holdings a non-refundable initial fee, representing the first and last month's minimum portion of the Monthly Service Fee, ("Initial Fee") in the amount of \$\_\_\_\_\_.] or [Simultaneously with the execution of this Agreement, Operator shall pay Kahala Holdings a non-refundable initial fee, representing the first and second month's minimum portion of the Monthly Service Fee, ("Initial Fee") in the amount of \$\_\_\_\_\_.] The Initial Fee is fully earned by Kahala Holdings when paid and will only be credited against the first and last month's minimum portion of the Monthly Service Fee owed by Operator to Kahala Holdings under this Agreement.

Reservation Fee. Simultaneously with the execution of this Agreement, Operator shall (b) ("Reservation Fee"). If Operator fails to timely pay any amounts due to Kahala pay Kahala Holdings \$ Holdings under this Agreement, or commits a default under this Agreement, Kahala Holdings may use, apply or retain all or any portion of the Reservation Fee for the payment of such amount, or for the payment of any other amount which Kahala Holdings is required to pay to any third party due to Operator's default, or to compensate Kahala Holdings for any loss or damage due to Operator's default. If Kahala Holdings uses or applies all or any portion of the Reservation Fee, Operator shall within 10 days after written demand from Kahala Holdings, deposit cash with Kahala Holdings in an amount sufficient to restore the Reservation Fee. Operator's failure to do so shall be a material breach of this Agreement. Kahala Holdings shall not be required to keep the Reservation Fee separate from its general accounts. If Operator performs all obligations under this Agreement, 30 days after the expiration or termination of this Agreement, Kahala Holdings shall refund the Reservation Fee to Operator, without payment of interest. The Reservation Fee shall be applied against the cost of any damages at the Cafe at the Identified Facility as a result of negligence, intentional vandalism or theft. If the cost of the repairs to the damages exceeds the amount of the Reservation Fee being held, Operator will not receive a refund and will be responsible to pay the difference. No trust relationship is created between Operator and Kahala Holdings with respect to the Reservation Fee.

(c) <u>Monthly Service Fee [and Pre-Paid Monthly Service Fee]</u>. In consideration for the rights granted in Section 1, Operator shall pay Kahala Holdings a non-refundable and continuing monthly service fee ("Monthly Service Fee") in the following amount: [\$1,000.00 per month, which will be increased annually by 3% compounded.] or [\$1,250.00 per month, which will be increased annually by 4% compounded.] Operator shall pay the applicable Monthly Service Fee on the third calendar day of each month. As used in this Agreement, the term "Gross Sales" shall have the same meaning as ascribed to that term in the Franchise Agreement. [Simultaneously with the execution of this Agreement, Operator shall pay Kahala Holdings a non-refundable pre-paid monthly service fee, representing the last twelve (12) months of the Monthly Service Fee, ("Pre-Paid Monthly Service Fee") in the amount of \$\_\_\_\_\_.]

(d) Interest and Late Fees. Any payments accepted by Kahala Holdings after the due date shall bear interest at an annual rate which is the lesser of 12% or the maximum interest rate permitted by applicable law. In addition, any payments received 5 days or more after the due date may be assessed an additional fee equal to 10% of the original payment due plus 1% per day on the overdue amount, but in no event shall Operator be charged an amount that is usurious or in violation of applicable law. Kahala Holdings' acceptance of any interest or late fees shall not constitute a waiver of any default by Operator or prevent Kahala Holdings from exercising any other rights and remedies granted under this Agreement. If a late fee is due under this Agreement for three consecutive payments, Kahala Holdings may require Operator to pay the Access Fee in advance on a quarterly basis, as and when designated by Kahala Holdings.

(e) <u>Taxes</u>. In accordance with paragraph 6(f) of the Master License Agreement, Operator shall pay Kahala Holdings any applicable tax levied, including any tax on the Monthly Service Fee (collectively, the "Taxes"). Operator shall pay the applicable Taxes on the third calendar day of each month.

(f) <u>Electronic Funds Transfer</u>. Kahala Holdings may require Operator to make any payments required by this Agreement by electronic funds transfer ("EFT") and, in connection with the EFT, Kahala Holdings may designate any terms and conditions to govern payments by EFT. Operator agrees to comply with any terms and conditions designated by Kahala Holdings relating to EFT. To accomplish the EFT, Operator must

complete, sign and deliver to Kahala Holdings any required documentation, including the form of Electronic Funds Transfer Authorization attached to this Agreement as Exhibit B.

(g) <u>Enforcement Costs</u>. Operator shall reimburse Kahala Holdings for any fees, costs, expenses or other charges incurred by Kahala Holdings to enforce this Agreement, including attorneys' fees and costs.

5. <u>Reports and Audit Rights</u>. Simultaneously with the reporting and/or payment of the Monthly Service Fee, Operator shall submit to Kahala Holdings: (a) a report identifying the Gross Sales at the Cafe during the prior month; and (b) a statement indicating whether the Monthly Service Fee is based upon Gross Sales or represents the minimum payment. Kahala Holdings shall have the right at all reasonable times, both during and after the Term, to inspect, copy and audit the books and records and such other forms, reports, information and data as Kahala Holdings may designate. Operator shall provide to Kahala Holdings any other data, information or reports as Kahala Holdings may reasonably require.

6. <u>Maintenance And Repair</u>. Operator, at its sole expense, shall keep in good order, condition and repair the Services Area of the Identified Facility, including all fixtures, furniture and equipment. Operator shall not make, without Kahala Holdings' prior written consent, any alterations, improvements, additions or installations to the Services Area ("Improvements"). If Operator makes any Improvements without the prior written approval of Kahala Holdings, or uses a contractor not expressly approved by Kahala Holdings, Kahala Holdings may require Operator to restore the Services Area, at no expense to Kahala Holdings. Any approved Improvements shall be made and done in good and workmanlike manner and of good and sufficient quality and material and shall be done in such a manner so as to not impact operations at the Identified Facility. The Improvements shall be the property of LA Fitness and remain upon and be surrendered with the Services Area upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

# 7. <u>Insurance</u>.

(a) <u>Required Insurance Coverage</u>. Operator shall, at its expense, obtain and keep in full force and effect during the Term of this Agreement: (1) Comprehensive General Liability Insurance (including products liability insurance) in an amount of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence, and with an aggregate of not less than \$2,000,000, of bodily injury and property damage combined or in a greater amount as reasonably determined by Kahala Holdings; (2) fire insurance with a Standard Form Extended Coverage Endorsement in an amount of at least the full insurance value of the improvements, fixtures, equipment and merchandise in the Services Area; and (3) Workers' Compensation insurance coverage to the full extent required by federal, state and/or local law. In the event Operator does not obtain and keep in force and effect the above-detailed required insurance coverage, Kahala Holdings shall have the option, in its sole and absolute discretion, to obtain such required insurance coverage on demand. If the insurance requirements under the Master License Agreement increase during the Term of this Agreement, Operator shall increase its insurance coverage accordingly, at its sole cost and expense, upon thirty (30) days prior written notice from Kahala Holdings.

(b) <u>Insurance Policies</u>. Operator shall deliver to Kahala Holdings copies of the insurance policies required under this Section, or certificates evidencing the existence and amounts of such insurance, prior to commencing operations at the Services Area. Kahala Holdings, LA Fitness, the property manager, the property owner and any other entity or individual designated by Kahala Holding shall be additional insureds in such policies to the extent each has an insurable interest. All insurance policies shall be issued from insurance companies having not less than Best's Triple A rating and shall be in a form satisfactory to Kahala Holdings. No policy shall be cancelled or subject to reduction of coverage or other modification except after 30 days prior written notice to Kahala Holdings. Operator shall, at least 30 days prior to the expiration of such policies, furnish Kahala Holdings with copies of any renewal policies. Operator's insurance carriers must waive all subrogation rights and any other similar rights of recovery against or contribution from Kahala Holdings.

(c) <u>No Representation of Adequate Coverage</u>. Kahala Holdings makes no representation that the types of insurance coverage and minimum coverages specified in Section are adequate to cover Operator's property or obligations under this Agreement. Compliance with the above insurance requirements shall not limit the liability of Operator under this Agreement.

8. Indemnification. Operator shall indemnify and hold harmless (to the full extent permitted by law) LA Fitness and Kahala Holdings and their respective parents, affiliates, subsidiaries, successors, assigns, past and present stockholders, directors, officers, employees, agents, and representatives ("Indemnitees") from and against any and all claims for damage to the person or property of anyone or any entity arising from Operator's use of the Services Area, from the operation of the Cafe at the Identified Facility and from any activity, work or things done, permitted or suffered by Operator in or around the Services Area, the Identified Facility or elsewhere and shall further indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnitees from and against any and all claims, costs and expenses arising from any breach or default in the performance of any obligation of Operator to be performed under the terms of this Agreement (or any other agreement), or arising from any act or omission of Operator, or any of Operator's agents, representatives, contractors, employees or invitees and from and against all costs, attorneys' fees, expenses and liabilities incurred by the Indemnitees as a result of any such use, operation, activity, work, things done, permitted or suffered, breach, default or negligence, and in dealing therewith, including by not limited to, the defense or pursuit of any claim or any action or proceeding involved therein; and in case any action or proceeding be brought against any Indemnitee by reason of any such matter, Operator upon notice from any Indemnitee shall defend the same at Operator's expense by counsel satisfactory to the Indemnitees and the Indemnitees shall cooperate with Operator in such defense. The Indemnitees shall not be required to first pay any such claim in order to be so indemnified. Operator, as a material part of the consideration to Kahala Holdings, assumes all risk of damage to property of any Indemnitee and any injury to persons in, upon or about the Services Area arising from any cause and Operator hereby waives all claims in respect thereof against any Indemnitee. The right of any Indemnitee to indemnification by Operator under this Section shall be independent of the right of the Indemnitees to any insurance proceeds.

# 9. <u>Assignment</u>.

(a) <u>By Kahala Holdings</u>. Subject to the Master License Agreement, Kahala Holdings shall have the right to freely assign its rights and responsibilities under this Agreement to any third party without the approval of Operator; provided, however, any assignment of this Agreement shall be delivered in writing to Operator within 5 days after being effective.

(b) <u>By Operator</u>. The rights granted by Kahala Holdings to Operator in this Agreement are personal rights and cannot be transferred or assigned (by operation of law or otherwise), directly or indirectly, to any third party without the prior written consent of Kahala Holdings. Any attempted assignment in violation of this Section shall be void. If Kahala Franchising consents to an assignment of the Franchise Agreement, the Operator must assign this Agreement to the same entity or individual. Notwithstanding any assignment of this Agreement, Operator shall remain fully liable under this Agreement until it is terminated or expires.

### 10. Default and Termination.

(a) <u>Events of Default</u>. The occurrence of any of the following constitutes a material breach or default ("Default") by Operator under this Agreement:

(i) Operator fails to begin operating a Cafe at the Identified Facility by the deadline in the Franchise Agreement.

(ii) Operator fails to pay any amount owed to Kahala Holdings under this Agreement, and such default continues for 5 days after written notice to Operator.

(iii) The Cafe is closed for more than 10 days (when the Identified Facility is open) in any 12 month period.

(iv) Operator makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; files or has filed against it a petition for reorganization or arrangement under any law relating to bankruptcy; the appointment of a trustee or receiver to take possession of substantially all of Operator's assets at the Identified Facility or of Operator's interest in this Agreement; or has filed against it an attachment, execution, or other judicial seizure of substantially all of Operator's interest in this Agreement.

(v) Operator fails to obtain and have current insurance coverage as required by Section 7 and to timely provide proper proof thereof to Kahala Holdings, or Operator fails to reimburse Kahala Holdings on demand for any coverage purchased on its behalf by Kahala Holdings pursuant to Section 7(a).

(vi) Operator makes an assignment under Section 9 without the prior written consent

of Kahala Holdings.

(vii) Operator fails to perform any other material provision of this Agreement (including any amendments or modifications), provided that such failure continues for 3 days after Kahala Holdings provides written notice to Operator of such failure.

(viii) Upon the occurrence of the third Default in the previous 12 month period, regardless of whether the Default is the same or different and regardless of whether the prior Defaults have been cured.

(ix) Operator fails to comply with the LA Fitness Club Rules and Regulations attached as Exhibit D to the Master License Agreement.

(x) Operator offers any product or service at the Services Area that is not authorized by LA Fitness under Exhibit A to the Master License Agreement or otherwise.

(xi) Operator violates the "Non-Disclosure" provisions under Section 24 of the Master License Agreement.

(xii) Operator commits any material breach of any other agreement between the Operator and Kahala Holdings, Kahala Franchising, or their parent, subsidiaries or affiliates or LA Fitness, including, but without limitation, the Franchise Agreement or any other agreement relating to the Identified Facility and Operator fails to cure such breach within the applicable cure period, if any.

(b) <u>Termination and Expiration</u>. Upon the occurrence of any Default identified in Section 10(a) and the expiration of any applicable cure period, Kahala Holdings may terminate this Agreement and the rights granted in this Agreement. Kahala Holdings may upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, provide, or identify third parties to provide, Retail Services at the Identified Facility. Termination of this Agreement or any rights under this Agreement shall not prejudice any other remedy to which Kahala Holdings may be entitled either at law, in equity, or under this Agreement. If this Agreement is terminated prior to the expiration of the Term, Kahala Holdings shall be entitled to all damages provided under the Agreement and as otherwise entitled by law.

11. <u>Obligations Upon Termination or Expiration</u>. Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, Operator shall: (a) immediately pay all monies due to Kahala Holdings, and its parent, subsidiaries, and affiliates relating to the Identified Facility; and (b) immediately vacate the Services Area in the same condition as received, ordinary wear and tear excepted, clean and free of debris. Any damage or deterioration of the Services Area shall not be deemed ordinary wear and tear if the same could have been prevented by good maintenance practices by Operator. Operator shall repair any damage to the Services Area caused by the installation or removal of any trade fixtures, signage, furnishings or equipment. Operator shall remove its personal belongings, materials, merchandise, goods and products from the Services Area and shall leave the Services Area in a "broom clean" condition. When vacating the Service Area, Operator will leave at the Cafe at the Identified Location all machinery, equipment, furniture, fixtures, improvements, tools, and signs as they will immediately be owned by and become the property of LA Fitness in accordance with the terms of the Bill of Sale signed by Operator simultaneously with this Agreement and the Franchise Agreement.

12. <u>Notices</u>. All notices, amendments, waivers, consents, approvals and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing. Any such item requiring delivery must be delivered: (a) in person; (b) by registered, express or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt request; (c) by a reputable, national overnight delivery carrier, provided that a signature upon receipt is required with such delivery; or (d) by a generally recognized courier or messenger service that provides written acknowledgement of receipt by the addressee. Documents are deemed delivered when actually delivered to or delivery is refused at the address for notices. Notices and deliveries must be made to Operator at the address set forth in Exhibit A; and to Kahala Holdings, LLC, Attn: Legal Department, 9311 E. Via De Ventura, Scottsdale, AZ 85258. Operator and Kahala

Holdings agree to provide a copy of any notice under this Agreement to LA Fitness, Attn: Legal Department, 8105 Irvine Center Drive, Suite 200, Irvine, CA 92618.

13. <u>Remedies</u>. Except as otherwise provided for in this Agreement, no remedy conferred by any of the specific provisions of the Agreement is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy. Each and every remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this Agreement, now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. The election of any one or more remedies by either party shall not constitute a waiver of the right to pursue other available remedies.

# 14. <u>Enforcement Provisions</u>.

(a) <u>Arbitration</u>. Any controversy, dispute or claim between the parties arising out of, in connection with or in relation to this Agreement including but not limited to the negotiation, execution, coverage, scope, performance, non-performance, breach, interpretation, termination, enforceability or validity of this Agreement or any alleged fraud in connection therewith, shall, on the written request of either party served on the other, be submitted to arbitration for resolution. Such arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Arbitration Act, and with the then existing rules of the American Arbitration Association for commercial arbitration. Each party shall be entitled to conduct reasonable discovery pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. Venue for arbitration shall be the county were the Identified Facility is located. The arbitration of all issues, including the determination of any amount of damages suffered by any party hereto by reason of the acts of omission of any party, shall be binding and shall survive the termination of the Agreement. The arbitrator shall be authorized to award the costs and expenses of arbitration to the prevailing party or to otherwise equitably allocate such costs and expenses and to settle the dispute to the mutual satisfaction of the parties. Judgment on the award of the arbitration may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction. To the extent applicable, the parties waive any right to trial by jury.

(b) <u>Choice of Law</u>. This Agreement, and any dispute arising from the relationship between the parties to this Agreement, shall be governed by the law of the state where the Identified Facility is located, including any laws that direct the application of another jurisdiction's laws.

# 15. <u>Acknowledgements</u>.

(a) Kahala Holdings and Operator acknowledge that this Agreement is not a lease and does not create on behalf of Operator any interest, including a leasehold or other possessory interest, in the Identified Facility, the health club, the property on which the Identified Facility is located, or any portion thereof.

(b) Operator acknowledges that, if the Master License Agreement is terminated or expires, this Agreement shall automatically terminate.

(c) Operator acknowledges that, if LA Fitness ceases operating a health club at the Identified Facility, this Agreement shall automatically terminate.

(d) Operator acknowledges that, if the Franchise Agreement is terminated or expires, this Agreement shall automatically terminate.

# 16. <u>Miscellaneous</u>.

(a) Any capitalized term that is not defined in this Agreement shall be have the meaning given it in the Master License Agreement or the Franchise Agreement, as the context requires.

(b) All rights and obligations set forth in this Agreement shall be subject to any limitations or restrictions set forth in the Master License Agreement. This Agreement shall not affect Kahala Holdings' obligations to LA Fitness under the Master License Agreement. Operator hereby expressly assumes and agrees to perform all of the obligations and covenants required by the Master License Agreement with respect to the Identified Facility. Kahala Holdings will maintain the Master License Agreement during the Term of this Agreement, subject, however, to any termination or expiration of the Master License Agreement without fault of Kahala Holdings. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Operator shall not be required to pay any amounts due to LA Fitness under the Master License Agreement so long as Operator pays all amounts owed to Kahala Holdings under this Agreement.

(c) This terms of this Agreement shall be construed according to their fair meaning and not strictly for or against either party.

(d) The captions are for convenience and reference only, and the words contained therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this Agreement.

(e) This Agreement, any Exhibits attached hereto, including the guarantee by any entity or individual designated by Kahala Holdings (attached hereto as Exhibit C), and any agreements executed in furtherance of this Agreement constitute the final, complete, and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement pertaining to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersede all prior and contemporaneous understandings or agreements of the parties. No party has been induced to enter into this Agreement by, nor is any party relying on, any representation or warranty outside those expressly set forth in this Agreement, the attachments there to, and the guarantee. This Agreement may be amended only by a writing signed by both parties.

(f) If a court or an arbitrator of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this Agreement to be illegal, unenforceable, or invalid in whole or in part for any reason, the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions, or portions of them, will not be affected.

(g) This Agreement is binding on the parties and their respective permitted successors and assigns. Nothing in this Agreement (except Section 8) gives any rights or remedies to any person other than the parties and their respective permitted successors and assigns, nor does anything in this Agreement relieve or discharge any obligation or liability of any third person to any party. No provision of this Agreement gives any third person any right of subrogation or action over or against any party to this Agreement.

(h) Operator agrees that it and its employees, agents, representatives, invitees, guests will not be disruptive to the operation of the Identified Facility, will not speak negatively to Members about the Identified Facility, any personnel at the Identified Facility, Kahala Holdings, Kahala Franchising, or LA Fitness and will work cooperatively with the LA Fitness staff.

(i) The Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument and any of the parties hereto may execute the Agreement by signing any such counterpart.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, this Agreement has been executed by the parties as of the Effective Date first above written

# KAHALA HOLDINGS: KAHALA HOLDINGS, LLC.

By:		
Print Name:		
Its:		

# **OPERATOR:**

By:		
Print Name:		
Its:		

# EXHIBIT A

1.	Address of Identified Facility (Recitals):		
2.	Commencement Date (Section 2):		
3.	Operator's Notice Address (Section 12):		



# EXHIBIT B ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER (EFT) AUTHORIZATION

# FRANCHISEE INFORMATION Franchisee Name Store No. Franchisee Phone No. Franchisee Mailing Address (street, city, state, zip) Franchisee Mailing Address and Phone number (if different than above) Contact Name, Address and Phone number (if different than above) Principal's Name and Social Security Number

# BANK ACCOUNT INFORMATION Bank Name Bank Accourt

Bank Name	Bank Account Number	Bank Routing Number
		[: [: 9 Characters
Bank Mailing Address (street, city, state	e, zip)	
Bank Phone Number		

# PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION

Franchisee hereby authorizes Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. (the "Payee"), to initiate withdrawals from the Bank Account indicated on this form, and hereby authorizes the Bank to honor and charge the Bank Account for electronic funds transfers or drafts drawn on the Bank Account and payable to Payee. The amount of such charge shall be set forth in a notice from the Payee presented to the Bank on the day of the week set forth in your franchise agreement, which may be modified by Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. or its affiliates. The Franchisee agrees to execute such additional documents as may be reasonably requested by the Payee or the Bank to evidence the interest of this EFT Authorization. This authority shall remain in full force and effect until the Payee has received written notification from the Franchisee in such time and manner as to afford the Payee and the Bank to act on such notice. The Franchisee understands that the termination of this authorization does not relieve the Franchisee of its obligations to make payments to the Payee. Payee may assign its rights and obligations under this EFT Authorization to Payee's affiliates or agents. Payee may change its designated affiliates or agents at Payee's discretion.

Signature:	Date:

# NOTE: FRANCHISEE MUST ATTACH A VOIDED OR COMPLETED CHECK RELATING TO THE BANK ACCOUNT.

# ATTACH VOIDED OR COMPLETED CHECK HERE

### EXHIBIT C GUARANTEE

IN ORDER TO INDUCE Kahala Holdings, LLC ("Kahala Holdings") to enter into that certain Single-Unit Facility License Agreement ("Agreement") dated \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_, with \_\_\_\_\_\_, ("Operator") covering the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* store located in the LA Fitness Club located at \_\_\_\_\_\_, the undersigned (the "Guarantor"), hereby personally guarantees the payment and performance of and agrees to pay and perform as a primary obligor all liabilities, obligations and duties (including, but not limited to, payment of the Access Fee) imposed upon Operator under the terms of the Agreement, as if Guarantor had executed the Agreement.

Guarantor hereby waives notice of acceptance of this Guarantee and all other notices in connection herewith or in connection with the liabilities, obligations and duties guaranteed hereby, including notices of default under the Agreement, and waives diligence, presentment and suit on the part of Kahala Holdings in the enforcement of any liability, obligation or duty guaranteed hereby.

Suit may be brought and maintained against Guarantor by Kahala Holdings to enforce any liability, obligation or duty guaranteed hereby without joinder of any other person. The liability of Guarantor shall not be affected by any termination of the Agreement, to the extent that Operator thereafter continues to be liable thereunder.

All sums payable by Guarantor under this Guarantee shall be payable at the principal address of Kahala Holdings, in the City of Scottsdale, Maricopa County, Arizona. Guarantor specifically agrees that any action under this Guarantee may be maintained in Maricopa County, Arizona, and Guarantor specifically submits to the jurisdiction and venue of such courts with respect to any such action.

Guarantor agrees that if Kahala Holdings shall employ legal counsel to present, enforce or defend any or all of Kahala Holdings' rights or remedies hereunder, then, in any such event, Guarantor shall pay any attorneys' fees and expenses incurred by Kahala Holdings.

Guarantor agrees that the Agreement and this Guarantee may be assigned by Kahala Holdings. No such assignment nor any assignment by Operator, with or without the consent of Kahala Holdings, shall operate to extinguish or diminish the liability of Guarantor. This Guarantee shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Kahala Holdings and Guarantor and their respective heirs, successors and assigns.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, this Guarantee shall continue to be effective or be reinstated, as the case may be, if at any time, payment, or any part thereof, of any or all of any liability, obligation or duty guaranteed hereunder is rescinded or must otherwise be restored or returned by Kahala Holdings upon the insolvency, bankruptcy, or reorganization of Operator, any other guarantor of the Agreement or otherwise, all as though such payment had not been made. Notwithstanding any modification, discharge or extension of any liability, obligation or duty guaranteed hereunder or any amendment, modification, stay or cure of Kahala Holdings' rights which may occur in any bankruptcy or reorganization case or proceeding concerning Operator, whether permanent or temporary, and whether assented to by Kahala Holdings, Guarantor hereby agrees that Guarantor shall be obligated to pay or perform any liability, obligation or duty guaranteed hereunder in accordance with the terms of this Guarantee in effect on the date hereof.

# **GUARANTOR**:

# [INSERT INDIVIDUAL NAME HERE]

Print Name: \_\_\_\_\_

Date:

# EXHIBIT D

# COPY OF EXECUTED MASTER FACILITY LICENSE AGREEMENT

### MASTER FACILITY LICENSE AGREEMENT

This Master Facility License Agreement ("Agreement") is by and between L.A. FITNESS INTERNATIONAL, LLC, a California limited liability company ("L.A. FITNESS") and KAHALA HOLDINGS, LLC, an Arizona limited liability company ("KAHALA"). The effective date of this Agreement shall be April 1, 2006 ("Effective Date").

### RECITALS

A. L.A. FITNESS is engaged in the business of operating health and fitness facilities (hereafter "Facilities" or "Facility") for L.A. FITNESS club members and their authorized guests (collectively, "Members");

**B.** KAHALA, through itself and its third party Franchisees (as defined below), is engaged in the business of providing food, beverage, and related retail services ; and

C. L.A. FITNESS and KAHALA desire to enter into this Agreement, pursuant to which L.A. FITNESS will provide KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES access to the Service Areas (as defined below) at the Facilities and KAHALA and its approved FRANCHISEES will render the Retail Services (as defined below) at the designated Facilities.

**NOW, THEREFORE**, in consideration of the recitals set forth above and the mutual covenants contained herein, L.A. FITNESS and KAHALA agree as follows:

Grant. Upon the terms, provisions and conditions set forth herein, KAHALA (or its affiliates) 1. shall have the exclusive right (and corresponding obligation) to provide, or to identify third parties to be approved by L.A. FITNESS (hereinafter collectively referred to as "FRANCHISEES") to provide, certain Retail Services as described in the attached Exhibit A to Members at the Service Area in the Facilities that: (a) are opened or acquired by L.A. FITNESS during the five year period immediately following the Effective Date of this Agreement (such period to be referred to as the "Exclusive Grant Period") and are 25,000 square feet or greater, provided that L.A. FITNESS determines in its sole and absolute discretion that Retail Services will be provided at such Facilities; (b) are available now and identified on attached Exhibit C; or (c) are now open, but not available, as they become available during the five year period immediately following the Effective Date of this Agreement and are 25,000 square feet or greater (the locations covered by subsections (a), (b), and (c) above shall be collectively referred to as the "Covered Locations"). KAHALA acknowledges that L.A. FITNESS can provide any other services at the Facilities except those Retail Services expressly set forth in Exhibit A. KAHALA further acknowledges that, in order to maintain the rights granted in this Section, KAHALA must provide or identify a FRANCHISEE to provide Retail Services at all of the Facilities identified in Exhibit C and any additional Facilities that are 25,000 square feet or larger designated by L.A. FITNESS during the Term. KAHALA shall forfeit the aforementioned exclusivity if this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Sections 13 and 14 hereof. These rights apply only to Facilities located in the United States of America.

2. <u>Designation of and Access to Services Areas</u>. The Services Area in each Facility shall be the area designated by L.A. FITNESS and will be approximately 250 to 500 square feet. KAHALA (and its FRANCHISEES) cannot provide Retail Services outside of the designated Services Area at any Facility without prior written consent from L.A. FITNESS. During the Term, L.A. FITNESS hereby grants KAHALA access to the Service Area at each Facility, for the sole purpose of providing the Retail Services. Subject to KAHALA and its FRANCHISEE's approved Menu Items detailed in Exhibit B hereto, KAHALA shall comply with any term, condition or restriction on its access to and use of the Services Area as designated by L.A. FITNESS from time to time in writing. KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall not have access to any portion of the Facility other than the Services Area at each Facility and the location of any vending services, if applicable.

3. <u>Covered Locations Term, Commencement Date, Rent Commencement Date</u>. Each of the Covered Locations conveyed to KAHALA during the Exclusive Grant Period for the operation of a Nrgize outlet in the Service Area shall (i) have a term that expires at the end of the Exclusive Grant Period if operated by KAHALA, or (ii) have an individual license term of ten (10) full years from each Covered Locations' Commencement Date if operated by a FRANCHISEE. Each Covered Locations' Commencement Date and Rent Commencement Date shall

be determined as follows: (a) for the Facilities identified on the attached Exhibit C, the Commencement Date shall be the earlier of: (i) the date listed on Exhibit C for each Facility as the opening date; or (ii) the actual date the applicable Nrgize outlet in the Service Area opens for business to the Members, subject to the applicable Commencement Date under this Section 3(a) being no earlier than the date the applicable Facility opens to use by its Members and, so long as KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE is using best commercial efforts in diligently pursing the necessary permits, the applicable Commencement Date being automatically extended to the actual date KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE is issued the permit from the applicable governmental agency that allows the subject Nrgize outlet to be opened to the Members; (b) for those Facilities opened or acquired by L.A. FITNESS during the Exclusive Grant Period that are greater than 25,000 square feet, the Commencement Date shall be the earlier of (i) sixty (60) days after the applicable Facility opens to its Members for business; or (ii) the actual date the applicable Nrgize outlet in the Service Area opens for business to the Members, subject to the applicable Commencement Date under this Section 3(b) being automatically extended, so long as KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE is using best commercial efforts in diligently pursing the necessary permits, to the actual date KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE is issued the permit from the applicable governmental agency that allows the subject Nrgize outlet to be opened to the Members; and (c) for those Facilities currently open that become available during the Exclusive Grant Period that are greater than 25,000 square feet, the Commencement Date shall be the earlier of (i) sixty (60) days after L.A. FITNESS grants KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE exclusive physical access to the Service Area of the Facility; or (ii) the actual date the applicable Nrgize outlet in the Service Area opens for business to the Members, subject to the applicable Commencement Date under this Section 3(c) being automatically extended, so long as KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE is using best commercial efforts in diligently pursing the necessary permits, to the actual date KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE is issued the permit from the applicable governmental agency that allows the subject Nrgize outlet to be opened to the Members (the exact date determined for a Covered Location from sub item (a), (b), or (c) above shall be referred to as the "Commencement Date" and "Rent Commencement Date"). The effective date ("Effective Date") of this Agreement shall be April 1, 2006, and, only as it applies to a Single Unit Facility License Agreement entered into by a FRANCHISEE during the Exclusive Grant Period, will continue for ten (10) full years from the Commencement Date of the last Covered Location conveyed by L.A. Fitness to KAHALA during the Exclusive Grant Period ("Term"), unless sooner terminated pursuant to Section 14. hereof There shall be no guaranteed option to extend the Term; however, during the Term, the parties may execute individual agreements for specific Facilities extending the Term.

For each Covered Location conveyed to KAHALA during the Term of this Agreement, KAHALA and L.A.FITNESS shall each execute a Location Memorandum in the form attached hereto as Exhibit I. The Location Memorandum shall be executed by both parties within thirty (30) days of the Commencement Date. Each Location Memorandum shall provide the following: (i) the L.A. FITNESS Facility number and physical address; (ii) the Commencement Date and Rent Commencement Date of the license to occupy the Service Area; and (iii) the Expiration Date of the license to occupy the Service Area.

### 4. KAHALA's Status.

(a) KAHALA acknowledges and agrees that, in providing Retail Services under this Agreement, KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES are acting as independent contractors with respect to L.A. FITNESS.

(b) KAHALA will not engage in any behavior which could reasonably create the impression with any person or entity, either directly or indirectly, that KAHALA, including its employees, agents, FRANCHISEES or representatives, are employees, agents, franchisees or representatives of L.A. FITNESS.

(c) L.A. FITNESS and KAHALA agree that the terms of this Agreement do not constitute an employment agreement between L.A. FITNESS and KAHALA, nor between L.A. FITNESS and any one or more FRANCHISEES. It is also understood and agreed that any FRANCHISEE with whom KAHALA enters a franchise relationship does not enter into a franchise relationship with L.A. FITNESS and has no other relationship with L.A. FITNESS other than that of independent contractor.

(d) KAHALA will provide all of the equipment and supplies needed to provide the Retail Services at the Facilities, including but not limited to its own advertising, computers, credit card machines, telephones, phone service, furnishings, fixtures, equipment, smallwares, employee uniforms, clerical supplies and any other items. (e) This Agreement is not a lease and does not create on behalf of KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES any interest, including a leasehold or other possessory interest, in any Services Area, any health club, any Facility or any property on which any Facility is located. L.A. FITNESS does not transfer any property rights hereunder to KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES and shall continue to occupy, run and manage the Facilities with its own personnel. KAHALA's sole right hereunder shall be to perform Retail Services in the Services Areas of the Facilities subject to the conditions and limitations set forth herein. KAHALA specifically covenants and agrees for L.A. FITNESS' benefit, and as a material condition to this Agreement, that neither this Agreement or any of KAHALA's or its FRANCHISEES rights in connection herewith shall constitute a lease; KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES shall not bring any action against L.A. FITNESS or interpose any defense against L.A. FITNESS based upon a theory that this Agreement constitutes a lease; and KAHALA expressly waives any substantive or procedural rights that KAHALA may have that are predicated upon the rights of a tenant of real property. Notwithstanding the provisions of the foregoing sentence to the contrary, should this Agreement be deemed by any court, governmental authority, or quasi-governmental authority to constitute a lease, in such event L.A. FITNESS shall have the rights and remedies of a landlord of real property available at applicable law.

(f) KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall comply with all applicable state and federal statutes, ordinances, regulations, orders, covenants and restrictions of record and requirements in effect including, but not limited to, those which regulate the providing of Retail Services by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES. KAHALA and/or its FRANCHISEES shall have and maintain current all requisite business licenses for the Services Area of each Facility in which Retail Services are performed and pay all associated personal property, sales, use and income taxes associated with conducting their business within the Facilities. KAHALA further agrees that it and its representatives, agents, employees, and FRANCHISEES and each of their representatives, agents and employees will abide by all laws while in the Facilities, including but not limited to laws against harassment and discrimination, as well as all state and federal labor laws.

(g) KAHALA represents and agrees that it is responsible for compliance with any and all federal, state, or local laws, rules and regulations governing franchise sales and the franchisor-franchisee relationship and that it will comply with all such requirements with respect to its relationship to its FRANCHISEES. Moreover, it is understood and agreed that KAHALA's indemnity obligations in Section 11 will apply to and cover L.A. FITNESS regarding any claims brought against L.A. FITNESS relating to this Section, including but not limited to, claims brought by any FRANCHISEE, any government agency, any enforcement agency or any tax agency.

(h) During the Term of this Agreement, and during the term of any Single Unit Facility License Agreement with its FRANCHISEE, KAHALA agrees to the following: (i) it may not charge its FRANCHISEES under the applicable Franchise Agreement a Continuing Royalty in excess of six percent (6%) of Gross Sales as currently set forth in the approved form of Franchise Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit G and (ii) it may not charge its Franchises under the Single Use Facility License Agreement a Monthly Services Fee of more than the greater of \$1,250 or six percent (6%) of Gross Sales per month as currently set forth in the approved form of Single Use Facility License Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit F.

(i) During the first twenty-four (24) months of this Agreement and to promote the uniform Nrgize brand across L.A. FITNESS' Facilities, KAHALA agrees to not charge an initial franchise fee to any currently existing and operating juice bar owner operating in a Facility who agrees to convert the applicable juice bar to Nrgize and have the license for such Service Area fall under this terms and conditions of this Agreement. Further, in an additional effort to promote the Nrgize bar owners to Mr. David Shick at the notice address set forth in Section 21 below or via email at <u>dbshick@kahalacorp.com</u>.

### 5. KAHALA'S Franchisees.

(a) Prior to executing any agreement with any FRANCHISEE,: KAHALA must screen the prospective FRANCHISEE to verify that the prospective FRANCHISEE meets any criteria specified by L.A. FITNESS in writing to KAHALA from time to time during the Term of this Agreement. During the Term, KAHALA shall provide to L.A. FITNESS any information relating to the FRANCHISEES and their operations at the Facilities, as reasonably requested by L.A. FITNESS from time to time, including an up-to-date list of each

LAFI -- Master Facility License Agt.

FRANCHISEE and the Facility at which each FRANCHISEE provides Retail Services and a copy of the each executed agreement with the FRANCHISEE relating to the Facility. For each Facility at which a FRANCHISEE provides the Retail Services, KAHALA and that FRANCHISEE shall execute an NRGIZE Franchise Agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit G that has already been approved by L.A. FITNESS and a Single-Unit Facility License Agreement (in the form attached as Exhibit F). If L.A. FITNESS is operating a health club at a Facility and the franchise agreement is terminated, expires or, for any other reason, the FRANCHISEE ceases to do business at a Facility, KAHALA shall take over operation of the Services Area or identify another FRANCHISEE to do so.

(b) All persons who perform or manage Retail Services on behalf of KAHALA will be hired, employed, supervised and maintained by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES in accordance with all applicable local, state and federal laws including, without limitation, the Fair Labor Standards Act, Federal Civil Rights Act, Title VII, the ADEA, FMLA, OSHA, and any applicable state Employment Security Act. The parties further agree that KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES shall maintain all legally required insurance (*e.g.* workers' compensation and unemployment) and benefits with regard to their employees, comply with all state and federal wage and hour laws and pay all applicable state, federal and local payroll taxes.

(c) KAHALA understands and agrees that KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES will not be permitted to staff Services Areas with independent contractors, including subcontractors, rather than employees of KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES. However, L.A. FITNESS understands and agrees that KAHALA may appropriately contract with FRANCHISEES to provide the Retail Services in the Service Areas of the Facilities, provided the rights are granted in a manner consistent with this Agreement.

(d) If KAHALA contracts with FRANCHISEES to perform the Retail Services in the Services Areas of the Facilities, KAHALA understands and agrees that the FRANCHISEES are fully responsible for supervising their employees and for the manner and means by which they perform the Retail Services. L.A. FITNESS shall not have the authority or responsibility to hire, supervise, schedule, assign, train, warn, discharge, or discipline any of KAHALA'S or its FRANCHISEES' employees. L.A. FITNESS may give KAHALA notice of any concerns which come to L.A. FITNESS' attention regarding performance or non-performance of any FRANCHISEE's employees. In such circumstances, FRANCHISEE or KAHALA will determine the appropriate action, if any, to be taken regarding such matter or employee.

(e) During the Term of this Agreement, and to the fullest extent permitted by law: (1) KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES may not solicit any current or former employees of L.A. FITNESS for hire; and (2) L.A. FITNESS may not solicit any current or former employees of KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES for hire.

### 6. <u>Fees.</u>

(a) <u>Reservation Fee</u>. In consideration for the rights granted in Section 1, KAHALA shall pay L.A. FITNESS a fee in the amount of \$7,500 for the eleventh (11<sup>th</sup>) Covered Location and each Covered Location thereafter granted to KAHALA for the operation of an Nrgize outlet in the applicable Service Area during the Exclusive Grant Period. Each \$7,500 Reservation Fee shall be payable to L.A. FITNESS no later than the date L.A. FITNESS provides KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE exclusive access to the Service Area in the applicable Covered Location. Each Reservation Fee is refundable pursuant to the terms and conditions of Section 6(b)(3) below.

### (b) Monthly Services Fee.

(1) KAHALA shall pay to L.A. FITNESS \$2,500, which amount represents the non-refundable first and last month's Flat Fee (as defined below), as an initial deposit ("Initial Deposit") for the eleventh (11<sup>th</sup>) Covered Location and each Covered Location thereafter granted to KAHALA for the operation of an Nrgize outlet in the applicable Service Area during the Exclusive Grant Period. Each \$2,500 Initial Deposit shall be payable to L.A. FITNESS no later than the date L.A. FITNESS provides KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE exclusive access to the Service Area in the applicable Covered Location.

(2) In consideration for the right to provide Retail Services at the Facilities, for each Covered Location granted to KAHALA for the operation of an Nrgize outlet in the applicable Service Area during the Exclusive Grant Period, KAHALA shall pay L.A. FITNESS a non-refundable and continuing monthly services fee ("Monthly Services Fee") in an amount equal to the greater of: (i) \$1,250 (the "Flat Fee"); or (ii) 6% of Gross Sales for the prior month attributable to the Retail Services (the "Variable Fee"). KAHALA shall pay L.A. FITNESS the Flat Fee for all of the Facilities as one payment on the fifth calendar day of the month (the "Initial Payment"). KAHALA shall not reduce or offset any amount based upon failure by any FRANCHISEE to pay amounts owed to KAHALA. Additionally and if necessary, by the tenth (10<sup>th</sup>) of each month, KAHALA shall remit to L.A. FITNESS a second payment calculated as the total by which the Variable Fee exceeded the Flat Fee for each applicable Facility (the "Second Payment"). During the Term, notwithstanding the fact that any Services Area is not open and operating, if the Facility is open and operating and the applicable Commencement Date has occurred, KAHALA shall pay to L.A. FITNESS the Flat Fee for the applicable Facilities. Unless modified by L.A. FITNESS, as used in this Agreement, the term "Gross Sales" shall have the same meaning as ascribed to that term in the current form of the NRGIZE Franchise Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit G.

(3) If KAHALA fails to timely pay any Monthly Services Fee or any other amount, fee or charge due to L.A. FITNESS hereunder or commits a default with respect to any provision of this Agreement, L.A. FITNESS may use, apply or retain all or any portion of the Reservation Fee for the payment of such amount, fee, payment or other charge or to compensate L.A. FITNESS for any loss or damage which L.A. FITNESS may suffer thereby. If L.A. FITNESS uses or applies all or any portion of the Reservation Fee, KAHALA shall, within 10 days after written demand therefore from L.A. FITNESS, deposit cash with L.A. FITNESS in an amount sufficient to restore the Reservation Fee to the full amount required to be deposited by KAHALA. L.A. FITNESS shall not be required to keep the Reservation Fee, or so much thereof as has not heretofore been applied by L.A. FITNESS, shall be returned, without payment of interest or other increment for its use, to KAHALA within 10 business days of the later of (i) the expiration of the Term hereof, or (ii) the date KAHALA has vacated the respective Service Area and is not otherwise in default of this Agreement. No trust relationship is created herein between L.A. FITNESS and KAHALA with respect to the Reservation Fee.

(c) <u>Access Fee</u>. In consideration for the rights granted in Section 2 KAHALA shall also pay L.A. FITNESS a non-refundable access fee in the amount of \$5,000 (the "Access Fee") for the eleventh (11<sup>th</sup>) Covered Location and each Covered Location thereafter granted to KAHALA for the operation of an Nrgize outlet in the applicable Service Area during the Exclusive Grant Period. Each \$5,000 Access Fee shall be payable to L.A. FITNESS no later than the date L.A. FITNESS provides KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE exclusive access to the Service Area in the applicable Covered Location.

(d) <u>Construction Fee</u>. Except as provided for herein, for the eleventh (11<sup>th</sup>) Facility and each Facility thereafter at which KAHALA or its FRANCHISES is required to provide Retail Services, KAHALA shall also pay to L.A. FITNESS a non-refundable construction fee in the amount of \$35,000 to be applied to L.A. FITNESS' cost of the build-out or conversion of the Services Area at the respective Facility ("Construction Fee"). L.A. FITNESS will only provide at its expense the build-out activities or conversion items to the Services Area referenced in the attached Exhibit H in exchange for payment of the Construction Fee. All additional costs and expenses incurred for KAHALA's intended use will be at KAHALA's sole cost and expense. KAHALA acknowledges and agrees that, for new Facilities opened after January 1, 2007 and each January 1 thereafter during the Exclusive Grant Period, the amount of the Construction Fee paid during the prior year will increase by 4%. For existing Facilities made available to KAHALA during the Term, and Retail Services presently are being provided by a third party, there shall be **no** Construction Fee charged by L.A. FITNESS and KAHALA will be responsible for all costs and expenses incurred in converting the Services Area for KAHALA's use, including the furnishings, equipment and signage.

(e) <u>Commitment Fee</u>. Simultaneously with the execution of this Agreement, and in addition to all other amounts due to L.A. FITNESS, KAHALA shall pay L.A. FITNESS a commitment fee ("Commitment Fee") in the amount of \$500,000. The Commitment Fee will be applied to the fees for the first 10 Service Areas opened at the Facilities listed on Exhibit C, as follows:

Initial Deposit	\$2,500
Access Fee	\$5,000
Reservation Fee	\$7,500
Construction Fee	\$35,000
Total	\$50,000

KAHALA agrees that, except as provided below, the Commitment Fee is fully earned by L.A. FITNESS when paid and is not refundable. In the event this Agreement is terminated prior to L.A. FITNESS conveying ten (10) Facilities to KAHALA for the operation of an Nrgize outlet in the applicable Service Area, KAHALA shall be entitled to a pro rated refund of the Commitment Fee calculated as \$50,000 multiplied by the result of ten (10) less the number of Facilities conveyed to KAHALA prior to termination of this Agreement.

(f) <u>Taxes.</u> In addition to the sums above, KAHALA shall pay all federal, state and local sales, use, privilege, excise, franchise and similar taxes (if any) arising from or based upon this Agreement or the Retail Services provided in the Facilities, other than taxes based upon L.A. FITNESS' income. To the extent such taxes are due based on the payments to L.A. FITNESS, those taxes shall be paid by KAHALA concurrently with the other payments due (*i.e.*, with the Monthly Services Fees or other payments due under this Agreement).

(g) <u>Reports and Audit Rights</u>. KAHALA shall submit to L.A. FITNESS in writing simultaneously with payment of the Variable Fee: (i) the amount of Gross Sales generated during the prior calendar month at each Facility where Retail Services were provided by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES; (ii) a statement for each Facility indicating whether the Monthly Services Fee payment is based upon Gross Sales or represents the minimum payment; and (iii) the aggregate amount of Gross Sales generated during the prior calendar month at all Facilities where Retail Services were provided by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES. L.A. FITNESS or its designee shall have the right at all reasonable times, both during and after the Term on at least ten (10) prior days notice to KAHALA, to inspect, copy and audit the books and records and such other forms, reports, information and data as L.A. FITNESS may designate, applicable to the Retail Services provided by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES at each Facility. KAHALA shall provide to L.A. FITNESS any other data, information or reports as L.A. FITNESS may reasonably require. If the audit shows that there is a deficiency in the payment of any percentage of Gross Sales, 150% of the deficiency shall become immediately due and payable as an additional fee. L.A. FITNESS may require FRANCHISEES to give receipts to all customers and to retain detailed records of each sales transaction for auditing purposes.

(h) <u>Electronic Funds Transfer</u>. L.A. FITNESS may require KAHALA to make any payments required by this Agreement by electronic funds transfer ("EFT") and, in connection with the EFT, L.A. FITNESS may designate any terms and conditions to govern payments by EFT. KAHALA agrees to comply with any terms and conditions designated by L.A. FITNESS relating to EFT. KAHALA shall complete any documentation required by L.A. FITNESS in connection with this Section.

(i) Interest and Late Fees. Any payments accepted by L.A. FITNESS after their applicable due date shall bear interest at an annual rate which is the lesser of 12% or the maximum interest rate permitted by applicable law. In addition, any payments received three (3) days or more after the due date may be assessed an additional fee equal to 10% of the original payment due. The provisions herein for late fees shall not be construed to extend the date for payment of any sums required to be paid by KAHALA hereunder or to relieve KAHALA of its obligation to pay all such sums at the time or times herein stipulated. Neither the demand for, nor collection by, L.A.FITNESS of such late fees shall be construed as a cure of any default on the part of KAHALA. The late fee shall be deemed an additional fee, and the right to require it shall be in addition to all of L.A. FITNESS' other rights and remedies hereunder or at law and shall not be construed as liquidated damages or as limiting L.A. FITNESS' remedies in any manner. It is agreed that said late fee is a fair and reasonable fee under the circumstances, and it shall not be construed as interest on a debt payment. In the event any fee imposed hereunder or under any other

LAFI - Master Facility License Agt.

section of this Agreement is either stated to be or construed as interest, then no such interest charge shall be calculated at a rate which is higher than the maximum rate which is allowed under the usury laws of the applicable state, which maximum rate of interest shall be substituted for the rate in excess thereof, if any, computed pursuant to this Agreement.

(j) <u>Enforcement Costs</u>. KAHALA shall reimburse L.A. FITNESS for any fees, costs, expenses or other charges incurred by L.A. FITNESS to enforce this Agreement, including attorneys' fees and costs.

7. Use of Services Areas. In the Services Area in each Facility, KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES shall provide to the Members the Retail Services described in Exhibit A, including selling or distributing any Menu Items or other items required by L.A. FITNESS. The Retail Services provided by KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall be subject to all restrictions set forth in Exhibit A, as modified by L.A. FITNESS from time to time as provided in Exhibit A. KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall have the exclusive right to perform these Retail Services within the Services Areas of the Facilities starting on the Commencement Date for each Facility and continuing through the Term of this Agreement. L.A. FITNESS shall have the right to inspect, at any reasonable time, any Services Area within any Facility to determine whether KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE are in compliance with this Agreement and any other agreements relating to the Facility. From time to time, L.A. FITNESS may arrange temporary promotions, sometimes involving third parties, to give away items (including food and merchandise) to its Members as part of its own marketing and promotions. Such a temporary promotion shall not exceed 15 consecutive days in length and, at L.A. FITNESS' discretion, if appropriate, will include KAHALA and/or FRANCHISEES.

#### 8. KAHALA's Rights and Limitations.

(a) <u>Build-Out Of Retail Services Areas</u>. For all new Facilities, L.A. FITNESS will only provide at its expense the build-out to the Services Area referenced in the attached Exhibit H in exchange for payment of the Construction Fee. All additional costs and expenses incurred for KAHALA's intended use will be at KAHALA's sole cost and expense. Additionally, for the Orange, Connecticut and Lake Success, New York Facilities, and for existing Facilities with previously existing Service Areas where no Construction Fee is applicable, KAHALA shall be solely responsible for the renovation and modification of the Service Area. L.A. FITNESS shall have the right to approve any construction plans for any Services Areas. Once L.A. FITNESS has approved any Services Area to open for business, KAHALA can either commence providing Retail Services at that Services Area or permit a FRANCHISEE to provide Retail Services at that Services Area. If a FRANCHISE will provide the Retail Services at any Facility, KAHALA and the FRANCHISEE will enter into a NRGIZE Franchise Agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit G that includes certain provisions required by L.A. FITNESS.

(b) <u>Dress Code</u>. KAHALA and its employees, agents and representatives and its FRANCHISEES are required to dress in a professional manner while providing the Retail Services in the Facility. KAHALA's employees and any FRANCHISEE's employees shall be required to wear uniforms, the color and style of which are subject to L.A. FITNESS' prior written approval. Such uniforms shall properly identify KAHALA's or its FRANCHISEE's independent nature, and shall in no way indicate or imply that KAHALA or any of its employees, agents, representatives or FRANCHISEES are employees of L.A. FITNESS. KAHALA may make such arrangements with its employees, agents, representatives or FRANCHISEES as it deems appropriate regarding the purchase and maintenance of such standard uniforms. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE shall require the standard uniform to be worn by all its employees at all times while on duty performing Retail Services within the Facility.

(c) <u>Cleanliness</u>. KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES are required to maintain the Services Areas in a spotless, clean, health and sanitary condition at all times. KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall store garbage, trash and other refuse in rat-proof and insect-proof containers inside the Services Areas, and remove the same frequently and regularly and, if directed by L.A. FITNESS, by such means and methods and at such times and intervals as are designated by L.A. FITNESS, at KAHALA's or its FRANCHISEE's sole cost and expense. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES being cited or warned by county, state, or city health inspectors for maintaining unsatisfactory working conditions may become grounds for termination of this Agreement.

(d) <u>Professional Conduct</u>. KAHALA and its employees, agents, representatives, and FRANCHISEES shall, at all times, maintain the highest possible professional standards of conduct while providing

LAFI – Master Facility License Agt.

03/06

the Retail Services under this Agreement, including professional language and appearance. KAHALA shall at all times be aware that the Facility is a health and fitness facility seeking to serve its Members with the highest level of service. KAHALA and its employees, agents, representatives and FRANCHISEES shall at all times abide by the L.A. FITNESS Club Rules and Regulations attached as Exhibit D hereto.

(e) <u>Equipment Use</u>. Except to the extent such individuals are Members, KAHALA and its employees, agents and representatives and its FRANCHISEES are not authorized to use, and agree not to use, nor will they wear KAHALA or FRANCHISEE uniforms while using, the fitness equipment or other services of the Facilities. KAHALA acknowledges and agrees that the equipment and services, are for use by L.A. FITNESS instructors, employees, and Members.

(f) <u>No Rights to Intellectual Property</u>. KAHALA shall not be permitted to use any intellectual property of L.A. FITNESS (including any trademarks or service marks) in any manner or on any document, including but not limited to advertisements for the Retail Services, business cards, stationery, forms, contacts, and/or receipts without the prior written consent of the Executive Vice President, CEO, CFO, or Chairman of L.A. FITNESS. Similarly, L.A. FITNESS shall not be permitted to use any of the intellectual property of KAHALA (including any trademarks or service marks) in any manner or on any document without the prior written consent of the Executive Vice President, CEO, CFO, or Chairman of the Executive Vice President, CEO, CFO or Chairman of KAHALA. Nothing in this Agreement provides either party with any ownership interest in or rights to use any trademarks or service marks owned by the other party.

(g) <u>Parking Regulations.</u> KAHALA and FRANCHISEES' employees, agents, representatives and contractors shall abide by the vehicle parking regulations as set forth by L.A. FITNESS relating to the Facility, including payment of parking fees for employees if required under the L.A. FITNESS Premises Lease.

(h) <u>Signs, Advertising and Storage.</u> KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES shall not place any sign upon the exterior of the L.A. FITNESS Facility. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES shall not place any signs, banners or point of purchase materials in, upon or about the Service Area or the facility without the express prior consent of L.A. FITNESS. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES shall post a sign in a conspicuous location in the Service Area (and include in all other signs and promotional materials used by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE), which identifies KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE's name and states that the Nrgize outlet is independently owned and operated by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE and is not in any way affiliated with L.A. FITNESS. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE shall not store or display any signs or merchandise outside the Service Area.

(i) <u>Hazardous Materials.</u> KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE shall not use or introduce in the Service Area or facility any hazardous or toxic materials.

9. <u>Maintenance, Repairs and Alterations</u>. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES, at its sole expense, shall keep in good order, condition and repair the Services Areas and all fixtures, furniture and equipment in the Services Areas. KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall not make, without L.A. FITNESS' prior written consent, any alterations, improvements, additions or installations to any Services Area ("Improvements"). If KAHALA makes any Improvements without the prior written approval of L.A. FITNESS, or uses a contractor not expressly approved by L.A. FITNESS, L.A. FITNESS may, at any time during the Term of this Agreement, require that KAHALA remove any part of the same at no expense to L.A. FITNESS. All Improvements shall be made and done in good and workmanlike manner and shall use good and sufficient quality and material. Improvements shall be done in such a manner so as to not impact operations at the Facilities and shall be the property of L.A. FITNESS and remain upon and be surrendered with the Services Areas by KAHALA at the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

#### 10. <u>Insurance</u>.

(a) <u>Required Insurance</u>. KAHALA, through itself or its FRANCHISEES for sub items 10(a)(3) and 10 (a)(4) below, shall, at their expense, obtain and keep in full force and effect during the Term of this Agreement: (1) Comprehensive General Liability Insurance in an amount of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence, and with an aggregate of not less than \$2,000,000, of bodily injury and property damage combined ; (2)

LAFI – Master Facility License Agt.

03/06

if the products sold by KAHALA are not covered by the General Liability Policy, Product Liability insurance in an amount of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence, and with an aggregate of not less than \$2,000,000 for merchandise, goods, products, food and beverages sold in the Services Areas and Facilities by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES; (3) Workers' Compensation insurance coverage to the full extent required by federal, state and/or local law; and (4) fire insurance with a Standard Form Extended Coverage Endorsement in an amount of at least the full insurance value of the improvements, fixtures, equipment and merchandise in the Services Areas. In addition to the required insurance coverages above, KAHALA, at its expense, shall obtain and keep in full force and effect during the Term of this Agreement an umbrella excess liability insurance policy in the amount of \$5,000,000.

Insurance Policies. KAHALA shall deliver to L.A. FITNESS copies of the insurance (b) policies required under this Section 10, or certificates evidencing the existence and amounts of such insurance, prior to KAHALA's (or its FRANCHISEE'S) occupancy of the Services Areas. L.A. FITNESS, the property manager, the property owner and any other entity or individual designated by L.A. FITNESS shall be additional insureds in such policies to the extent each has an insurable interest. All insurance policies herein to be procured by KAHALA shall: (i) be issued by insurance companies authorized to do business in the state where the facility is located, with a policy holder's rating of at least A- and a financial rating of not less than IX in the most recently published "Best Insurance Guide"; (ii) be written as primary policy coverage and non-contributory with respect to any coverage which L.A. FITNESS may carry; and (iii) be, with respect to the aggregate amount of insurance required by Section 10(a)(1) and 10(a)(2) of this Agreement, in addition to the insurance required for each Facility as provided in the individual Single-Unit Facility License Agreement. No such policy shall be cancelled or subject to reduction of coverage or other modification except after 30 days prior written notice to L.A. FITNESS. KAHALA shall, at least 30 days prior to the expiration of such policies, furnish L.A. FITNESS with copies of any renewal policies. KAHALA's insurance carriers shall waive all subrogation rights and any similar rights of recovery against or contribution from L.A. FITNESS.

(c) <u>No Representation of Adequate Coverage</u>. L.A. FITNESS makes no representation that the required types of insurance coverage and minimum coverages specified in Section 10 are adequate to cover KAHALA's or its FRANCHISEES' property or obligations under this Agreement. Compliance with the above insurance requirements shall not limit the liability of KAHALA under this Agreement.

Indemnification. KAHALA shall indemnify and hold harmless (to the full extent permitted by 11. law) L.A. FITNESS and its parent, affiliates and subsidiaries and their respective successors, assigns, past and present stockholders, directors, officers, employees, agents, and representatives (collectively "Indemnitees") from and against any and all claims for damage to the person or property of anyone or any entity arising from KAHALA's or its FRANCHISEE's use of any Services Area or Facility, from the conduct of KAHALA'S or any FRANCHISEE's business or from any activity, work or things done, permitted or suffered by KAHALA or any FRANCHISEE in or about any Services Area, any Facility or elsewhere and shall further indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnitees from and against any and all claims, costs and expenses arising from any breach or default in the performance of any obligation on KAHALA's or any FRANCHISEE's part to be performed under the terms of this Agreement (or any other Agreement), or arising from any act or omission of KAHALA or any FRANCHISEE, or any of KAHALA's agents, representatives, FRANCHISEES, contractors, employees or invitees and from and against all costs, attorneys' fees, expenses and liabilities incurred by any Indemnitee as a result of any such use, conduct, activity, work, things done, permitted or suffered, breach, default or negligence, and in dealing therewith, including by not limited to, the defense or pursuit of any claim or any action or proceeding involved therein; and in case any action or proceeding be brought against any Indemnitee by reason of any such matter, KAHALA upon such notice from any Indemnitee shall defend the same at KAHALA's (or FRANCHISEE's) expense by counsel satisfactory to L.A. FITNESS and the Indemnitees shall cooperate with KAHALA (or the FRANCHISEE) in such defense. The Indemnitees need not have first paid any such claim in order to be so indemnified. KAHALA, as a material part of the consideration to L.A. FITNESS, hereby assumes all risk of damage to property of L.A. FITNESS or KAHALA or injury to persons in, upon or about the Services Area arising from any cause and KAHALA hereby waives all claims in respect thereof against the Indemnitees. The right of the Indemnitees to indemnification by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES under this Section shall be independent of the right of L.A. FITNESS to the insurance to be provided pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any provision of this Section 11 to the contrary, KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall have no indemnification obligation to L.A. FITNESS under this Section 11 for accidents or occurrences of any Members or L.A. FITNESS agents,

contractors, or employees occurring in any area in front of the Service Area (the "General Area") so long as L.A. FITNESS, its agents, contractors, and/or employees regularly clean and maintain the General Area at issue.

L.A. FITNESS agrees to indemnify and hold KAHALA, its FRANCHISEES, and its affiliates (including its parent and subsidiary companies), and its stockholders, directors, officers, attorneys, employees, agents, successors and assignees harmless for, from and against any and all claims, liabilities, causes of action, demands, obligations, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or relating to L.A. FITNESS' or its employees and agents' gross negligence or willful misconduct at or around the Facility.

12. Exemption of L.A. FITNESS from Liability. All property kept, stored or maintained in any Facility by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES shall be so kept, stored or maintained at the sole risk of KAHALA. KAHALA hereby agrees that L.A. FITNESS shall not be liable for injury to KAHALA's or its FRANCHISEE's business or any loss of income therefrom or for loss of or damage to the goods, merchandise, products or other property of KAHALA or its employees, FRANCHISEES, agents, representatives, invitees, customers or contractors, whether such damage or injury is caused by or results from theft, fire, steam, electricity, gas, water or rain, or from the breakage, leakage, obstruction or other defects of pipes, sprinklers, wires, appliances, plumbing, air conditioning or lighting fixtures, or from any other cause, whether said damage or injury results from conditions arising upon the Services Areas or upon other portions of any Facility, or from other sources or places, or from new construction or the repair, alteration or improvement of any part of any Services Area or any Facility of the equipment, fixtures or appurtenances applicable thereto, and regardless of whether the cause of such damage or injury or the means of repairing the same is inaccessible, L.A. FITNESS shall not be liable for any damages arising from any act or neglect of any Member or any other licensee, occupant or user of any Facility, nor from the failure of L.A. FITNESS to enforce the provisions of any other agreement of any other licensee, occupant or user of any Facility, nor from the failure of L.A. FITNESS to enforce the provisions of any other agreement of any other licensee, occupant or user of any Facility.

13. <u>Default</u>. The occurrence of any of the following constitutes a material breach or default (herein "Default") by KAHALA under this Agreement:

(a) KAHALA fails to pay any amount as required under this Agreement and such failure continues for five (5) business days after KAHALA's receipt of written notice of such non-payment.

(b) KAHALA makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; files or has filed against it a petition for reorganization or arrangement under any law relating to bankruptcy; the appointment of a trustee or receiver to take possession of substantially all of KAHALA's assets located at one or more Facilities or of KAHALA's interest in this Agreement; or has filed against it an attachment, execution, or other judicial seizure of substantially all of its assets located at one or more Facilities or of KAHALA's interest in this Agreement.

(c) KAHALA fails to obtain and have current insurance coverage as required in Section 10 and to timely provide proper proof thereof to L.A. FITNESS.

(d) KAHALA makes an assignment under Section 23 without L.A. FITNESS' prior written

consent.

(e) KAHALA (or any other person or entity subject to Section 25) violates the "Non-Disclosure" provisions under Section 25.

(f) KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES provide Retail Services that are not authorized by L.A. FITNESS under Exhibit A or otherwise in writing, fail to provide any required Retail Services, or fail to cease offering any Retail Service that was previously authorized by L.A. FITNESS but which is no longer authorized, and such default remains uncured for twenty-four (24) hours after KAHALA's receipt of written notice of such default.

(g) KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES, employees, agents or representatives fail to comply with Sections 6(g), 7, and 8(b) through 8(i) of this Agreement, and the L.A. FITNESS Club Rules and Regulations established by L.A. FITNESS from time to time in its sole discretion (current Club Rules and Regulations are attached as Exhibit D), and such default remains uncured for twenty-four (24) hours after KAHALA's receipt of written notice of such default.

LAFI -- Master Facility License Agt.

(h) KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES fails to perform any other material provision of this Agreement (including any amendment or modification), provided that such failure continues for 30 days after L.A. FITNESS provides written notice to KAHALA of such failure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a shorter period of time is specifically stipulated in this Agreement (including any amendment or modification) for any specific failure to be remedied, that shorter time period shall be enforced instead of the aforementioned 30-day period.

(i) KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES remains in default of any other agreement with L.A. FITNESS or any agreement relating to the operation of the Services Areas beyond the applicable cure period (if any).

Any Default under Sections 13(a) through Section 13(e) above shall be deemed a "General Default." Any Default under Sections 13(f) through 13(i) above shall be deemed a "Facility Default."

#### 14. <u>Termination</u>.

(a) <u>Effect of a General Default</u>. Upon the occurrence of a General Default as set forth under Sections 13(a) through 13(e) above, L.A. FITNESS may terminate this Agreement. Upon the termination of this Agreement, KAHALA's right to provide, and to identify FRANCHISEES to provide Retail Services at the Facilities shall terminate and KAHALA's or its FRANCHISEE's right of access to the Facilities shall terminate. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in any agreement between KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES, upon the termination of this Agreement, KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall, within 3 days after receipt of notice from L.A. FITNESS, vacate all Facilities and remove all personal belongings, materials and products of KAHALA or the FRANCHISEES from all Facilities. KAHALA shall immediately pay all monies due hereunder. L.A. FITNESS shall have the right upon the termination of this Agreement to provide, or identify third parties (including any of the FRANCHISEES) to provide, Retail Services at the Facilities.

Effect of a Facility Default. Upon the occurrence of a Facility Default as set forth under (b) Sections 13(f) through 13(i) above, L.A. FITNESS may terminate the rights granted in this Agreement for the applicable Facility only and any other agreements relating to that particular Facility only. Upon termination of the agreements for a specific Facility, KAHALA's (or its FRANCHISEE's) right to provide Retail Services at that Facility shall terminate and KAHALA's right of access to that Facility shall terminate. Within 3 days after receipt of such notice, KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE shall vacate the respective Facility and remove all personal belongings, materials and products of KAHALA or the FRANCHISEE from the respective Facility. KAHALA shall immediately pay all monies due to L.A. FITNESS for the respective Facility. L.A. FITNESS shall have the right upon the termination of the rights for any Facility to provide, or identify third parties (including any of the FRANCHISEES) to provide, Retail Services at the respective Facility. KAHALA's rights under this Agreement with respect any other Facilities shall continue unless and until those rights are terminated or expire. In the alternative, L.A. FITNESS may, in its sole and absolute discretion, compel KAHALA to terminate the Single Unit Facility License Agreement for the specific Facility and terminate FRANCHISEE's right of access to that Facility. In the event L.A. FITNESS exercises this option, KAHALA will continue to remain obligated to pay the Flat Fee at the Facility through the term of this Agreement, regardless of whether KAHALA or a new replacement FRANCHISEE continues to operate the applicable specific Facility.

(c) <u>Termination Generally</u>. Termination of this Agreement or any rights to provide Retail Services at any Facility shall not prejudice any other remedy to which L.A. FITNESS may be entitled either at law, in equity, or under this Agreement. If this Agreement is terminated prior to the expiration of the Term, L.A. FITNESS shall be entitled to all damages provided under the Agreement and as otherwise entitled by law.

(d) <u>Condition of Services Areas.</u> In addition to the other obligations set forth in this Section, when KAHALA vacates any Services Area, that Area shall be in the same condition as received, ordinary wear and tear excepted, clean and free of debris; except, any improvements made to the Services Area, at the option of L.A. FITNESS, shall remain. Any damage or deterioration of any Services Area shall not be deemed ordinary wear and tear if the same could have been prevented by good maintenance practices by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE. KAHALA shall repair any damage to any Services Area occasioned by the installation or removal of KAHALA's or its FRANCHISEE's trade fixtures, furnishings and equipment. KAHALA shall remove all of

LAFI – Master Facility License Agt.

KAHALA's or its FRANCHISEE's personal belongings, materials, merchandise, goods and products from the Services Areas and shall leave the Services Areas in a "broom clean" condition.

15. <u>Remedies</u>. Except as otherwise provided for in this Agreement, no remedy conferred by any of the specific provisions of the Agreement is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy. Each and every remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder, now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. The election of any one or more remedies by either party shall not constitute a waiver of the right to pursue other available remedies.

Cessation of Business. If L.A. FITNESS closes a Facility or ceases operating any Facility for any 16. reason except for a Sale Transaction (as such term is defined below), upon written notice by L.A. FITNESS to KAHALA, this Agreement and the rights granted to KAHALA or its FRANCHISEE shall terminate as to that Facility (the "Closure Date"). As of the Closure Date, no Monthly Services Fees shall be due to L.A. FITNESS for that Facility. In addition, KAHALA shall comply with the applicable obligations set forth in Section 14. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary and except for a Sale Transaction, if L.A. FITNESS voluntarily ceases operating any Facility covered by this Agreement, KAHALA or the applicable FRANCHISEE shall be reimbursed by L.A. FITNESS for their unamortized actual documented cost of the construction and improvements performed to the Service Area, including the applicable Construction Fee paid to L.A. FITNESS, amortized over 10 years based on the applicable Commencement Date and Closure Date (the "Reimbursement"). The Reimbursement shall be paid by L.A. FITNESS to KAHALA or the applicable FRANCHSIEE within thirty (30) days of the later of the Closure Date or date L.A. FITNESS receives supporting cost documentation. In addition, if L.A. FITNESS closes and replaces a Facility subject to this Agreement, KAHALA or the applicable FRANCHISEE shall have the right of first refusal for any replacement Facility opened within one and a half (1.5) miles of the closed Facility, with such right of first refusal lasting thirty (30) days after KAHALA's receipt of notice from L.A. FITNESS of the replacement Facility location and projected opening date. L.A. FITNESS and KAHALA hereby acknowledge and agree that the terms and conditions of this Section 16 do not apply to any consolidation or merger of L.A. FITNESS and its affiliated entities into or with a third party entity or the acquisition of substantially all of the assets or stock of L.A. FITNESS or its parent and affiliated entities by a third party entity, the result of which would be a new third party owner of the L.A. FITNESS nationwide chain of health clubs (hereinafter, a "Sale Transaction").

17. <u>Interruptions.</u> There shall be no abatement of license payments and L.A. FITNESS shall not be liable in any respect whatsoever for the inadequacy, stoppage, interruption or discontinuance of any utility or service due to riot, strike, labor dispute, breakdown, accident, repair or other cause beyond L.A. FITNESS' reasonable control or in cooperation with governmental requests for direction.

Arbitration. Any controversy, dispute or claim between the parties arising out of, in connection 18. with or in relation to this Agreement including but not limited to the negotiation, execution, coverage, scope, performance, non-performance, breach, interpretation, termination, enforceability or validity of this Agreement or any alleged fraud in connection therewith, shall, on the written request of either party served on the other, be submitted to arbitration for resolution. Such arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Arbitration Act, and with the then existing rules of the American Arbitration Association for commercial arbitration in Orange County, California. Each party shall be entitled to conduct reasonable discovery pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Civil Procedure of the State of California. Venue for arbitration shall be the County of Orange, State of California. The arbitration of all issues, including the determination of any amount of damages suffered by any party hereto by reason of the acts of omission of any party, shall be binding and shall survive the termination of the Agreement. The arbitrator shall be authorized to award the costs and expenses of arbitration to the prevailing party or to otherwise equitably allocate such costs and expenses and to settle the dispute to the mutual satisfaction of the parties. Judgment on the award of the arbitration may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction. To the extent applicable, the parties waive any right to trial by jury. Nothwithstanding anything to the contrary, L.A. FITNESS shall have the right and option to maintain a summary action for eviction, such as an unlawful detainer action, in a court of competent jurisdiction. Furthermore, anything to the contrary notwithstanding, L.A. FITNESS shall have the right and option to maintain an action for injunctive relief and other equitable relief against KAHALA in a court of competent jurisdiction.

19. <u>Choice of Law</u>. This Agreement, and any dispute arising from the relationship between the parties to this Agreement, shall be governed by California law, including any laws that direct the application of another jurisdiction's laws.

20. <u>Entire Agreement</u>. This Agreement, any Exhibits attached hereto, and any agreements executed in furtherance of this Agreement constitute the final, complete, and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement pertaining to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersede all prior and contemporaneous understandings or agreements of the parties. No party has been induced to enter into this Agreement by, nor is any party relying on, any representation or warranty outside those expressly set forth in this Agreement, and the attachments thereto. However, both parties understand that if KAHALA arranges to have a FRANCHISEE provide the Retail Services at any Facility, each such FRANCHISEE shall enter an agreement with KAHALA, in the exact form attached hereto as Exhibit F that has been previously approved by L.A. FITNESS, for each applicable Facility, prior to being permitted to provide Retail Services in a Facility. This Agreement may be amended only by a writing signed by both parties.

21. <u>Severability of Agreement</u>. If a court or an arbitrator of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this Agreement to be illegal, unenforceable, or invalid in whole or in part for any reason, the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions, or portions of them, will not be affected.

22. <u>Notices</u>. All notices, amendments, waivers, consents, approvals and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing. Any such item requiring delivery must be delivered: (a) in person; (b) by registered, express or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt request; (c) by a reputable, national overnight delivery carrier, provided that a signature upon receipt is required with such delivery; or (d) by a generally recognized courier or messenger service that provides written acknowledgement of receipt by the addressee. Documents are deemed delivered when actually delivered to or delivery is refused at the address for notices.

Notices and deliveries to KAHALA must be made at the following address:

Kahala Corp. Attn: Legal Department 7730 East Greenway Road, Suite 104 Scottsdale, AZ 85260

Notices and deliveries to L.A. FITNESS must be made at the following address:

L.A. Fitness International, LLC Attn: Legal Department 8105 Irvine Center Drive, Suite 200 Irvine, CA 92618

#### 23. Assignment.

(a) <u>By KAHALA</u>. The rights granted by L.A. FITNESS to KAHALA hereunder are personal rights and cannot be transferred or assigned, directly or indirectly, to a third party except with the prior express written approval of L.A. FITNESS, which must be signed by the Executive Vice President, CEO, CFO or Chairman of L.A. FITNESS and which shall be given at L.A. FITNESS' sole and absolute discretion. KAHALA shall not have the right to authorize or permit any person other than KAHALA, its employees and its FRANCHISEES to provide Retail Services at any Facility. Any attempted assignment in violation of this Section 22 shall be void. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section 22, KAHALA may, without L.A. FITNESS' consent (but upon written notice to L.A. FITNESS), assign this Agreement to any entity controlled by, controlling or under common control with KAHALA or to any entity resulting from the consolidation or merger of KAHALA's parent, Kahala Corp., into or with such other entity or the acquisition of substantially all of the assets or stock of KAHALA's parent by such entity, provided the assignee shall be fully subject to all terms, covenants and conditions of this Agreement; as used herein, "control" shall mean ownership of at least 51% of the voting interest together with the right and power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a

LAFI - Master Facility License Agt.

03/06

particular entity. A public offering of KAHALA or its parent's shares, recapitalization, reorganization or sale of a controlling interest in KAHALA shall not require L.A. FITNESS' consent or approval.

(b) <u>By L.A. FITNESS</u>. L.A. FITNESS shall have the right to freely assign its rights and responsibilities under the Agreement to third parties without the approval of KAHALA; provided, however, any assignment of this Agreement shall be delivered in writing to KAHALA within 30 days after being effective against KAHALA.

24. <u>Binding Effect</u>. Except as set forth in Section 11, this Agreement is binding on and benefits only the parties and their respective permitted successors and assigns. Nothing in this Agreement (except Section 11) gives any rights or remedies to any person other than the parties and their respective permitted successors and assigns, nor does anything in this Agreement relieve or discharge any obligation or liability of any third person to any party. No provision of this Agreement gives any third person any right of subrogation or action over or against any party to this Agreement.

25. <u>Nondisclosure</u>. KAHALA recognizes that materials used by L.A. FITNESS in the daily operation of its Facilities, including (but not limited to) forms, procedures memos, manuals, training materials, guest lists and member lists, are considered vital to those operations, and the sharing of such materials with competitors or potential competitors of L.A. FITNESS could have a material detrimental effect on the future profitability of L.A. FITNESS. Accordingly, KAHALA shall not, and shall cause its employees, agents, affiliates, representatives and FRANCHISEES not to, use or disclose any such information without the prior written permission of L.A. FITNESS in each instance. If KAHALA (or any other person subject to this Section) knowingly or negligently uses or shares any such materials with a competitor or potential competitor of L.A. FITNESS, or a member of the general public, or causes or permits any such materials to be shared with such parties, KAHALA has committed a Default of this Agreement and is liable to L.A. FITNESS for all costs, damages and losses of any kind resulting from this breach and L.A. FITNESS may take any actions identified in Section 14(a).

26. <u>Cooperation</u>. KAHALA agrees that it and its employees, agents, representatives, invitees, guests and FRANCHISEES will not be disruptive to the operation of the Facilities, will not speak negatively to Members about the Facilities or personnel and will work cooperatively with the L.A. FITNESS staff.

27. <u>Non-waiver</u>. Any waiver of any right or remedy requires the consent of the party waiving it. Every amendment, waiver, consent or approval must be in writing and expressly designated as such. No failure by any party to insist on the strict performance of any provision of this Agreement, or to exercise any right or remedy, will be deemed a waiver of such performance, right or remedy, or of any other provision of this Agreement. Any single waiver shall not be deemed a continuing waiver.

28. <u>Survival</u>. The representations, warranties and agreements in this Agreement will survive: (a) any investigation made by any party; (b) the execution of this Agreement; and (c) the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

29. <u>Additional Documents and Acts</u>. Each party will sign and deliver additional documents and instruments, and perform additional acts that are commercially reasonable and necessary to perform or evidence its obligations in the Agreement.

30. <u>No Presumption</u>. If any claim is made by a party relating to any conflict, omission or ambiguity in the provisions of this Agreement, no presumption or burden of proof or persuasion will be implied because this Agreement was prepared by or at the request of any party or its counsel. The parties waive any statute or rule of law to the contrary. The parties represent and acknowledge that each has had the opportunity to have respective legal counsel review and advise on the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

31. <u>Interpretation</u>. Unless the context otherwise requires: (a) a term has the meaning assigned to it; (b) "or" is not exclusive; (c) words in the singular include the plural, and words in the plural include the singular; (d) "amended," with reference to a law, statute, rule, regulation, charter or bylaws, is deemed to be followed by "from time to time"; (e) "herein," "hereof" and other similar words refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to

LAFI - Master Facility License Agt.

03/06

any particular Section, Paragraph, Subsection, paragraph, clause, or other subdivision; (f) all references to "Section," "Paragraph," or "Exhibit," refer to the particular Section, Paragraph in or Exhibit attached to this Agreement; and (g) "including," when following any general provision, sentence, clause, statement, term or matter, will be deemed to be followed by, "but not limited to...".

32. <u>Construction</u>. This Agreement shall not be construed for or against any party on the basis that such party or its legal representative caused part or all of this Agreement to be drafted.

33. <u>Specific Performance</u>. It might be impossible to measure in money the damage to a party if another party breaches this Agreement. If any such breach occurs, the party damaged might not have an adequate remedy at law or in damages. Therefore, each party consents to the issuance of an injunction or other appropriate interim or provisional relief, and the enforcement of other equitable remedies, against it to compel performance of this Agreement.

34. <u>Headings: Exhibits</u>. The headings in the Agreement are only for convenience and ease of reference and are not to be considered in construction or interpretation. All exhibits, schedules and appendices attached to this Agreement are incorporated herein.

35. <u>Counterparts</u>. The Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument and any of the parties hereto may execute the Agreement by signing any such counterpart.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, L.A. FITNESS and KAHALA hereto have executed this Agreement this day and year first above written.

INTERNATIONAL, LLC L.A. FITNESS

Name/Title: Paul Norris, Executive Vice President Address: 8105 Irvine Center Drive, Suite 200, Irvine, CA, 92618 Telephone: 949-255-7405 KAHALA HOLDINGS, LLC

Name/Title: Kevin Blackwell, Chairman & CEO of its Sole Member Address: 7730 East Greenway Road, Suite 104, Scottsdale, AZ, 85260 Telephone: 480-443-0200

#### Exhibit Schedule

J

Exhibit A – Retail Services

Exhibit B – NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Menu

Exhibit C - L.A. FITNESS Locations & Opening Dates

Exhibit D - L.A. FITNESS Club Rules and Regulations

Exhibit E – Intentionally Deleted

Exhibit E – Single-Unit Facility License Agreement Exhibit G – Form of Approved Nrgize Individual Franchise Agreement Exhibit H – L.A. FITNESS Services Area Build-Out Specifications

Exhibit I - Location Memorandum

ï

#### Exhibit A – Retail Services

Permitted Use - The Services Areas shall be occupied and used by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES for the retail operation of an nrgize Lifestyle Café selling, among other menu items, smoothies, blended fruit and vegetable drinks, power smoothies, chillers, fresh juice, variety of lemonades, and other non-alcoholic beverages such as juices, soft drinks, sports drinks, hot and iced tea, hot and iced coffee, and bottled water as well as proprietary functional powders (in drinks only), breakfast items, fresh fruit, nutritional bars, nutritional supplements (in drinks only), sandwiches, salads and healthy meals listed on the menu attached as Exhibit B to the Master Facility License Agreement as Exhibit B (collectively, "Menu Items"). KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall sell only the Menu Items and shall sell any of the Menu Items required to be sold at Service Areas by L.A. FITNESS. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES shall maintain the highest standards in quality and preparation of such Menu Items. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES may alter the Menu, sell periodic promotion items, or sell additional Menu Items to be consistent with other nrgize locations and regional preferences, all subject to L.A. FITNESS' prior written approval. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES shall be permitted to offer samples of L.A. FITNESS approved KAHALA products on or in front of the Services Areas' counters. KAHALA shall also have the exclusive right to provide vending services for beverages and snacks in the Facilities, provided there is suitable space in the Facility for the vending machines and subject to L.A. Fitness' prior approval of the applicable display racks. **KAHALA** acknowledges that under no circumstances will the vending machines be allowed to have third party "advertising wraps" around them or contain multi-color third party illuminated advertising unless L.A. Fitness has provide its express consent. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES may also sell, on a non-exclusive basis, the following: (i) "Kahala" and/or "nrgize-branded" apparel and accessories; and (ii) convenience items, to be defined as chap stick, socks, locks, batteries, swim goggles, swim caps, racquet balls, deodorant, hair bands, weight lifting gloves, head phones, key chains, magazine and workout journals. If KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES offer vending services as described above, KAHALA shall reimburse L.A. FITNESS for all costs it incurs in supplying power to the vending machines, as reasonably determined by L.A. FITNESS.

Any item not listed on Exhibit B may not be sold by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES at the Facility without L.A. FITNESS' prior written approval. KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES are strictly prohibited from cooking any food products at the Facility, and from preparing any sandwiches or salads within the Facility (i.e., all sandwiches and salads sold from the Service Area must be brought in fully prepared and pre-packaged). KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES may sell, on a non-exclusive basis, vitamins, minerals, functional powders and nutritional supplements in food or drink products only, and not in connection with any false or misleading diet or muscle building claims. KAHALA and its FRANCHISEES shall cease selling any Menu Item and any other item sold at the Facility or cease using any ingredient in any Menu Item if L.A. FITNESS, in its sole and absolute discretion, notifies KAHALA in writing that the item may not be sold or used in the Facilities. KAHALA agrees that the web site evaluation services provided by "consumerlab.com", or a mutually acceptable replacement designated by the parties, shall govern the acceptability of vitamins, minerals, functional powders, nutritional supplements and other food products L.A. FITNESS approves for sale by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES at any Facility. KAHALA further agrees that L.A. FITNESS' approval of any given product shall not relieve KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES of their responsibility to ensure that the product is merchantable, safe for consumption, or fit for a particular purpose, including, without limitation, a health club environment. L.A. FITNESS disclaims all express or implied warranties concerning any goods, materials or food products it approves for sale at the Facilities, including, without limitation, any warranties as to merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, quality or profitability. Upon request of L.A. FITNESS, KAHALA shall retain consumerlab.com, or a mutually acceptable replacement designated by the parties, to test products sold by KAHALA or its FRANCHISEES for ingredient representations and appropriateness for consumption in a health club environment.

KAHALA further acknowledges and agrees that some Facility Premise Leases may prohibit the sale of certain items listed on Exhibit B. KAHALA will cease selling such items upon written notice by L.A. FITNESS accompanied by the relevant portion of the Premises Lease prohibiting sale of such items.

#### **CONSENT OF SPOUSE**

(to be executed if Operator is a married individual)

The undersigned is the spouse of the Operator identified in the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, dated as of \_\_\_\_\_\_, between his or her spouse and Kahala Holdings, L.L.C. (the "Single-Unit Facility License Agreement"), to which this Consent of Spouse is attached.

The undersigned hereby declares that he/she has read the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, including each of the documents that are exhibits to or referenced in the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, in its entirety and, being fully convinced of the wisdom and equity of the terms of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, including each of the documents that are exhibits to or referenced in the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, and in consideration of the premises and of the provisions of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, the undersigned hereby expresses his or her acceptance of the same and does agree to its provisions.

The undersigned further agrees that in the event of the death of his or her spouse, the provisions of this Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, including each of the documents that are exhibits to or referenced in the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, will be binding upon him/her.

The undersigned further agrees that he/she will at any time make, execute and deliver such instruments and documents which may be necessary to carry out the provisions of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, including each of the documents that are exhibits to or referenced in the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement.

This instrument is not a present transfer or release of any rights which the undersigned may have in any of the community property of his or her marriage.

DATED \_\_\_\_\_

(Signature of Spouse)

(Print Name of Spouse)

## EXHIBIT M

## TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Form of Addendum to the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement For SBA Loans

#### ADDENDUM RELATING TO NRGIZE LIFESTYLE CAFE SINGLE-UNIT FACILITY LICENSE AGREEMENT (SBA Loan)

THIS ADDENDUM ("Addendum") is made and entered into on \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_\_, by Kahala Holdings, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company, located at 9311 E. Via De Ventura, Scottsdale, Arizona 85258 ("Kahala Holdings"), and \_\_\_\_\_\_\_, located at \_\_\_\_\_\_("Franchisee").

<u>Recitals.</u> Kahala Holdings and Franchisee entered into a Single-Unit Facility License Agreement on \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_, ("SUFLA"). The Franchisee agreed among other things to operate and maintain an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchise located at \_\_\_\_\_\_ designated as Store#\_\_\_\_\_\_ (the "Store"). Franchisee has obtained from a lender a loan ("Loan") in which funding is provided with the assistance of the United States Small Business Administration ("SBA"). SBA requires the execution of this Addendum as a condition for obtaining the SBA assisted financing.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises below, and for good and valuable considerations in hand paid by each of the parties to the others, the receipt and sufficiency of which the parties acknowledge, the parties agree as follows:

- The SUFLA is in full force and effect, and Kahala Holdings has sent no official notice of default to Franchisee under the SUFLA that remains uncured on the date hereof.
- Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. will not unreasonably withhold, delay or condition its consent to any proposed transfer or assignment by Franchisee which requires Franchisor's consent as indicated in Section 9. (b) of the SUFLA.
- Under Section 9. (b) of the SUFLA, Franchisee will NOT remain liable upon the transfer of the Store.
- This Addendum automatically terminates on the earliest to occur of the following: (i) a Termination occurs under the SUFLA; (ii) the Loan is paid; or (iii) SBA no longer has any interest in the Loan.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly signed and executed this Addendum as of the day and year first above written.

## **KAHALA HOLDINGS:**

## **FRANCHISEE:**

## KAHALA HOLDINGS, L.L.C.

By:\_\_\_\_\_

By:\_\_\_\_\_

Print Name: Walter L. Schultz

Print Name:\_\_\_\_\_

Title: Executive Vice President/CFO of its Member

Title:\_\_\_\_\_

## <u>EXHIBIT N</u>

# TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Form of Release and Consent Agreement to Assignment of Franchised Business

#### RELEASE AND CONSENT AGREEMENT TO ASSIGNMENT OF FRANCHISED BUSINESS (\_\_\_\_\_; \_\_\_\_)

THIS RELEASE AND CONSENT AGREEMENT TO ASSIGNMENT OF FRANCHISED BUSINESS ("Agreement") is entered into this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_ (the "Effective Date") by and among \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Assignor"), and \_\_\_\_\_ ("Assignee"), and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company (the "Franchisor") and Kahala Holdings, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company, an affiliate of Franchisor and a party to the Master Facility License Agreement with Fitness International, LLC (formerly LA Fitness International, LLC) ("Kahala Holdings")(collectively, "KAHALA").

## **RECITALS**

A. Franchisor and Assignor are parties to a Franchise Agreement with an Effective Date of \_\_\_\_\_\_ for the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe located within the LA Fitness health club located at \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Franchise Agreement"). The NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchise located within the LA Fitness health club located at \_\_\_\_\_\_ will hereinafter be referred to as the "Franchised Business".

B. Kahala Holdings and Assignor are parties to a Single-Unit Facility License Agreement dated \_\_\_\_\_ ("Single-Unit Facility License Agreement") for the Franchised Business.

C. Assignor desires to assign the Franchised Business to Assignee, and Assignee desires to accept the assignment.

D. Assignee acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Franchise Agreement from Assignor.

E. Assignee acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement from Assignor, together with all amendments, supplements, riders, exhibits, and revisions, including a copy of the underlying Master Facility License Agreement, and fully understands and acknowledges the obligations under the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement.

F. Assignee and Assignor acknowledge that upon assignment, Assignee must execute the Franchisor's current form of franchise agreement, which includes its current royalty fee and advertising contributions that may be greater than the amount of such fees in Assignor's Franchise Agreement.

G. Assignee and Assignor acknowledge that upon assignment, Assignee must execute Kahala Holding's current form of single-unit facility license agreement.

H. Franchisor agrees to consent to the assignment of the Franchised Business from Assignor to Assignee, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

## AGREEMENT

1. Assignor agrees to transfer the Franchised Business to Assignee pursuant to the transfer provisions in the Assignor's Franchise Agreement, and Assignee accepts the transfer of the Franchised Business pursuant to the transfer provision in the Assignor's Franchise Agreement, including, but not limited to, the payment of the applicable transfer and training fees.

2. Assignee hereby agrees to execute Franchisor's current form of franchise agreement with Franchisor, and to be bound by the terms and conditions set forth in such current form of franchise agreement, including a weekly continuing royalty fee of the greater of 6% of gross sales or \$150 and a weekly advertising fund contribution of .50% (subject to adjustment pursuant to the franchise agreement) of gross sales, with such Franchise Agreement to expire concurrently with the term of the Assignor's Single-Unit Facility License Agreement for the Franchised Business.

3. Assignor agrees to pay to Franchisor concurrently with the execution of this Agreement the \$\_\_\_\_\_ transfer fee pursuant to Section 12.3(f) of the Assignor's Franchise Agreement.

4. Assignor or Assignee agrees to pay to Franchisor concurrently with the execution of this Agreement the \$2,500 training fee pursuant to Section 12.3(g) of the Assignor's Franchise Agreement.

5. Assignee hereby agrees to execute Kahala Holding's current form of single-unit facility license agreement, and to be bound by the terms and conditions set forth in the current form of single-unit facility license agreement.

6. Assignor agrees to cure any and all monetary defaults due and payable under their phone service agreement, complete and sign a letter of agency, letter of authorization or equivalent form, and provide the form to Assignee at least one week prior to the transfer of the Franchised Business to allow Assignee to retain the telephone number of the Franchised Business.

7. Assignee agrees provide the letter of agency, letter of authorization or equivalent form to their phone service provider in an effort to retain the telephone number of the Franchised Business.

8. Assignor agrees to cure any and all defaults of any monetary consideration due and payable to KAHALA prior to the execution of this Agreement, including any past due and current royalties and advertising contributions under the Franchise Agreement through the Effective Date, and any Monthly Service Fees and/or access related fees through the Effective Date under the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement.

9. Assignor represents and warrants that it has not failed to disclose to KAHALA any information, which, if known by KAHALA, might provide grounds for KAHALA to reasonably withhold its consent to this Agreement, and that Assignor has disclosed all of the terms of the transfer to KAHALA.

10. Assignor ratifies and reaffirms any an all provisions and/or agreements with KAHALA intended to survive the assignment and/or termination of the Franchise Agreement and agrees to remain bound by them, including but not limited to any provisions pertaining to confidential information and covenant against competition.

11. Assignor agrees that it has no rights in any of the trademarks, trade names, or service marks of Franchisor; except in connection with other NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchises owned by Assignor (if any). Assignor also stipulates that such marks, names, symbols and the like are the sole property of Franchisor and that it has no rights in them, except in connection with other NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchises owned by Assignor (if any). Assignor quitclaims to Franchisor any rights in any trademarks, trade names, and service marks of Franchisor, in the event Assignor has any such rights, except those rights acquired through other NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchises (if any).

12. Assignee acknowledges that KAHALA has not made any express or implied verbal or written representations or promises whatsoever that:

- a. Future assignments will be approved;
- b. Assignee will have financial success operating the Franchised Business;

c. Fitness International, LLC will grant an extension of the Master Facility License Agreement where the Franchised Business is located and operates;

d. The consideration, if any, paid for the Franchised Business represents the true value of the Franchised Business; or

e. Assignor is not in default under the terms of the Franchise Agreement and/or the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement.

13. Assignee acknowledges that KAHALA has made no representations whatsoever concerning the value of the Franchised Business.

14. Assignee acknowledges that its address for receipt of notices under this Agreement is:

15. KAHALA hereby consents to the transfer of the Franchised Business to Assignee subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement being fully met by both Assignor and Assignee.

In consideration of KAHALA's agreements set forth in this Agreement, Assignor 16. represents that KAHALA has not failed to perform, and is not in any respect in default in the performance of, any of its obligations under the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement and/or the Franchise Agreement, and Assignor irrevocably and unconditionally waives, releases and discharges KAHALA, its related companies, parents, subsidiaries, and their employees, its officers, directors, shareholders, agents, employees and representatives from any and all claims, actions, rights, demands, debts, obligations, damages, liabilities, judgments, losses or causes of suit or causes of action of any kind whatsoever, whether known or unknown, fixed or contingent, liquidated or unliquidated, Assignor has or may have against KAHALA, its officers, directors, employees, agents or representatives arising out of or connected with any matters, acts, or omissions on the part of KAHALA, its officers, directors, employees, agents or representatives in connection with the negotiation and execution of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement and/or Franchise Agreement, the administration of the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement and/or Franchise Agreement, and the operation or management of the franchise system as defined in the Franchise Agreement. Assignor hereby releases KAHALA, its officers, directors, employees, agents, related companies, subsidiaries, and parent companies from any and all liability, causes of action, claims or losses arising out of or connected with the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement and/or the Franchise Agreement prior to the Effective Date.

IT IS UNDERSTOOD BY ASSIGNOR THAT IF THE FACTS OR LAW WITH RESPECT TO THE FOREGOING RELEASE IS GIVEN HEREAFTER TURN OUT TO BE OTHER THAN OR DIFFERENT FROM THE FACTS OR LAW IN THAT CONNECTION NOT KNOWN TO BE OR BELIEVED BY ASSIGNOR TO BE TRUE, THEN ASSIGNOR HERETO EXPRESSLY ASSUMES THE RISK OF THE FACTS OR LAW TURNING OUT TO BE SO DIFFERENT, AND AGREES THAT THE FOREGOING RELEASE SHALL BE IN ALL RESPECTS EFFECTIVE AND NOT SUBJECT TO TERMINATION OR RESCISSION BASED UPON SUCH DIFFERENCES IN FACTS OR LAW.

17. Assignor and Assignee hereby agree to protect, defend and indemnify KAHALA, its direct or indirect parents, their subsidiaries, affiliates and designees and their officers, board of directors, employees and hold them harmless from and against any and all costs and expenses actually incurred by them or for which they are liable, including attorney's fees, court costs, expert witness fees/costs, losses, liabilities, damages, claims and demands of every kind or nature, and including those incurred pursuant to a settlement entered into in good faith, arising out of or in connection with the Franchised Business, including specifically without limitation any claim or controversy arising out of (i) this Agreement, (ii) the Franchise Agreement, (iii) the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, (iv) any transfer by Assignee or Assignor referred to in the Franchise Agreement, the Franchise Agreement, the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, the Franchise Agreement, the Single-Unit Facility License and the Operations Manual in respect of use or display of the Marks (as such term is defined in the Franchise Agreement), or (vi) acts or omissions of Assignee and/or Assignee and/or Assignor which tend to create an impression that the relationship between the parties hereto is

other than one of Franchisor and Franchisee. KAHALA, and its direct or indirect parents, their subsidiaries, affiliates and designees and their officers, board of directors, employees, at their sole discretion, may hire legal counsel to defend any actions brought against KAHALA, its direct or indirect parents, their subsidiaries, affiliates and designees and their officers, board of directors, employees which arise out of Franchisee's (Assignor's and Assignee's) obligations herein. Assignor and Assignee hereby agree to pay any and all attorneys' fees, expert costs, and any other fees and costs incurred by KAHALA, its direct or indirect parents, their subsidiaries, affiliates and designees and their officers, board of directors, employees to said selected counsel upon the request of KAHALA, its direct or indirect parents, their subsidiaries, affiliates and designees and their officers, board of directors, employees. Assignor and Assignee will, if requested by KAHALA, its direct or indirect parents, their subsidiaries, affiliates and designees and their officers, board of directors, employees, defend any suits at the sole cost and expense of Assignor and Assignee. Assignor and Assignee hereby agree to defend said suits with the use of attorneys requested by KAHALA, its direct or indirect parents, their subsidiaries, affiliates and designees and their officers, board of directors, employees. For purposes of this provision, requests shall be made pursuant to the Notice paragraph herein. Notwithstanding the other provisions of this Section 17 to the contrary, if any, Assignor shall not be responsible for any of the acts or omissions of Assignee after the expiration of the Franchise Agreement and Single-Unit Facility License Agreement, excluding any renewal options exercised thereunder.

18. In accordance with Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, the releases found in Sections 16 and 17 of this Agreement shall not apply to any liability for claims that arise under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

19. Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of a partnership, limited liability company or corporation represents and warrants that he or she is duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of the partnership, limited liability company, or corporation, and agrees to deliver evidence of his or her authority to KAHALA upon request by KAHALA.

20. The provisions of this Agreement are severable, and if any one or more provisions may be determined to be unenforceable, in whole or in part, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless be binding and enforceable.

21. This Agreement shall be construed under and according to the laws of the State of Arizona. In accordance with Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, a Franchisee may sue in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

22. VENUE. ANY AND ALL COURT PROCEEDINGS ARISING FROM THIS RELEASE AND CONSENT SHALL BE BROUGHT IN, AND ONLY IN, A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION IN MARICOPA COUNTY, PHOENIX, ARIZONA. IN EITHER CASE, THE PARTIES CONSENT TO THE EXERCISE OF SUBJECT MATTER AND PERSONAL JURISDICITON BY SUCH COURTS. 23. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

24. No amendment, modification, supplement or waiver of this Agreement or any of its provisions shall be binding on the parties unless made in writing and duly executed by KAHALA and Assignor and Assignee. A failure of any party to enforce at any time any of the previsions of this Agreement or to require at any time performance by another party or any provision of this Agreement, shall in no way be construed as a waiver of those provisions.

25. This Agreement shall not be construed in any way as modifying, waiving, or affecting any of the terms, covenants, conditions, or agreements contained in the Franchise Agreement and Single-Unit Facility License Agreement executed by Assignor, or the current form of franchise agreement or single-unit facility license agreement to be executed by Assignee.

26. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

## ASSIGNOR

## ASSIGNEE

By: \_\_\_\_\_\_ Its: \_\_\_\_\_ By: \_\_\_\_\_\_ Its: \_\_\_\_\_

## **KAHALA**

KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By: \_\_\_\_\_\_ Its: \_\_\_\_\_

And

KAHALA HOLDINGS, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company

By: \_\_\_\_\_\_ Its: \_\_\_\_\_

## EXHIBIT O

## TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Table of Contents – Confidential Operations Manuals

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS (3 volumes)**

## Chapter:

## Number of Pages:

## Volume 1 - New Owner Reference Manual

Disclaimer	1
Introduction	1
Customer Service	5
Profitability	11
Loss Prevention	5
Inventory	4
Marketing	
Purchasing & Distribution	2
Research & Development	1
Crisis	3
APPENDIX	35
TOTAL PAGES – VOLUME 1	

## **Volume 2 - Operations**

Product Knowledge	3
Recipes & Production Steps	10
OpsToolkit Procedure Cards	
OpsToolkit Recipe Cards	6
OpsToolkit Stock Charts	
OpsToolkit Checklists	
OpsToolkit Reference	
OpsToolkit Miscellaneous	
TOTAL PAGES – VOLUME 2	

## Volume 3 – KTEC Online (web-based forms and manuals)

Pre-Opening	
Operations	
Marketing	73
Questions and Contacts	
TOTAL PAGES – VOLUME 3	
TOTAL PAGE COUNT FOR VOLUMES 1, 2, AND 3	

## EXHIBIT P

## TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

List of Franchise Owners (as of December 31, 2011)

Company Name	Franchisee Name	Store Address	City	State	Zip Code	Telephone Number
	Javier Zoppolo and					
	Suhaib Mirza	2100 N. Dobson Road, Inside LA Fitness	Chandler	AZ	85224	(480) 742-7554
	Jayesh Patel	18295 North 83rd Avenue, Inside LA Fitness	Glendale	AZ	85308	(623) 572-8288
Simple Day Concepts,						,  /
LLC	Jillian Henry	2077 East Camelback Road, Inside LA Fitness	Phoenix	AZ	85016	(602) 956-0422
	Bradley Powell and					
K and B Nrgize Café LLC	Kristen Ohara	1900 N. Scottsdale Road, Inside LA Fitness	Scottsdale	AZ	85257	(480) 947-4055
	Chaipat Jaengsrivong	920 S. Fremont Ave., Inside LA Fitness	Alhambra	CA	91803	(626) 284-8686
		201 South El Camino Real Suite A, Inside LA				
	Jiho Yang	Fitness	Encinitas	CA	92024	(760) 942-9566
24 Hour Fitness USA,						/
Inc.	Jen Hofeling	1006 Riley Street, Inside 24 Hour Fitness	Folsom	CA	95630	(916) 984-1924
	Scott Kang and Janny	16289 Sierra Lakes Parkway, Inside LA				,  /
	Kang	Fitness	Fontana	CA	92335	(909) 357-4964
	-	Irvine East, 6400 Irvine Blvd., Inside LA				,  /
	Negar Golab	Fitness	Irvine	CA	92620	(949) 387-3999
	James Lee	2880 Michelle Drive, Inside LA Fitness	Irvine	CA	92606	(714) 368-3370
	Ralph Ruiz	1275 E. Foothill Blvd., Inside 24 Hour Fitness	La Verne	CA	91750	(909) 731-8276
24 Hour Fitness USA,						
Inc.	Jen Hofeling	27921 La Paz Road, Inside 24 Hour Fitness	Laguna Niguel	CA	92677	(949) 614-1024
	Duk-Joo An	3400 Cahuenga Blvd West, Inside LA Fitness	Los Angeles	CA	90068	(323) 876-5966
	Chaipat Jaengsrivong	8909 Washington Blvd, Inside LA Fitness	Pico Rivera	CA	90660	(562) 949-2888
	Richard Cardenas	2600 Canyon Springs Parkway, Inside LA Fitness	Riverside	CA	92507	(951) 697-8080
24 Hour Fitness USA,						, , , ,
Inc.	Jen Hofeling	8785 Center Parkway, Inside 24 Hour Fitness	Sacramento	CA	95823	(916) 688-8733
	Nafisa Braimah	10535 Heater Court, Inside LA Fitness	San Diego	CA	92121	(858) 550-9585
	Nafisa Braimah and	4S Ranch, 16913 Dove Canyon Road, Inside	Ť			, ,
	Habib Braimah	LA Fitness	San Diego	CA	92128	(858) 484-0816

Company Name	Franchisee Name	Store Address	City	State	Zip Code	Telephone Number
24 Hour Fitness USA,		1200 Van Ness Avenue, Inside 24 Hour				
Inc.	Jen Hofeling	Fitness	San Francisco	CA	94109	(415) 776-2200
24 Hour Fitness USA,						
Inc.	Jen Hofeling	1610 Crane Court, Inside 24 Hour Fitness	San Jose	CA	95112	(408) 490-3019
24 Hour Fitness USA,		4450 Norris Canyon Road, Inside 24 Hour				
Inc.	Jen Hofeling	Fitness	San Ramon	CA	94583	(925) 244-9855
	Wafa Sultan	28211 Newhall Ranch Road, Inside LA Fitness	Valencia	CA	91355	(562) 453-6624
24 Hour Fitness USA,		15900 E. Briarwood Court, Inside 24 Hour				
Inc.	Jen Hofeling	Fitness	Aurora	CO	80016	(303) 209-8545
	Mijung Kim &					/
Cedar USA, Inc.	Kwangtaek Kim	46 Skiff Street, Inside LA Fitness	Hamden	СТ	06517	(203) 230-8940
TMI Enterprises, LLC	Greg Tufano	3563 Berlin Turnpike, Inside LA Fitness	Newington	СТ	06111	(860) 209-7740
Rekshi LLC	Ronak Ghetia	100 Cedar Avenue, Inside LA Fitness	South Windsor	СТ	06074	(860) 648-9701
SS & Banana Corporation		52 6th Street, Inside LA Fitness	Stamford	CT	06905	(203) 353-0304
		University of New Haven, 300 Boston Post	otamora	01	00000	(200) 000 000 1
Sodexho	Fred Wencel	Road	West Haven	СТ	06516	(203) 214-8651
Sodexho USA, Inc.	Fred Wencel	Howard University, 2400 6th Street N.W.	Washington	DC	20059	(202) 437-5396
Nicamat Enterprises, LLC	Catherine Murray	2290 N. Congress Avenue, Inside LA Fitness	Boynton Beach	FL	33426	(734) 637-0308
	Cara Schuk	1000 East Hillsboro Blvd., Inside LA Fitness	Deerfield	FL	33441	(954) 418-7977
	Colin Stuckert	10058 Gulf Center Dr., Inside LA Fitness	Ft. Myers	FL	33913	(239) 415-7380
	Michael Coraggio	630 West 49th Street, Inside LA Fitness	Hialeah	FL	33012	(954) 536-0768
Nrgize Hollywood Café,						· · · · ·
LLČ	Dany Bar	5591 Sheridan Street, Inside LA Fitness	Hollywood	FL	33021	(954) 964-2011
	Jackie Calnins	17631 N. Dale Mabry Hwy, Inside LA Fitness	Lutz	FL	33548	(813) 960-2004
Pro Team Nutrition LLC	Diego Perez	16339 SW 88th Street, Inside LA Fitness	Miami	FL	33196	(305) 386-8676
	Michael Corragio	8555 SW 124th Avenue, Inside LA Fitness	Miami	FL	33183	(305) 412-3612
The Body Café II, Inc.	Michael Coraggio	Miami West, 14100 SW 8th Street	Miami	FL	33184	(305) 551-9633
The Body Café II, Inc.	Michael Corragio	10055 NW 41st Street, Inside LA Fitness	Miami	FL	33178	(786) 325-0110

Company Name	Franchisee Name	Store Address	City	State	Zip Code	Telephone Number
		Mary Brickell Village, 900 South Miami				
The Body Café II, Inc.	Michael Corragio	Avenue, Suite 236, Inside LA Fitness	Miami	FL	33130	(786) 325-0110
		1580 NE Miami Gardens Drive, Inside LA	N. Miami			
The Body Café II, Inc.	Michael Coraggio	Fitness	Beach	FL	33179	(786) 274-8712
Ultimate Health of South		18445 Pembroke Pines Blvd., Inside LA	Pembroke			
Florida, Inc.	Vincent Forca	Fitness	Pines	FL	33029	(954) 816-4424
The Body Café II, Inc.	Michael Corragio	10180 Forest Hill Boulevard, Inside LA Fitness	Wellington	FL	33414	(561) 798-3830
	Thomas Brown, Jr.					
HBTS Holdings, LLC	and Johnny Stephens	261 19th Street, Ste. 1140, Inside LA Fitness	Atlanta	GA	30363	(404) 541-9799
	KZell R. Wesson and					· · · · · ·
	Tanesha Hendrix-	3755 Carmia Drive SW, Suite 700, Inside LA				
KRW Ventures, Inc.	Wesson	Fitness	Atlanta	GA	30331	(404) 349-7575
	Tanesha Hendrix-					/
	Wesson and KZell R.	3232 Peachtree Rd NW Ste A, Inside LA				
KRW Ventures, Inc.	Wesson	Fitness	Atlanta	GA	30305	(404) 581-5954
Synergy Bowen, LLC	Daniel Bowen	3420 Buford Drive, Inside LA Fitness	Buford	GA	30519	(912) 313-2419
	Tanesha Hendrix-					
	Wesson and KZell R.					
KRW Ventures, Inc.	Wesson	1618 Highway 138, Inside LA Fitness	Conyers	GA	30013	(202) 327-1088
Liquidized Assets, LLC	Nigel Welsh	95 Foster Drive, Inside LA Fitness	McDonough	GA	30253	(404) 840-1962
Synergy Bowen, LLC	Daniel Bowen	2279 Pinehurst Rd, Inside LA Fitness	Snellville	GA	30078	(770) 978-4190
Sodexho Operations, LLC	Jennifer Schmalz	Drake University, 2507 University Avenue	Des Moines	IA	50311	(515) 865-9386
		Illinois Institute of Technology, 3201 S. State				
Sodexho USA, Inc.	Fred Wencel	Street	Chicago	IL	60616	(312) 567-5245
		Lewis University, 500 South Independence				
Sodexho USA, Inc.	Fred Wencel	Boulevard	Romeoville	IL	60446	(815) 838-7576
ADM Distribution	Angie Ting	6160 N Keystone Ave, Inside LA Fitness	Indianapolis	IN	46220	(317) 726-1888
	Ramona Silot and					
Talos, LLC	Robert Silot	9030 Rockville Road, Inside LA Fitness	Indianapolis	IN	46234	(317) 273-0400
Kay and Jay's Right						
Choice, L.L.C.	Erma Tillman	30273 Plymouth Road, Inside LA Fitness	Livonia	MI	48150	(734) 525-7056

Company Name	Franchisee Name	Store Address	City	State	Zip Code	Telephone Number
Sodexho USA, Inc.	Fred Wencel	Bethel University, 3900 Bethel Drive	St. Paul	MN	55112	(651) 638-6251
	Kashif Zaidi	2100 Route 38, Inside LA Fitness	Cherry Hill	NJ	08002	(646) 288-9676
	Svetlana Kozlova	852 Route 3, Inside LA Fitness	Clifton	NJ	07012	(973) 470-8444
24 Hour Fitness USA,			Hasbrouk			
Inc.	Jen Hofeling	459 Route 17, Inside 24 Hour Fitness	Heights	NJ	07604	(201) 727-1179
Capital P Management,			North			
LLĊ	Anthony Pantoni	536 Milltown Road, Inside LA Fitness	Brunswick	NJ	08902	(732) 937-9076
Abs-olutely Delicious						
Café & Lounge, LLC	John Piraino	1159 US Highway 46, Inside LA Fitness	Parsippany	NJ	07054	(917) 710-7126
Abs-olutely Delicious						
Café & Lounge, LLC	John Piraino	495 Harmon Meadow Blvd, Inside LA Fitness	Secaucus	NJ	07094	(917) 710-7126
TMN Nrgize South			South			
Plainfield LLC	Marcela Dragoiu-Luca	200 New World Way, Inside LA Fitness	Plainfield	NJ	07080	(908) 722-1321
	Sook-Hyun Lee and					
Jaehoon Inc.	Young Chang Ju	1070 Hamburg Turnpike, Inside LA Fitness	Wayne	NJ	07470	(973) 628-5223
	Sameen Bawla and	2110 Route #110 Broad Hollow Road, Inside				
Malsa, LLC	Nadia Merchant	LA Fitness	Farmingdale	NY	11735	(631) 877-5595
MJ Management						
Enterprise, Inc.	Mathew Kim	110 New Moriches Road, Inside LA Fitness	Lake Grove	NY	11755	(631) 738-1500
Hi-Tech Premium Café,						
LLC	Scott Palazzolo	455 Park Avenue, Inside LA Fitness	Lindenhurst	NY	11757	(917) 682-0571
		1111 Marcus Avenue, Suite S100, Inside LA	New Hyde			
New York Nrgize, Inc.	Elizabeth Delano	Fitness	Park	NY	11042	(516) 327-2426
24 Hour Fitness USA,		Madison Square Park Ultra Sport, 225 Fifth				
Inc.	Jen Hofeling	Avenue, Inside 24 Hour Fitness	New York	NY	10010	(212) 271-1002
24 Hour Fitness USA,						
Inc.	Jen Hofeling	153 East 53rd Street, Inside 24 Hour Fitness	New York	NY	10022	(212) 401-0660
EMA Lifestyle Café, Inc.	Mark Kozhin	11 Madison Avenue	New York	NY	10010	(646) 259-3609
Radiance Foods, Inc.	Kevin MacKewice	5 Gateway Blvd, Inside LA Fitness	Patchogue	NY	11772	(718) 598-1070
	Hey Rim Jung and					
H Teracota Corp.	Young Min Kim	145 Service Road, Inside LA Fitness	Staten Island	NY	10314	(718) 370-2380
	Robert Dove and	Tanasbourne/Hillsboro, 21970 NW Imbrie				
Dove, LLC	Robin Dove	Drive, Inside LA Fitness	Hillsboro	OR	97124	(503) 844-9700

Company Name	Franchisee Name	Store Address	City	State	Zip Code	Telephone Number
NrGize Bridgeville, Inc.	Daniel Colaizzi	1155 Washington Pike, Inside LA Fitness	Bridgeville	PA	15017	(412) 914-0241
Nrgize Juice Café PA,	Kashif Zaidi and					
Incorporated	Alireza Naqvi	2961 Swede Road, Inside LA Fitness	East Norriton	PA	19401	(631) 561-8411
	Wayne Sullivan and	4100 William Penn Highway, Suite 43, Inside				
OJW, Inc.	Mark Sullivan	LA Fitness	Monroeville	PA	15146	(724) 261-0800
	Husein Kermali and	Andorra, 701 Cathedral Road, Inside LA				
NrGize Juice Café, LLC	Kashif Zaidi	Fitness	Philadelphia	PA	19128	(215) 482-4088
Baublitz Ventures LLC	Barbara Baublitz	351 Loucks Road, Inside LA Fitness	York	PA	17404	(717) 848-3710
Texas Nrgize #1, Inc.	Duane Martin	141 West Road to Six Flags, Inside LA Fitness	Arlington	ΤХ	76010	(817) 275-9853
_	Briceida Granados	12304 Barker Cypress, Inside LA Fitness	Cypress	ТΧ	77429	(281) 758-3171
Nrgize at TAC, L.L.C.	Joey Luu	Texins Activity Center, 13900 N Central Express Way	Dallas	тх	75243	(972) 809-8080
	Song Chin Park and	Lake Highlands, 7211 Skillman Street, Inside	Dallas		75245	(972) 009-0000
Sun & Song, Inc.	Sunyeo Park	LA Fitness	Dallas	тх	75231	(214) 553-7914
	Virginia Puente and		Danao	17	10201	
Venturas Puente, Inc.	Victor Puente	DFW Terminal C-6, 3200 East Airfield Drive	Dallas	ΤХ	75261	(972) 574-5755
Bonnieview nrgize, Inc.	Keny Truong	114 E. Highway 67, Inside LA Fitness	Duncanville	TX	75137	(972) 283-6833
	Song Chin Park and	Highland Village, 3198 Justin Road, Inside LA	Highland			
Sun & Song, Inc.	Sunyeo Park	Fitness	Village	ΤХ	75077	(214) 226-0394
24 Hour Fitness USA,		12553 Westheimer Road, Inside 24 Hour	Ŭ			
Inc.	Jen Hofeling	Fitness	Houston	ТΧ	77077	(281) 493-1874
Pujan Corporation	Dhruval Shah	9025 Highway 6 South, Inside LA Fitness	Houston	ТΧ	77083	(281) 498-8390
		3838 Richmond Avenue, Inside LA Fitness				
	Kevin and Karen Scott	Signature Club	Houston	ТΧ	77027	(713) 936-0688
	Melissa Xiong	5550 North MacArthur, Inside LA Fitness	Irving	ΤX	75038	(972) 753-4808
		1861 South Main Street Hwy 377, Inside LA				
Desmarla, Inc.	Vernon Catron	Fitness	Keller	ТΧ	76248	(817) 914-0315
		2875 South Central Expressway, Inside LA				
	Nelson Gomez	Fitness	McKinney	ТΧ	75070	(214) 504-9090
	Pamela Wilson and					
W&D Juice Limited Liabili	t Christoper Doran	4401 Lakeview Parkway, Inside LA Fitness	Rowlett	ТΧ	75088	(972) 463-4600
	Nihad Rasoul	3550 South Clark Street, Inside LA Fitness	Arlington	VA	22202	(703) 418-0003

Company Name	Franchisee Name	Store Address	City	State	Zip Code	Telephone Number
	Brenden Hill and Mike					
	Imoh	21074 Dulles Town Circle, Inside LA Fitness	Dulles	VA	20166	(757) 814-3202
Elite Retail Group, Inc.	Ritesh Patel	Chippenham Hospital, 7101 Jahnke Road	Richmond	VA	23225	(804) 267-3323
	Joseph and Yun					
JYY, LLC	Kyong Yun	15024 Main Street, Inside LA Fitness	Mill Creek	WA	98012	(425) 337-1025
		University of Wisconsin – River Falls, 410 S.				
Sodexho USA, Inc.	Fred Wencel	Third Street	River Falls	WI	54022	(715) 425-3274

## NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Franchisees who have signed Franchise Agreements and whose stores were under construction but not open as of December 31, 2011

Franchisee Company Name	Franchisee Name	Store Address	City	State	Zip	Phone/Email
Sodexho USA, Inc.		University of Detroit Mercy, Fitness Center 1st Floor, 4001 McNichols Road	Detroit	MI	48221	jennifer.schmalz@sodexo.com*
Sodexho Operations, LLC		Minneapolis Community & Technical College, 1501 Hennepin Ave	Minneapolis	MN	55403	jennifer.schmalz@sodexo.com*
HTP2, Inc.		3601-C Hempstead Turnpike, Inside LA Fitness	Levittown	NY	11756	(718) 980-9516*

# NrGize Lifestyle Café Franchisees who have signed Franchise Agreements but whose stores are in the site selection process and not open as of December 31, 2011

Franchisee Company						
Name	Franchisee Name	Store Address	City	State	Zip	Phone/Email
		31 Fortune Drive, Inside 24 Hour				
24 Hour Fitness USA, Inc.	Jen Hofeling	Fitness Irvine Super Sport	Irvine	CA	92618	(925) 543-3298*
		To Be Determined, Inside 24 Hour				
24 Hour Fitness USA, Inc.	Jen Hofeling	Fitness	Ontario	CA	94583*	(925) 543-3298*
	Arshad Abib,					
	Syed Azam,					
	Javed Ahmad,					
Desert California	Usman Aziz,					
Investments, LLC	Ijaz Khan	To Be Determined	Palm Desert	CA	92203*	(760) 863-4666*
		To Be Determined, Inside 24 Hour				
24 Hour Fitness USA, Inc.	Jen Hofeling	Fitness	Pleasanton	CA	94566	(925) 543-3298*

## NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Franchisees who have signed Franchise Agreements and whose stores were under construction but not open as of December 31, 2011

		12075 Metcalf, Inside 24 Hour				
24 Hour Fitness USA, Inc.	Jen Hofeling	Fitness Super Sport	<b>Overland Park</b>	KS	66213	(925) 543-3298*
		2090 Village Center Circle, Inside				
24 Hour Fitness USA, Inc.	Jen Hofeling	24 Hour Fitness	Las Vegas	NV	89134	(925) 543-3298*
		DFW Terminal A-9, 3200 East				
Venturas Puente, Inc.	Virginia Puente	Airfield Drive	Dallas	ТΧ	75261	(817) 421-2147*
		3813 W. Centerview Drive, Inside				
24 Hour Fitness USA, Inc.	Jen Hofeling	24 Hour Fitness	West Jordan	UT	84084	(925) 543-3298*

\* Note: Where no store city, state, or phone number was available, the Franchisee's city, state, and office telephone number (or home (telephone number if no office telephone number was available) or email address is listed.

# <u>EXHIBIT Q</u>

# TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Form of Area Representative Agreement and General Release

## NRGIZE LIFESTYLE CAFE

## AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT

DATED \_\_\_\_\_, \_\_\_\_

# AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	Grant of Area Representative Rights.	1
2.	Territorial Rights	2
3.	Obligations of Area Representative Generally.	3
4.	Promotional Obligations of Area Representative.	13
5.	Obligation of Area Representative to Comply with Law.	15
6.	Obligations of the Franchisor	
7.	Initial Development Fee	
8.	Area Representative's Compensation and Liabilities.	
9.	Service Marks, Etc.	24
10.	Financial Reporting; Inspections; Audits	25
11.	Indemnification.	26
12.	Confidentiality; Restriction on Hiring; Covenant Not to Compete	26
13.	Assignment or Transfer of Development Rights.	29
14.	Term; Renewal	
15.	Default and Termination.	33
16.	Rights and Obligations of the Parties upon Expiration or Termination	36
17.	No Representations, Etc.	
18.	Currency	41
19.	Survival	41
20.	Relationship of the Parties.	41
21.	Provisions	41
22.	Affiliates.	41
23.	Notices.	42
24.	Successors and Assigns	42
25.	Amendment, Modification, Waiver or Deferral.	42
26.	Severable Provisions; Enforceability	43
27.	Entire Agreement.	
28.	Terminology	43
29.	Counterparts	44
30.	Applicable Law and Forum; Waiver of Jury; Statute of Limitations	44
31.	Attorneys' Fees.	44
32.	Third Party Beneficiaries.	45
33.	Remedies Cumulative.	45
34.	Construction	45
35.	Additional Actions.	45
36.	Computation of Time	45
37.	Authority	
38.	Acknowledgements	
39.	Executive Order 13224.	

# Exhibits

Territory
List of Units Already Sold and Third Party Franchisees within Territory currently
Negotiating with Franchisor as of Effective Date
Business Plan

Exhibit D	State Specific Addendums (applicable only for the following states: California,
	Georgia, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Minnesota, New York, North
	Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin)
Exhibit E	Amendment to Area Representative Agreement (Renewal) (applicable only for
	the renewal of an existing area representative agreement)
Exhibit F	Amendment to Area Representative Agreement (Transfer) (applicable only for the
	transfer of an existing area representative agreement)
Exhibit G	Agreement to be Bound and to Guarantee
Exhibit H	Restrictive Covenant
Exhibit I	General Release
Exhibit J	Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) Authorization

#### AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT

**THIS AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT (the "Agreement")**, is made and entered into as of the date set forth on the last page of this Agreement (the "**Effective Date**"), by and between **KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C.**, an Arizona limited liability company ("**Franchisor**"), whose principal business address is 9311 E. Via De Ventura, Scottsdale, Arizona 85258 (phone number 480-362-4800; fax number 480-362-4797), and the area representative identified on the last page of this Agreement ("**Area Representative**"), whose address, phone number and fax number are set forth on the last page of this Agreement.

### RECITALS

**A.** Franchisor, under the Service Marks (as defined in the most recent version of the Franchise Disclosure Documents), has, as a result of significant time, effort and money, originated a comprehensive system for the manufacture and restaurant sale of low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, nutritional supplements (prepared using proprietary recipes) and an assortment of other beverage and food items (the "**Franchised Business**");

**B.** Franchisor owns certain intellectual property, including trade secrets and other confidential and proprietary information, processes, materials and rights relating to the development, promotion and operation of the Franchised Business (the "**Proprietary Information**");

**C.** Franchisor has developed a program, including the Proprietary Information, for conducting and operating the Franchised Business under the Service Marks (the "**Program**");

**D.** Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Franchisor desires to appoint Area Representative as Franchisor's representative for the development, management, servicing and supervision of persons to be approved by Franchisor to own and operate Franchised Businesses in the Territory (as defined below) (subject to Section 3(hh)), persons so approved, on or after the Effective Date, to own and operate Franchised Businesses in the Territory, including Area Representative with respect to his Franchised Business, are referred to as "**Franchisees**"); and

**E.** Area Representative desires to be so appointed.

#### AGREEMENT

**NOW, THEREFORE**, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows:

#### **1.** Grant of Area Representative Rights.

Subject to and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, Franchisor grants to Area Representative, and Area Representative accepts, the right to develop, manage, service, support and supervise Franchisees within the territory set forth in <u>Exhibit A</u> to this Agreement (the "**Territory**").

### 2. Territorial Rights.

Subject to Franchisor's rights to terminate this Agreement, Franchisor will not, directly or indirectly, operate the Franchised Business or appoint another person as an Area Representative to develop, manage, service, support and supervise Franchisees within the Territory for the term of this Agreement, except for persons who will develop, manage, service, support and/or supervise Units (as defined below) that qualify as Permitted Exceptions (as defined in Section 3(hh)). Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, Franchisor may, directly or indirectly:

(a) Solicit prospective franchisees and grant Franchises to persons who will own and/or operate Franchised Businesses within and outside of the Territory, on the terms and conditions that Franchisor deems appropriate;

- (b) Own and/or operate Franchised Businesses at locations outside of the Territory;
- (c) Own and/or operate Franchised Businesses within the Territory;

(d) Distribute, sell and/or license other persons or entities to distribute and/or sell products through and/or services under the Service Marks (or under other trademarks) through locations other than NrGize Lifestyle Cafe® restaurants owned, licensed or franchised by Franchisor (including sales by or through other channels of trade, including kiosks, carts, grocery stores, convenience stores, food chains, electronic mail, Internet sales, malls, universities, schools, hospitals, military bases, casinos, convention centers, arenas, stadiums, health and fitness facilities, office buildings, theme parks, movie theatres, and amusement facilities) (collectively, "**Other Channels**"). Franchisor shall utilize its best efforts to: (i) notify Area Representative of pending opportunities in Other Channels in the Territory; and (ii) seek the input of Area Representative may have on the impact of the Other Channel with existing Units), but Franchisor shall in no way be bound or required to follow Area Representative's input; or

(e) Merge with, acquire and/or be acquired by any other business, or acquire and convert any retail stores, including retail stores operated by competitors, or otherwise operated independently or as part of, or in association with, any other system or chain, whether franchised or corporately owned; and

(f) Implement multi-area marketing programs that may allow Franchisor or others to solicit or sell to customers anywhere. Franchisor also reserves the right to issue mandatory policies to coordinate such multi-area marketing programs.

Area Representative may not use the Internet (including, but not limited to, a website or social medium site such as Twitter® or Facebook®) (collectively, the "**Site**") to market franchises, or use the Service Marks on the Site without Franchisor's prior written authorization, which we may withhold for any reason or no reason. If we grant you written approval, you agree to submit to us for approval before use true and correct printouts of all Site pages you propose to use. You

understand and agree that our right of approval of all such web and social medium materials is necessitated by the fact that such materials will include and be inextricably linked with our Service Marks. If we approve your use of a Site, you may only use material that we have approved. If we grant approval for a site, Area Representative may only use the Site in the manner prescribed by Franchisor. You agree to provide all hyperlinks or other links that we require. You may not post any of our proprietary, confidential or copyrighted material or information on the Site without our prior written permission. If you wish to modify your approved Site, all proposed modifications must also receive our prior written approval. You explicitly understand that you may not post on any Site (whether yours or someone else's) any material in which a third-party has any direct or indirect ownership interest (including, without limitation, video clips, photographs, sound bites, copyrighted text, trademarks or service marks, or any other text or image which any third-party may claim intellectual property rights in).

### **3.** Obligations of Area Representative Generally.

(a) For purposes of this Article 3 only, Area Representative shall be defined as a Principal(s), a Supervising Principal, a Supervising Manager; and/or a qualified employee of Area Representative. Area Representative (or, if Area Representative is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity, a Principal selected by Area Representative and approved by Franchisor (the "**Supervising Principal**") or a manager selected by Area Representative and approved by Franchisor (the "**Supervising Manager**")):

(i) Must satisfactorily complete the Franchisee and ARA Training Program (as those terms are defined below);

(ii) Must devote his best efforts and full time (which will be no less than an average of 40 hours per week, excluding reasonable vacation periods) to the development, management, servicing and supervision of Franchisees and the Franchised Businesses (each Franchised Business at a separate location within the Territory is referred to as a "**Unit**") operated by Franchisees in the Territory, and the operation of Area Representative's Unit(s);

(iii) May not engage in any other business activity that is similar to any competing quick service restaurant franchise concepts or that impacts their ability to comply with their obligations under this Agreement during the term of this Agreement without the prior written consent of Franchisor.

The name of the Supervising Principal or the Supervising Manager is set forth on the signature page of this Agreement. Any changes must be approved by Franchisor.

(b) Area Representative must adapt the Franchised Business for use in the Territory, including product offerings, Franchisor's Operating Manual and sales and marketing materials. However, no adaptations will be made without Franchisor's prior written consent.

(c) Area Representative must provide assistance to Franchisees with respect to selecting sites for Franchisees' Franchised Businesses, in accordance with site selection criteria

established by Franchisor from time to time, and the lease of the site, on terms and conditions satisfactory to Franchisor.

(d) If a Franchisee's franchise agreement did not contain a specific site at which the Franchised Business will be located, after the signing of the franchise agreement, Area Representative shall assist that Franchisee in submitting to Franchisor a complete site report (containing such demographic, commercial and other information and photographs as Franchisor may reasonably require) for each site at which that Franchisee proposes to establish and operate the Franchised Business and which Area Representative reasonably believes conforms to site selection criteria established by Franchisor from time to time.

(e) Area Representative must provide Franchisees guidance and assistance with respect to the construction and design of the Franchised Businesses in accordance with Franchisor's design criteria, including initial store layout.

(f) To the extent required by Franchisor, Area Representative shall consult with Franchisees regarding the securing of third party financing for Franchisees.

(g) If requested by Franchisor, Area Representative must assist Franchisor in locating and selecting vendors and suppliers who demonstrate the ability to meet Franchisor's standards and specifications for fresh fruits and vegetables, equipment, supplies and other products to be used by Franchisees.

(h) Area Representative must consult with Franchisees by telephone, at times reasonably requested by Franchisees, with respect to all aspects of starting and operating their Franchised Businesses.

(i) Area Representative shall provide Franchisees pre-opening assistance in selecting, installing and operating equipment and selecting, preparing and storing food products, and shall ensure that all equipment and pre-opening food products and other items and checks are present and satisfactory.

(j) Area Representative must provide on-site consultation to Franchisees at their Units on the opening day (and/or the grand opening day, if that Franchisee so requests) of their Franchised Businesses, at no cost or expense to Franchisees.

(k) Area Representative must provide Franchisees on-site training at the Franchisees' Units as specified by Franchisor.

(1) In addition to Area Representative's other obligations under this Agreement, once a Unit has been established (as determined by Franchisor, in its sole discretion), at the request of the Franchisee, Area Representative must provide that Franchisee telephonic and on-site consultation, at times agreed upon between Area Representative and that Franchisee, at no cost to that Franchisee. (m) Area Representative must provide to Franchisees the pre-opening and continuing operating assistance described in Franchisees' franchise agreements, Franchise Disclosure Document, Franchisor's Operating Manual and Franchisor's policies and procedures, as they may exist from time to time; provided, however, that Franchisor will provide the classroom and Franchisor-based Phoenix-based on-the-job training for Franchisees contemplated by Franchisees' franchise agreements.

(n) Area Representative must communicate with each Franchised Business at least once every two weeks and must conduct at least one Quality Service Cleanliness and Experience ("QSCE") field evaluation per quarter of each Franchised Business, at no cost to Franchisee, in the Territory to verify compliance with the terms and conditions of Franchisees' franchise agreements, Franchisor's Operating Manual and Franchisor's policies and procedures, as they may exist from time to time, and to confirm whether the quality of service and products is being maintained in accordance with Franchisor's requirements, and provide written reports of those QSCE evaluations, containing the information required by Franchisor, to Franchisor within 15 days after the end of that quarter. The reports of the QSCE evaluations may be sent to Franchisor via email. Area Representative must promptly notify each Franchisee of any deficiencies, and must send a copy of that notice to Franchisor. Area Representative acknowledges, however, that Area Representative's QSCE evaluations, notices and reports are advisory only, and that Franchisor will have:

(i) All rights to evaluate and ascertain compliance as if this Agreement were not in effect;

- (ii) The sole right to send notices of default to Franchisees;
- (iii) The sole right to terminate a franchise agreement; and

(iv) The sole right to take any legal action with respect to any breach of, or default under, a franchise agreement.

If Area Representative believes that any Franchisee has breached, or is in default under, its franchise agreement, Area Representative must promptly provide written notice to Franchisor of all facts relating to that breach or default. If, as a result of receiving that notice, Franchisor elects to investigate that breach or default and/or determines that a breach or default has occurred, Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, take such action as it deems appropriate.

(o) Area Representative shall periodically solicit information from Franchisees' primary distributor and the owner of the property where Franchisee's outlet is located (the "**Landlord**") to verify compliance with the terms of Franchisees' franchise agreements and lease (or sublease, where applicable) agreements and to confirm whether Franchisees are in arrears with respect to any of their obligations to the primary distributor and Landlord, and to confirm the quality and the adequacy of the products and services provided by Franchisees.

(p) Franchisor will assist and advise Area Representative with respect to Area Representative's responsibilities under this Agreement, including advice, direction and

requirements with respect to operating problems detected by Franchisor or Area Representative in the Territory and/or other issues of concern to Franchisor and/or Area Representative. Area Representative must comply with Franchisor's advice, direction and requirements, use his best efforts to resolve those operating problems in the manner advised, directed and required by Franchisor and periodically report to Franchisor with respect to such matters that Franchisor may from time to time require.

(q) At Area Representative's reasonable request, Franchisor will provide to Area Representative, at Franchisor's then-current rates (including shipping costs), copies of requisite disclosure and contractual documents, brochures, advertising formats and related materials. Franchisor shall notify Area Representative of its then-current rates upon execution of this Agreement and then only when such rates change.

(r) Area Representative must, at Area Representative's expense, plan, organize and conduct regular seminars for, and meetings of, Franchisees and provide instruction and assistance to Franchisees, in connection with the introduction of new services and products and marketing and business techniques that Franchisor sponsors or approves for Franchisees.

(s) Area Representative must assist Franchisor in implementing advertising programs. For only those advertising programs where Area Representative, through itself or any group representing all Area Representatives, has pre-approved the costs of such advertising campaign, Franchisor may assess Area Representative a proportionate share of the cost of national advertising campaigns to solicit franchisees.

(t) Area Representative must use his best efforts to cause Franchisees to keep payments to Franchisor current and, if requested by Franchisor, assist in the enforcement of Franchisor's rights under Franchisees' franchise agreements and Franchisor's Operating Manual, policies, procedures and specifications, including the collection of delinquent payments from Franchisees. Area Representative may not modify or amend Franchisor's Operating Manual, policies, procedures or specifications without Franchisor's written consent. Area Representative must pay to Franchisor, or reimburse Franchisor for, at Franchisor's election, thirty-three and one-third (33 1/3%) percent of all third party costs and expenses (including reasonable third payments (including Royalties) from Franchisees to Franchisor. That payment must be made by Area Representative within thirty (30) days after Franchisor's written request therefor or invoice thereof.

(u) (i) Area Representative (or, if Area Representative is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity, a Principal) must attend and satisfactorily complete the entire training, if any, provided by Franchisor for franchisees (the "**Franchisee Training Program**"). (Area Representative's rights to attend the Franchisee Training Program are set forth in his franchise agreement.) Area Representative (or, if Area Representative is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity, a Principal) must attend and satisfactorily complete the entire training, if any, provided by Franchisor for Area Representatives (the "AR Training Program"). (If more than one person signs this Agreement, both or all must attend and satisfactorily complete the Franchisee Training Program and the AR

Training Program. In addition, all of Area Representative's employees from time to time must attend and satisfactorily complete the Franchisee Training Program and the AR Training Program; the cost of attendance from time to time will be the amount then charged by Franchisor to new franchisees or Area Representatives, respectively, for additional training. Expenses, such as travel, lodging and meal expenditures, in connection with Area Representative and his employees attending the Franchisee Training Program and the AR Training Program will be borne by Area Representative.

Area Representative acknowledges that the Franchisee Training Program (ii) and/or the AR Training Program may have multiple stages, and that in connection with each stage, Area Representative may be tested. Area Representative further acknowledges that Area Representative may be evaluated upon, among other things, the results of such tests, whether Area Representative is competent, in Franchisor's sole judgment, in performing the skills necessary to be a franchisee and/or an Area Representative, whether Area Representative can speak English fluently, whether Area Representative has an aptitude for being a franchisee and/or an Area Representative, whether Area Representative is, in Franchisor's sole judgment, a good fit within the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe system and whether Area Representative's being a franchisee and/or an Area Representative may, in Franchisor's sole judgment, adversely affect the goodwill or reputation of Franchisor, its products or the Service Marks. If Area Representative fails the Franchisee Training Program and/or the AR Training Program, Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, provide Area Representative an opportunity to take additional classes and to pass the Franchisee Training Program exams and/or the AR Training Program exams. Area Representative may take the additional classes at a cost of \$1,500 per person.

(iii) If Franchisor determines, in its sole judgment, that Area Representative (or, if Area Representative is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity, a Principal) has not performed satisfactorily on the Franchisee Training Program exams and/or the AR Training Program exams, that Area Representative is not competent in performing the skills necessary to be a franchisee and/or an Area Representative, cannot speak English fluently, does not have an aptitude for being a franchisee and/or an Area Representative or has failed to satisfactorily complete the Franchisee Training Program and/or the AR Training Program, Franchisor may terminate this Agreement, in which event Area Representative must return to Franchisor all materials delivered to him in connection by or on behalf of Franchisor. If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to this Section 3(u)(iii), the Initial Development Fee will be refunded to Area Representative less a \$25,000 administrative fee that will be retained by Franchisor.

(iv) The Initial Development Fee covers the training for up to two individuals at the Franchisee Training Program and AR Training Program. If Area Representative wants additional person to attend the Franchisee Training Program and AR Training Program, the fee is \$1,500 per person. The individuals participating in the Franchisee Training Program and/or the AR Training Program on behalf of Area Representative will not be deemed to be employees of Franchisor or the owner of any store in which those individuals participate in the Franchisee Training Program and/or the AR Training Program, but will be deemed to be employees of Area Representative during all aspects of the Franchisee Training Program and the AR Training Program. (v) If Area Representative (or any of his attendees) fails to provide Franchisor at least 14 days' advance notice of his cancellation of any portion of the AR Training Program, Area Representative may be assessed a \$500 no-show fee, payable upon Area Representative's failure to cancel.

time.

(vi) The AR Training Program may be modified or amended from time to

(vii) Area Representative must, promptly upon hiring, obtain from all officers and employees, and must deliver to Franchisor, signed agreements, in the form attached to the Franchise Disclosure Document, pursuant to which those officers and employees agree to be bound by the restrictive covenants, the confidentiality provisions and certain other provisions contained in this Agreement; provided, however, that Sections 12 (b) and (c) will be effective with respect to officers during the term of their office with Area Representative and for the oneyear period thereafter and with respect to employees during the term of their employment or other association with Area Representative and for the six-month period thereafter.

(v) Franchisor reserves the right to require Area Representative (or, if Area Representative is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity, a Principal) to attend additional development programs and seminars with respect to the Franchised Business and developing the Territory (other than the AR Training Program) at such times as Franchisor reasonably requires. However, the frequency of those additional programs and seminars will not exceed 10 days per calendar year. The cost of attendance and participation in those programs and seminars, as well as Area Representative's expenses (such as travel, lodging and meal expenditures in connection with attending those programs and seminars) will be paid by Area Representative. Franchisor may impose a charge for Area Representative's failure to attend such programs and seminars.

(w) Area Representative must submit a quarterly report to Franchisor on Area Representative's activities (including Area Representative's objectives, progress against objectives, sales, site locating, activity in the market and competition) in a format that follows the Business Plan, to Franchisor within 15 days after the end of each calendar quarter.

(x) Area Representative must use his best efforts to cause Franchisees in the Territory to comply with all applicable laws and regulations and to refrain from taking any action that would constitute a breach under his Franchise Agreement or that would be the basis for a claim or lawsuit by Franchisor.

(y) Area Representative must not employ any person who Franchisor, in its sole discretion, has determined to be unfit to represent Franchisor in the marketing of Franchises or in the furnishing of services to Franchisees.

(z) Area Representative must not solicit or receive any kickback, rebate, discount or other remuneration from any vendor or supplier to Franchisees or from any other person with whom Franchisees do business.

(aa) Area Representative must not receive any payment from Franchisees or prospective Franchisees, other than payments payable to Franchisor that are promptly forwarded by Area Representative to Franchisor.

Area Representative must reimburse Franchisor for Area Representative's pro-(bb) rata portion of the premiums (and any applicable finance charges) for any Errors & Omissions Insurance (also known as Professional Liability Insurance) and any other insurance policies reasonably required by Franchisor that are procured by Franchisor on behalf of all NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Area Representatives during the Term of this Agreement (hereinafter, the "Premium Charges"). The Premium Charges for Area Representative shall be due and payable in full to Franchisor within thirty (30) days of Area Representative's receipt of an invoice from Franchisor for such Premium Charges. Area Representative's pro-rata portion of the premiums (and any applicable finance charges) shall be determined based upon the number of open NrGize Lifestyle Cafe units in Area Representative's Territory at the beginning of the applicable policy year compared to the total number of open NrGize Lifestyle Cafe outlets in the United States at the beginning of the policy year. During the Term of this Agreement, Franchisor shall utilize its best efforts to obtain Errors & Omissions Insurance that covers both the Franchisor and all NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Area Representatives with minimum liability limits of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) for each liability claim or related claim, with an aggregate of not less One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) and no more than Ten Million Dollars (\$10,000,000). These insurance policies shall name Franchisor (and any Affiliate of Franchisor that it may reasonably require) as an additional insured. Notwithstanding any provision of this subsection 3(bb) to the contrary, Area Representative hereby acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor is under no obligation to procure the Errors & Omissions Insurance detailed above; but rather it is Franchisor's intention to procure such insurance subject to availability and reasonable cost, with such determination of whether to ultimately procure the Errors and Omissions Insurance to be made by Franchisor in its sole discretion.

(cc) Area Representative must notify Franchisor in writing of the commencement of any action, suit, proceeding or investigation, or the issuance of any order, writ, injunction, award or decree:

(i) Against Area Representative that may adversely affect the operations or financial condition of Area Representative or his business;

(ii) Against any Franchisee, of which Area Representative is aware, which may adversely affect the operations or financial condition of that Franchisee or its business or

(iii) Against Area Representative or any officer, director, employee, shareholder, partner, member, Affiliate or agent of Area Representative that arises out of or relates to the conduct of Area Representative's business under this Agreement.

(dd) Area Representative must become aware of, and comply with, all federal, state and local laws, regulations, rules and ordinances (and, if Franchisor so elects, all voluntary codes of conduct) applicable to the conduct of Area Representative's business under this Agreement. (ee) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, if Franchisor has provided a formal written notice of default to Area Representative that has not been timely cured, Franchisor may perform any or all of Area Representative's obligations under this Agreement. Area Representative must promptly pay, or reimburse Franchisor for, any and all costs and expenses incurred by Franchisor in connection therewith (but for only those costs and expenses incurred on and after the date Franchisor commenced performing Area Representative's obligations under this Agreement), including a per diem charge, at Franchisor's then-current rates, for the time spent by Franchisor's representatives in connection with their travel and performance.

(ff) Franchisor may, from time to time, prescribe reasonable standards, specifications and procedures with respect to Area Representative's obligations under this Agreement and with which Area Representative must comply, so long as such standards, specifications and procedures do not materially change Area Representative's obligations under this Agreement. The prescribed standards, specifications and procedures will be incorporated in this Agreement by this reference and made a part of this Agreement.

(gg) Area Representative will bear all costs and expenses in connection with his responsibilities and obligations under this Agreement.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, unless (hh) Franchisor so requests in writing, Area Representative will have no authority or responsibility as an Area Representative, and will not receive any payments, with respect to Units owned or operated (i) by a franchisee who Franchisor believes intends to own or operate 10 or more NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurants in accordance with an understanding or agreement with Franchisor that provides for regional or national establishment of NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurants by that franchisee (such as airport and mall locations) or (ii) in certain dense retail traffic areas designated by Franchisor (such as Las Vegas, Honolulu and the New York metropolitan area), or (iii) retail restaurant locations being sublet under lease or a concession agreement to a master concessionaire and other unique or non-traditional marketplaces (in Franchisor's sole discretion), such as kiosks, carts, cafeterias, convenience stores, malls, stadiums, entertainment pavilions, amusement parks, sports or entertainment venues, airports, train stations, travel plazas, toll roads, military bases, hospitals, hotels, casinos and high school and college campuses (collectively, "Permitted Exceptions"). Further, notwithstanding anything contain in this Agreement to the contrary, unless Franchisor so requests in writing, Area Representative will have no authority or responsibility as an Area Representative, and will not receive any payments, with respect to Units owned or operated by Franchisor or its Affiliates. If Franchisor requests Area Representative to manage, service, support and/or supervise Units that qualify as Permitted Exceptions and/or Units that are owned or operated by Franchisor or its Affiliates and Area Representative accepts such request, (x) Area Representative will have such authority and responsibility with respect to those Units as Franchisor may designate, (y) Area Representative will receive such percentage of the Royalties with respect to those Units as Franchisor may designate and (z) the owners of those Units will be deemed to be "Franchisees" for purposes of this Agreement to the extent designated by Franchisor. Franchisor shall utilize its best efforts to: (i) notify Area Representative of pending opportunities in the Territory that

would meet the definition of Permitted Exceptions; and (ii) seek the input of Area Representative as to these opportunity(s) that would be Permitted Exceptions (including discussing any concerns Area Representative may have on the impact of Permitted Exception with existing Units in the Territory), but Franchisor shall in no way be bound or required to follow Area Representative's input;

During the term of this Agreement, Area Representative must maintain a (ii) dedicated e-mail account from an Internet service provider (ISP) approved by Franchisor as part of the sales gathering process and also to provide a means of communicating with us and franchisees. Area Representative shall pay the fees associated with acquiring and maintaining a dedicated e-mail account and access to the Internet by an approved ISP. Franchisor may change its list of approved ISPs at any time and may enter into an exclusive agreement with a High Speed ISP and require Area Representative to utilize the services of that specific provider. If you need dial-up Internet services until DSL or cable is available in your area, it is Area Representative's responsibility to verify with his telephone provider that the ISP access number is a non-toll call and will not result in toll charges. Any toll charges incurred through this process will be Area Representative's responsibility. Area Representative must inform Franchisor and its Franchisees of his e-mail address promptly upon signing this Agreement and if Area Representative's e-mail address is changed. Area Representative should check and respond to his e-mail on a daily basis (except for weekends); provided, however, that the timeliness of his e-mail review and responses must be consistent with reasonable business practices and must not cause Franchisor, the Franchisees or other franchisees to be unable to communicate with Area Representative in a timely manner.

(jj) Area Representative (or, if Area Representative is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity, all equity owners) must attend, at his expense, all annual and other meetings and conference calls of Franchisees and/or Area Representatives that Franchisor determines are mandatory for all franchisees and/or Area Representatives, or groups of franchisees and/or Area Representatives, as designated by Franchisor, such as Area Representatives within a particular geographic region.

(kk) Franchisor will be entitled to use the name, likeness and voice of Area Representative and his Principals, officers and employees for purposes of promoting the Franchise, Franchisor and its products, including all photos and audio and video recordings of Area Representative and his Principals, officers and employees, and Area Representative hereby irrevocably consents thereto. Area Representative acknowledges that Franchisor will own all right, title and interest, to the extent allowed by law, in all rights of integrity, disclosure and publication and any other rights that may be known as or referred to as "moral rights," "artist's rights," "publicity rights" or the like associated with such photos and audio and video recordings, and assigns and transfers unto Franchisor the full and exclusive right, title, and interest to such publicity rights. At Franchisor's request, Area Representative will obtain from any or all of his Principals, officers and employees written consent, in such form as Franchisor may request.

(ll) Franchisor or its representatives or agents may meet and communicate with, and solicit information (including books and records and other documentation) from, Area Representative's past and present employees, suppliers, vendors, lenders, lessors, customers,

franchisees and other persons to verify compliance with the terms of this Agreement, to confirm whether Area Representative is performing his obligations to those persons and entities, to confirm the quality and adequacy of the services provided by Area Representative and for any other purpose related to this Agreement and/or the relationship between the parties that Franchisor determines to be necessary or desirable, and Area Representative will assist and cooperate with Franchisor and its representatives and agents in that regard.

(mm) If Area Representative is a person other than an individual (for example, a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity), Area Representative must deliver to Franchisor, simultaneously with the signing of this Agreement, the Agreement to be Bound and to Guarantee attached hereto as <u>Exhibit G</u> signed by each person (and his/her spouse) or entity owning, directly or indirectly, a 5% or greater equity interest in Area Representative (for example, the general partners or the shareholders) (collectively, "**Principals**"), pursuant to which the Principals agree to perform, and guarantee, Franchisee's obligations to Franchisor and its Affiliates, and agree to be bound by the restrictive covenants, the confidentiality provisions and certain other provisions contained in this Agreement.

(nn) If Area Representative fails to pay any amount he is required to pay, or perform any obligation he is required to perform, pursuant to this Agreement, Franchisor may, but will not be obligated to, pay such amount and/or take any action necessary to cure the default. In this event, Area Representative must immediately pay to Franchisor the amount so paid by Franchisor or the amount expended by Franchisor to cure such default, plus interest at the rate of 18% per annum (or, if less, the highest amount permitted by law) from the date paid or expended by Franchisor. This right will accrue whether or not Franchisor terminates this Agreement.

(oo) If Area Representative fails to deliver or provide to Franchisor any statement, report or other document or information required to be delivered (for example, certificates of insurance, financial statements and evaluation and activity reports), by the applicable deadline, Area Representative will be assessed a \$100 late charge per week, or part thereof (until that statement, document or other information has been delivered or provided).

(pp) Franchisor will lend to Area Representative, upon satisfactory completion of the Franchisee Training Program and/or the AR Training Program, one copy of Franchisor's Area Representative Operating Manual (which is comprised of a series of volumes under various titles), for use by Area Representative strictly in accordance with the terms of this Agreement during the term of this Agreement. Area Representative must conduct his operations strictly in accordance with Franchisor's Area Representative Operating Manual, as amended from time to time, and with the rules, regulations, instructions, policies and procedures as may from time to time be issued by Franchisor for the conduct of the Franchised Business as Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, deem appropriate. If there is any disparity between Franchisor's copy of the Operating Manual and Franchisee's copy, Franchisor's copy will govern.

(qq) Any amounts payable by Area Representative to Franchisor or its Affiliates that are not paid within thirty (30) days after their due date will bear interest at the rate of 12% per annum.

(rr) Area Representative must obtain and maintain continuous access to Franchisor's Internet website in a manner that will enable Area Representative to download required information (without regard to size) and to otherwise interact with Franchisor, franchisees and other persons, in such manner as Franchisor may specify. Area Representative is solely responsible for protecting himself from viruses, computer hackers and other computer-related problems, and hereby waives any and all claims against Franchisor and its Affiliates relating to or arising out of us any harm caused by such computer-related problems.

(ss) Area Representative must hire or otherwise engage such number and type of qualified personnel as Franchisor may from time to time require, with such skills and experience as Franchisor may from time to time require, to enable Area Representative to fulfill his obligations under this Agreement. Such requirements may include, among other things, the following: the requirement to hire or otherwise engage on a full-time basis a designated number of field consultants (Regional Directors of Operation) who are acceptable to Franchisor to support and supervise the operations of the Franchised Businesses.

(tt) Periodically, as determined by Franchisor, Area Representative must submit to Franchisor a business plan in the format and containing the elements determined by Franchisor. If Franchisor does not accept such business plan, in its sole discretion, Franchisor and Area Representative shall use their best efforts to agree upon such business plan. If the parties cannot so agree upon such business plan, Franchisor shall determine the terms of such business plan. The final business plan fixed from time to time is referred to as the "**Business Plan**." Area Representative must use his best efforts to meet or exceed the requirements contained in the Business Plan and must meet with Franchisor periodically as Franchisor may require to discuss Area Representative's progress towards meeting the requirements contained in the Business Plan.

(uu) Area Representative <u>may</u> be responsible for providing all of the support services referenced in this Section 3 to all NrGize Lifestyle Cafe locations in the Territory including: (i) locations already open in the Territory as of the Effective Date of this Agreement; (ii) locations that are already sold but not yet open; (iii) locations that are currently being negotiated by Franchisor; and (iv) all new locations.

#### 4. **Promotional Obligations of Area Representative.**

(a) Area Representative must advertise for, recruit and screen prospective Franchisees within the Territory.

(b) Area Representative will review and screen all prospective Franchisees and their applications to confirm that they meet Franchisor's then-current criteria for Franchisees. Area Representative will submit the application of each prospective Franchisee who it has approved (an "**Applicant**") to Franchisor for approval as provided in this Section 4.

(c) Each Applicant's application must be submitted to Franchisor with all information with respect to Applicant then customarily required by Franchisor concerning applicants, and such other material information that Franchisor possesses regarding Applicant. In addition, if

Applicant desires that the franchise agreement contain a specific site at which the Franchised Business will be located, Area Representative must submit, or assist Franchisee in submitting, to Franchisor a complete site report (containing such demographic, commercial and other information and photographs as Franchisor may reasonably require) for each site at which Franchisee proposes to establish and operate the Franchised Business and which Area Representative reasonably believes conforms to site selection criteria established by Franchisor from time to time.

(d) Franchisor will use its best efforts to approve or disapprove Applicants within 30 days after the later of (i) Franchisor's receipt of Applicant's complete application and other requested information materials and (ii) Franchisor's personal interview of Applicant, if Franchisor so requests. If Franchisor, in its sole discretion, determines that Applicant possesses sufficient financial and managerial capability and satisfies Franchisor's other criteria for applicants at that time, Franchisor will offer Applicant a Franchise for the operation of the Franchised Business. The grant of the Franchise will be evidenced by the signing by Franchisor and Applicant of the then-current franchise agreement and will be subject to all of its terms. If Applicant fails to sign a franchise agreement and pay Franchisor the initial franchise fee within 20 business days after Franchisor has approved Applicant as a Franchisee, Applicant will again be subject to Franchisor's approval process provided in this Section 4. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, Franchisor will not be obligated to consider any Applicant during any period during which Area Representative is not in compliance with this Agreement or any Franchise Agreement signed by it or Area Representative's Affiliate.

(e) Area Representative must at all times give prompt, courteous and efficient service to prospective franchisees and Franchisees. Area Representative will, in all dealings with prospective franchisees and Franchisees, adhere to the highest standards of honesty, integrity, fair dealing and ethical conduct.

(f) Area Representative must not, in bad faith, prefer any Franchisee or prospective franchisee over any other.

(g) All advertising and promotion by Area Representative will be subject to Franchisor's prior approval, will be completely factual, and will conform to the highest standards of ethical advertising. Area Representative must refrain from any business or advertising practice that may be injurious to the business of Franchisor, the goodwill associated with the Service Marks or the Franchised Business. In addition, Area Representative must not disparage Franchisor, its employees, representatives or agents, its products or the Service Marks to any person. For purposes of this subsection, disparage shall mean to make negative statements or comments that are not factually correct.

(h) Area Representative <u>may</u> be responsible meeting all of the promotional obligations referenced in this Section 4 to all NrGize Lifestyle Cafe locations in the Territory including: (i) locations already open in the Territory as of the Effective Date of this Agreement; (ii) locations that are already sold but not yet open; (iii) locations that are currently being negotiated by Franchisor; and (iv) all new locations.

### 5. Obligation of Area Representative to Comply with Law.

(a) Area Representative must not, and must cause his employees and representatives not to, solicit prospective franchisees until Franchisor has provided Area Representative:

(i) Written notice of Franchisor's compliance with all laws and regulations (and, if Franchisor so elects, all voluntary codes of conduct) applicable to the offering and sale of franchises in or from the Territory; and

(ii) Requisite disclosure and contractual documents.

(b) If a prospective franchisee resides or conducts business outside of the Territory, but intends to operate the Franchised Business within the Territory, Area Representative must so inform Franchisor. Area Representative must not, and must cause his employees and representatives not to, solicit that prospective Franchisee until Franchisor has provided Area Representative:

(i) Written notice of Franchisor's compliance with all laws and regulations (and, if Franchisor so elects, all voluntary codes of conduct) applicable to the offering and sale of franchises to that prospective Franchisee; and

(ii) Requisite disclosure and contractual documents.

(c) Area Representative must not, and must cause his employees and representatives not to, solicit prospective franchisees at any time that Franchisor has provided Area Representative written notice that the requisite disclosure and contractual documents are not then in compliance with applicable laws and regulations (and, if Franchisor so elects, all voluntary codes of conduct).

(d) At Franchisor's request, Area Representative will promptly:

(i) Provide all information reasonably requested by Franchisor in order to prepare all requisite disclosure and contractual documents required in connection with this Agreement or Area Representative's operations under this Agreement;

(ii) Promptly complete and sign all documents required by Franchisor for the purpose of registering the offering and sale of Franchised Businesses in accordance with this Agreement; and

(iii) Have prepared and provide to Franchisor financial statements with respect to Area Representative and his business, in the form and for the periods as Franchisor may reasonably request in connection with compliance with applicable laws and regulations (and, if Franchisor so elects, all voluntary codes of conduct).

(e) If, due to the actual request of Area representative or expressly caused by the Area Representative's actions, Area Representative's operations under this Agreement require

the preparation, amendment, registration or filing of any information or documents, that information and documents will be prepared, amended, registered or filed by Franchisor or its designee. The costs and expenses of that preparation, amendment, registration or filing, and any additional costs and expenses incurred by Franchisor in connection with the Territory, will be borne by Area Representative and the other Area Representatives within the master territory, as determined by Franchisor, in which Area Representative's Territory is located, on a proportionate basis determined by Franchisor. At Franchisor's request, Area Representative must pay promptly Franchisor, or its designee, at Franchisor's election, the proportionate amount of those costs and expenses or must promptly reimburse Franchisor therefor.

(f) In connection with the offering and sale of Franchised Businesses under this Agreement, Area Representative must:

(iv) Provide only information that is contained in or consistent with Franchisor's then-current disclosure documents;

(ii) Not provide any oral or written representations, warranties, claims or other information with respect to the historical or anticipated revenues, expenses or profits of Franchised Businesses, unless Franchisor so requires or permits in writing;

(iii) Not make any oral or written representations, warranties or agreements to or with any prospective Franchisee other than those contained in Franchisor's then-current disclosure document, unless Franchisor so requires or permits in writing; and

(iv) Comply with all laws and regulations (and, if Franchisor so elects, all voluntary codes of conduct) in connection with the offering and sale of Franchised Businesses.

### 6. **Obligations of the Franchisor.**

Franchisor promises and covenants as follows:

(a) To permit Area Representative to use the Trademarks and Service Marks, its logotypes and any other trademarks or service marks which Franchisor may authorize and designate for use by Area Representative, including tag lines and slogans. Area Representative, upon Franchisor's request, agrees to use the newest trademarks, tag lines and slogans and other promotional material developed by Franchisor upon the minimum of at least 30 days prior written notice to Area Representative;

(b) To furnish, by lending Area Representative as created, a copy of the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Operations Manuals (hereinafter the "**Manual(s)**"), together with any subsequent changes or amendments thereto. Area Representative agrees not to copy, publish or duplicate the contents of said Manuals except when needed to supply each new NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchisee or for dissemination to the officers and key employees of Area Representative;

(c) To make available to Area Representative the right to consult in person at the office of Franchisor or by telephone with Franchisor's officials and staff in its Scottsdale, Arizona offices or at such other location designated by Franchisor about issues and problems relating to the franchise development of the Territory and the design, construction and operation of franchise units so that Area Representative will have available to it the experience of Franchisor. Additional or replacement offices may be developed in the future and the advice and consultation will be provided from these respective offices of Franchisor;

To provide the Area Representative a training program for 5 days (approximately (d) 40 hours) (or such lesser or greater periods as established by Franchisor) of classroom instruction and on-the-job training in an existing NrGize Lifestyle Cafe outlet at a location selected by Franchisor for such training in its sole discretion (the "ARA Training Program"). The ARA Training Program covers the operational and statistical methods of operating an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe location, area representative business, franchise sales, real estate procurement and marketing. The ARA Training Program shall be attended by the controlling stockholders of Area Representative if a corporation, all partners if a partnership, all individual proprietors if a sole proprietorship, and all managing executives and operational supervisors. If the ownership, management or operational supervisor is changed, the new management or executive(s) must also be trained prior to the commencement of their responsibilities at Area Representative's sole cost and expense. With regards to the ARA Training Program, Area Representative shall be solely responsible for the salaries of Area Representative's principals, owners, and/or employees during the term of the training and all travel expenses, including food, entertainment and lodging expenses, of Area Representative, and its principals, owners and/or employees. Franchisor shall be solely responsible for the costs of its training staff member(s) during the ARA Training Program. It is acknowledged that subsequent to the ARA Training Program, there will be continued practical training and education arising between the Area Representative's staff and Franchisor's staff as Area Representative confronts the problems and difficulties that arise in the development of the Territory. The costs and expenses of any and all training programs and sessions after the ARA Training Program shall be the sole responsibility of Area Representative.

(e) As changes in applicable laws occur, Franchisor shall make reasonable efforts to inform Area Representative of any new or recently modified applicable federal or state franchise laws. Area Representative acknowledges that such information will be generally provided to Area Representative through mailings or emails from the Franchisor's corporate office. This provision and its compliance or lack thereof shall in no way release Area Representative from its obligation to comply with all applicable laws and/or to be knowledgeable of all applicable franchising laws and regulations, including those specific to the Territory;

(f) To pay all bills, invoices, fees and other obligations that may be owed to Area Representative by Franchisor, provided Area Representative is not in receipt of a written notice of default from Franchisor that has not been cured, including default of its monetary obligations to Franchisor;

(g) To protect and defend Area Representative's right to use, and the validity of, Franchisor's Trademarks;

(h) To direct all franchise sales and real estate leads received by Franchisor for potential franchisees and real estate in the Territory promptly to Area Representative; and

Franchisor, or its affiliated companies, shall have no responsibility or (i) obligation to become a party (i.e., tenant, guarantor, etc.) to any commercial real estate leases in the Territory, whether for Area Representative's corporate locations, or for third party franchisees in the Territory who purchased franchises during the Term of this Agreement. However, Franchisor will have the right to reject any proposed locations for NrGize Lifestyle Cafe units in the Territory in its sole and absolute discretion unless any proposed location falls within a protected radius of either (i) an existing or under NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchise development third party location or (ii) NrGize Lifestyle Cafe landlord in the Territory.

#### 7. Initial Development Fee.

(a) In consideration of the rights granted to Area Representative contained in this Agreement, Area Representative will pay to Franchisor an amount, which amount is stated on the signature page of this Agreement (the "**Initial Development Fee**") equal to the greater of:

(i) The product of (I) \$0.10 and (II) the number of people residing within the Territory, as determined in accordance with the most recent edition or announcement of the source designated by Franchisor from time to time; or

(ii) The product of (I) \$0.03 and (II) the number of people residing within the Territory <u>plus</u> (III) four times the royalty payments received in the last 12 months on existing stores within the Territory.

(b) The Initial Development Fee will be payable in cash or by cashiers' or certified check upon the signing of this Agreement by Franchisor and Area Representative. Except as set forth in Section 3(u)(iii), the Initial Development Fee will be fully earned by Franchisor upon the signing of this Agreement and will be nonrefundable.

(c) Area Representative must pay to Franchisor an amount equal to any sales, gross receipts or similar taxes assessed against, or payable by, Franchisor and calculated on the Initial Development Fee or other payments required to be paid pursuant to this Agreement, unless the tax is an income tax or an optional alternative to an income tax otherwise payable by Franchisor. Such amount will be due and payable within 10 days after receipt of Franchisor's invoice.

(d) No Initial Development Fee will be payable in connection with a renewal or transfer.

#### 8. Area Representative's Compensation and Liabilities.

Area Representative's compensation, in consideration of the performance by Area Representative of his responsibilities and obligations under this Agreement shall be computed as follows:

#### (a) **Compensation from Franchise, Transfer and Renewal Fees.**

(i) **Fee Compensation.** Area Representative will be paid thirty three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) of the Net Collected Proceeds (the resulting calculated amount to be referred to as the "**Fee Compensation**"). Net Collected Proceeds, for purposes of this Section 8, is defined as Initial Franchise Fees, transfer fees and renewal fees collected for Units in the Territory during the Term of this Agreement, operated by Franchisees, less (a) a the Legal Expense and Sales Facilitation Fee, (b) the Training Fee, and (c) the Selling Expenses (if any); as defined below; for each Unit in the Territory. The Fee Compensation owed to Area Representative will be paid on or before the 15th day of the month following the month in which the applicable franchise agreement or transfer agreement has been executed by Franchisor, all amounts are fully collected by Franchisor, and all documentation and other materials required by Franchisor.

(ii) Legal Expense and Sales Facilitation Fee. For each franchise sold or transferred in the Territory, whether to a third party or to an Area Representative, \$2,000 shall be paid to Franchisor to cover its legal expenses and sales administration costs ("Legal Expense and Sales Facilitation Fee"). The Legal Expense and Sales Facilitation Fee shall be deducted from each collected Initial Franchise Fee or transfer fee, as appropriate, and paid to Franchisor in all cases prior to calculating Area Representative's Fee Compensation regarding that Unit. The Legal Expense and Sales Facilitation Fee will be reduced to \$500 if Franchisee is entering into a franchise agreement as part of a Non-Traditional location and the Franchisee has already paid, or is simultaneously paying a \$2,000 Legal Expense and Sales Facilitation Fee as part of Franchisee's execution of a separate franchise agreement with Franchisor for the same physical location (a "co-brand" or "dual-brand" location) in the Territory. In cases where multiple franchise agreements are being executed simultaneously it will be within Franchisor's sole discretion to determine which is the primary location (the "Lead Brand") for purposes of determining which Franchise requires the \$2,000 fee and which the \$500 fee. By way of example if a particular physical location will house an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchise unit and a Taco Time franchise unit operating as a co-brand or dual-brand, owned by the same Franchisee, the combined Legal Expense and Sales Facilitation Fee for the units will total \$2,500.

(iii) **Training Fee -** For each franchise sold or transferred in the Territory, whether to a third party or to an Area Representative, \$1500 shall be paid to Franchisor to cover its training expenses ("**Training Fee**"). The Training Fee may be waived if the Franchisee is not required, in Franchisor's sole discretion, to complete Franchisor's Training Program. The Training Fee shall be deducted from the Initial Franchise Fee or transfer fee, as appropriate, and paid to Franchisor in all cases that a Franchisee is required to complete Franchisor's Training Program, prior to calculating Area Representative's Fee Compensation regarding that Unit.

(iv) **Selling Expenses** - From time-to-time Area Representative and Franchisor may agree that Franchisor's internal sales staff, or unrelated third-party brokers may be involved in franchise sales and or franchise transfer transactions in the Territory. In all such cases any sales commissions or broker fees paid by Franchisor related to such transaction will be considered Selling Expenses (hereinafter "**Selling Expenses**"). The Selling Expenses shall be deducted from the Initial Franchise Fee or transfer fee, as appropriate, and paid to Franchisor in all cases prior to calculating Area Representative's Fee Compensation regarding that Unit.

(v) Additional fees may be charged by Franchisor to Franchisees in the Territory for services provided by Franchisor, such as lease review and architectural review fees, etc. ("**Service Fees**"). Area Representative will not be paid Fee Compensation for any Service Fees charged by Franchisor to Franchisee.

(vi) Area Representative acknowledges that Area Representative is not entitled to any share of the Initial Franchise Fees in regards to any and all NrGize Lifestyle Cafe locations already open in the Territory as of the Effective Date of this Agreement and those locations identified on Exhibit B hereto that are already sold (but not yet open) or being negotiated by Franchisor for NrGize Lifestyle Cafe locations to be opened in the Territory after the Effective Date of this Agreement nor do any of these pre-existing locations or identified locations count towards Area Representative's development obligations under Exhibit C of this Agreement.

(vii) All amounts to be paid to Area Representative pursuant to this Section 8(a) are subject to offset as provided in Section 8(j) below.

### (b) **Compensation From Continuing Royalty Fees**

Royalty Fee Compensation. Area Representative will be paid thirty-(i) three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) of all Continuing Royalty Fees received (and actually collected by the Franchisor) during the term of this Agreement from Franchisees (including Area Representative, if a Franchisee) within the Territory during the term of this Agreement, less the Accounting Expense Deduction (the resulting calculated amount to be referred to as the "Royalty Fee Compensation"). For purposes of this Agreement, the term "Continuing Royalty Fees" means the payments from Franchisees designated by Franchisor as Continuing Royalty Fees and equal to a percentage (as designated by Franchisor in the applicable franchise agreement) of sales from all products and services sold at the Franchised Business, whether for on-site or off-site consumption. (However, the term "Continuing Royalty Fees" does not include amounts paid or owing to Franchisor by a particular Franchisee or Landlord (x) with respect to periods during which that Franchisee is in breach of its obligations under its franchise agreement or (y) in connection with the failure to open his NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant in accordance with the timetable set forth in his franchise agreement, pursuant to Section 9(b) of the franchise agreement or (z) in connection with the termination of a Franchise Agreement or Lease Agreement. The Royalty Fee Compensation owed to Area Representative will be paid on or before the 15<sup>th</sup> day of the month following the month in which Franchisor receives those Continuing Royalty Fees from Franchisees in the Territory.

(ii) Accounting Expense Deduction. For each franchise sold under this Agreement, whether to a third party, or to the Area Representative to operate as their own unit, 2% of the gross amount of all Continuing Royalty Fees collected by Franchisor (hereinafter "Accounting Expense Deduction") shall be paid to Franchisor to cover its accounting expenses. The Accounting Expense Deduction shall be deducted from the Continuing Royalty Fees collected from Units in the Territory prior to the calculation of Area Representative's Royalty Fee Compensation.

(iii) Penalty fees may be charged by Franchisor to Franchisees which may include hours of operation violation fees, late fees, interest, audit costs, etc. (the "**Penalty Fees**"). Area Representative will not be paid a commission on any Penalty Fees charged by Franchisor to Franchisee.

(iv) Area Representative acknowledges that Area Representative is not entitled to any share of the Continuing Royalty Fees or any Fee Compensation in regards to any and all Units identified on Exhibit B hereto nor do any of these pre-existing locations or identified locations count towards Area Representative's development obligations under Exhibit C of this Agreement.

(v) All amounts to be paid to Area Representative pursuant to this Section 8(b) are subject to offset as provided in Section 8(j) below.

(c) Area Representative's Compensation and Liabilities Regarding Acquired Locations operated by Area Representative. If Franchisor requests Area Representative to operate a Unit within the Territory that Franchisor has acquired for any reason, Area Representative must execute any management or other agreement requested by Franchisor, operate that Unit in good faith and in the same manner that Area Representative operates Units that it owns. Area Representative's compensation or costs, if any, for those services will be an amount equal to:

(i) The profits or losses realized by Area Representative in connection with that Unit during the period of time that that Unit was operated by Area Representative; plus or minus

(ii) Thirty-three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) of the amount by which the net sale price realized by Franchisor in connection with the sale of that Unit exceeds the net amount paid or incurred by Franchisor in connection with acquiring or holding that Unit; minus

(iii) Thirty-three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) of the amount owed to Franchisor by the Franchisee that previously owned the acquired Unit (but expressly excluding any amounts representing unilateral financing provided by Franchisor (or an Affiliate of Franchisor) to the Franchisee that previously owned the Unit that assisted such Franchisee is acquiring or otherwise building out the Unit); minus

(iv) Thirty-three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) of the amount that Franchisor or its Affiliate has paid to a landlord, financial institution, collection agency, vendor, supplier, governmental agency or other person with respect to that Unit.

(d) Area Representative's Compensation and Liabilities Regarding Acquired Locations operated by Franchisor. If Franchisor operates a Unit within the Territory that is in breach of its franchise agreement, or that Franchisor has acquired from a Franchisee for any reason, Area Representative's compensation or costs, if any, related to such operation will be an amount equal to:

(i) Thirty-three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) of all profits or losses realized by Franchisor in connection with that Unit during the period of time that that Unit was operated by Franchisor; plus or minus

(ii) Thirty-three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) of the amount by which the net sale price realized by Franchisor in connection with the sale of that Unit exceeds the net amount paid or incurred by Franchisor in connection with acquiring or holding that Unit; minus

(iii) Thirty-three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) of the amount owed to Franchisor by the Franchisee that previously owned the acquired Unit (but expressly excluding any amounts representing unilateral financing provided by Franchisor (or an Affiliate of Franchisor) to the Franchisee that previously owned the Unit that assisted such Franchisee is acquiring or otherwise building out the Unit); minus

(iv) Thirty-three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) of the amount that Franchisor or its Affiliate has paid to a landlord, financial institution, collection agency, vendor, supplier, governmental agency or other person with respect to that Unit.

(e) Area Representative's Liabilities for Closed Locations. If Franchisor, in its sole discretion, decides to close a Unit in the Territory that Franchisor acquired from a Franchisee as a result of a default or termination of a Franchisee's Franchise Agreement, Area Representative shall pay Franchisor thirty-three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) of the amount that Franchisor or its Affiliate has paid to a landlord, vendor, supplier, governmental agency and/or other person with respect to that Unit.

(f) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, Franchisor will have no obligation to pay Area Representative any amounts pursuant to this Section 8 (and none of such amounts will accrue):

(i) Unless and until Franchisor receives from the applicable Franchisee the full amount that Franchisor is entitled to receive with respect thereto;

(ii) With respect to any period during which Area Representative or his Affiliate is in breach of, or default under, his obligations under this Agreement or any Franchise Agreement between Franchisor and Area Representative or any of his Affiliates; (iii) With respect to Permitted Exceptions (except as set forth in Section 3(ii)) or Units located in the Territory owned or operated by Franchisor or its Affiliates in accordance with Section 2(c); and

(iv) With respect to any quarter and with respect to any Unit with respect to which Area Representative failed to conduct any of the quarterly QSCE evaluations, or deliver to Franchisor any of the reports, required under Section 3(o);

(g) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, Franchisor will have no obligation to pay Area Representative any amounts pursuant to this Section 8 with respect to any Unit that has been transferred without full compliance with Franchisor's transfer procedures (as set forth in the applicable franchise agreement), until Franchisor's transfer procedures have been fully complied with and Franchisor has received all documentation in connection therewith that Franchisor determines, in its sole judgment, to be necessary.

(h) (i) If Franchisor is required, or elects to, return all or a portion of a Franchisee's Initial Franchise Fee or Continuing Royalty Fees, Area Representative will be required to pay his proportionate share of such amounts to Franchisor.

(ii) If a Franchisee's franchise agreement is terminated and Franchisor, in its sole discretion, agrees to pay that Franchisee any amount (or Franchisor waives collection of any amount to which it is entitled and for which Area Representative has already received its thirty-three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) share), or if a court of competent jurisdiction determines that Franchisor must pay that Franchisee any amount (or that Franchisor must waive collection of any amount to which it is entitled and for which Area Representative has already received its thirty-three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) share, Area Representative must promptly pay to Franchisor thirty- three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) of any amount that Franchisor so pays or waives.

(iii) The provisions of Section 10 of this Agreement will supersede the terms of this Section 8(h).

(i) **Right of Offset.** Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, Franchisor may offset any funds owed to Franchisor by Area Representative or an Affiliate pursuant to this Agreement (including Premium Charges), or any other agreement including but not limited to Franchise Agreements, Promissory Note(s), and Subleases, between Franchisor and Area Representative or its Affiliates, against any funds owed to Area Representative by Franchisor pursuant to this Agreement.

(j) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, if Franchisor's receipt (or the payer's payment to Franchisor) of any initial franchise fees, Continuing Royalty Fees, development fees or other amounts are subject to withholding or other taxes or payments, the amount to which Area Representative is entitled pursuant to this Section 8 will be reduced in an amount proportionate to the amount that that withholding or other tax bears to the payment to which Franchisor is entitled. In addition, all amounts payable to Area Representative pursuant to this Agreement will be subject to all withholding or other taxes or payments applicable to the payment of those amounts. All amounts payable to Franchisor pursuant to this Agreement are net of taxes or similar payments (other than income taxes) payable by, or on behalf of, Franchisor in connection with such payments. All amounts payable to Area Representative pursuant to this Agreement will be calculated after taking into account amounts, if any, payable as taxes or similar payments (other than income taxes) payable by, or on behalf of, Franchisor in connection with such payments and taxes or similar payments (other than income taxes) payable by, or on behalf of, Franchisor in connection with such payments.

(k) The term "**Franchisees**" will, for purposes of this Agreement, include persons who have been granted Franchises within the Territory prior to the Effective Date. Area Representative will not be entitled to receive any payment with respect to those Franchisees' initial franchise fees and the terms of this Agreement will be subject to the terms of the agreements then existing between Franchisor and those Franchisees. The term "**Franchisees**" will not include Units operated by the Franchisor or its Affiliates, unless Franchisor designates them as "**Franchisees**."

#### 9. Service Marks, Etc.

Area Representative acknowledges and recognizes Franchisor's interest in, and (a) rights to, the Trade Marks, Service Marks, the Copyrights (as defined in Franchise Disclosure Documents), the Innovations (as defined in Franchise Disclosure Documents) and the Proprietary Information. Area Representative acknowledges that it has no interest whatsoever in or to the Service Marks, the Copyrights, the Innovations and the Proprietary Information and that it is not granted any right to use the Service Marks, the Copyrights, the Innovations or the Proprietary Information by this Agreement, other than as authorized by Franchisor in writing. Area Representative will not derive any right, title or interest in the Trade Marks, Service Marks, the Copyrights, the Innovations or the Proprietary Information in connection with the conduct of his business under this Agreement. Area Representative further acknowledges that any use by Area Representative of the Trade Marks, Service Marks, the Copyrights, the Innovations and the Proprietary Information pursuant to this Agreement will inure to the benefit of Franchisor and the Program and that any goodwill arising from Area Representative's use will automatically vest in Franchisor. Area Representative may not, at any time during the term of this Agreement, or after its termination or expiration, contest the validity or ownership of any Trade Marks, Service Marks, the Copyrights, the Innovations or the Proprietary Information, or assist any other person in same. Area Representative must immediately notify Franchisor of any conduct that could constitute infringement of or challenge to the Trade Marks, Service Marks, the Copyrights, the Innovations or the Proprietary Information. Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, decide whether to institute any action in connection with infringement of or challenge to the Trade Marks, Service Marks, the Copyrights, the Innovations or the Proprietary Information, and will control all proceedings and litigation.

(b) Area Representative must not solicit other Area Representatives or franchisees, or use the lists of Area Representatives and franchisees, for any commercial or other purpose other than purposes directly related to the conduct of their business in accordance with this Agreement without the prior approval of Franchisor. Area Representative must not engage in any business venture or activity (other than that expressly contemplated by this Agreement), including operating Franchised Businesses, with other Area Representatives or franchisees without the prior approval of Franchisor. Area Representative will cause his Principals, officers, and employees to comply with such restrictions.

### **10.** Financial Reporting; Inspections; Audits.

Area Representative must submit to Franchisor such financial information, (a) statements and reports related to the Franchised Business that Franchisor may require, in its sole discretion, from time to time, in the format that Franchisor may require, in its sole discretion. Franchisor may require that any such financial statements be compiled, reviewed or audited, at Area Representative's expense. Area Representative must maintain his books and records in the English language and in an orderly fashion and in accordance with standard accounting procedures. Area Representative must maintain such books and records as are required by law and such books and records as Franchisor may require, in its sole discretion, including employee timecards. All books and records maintained by Area Representative relating to the conduct of his business must be retained by Area Representative during the term of this Agreement and for the seven-year period following the expiration or termination of this Agreement. Franchisor may disclose to any bona fide requesting person (including any lender to, or lessor of, Area Representative), or use for any valid business purpose, any financial or other information regarding Area Representative in Franchisor's possession, without obtaining Area Representative's consent.

(b) Franchisor may inspect, or cause its agents or representatives to inspect, at any time, Area Representative's account statements and other books and records with respect to his operations pursuant to this Agreement, including Area Representative's federal and state tax returns and financial accounts. Area Representative must maintain his books and records with respect to his operations at such place as is approved in writing by Franchisor. At the request of Franchisor, or its agents or representatives, Area Representative must, by the close of the day upon which such request is made, (i) deliver his books and records (and/or accurate and complete copies thereof, at Franchisor's option) to Franchisor, or its agents or representatives, access to Area Representative's account statements and other books and records (and/or accurate and complete copies thereof, at Franchisor's option) at the place at which they are maintained.

(c) Franchisor may audit, or cause its agents or representatives to audit, Area Representative's books and records with respect to his operations pursuant to this Agreement. Area Representative must provide Franchisor and its representatives and agents access to Area Representative's books and records with respect to his operations pursuant to this Agreement, and must cooperate with the conduct of any audit. Franchisor will pay all costs and expenses in connection with any audit unless the audit reveals that Area Representative or an Affiliate has breached any of its monetary obligations under this Agreement, or any other agreement between Franchisor and Area Representative or his Affiliates, or that the financial statements submitted to Franchisor by Area Representative are inaccurate, by either (i) 5% of Area Representative must promptly pay, or reimburse Franchisor for, all costs and expenses in connection with the audit (including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs). In addition, Franchisor may pursue any other remedies to which it may be lawfully entitled.

(d) Upon request, Area Representative must, at his expense, promptly provide Franchisor copies of Area Representative's books and records requested by Franchisor (including Area Representative's charter documents, evidence of equity ownership and any agreements among his Principals).

11. Indemnification. Area Representative must protect, defend and indemnify Franchisor, its Affiliates and their respective officers, directors, employees, shareholders, Affiliates, agents, successors and assigns (collectively, the "Indemnified People") and must hold the Indemnified People harmless (with counsel acceptable to Franchisor) for, from and against any and all damages, amounts paid in settlement, claims, demands, liabilities, losses, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees), of every kind and nature, suffered or incurred by any of the Indemnified People in connection with any lawsuit, action, proceeding or claim arising out of or relating to any breach of this Agreement, Area Representative's actions or omissions or the conduct of Area Representative's business under this Agreement (collectively, an "Event"), including the provision of inaccurate, incomplete or misleading information requested pursuant to Section 5(d), the failure to provide information requested pursuant to Section 5(d) or the failure of Area Representative to comply with the provisions of Section 5 or 20. If Franchisor (or any of the other Indemnified People) suffers or incurs any damages, amounts paid in settlement, claims, demands, liabilities, losses, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees) arising out of or relating to an Event, Franchisor's determination of the allocation of liability therefor between Area Representative and the Indemnified People, respectively, will be conclusive and binding upon Area Representative. If Area Representative is an individual who is married, his or her spouse must sign a spousal consent in the form attached to this Agreement.

### 12. Confidentiality; Restriction on Hiring; Covenant Not to Compete.

(a) (i) Area Representative acknowledges that Franchisor is engaged in a highly competitive business, the success of which is dependent upon, among other things, confidential and proprietary information. Area Representative further acknowledges that Franchisor's method of operation, processes, techniques, formulae and procedures and the other Proprietary Information constitute valuable trade secrets.

(ii) Area Representative agrees not to use for any purpose, or disclose or reveal (and must cause all of Area Representative's directors, officers and employees not to use for any purpose, or disclose or reveal), during the term of this Agreement or forever thereafter, to any person the contents of Franchisor's Area Representative Operating Manual or any Proprietary Information. Area Representative must fully and strictly comply with all security measures prescribed by Franchisor for maintaining the confidentiality of all Proprietary Information.

(iii) Area Representative acknowledges that to breach his obligations under this Section 12(a) would cause damage to Franchisor, and that Area Representative would be liable for this damage.

(iv) Notwithstanding the foregoing, Area Representative may disclose Proprietary Information to a person who is bound by the terms of this provision regarding confidentiality and a restrictive covenant contemplated by this Section 12, to the extent that that disclosure is necessary in connection with that person's capacity with Area Representative. In addition, notwithstanding the foregoing, Area Representative may use the Proprietary Information as may be necessary in connection with the conduct of his business under this Agreement.

(v) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following will not be subject to the provisions of this Section 12(a):

(a) Information that is in the public domain as of the date of receipt by Area Representative;

(b) Information that is known to Franchisee prior to the date of receipt by Area Representative;

(c) Information that becomes known to the public without a breach of the provisions of this Section 12 or any agreement signed in connection with this Agreement; and

(d) Information that is required by law to be disclosed or revealed, but only strictly to the extent required by law.

(b) Area Representative may not, during the term of this Agreement and for the twoyear period after the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, directly or indirectly (as an owner, partner, director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, shareholder, representative, agent, lender or otherwise), employ, hire or engage as an independent contractor or otherwise any person who is or was (at any time during the term of this Agreement) employed or engaged as an independent contractor or otherwise by Franchisor or any of its affiliates. This section 12(b) may be waived by Franchisor, in its sole and absolute discretion, but such waiver must be in writing and signed by either the CEO, President or General Counsel of Franchisor to be effective.

(c) Area Representative may not, during the term of this Agreement and for the twoyear period after the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, directly or indirectly (as an owner, partner, director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, shareholder, representative, agent, lender or otherwise), be engaged in a business that:

(i) Manufactures, produces, markets or sells low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements within, or for consumption within, a 10-mile radius of any NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant previously or presently owned or supervised, in whole or in part, by Area Representative or his Affiliates, or any location with respect to which Area Representative or any of his Affiliates has entered into a contract with respect to the future operation of an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant. (ii) Manufactures, produces, markets or sells low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements within, or for consumption within, a 10-mile radius of any NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant or any location with respect to which a contract has been entered into in connection with the future operation of an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe restaurant.

(iii) Manufactures, produces, markets or sells low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements within, or for consumption within, the United States;

(iv) Manufactures, produces, markets or sells low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements outside of, or for consumption outside of, the United States; or

(v) Solicits prospective licensees or franchisees or offers or sells licenses or franchises to market or sell low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements.

For purposes of this Section 12(c), a business will be deemed to be marketing or selling low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements if more than 15% of his gross sales are derived from the marketing or sale of such products.

(d) Simultaneously with the signing of this Agreement, Area Representative must cause each Principal (and his or her spouse) to sign the Agreement to be Bound and to Guarantee attached hereto as <u>Exhibit G</u>, pursuant to which the Principals agree to, among other things, be bound by the terms of this Section 12.

(e) Area Representative must, promptly upon hiring, obtain from all officers and employees, and must deliver to Franchisor, signed agreements, in substantially the form attached as an exhibit to the Franchise Disclosure Document pursuant to which those officers and employees agree to be bound by, among other things, the provisions of this Section 12; provided, however, that Sections 12 (b) and (c) will be effective with respect to officers during the term of their office with Area Representative and for the one-year period thereafter and with respect to employees during the term of their employment or other association with Area Representative and for the six-month period thereafter.

(f) Area Representative agrees that his failure to adhere strictly to the restrictions contained in this Section 12 will cause substantial and irreparable damage to Franchisor. Upon any breach by Area Representative of any of the terms of this Section 12, Franchisor may institute and prosecute proceedings, at law or in equity, in any court of competent jurisdiction, to obtain an injunction to enforce the provisions of this Agreement and to pursue any other remedy to which Franchisor may be entitled. Area Representative agrees that the rights conveyed by this Agreement are of a unique and special nature and that Franchisor's remedy at law for any breach would be inadequate and agrees and consents that temporary or permanent injunctive relief may be granted in any proceeding that may be brought to enforce any provision of this Section 12, without the necessity of posting bond therefor or proof of actual damages.

(g) If the scope of any restriction contained in this Section 12 is too broad to permit the enforcement of that restriction to its fullest extent, then that restriction will be enforced to the

maximum extent permitted by law, and the parties consent and agree that the scope may be judicially limited or modified accordingly in any proceeding brought to enforce that restriction. Each provision contained in this Section 12 is independent and severable and, to the extent that any provision is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable, that declaration will not affect the legality, validity or enforceability of any other provision contained in this Agreement or the legality, validity or enforceability of that provision in any other jurisdiction.

### **13.** Assignment or Transfer of Development Rights.

(a) Area Representative may not assign, delegate or otherwise transfer, by operation of law or otherwise, any right or obligation of Area Representative under this Agreement, without the prior written consent of Franchisor, which consent may not be unreasonably withheld by Franchisor. Except as provided herein, any transfer of an equity interest in Area Representative, by operation of law or otherwise, and any merger or consolidation of Area Representative (if a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity) will be deemed to be a transfer of Area Representative's rights in violation of this Section 13.

(b) It is agreed that Franchisor's withholding of consent under any of the following circumstances is reasonable: (i) at any time when Area Representative (or his Principals, officers or employees) is in breach of, or default under, this Agreement or any other agreement with Franchisor or its Affiliates is reasonable, (ii) if the prospective transferee (the "**Transferee**") is, in Franchisor's sole discretion, not an individual who possesses sufficient managerial and business experience and aptitude and financial resources to perform Area Representative's obligations under this Agreement, (iii) if the Transferee otherwise fails to meet Franchisor's then applicable criteria for Area Representatives, (iv) if the financial or other terms of the transfer may have an adverse impact upon the Transferee's operations or ability to conduct his business under this Agreement and (v) if the Transferee will not, immediately following the transfer, own and operate a Unit.

(c) If Area Representative desires to assign or otherwise transfer any right granted under this Agreement, he must provide Franchisor with a written request for a transfer, which request must be accompanied by such financial and other information regarding the prospective Transferee as Franchisor may require, and a description of the pertinent terms of the transaction (such information is collectively referred to as the "**Required Materials**"). For purposes of this Agreement, the term "**Transfer Fee**" means the greater of:

(i) 5% of the gross sales price or other consideration to be received or realized by Area Representative and his Affiliates in connection with the transfer; or

(ii) \$30,000,

payable in cash or by certified or cashiers' check. Franchisor may, but will not be obligated to, evaluate, investigate, contact or meet with the Transferee. The Transfer Fee will be deemed to have been earned by Franchisor, and be non-refundable, upon Franchisor's approval of the

transfer. The transferee shall enter into Franchisor's then current form of Area Representative Agreement with an Initial Term of ten (10) years.

(d) Within 30 days after Franchisor's receipt of all of the Required Materials, Franchisor will notify Area Representative that (i) Franchisor desires to purchase Area Representative's rights under this Agreement, upon the same terms and conditions as are offered by the Transferee, (ii) the transfer is approved or (iii) the transfer is disapproved, at Franchisor's election. If the transferee is disapproved, the Transfer Fee, less all out-of-pocket expenses incurred by Franchisor relating to the proposed transfer, will be refunded to Area Representative. If Area Representative proposes an alternate transferee within 90 days after Franchisor's notice that the transfer is disapproved, the Transfer Fee will be applied to that application to transfer. Franchisor has the right, but not the obligation, to evaluate and/or investigate the Transferee .

(e) If Franchisor notifies Area Representative that it desires to purchase Area Representative's rights under this Agreement, that transaction will be consummated, upon the same terms and conditions as are offered by the Transferee, but not later than 60 days after the end of the 30-day period referred to above.

(f) If Franchisor notifies Area Representative that the transfer is approved, Area Representative may transfer Area Representative's rights under this Agreement, within 60 days after the end of the 30-day period referred to above, to the Transferee on terms no less favorable to Area Representative than the terms set forth in the Required Materials, provided that on or prior to the closing:

(i) The Transferee signs the form of Area Representative Agreement then being signed by new Area Representatives and will be subject to the terms of that Area Representative Agreement other than the term, the Initial Development Fee and <u>Exhibits A</u> and C (which terms, in each case, will be the same as <u>the corresponding terms set forth</u> in the transferor's area representative agreement);

(ii) Each person (and his or her spouse) or entity owning, directly or indirectly, a 5% or greater equity interest in the Transferee (for example, the general partners or the shareholders) signs an agreement in the form of an exhibit to the form of Area Representative Agreement then being signed by new Area Representatives, pursuant to which he agrees to perform, and guarantee, the Transferee's obligations to Franchisor and its Affiliates and agrees to be bound by the confidentiality provisions and restrictive covenants contained in the form of Area Representatives;

(iii) The Transferee attends the Franchisee Training Program and/or the AR Training Program, if required by Franchisor;

(iv) Area Representative signs and delivers to Franchisor a general release of Franchisor and its Affiliates, in the form that Franchisor may require;

(v) All amounts outstanding by Area Representative to Franchisor as of the date of the closing must be paid at the closing; and

(vi) All breaches of or defaults under this Agreement or any other agreement with Franchisor or its Affiliates must be cured as of the closing.

You acknowledge and agree that you are responsible and liable for any claims, liabilities, demands, obligations, actions judgments, causes of action, orders, awards, administrative actions, penalties, fines, or other legal or administrative actions by a court of competent jurisdiction, administrative body, or other governmental organization, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising from any negligence or willful misconduct that occurred prior to transferring your Area Representative Agreement to the Transferee, and you agree to indemnify and hold us and our affiliates (including our parent and subsidiary companies), and our stockholders, directors, officers, attorneys, employees, agents, successors and assignees harmless for, from and against any and all claims, liabilities, demands, obligations, actions judgments, causes of action, orders, awards, administrative actions, penalties, fines, or other legal or administrative actions by a court of competent jurisdiction, administrative body, or other governmental organization, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or relating to your Area Representative Agreement ("Claims"), except for Claims successfully alleged to have resulted solely from our negligence or willful misconduct. Notwithstanding the foregoing, we will have the right, at our option, to defend any such claim, but you must reimburse us upon demand for the costs of such defense. Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights conferred on the Transferee under this Agreement or Transferee's Area Representative Agreement, may be retained by Area Representative as security for the payment of the Transferee's obligations to Area Representative.

Any Majority-owned Transfer (as defined below) will be subject to the (g) (i) other provisions of this Section 13; provided, however, that Franchisor will not have the right of first refusal contemplated by Section 13(e) and Transfer Fee will be an amount equal to Franchisor's out-of-pocket expenses in connection with the Majority-owned Transfer. In connection with this transfer, however, the Transferee in connection with a Majority-owned Transfer will not be entitled to attend the AR Training Program, the Transferee must sign the Area Representative Agreement then being signed by new Area Representatives (and will be subject to the terms of that Area Representative Agreement other than the term and the Initial Development Fee) and each person (and his or her spouse), corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity that owns, directly or indirectly, a 5% or greater equity interest following any such Majority-owned Transfer must sign and deliver to Franchisor an agreement, in the form attached to the Area Representative Agreement then being signed by new Area pursuant to which he, she or it agree to perform, and guarantee, the Representatives, Transferee's obligations to Franchisor and its Affiliates, and agree to be bound by the restrictive covenants and the confidentiality and certain other provisions contained in the Area Representative Agreement then being signed by new Area Representatives.

(ii) For purposes of this Agreement, the term "**Majority-owned Transfer**" means a transfer (a) to a person or entity that is majority owned by Area Representative, (b) to a person or entity that owns a majority interest in Area Representative, (c) to an entity that is owned by the same persons or entities (on a cumulative basis) that beneficially own a majority interest in Area Representative or (d) as a result of which the person(s) who owned a majority

interest in Area Representative prior to the transfer continues to own a majority interest in Area Representative after the transfer (for example, an additional person purchases or is issued an equity interest in Area Representative).

(h) In the case of an individual Area Representative, any attempt to transfer any right granted under this Agreement upon Area Representative's death, permanent and total disability or dissolution of marriage (if Area Representative's rights under this Agreement, or a majority interest therein, will be transferred to Area Representative's spouse upon dissolution of marriage) will be subject to the restrictions on transfer contained in this Section 13; provided, however, that Franchisor will not have the right of first refusal contemplated by Section 13(e). However, if Franchisor does not approve the proposed transferee upon death, disability or dissolution of marriage, Area Representative or his or her legal representative must, within 180 days after Area Representative's death, disability or dissolution of marriage, transfer Area Representative's rights under this Agreement to a person approved by Franchisor in accordance with the provisions of this Section 13; provided, however, that Franchisor will have the right of first refusal contemplated by Section 13(e) in connection with that proposed transfer. If Area Representative's rights under this Agreement are not transferred within this 180-day period, this Agreement will terminate.

## 14. Term; Renewal.

The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and continue for a term of ten (10) years (the "**Initial Term**"), unless terminated or renewed as provided for herein. If this Agreement has not expired or been terminated prior to the end of the Initial Term, then Area Representative will have the right to renew the term of this Agreement for an additional ten (10) year term commencing upon the expiration of the then-current term, provided that:

(a) At the time of each renewal, Area Representative must not be in breach of its obligations under, or related to, this Agreement or any Franchise Agreement between Franchisor and Area Representative or its Affiliates;

(b) Area Representative must have been in substantial compliance with the Business Plan(s) during the term of this Agreement;

(d) Prior to each renewal, Area Representative must sign a general release of Franchisor and its Affiliates, in the form that Franchisor may require;

(e) Area Representative must notify Franchisor in writing of its intention to renew at least one year (but not more than 18 months) before the end of each then current term (initial or renewal), which notice must be accompanied by a renewal fee in an amount equal to the greater of:

(i) Five percent (5%) of the total Fee Compensation and Royalty Fee Compensation earned by Area Representative and his Affiliates pursuant to this Agreement for the twelve (12) months immediately preceding the renewal; or

(ii) \$30,000,

which amount will be stated on the signature page of the Area Representative Agreement to be signed in connection with the renewal, payable in cash or by cashiers or certified check;

(f) Prior to each renewal, Area Representative must sign the form of Area Representative Agreement then being signed by new Area Representatives and will be subject to the terms of that Area Representative Agreement (other than (i) the term, which will be the term remaining under this Agreement and (ii) <u>Exhibit A</u>, which will be identical to <u>Exhibit A</u> to this Agreement;

(g) Prior to each renewal, Area Representative must, at its expense, attend such training programs or refresher courses as Franchisor may request; and

(h) Franchisor has not notified Area Representative in writing that Franchisor objects to the renewal based upon either: (i) three defaults by Area Representative under this Agreement in the immediately preceding eighteen (18) months, regardless of whether timely cured; or (ii) any monetary defaults by Area Representative under this Agreement that have not been timely cured and Franchisor returns the renewal fee to Area Representative.,

At the time of renewal, Area Representative shall enter into Franchisor's then current form of Area Representative Agreement with a renewal term of ten (10) years. If any of the above requirements has not been satisfied, the term of this Agreement will not be renewed and will expire at the end of the then-current term. The parties agree that the Franchisor's refusal to renew if any of the above requirements has not been satisfied constitutes "good cause."

**15. Default and Termination.** You and/or Area Representative refers to Area Representative, its Principals, officers or employees.

(a) Area Representative will be in material default, and Franchisor may terminate this Agreement and/or seek an injunction, monetary damages and/or other relief, in Franchisor's sole discretion, without notice and without an opportunity for Area Representative to correct a condition of default, except where a cure period is noted below, upon the occurrence of any of the following events ("**Events of Default**"), each of which individually constitutes "good cause" for termination of this Agreement:

(i) If Area Representative (or its Principals) fails to pay any monies owed to Franchisor or any of its Affiliates under this Agreement, or any other agreement between Franchisor and Area Representative, within ten (10) days after receiving notice that such amounts are overdue.

(ii) If during any twelve-month period Area Representative (or its Principals, officers or employees) has been in default under the material provisions of this Agreement, or any other agreement between Area Representative or its Affiliates and Franchisor or its Affiliates, and has received from Franchisor three (3) or more notices of such defaults, whether

or not any or all of the prior defaults were cured within the time limits allowed under this Agreement.

(iii) If Area Representative (or his Principals, officers or employees) repeatedly (three or more times in any 18 month period) fails to pay any monies owed to Franchisor or any of its Affiliates or perform any obligation, or repeated Events of Default occur (either one obligation and/or Event of Default three times, three obligations and/or Events of Default one time or any such combination) under this Agreement, or any other agreement between Area Representative or his Affiliates and Franchisor or its Affiliates.

(iv) If Area Representative or any of the Principals is declared bankrupt or judicially determined to be insolvent, or all or a substantial part of the assets of Area Representative are assigned to or for the benefit of any creditor or creditors, or Area Representative admits the inability to pay its debts as they become due.

(v) If Area Representative (or, if Area Representative is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity, a Principal) fails to satisfactorily complete the Franchisee Training Program and/or the AR Training Program, in the sole discretion of Franchisor, within 30 days after the Effective Date.

(vi) If one or more of the Franchise Agreements or any Area Representative Agreement between Area Representative or its Affiliates and Franchisor are terminated.

(vii) If Area Representative fails to promptly cooperate with Franchisor in connection with obtaining any licensing, registration or permit necessary in connection with Area Representative's activities under this Agreement, or if Area Representative loses, or fails to maintain, any licensing, registration or permit necessary in connection with Area Representative's activities under this Agreement; provided, however, if any failure to maintain such licensing or permit results from circumstances beyond the reasonable control of Area Representative, Area Representative shall have a reasonable amount of time to reinstate such license or permit.

(viii) If Area Representative fails to deliver to Franchisor information and documents requested by Franchisor in connection with updating or supplementing the Franchise Disclosure Document with respect to Area Representative within fifteen (15) days after receiving notice from Franchisor that such information or documents are required.

(ix) If Area Representative fails to transfer his rights under this Agreement in accordance with Section 13(h), including if Area Representative attempts to transfer, or transfers, by operation of law or otherwise, his rights under this Agreement, without the prior written consent of Franchisor, or otherwise in violation of this Agreement. Any transfer of an equity interest in Area Representative, by operation of law or otherwise, and any merger or consolidation of Area Representative (if a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity) is deemed to be a transfer in violation of this provision.

(x) If Area Representative misrepresents, or commits fraud in connection with, any information contained in his application for Area Representative rights, or in any other oral or written information communicated to Franchisor.

(xi) If Area Representative fails to comply with any material federal, state, or local law or regulation applicable to the operation of Area Representative's business unless such noncompliance is not material to the operation of the business or Area Representative diligently contests any governmental determination of such failure to comply.

(xii) If Area Representative or any Principal is (or has been) convicted by a trial court of, or has plead guilty or no contest to, a felony or other crime or offense that may adversely affect the goodwill or reputation of Franchisor, its products or the Service Marks, or if Area Representative or any Principal engages in (or has engaged in) any conduct that may adversely affect the goodwill or reputation of Franchisor, its products or the Service Marks.

(xiii) If Area Representative or any Principal engages in any conduct that violates any law, regulation or ordinance or commits an act of moral turpitude.

(b) Additional Defaults – In addition to the grounds for immediate termination described above, Franchisor may terminate this Agreement should Area Representative violate any other material term of this Agreement, or any other agreement between Franchisor and Area Representative, and that violation is not cured within any time period allowed. In the case of a violation of this Agreement which does not result in its immediate termination as described above and which may be correctable by Area Representative, such default must be corrected to the reasonable satisfaction of Franchisor within thirty (30) days after Area Representative is given written notice from Franchisor describing the condition which constitutes the violation and the corrective action which can be taken to correct the default. Should the default be of such a nature that more than thirty (30) days are reasonably required for its cure, Area Representative will be given such additional time as Franchisor may reasonably determine to be necessary to cure the default as long as Area Representative diligently prosecutes such cure to completion. However, the following cure periods will apply with respect to Area Representative's violation of the social media policy:

(i) a forty-eight (48) hour cure period will apply if you use any form of social medium (as defined in the Manuals), including, but not limited to, a Twitter® account, Facebook® page or a video on YouTube®, whereby you hold yourself out to be an official page of, or video produced by, Franchisor and/or the owner of the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe brand;

(ii) a twenty-four (24) hour cure period will apply if you post on any social medium site or direct others to any site or page, post, blog or other social medium site where there are posted any defamatory or offensive comments about Franchisor, franchisees, the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe brand, Franchisor's other brands, franchisees' customers, vendors, or any of Franchisor's competitors; and

(iii) an immediate cure period (less than twenty-four (24) hours will apply if you post any content to a social medium site in which the content includes, without limitation, any

inappropriate public displays of affection, Franchisor's or others' confidential information or materials, violations of health or safety standards, foul or obscene language, or any images of or information about any persons from whom you did not obtain prior written consent to include in the content.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a statute in the state or municipality in which the Area Representative is located, or any statute within the Territory, requires application of that state or municipal law, and that statute requires a cure period for the applicable default which is longer than any cure period specified in this Article 15, the statutory cure period will apply.

(c) Termination Upon Expiration of Cure Period – If a default under this Agreement is not cured within any time period allowed for the cure of the default, termination of this Agreement will occur without further notice to Area Representative upon the expiration of such cure period.

## 16. Rights and Obligations of the Parties upon Expiration or Termination.

(a) Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason:

(i) Area Representative will forfeit to Franchisor all fees paid by Area Representative to Franchisor, except as expressly set forth in Section 3(u)(iii) of this Agreement.

(ii) All goodwill associated with Area Representative's operations is, and will be, the property of Franchisor, and Area Representative will receive no payment therefor.

(iii) Area Representative must promptly return to Franchisor Franchisor's Area Representative Operating Manual, all training materials and all other property of Franchisor (including all materials relating to the Service Marks, the Copyrights, the Innovations or the Proprietary Information), other than documents and materials provided under any Franchise Agreement between Franchisor and Area Representative that is then in effect.

(iiiv) Area Representative must immediately refrain from marketing Franchises and acting on Franchisor's behalf in connection with his communications with Franchisees and all other persons.

- 8.
- (iv) Area Representative will receive no further payments pursuant to Section

(vi) Area Representative must pay to Franchisor, within 10 days of expiration or termination of this Agreement, all amounts outstanding to Franchisor or its Affiliates from Area Representative or his Affiliates.

(b) Upon any breach by Area Representative of any of the terms of this Agreement, Franchisor may institute and prosecute proceedings, at law or in equity, in any court of competent jurisdiction, to obtain an injunction to enforce the provisions of this Agreement and to pursue any other remedy to which Franchisor may be entitled. Area Representative agrees that the rights conveyed by this Agreement are of a unique and special nature and that Franchisor's remedy at law for any breach would be inadequate and agrees and consents that temporary or permanent injunctive relief may be granted in any proceeding that may be brought to enforce any provision of this Section 16, without the necessity of posting bond therefor or proof of actual damages.

## 17. No Representations, Etc.

Area Representative warrants, represents and acknowledges that:

(a) Except for any representation or warranty contained in the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe FDD and any supplemental franchise performance representations, if any, there have been no representations, forecasts, inducements, projections, warranties or statements made by Franchisor or any of its salesmen, officers, directors, employees, or others, including but not limited to, franchise or Area Representative Business sales, profits and/or growth potential nor has Area Representative relied upon any representations, forecasts, inducements, projections, warranties or statements made by any entity involved in this transaction;

(b) Area Representative has made an independent decision to enter into this transaction and to consult with and receive the advice of counsel, and that it has not been induced by any promise or commitment not contained herein. This is the entire agreement of the parties hereto;

(c) No other salesman, staff member, entity, or associate of Franchisor has met Area Representative regarding this area representative sale or the offer and acceptance thereof;

(d) Area Representative acknowledges and agrees that it and its salesmen (called "**Franchise Sales Associates**") now existing or hereinafter existing are not the agents of Franchisor nor may they bind Franchisor unless agreed to in writing by Franchisor. Franchise Sales Associates are individuals who are involved as franchise sales persons/representatives on behalf of the Franchisor. They are not the agents of the Franchisor nor are they authorized to enter into any contracts, agreements, understandings, or modifications of any agreement between the Area Representative herein or any other franchisee and the Franchisor or on behalf of any subsidiary, affiliate, or other entity associated with the Franchisor. With respect to the franchise sales process, Franchise Sales Associates are authorized to disseminate information approved in writing by the Franchisor. Franchise Sales Associates are not authorized nor is there any intention to grant any apparent authority to do anything other than to assist Franchisor in the sale of NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchises in the Territory for the Franchisor in accordance with applicable laws, rules and regulations;

(e) Except for any supplemental franchise performance representation, if any, there have been no representations, warranties, inducements, pro formas, forecasts, estimates or any other inducement or statement made by any salesperson associated with Franchisor or Franchisor or its agents, salesmen, directors, officers, employees or any other salesmen or other person or entity regarding financing, net profits, gross profits, net sales, gross sales, costs or expenses of NrGize Lifestyle Cafe stores generally or of any specific NrGize Lifestyle Cafe store nor has the

Area Representative relied upon any representations, warranties, inducements, pro formas, forecasts, estimates or any other inducement or statement made by Franchisor or its agents, directors, officers, employees or salesmen or other associates or any other area representative or any of Area Representatives agents, directors, officers, employees or salesmen or other associates, regarding financing, net profits, gross profits, net sales, gross sales, costs or expenses of NrGize Lifestyle Cafe stores generally or of any specific NrGize Lifestyle Cafe store or with respect to any other material fact relating to the development of NrGize Lifestyle Cafe stores in the Territory during the Term of this Agreement or any other matter pertaining to Franchisor, any Area Representative, the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe chain or any other matter not set forth herein;

There have been no representations, warranties, inducements, pro formas, (f) forecasts, estimates or any other inducement or statement made by any salesperson associated with Franchisor or Franchisor or its agents, salesmen, directors, officers, employees or any other salesmen or other person or entity regarding area representative business financing, area representative business net profits, area representative business gross profits, area representative business net sales, area representative business gross sales, area representative business costs or expenses nor has the Area Representative relied upon any representations, warranties, inducements, pro formas, forecasts, estimates or any other inducement or statement made by Franchisor or its agents, directors, officers, employees or salesmen or other associates or any area representative or any of Area Representatives agents, directors, officers, employees or salesmen or other associates, regarding area representative business financing, area representative business net profits, area representative business gross profits, area representative business net sales, area representative business gross sales, area representative business costs or area representative business expenses generally or specifically or with respect to any other material fact relating to the development of NrGize Lifestyle Cafe stores in the Territory during the Term of this Agreement or any other matter pertaining to Franchisor, any Area Representative, the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe chain or any other matter not set forth herein.

**FRANCHISOR WILL BE RELYING UPON YOUR RESPONSES TO THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONNAIRE AND** IF ANY RESPONSE IS A NEGATIVE, FRANCHISOR WILL EITHER WORK WITH YOU TO CURE OR **RESOLVE THE PROBLEM OR REFUSE TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEMENT.** 

PLEASE CIRCLE THE APPROPRIATE RESPONSE TO EACH STATEMENT AND INITIAL WHERE INDICATED. IF YOUR ANSWER TO ANY QUESTION IS "NO", PLEASE EXPLAIN YOUR ANSWER IN THE LINED SPACES PROVIDED AT THE END OF THIS AGREEMENT.

#### \*\*\*\*\*

1. Area Representative has been represented by independent counsel who has reviewed the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe FDD, this Area Representative Agreement and the most current NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchise agreement. If Area Representative elects not to use an attorney, it acknowledges that it will be bound by the disclosures set forth in this Agreement, and the terms and provisions of this Agreement will be interpreted in accordance with applicable law and

not subject to your personal view of what they may mean and that any oral agreements or inducements unless included in this Agreement, if any, will not be binding upon Franchisor.

YES NO \_\_\_\_\_\_(Initial)

2. Area Representative is fully informed as to all of Area Representative's obligations, and of Franchisor's obligations as set forth in this Agreement.

YES NO \_\_\_\_\_\_ (Initial)

3. Area Representative has only had contact, negotiations and/or discussions with [INSERT SALES REPRESENTATIVE'S NAME], and no others regarding the offer and acceptance of this Agreement.

YES NO \_\_\_\_\_\_ (Initial)

4. Except for the salesperson(s) and executives identified in item (3) above, no other salesman, staff member, entity or associate of Franchisor met the Area Representative regarding this Area Representative Agreement or the offer and acceptance of this Agreement.

YES NO \_\_\_\_\_\_ (Initial)

5. Area Representative acknowledges that Franchisor, its salesperson(s), any of their agents, salesmen, directors, officers or employees or any other salesperson(s), person or entity have not made, nor has Area Representative relied on any representations (other than any supplemental financial performance representations, if any), warranties, inducements, pro formas, forecasts, estimates or any other inducements or statements regarding area representative business financing, area representative business net profits, area representative gross profits, area representative business or expenses, generally or specifically or with respect to any other material fact relating to the development of NrGize Lifestyle Cafe locations in the Territory during the Term of this Agreement or any other matter pertaining to Franchisor, any Area Representative, the NrGize Lifestyle Cafe chain or any other matter not set forth herein.

YES NO \_\_\_\_\_\_(Initial)

6. Area Representative acknowledges that Franchisor's salesperson(s) and/or executives identified in item (3) above or any other entity have not made any other agreement or

understanding with Area Representative or any of its stockholders or members except as is set forth in this Agreement.

YES NO \_\_\_\_\_\_ (Initial)

7. Area Representative understands that in entering into this Agreement, Franchisor is relying upon Area Representative's acknowledgments, representations and commitments as stated in this Section.

YES NO \_\_\_\_\_\_(Initial)

8. Area Representative acknowledges that any and all NrGize Lifestyle Cafe locations already open in the Territory as of the Effective Date of this Agreement and those locations identified on Exhibit B hereto that are already sold (but not yet open) or being negotiated by Franchisor for NrGize Lifestyle Cafe locations to be opened in the Territory after the Effective Date of this Agreement are in no way covered by or made a part of this Agreement, and Area Representative is not entitled to any share of the Initial Franchise Fees, Continuing Royalty Fees, Assignment Fees, or franchise renewal fees generated from these locations within the Territory, nor do any of these pre-existing locations or identified locations count towards Area Representative's development obligations under Exhibit C of this Agreement.

9. Area Representative acknowledges and agrees to keep all of the terms and conditions of this Area Representative Agreement confidential, and to not disclose any of the contents and specific terms of this Agreement to any third party, including any other potential or existing Area Representative of Franchisor, except (i) as necessary to perform Area Representative's duties under this Agreement, (ii) as required by law or by any legal proceedings or similar process, or (iii) to its own accountants and attorneys.

YES NO \_\_\_\_\_\_ (Initial)

10. Area Representative understands, acknowledges, and agrees that this Agreement <u>does not</u> <u>grant</u> Area Representative any development rights of any kind in Kahala Corp.'s fourteen other retail food concepts (i.e., Rollerz, Ranch One, Samurai Sam's, Surf City Squeeze, Taco Time, Frullati Cafe & Bakery, Johnnie's New York Pizzeria, Blimpie, Cold Stone Creamery, Cereality, Great Steak & Potato, America's Taco Shop, Kahala Coffee Traders, and Pizza Fresh Take•N•Bake).

YES NO \_\_\_\_\_\_(Initial)

## "NO" ANSWERS EXPLAINED HERE:

**18. Currency.** Unless otherwise directed by Franchisor in writing, all amounts contemplated by this Agreement will be paid in United States Dollars and deposited in the bank account specified by the recipient. Computation of any amounts to be paid that require conversion between currencies will be made at the selling rate for United States Dollars quoted by Franchisor's primary bank on the date on which payment is made. Area Representative will pay all costs of currency exchange.

**19.** Survival. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, the provisions of this Agreement that may affect the parties' rights and obligations after the expiration or termination of this Agreement will survive the expiration and termination of this Agreement.

#### **20.** Relationship of the Parties.

(a) Area Representative will be an independent contractor, and nothing contained in this Agreement will be construed to create or imply a fiduciary relationship between the parties, nor to make either party a general or specific agent, legal representative, employee, joint venturer, partner or servant of the other; provided, however, that Franchisor appoints Area Representative as his special agent for the particular purposes set forth in this Agreement. Area Representative is in no way authorized to sign any contract or agreement, to make any representation or warranty or to create any obligation (express or implied) on behalf of Franchisor. Area Representative will be responsible for his own taxes.

(b) Area Representative must conspicuously identify himself at the premises of his business and in all dealings with Franchisees, prospective Franchisees, lessors, contractors, suppliers, public officials and others as the owner of his own business under an Area Representative Agreement with Franchisor, and must place other notices of independent ownership on signs, forms, stationary, advertising and other materials as Franchisor may reasonably require.

**21. Provisions.** Each provision, condition and term of this Agreement is material, and a breach or violation of any of them will constitute a default of that party's obligations under this Agreement.

**22. Affiliates.** For purposes of this Agreement, the term "**Affiliate**" means any person or entity (a) that beneficially owns a 20% or greater equity interest in the other person or entity (for example, a parent company of Area Representative or an individual that owns at least a 20% interest in Area Representative), (b) whose equity interests (20% or greater) are beneficially owned by the other person or entity (for example, a subsidiary of Area Representative) or (c)

whose equity interests (20% or greater) are beneficially owned by the other persons or entities who (on a cumulative basis) own a 20% or greater equity interest in the other person or entity (for example, a sister company of Area Representative).

**23.** Notices. All communications or notices required or permitted to be given or served under this Agreement must be in the English language and in writing and will be deemed to have been duly given or made if (a) delivered in person or by courier (including by Federal Express or other courier), (b) deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, for mailing by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, (c) faxed, or (d) delivered by e-mail, and addressed to the address or fax number set forth in this Agreement. All communications and notices will be effective upon delivery in person or by courier to the address set forth in this Agreement, upon being deposited in the United States mail in the manner set forth above, upon being faxed in the manner set forth above or delivered by e-mail in the manner set forth above. Any party may change his or its address, fax number or e-mail address to the other party to this Agreement as provided in the foregoing manner.

24. Successors and Assigns. Subject to Section 13, which restricts Area Representative's rights to assign his rights under this Agreement, this Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective assigns, legal representatives, executors, heirs and successors. Any attempt by Area Representative to assign any of his rights under this Agreement, or to delegate his obligations under this Agreement, without compliance with the terms of Section 13 will be void. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, Franchisor may assign this Agreement, or any of its rights under this Agreement, or delegate any of its obligations under this Agreement, to a person or entity designated by it as a Master Area Representative or any other person without the consent of Area Representative or any other person.

## 25. Amendment, Modification, Waiver or Deferral.

(a) Except as set forth in this Agreement, no amendment, modification or waiver of any condition, provision or term of this Agreement will be valid or of any effect unless made in a writing specifying with particularity the nature and extent of the amendment, modification or waiver and signed by Area Representative and by Franchisor's Chief Executive Officer, President or General Counsel, or by another person designated in writing to Area Representative by one of such persons, on Franchisor's behalf.

(b) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, Franchisor retains the right to modify and amend Franchisor's Operating Manual, Franchisor's Area Representative Operating Manual and to issue and amend rules, regulations, instructions, policies and procedures for the conduct of Area Representative's business under this Agreement from time to time, in its sole discretion, without obtaining the consent or approval of Area Representative, so long as such changes (i) do not materially alter or otherwise materially change the rights, duties, and obligations of Area Representative under this Agreement; or (ii) change the Area Representative's Compensation under Article 8.

(c) Failure on the part of any party to complain of any act or failure to act of another party or to declare another party in default, irrespective of how long the failure continues, will not constitute a waiver by that party of his or its rights under this Agreement; provided, however, that any breach or default of Franchisor will be deemed to be waived 180 days after the occurrence of this breach or default unless Area Representative provides written notice of this breach or default to Franchisor within this 180-day period. Any waiver by any party of any default of another party will not affect or impair any right arising from any other or subsequent default.

(d) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, at any time that Area Representative or any of his Affiliates is in breach of his obligations under this Agreement, or any other agreement between Area Representative or any of his Affiliates and Franchisor or any of its Affiliates, Franchisor (or its Affiliate) may elect to defer the performance of Franchisor's (or its Affiliate's) obligations under this Agreement or such other agreement until Area Representative's (or his Affiliate's) breach has been cured. Franchisor's (or its Affiliate's) exercise of that right will not constitute a waiver of its rights under this Agreement or such other agreement, including Franchisor's (or its Affiliate's) right to terminate this Agreement or such other agreement. In addition, Franchisor's (or its Affiliate's) exercise of that right will not serve as a basis for any claim by Area Representative (or his Affiliate) that Franchisor did not perform its obligations in a timely manner.

26. Severable Provisions; Enforceability. Each and every provision of this Agreement is intended to be independent of and severable from the others. If any provision, or any portion of a provision, of this Agreement is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, unenforceable or invalid for any reason whatsoever, that illegality, unenforceability or invalidity will not affect the validity of the remainder of this Agreement or the legality, enforceability or validity of that provision in any other jurisdiction. It is the intention and the agreement of the parties to this Agreement that the noncompetition and confidential information provisions set forth in Section 12 of this Agreement be enforceable to the maximum extent permitted by law and, to that end, understand and agree that said provisions may be limited or modified by a court of competent jurisdiction to ensure enforceability thereof.

**27.** Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including the other agreements contained as exhibits to Franchisor's FDD and Franchisor's Area Representative Operating Manual, contains the entire understanding and agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings between the parties with respect to that subject matter. Each of the other agreements contained as exhibits to Franchisor's FDD and Franchisor's Area Representative Operating Manual is incorporated in this Agreement by this reference and constitutes a part of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement or in any related agreement is intended to disclaim the representations we made in the Franchise Disclosure Document.

**28. Terminology.** All references in this Agreement to the term "including" means "including, without limitation." All references in this Agreement to the term "entity" include, among other things, a trust. Unless expressly provided to the contrary, any reference in this Agreement to Franchisor's discretion or judgment means Franchisor's sole and absolute

discretion or judgment, and any determination (such as approval or consent), decision or judgment required or permitted to be taken or given by Franchisor will be subject to Franchisor's sole and absolute discretion. All references in this Agreement to the term "person" means an individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity. All captions, headings or titles in the paragraphs or sections of this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only and do not constitute a part of this Agreement or a limitation of the scope of the particular paragraph or section to which they apply. All personal pronouns used in this Agreement, whether used in the masculine, feminine, or neuter gender, will, where appropriate, include all other genders and the singular will include the plural and vice versa.

**29.** Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in two or more counterparts, each of which will be considered one and the same agreement and will become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by each of the parties and delivered to the other parties.

**30. Applicable Law and Forum; Waiver of Jury; Statute of Limitations.** Except to the extent that the United States Trademark Act of 1946, as amended (15 U.S.C., § 1051 et seq.) or the franchising laws of any state that may be applicable, the laws of the State of Arizona govern all rights and obligations of the parties under this Agreement. Franchisor and Franchisee agree that any appropriate state or federal court located in Maricopa County, Phoenix, Arizona has exclusive jurisdiction over any case or controversy arising under or in connection with this Agreement and is the proper forum in which to adjudicate the case or controversy; provided, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing any action initiated by Franchisor may, at Franchisor's election, be brought in any jurisdiction where Franchisee is domiciled or that has jurisdiction over Franchisee. The parties hereto irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction of any such court. THE PARTIES AGREE THAT ALL DISPUTES ADMITTED TO THE COURT PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRIED TO THE COURT SITTING WITHOUT A JURY, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY STATE OR FEDERAL CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY RIGHTS OR PROVISIONS.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, the parties agree that any claims by Area Representative under, arising out of, or related, this Agreement must be brought by Area Representative within one (1) year of the date on which the underlying cause of action accrued, and Area Representative hereby waives any right to bring any such action after such one-year period.

**31. Attorneys' Fees.** In the event of any Event of Default, or if any claim, controversy or dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement, any the breach thereof, or the parties' relationship, Area Representative must pay to Franchisor all damages, costs and expenses, including all late fees, collection fees, interest and Franchisor's reasonable investigation and attorneys' fees and costs incurred in connection with any proceeding or as a result of any breach by Area Representative or Event of Default, as well as the costs of any experts and investigation relating thereto. Nothing herein in any way restricts Franchisor's right to recover monetary damages, injunctive relief and/or any and all other remedies available to Franchisor, in addition to its attorneys' fees and costs. All such interest, damages, costs and expenses may be included in and form part of the judgment awarded to Franchisor in any proceeding between the parties.

**32.** Third Party Beneficiaries. No Franchisee will be a third party beneficiary of the parties' respective rights and obligations under this Agreement.

**33. Remedies Cumulative.** The remedies of the parties under this Agreement are cumulative and will not exclude any other remedies to which any party may be lawfully entitled.

**34.** Construction. The parties acknowledge that each party was represented (or had the opportunity to be represented) by legal counsel in connection with this Agreement and that each of them and his or its counsel have reviewed this Agreement, or have had an opportunity to do so, and that any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party will not be employed in the interpretation of this Agreement or any amendments or any exhibits hereto or thereto.

**35.** Additional Actions. Each party agrees to do all acts and things and to make, sign and deliver such written instruments as may from time to time be reasonably required to carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement.

**36.** Computation of Time. Whenever the last day for the exercise of any privilege or discharge of any duty under this Agreement falls upon Saturday, Sunday or any legal holiday under Arizona law, the party having that privilege or duty will have until 5:00 p.m., Phoenix, Arizona time, on the next succeeding regular business day to exercise that privilege or to discharge that duty.

**37. Authority.** Any individual signing below on behalf of a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity personally represents that he has full authority to bind the party or parties on whose behalf he is signing.

**38.** Acknowledgements. Area Representative acknowledges that it has conducted an independent investigation of the business authorized under this Agreement and recognizes that that business venture involves business risks and that his success will be largely dependent upon the ability of Area Representative as an independent businessperson. Franchisor expressly disclaims the making of, and Area Representative expressly acknowledges that it has not received, any warranty or guarantee, express or implied, as to the potential volume, profits or success of that business venture.

**39.** Executive Order 13224. To enable Franchisor to comply with U.S. Executive Order 13224, Franchisee hereby represents and warrants to Franchisor that neither Franchisee, nor any of his equity owners, directors, officers, employees, representatives and agents (collectively, the "Included People"), (a) is, or is owned or controlled by, a "suspected terrorist," as defined in Executive Order 13224 and (b) to the best of Franchisee's knowledge, has any of the Included People been designated a "suspected terrorist," as defined in Executive Order 13224.

## [SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE]

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties have signed this Agreement, or caused this Agreement to be signed, as of \_\_\_\_\_\_.

Check One:	Individual General Partnership	Corporation Limited Partnership Other Entity (Identify)
State of Organi		ing Outer Entity (Identify)
Executed By:		
	(Sign Name)	
	(Print Name)	
	(Title and Entity Name)	ship, a limited liability company or another type
of entity, list ti	le:	
Address:		
		Mobile No
Fax No.		E-mail address
		or Renewal Fee: \$
Principals of A 100%)	area Representative (Shareholders	s, Partners, Members, EtcTotal MUST equal
Name	<u>%</u> Ownership	

## KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C.

By:

Name: Title:

#### CONSENT OF SPOUSE

The undersigned is the spouse of the Area Representative identified in the Area Representative Agreement, dated as of \_\_\_\_\_\_, between his or her spouse and Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. (the "Agreement"), to which this Consent of Spouse is attached.

The undersigned hereby declares that he or she has read the Agreement in its entirety and, being fully convinced of the wisdom and equity of the terms of the Agreement, and in consideration of the premises and of the provisions of the Agreement, the undersigned hereby expresses his or her acceptance of the same and does agree to its provisions.

The undersigned further agrees that in the event of the death of his or her spouse, the provisions of this Agreement will be binding upon him or her.

The undersigned further agrees that he or she will at any time make, execute and deliver such instruments and documents that may be necessary to carry out the provisions of the Agreement.

This instrument is not a present transfer or release of any rights that the undersigned may have in any of the community property of his or her marriage.

DATED \_\_\_\_\_

(Signature of Spouse)

(Print Name of Spouse)

Exhibit A Territory

#### Exhibit B

List to be Provided of all NrGize Lifestyle Cafe locations in Territory that Area Representative shall not service and shall receive on Royalty Fee Compensation.

## Exhibit C

## **Business Plan**

	SAL	LES STATISTI	CS AND GOAL	S		
	This Year Actual	Next Year Goal	Next Year Actual	Variance to Goal	This year National Avg	
SSS%						
Weekly AUV						
Check Avg						
AUV						
% to Net						
%						
%						
Beverage AUV						
Additional Goals fo	or Next Year					
Increase SSS and/or AUV by			%	% \$		
Sales % to Net and Weekly AUV		JV	%		\$	
Additional Goals:						
	OPERATION	AL MARKET	STATISTICS A	ND GOALS		
	OPERATION This Year Actual	AL MARKET Next Year Goal	Next Year	ND GOALS Variance to Goal	This Year National Avg	
	This Year	Next Year		Variance to	This Year National Avg	
QSCE Average	This Year	Next Year	Next Year	Variance to		
QSCE Average	This Year Actual Actual	Next Year	Next Year Actual Actual % Next	Variance to	National Avg	
QSCE Average OEI Average	This Year Actual	Next Year	Next Year Actual	Variance to Goal	National Avg	
QSCE Average OEI Average OOC Legal	This Year         Actual         Actual %         This Year         %	Next Year	Next Year Actual Actual % Next Year %	Variance to Goal Variance to PY %	National Avg This Year National Avg %	
QSCE Average OEI Average OOC Legal OOC QSCE	This Year         Actual         Actual %         This Year	Next Year	Next Year Actual Actual % Next Year	Variance to Goal Variance to PY	National Avg This Year National Avg	
QSCE Average OEI Average OOC Legal OOC QSCE Total OOC	This Year         Actual         Actual %         This Year         %	Next Year	Next Year Actual Actual % Next Year % %	Variance to Goal Variance to PY %	National Avg This Year National Avg %	
Complaint Rating QSCE Average OEI Average OOC Legal OOC QSCE Total OOC Additional Goals for Reduce Complaint Ra	This Year         Actual         Actual %         This Year         %	Next Year	Next Year Actual Actual % Next Year % %	Variance to Goal Variance to PY %	National Avg This Year National Avg %	

Maintain 100% compliance on \_

Insure 100% compliance on all National Marketing Programs, measure results of FSI's.

**Additional Goals:** 

#### **INITIATIVES**

Stack Rank - Top 1/3 - Bottom 1/3 - proactively identify Bottom 1/3

Develop/Implement Action Plans for Bottom 1/3

Introduce Profitability Initiatives - Prime Pay, My Profit Keeper to

**Additional Goals:** 

#### **MARKET STRENGTHS**

#### **MARKET OPPORTUNITIES**

Requirements.

store(s).

Effective Date - Effective Date

Plus 365 days (the "1st year")	outlets ( cumulative total in the Territory)
2nd year	outlets ( cumulative total in the Territory)
3rd year	outlets ( cumulative total in the Territory)
4th year	outlets ( cumulative total in the Territory)
5th year	outlets ( cumulative total in the Territory)
6th year	outlets ( cumulative total in the Territory)
7th year	outlets (cumulative total in the Territory)
8th year	outlets (cumulative total in the Territory)
9th year	outlets ( cumulative total in the Territory)
10th year	outlets (cumulative total in the Territory)

During the Term of this Agreement, if any of the opened NrGize Lifestyle Cafe outlets in the Territory close or cease to operate as an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe outlet, Area Representative shall cause a replacement NrGize Lifestyle Cafe outlet to open within one year from the date of any such closing or within one year from the cessation of operation of the former NrGize Lifestyle Cafe outlet in order for Area Representative to maintain the above cumulative total of open NrGize Lifestyle Cafe outlets in the Territory.

Any NrGize Lifestyle Cafe franchise locations owned and operated by Area Representative in the Territory prior to the execution of this Agreement do *not* count toward Area Representative's minimum market development obligation set forth above. Additionally, all NrGize Lifestyle Cafe locations already open in the Territory as of the Effective Date of this Agreement and those locations identified on <u>Exhibit A</u> hereto that are already sold (but not yet open) or being negotiated by Franchisor for NrGize Lifestyle Cafe locations to be opened in the Territory after the Effective Date of this Agreement also do *not* count toward Area Representative's minimum market development obligations set forth above.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, in the event Area Representative fails to comply with its development schedule as described in this <u>Exhibit C</u>, this Agreement shall be terminated and Area Representative shall lose its exclusive rights granted herein at the end of the calendar year that Area Representative failed to meet its obligations under the development schedule.

If Area Representative fails to meet its development schedule, Franchisor may develop the Territory itself, or through others by the sale of another Area Representative Agreement, or otherwise.

## Exhibit D

State Specific Addendums (applicable only for the following states: California, Georgia, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin)

#### RIDER TO AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT FOR CALIFORNIA RESIDENTS ONLY AND AREA REPRESENTATIVES WHOSE TERRITORIES WILL BE OPERATED IN CALIFORNIA ONLY

**AGREEMENT**, dated as of the date set forth at the end of this Agreement, by and between **KAHALA FRANCHISING**, **L.L.C.**, an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), and the Area Representative identified at the end of this Agreement ("Area Representative").

That certain Area Representative Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by and between Franchisor and Area Representative, is amended as follows:

- 1. If any of the provisions of the Agreement concerning termination are inconsistent with either the California Franchise Relations Act or with the Federal Bankruptcy Code (concerning termination of the Agreement on certain bankruptcy-related events), then such laws will apply.
- 2. The Agreement requires that it be governed by Arizona law. This requirement may be unenforceable under California law.
- 3. If the Area Representative resides in the State of California or the Territory is located within the State of California, the venue for any dispute may be within the State of California.
- 4. Each provision of this Rider will be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the California law applicable to the provision are met independently without reference to this Rider.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this Rider.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties have executed this Agreement, or caused this Agreement to be executed, as of \_\_\_\_\_\_.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.

Name of Area Representative:

Executed by:

By:

(Sign Name)

Name: Title:

(Print Name

#### RIDER TO AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT FOR GEORGIA RESIDENTS ONLY AND AREA REPRESENTATIVES WHOSE TERRITORIES WILL BE OPERATED IN GEORGIA ONLY

AGREEMENT, dated as of the date set forth at the end of this Agreement, by and between KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), and the Area Representative identified at the end of this Agreement ("Area Representative").

That certain Area Representative Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by and between Franchisor and Area Representative, is amended as follows:

Section 12(c) "<u>Confidentiality; Restriction on Hiring; Covenant Not to Compete</u>," shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

(c) Area Representative may not, during the term of this Agreement and for the two-year period after the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, directly or indirectly (as an owner, partner, director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, shareholder, representative, agent, lender or otherwise), be engaged in a business that:

(i) Manufactures, produces, markets or sells low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements within, or for consumption within, a 10-mile radius of any of the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant located on the attached Exhibit "A";

- (ii) Intentionally deleted;
- (iii) Intentionally deleted;
- (iv) Intentionally deleted; or

(v) Solicits prospective licensees or franchisees or offers or sells licenses or franchises to market or sell low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements within, a 10-mile radius of any of the *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurant located on the attached Exhibit "A"

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties have executed this Agreement, or caused this Agreement to be executed, as of \_\_\_\_\_\_.

## Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.

## Name of Area Representative:

By:

Name: Title: **Executed by:** 

(Sign Name)

# Exhibit "A"

Store Address	City	State	Zip Code

#### RIDER TO AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT FOR HAWAII RESIDENTS ONLY AND AREA REPRESENTATIVES WHOSE TERRITORIES WILL BE OPERATED IN HAWAII ONLY

**AGREEMENT**, dated as of the date set forth at the end of this Agreement, by and between **KAHALA FRANCHISING**, **L.L.C.**, an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), and the Area Representative identified at the end of this Agreement ("Area Representative").

That certain Area Representative Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by and between Franchisor and Area Representative, is amended as follows:

- 1. Articles 13 and 14 of the Agreement as they relate to transfers and termination are only applicable if they are not inconsistent with the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law. Otherwise, the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law will control.
- 2. Section 15(a)(iv) of the Agreement permits us to terminate the Agreement on the bankruptcy of you and/or your affiliates. This Section may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law. (11 U.S.C. §101, et seq.).
- 3. Section 482E-3(a) of the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law requires Area Representative to receive the Disclosure Document at least 7 calendar days prior to signing the Agreement.
- 4. Each provision of this Rider will be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law are met independently without reference to this Rider.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this Rider.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties have executed this Agreement, or caused this Agreement to be executed, as of \_\_\_\_\_\_.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.

Name of Area Representative:

Executed by:

By:

(Sign Name)

Name: Title:

(Print Name

#### RIDER TO AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT FOR ILLINOIS RESIDENTS ONLY AND AREA REPRESENTATIVES WHOSE TERRITORIES WILL BE OPERATED IN ILLINOIS ONLY

**AGREEMENT**, dated as of the date set forth at the end of this Agreement, by and between **KAHALA FRANCHISING**, **L.L.C.**, an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), and the Area Representative identified at the end of this Agreement ("Area Representative").

That certain Area Representative Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by and between Franchisor and Area Representative, is amended as follows:

1. Article 15 of the Agreement is supplemented by the addition of the following, which will be considered an integral part of the Agreement:

"If any of the provisions of this Article 15 concerning termination are inconsistent with Section 19 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, Illinois law will apply."

2. Sections 30(a) and (b) of the Area Representative Agreement will be revised to read as follows:

"(a) This Agreement will be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the law of Illinois, regardless of any conflict-of-law provisions to the contrary.

"(b) Each party agrees that any litigation between the parties will be commenced and maintained in the courts located in the county in Illinois in which Area Representative's principal business office is located, and each party consents to the jurisdiction of those courts."

3. The Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act will govern the Agreement with respect to Illinois franchisees. The provisions of the Agreement concerning governing law, jurisdiction, and venue will not constitute a waiver of any right conferred on you by the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act. Consistent with the foregoing, any provision in the Agreement which designates jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of Illinois is void with respect to any cause of action which is otherwise enforceable in Illinois.

4. Nothing in the Agreement will limit or prevent the enforcement of any cause of action otherwise enforceable in Illinois or arising under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, as amended.

5. Each provision of this Rider will be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Illinois law applicable to the provision are met independently without reference to this Rider.

6. Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act states that "any condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with any provision of this Act is void."

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this Rider.

\_\_\_\_

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties have executed this Agreement, or caused this Agreement to be executed, as of \_\_\_\_\_\_.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.

Name: Title: Name of Area Representative:

By:

Executed by:

(Sign Name)

(Print Name)

#### RIDER TO AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT FOR INIDANA RESIDENTS ONLY AND AREA REPRESENTATIVES WHOSE TERRITORIES WILL BE OPERATED IN INDIANA ONLY

**AGREEMENT**, dated as of the date set forth at the end of this Agreement, by and between **KAHALA FRANCHISING**, **L.L.C.**, an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), and the Area Representative identified at the end of this Agreement ("Area Representative").

That certain Area Representative Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by and between Franchisor and Area Representative, is amended as follows:

- 1. Under Articles 11 and 13 of the Agreement, you will not be required to indemnify us for any liability imposed on us as a result of your reliance on or use of procedures or products which were required by us, if such procedures were utilized by you in the manner required by us.
- 2. Article 30 of the Agreement is amended to provide that in the event of a conflict of law, the Indiana Franchise Disclosure Law, I.C. 23-2-2.5, and the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Law, I.C. 23-2-2.7, will prevail.
- 3. Nothing in the Agreement will abrogate or reduce any rights you have under Indiana law.
- 4. Indiana Code § 23-2-2.5-9(2) requires Area Representative to receive the Disclosure Document at the earlier of: (i) 10 days prior to signing the Agreement; or (ii) 10 days prior to Kahala's receipt of any consideration.
- 5. Each provision of this Rider will be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Indiana Franchise Disclosure Law, Indiana Code §§ 23-2-2.5-1 to 23-2-2.5-51, and the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act, Indiana Code §§ 23-2-2.7-1 to 23-2-2.7-10, are met independently without reference to this Rider.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this Rider.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties have executed this Agreement, or caused this Agreement to be executed, as of \_\_\_\_\_\_.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.

Name of Area Representative:

By: \_\_\_\_

Name: Title: Executed by:

(Sign Name)

(Print Name)

#### RIDER TO AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT FOR MARYLAND RESIDENTS ONLY AND AREA REPRESENTATIVES WHOSE TERRITORIES WILL BE OPERATED IN MARYLAND ONLY

**AGREEMENT**, dated as of the date set forth at the end of this Agreement, by and between **KAHALA FRANCHISING**, **L.L.C.**, an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), and the Area Representative identified at the end of this Agreement ("Area Representative").

That certain Area Representative Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by and between Franchisor and Area Representative, is amended as follows:

1. The general release required as a condition of renewal, sale and/or assignment/transfer will not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

2. The Area Representative may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

3. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought within three years after the grant of the Franchise.

4. All initial fees and payments payable to Kahala before the business opens shall be deferred until such time as all initial obligations owed to the Area Representative under the Agreement or other agreements have been fulfilled by Kahala and the Area Representative has commenced doing business in accordance with the Agreement.

5. All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of liability are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this Rider.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties have executed this Agreement, or caused this Agreement to be executed, as of \_\_\_\_\_\_.

## Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.

Name of Area Representative:

By: \_

Name: Title: Executed by:

(Sign Name)

(Print Name)

#### RIDER TO AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENTFOR MINNESOTA RESIDENTS ONLY ANDAREA REPRESENTATIVES WHOSE TERRITORIES WILL BE OPERATED IN MINNESOTA ONLY

**AGREEMENT**, dated as of the date set forth at the end of this Agreement, by and between **KAHALA FRANCHISING**, **L.L.C.**, an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), and the Area Representative identified at the end of this Agreement ("Area Representative").

- 1. That certain Area Representative Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by and between Franchisor and Area Representative, is amended as follows:
  - a. Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or agreement(s) can abrogate or reduce (1) any of the franchisee's rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C or (2) franchisee's rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.
  - b. With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.14, Subd. 3-5, which require (except in certain specified cases) (1) that a franchisee be given 90 days notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days notice for non-renewal of the franchise agreement and (2) that consent to the transfer of the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld.
  - c. The franchisor will protect the franchisee's rights to use the trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes or other commercial symbols or indemnify the franchisee from any loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the name.

Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee's right to use the trademarks. Refer to Minnesota Statues, Section 80C.12, Subd. 1(g).

- d. Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent to a general release.
- e. The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The franchisor may <u>seek</u> injunctive relief. See Minn. Rules 2860.4400J.

Also, a court will determine if a bond is required.

- f. The Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17, Subd. 5.
- 2. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the Minnesota law applicable to the provision are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this Rider.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties have executed this Agreement, or caused this Agreement to be executed, as of \_\_\_\_\_\_

## Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.

Name of Area Representative:

By: \_\_\_\_

Name: Title: **Executed by:** 

(Sign Name)

(Print Name)

#### RIDER TO AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT FOR NEW YORK RESIDENTS ONLY AND AREA REPRESENTATIVES WHOSE TERRITORIES WILL BE OPERATED IN NEW YORK ONLY

**AGREEMENT**, dated as of the date set forth at the end of this Agreement, by and between **KAHALA FRANCHISING**, **L.L.C.**, an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), and the Area Representative identified at the end of this Agreement ("Area Representative").

That certain Area Representative Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by and between Franchisor and Area Representative, is amended as follows:

1. Section 24 of the Agreement is amended to add the following:

However, we will not make any such transfer or assignment except to a person who, in our good faith judgment, is willing and able to assume our obligations under this Agreement, and all rights enjoyed by you and any causes of action arising in its favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York and the regulations issued thereunder will remain in force, it being the intent of this proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General Business Law Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be satisfied.

2. Articles 11 and 13 of the Agreement are amended to add the following:

However, you will not be required to hold harmless or indemnify us for any claim arising out of a breach of this Agreement by us or any other civil wrong of us.

3. Section 25 of the Agreement is amended to add the following:

No amendment or modification of any provision of this Agreement will impose any new or different requirement which unreasonably increases your obligations or places an excessive economic burden on your operations.

- 4. Section 683.8 of the General Business Law of the State of New York requires a franchisor to give you a copy of the Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of: (i) the first personal meeting; (ii) 10 business days before the execution of the Agreement; or (iii) 10 business days before the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.
- 5. Each provision of this Rider will be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the General Business Law of the State of New York are met independently without reference to this Rider.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this Rider.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties have executed this Agreement, or caused this Agreement to be executed, as of \_\_\_\_\_\_.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.

Name of Area Representative:

Executed by:

By:\_\_\_\_\_

Name: Title: (Sign Name)

(Print Name

#### RIDER TO AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT FOR NORTH DAKOTA RESIDENTS ONLY AND AREA REPRESENTATIVES WHOSE TERRITORIES WILL BE OPERATED IN NORTH DAKOTA ONLY

**AGREEMENT**, dated as of the date set forth at the end of this Agreement, by and between **KAHALA FRANCHISING**, **L.L.C.**, an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), and the Area Representative identified at the end of this Agreement ("Area Representative").

That certain Area Representative Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by and between Franchisor and Area Representative, is amended as follows:

1. Section 14(c) of the Area Representative Agreement is hereby deleted.

2. Section 30 of the Area Representative Agreement is subject to the following: (i) litigation may be conducted in North Dakota; (ii) North Dakota law will govern the Area Representative Agreement; and (iii) paragraph (c) will be deleted.

3. Section 14 of the Area Representative Agreement is subject to Section 9-08-06 of the North Dakota Century Code and, therefore, may be unenforceable in the State of North Dakota.

4. Section 51-19-08 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law requires Area Representative to receive the Disclosure Document at the earlier of: (i) seven days prior to signing the Agreement; or (ii) seven days prior to Kahala's receipt of any consideration.

5. Each provision of this Rider will be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, N.D. Cent. Code §§ 51-19-01 through 51-19-17, are met independently without reference to this Rider.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this Rider.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties have executed this Agreement, or caused this Agreement to be executed, as of \_\_\_\_\_\_.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.

Name of Area Representative:

By: \_\_\_\_

Name: Title: **Executed by:** 

(Sign Name)

(Print Name)

#### RIDER TO AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT FOR RHODE ISLAND RESIDENTS ONLY AND AREA REPRESENTATIVES WHOSE TERRITORIES WILL BE OPERATED IN RHODE ISLAND ONLY

**AGREEMENT**, dated as of the date set forth at the end of this Agreement, by and between **KAHALA FRANCHISING**, **L.L.C.**, an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), and the Area Representative identified at the end of this Agreement ("Area Representative").

That certain Area Representative Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by and between Franchisor and Area Representative, is amended as follows:

1. The Agreement requires that it be governed by Arizona law. To the extent that such law conflicts with Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, it is void under Sec. 19-28.1-14.

2. Section 30 of the Agreement will each be amended by the addition of the following, which will be considered an integral part of the Agreement:

"§ 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act provides that "A provision in a franchise agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum outside this state or requiring the application of the laws of another state is void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under this Act."

3. Section 19-28.1-8 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act requires a franchisor to give you a copy of the Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of: (i) the first personal meeting; (ii) 10 business days before the execution of the Agreement; or (iii) 10 business days before the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

4. Each provision of this Rider will be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, §§ 19-28-1.1 through 19-28.1-34, are met independently without reference to this Rider.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this Rider.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties have executed this Agreement, or caused this Agreement to be executed, as of \_\_\_\_\_\_.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.

Name of Area Representative:

Executed by:

By:

Name:

Title:

(Sign Name)

(Print Name

#### RIDER TO AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT FOR SOUTH DAKOTA RESIDENTS ONLY AND AREA REPRESENTATIVES WHOSE TERRITORIES WILL BE OPERATED IN SOUTH DAKOTA ONLY

**AGREEMENT**, dated as of the date set forth at the end of this Agreement, by and between **KAHALA FRANCHISING**, **L.L.C.**, an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), and the Area Representative identified at the end of this Agreement ("Area Representative").

That certain Area Representative Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by and between Franchisor and Area Representative, is amended as follows:

1. If the Agreement requires litigation to be conducted in a forum other than the State of South Dakota, the requirement is void with respect to any cause of action otherwise enforceable under South Dakota Law.

2. If the Agreement requires that disputes between Kahala and Area Representative be mediated/arbitrated at a location that is outside the State of South Dakota, the mediation/arbitration will be conducted at a location mutually agreed upon by the parties. If the parties cannot agree on location for the mediation/arbitration, the location shall be determined by the mediator/arbitrator selected.

3. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the South Dakota Franchise Investment Law, with respect to each such provision, are met independent of this Amendment. This Amendment shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this Rider.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties have executed this Agreement, or caused this Agreement to be executed, as of \_\_\_\_\_\_.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.

Name of Area Representative:

Executed by:

By: \_

(Sign Name)

Name: Title:

(Print Name

## RIDER TO AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT FOR VIRGINIA RESIDENTS ONLY AND AREA REPRESENTATIVES WHOSE TERRITORIES WILL BE OPERATED IN VIRGINIA ONLY

**AGREEMENT**, dated as of the date set forth at the end of this Agreement, by and between **KAHALA FRANCHISING**, **L.L.C.**, an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), and the Area Representative identified at the end of this Agreement ("Area Representative").

That certain Area Representative Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by and between Franchisor and Area Representative, is amended as follows:

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or termination stated in the Area Representative Agreement does not constitute "reasonable cause," as that term may be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this Rider.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties have executed this Agreement, or caused this Agreement to be executed, as of \_\_\_\_\_\_.

#### Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.

Name of Area Representative:

By:

Name: Title:

**Executed by:** 

(Sign Name)

(Print Name)

## RIDER TO AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT FOR WASHINGTON RESIDENTS ONLY AND AREA REPRESENTATIVES WHOSE TERRITORIES WILL BE OPERATED IN WASHINGTON ONLY

**AGREEMENT**, dated as of the date set forth at the end of this Agreement, by and between **KAHALA FRANCHISING**, **L.L.C.**, an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), and the Area Representative identified at the end of this Agreement ("Area Representative").

That certain Area Representative Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by and between Franchisor and Area Representative, is amended as follows:

1. Article 15 of the Agreement regarding termination of the Agreement is effective only to the extent that it is not inconsistent with the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act.

2. Section 30 of the Agreement states that the Agreement will be governed by Arizona law. Such requirement will be amended to state that in the event of a conflict of law, the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act will prevail.

3. Section 30 of the Agreement will be amended to add that any claim or right arising under the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act may be brought in the appropriate state or federal court in the State of Washington. In any arbitration involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration site shall be either in Washington or in a place as mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration, or as determined by the arbitrator.

4. Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, Wash. Rev. Code § 19.100.080 requires Area Representative to receive the Disclosure Document at the earlier of: (i) 10 business days prior to signing the Agreement; or (ii) 10 business days prior to Kahala's receipt of any consideration.

5. Each provision of this Rider will be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, Wash. Rev. Code §§ 19.100.010 through 19.100.940, are met independently without reference to this Rider. If any of the provisions in the Disclosure Document or Area Representative Agreement are inconsistent with the relationship provisions of RCW 19.100.180 or other requirements of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, the provisions of the Act will prevail over the inconsistent provisions of the Disclosure Document or Area Representative Agreement with regard to any franchise sold in Washington.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this Rider.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties have executed this Agreement, or caused this Agreement to be executed, as of \_\_\_\_\_\_.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.

Name of Area Representative:

\_\_\_\_\_

By:\_\_\_\_\_

Name: Title: **Executed by:** 

(Sign Name)

(Print Name)

## RIDER TO AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT FOR WISCONSIN RESIDENTS ONLY AND AREA REPRESENTATIVES WHOSE TERRITORIES WILL BE OPERATED IN WISCONSIN ONLY

**AGREEMENT**, dated as of the date set forth at the end of this Agreement, by and between **KAHALA FRANCHISING**, **L.L.C.**, an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), and the Area Representative identified at the end of this Agreement ("Area Representative").

That certain Area Representative Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by and between Franchisor and Area Representative, is amended as follows:

1. The Securities Commissioner of the State of Wisconsin requires that certain provisions contained in franchise documents be amended to be consistent with Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, Wisconsin Statutes, Chapter 135 ("Fair Dealership Law"). To the extent that the Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

a. The Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, among other things, grants You the right, in most circumstances, to 90 days' prior written notice of non-renewal and 60 days within which to remedy any claimed deficiencies. If the Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, the provisions of the Agreement shall be superseded by the Law's requirements and shall have no force or effect.

b. The Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, among other things, grants You the right, in most circumstances, to 90 days' prior written notice of termination and 60 days within which to remedy any claimed deficiencies. If the Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, the provisions of the Agreement shall be superseded by the Law's requirements and shall have no force or effect.

c. If the Agreement requires that it be governed by a state's law, other than the State of Wisconsin, to the extent that any provision of the Agreement conflicts with the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law such provision shall be superseded by the law's requirements.

2. Each provision of this Rider shall be effective only to the extent that the jurisdictional requirements of the Wisconsin law applicable to the provision are met independent of this Rider. This Rider shall have no force or effect if such jurisdictional requirements are not met.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this Rider.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties have executed this Agreement, or caused this Agreement to be executed, as of \_\_\_\_\_\_.

Kahala Franchising, L.LC.

Name of Area Representative:

By: \_\_\_\_

Name: Title:

**Executed by:** 

(Sign Name)

(Print Name)

# Exhibit E

# Amendment to Area Representative Agreement (Renewal) (applicable only for the renewal of an existing area representative agreement)

## AMENDMENT TO AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT (Renewal)

THIS AMENDMENT (the "Amendment") dated \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_, to the Area Representative Agreement dated \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_ for NrGize Lifestyle Cafe (the "Area Representative Agreement" or "Agreement") by and between Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor") and \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Area Representative"), is entered into by such parties to amend the Agreement as set forth herein. To the extent this Amendment contains terms and conditions that differ from those contained in the Agreement, this Amendment shall control. The parties agree that a concept or principle provided in one Section of this Amendment shall apply and be incorporated into all other provisions of the Area Representative Agreement in which the concept or principle is also applicable, notwithstanding the absence of any specific cross reference thereto. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein will have the same meanings ascribed to such terms in the Agreement.

## The following shall apply to the <u>renewal</u> of an Area Representative Agreement:

1. Section 3(a)(i) "<u>Obligations of Area Representative Generally</u>," shall be deleted as Area Representative has previously attended and satisfactorily completed the required Franchisee/AR Training Program.

2. Section 3(u) "<u>Obligations of Area Representative Generally</u>," shall be deleted as Area Representative has previously attended and satisfactorily completed the required Franchisee/AR Training Program.

3. Section 3(mm) "Obligations of Area Representative Generally," shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following Section 3(mm): "If Area Representative signed a form of guaranty when it signed the prior area representative agreement which is being renewed under this Agreement, then Area Representative will sign that same form of guaranty when it signs this current Agreement. However, if Area Representative did not sign a form of guaranty when it signed the prior area representative agreement which is being renewed under this Agreement, then Area Representative agreement which is being renewed under this Agreement, then Area Representative is not required to sign a form of guaranty when it signs this current Agreement.

4. The following shall be added to the end of Section 6 "Obligations of the Franchisor," as Section 6(j): "Any amounts payable by Franchisor to Area Representative that are not paid within thirty (30) days after their due date will bear interest at the rate of 12% per annum."

5. Section 7 "<u>Initial Development Fee</u>," shall be deleted in its entirety.

6. The following paragraph shall be added to the end of Section 11 "Indemnification," as a second paragraph:

"Franchisor shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend Area Representative, as well as Area Representative's subsidiaries, affiliates, shareholders, members, successors and assigns, and each of their respective officers, directors, employees, agents and representatives, harmless from and against any and all loss, liability, claims, demands or suits (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses), either directly or indirectly, (i) which arise out of, result from or in any way connected with, the breach of any of the representations, warranties or agreements made by Franchisor in this Agreement; (ii) the alleged gross negligence or intentional conduct of Franchisor, its employees, agents, affiliates, assigns, independent contractors, officers, directors or principals; or (iii) any non-compliance with laws, ordinances, rules or regulations applicable to Franchisor's express obligations under this Agreement."

7. Section 15(a)(v) "<u>Termination</u>," shall be deleted as Area Representative has previously attended and satisfactorily completed the required Franchisee/AR Training Program.

8. Section 15(a)(xiii) "<u>Termination</u>," shall be deleted in its entirety.

9. In consideration of Franchisor's execution of this Agreement and the grant of the rights described herein, Area Representative agrees to pay to Franchisor the non-refundable Renewal Fee in the lump sum of \$\_\_\_\_\_.

10. The term of this renewal Area Representative agreement shall be ten (10) years beginning from the expiration date of the Initial Term of the original Area Representative Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Addendum to the Area Representative Agreement on this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.

Name of Area Representative

By:

Name: Title: **Executed by:** 

(Sign Name)

(Print Name)

# Exhibit F

# Amendment to Area Representative Agreement (Transfer) (applicable only for the transfer of an existing area representative agreement)

## AMENDMENT TO AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT (Transfer)

THIS AMENDMENT (the "Amendment") dated \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_, to the Area Representative Agreement dated \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_ for NrGize Lifestyle Cafe (the "Area Representative Agreement" or "Agreement") by and between Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor") and \_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Area Representative"), is entered into by such parties to amend the Agreement as set forth herein. To the extent this Amendment contains terms and conditions that differ from those contained in the Agreement, this Amendment shall control. The parties agree that a concept or principle provided in one Section of this Amendment shall apply and be incorporated into all other provisions of the Area Representative Agreement in which the concept or principle is also applicable, notwithstanding the absence of any specific cross reference thereto. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein will have the same meanings ascribed to such terms in the Agreement.

## The following shall apply to the <u>transfer</u> of an Area Representative Agreement:

1. Franchisor and Area Representative hereby acknowledge and agree in accordance with the terms of Section 3(mm) "<u>Obligations of Area Representative Generally</u>," Area Representative is required to sign a form of guaranty; however, Area Representative will not be required to guaranty the lease buyout obligations under Section 8(e) of this Agreement.

2. The following shall be added to the end of Section 6 "Obligations of the Franchisor," as Section 6(j): "Any amounts payable by Franchisor to Area Representative that are not paid within thirty (30) days after their due date will bear interest at the rate of 12% per annum."

3. Section 7 "Initial Development Fee," shall be deleted in its entirety.

4. Section 8(a)(ii) "<u>Legal Expense and Sales Facilitation Fee</u>," shall be deleted in its entirety.

5. Section 8(a)(iii) "<u>Training Fee</u>," shall be deleted in its entirety.

6. Section 8(b)(ii) "<u>Accounting Expense Deduction</u>," shall be deleted in its entirety.

7. The following paragraph shall be added to the end of Section 11 "Indemnification," as a second paragraph:

"Franchisor shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend Area Representative, as well as Area Representative's subsidiaries, affiliates, shareholders, members, successors and assigns, and each of their respective officers, directors, employees, agents and representatives, harmless from and against any and all loss, liability, claims, demands or suits (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses), either directly or indirectly, (i) which arise out of, result from or in any way connected with, the breach of any of the representations, warranties or agreements made by Franchisor in this Agreement; (ii) the alleged gross negligence or intentional conduct of Franchisor, its employees, agents, affiliates, assigns, independent contractors, officers, directors or principals; or (iii) any non-compliance with laws, ordinances, rules or regulations applicable to Franchisor's express obligations under this Agreement."

8. Section 15(a)(xiii) "<u>Termination</u>," shall be deleted in its entirety.

9. In consideration of Franchisor's execution of this Agreement and the grant of the rights described herein, Area Representative agrees to pay to Franchisor the non-refundable Transfer Fee in the lump sum of \$\_\_\_\_\_.

10. The term of this transfer Area Representative Agreement shall be the remainder of the initial term left on the transferor's area representative agreement, or if the transferor renewed its area representative agreement for an additional ten (10) year term, then the term of this Area Representative Agreement shall the be remainder of the additional term left on the transferor's area representative agreement. The term of this agreement shall expire on \_\_\_\_\_.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Addendum to the Area Representative Agreement on this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.

Name of Area Representative

By: \_\_\_\_

Name: Title: **Executed by:** 

(Sign Name)

(Print Name)

# Exhibit G

Agreement to be Bound and to Guarantee

# AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND AND TO GUARANTEE

AGREEMENT, dated as of the date set forth at the end of this Agreement, executed by the Principals identified in the Area Representative Agreement (each a "Guarantor") in favor of Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. ("Kahala").

WHEREAS, as an inducement for Kahala to execute and deliver, and to perform its obligations under, that certain Area Representative Agreement (the "Area Representative Agreement"), dated as of \_\_\_\_\_\_\_, by and between Kahala and \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ ("Area Representative"), Guarantor has agreed to jointly and severally guarantee the obligations of Area Representative under the Area Representative Agreement and have agreed to be bound by certain of the provisions contained in the Area Representative Agreement.

WHEREAS, Guarantor owns, directly or indirectly, a 5% or greater equity interest in Area Representative.

WHEREAS, Guarantor acknowledges and agree that Kahala will materially rely upon Guarantor's obligations under this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the execution and delivery of the Area Representative Agreement by Kahala, and the performance of Kahala's obligations thereunder, Guarantor agrees, for the benefit of Kahala and its Affiliates (as defined in the Area Representative Agreement), as follows:

1. <u>Guaranty</u>. Guarantor unconditionally guarantees and promises to pay to Kahala and/or its Affiliates and to perform, for the benefit of Kahala and/or its Affiliates, on demand, any and all obligations and liabilities of Area Representative in connection with, with respect to or arising out of the Area Representative Agreement or any other agreement with Kahala or its Affiliates.

2. <u>Confidentiality</u>.

(a) Guarantor acknowledges that Kahala is engaged in a highly competitive business, the success of which is dependent upon, among other things, trade secrets and other confidential and proprietary information, processes, materials and rights relating to the development, promotion and operation of the Franchised Business (as defined in the Area Representative Agreement), including, without limitation, Kahala's Operations Manuals, method of operation, processes, techniques, formulae and procedures (collectively, the "Proprietary Information"). Guarantor further acknowledges that the Proprietary Information constitutes valuable trade secrets.

(b) Guarantor agrees not to use for any purpose, or disclose or reveal (and must cause all of Area Representative's directors, officers and employees not to use for any purpose, or disclose or reveal), during the term of this Agreement or forever thereafter, to any person any contents of Kahala's Operations Manuals, any Proprietary Information or any other information relating to the operation of the Franchised Business. Guarantor must fully and strictly comply with all security measures prescribed by Kahala for maintaining the confidentiality of all Proprietary Information. (c) Guarantor acknowledges that to breach his or her obligations under this Section 2 would cause damage to Kahala, Area Representative and to Kahala's other area representatives and franchisees, and that Guarantor would be liable for this damage.

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, Guarantor may disclose Proprietary Information to a person who is bound by the terms of this provision regarding confidentiality and a restrictive covenant contemplated by Section 12 of the Area Representative Agreement, to the extent that that disclosure is necessary in connection with that person's capacity with Area Representative.

(e) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following will not be subject to the provisions of this Section 2:

(i) Information that is in the public domain as of the date of receipt by Area Representative;

(ii) Information that is known to Area Representative prior to the date of receipt by Area Representative;

(iii) Information that becomes known to the public without a breach of the provisions of this Section 12 or any agreement executed in connection with the Area Representative Agreement; and

(iv) Information that is required by law to be disclosed or revealed, but only strictly to the extent required by law.

## 3. <u>Covenant Not to Compete.</u>

(a) Guarantor may not, during the term of this Agreement and for the two-year period after the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, directly or indirectly (as an owner, partner, director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, shareholder, representative, agent, lender or otherwise), be engaged in a business that manufactures, produces, markets or sells low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements within, or for consumption within, a 10-mile radius of any NrGize Lifestyle Cafe® restaurant previously or presently owned or supervised, in whole or in part, by Area Representative or its Affiliates, or any location with respect to which Area Representative or any of its Affiliates has entered into a contract with respect to the future operation of an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe® restaurant.

(b) Guarantor may not, during the term of this Agreement and for the two-year period after the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, directly or indirectly (as an owner, partner, director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, shareholder, representative, agent, lender or otherwise), be engaged in a business that manufactures, produces, markets or sells low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements within, or for consumption within, a 10-mile radius of any NrGize Lifestyle Cafe® restaurant or any location with respect to which a contract has been entered into in connection with the future operation of an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe® restaurant.

(c) Guarantor may not, during the term of this Agreement and for the two-year period after the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, directly or indirectly (as an owner, partner, director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, shareholder, representative, agent, lender or otherwise), be engaged in a business that manufactures, produces, markets or sells low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements within, or for consumption within, the United States.

(d) Guarantor may not, during the term of this Agreement and for the two-year period after the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, directly or indirectly (as an owner, partner, director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, shareholder, representative, agent, lender or otherwise), be engaged in a business that manufactures, produces, markets or sells low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements outside of, or for consumption outside of, the United States.

(e) Guarantor may not, during the term of this Agreement and for the two-year period after the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, directly or indirectly (as an owner, partner, director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, shareholder, representative, agent, lender or otherwise), be engaged in a business that solicits prospective licensees or franchisees or offers or sells licenses or franchises to market or sell low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements.

(f) For purposes of this Section 3, a business will be deemed to be marketing or selling low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements if more than 15% of its gross sales are derived from the marketing or sale of such products.

4. <u>Restriction on Hiring</u>. Guarantor may not, during the term of this Agreement and for the two-year period after the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, directly or indirectly (as an owner, partner, director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, shareholder, representative, agent, lender or otherwise), employ, hire or engage as an independent contractor or otherwise any person who is or was (at any time during the term of this Agreement) employed or engaged as an independent contractor or otherwise by Kahala, Area Representative or any of its Affiliates.

5. <u>Use of Name and Likeness</u>. Kahala will be entitled to use the name, likeness and voice of Guarantor for purposes of promoting the franchise, Kahala and its products, including, without limitation, all photos and audio and video recordings, and Guarantor hereby irrevocably consents thereto. Guarantor acknowledges that Kahala will own all right, title and interest, to the extent allowed by law, in all rights of integrity, disclosure and publication and any other rights that may be known as or referred to as "moral rights," "artist's rights," "publicity rights" or the like associated with such photos and audio and video recordings, and assigns and transfers unto Kahala the full and exclusive right, title, and interest to such publicity rights.

6. <u>Innovations</u>. Guarantor may conceive, invent, create, design and/or develop various ideas, techniques, methods, processes and procedures, recipes, formulae, products, packaging or other concepts and features relating to the manufacturing, production, marketing and sale of low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements and related goods in connection with

the Franchised Business (the "Innovations"). Guarantor assigns any and all of its rights, title and interest in the Innovations, including, without limitation, any intellectual property rights, to Kahala, and also agrees to cooperate with Kahala and its counsel in the protection of the Innovations, including, without limitation, the perfecting of title thereto.

7. <u>Copyrights; Works-for-Hire; Solicitation</u>. All advertising and promotional materials generated by or for Area Representative or its officers, managers or employees for the Franchised Business will be deemed a work-made-for-hire, and all ownership rights, including, without limitation, any copyrights, in such advertising and promotional materials are hereby assigned to Kahala. In addition, Guarantor will cooperate in the protecting any items or materials suitable for copyright protection by Kahala. Guarantor must not solicit other area representatives or franchisees, or use the lists of franchisees and area representatives, for any commercial or other purpose other than purposes directly related to the Area Representative's business. Guarantor must not engage in any business venture or activity (other than that expressly contemplated by the Area Representative Agreement), including operating Franchised Businesses, with other area representatives or franchisees without the prior approval of Kahala.

8. <u>Guaranty of Payment</u>. This is a guaranty of payment and not of collection. This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until all amounts payable by Guarantor shall have been validly, finally and irrevocably paid in full and all obligations to be performed by Guarantor shall have been validly, finally and irrevocably performed in full.

9. <u>Waiver</u>. Guarantor hereby waives all requirements as to presentment for payment, protest, diligence and demand and notice of acceptance, default, protest, demand, dishonor and nonpayment, and all benefits and requirements of Arizona Revised Statutes Section 12-1641, *et seq.*, and Rule 17(f) of the Arizona Rules of Civil Procedure for the Superior Courts of Arizona, which set forth certain rights and obligations among guarantors, debtors and creditors, if applicable. This Agreement shall not be affected in any way by (a) the absence of any action to obtain such amounts from Area Representative or any other guarantor or indemnitor or of any recourse to any security for such amounts or (b) any extension, waiver, compromise or release of any or all of the obligations of Area Representative or any guarantor.

10. <u>Subrogation</u>. Guarantor hereby agrees that he will not exercise any rights of subrogation that he may acquire due to any payment or performance of the obligations of Area Representative pursuant to this Agreement unless and until all amounts payable to Kahala or its Affiliates, and all obligations for the benefit of Kahala or its Affiliates, shall have been validly, finally and irrevocably paid and performed in full.

11. <u>Reasonable Restraints; Remedies</u>. Guarantor acknowledges that the covenants contained in this Agreement (including, without limitation, the territorial and time restraints) are reasonable and necessary and agrees that his failure to adhere strictly to the restrictions contained herein shall cause substantial and irreparable damage to Kahala, Area Representative and to Kahala's other area representatives and franchisees. In the event of any breach by Guarantor of any of the terms of this Agreement, Kahala and/or Area Representative shall be entitled to institute and prosecute proceedings, at law or in equity, in any court of competent jurisdiction, to obtain an injunction to enforce the provisions of this Agreement and to pursue any other remedy to which Kahala and/or

Area Representative may be entitled. Guarantor agrees that the rights conveyed by this Agreement are of a unique and special nature and that Kahala's and Area Representative's remedy at law for any breach would be inadequate and agrees and consents that temporary or permanent injunctive relief may be granted in any proceeding that may be brought to enforce any provision hereof, without the necessity of posting bond therefor or proof of actual damages.

12. <u>Enforceability</u>. If the scope of any restriction contained in this Agreement is too broad to permit the enforcement of such restriction to its fullest extent, then such restriction shall be enforced to the maximum extent permitted by law, and Guarantor hereby consents and agrees that such scope may be judicially limited or modified accordingly in any proceeding brought to enforce such restriction. Each covenant contained in this Agreement is independent and severable and, to the extent that any such covenant shall be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the legality, validity or enforceability of any other provision contained herein or the legality, validity or enforceability of such covenant in any other jurisdiction.

13. <u>No Waiver</u>. No failure or delay on the part of Kahala, its Affiliates or Area Representative in exercising its rights hereunder shall operate as a waiver of, or impair, any such right. No single or partial exercise of any such right shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right. No waiver of any such right shall be effective unless given in writing, specifying with particularity the nature of the waiver. No waiver of any such right shall be deemed a waiver of any other right hereunder. The rights provided for herein are cumulative and are not exclusive of any other rights, powers, privileges or remedies provided by law.

14. <u>Attorneys' Fees</u>. Guarantor shall pay reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses and all other costs and expenses that may be incurred by Kahala or its Affiliates in connection with enforcing this Agreement.

15. Arizona Law to Govern; Jurisdiction; Right to Jury Trial and Class Action Waived; Certain Damages Waived; Statute of Limitations. This Agreement will be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the law of Arizona, regardless of any conflict-of-law provisions to the contrary. Each party agrees that any litigation between the parties will be commenced and maintained only in the courts located in Maricopa County, Arizona, and each party consents to the jurisdiction of those courts; provided, however, that Kahala may seek to obtain injunctive relief in any court that Kahala may select. GUARANTOR HEREBY WAIVES THE RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL, WAIVES THE RIGHT TO INITIATE OR PARTICIPATE IN A CLASS ACTION IN ANY FORUM, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ARBITRATION, AND WAIVES THE RIGHT TO SEEK OR COLLECT PUNITIVE, CONSEQUENTIAL AND SPECIAL DAMAGES IN ANY FORUM, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, **ARBITRATION.** NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING CONTAINED IN THIS AGREEMENT TO THE CONTRARY, GUARANTOR AGREES THAT ANY CLAIMS UNDER, ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT MUST BE BROUGHT WITHIN TWO YEARS OF THE DATE ON WHICH THE UNDERLYING CAUSE OF ACTION ACCRUED, AND GUARANTOR HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO BRING ANY SUCH ACTION AFTER SUCH TWO-YEAR PERIOD.

NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, PURSUANT TO THE MARYLAND FRANCHISE REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE LAW, LITIGATION ARISING UNDER THE MARYLAND FRANCHISE REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE LAW ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT MAY BE CONDUCTED IN MARYLAND. ANY CLAIMS ARISING UNDER THE MARYLAND FRANCHISE REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE LAW MUST BE BROUGHT WITHIN THREE (3) YEARS AFTER THE GRANT OF THE AREA REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT.

16. <u>Binding Nature of Agreement</u>. This Agreement shall be binding upon Guarantor and his respective successors, heirs and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of Kahala, its Affiliates and their respective successors and assigns.

17. <u>Joint and Several</u>. If more than one person signs this Agreement as a Guarantor, his, her or its obligation shall be joint and several.

18. <u>Entire Agreement; Amendment</u>. This Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, understandings, inducements and conditions, express or implied, oral or written, of any nature whatsoever with respect to the subject matter hereof. The express terms hereof control and supersede any course of performance or usage of the trade inconsistent with any of the terms hereof. This Agreement may not be modified or amended other than by an agreement in writing signed by each of the parties hereto. Nothing in this Agreement or in any related agreement is intended to disclaim the representations we made in the franchise disclosure document.

19.	Date of Area Representative Agreeme Name(s) of Guarantor(s): Name of Area Representative:	nt:	
EXEC	CUTED as of		
Name		Name:	
	(Print Name)	(Print Name)	
Execu	ted by:	Executed by:	
	(Sign Name)	(Sign Name)	

## **CONSENT OF SPOUSE**

The undersigned spouse of a party to the foregoing Agreement to be Bound and to Guarantee (the "Agreement") confirms that he/she has read the Agreement, understands same and consents and agrees to the terms of the Agreement.

Date:

(Sign Name)

(Sign Name)

(Print Name)

(Print Name)

# Exhibit H

**Restrictive Covenant** 

## **RESTRICTIVE COVENANT**

AGREEMENT, dated as of the date set forth at the end of this Agreement, executed by the Principals identified in the Area Representative Agreement ("Party") and \_\_\_\_\_ ("Area Representative").

WHEREAS, Area Representative is engaged in the business of developing and supervising NrGize Lifestyle Cafe® restaurants that produce and sell low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements (the "Franchised Business"), in accordance with an Area Representative Agreement (the "Area Representative Agreement") with Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor").

WHEREAS, Party desires to be employed or appointed, or to continue to be employed or appointed, by Area Representative.

WHEREAS, In connection therewith, Party will have access and/or has had access to information that requires Franchisor's and Area Representative's highest trust and confidence in Party.

WHEREAS, Party acknowledges and agrees that Area Representative and Franchisor will materially rely upon Party's obligations under this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, the compensation paid or to be paid to Party, and/or other good and valuable consideration, Party covenants and agrees as follows:

## 1. <u>Confidential Information</u>.

(a) Party acknowledges that Franchisor and Area Representative are engaged in a highly competitive business, the success of which is dependent upon, among other things, trade secrets and other confidential and proprietary information, processes, materials and rights relating to the development, promotion and operation of the Franchised Business, including, without limitation, Franchisor's and Area Representative's Operations Manuals, method of operation, processes, techniques, formulae and procedures (collectively, the "Proprietary Information"). Party further acknowledges that the Proprietary Information constitutes valuable trade secrets.

(b) Party covenants and agrees not to use for any purpose, or disclose or reveal, during the term of Party's employment or other association with Franchisee and forever thereafter, to any person any Proprietary Information. In connection therewith, Party shall fully and strictly comply with all security measures prescribed by Franchisor and/or Area Representative for maintaining the confidentiality of all Proprietary Information.

(c) Upon the termination of Party's employment or other association with Area Representative, Party shall deliver promptly to Area Representative all documents containing Proprietary Information, whether or not prepared by or for Party.

(d) Party acknowledges that to breach its obligations under this Section 1 would cause damage to Franchisor, Area Representative and Franchisor's other area representatives and franchisees, and that Party would be liable for such damage.

(e) Notwithstanding the foregoing, Party may disclose Proprietary Information to a person who is bound by the terms of a similar provision or agreement regarding confidentiality and a restrictive covenant contemplated by Section 11 of the Area Representative Agreement, to the extent that that disclosure is necessary in connection with that person's capacity with Area Representative. In addition, notwithstanding the foregoing, Party may use the Proprietary Information as shall be necessary in connection with Area Representative's exercise of its area representative rights.

(f) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following shall not be subject to the provisions of this Section 1:

- (i) Information that is in the public domain as of the date of receipt by Area Representative;
- (ii) Information that is known to Area Representative prior to the date of receipt by Area Representative;
- (iii) Information that becomes known to the public without a breach of any confidentiality agreement or provision in favor of Franchisor or Area Representative; and
- (iv) Information that is required by law to be disclosed or revealed, but only strictly to the extent required by law.
- 2. <u>Covenant Not to Compete</u>.

(a) Party shall not, during the term of Party's employment or other association with Area Representative and during the Restrictive Period (as defined below), directly or indirectly (as an owner, partner, director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, shareholder, representative, agent, lender or otherwise), be engaged in a business that manufactures, produces, markets or sells low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements within, or for consumption within, a 10-mile radius of any NrGize Lifestyle Cafe® restaurant previously owned or supervised, in whole or in part, by Area Representative or its Affiliates, or any location with respect to which Area Representative or any of its Affiliates has entered into a contract with respect to the future operation of an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe® restaurant.

(b) Party shall not, during the term of Party's employment or other association with Area Representative and during the Restrictive Period, directly or indirectly (as an owner, partner,

director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, shareholder, representative, agent, lender or otherwise), be engaged in a business that manufactures, produces, markets or sells low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements within, or for consumption within, a 10-mile radius of any NrGize Lifestyle Cafe® restaurant or any location with respect to which a contract has been entered into in connection with the future operation of an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe® restaurant.

(c) Party shall not, during the term of Party's employment or other association with Area Representative and during the Restrictive Period, directly or indirectly (as an owner, partner, director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, shareholder, representative, agent, lender or otherwise), be engaged in a business that manufactures, produces, markets or sells low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements within, or for consumption within, the United States.

(d) Party shall not, during the term of Party's employment or other association with Area Representative and during the Restrictive Period, directly or indirectly (as an owner, partner, director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, shareholder, representative, agent, lender or otherwise), be engaged in a business that manufactures, produces, markets or sells low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements outside of, or for consumption outside of, the United States.

(e) Party shall not, during the term of Party's employment or other association with Area Representative and during the Restrictive Period, directly or indirectly (as an owner, partner, director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, shareholder, representative, agent, lender or otherwise), be engaged in a business that solicits prospective licensees or franchisees or offers or sells licenses or franchises to market or sell low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements.

(f) For purposes of this Section 2, a business will be deemed to be marketing or selling low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements if more than 15% of its gross sales are derived from the marketing or sale of such products.

(f) For purposes of this Section 2, the "Restrictive Period" is defined as (i) in the case of an officer of Area Representative, the one-year period beginning at the termination of his or her serving as an officer of Franchisee and (ii) in the case of a or employee of Area Representative, the six-month period beginning at the termination of his or her employment other association with Franchisee.

3. <u>Restriction on Hiring</u>. Party may not, during the term of Party's employment or other association with Area Representative and during the Restrictive Period, directly or indirectly (as an owner, partner, director, officer, employee, manager, consultant, shareholder, representative, agent, lender or otherwise), employ, hire or engage as an independent contractor or otherwise any person who is or was (at any time during the term of this Agreement) employed or engaged as an independent contractor or otherwise by Franchisor, Area Representative or any of their affiliates.

4. <u>Use of Name and Likeness</u>. Franchisor will be entitled to use the name, likeness and voice of Party for purposes of promoting the franchise, Franchisor and its products, including, without limitation, all photos and audio and video recordings of Party, and Party hereby irrevocably consents thereto. Party acknowledges that Franchisor will own all right, title and interest, to the extent allowed by law, in all rights of integrity, disclosure and publication and any other rights that may be known as or referred to as "moral rights," "artist's rights," "publicity rights" or the like associated with such photos and audio and video recordings, and assigns and transfers unto Franchisor the full and exclusive right, title, and interest to such publicity rights.

5. <u>Innovations</u>. Party may conceive, invent, create, design and/or develop various ideas, techniques, methods, processes and procedures, recipes, formulae, products, packaging or other concepts and features relating to the manufacturing, production, marketing and sale of low calorie smoothies, fruit drinks, and nutritional supplements and related goods in connection with the Franchised Business (the "Innovations"). Party assigns any and all of its rights, title and interest in the Innovations, including, without limitation, any intellectual property rights, to Franchisor, and also agrees to cooperate with Franchisor and its counsel in the protection of the Innovations, including, without limitation, the perfecting of title thereto.

6. <u>Copyrights</u>; <u>Works-for-Hire</u>; <u>Solicitation</u>. All advertising and promotional materials generated by or for Area Representative or its officers, managers or employees for the Franchised Business will be deemed a work-made-for-hire, and all ownership rights, including, without limitation, any copyrights, in such advertising and promotional materials are hereby assigned to Franchisor. In addition, Party will cooperate in the protecting any items or materials suitable for copyright protection by Franchisor. Party must not solicit other area representatives or franchisees, or use the lists of area representatives and franchisees, for any commercial or other purpose other than purposes directly related to the operation of Area Representative's business. Party must not engage in any business venture or activity (other than that expressly contemplated by the Area Representative Agreement), including operating Franchised Businesses, with other area representatives or franchisees without the prior approval of Franchisor.

7. <u>Reasonable Restraints; Remedies</u>. Party acknowledges that the covenants contained in this Agreement (including, without limitation, the territorial and time restraints) are reasonable and necessary and agrees that his failure to adhere strictly to the restrictions contained herein shall cause substantial and irreparable damage to Franchisor, Area Representative and to Franchisor's other franchisees. In the event of any breach by Party of any of the terms of this Agreement, Franchisor and/or Area Representative shall be entitled to institute and prosecute proceedings, at law or in equity, in any court of competent jurisdiction, to obtain an injunction to enforce the provisions of this Agreement and to pursue any other remedy to which Franchisor and/or Area Representative may be entitled. Party agrees that the rights conveyed by this Agreement are of a unique and special nature and that Franchisor's and Area Representative's remedy at law for any breach would be inadequate and agrees and consents that temporary or permanent injunctive relief may be granted in any proceeding that may be brought to enforce any provision hereof, without the necessity of posting bond therefor or proof of actual damages.

8. <u>Modification; Severability</u>. If the scope of any restriction contained in this Agreement is too broad to permit the enforcement of such restriction to its fullest extent, then such restriction shall be enforced to the maximum extent permitted by law, and Party hereby consents and agrees that such scope may be judicially limited or modified accordingly in any proceeding brought to enforce such restriction. Each covenant contained in this Agreement is independent and severable and, to the extent that any such covenant shall be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the legality, validity or enforceability of any other provision contained herein or the legality, validity or enforceability of such covenant in any other jurisdiction.

# 9. <u>General and Miscellaneous</u>.

(a) <u>Entire Agreement; Amendment</u>. This Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, understandings, inducements and conditions, express or implied, oral or written, of any nature whatsoever with respect to the subject matter hereof. The express terms hereof control and supersede any course of performance or usage of the trade inconsistent with any of the terms hereof. This Agreement may not be modified or amended other than by an agreement in writing signed by each of the parties hereto.

(b) <u>Binding Nature of Agreement</u>. This Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns.

Arizona Law to Govern; Jurisdiction; Right to Jury Trial and Class Action (c) Waived; Certain Damages Waived; Statute of Limitations. This Agreement will be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with, the law of Arizona, regardless of any conflict-of-law provisions to the contrary. Each party agrees that any litigation between the parties will be commenced and maintained only in the courts located in Maricopa County, Arizona, and each party consents to the jurisdiction of those courts; provided, however, that Franchisor may seek to obtain injunctive relief in any court that Franchisor may select. PARTY HEREBY WAIVES THE RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL, WAIVES THE RIGHT TO INITIATE OR PARTICIPATE IN A CLASS ACTION IN ANY FORUM, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ARBITRATION, AND WAIVES THE RIGHT TO SEEK OR COLLECT PUNITIVE, CONSEQUENTIAL AND SPECIAL DAMAGES IN ANY FORUM, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION. ARBITRATION. AN AREA REPRESENTATIVE MAY BRING A LAWSUIT FOR CLAIMS ARISING UNDER THE MARYLAND FRANCHISE REGISTRATION AND **DISCLOSURE LAW.** 

(d) <u>Third Party Beneficiary</u>. Franchisor is an express third party beneficiary of this Agreement and may, directly or indirectly, enforce any obligation of Party hereunder.

# 10. Identification of Parties.

(a) The person identified as "Party" in this Agreement is \_\_\_\_\_

(b) The person identified as "Area Representative" in this Agreement is \_\_\_\_\_\_

Party has read this entire Agreement carefully and fully understands the limitations that this Agreement imposes upon him and acknowledges and agrees that those limitations are reasonable.

EXECUTED as of \_\_\_\_\_

Signature of Party

Area Representative:

By:\_\_\_

Name:\_\_\_\_\_\_ Title:\_\_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_

.

# Exhibit I

# **General Release**

#### **GENERAL RELEASE**

THIS GENERAL RELEASE is made this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_.

\_\_\_\_\_\_, a resident of the State of \_\_\_\_\_\_, (the "UNDERSIGNED") for and in consideration of the sum of One Dollar (\$1.00) paid to him/her by KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., and other good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, hereby releases, remises and forever discharges KAHALA FRANCHISING, L.L.C., its predecessors, successors and assigns, parents, subsidiaries and affiliated corporations, officers, directors, agents, employees and representatives, past and present, of any and all of such corporations (all collectively referred to herein as "KAHALA"), of and from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, suits, debts, dues, duties, sums of money, accounts, reckonings, covenants, contracts, agreements, promises, damages, judgments, extents, executions, liabilities and obligations, both contingent and fixed, known and unknown, of every kind and nature whatsoever in law or equity, or otherwise, under local, state, or federal law, against any of them, which the UNDERSIGNED or his/her predecessors in interest, if any, ever had, now have, or which he/she, his/her heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns hereafter can, shall, or may have, for, upon, or by reason of, any matter, cause, or thing whatsoever, for acts and occurrences prior to and including the date of this Release.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, but by way of example only, this release shall apply to any and all state or federal antitrust claims or causes of action; state or federal securities law claims or causes of action; state or federal RICO claims or causes of action; breach of contract claims or causes of action; claims or causes of action based on fraud or misrepresentation; breach of fiduciary duty; unfair trade practices (state or federal); and all other claims and causes of action whatsoever.

The UNDERSIGNED further agrees for himself/herself and for his/her successors and assigns, to indemnify and hold harmless forever, KAHALA (as defined above), against any and all claims, liabilities, obligations or actions arising in connection with any lawsuit, action, proceeding or claim, including, but not limited to, \_\_\_\_\_, arising out of or incidental to the matters to which this Release applies.

The UNDERSIGNED and KAHALA agree that this Release is not intended nor shall it be construed as an admission of any wrongdoing or liability and that it shall not be admissible in evidence in any suit or proceeding whatsoever as evidence or admission of any liability.

With respect to the matters hereinabove released, the UNDERSIGNED knowingly waives all rights and protection, if any, under Section 1542 of the Civil Code of the State of California, or any similar law of any state or territory of the United States of America. Section 1542 provides as follows:

1542 General Release; Extent. A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his favor at the time of executing the release, which, if known by him, must have materially affected his settlement with the debtor.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the UNDERSIGNED executed this General Release on the day and year first above written.

ATTEST:

Printed Name:

## RIDER TO GENERAL RELEASE FOR MARYLAND RESIDENTS ONLY AND AREA REPRESENTATIVES WHOSE TERRITORIES WILL BE OPERATED IN MARYLAND ONLY

**AGREEMENT**, dated as of the date set forth at the end of this Agreement, by and between **KAHALA FRANCHISING**, **L.L.C.**, an Arizona limited liability company ("Franchisor"), and the Old Owners and New Owners identified at the end of this Agreement.

That certain Transfer and Consent Agreement dated as of the date hereof, by and between Franchisor and Franchisee, is amended as follows:

1. The general release required as a condition of renewal, sale and/or assignment/transfer excludes claims that may arise under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. Also, the general release required as a condition of renewal, sale and/or assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

2. According to the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, litigation arising out of the Franchise Agreement may be conducted in Maryland. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought within three years after the grant of the Franchise.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this Rider.

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the parties have executed this Agreement, or caused this Agreement to be executed, as of \_\_\_\_\_\_.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.	
----------------------------	--

Name of Area Representative:

By: \_

Name: Title: Executed by:

(sign name)

(print name)

# Exhibit J

**Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) Authorization** 

#### FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

Franchisee Name	Store No.	Franchisee Phone No.
Franchisee Mailing Address (street, city, state, zip)		
Contact Name, Address and Phone number (if different than above)		
Employer Identification Number (if applicable)	Principal's Name and Social Second	ecurity Number

#### BANK ACCOUNT INFORMATION

Bank Name	Bank Account Number	Bank Routing Number
		[: [: 9 Characters
Bank Mailing Address (street, city, state, zip)		
Bank Phone Number		

#### PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION

Franchisee hereby authorizes Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. (the "Payee"), to initiate withdrawals from the Bank Account indicated on this form, and hereby authorizes the Bank to honor and charge the Bank Account for electronic funds transfers or drafts drawn on the Bank Account and payable to Payee. The amount of such charge shall be set forth in a notice from the Payee presented to the Bank on the day(s) of the week set forth in your franchise agreement, gift card participation agreement (or similar agreement for the gift card program), and any other agreement you sign that authorizes us or our affiliate to debit your account for the fees, which may be modified by Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. or its affiliates, for the payment of royalty fees, advertising fees, POS support fees, gift card and e-gifting program fees and funds flow, and any other fees, charges and other amounts payable to us or our affiliates for any services we provide or facilitate. The Franchisee agrees to execute such additional documents as may be reasonably requested by the Payee or the Bank to evidence the interest of this EFT Authorization. This authority shall remain in full force and effect until the Payee has received written notification from the Franchisee in such time and manner as to afford the Payee and the Bank to act on such notice. The Franchisee understands that the termination of this authorization does not relieve the Franchisee of its obligations to make payments to the Payee. Payee may assign its rights and obligations under this EFT Authorization to Payee's affiliates or agents. Payee may change its designated affiliates or agents at Payee's discretion.

Signature:	Date:

#### NOTE: FRANCHISEE MUST ATTACH A VOIDED OR COMPLETED CHECK RELATING TO THE BANK ACCOUNT.

## ATTACH VOIDED OR COMPLETED CHECK HERE

# EXHIBIT R

# TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

 

 Table of Contents – Confidential AR Operations Manual (For Area Representatives)

# AREA REPRESENTATIVE OPERATIONS MANUAL

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# Chapter:

# Number of Pages:

Chapter 1:	Franchising	2
Chapter 2:	Area Representative Responsibilities	2
Chapter 3:	Area Representative Training	2
Chapter 4:	Sales	8
Chapter 5:	Real Estate	3
Chapter 6:	Operations Services	7

# <u>Exhibits</u>:

Exhibit A:	New Franchise Sales Checklist	1
Exhibit B:	Franchise Application	1
Exhibit C:	Franchise Agreement Request	1
Exhibit D:	Sample Demographic Report	1
Exhibit E:	Pre-Opening Checklist	1
Exhibit F:	QC Form 1	1
Exhibit G:	Sample KTEC Training Schedule	1
Exhibit H:	Sample In-Store Training Skills Checklist	1
Exhibit I:	KTEC Online	1
Exhibit J:	Brand De-identification Checklist	1

OTAL
------

# <u>EXHIBIT S</u>

# TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

List of Area Representatives

#### List of Area Representatives

Area Representatives do not offer franchises for sale, but rather, operates as a franchise broker. Therefore, the Area Representative does not have its own uniform franchise disclosure document but instead, will have this franchise disclosure document delivered to a prospective franchisee located within their ARA Territory. All area representatives are prohibited from making any representations of costs, expenses, sales or profits to prospective franchisees. Area representatives must abide by all federal and state laws in the performance of their duties. Area representatives, their officers and sales employees are not our agents and cannot bind us directly or indirectly unless we authorize in writing.

Listed below are the names, telephone numbers and addresses of our Area Representatives as of December 31, 2011. Most of the individuals listed below are also officers of their respective area representative corporations. Area Representatives must provide certain marketing, guidance, assistance and operational support to *NrGize Lifestyle Cafe* restaurants in their areas.

#### THE INFORMATION BELOW WAS PROVIDED TO KAHALA FRANCHISE CORP. BY THE ENTITY OR THE INDIVIDUAL AREA REPRESENTATIVES LISTED. KAHALA FRANCHISE CORP. DOES NOT MAKE ANY REPRESENTATIONS AS TO THE ACCURACY OF THE INFORMATION.

#### Delaware:

NRgize Development Company, L.L.C. (<u>Mark Sullivan</u>), 10 Hawthorne Lane, Irwin, PA 15642; (724) 420-8116. NRgize Development Company, L.L.C. has been an NrGize Area Representative since January 2009. Mark Sullivan has served as President of NRgize Development Company, L.L.C. since November 2008. Mr. Sullivan has also served as the President of Lynchfield DQ Inc. since January 2000.

#### <u>Florida</u>:

NRgize Development Company, L.L.C. (<u>Mark Sullivan</u>), 10 Hawthorne Lane, Irwin, PA 15642; (724) 420-8116. (see Delaware)

#### Maryland:

NRgize Development Company, L.L.C. (<u>Mark Sullivan</u>), 10 Hawthorne Lane, Irwin, PA 15642; (724) 420-8116. (see Delaware)

#### New Jersey:

NRgize Development Company, L.L.C. (<u>Mark Sullivan</u>), 10 Hawthorne Lane, Irwin, PA 15642; (724) 420-8116. (see Delaware)

#### New York:

Nrgize Success, L.L.C. (<u>Kevin Blackwell</u> and <u>Charles Randazzo</u>); 1771 63<sup>rd</sup> St., Brooklyn, New York 11204; (480) 326-3277. Mr. Blackwell and Mr. Randazzo have been the Area Representative for several Kahala Franchise Corp. concepts since October 2005. Mr. Blackwell has been Chairman, CEO, and Director of Kahala Corp. from March 1999 to present. Mr. Randazzo joined KAHA in March 1999 as a Territory Representative and joined KAHA's franchise sales team as a Franchise Sales Representative in April 2003. Mr. Randazzo has also served as the Director of Operations of the NrGize Lifestyle Café brand since March 2007.

#### Pennsylvania:

NRgize Development Company, L.L.C. (<u>Mark Sullivan</u>), 10 Hawthorne Lane, Irwin, PA 15642; (724) 420-8116. (see Delaware)

#### Texas:

Pujan Corporation (<u>Dhruval Shah</u>); 14902 Sugar Peak Drive, Sugarland, Texas 77478; (281) 575-8234. Pujan Corporation has been the Area Representative for defined counties in the state of Texas since November 2007. Mr. Shah has served as the Chief Executive Officer of Pujan Corporation in Sugarland, Texas since May 2007. In addition, Mr. Shah has been a Manager for AT&T Corporation since June 1996.

<u>EXHIBIT T</u>

TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

**Financial Statements** 

Unaudited Financial Statements as of June 30, 2012

# CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2012	1
Statement of Operations for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2012	2
Notes to Financial Statements for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2012	3 - 8

# **BALANCE SHEET** AS OF JUNE 30, 2012

# ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS Cash and equivalents Royalties receivable Notes receivable - current portion Total current assets	\$ 10,425 899,961 497,534 1,407,920
OTHER ASSETS	
Notes receivable - less current portion	535,572
Definite lived intangible assets	6,990,310
Tradename	17,363,217
Goodwill	32,583,919
Due from Parent	 4,457,370
Total other assets	61,930,388
TOTAL ASSETS	\$ 63,338,308
LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY	
CURRENT LIABILITIES	
Accounts payable	\$ 653,027
Total current liabilities	653,027
NOTE PAYABLE	80,000
DEFERRED FRANCHISE FEE INCOME	1,274,597
Total liabilities	 2,007,624
	 , , -
MEMBER'S EQUITY	 61,330,684
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY	\$ 63,338,308

# STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

INCOME	
Royalty income - net	\$ 8,329,004
Franchise fee income	426,205
Total income	 8,755,209
COSTS AND EXPENSES	
Amortization of franchise agreements	983,326
General and Administrative	262,887
Management fee	 7,530,329
Total costs and expenses	8,776,542
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS	(21,333)
NEEDECT NICONE	01.000
INTEREST INCOME	 21,333
NET INCOME (LOSS)	 

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

#### 1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. (the "Company"), an Arizona Limited Liability Company, was formed on December 29, 2008. The Company was organized to hold certain intellectual property and to administer, service, finance, manage, license, franchise and operate such intellectual property in the business of quick service food restaurants operating under the Samurai Sam's Teriyaki Grill, Taco Time, The Great Steak & Potato Company, Frullati Cafe & Bakery, Rollerz, Ranch One, Surf City Squeeze, Johnnie's New York Pizzeria, NrGize Lifestyle Cafe, and Blimpie, brand names (collectively, the "Concepts").

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kahala Corp. (the "Parent"). The Company serves as a conduit to process certain transactions of Kahala Corp., primarily those related to area development agreements, franchise agreements and monthly royalties from franchisees. The Company's operations are based upon the Concepts transferred to the Company by the Parent. The Company is committed to pay a management fee to an affiliate equal to the net income of the Company before consideration of such management fee. The Company's results of operations and financial position may be substantially different if consolidated with the Parent. The ongoing operations of the Company are dependent upon the support of the Parent and its affiliates.

On September 30, 2009, the Parent effected the capitalization of the Company by transferring the intellectual property, notes receivable, royalties receivable and deferred franchise fees related to the operations of only three of the Concepts: Samurai Sam's, Taco Time and The Great Steak & Potato Company (the "Initial Concepts"). These net assets were previously reported in the financial statements of Kahala Franchise Corp. ("KFC"), another wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent. These net assets of the Initial Concepts were all transferred at their book value as recorded by KFC on September 30, 2009.

On January 1, 2011, the Parent further capitalized the Company by transferring the intellectual property, notes receivable, royalties receivable and deferred franchise fees related to the operations of seven additional concepts: Frullati Cafe & Bakery, Rollerz, Ranch One, Surf City Squeeze, Johnnie's New York Pizzeria, NrGize Lifestyle Cafe, and Blimpie. Except for Blimpie, the net assets of these concepts were previously reported in the financial statements of KFC, and the Blimpie net assets were previously reported in the financial statements of KBI Holdings, LLC ("KBI"), another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Parent. These net assets were transferred at their book value as recorded by KFC and KBI on January 1, 2011.

### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

<u>Cash and Equivalents</u> – The Company considers all investment instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company may, in the normal course of business, maintain checking and savings account balances in excess of the \$250,000 Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation's insurance limit.

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

#### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

<u>Financial Instruments</u> – Financial instruments consist primarily of cash, royalties receivable, notes receivable, net amounts due to/from Parent, and obligations under accounts payable and accrued expenses. The carrying amounts of cash, royalties receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments. The Company cannot estimate the fair value of the net amounts due to Parent because of the related party nature of those obligations. Fair value of most of the notes receivable contain market interest rates. For those that do not, the notes are discounted at a market rate.

<u>Revenue Recognition</u> – Initial franchise fees received are deferred until the related franchised unit opens. When revenue from initial fees is collectible over an extended period of time and collectibility is not reasonably assured, revenue is recognized using the installment method as fees are collected.

Fees received from the sale of Area Representative Agreements ("ARA's") or similar development arrangements covering a defined geographic region (such area referred to as the "Territory") are recognized as revenue as follows: as individual franchise agreements are signed and the applicable initial franchise fee paid to the Company for locations within a Territory, that portion of the area development fee equal in amount to the initial franchise fee collected is recognized as revenue upon the applicable store opening for business to the public. Upon termination or expiration of an ARA, the balance, if any remaining, of such area development fees is recognized.

Royalty income is recognized based on franchise store sales volumes and contractual arrangements with franchisees. If the franchise store is under an ARA, the royalties are recorded net of any royalties due to the respective Area Representative.

<u>Royalties Receivable</u> – The Company's royalties receivable reflects amounts that are due from franchisees for royalties earned. The Company determines any required allowance by considering a number of factors including the length of time royalties receivable are past due and the Company's loss history. Receivables are considered past due when they are unpaid greater than thirty days. The Company would record a reserve account for receivables if they become uncollectible, and any payments subsequently received on such receivables would be credited to the reserve account.

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

#### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

<u>Notes Receivable</u> – The Company's notes receivable principally results from the financing of the initial franchise fees required from franchisees, the sale of ARA's or similar development arrangements, and certain related expenses paid for on behalf of the Company's franchisees. The notes related to franchisees are generally guaranteed by the franchisee or purchaser and are collateralized by the related restaurant, associated equipment and leasehold improvements. The notes related to the ARA's are collateralized by development rights associated with the agreement. The notes are generally due in monthly installments of principal and interest with interest ranging from 6 - 12% per annum.

The Company determines any required allowance by periodically reviewing the collectibility of its notes receivable. The Company believes that the underlying collateral for the notes has sufficient value to offset any potential impairment of a note. Notes are valued at the estimated value of the collateral if it has been determined that foreclosure is probable. The Company recognizes interest income on notes it has determined to be impaired only when payments are received. The analysis of determining whether a note is impaired includes factors such as the payment history of the franchisee, operating results of the underlying store, the franchisee's relationship with the landlord and the value of any other collateral.

<u>Income Taxes</u> – As a limited liability company the Company is taxed as a partnership, and is not subject to federal income tax. The Member separately accounts for its share of the Company's items of income, deductions, losses and credits. Therefore, no provision is made in the accompanying financial statements for liabilities for federal, state or local income taxes since such liabilities are the responsibility of the individual member.

The Company adopted FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740-10, relating to accounting for uncertain tax positions. ASC 740-10 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement process for accounting for uncertain tax positions and also provides guidance on various related matters such as derecognition, interest, penalties and disclosures required. The Company does not have any entity level uncertain tax positions. The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions. Generally, the Company is subject to examination by U.S. federal income tax authorities for three years from the filing of a tax return and three to four years by various state income tax authorities. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.

<u>Use of Estimates</u> – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

## NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

#### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

<u>Intangible Assets</u> – Intangible assets consist of franchise agreements, tradename and goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate price paid over the fair value of the net assets acquired in various acquisitions by the Parent and is not amortized. The tradename represents the value associated with the brand of the Concepts and is not amortized because the lives have been determined to be indefinite. The franchise agreements have finite lives and are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Amortizable intangible assets are tested for impairment annually or upon occurrence of such events that may indicate impairment exists. An impairment loss would be recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the estimated undiscounted cash flows used in determining the fair value of the assets.

In assessing the recoverability of goodwill and intangible assets, the Company must make assumptions about the estimated future cash flows and other factors to determine the fair value of these assets. Management evaluates goodwill and other intangibles for impairment annually and when impairment indicators arise, in accordance with ASC 350. The annual testing date is December 31. Assumptions about future revenue and cash flows require significant judgment. The Company's management develops future revenue estimates based on historical trends and market data available. Estimates of future cash flows assume that expenses will grow at rates consistent with historical rates.

<u>Fair Value Measurements</u> – The Company adopted the provisions of ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements, effective January 1, 2009. Under this standard, fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (i.e. the "exit price") in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In determining fair value, the Company uses various valuation approaches, including market, income and/or cost approaches. The accounting standard established a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that observable inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Company. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the Company's assumptions about the value that market participants would use in the circumstances. The hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the reliability of inputs, as follows:

<u>Level 1</u> - Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Bank has the ability to access. Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly available in an active market, valuation of these products does not entail a significant degree of judgment.

<u>Level 2</u> - Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly. Assets and liabilities utilizing Level 2 inputs are valued using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or discounted cash flows.

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

#### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability, which are typically based on a entity's own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity.

The availability of observable inputs varies based on the nature of the specific financial instrument. To the extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable in the market, the determination of fair values requires more judgment. Accordingly, the degree of judgment exercised by the Company in determining the fair value is greatest for instruments categorized in Level 3. In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure purposes the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Fair value is a market-based measure considered from the perspective of a market participant who holds the asset or owes the liability rather than an entity-specific measure. When market assumptions are available, the accounting standard requires the Company to make assumptions regarding the assumptions that market participants would use to estimate the fair value of the financial instrument at the measurement date.

The Company's investments consist of cash and equivalents. Cash and equivalents, Level 1 inputs, are stated at cost which approximates market value.

<u>Subsequent Events</u> - Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements are available to be issued. The Company recognizes in the financial statements the effects of all subsequent events that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the financial statements. The Company's financial statements do not recognize subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before financial statements are available to be issued.

# FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

# CONTENTS

# <u>Page</u>

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT	1
Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010	2
Statements of Operations and Member's Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010	3
Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010	4
Notes to Financial Statements for the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010	5 – 12



# MORRISON & ASSOCIATES CPAs, PLLC Certified Public Accountants

#### American Institute Of Certified Public Accountants / Arizona Society Of Certified Public Accountants

### INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Kahala Franchising, L.L.C.:

We have audited the balance sheets of Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. (the "Company") as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related statements of operations and member's equity and cash flows for years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Company is affiliated with other entities in the same line of business, all of which are controlled by a common parent with the ability to influence the volume of business generated by each of these entities. As discussed in Notes 1, 5 and 6, the Company and its affiliates have engaged in significant transactions with each other. The Company's sole member is Kahala Corp. ("Parent"). The Company was organized to hold certain intellectual property of the Parent and to administer, service, finance, manage, license, franchise and operate such intellectual property. The Company processes certain transactions of affiliates of the Parent, primarily those related to area development agreements, franchise agreements and monthly royalties from franchisees. The ongoing operations of the Company are dependent upon the support of the affiliates of the Parent.

Morrison & associates CPAS, PLLC.

5650 W. Chandler Blvd, Suite 2 Chandler, Arizona 85226 August 6, 2012

### **BALANCE SHEETS** AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010

# ASSETS

ASSEIS	2011	2010
CURRENT ASSETS		
Cash and equivalents	\$ 106,572	\$ 121,081
Royalties receivable	910,386	900,487
Notes receivable, net - current portion	439,002	399,244
Total current assets	1,455,960	1,420,812
OTHER ASSETS		
Notes receivable, net - less current portion	423,083	226,812
Definite lived intangible assets	7,973,636	2,123,492
Tradename	17,363,217	4,243,505
Goodwill	32,583,919	18,073,432
Due from Affiliates	3,297,518	312,435
Total other assets	61,641,373	24,979,676
TOTAL ASSETS	\$ 63,097,333	\$ 26,400,488
LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY		
CURRENT LIABILITIES		
Accounts payable	\$ 528,005	\$ 35,084
Total current liabilities	528,005	35,084
DEFERRED FRANCHISE FEE INCOME	1,238,644	1,279,129
Total liabilities	1,766,649	1,314,213
MEMBER'S EQUITY	61,330,684	25,086,275
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY	\$ 63,097,333	\$ 26,400,488

# STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND MEMBER'S EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010

	<u>2011</u>	<u>2010</u>
INCOME		
Royalty income - net	\$ 14,871,689	\$ 7,482,378
Franchise fee income	1,223,744	305,972
Total income	16,095,433	7,788,350
COSTS AND EXPENSES		
Amortization of franchise agreements	1,966,652	516,676
Impairment charge	1,673,505	-
Bad debt expense	341,544	111,278
Other expense	102,517	-
Management fee	12,069,685	7,190,100
Total costs and expenses	16,153,903	7,818,054
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS	(58,470)	(29,704)
INTEREST INCOME	58,470	29,704
NET INCOME (LOSS)	-	-
MEMBER'S EQUITY, BEGINNING OF YEAR	25,086,275	25,086,275
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION BY PARENT	36,244,409	-
MEMBER'S EQUITY, END OF YEAR	\$ 61,330,684	\$ 25,086,275

# STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010

	<u>2011</u>	<u>2010</u>
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:		
Net income (loss)	\$ -	\$ -
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net		
cash used in operating activities:		
Amortization	1,966,652	516,676
Impairment charge	1,673,505	-
Bad debt expense	341,544	111,278
Changes in assets and liabilities (net of Parent contribution):		
Royalties receivable	(9,899)	(39,010)
Due from Affiliates	(3,908,775)	(582,492)
Accounts payable	111,295	11,728
Deferred franchise fee income	(1,089,177)	(406,037)
Net cash used in operating activities	(914,855)	(387,857)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:		
Repayments on notes receivable	608,742	208,490
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: Cash contributed by Parent	291,604	
DECREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS	(14,509)	(179,367)
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR	121,081	300,448
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR	\$ 106,572	\$ 121,081
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:		
Interest paid	\$ -	\$ -
Income taxes paid	\$ -	\$ -
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:		
Notes receivable taken for franchise fees and royalties	\$ 680,272	\$ 410,978
Net non-cash assets transferred by the Parent	\$ 35,952,805	\$ -

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010

#### 1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. (the "Company"), an Arizona Limited Liability Company, was formed on December 29, 2008. The Company was organized to hold intellectual property and to administer, finance, manage, license, franchise and operate such intellectual property in the business of quick service food restaurants under Samurai Sam's Teriyaki Grill, Taco Time, The Great Steak & Potato Company ("GSP"), Frullati Cafe & Bakery, Rollerz, Ranch One, Surf City Squeeze, Johnnie's New York Pizzeria, NrGize Lifestyle Cafe, and Blimpie, tradenames (collectively, the "Concepts").

The following summarizes each of the Concepts as of December 31, 2011, including the type of restaurant business and number of franchised units in operation: (i) Samurai Sam's Teriyaki Grill: restaurants serving Japanese food with 42 franchises; (ii) Taco Time: restaurants serving Mexican food with 281 franchises; and (iii) The Great Steak & Potato Company: restaurants serving Philadelphia cheesesteak (and chicken) sandwiches and baked potatoes with 134 franchises; (iv) Frullati Cafe & Bakery: restaurants serving paninis, sandwiches, salads, soups, fresh baked goods and blended fruit drinks with 34 franchises; (v) Rollerz: restaurants serving rolled sandwiches, salads, soups and smoothies with 4 franchises; (vi) Ranch One: restaurants serving grilled and crispy breaded chicken sandwiches with 19 franchises; (vii) Surf City Squeeze: restaurants serving smoothies and blended fruit drinks with 129 franchisees; (viii) Johnnie's New York Pizzeria: restaurants serving Italian food including New York style pizza and calzones with 14 franchises; (ix) NrGize Lifestyle Cafe: restaurants serving low-calorie smoothies and fruit drinks with 99 franchises; and (x) Blimpie: restaurants serving fresh deli sandwiches and salads with 733 franchises. During the year ended December 31, 2011, there were 42 new franchises sold, 141 units closed and 14 re-acquired by the Company.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company's Concepts are located in 47 states in the United States, the District of Columbia, Canada, Kuwait, Mexico, the Netherland Antilles, Oman, Qatar, Saudi Arabia and the United Arab Emirates. The Company's Concepts are primarily located in shopping malls, airports, medical centers, office buildings, pad sites, street locations and health clubs.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kahala Corp. (the "Parent"). The Company serves as a conduit to process certain transactions of Kahala Corp., primarily those related to area development agreements, franchise agreements and monthly royalties from franchisees. The Company's operations are based upon the Concepts transferred to the Company by the Parent. Also, as discussed in Note 5, the Company is committed to pay a management fee to an affiliate equal to the net income of the Company before consideration of such management fee. The Company's results of operations and financial position may be substantially different if consolidated with the Parent. The ongoing operations of the Company are dependent upon the support of the Parent and its affiliates.

On September 30, 2009, the Parent effected the initial capitalization of the Company by transferring the intellectual property, notes receivable, royalties receivable and deferred franchise fees related to the operations of only three of the Concepts: Samurai Sam's. Taco Time and The Great Steak & Potato Company (the "Initial Concepts"). These net assets were previously reported in the financial statements of Kahala Franchise Corp. ("KFC"), another wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent. These net assets were transferred at their book value as recorded by KFC on September 30, 2009.

## NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010

#### 1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

On January 1, 2011, the Parent further capitalized the Company by transferring the intellectual property, notes receivable, royalties receivable and deferred franchise fees related to the operations of seven additional concepts: Frullati Cafe & Bakery, Rollerz, Ranch One, Surf City Squeeze, Johnnie's New York Pizzeria, NrGize Lifestyle Cafe, and Blimpie (collectively, the "Remaining Concepts"). Except for Blimpie, the net assets of these Remaining Concepts were previously reported in the financial statements of KFC, and the Blimpie net assets were previously reported in the financial statements of KBI Holdings, LLC ("KBI"), another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Parent. These net assets were transferred at their book value as recorded by KFC and KBI on January 1, 2011.

#### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

<u>Cash and Equivalents</u> – The Company considers all investment instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company may, in the normal course of business, maintain checking and savings account balances in excess of the \$250,000 Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation's insurance limit. At December 31, 2011 and 2010 the Company had no cash balances in excess of federally insured amounts.

<u>Financial Instruments</u> – Financial instruments consist primarily of cash, royalties receivable, notes receivable, net amounts due to/from Parent, and obligations under accounts payable and accrued expenses. The carrying amounts of cash, royalties receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments. The Company cannot estimate the fair value of the net amounts due to Parent because of the related party nature of those obligations. Fair value of most of the notes receivable contain market interest rates. For those that do not, the notes are discounted at a market rate.

<u>Revenue Recognition</u> – Initial franchise fees received are deferred until the related franchised unit opens. When revenue from initial fees is collectible over an extended period of time and collectibility is not reasonably assured, revenue is recognized using the installment method as fees are collected. Revenues of approximately \$80,000 and \$78,000 from prior year franchise sales originally deferred were recognized during 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Fees received from the sale of Area Representative Agreements ("ARA's") or similar development arrangements covering a defined geographic region (such area referred to as the "Territory") are recognized as revenue as follows: as individual franchise agreements are signed and the applicable initial franchise fee paid to the Company for locations within a Territory, that portion of the area development fee equal in amount to the initial franchise fee collected is recognized as revenue upon the applicable store opening for business to the public. Upon termination or expiration of an ARA, the balance, if any remaining, of such area development fees is recognized.

Royalty income is recognized based on franchise store sales volumes and contractual arrangements with franchisees. If the franchise store is under an ARA, the royalties are recorded net of any royalties due to the respective Area Representative.

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010

#### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

<u>Royalties Receivable</u> – The Company's royalties receivable reflects amounts that are due from franchisees for royalties earned as of year end.

The Company determines any required allowance by considering a number of factors including the length of time royalties receivable are past due and the Company's loss history. Receivables are considered past due when they are unpaid greater than thirty days. The Company would record a reserve account for receivables if they become uncollectible, and any payments subsequently received on such receivables would be credited to the reserve account. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and no bad debt expense related to royalties for the years then ended.

<u>Notes Receivable</u> – The Company's notes receivable principally results from the financing of the initial franchise fees required from franchisees, the sale of ARA's or similar development arrangements, and certain related expenses paid for on behalf of the Company's franchisees. The notes related to franchisees are generally guaranteed by the franchisee or purchaser and are collateralized by the related restaurant, associated equipment and leasehold improvements. The notes related to the ARA's are collateralized by development rights associated with the agreement. The notes are generally due in monthly installments of principal and interest with interest ranging from 6 - 12% per annum.

The Company determines any required allowance by periodically reviewing the collectibility of its notes receivable. The Company believes that the underlying collateral for the notes has sufficient value to offset any potential impairment of a note. Notes are valued at the estimated value of the collateral if it has been determined that foreclosure is probable. The Company recognizes interest income on notes it has determined to be impaired only when payments are received. The analysis of determining whether a note is impaired includes factors such as the payment history of the franchisee, operating results of the underlying store, the franchisee's relationship with the landlord and the value of any other collateral. There was an allowance for uncollectible notes of \$211,618 as of December 31, 2011. There were write-offs or allowances of \$341,544 and \$111,278 related to notes receivable for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 respectively. The Company does not accrue interest income on past due receivables.

<u>Income Taxes</u> – As a limited liability company, the Company is taxed as a partnership, and is not subject to federal income tax. The Member separately accounts for its share of the Company's items of income, deductions, losses and credits. Therefore, no provision is made in the accompanying financial statements for liabilities for federal or state income taxes since such liabilities are the responsibility of the Member.

The Company adopted FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740-10, relating to accounting for uncertain tax positions. ASC 740-10 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement process for accounting for uncertain tax positions and also provides guidance on various related matters such as derecognition, interest, penalties and disclosures required. The Company does not have any entity level uncertain tax positions. The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions. Generally, the Company is subject to examination by U.S. federal income tax authorities for three years from the filing of a tax return and three to four years by various state income tax authorities. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010

#### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

<u>Use of Estimates</u> – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

<u>Intangible Assets</u> – Intangible assets consist of franchise agreements, tradename and goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate price paid over the fair value of the net assets acquired in various acquisitions by the Parent (see Note 4) and is not amortized. The tradename represents the value associated with the brand of the Concepts and is not amortized because the lives have been determined to be indefinite. The franchise agreements have finite lives and are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The weighted average remaining useful lives of the franchise agreements was five years as of December 31, 2011. Amortizable intangible assets are tested for impairment annually or upon occurrence of such events that may indicate impairment exists. An impairment loss would be recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the estimated undiscounted cash flows used in determining the fair value of the assets.

In assessing the recoverability of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets, the Company must make assumptions about the estimated future cash flows and other factors to determine the fair value of these assets. Management evaluates goodwill and other intangibles for impairment annually and when impairment indicators arise, in accordance with ASC 350. The annual testing date is December 31. Assumptions about future revenue and cash flows require significant judgment. The Company's management develops future revenue estimates based on historical trends and market data available. Estimates of future cash flows assume that expenses will grow at rates consistent with historical rates.

Based on the Company's impairment analysis of goodwill and intangibles in accordance with the provisions of ASC 350, the Company concluded that the carrying value of the goodwill was not impaired at December 31, 2011 and 2010. There was an impairment charge of \$1,673,505 in the year ended December 31, 2011 on the GSP tradename.

<u>Fair Value Measurements</u> – The Company adopted the provisions of ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements, effective January 1, 2009. Under this standard, fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (i.e. the "exit price") in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In determining fair value, the Company uses various valuation approaches, including market, income and/or cost approaches. The accounting standard established a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that observable inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Company. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the Company's assumptions about the value that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. The hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the reliability of inputs, as follows:

## NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010

#### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

<u>Level 1</u> - Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Bank has the ability to access. Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly available in an active market, valuation of these products does not entail a significant degree of judgment.

<u>Level 2</u> - Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly. Assets and liabilities utilizing Level 2 inputs are valued using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or discounted cash flows.

<u>Level 3</u> - Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability, which are typically based on a entity's own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity.

The availability of observable inputs varies based on the nature of the specific financial instrument. To the extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable in the market, the determination of fair values requires more judgment. Accordingly, the degree of judgment exercised by the Company in determining the fair value is greatest for instruments categorized in Level 3. In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure purposes the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Fair value is a market-based measure considered from the perspective of a market participant who holds the asset or owes the liability rather than an entity-specific measure. When market assumptions are available, the accounting standard requires the Company to make assumptions regarding the assumptions that market participants would use to estimate the fair value of the financial instrument at the measurement date.

#### Fair Value Measures at December 31, 2011

	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3
Tradenames			\$17,363,217

As a result of the impairment analysis conducted at December 31, 2011, the value of the tradenames was written down to its estimated fair value. That fair value was estimated using Level 3 inputs.

<u>Subsequent Events</u> - Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements are available to be issued. The Company recognizes in the financial statements the effects of all subsequent events that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the financial statements. The Company's financial statements do not recognize subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before financial statements are available to be issued. The Company has evaluated subsequent events through August 6, 2012, which is the date the financial statements became available to issue.

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010

#### 3. NOTES RECEIVABLE

The aggregate gross amount due under notes receivable at December 31, 2011 and 2010 was \$862,085 and \$626,056, respectively. Management believes that this balance is not impaired since collection remains likely or that there is adequate collateral in the value of the franchises under contract and the area representative agreement itself. The Company has been successful in reselling franchised units and area representative agreements when defaults occur and the Company moves to collect on its collateral. However, due to late payment history resulting in technical default of certain notes, the Company has established an allowance of \$211,618 for certain notes receivable at December 31, 2011. This amount represents a full allowance on the uncollected balance of 12 notes receivable. Collections on notes receivable are due as follows:

Year ending	
December 31,	
2012	\$ 439,002
2013	156,919
2014	111,643
2015	98,839
2016	24,533
Thereafter	 31,149
Total	\$ 862,085

#### 4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company was formed by its Parent on December 29, 2008. The initial capitalization of the Company was made primarily by the transfer of intellectual property (the intangible assets) of several of the Concepts held by the Parent, including: Samurai Sam's Teriyaki Grill, Taco Time, and The Great Steak & Potato Company. Those assets were transferred on September 30, 2009. Additionally, in the year ended December 31, 2011, the Parent further capitalized the Company by transferring the intellectual property, notes receivable, royalties receivable and deferred franchise fees related to the operations of seven additional concepts: Frullati Cafe & Bakery, Rollerz, Ranch One, Surf City Squeeze, Johnnie's New York Pizzeria, NrGize Lifestyle Cafe, and Blimpie. These assets were recorded at the value of those assets as they were carried by the Parent and its affiliates as of the date of transfer.

As discussed in Note 2, there was an impairment charge of \$1,673,505 in the year ended December 31, 2011 on the GSP tradename. The estimated fair value of the tradename was based upon a weighted allocation using discounted future cash flows and market based multiples. The valuation methodology includes analyses under an assumption of a relief of royalty for use of tradename to estimate the cash flows associated with such.

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010

#### 4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets at December 31, 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following:

			Franchise	
	Goodwill	Tradenames	Agreements	Total
BALANCE, December 31, 2009	\$ 18,073,432	\$ 4,243,505	<b>\$ 2,640,168</b>	\$ 24,957,105
Additions	-	-	-	-
Amortization		-	(516,676)	(516,676)
BALANCE, December 31, 2010	18,073,432	4,243,505	2,123,492	24,440,429
Additions	14,510,487	14,793,217	7,816,796	37,120,500
Amortization	-	-	(1,966,652)	(1,966,652)
Impairments/adjustments		(1,673,505)		(1,673,505)
BALANCE, December 31, 2011	\$ 32,583,919	\$ 17,363,217	\$ 7,973,636	\$ 57,920,772

Estimated aggregate amortization expense for each of the next five years and thereafter is as follows:

Year ending	
December 31,	
2012	\$ 1,966,626
2013	1,673,318
2014	1,673,318
2015	1,673,318
2016	565,495
Thereafter	421,561
Total	\$ 7,973,636

The weighted average life of the various franchise agreements is 10.37 years.

#### 5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

#### Transactions With Affiliate

On October 1, 2009, the Company entered into a management agreement with Kahala Management, LLC (the "Affiliate"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent, whereby the Affiliate would manage the Company's franchise systems and underlying businesses detailed in Note 1 above. Accordingly, the

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010

#### 5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

management and administrative functions of the Company are provided by the Affiliate. These functions include, but are not limited, to: (i) general and administrative support services; (ii) legal services; (iii) distribution services; (iv) purchasing services; (v) research and development; (vi) training; (vii) pre and post opening support and assistance to franchisees; (viii) collection of and monitoring of royalties and advertising contributions; (ix) marketing, advertising and promotional support; and (x) informational support services (collectively, the "Services").

In exchange for the Services, the management agreement requires the Company to pay a fee to the Affiliate equal to the net income of the Company. The result is no income or losses on the accompanying statement of operations. During the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company paid or accrued a total of \$14,474,403 and \$7,190,100, respectively to the Affiliate. The Company had net balances due from the Affiliate of \$1,936,610 and \$312,435 at December 31, 2011and 2010, respectively.

#### 6. TRANSFER OF ASSETS FROM PARENT

As discussed in Note 1, the Parent transferred the Remaining Concepts from other Affiliates, KFC and Blimpie to the Company on January 1, 2011. The Parent had ownership of these concepts for several years and had been previously been operating them under other affiliated entities. As the transfer of these net assets has occurred among entities under common control, the historical cost carrying value of the net assets by those Affiliates represents the transferred value to the Company. The net assets transferred to the Company by the Parent on January 1, 2011 consisted of the following:

Cash	\$ 291,604
Notes Receivable	506,042
Franchise Agreements	7,816,796
Tradenames	14,793,217
Goodwill	14,510,487
Trade Accounts Payable	(381,627)
Deferred Franchise Fee Revenue	(368,420)
Due to Parent	(923,690)
Net Assets Transferred	\$ 36,244,409

#### 7. CONTINGENCIES

The Company becomes involved in legal disputes in the normal course of business. With respect to any claims existing at December 31, 2011, the Company believes that it has adequate counter claims or defenses and that the probability of incurring significant liability related to those claims is remote.

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 and 2010

#### 7. CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

The Company is committed under the management agreement discussed in Note 5 to pay the Affiliate substantially all of the Company's excess cash flow. The Affiliate and Parent may draw upon the Company's cash balances as desired.

Income tax obligations of the predecessor company, KFC, were not transferred to the Company. Income taxes payable by KFC are past due and KFC has estimated that these obligations do not exceed \$6,000,000 at December 31, 2011, including penalties and interest. Any income taxes payable remain an obligation of KFC. KFC is a separate tax-paying entity. However, until the settlement and payment of these obligations, the full implications to the Parent, its affiliates and the Company are unknown.

\* \* \* \* \* \* \*

# BALANCE SHEETS FOR YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ASSETS	2010	2009
CURRENT ASSETS		
Cash and equivalents	\$ 121,081	\$ 300,448
Royalties receivable	900,487	861,477
Notes receivable - current portion	399,244	308,034
Total current assets	1,420,812	1,469,959
OTHER ASSETS		
Notes receivable - less current portion	226,812	226,812
Definite lived intangible assets/Franchise agreements -	- net 2,123,492	2,640,169
Tradename	4,243,505	4,243,505
Goodwill	18,073,432	18,073,432
Due from Parent	312,435	
Total other assets	24,979,676	25,183,918
TOTAL ASSETS	<u>\$ 26,400,488</u>	\$ 26,653,877
LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY		
CURRENT LIABILITIES		
Accounts payable	<u>\$ 35,084</u>	\$ 23,356
Due to affiliate		270,057
Total current liabilities	35,084	293,413
DEFERRED FRANCHISE FEE INCOME	1,279,129	1,274,189
Total liabilities	1,314,213	1,567,602
MEMBER'S EQUITY	25,086,275	25,086,275
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY	<u>\$ 26,400,488</u>	<u>\$ 26,653,877</u>

# STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND MEMBER'S EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

INCOME	2010	2009
Royalty income - net	\$ 7,482,378	\$ 1,790,975
Franchise fee income	305,972	292,945
Tranchise fee meone		
Total income	7,788,350	2,083,920
COSTS AND EXPENSES		
Amortization of franchise agreements	516,676	129,169
Bad debt expense	111,278	
Management fee	7,190,100	1,960,116
Total costs and expenses	7,818,054	2,089,285
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS	(29,704)	(5,365)
INTEREST INCOME	29,704	5,365
NET INCOME (LOSS)	-	-
MEMBER'S EQUITY, BEGINNING OF YEAR	25,086,275	-
		25 096 275
CONTRIBUTION OF ASSETS BY MEMBER		25,086,275
MEMBER'S EQUITY, END OF YEAR	\$ 25,086,275	\$ 25,086,275
MEMBER'S EQUILI, END OF TEAK	$\phi$ 23,000,275	<u> </u>

# STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:	2010	2009
Net income (loss)	\$ -	-
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net		
cash used in operating activities:		
Amortization	516,676	129,169
Bad debt expense	111,278	
Changes in assets and liabilities:		
Royalties receivable	(39,010)	22,162
Due from Parent	(582,492)	479,443
Accounts payable	11,728	23,356
Deferred franchise fee income	(406,037)	(498,214)
Net cash used in operating activities	(387,857)	155,916
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:	200,400	144.522
Repayments on notes receivable	208,490	144,532
Net cash provided by investing activities	208,490	144,532
DECREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS/INCREASE IN	CASH (179,367)	300,448
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR	300,448	-
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR	<u>\$ 121,081</u>	\$ 300,448
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:		
Interest paid	<u>\$</u>	
Income taxes paid	<u>\$</u>	
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:		
Notes receivable taken for franchise fees and royalties/ Issuance of notes receivable	<u>\$ 410,978</u>	<u>\$ 86,172</u>
Contribution of assets by member		<u>\$ 25,086,275</u>

Financial Statements as of December 31, 2010 And Independent Auditors' Report

# CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT	1
Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2010	2
Statement of Operations and Member's Equity for the Year Ended December 31, 2010	3
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended December 31, 2010	4
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2010	5 – 12

Page



# MORRISON & ASSOCIATES CPAs, PLLC Certified Public Accountants

#### American Institute Of Certified Public Accountants / Arizona Society Of Certified Public Accountants

### INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Kahala Franchising LLC:

We have audited the balance sheet of Kahala Franchising LLC (the "Company") as of December 31, 2010 and the related statements of operations and member's equity and cash flows for year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Kahala Franchising LLC as of December 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Company is affiliated with other companies in the same line of business, all of which are controlled by a common parent with the ability to influence the volume of business done by each company. As discussed in Notes 1 and 5, the Company and its affiliates have engaged in significant transactions with each other. The Company's sole member is beneficially owned by Kahala Corp. ("Parent"). The Company was organized to hold certain intellectual property of the Parent and to administer, service, finance, manage, license, franchise and operate such intellectual property. The Company processes certain transactions of the Parent primarily those related to area development agreements, franchise agreements and monthly royalties from franchisees. The ongoing operations of the Company are dependent upon the support of the Parent and its affiliates.

Morrison & associates CPAS, PLLC.

5650 W. Chandler Blvd., Suite 2 Chandler, Arizona 85226 November 11, 2011

### **BALANCE SHEET** AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010

# ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS	
Cash and equivalents	\$ 121,081
Royalties receivable	900,487
Notes receivable - current portion	399,244
Total current assets	1,420,812
OTHER ASSETS	
Notes receivable - less current portion	226,812
Definite lived intangible assets	2,123,492
Tradename	4,243,505
Goodwill	18,073,432
Due from Parent	312,435
Total other assets	 24,979,676
TOTAL ASSETS	\$ 26,400,488
LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY	
CURRENT LIABILITIES	
Accounts payable	\$ 35,084
Total current liabilities	 35,084
DEFERRED FRANCHISE FEE INCOME	1,279,129
Total liabilities	 1,314,213
MEMBER'S EQUITY	 25,086,275
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY	\$ 26,400,488

# STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND MEMBER'S EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

INCOME Royalty income - net Franchise fee income	\$7	,482,378 305,972
Total income	7	,788,350
COSTS AND EXPENSES		
Amortization of franchise agreements		516,676
Bad debt expense		111,278
Management fee	7	,190,100
Total costs and expenses	7	,818,054
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS		(29,704)
INTEREST INCOME		29,704
NET INCOME (LOSS)		-
MEMBER'S EQUITY, BEGINNING OF YEAR	25	,086,275
MEMBER'S EQUITY, END OF YEAR	\$ 25	,086,275

# STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Net income (loss) Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used in operating activities:	\$	-
Amortization		516,676
Bad debt expense		111,278
Changes in assets and liabilities:		111,270
Royalties receivable		(39,010)
Due from Parent		(582,492)
Accounts payable		11,728
Deferred franchise fee income		(406,037)
Net cash used in operating activities		(387,857)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:		
Repayments on notes receivable		208,490
Net cash provided by investing activities		208,490
DECREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS		(179,367)
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR		300,448
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR	\$	121,081
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:		
Interest paid	\$	_
Income taxes paid	\$	
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIE	S:	
Notes receivable taken for franchise fees and royalties	\$	410,978

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

#### 1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Kahala Franchising LLC (the "Company"), an Arizona Limited Liability Company, was formed on December 29, 2008. The Company was organized to hold certain intellectual property and to administer, service, finance, manage, license, franchise and operate such intellectual property in the business of quick service food restaurants operating under the Samurai Sam's Teriyaki Grills, Taco Time, and The Great Steak & Potato Company brand names (collectively, the "Concepts").

The following summarizes each of the Concepts as of December 31, 2010, including the type of restaurant business and number of franchised units in operation: (i) Samurai Sam's Teriyaki Grills: restaurants serving Japanese food with 45 franchises; (ii) Taco Time: restaurants serving Mexican food with 299 franchises; and (iii) The Great Steak & Potato Company: restaurants serving Philadelphia cheesesteak (and chicken) sandwiches and french fries with 140 franchises.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company's Concepts are located in 34 states in the United States, the District of Columbia, Canada, Kuwait, and the Netherland Antilles. The Company's Concepts are primarily located in shopping malls, airports, medical centers, office buildings, pad sites, street locations and health clubs.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kahala Corp. (the "Parent"). The Company serves as a conduit to process certain transactions of Kahala Corp., primarily those related to area development agreements, franchise agreements and monthly royalties from franchisees. The Company's operations are based upon the Concepts transferred to the Company by the Parent. Also, as discussed in Note 5, the Company is committed to pay a management fee to an affiliate equal to the net income of the Company before consideration of such management fee. The Company's results of operations and financial position may be substantially different if consolidated with the Parent. The ongoing operations of the Company are dependent upon the support of the Parent and its affiliates.

On September 30, 2009, the Parent effected the capitalization of the Company by transferring the intellectual property, notes receivable, royalties receivable and deferred franchise fees related to the operations of Samurai Sam's, Taco Time and The Great Steak & Potato Company. These net assets were previously reported in the financial statements of Kahala Franchise Corp. ("KFC"), another wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent. These net assets were transferred at their book value as recorded by KFC on September 30, 2009. KFC previously operated and managed these Concepts in addition to Frullati Café & Bakery, Rollerz, Ranch \* 1, Surf City Squeeze, Johnnie's Pizza, NRgize Lifestyle Café, Blimpie, and Wafflō brand names. Only the net assets related to the Concepts were transferred.

#### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

<u>Cash and Equivalents</u> – The Company considers all investment instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company may, in the normal course of business, maintain checking and savings account balances in excess of the \$250,000 Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation's insurance limit. At December 31, 2010, the Company had no cash balances in excess of federally insured amounts.

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

#### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

<u>Financial Instruments</u> – Financial instruments consist primarily of cash, royalties receivable, notes receivable, net amounts due to/from Parent, and obligations under accounts payable and accrued expenses. The carrying amounts of cash, royalties receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments. The Company cannot estimate the fair value of the net amounts due to Parent because of the related party nature of those obligations. Fair value of most of the notes receivable contain market interest rates. For those that do not, the notes are discounted at a market rate.

<u>Revenue Recognition</u> – Initial franchise fees received are deferred until the related franchised unit opens. When revenue from initial fees is collectible over an extended period of time and collectibility is not reasonably assured, revenue is recognized using the installment method as fees are collected. Revenues of approximately \$78,000 from prior year franchise sales originally deferred were recognized during 2010.

Fees received from the sale of Area Representative Agreements ("ARA's") or similar development arrangements covering a defined geographic region (such area referred to as the "Territory") are recognized as revenue as follows: as individual franchise agreements are signed and the applicable initial franchise fee paid to the Company for locations within a Territory, that portion of the area development fee equal in amount to the initial franchise fee collected is recognized as revenue upon the applicable store opening for business to the public. Upon termination or expiration of an ARA, the balance, if any remaining, of such area development fees is recognized.

Royalty income is recognized based on franchise store sales volumes and contractual arrangements with franchisees. If the franchise store is under an ARA, the royalties are recorded net of any royalties due to the respective Area Representative.

<u>Royalties Receivable</u> – The Company's royalties receivable reflects amounts that are due from franchisees for royalties earned as of December 31, 2010.

The Company determines any required allowance by considering a number of factors including the length of time royalties receivable are past due and the Company's loss history. Receivables are considered past due when they are unpaid greater than thirty days. The Company would record a reserve account for receivables if they become uncollectible, and any payments subsequently received on such receivables would be credited to the reserve account. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2010 and no bad debt expense related to royalties for the year then ended.

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

#### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

<u>Notes Receivable</u> – The Company's notes receivable principally results from the financing of the initial franchise fees required from franchisees, the sale of ARA's or similar development arrangements, and certain related expenses paid for on behalf of the Company's franchisees. The notes related to franchisees are generally guaranteed by the franchisee or purchaser and are collateralized by the related restaurant, associated equipment and leasehold improvements. The notes related to the ARA's are collateralized by development rights associated with the agreement. The notes are generally due in monthly installments of principal and interest with interest ranging from 6 - 12% per annum.

The Company determines any required allowance by periodically reviewing the collectibility of its notes receivable. The Company believes that the underlying collateral for the notes has sufficient value to offset any potential impairment of a note. Notes are valued at the estimated value of the collateral if it has been determined that foreclosure is probable. The Company recognizes interest income on notes it has determined to be impaired only when payments are received. The analysis of determining whether a note is impaired includes factors such as the payment history of the franchisee, operating results of the underlying store, the franchisee's relationship with the landlord and the value of any other collateral. There was no allowance for uncollectible notes as of December 31, 2010. During the year ended December 31, 2010, \$111,278 related to notes receivable were written off.

<u>Income Taxes</u> – As a limited liability company the Company is taxed as a partnership, and is not subject to federal income tax. The Member separately accounts for its share of the Company's items of income, deductions, losses and credits. Therefore, no provision is made in the accompanying financial statements for liabilities for federal, state or local income taxes since such liabilities are the responsibility of the individual member.

The Company adopted FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740-10, relating to accounting for uncertain tax positions. ASC 740-10 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement process for accounting for uncertain tax positions and also provides guidance on various related matters such as derecognition, interest, penalties and disclosures required. The Company does not have any entity level uncertain tax positions. The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions. Generally, the Company is subject to examination by U.S. federal income tax authorities for three years from the filing of a tax return and three to four years by various state income tax authorities. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.

<u>Use of Estimates</u> – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

#### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

<u>Intangible Assets</u> – Intangible assets consist of franchise agreements, tradename and goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate price paid over the fair value of the net assets acquired in various acquisitions by the Parent (see Note 4) and is not amortized. The tradename represents the value associated with the brand of the Concepts and is not amortized because the lives have been determined to be indefinite. The franchise agreements have finite lives and are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The weighted average remaining useful lives of the franchise agreements was five years as of December 31, 2010. Amortizable intangible assets are tested for impairment annually or upon occurrence of such events that may indicate impairment exists. An impairment loss would be recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the estimated undiscounted cash flows used in determining the fair value of the assets.

In assessing the recoverability of goodwill and intangible assets, the Company must make assumptions about the estimated future cash flows and other factors to determine the fair value of these assets. Management evaluates goodwill and other intangibles for impairment annually and when impairment indicators arise, in accordance with ASC 350. The annual testing date is December 31. Assumptions about future revenue and cash flows require significant judgment. The Company's management develops future revenue estimates based on historical trends and market data available. Estimates of future cash flows assume that expenses will grow at rates consistent with historical rates.

Based on the Company's impairment analysis of goodwill and intangibles in accordance with the provisions of ASC 350, the Company concluded that the carrying value of the goodwill was not impaired at December 31, 2010.

<u>Fair Value Measurements</u> – The Company adopted the provisions of ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements, effective January 1, 2009. Under this standard, fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (i.e. the "exit price") in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In determining fair value, the Company uses various valuation approaches, including market, income and/or cost approaches. The accounting standard established a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that observable inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Company. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the Company's assumptions about the value that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. The hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the reliability of inputs, as follows:

Level 1 - Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Bank has the ability to access. Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly available in an active market, valuation of these products does not entail a significant degree of judgment.

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

#### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

<u>Level 2</u> - Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly. Assets and liabilities utilizing Level 2 inputs are valued using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or discounted cash flows.

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability, which are typically based on a entity's own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity.

The availability of observable inputs varies based on the nature of the specific financial instrument. To the extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable in the market, the determination of fair values requires more judgment. Accordingly, the degree of judgment exercised by the Company in determining the fair value is greatest for instruments categorized in Level 3. In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure purposes the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Fair value is a market-based measure considered from the perspective of a market participant who holds the asset or owes the liability rather than an entity-specific measure. When market assumptions are available, the accounting standard requires the Company to make assumptions regarding the assumptions that market participants would use to estimate the fair value of the financial instrument at the measurement date.

The Company's investments consist of cash and equivalents. Cash and equivalents, Level 1 inputs, are stated at cost which approximates market value.

<u>Subsequent Events</u> - Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements are available to be issued. The Company recognizes in the financial statements the effects of all subsequent events that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the financial statements. The Company's financial statements do not recognize subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before financial statements are available to be issued. The Company has evaluated subsequent events through November 11, 2011, which is the date the financial statements became available to issue.

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

#### 3. NOTES RECEIVABLE

The aggregate gross amount due under notes receivable at December 31, 2010 was \$626,056. Management believes that this balance is not impaired since collection remains likely or that there is adequate collateral in the value of the franchises under contract and the area representative agreement itself. The Company has been successful in reselling franchised units and area representative agreements when defaults occur and the Company moves to collect on its collateral. Collections on notes receivable are due as follows:

Year ending	
December 31,	
2011	\$ 399,244
2012	137,842
2013	34,891
2014	15,437
2015	16,969
Thereafter	 21,673
Total	\$ 626,056

#### 4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company was formed by its Parent on December 29, 2008. The initial capitalization of the Company was made primarily by the transfer of intellectual property (the intangible assets) of several of the Concepts held by the Parent, including: Samurai Sam's Teriyaki Grills, Taco Time, and The Great Steak & Potato Company. Those assets were transferred on September 30, 2009. The assets are recorded at the value of those assets as they were carried by the Parent and its affiliates as of the date of transfer.

Intangible assets at December 31, 2010 consisted of the following:

Franchise agreements:		
Gross Value	\$	6,615,732
Accumulated amortization		(3,267,094)
Impairment loss (prior year)		(1,225,146)
Net franchise agreements	<u>\$</u>	2,123,492
Tradename	<u>\$</u>	4,243,505
Goodwill	\$	18,073,432

Amortization expense related to the franchise agreements for the year ended December 31, 2010 was \$516,676. Estimated aggregate amortization expense for each of the next five years and thereafter is as follows:

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

#### 4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year ending	
December 31,	
2011	\$ 516,676
2012	516,676
2013	516,676
2014	223,343
2015	223,343
Thereafter	 126,778
Total	\$ 2,123,492

The weighted average remaining life of the various franchise agreements is 6.68 years.

#### 5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

#### Transactions With Parent

On October 1, 2009, the Company entered into a management agreement with Kahala Management, LLC (the "Affiliate"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent, whereby the Affiliate would manage the Company's franchise systems and underlying businesses detailed in Note 1 above. Accordingly, the management and administrative functions of the Company are provided by the Affiliate. These functions include, but are not limited, to: (i) general and administrative support services; (ii) legal services; (iii) distribution services; (iv) purchasing services; (v) research and development; (vi) training; (vii) pre and post opening support and assistance to franchisees; (viii) collection of and monitoring of royalties and advertising contributions; (ix) marketing, advertising and promotional support; and (x) informational support services (collectively, the "Services").

In exchange for the Services, the management agreement requires the Company to pay a fee to the Affiliate equal to the net income of the Company. The result is no income or losses on the accompanying statement of operations. During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company paid or accrued a total of \$7,190,100 to the Affiliate. The Company had net balances due from the Affiliate of \$312,435 at December 31, 2010.

#### 6. CONTINGENCIES

The Company becomes involved in legal disputes in the normal course of business. With respect to any claims existing at December 31, 2010, the Company believes that it has adequate counter claims or defenses and that the probability of incurring significant liability related to those claims is remote.

The Company is committed under the management agreement discussed in Note 5 to pay the Affiliate substantially all of the Company's excess cash flow. The Affiliate and Parent may draw upon the Company's cash balances as desired.

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

#### 6. CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax obligations of the predecessor company, KFC, were not transferred to the Company. Income taxes payable by KFC are past due and KFC has estimated that these obligations do not exceed \$6,000,000 at December 31, 2010, including penalties and interest. Any income taxes payable remain an obligation of KFC. KFC is a separate tax-paying entity. However, until the settlement and payment of these obligations, the full implications to the Parent, its affiliates and the Company are unknown.

\* \* \* \* \* \* \*

Financial Statements as of December 31, 2009 and Report of Independent Auditors

# CONTENTS

# PAGE

RE	PORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS	1
	Balance Sheet	2
	Statement of Operations and Member's Equity	3
	Statement of Cash Flows	4
	Notes to Financial Statements	5 - 13

# MOSS-ADAMS LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS | BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

#### **REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS**

To the Board of Directors of Kahala Franchising LLC:

We have audited the balance sheet of Kahala Franchising LLC as of December 31, 2009 and the related statements of operations, member's equity and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Kahala Franchising LLC as of December 31, 2009 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Company is affiliated with other companies in the same line of business, all of which are controlled by a common parent with the ability to influence the volume of business done by each company. As discussed in Notes 1 and 5, the Company and its affiliates have engaged in significant transactions with each other. The Company's sole member is beneficially owned by Kahala Corp. ("Parent"). The Company was organized to hold certain intellectual property of the Parent and to administer, service, finance, manage, license, franchise and operate such intellectual property. The Company processes certain transactions of the Parent primarily those related to area development agreements, franchise agreements and monthly royalties from franchisees. The ongoing operations of the Company are dependent upon the support of the Parent and its affiliates.

Moss ADAMS LLP

Scottsdale, Arizona August 6, 2010

# **BALANCE SHEET** AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009

ASSETS	
CURRENT ASSETS:	
Cash	\$ 300,448
Royalties receivable	861,477
Notes receivable - current portion	308,034
Total current assets	 1,469,959
OTHER ASSETS:	
Notes receivable - less current portion	226,812
Franchise agreements - net	2,640,169
Tradename	4,243,505
Goodwill	 18,073,432
Total other assets	 25,183,918
TOTAL ASSETS	\$ 26,653,877
LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY	
CURRENT LIABILITIES:	
Accounts payable	\$ 23,356
Due to affiliate	 270,057
Total current liabilities	 293,413
DEFERRED FRANCHISE FEE INCOME	1,274,189
Total liabilities	1,567,602
MEMBER'S EQUITY	 25,086,275
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY	\$ 26,653,877

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 2

# STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND MEMBER'S EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

INCOME:	
Royalty income - net	\$ 1,790,975
Franchise fee income	292,945
Total income	 2,083,920
COSTS AND EXPENSES:	
Amortization of franchise agreements	129,169
Management fee	1,960,116
Total costs and expenses	2,089,285
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS	(5,365)
INTEREST INCOME	5,365
NET INCOME	 -
MEMBER'S EQUITY BEGINNING OF YEAR	-
CONTRIBUTION OF ASSETS BY MEMBER	 25,086,275
MEMBER'S EQUITY END OF YEAR	\$ 25,086,275

# The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 3

# STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:	
Net income	\$ -
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash	
used in operating activities:	
Amortization of franchise agreements	129,169
Changes in assets and liabilities:	-
Royalties receivable	22,162
Due to/from parent	479,443
Accounts payable	23,356
Deferred franchise fee income	(498,214)
Net cash provided by operating activities	 155,916
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:	
Repayments on notes receivable	144,532
Net cash provided by investing activities	 144,532
INCREASE IN CASH	300,448
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR	 
CASH, END OF YEAR	\$ 300,448
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:	
Issuance of notes receivable	\$ 86,172
Contribution of assets by member	\$ 25,086,275

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 4

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

#### 1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Kahala Franchising LLC (the "Company") an Arizona Limited Liability Company, was formed on December 29, 2008. The Company was organized to hold certain intellectual property and to administer, service, finance, manage, license, franchise and operate such intellectual property in the business of quick service food restaurants operating under the Samurai Sam's Teriyaki Grills, Taco Time and The Great Steak & Potato Company brand names (collectively, the "Concepts").

The following summarizes each of the Concepts as of December 31, 2009, including the type of restaurant business and number of franchised units in operation: (i) Samurai Sam's Teriyaki Grills: restaurants serving Japanese food with 55 franchises; (ii) Taco Time: restaurants serving Mexican food with 296 franchises; and (iii) The Great Steak & Potato Company: restaurants serving Philadelphia cheesesteak (and chicken) sandwiches and french fries with 169 franchises.

At December 31, 2009, the Concepts are located in 34 states in the United States, the District of Columbia, Canada, Kuwait, and the Netherlands Antilles. The Company's Concepts are primarily located in shopping malls, airports, medical centers, office buildings, pad sites, street locations and health clubs.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kahala Corp. (the "Parent"). The Company serves as a conduit to process certain transactions of Kahala Corp., primarily those related to area development agreements, franchise agreements and monthly royalties from franchisees. The Company's operations are based upon the Concepts transferred to the Company by the Parent. Also, as discussed in Note 5, the Company is committed to pay a management fee to an affiliate equal to the net income of the Company before consideration of such management fee. The Company's results of operations and financial position may be substantially different if consolidated with the Parent. The ongoing operations of the Company are dependent upon the support of the Parent and its affiliates.

On September 30, 2009, the Parent effected the capitalization of the Company by transferring the intellectual property, notes receivable, royalties receivable and deferred franchise fees related to the operations of Samurai Sam's, Taco Time and The Great Steak & Potato Company. These net assets were previously reported in the financial statements of Kahala Franchise Corp. ("KFC"), another wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent. These net assets were transferred at their book value as recorded by KFC on September 30, 2009. KFC previously operated and managed these Concepts in addition to Frullati Café & Bakery, Rollerz, Ranch \* 1, Surf City Squeeze, Johnnie's Pizza, nrgize Lifestyle Café, Blimpie and Wafflō brand names. Only the net assets related to the Concepts were transferred.

Operations of the Company commenced and are reported from the September 30, 2009 transfer date through December 31, 2009.

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

#### 1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

The following schedule represents the balance sheet of KFC at September 30, 2009 and the assets and liabilities transferred from KFC to the Company on that date:

	KFC (unaudited)		 Company
Cash	\$	866,054	\$ -
Receivables		2,876,995	1,476,845
Intangible assets		36,277,188	25,086,275
Due from Parent		12,368,555	 209,386
Total Assets	\$	52,388,792	\$ 26,772,506
Accounts payable	\$	150,423	\$ -
Income taxes payable		8,011,928	
Deferred income taxes		2,492,283	
Deferred Franchise Fee Income		4,940,996	 1,686,231
Total Liabilities		15,595,630	 1,686,231
Stockholder's Equity/Net Assets	\$	36,793,162	\$ 25,086,275

#### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

<u>Cash and Equivalents</u> – The Company considers all investment instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company may, in the normal course of business, maintain checking and savings account balances in excess of the \$250,000 Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation's insurance limit. At December 31, 2009, the Company had cash balances in excess of federally insured amounts of approximately \$50,448.

<u>Financial Instruments</u> – Financial instruments consist primarily of cash, royalties receivable, notes receivable, net amounts due to/from Parent, and obligations under accounts payable and accrued expenses. The carrying amounts of cash, royalties receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments. The Company cannot estimate the fair value of the net amounts due to Parent because of the related party nature of those obligations. Fair value of most of the notes receivable contain market interest rates. For those that do not, the notes are discounted at a market rate.

<u>Revenue Recognition</u> – Initial franchise fees received are deferred until the related franchised unit opens. When revenue from initial fees is collectible over an extended period of time and collectibility is not reasonably assured, revenue is recognized using the installment method as fees are collected. Revenues of approximately \$222,000 from prior year franchise sales originally deferred were recognized during 2009.

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

#### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fees received from the sale of Area Representative Agreements ("ARA's") or similar development arrangements covering a defined geographic region (such area referred to as the "Territory") are recognized as revenue as follows: as individual franchise agreements are signed and the applicable initial franchise fee paid to the Company for locations within a Territory, that portion of the area development fee equal in amount to the initial franchise fee collected is recognized as revenue upon the applicable store opening for business to the public. Upon termination or expiration of an ARA, the balance, if any remaining, of such area development fees is recognized.

Royalty income is recognized based on franchise store sales volumes and contractual arrangements with franchisees. If the franchise store is under an ARA, the royalties are recorded net of any royalties due to the respective Area Representative.

<u>Royalties Receivable</u> – The Company's royalties receivable reflects amounts that are due from franchisees for royalties earned as of December 31, 2009.

The Company determines any required allowance by considering a number of factors including the length of time royalties receivable are past due and the Company's loss history. Receivables are considered past due when they are unpaid greater than thirty days. The Company would record a reserve account for receivables if they become uncollectible, and any payments subsequently received on such receivables would be credited to the reserve account. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2009 and no bad debt expense for the period then ended.

<u>Notes Receivable</u> – The Company's notes receivable principally results from the financing of the initial franchise fees required from franchisees, the sale of ARA's or similar development arrangements, and certain related expenses paid for on behalf of the Company's franchisees. The notes related to franchisees are generally guaranteed by the franchisee or purchaser and are collateralized by the related restaurant, associated equipment and leasehold improvements. The notes related to the ARA's are collateralized by development rights associated with the agreement. The notes are generally due in monthly installments of principal and interest with interest ranging from 6 - 12% per annum.

The Company determines any required allowance by periodically reviewing the collectibility of its notes receivable. The Company believes that the underlying collateral for the notes has sufficient value to offset any potential impairment of a note. Notes are valued at the estimated value of the collateral if it has been determined that foreclosure is probable. The Company recognizes interest income on notes it has determined to be impaired only when payments are received. The analysis of determining whether a note is impaired includes factors such as the payment history of the franchisee, operating results of the underlying store, the franchisee's relationship with the landlord and the value of any other collateral. There was no allowance for uncollectible notes as of December 31, 2009.

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

#### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

<u>Income Taxes</u> – As a limited liability company the Company is taxed as a partnership, and is not subject to federal income tax. The Member separately accounts for its share of the Company's items of income, deductions, losses and credits. Therefore, no provision is made in the accompanying financial statements for liabilities for federal, state or local income taxes since such liabilities are the responsibility of the individual partners.

Income tax obligations of the predecessor company, KFC were not transferred to the Company. Income taxes payable and a net deferred income tax liability of \$8,012,000 and \$4,430,000 remain with KFC and continue to be an obligation of the Parent and its affiliates.

The Company adopted FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740-10, relating to accounting for uncertain tax positions. ASC 740-10 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement process for accounting for uncertain tax positions and also provides guidance on various related matters such as derecognition, interest, penalties and disclosures required. The Company does not have any entity level uncertain tax positions. The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions. Generally, the Company is subject to examination by U.S. federal income tax authorities for three years from the filing of a tax return and three to four years by various state income tax authorities.

<u>Use of Estimates</u> – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

<u>FASB Codification</u> – On July 1, 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) became the single authoritative source for nongovernmental U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The ASC supersedes all previous authoritative GAAP applicable to the Company and is effective for interim and annual periods ended after September 15, 2009.

<u>Intangible Assets</u> – Intangible assets consist of franchise agreements, tradename and goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate price paid over the fair value of the net assets acquired in various acquisitions by the Parent (see Note 4) and is not amortized. The tradename represents the value associated with the brand of the Concepts and is not amortized because the lives have been determined to be indefinite. The franchise agreements have finite lives and are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The weighted average remaining useful lives of the franchise agreements was eleven years as of December 31, 2009. Amortizable intangible assets are tested for impairment annually or upon occurrence of such events that may indicate impairment exists. An impairment loss would be recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the estimated undiscounted cash flows used in determining the fair value of the assets.

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

#### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

In assessing the recoverability of goodwill and intangible assets, the Company must make assumptions about the estimated future cash flows and other factors to determine the fair value of these assets. Management evaluates goodwill and other intangibles for impairment annually and when impairment indicators arise, in accordance with ASC 350. The annual testing date is December 31. Assumptions about future revenue and cash flows require significant judgment. The Company's management develops future revenue estimates based on historical trends and market data available. Estimates of future cash flows assume that expenses will grow at rates consistent with historical rates.

Based on the Company's impairment analysis of goodwill and intangibles in accordance with the provisions of ASC 350, the Company concluded that the carrying value of the goodwill was not impaired at December 31, 2009.

<u>Fair Value Measurements</u> – The Company adopted the provisions of ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements, effective January 1, 2009. Under this standard, fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (i.e. the "exit price") in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In determining fair value, the Company uses various valuation approaches, including market, income and/or cost approaches. The accounting standard established a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that observable inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Company. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the Company's assumptions about the value that market participants would use in the circumstances. The hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the reliability of inputs, as follows:

<u>Level 1</u> - Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Bank has the ability to access. Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly available in an active market, valuation of these products does not entail a significant degree of judgment.

<u>Level 2</u> - Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly. Assets and liabilities utilizing Level 2 inputs are valued using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or discounted cash flows.

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability, which are typically based on a entity's own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity.

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

#### 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The availability of observable inputs varies based on the nature of the specific financial instrument. To the extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable in the market, the determination of fair values requires more judgment. Accordingly, the degree of judgment exercised by the Company in determining the fair value is greatest for instruments categorized in Level 3. In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure purposes the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls is determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Fair value is a market-based measure considered from the perspective of a market participant who holds the asset or owes the liability rather than an entity-specific measure. When market assumptions are available, the accounting standard requires the Company to make assumptions regarding the assumptions that market participants would use to estimate the fair value of the financial instrument at the measurement date.

The Company's investments consist of cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents, Level 1 inputs, are stated at cost which approximates market value.

<u>Subsequent Events</u> - Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements are available to be issued. The Company recognizes in the financial statements the effects of all subsequent events that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the financial statements. The Company's financial statements do not recognize subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance sheet but arose after the balance sheet date and before financial statements are available to be issued. The Company has evaluated subsequent events through August 6, 2010, which is the date the financial statements became available to issue.

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

#### 3. NOTES RECEIVABLE

The aggregate gross amount due under notes receivable at December 31, 2009 was \$534,846. The balance of ARA notes receivable that is delinquent and not accruing interest at December 31, 2009 was \$109,250. Management believes that this balance is not impaired since collection remains likely or that there is adequate collateral in the value of the franchises under contract and the area representative agreement itself. The Company has been successful in reselling franchised units and area representative agreements when defaults occur and the Company moves to collect on its collateral. Collections on notes receivable are due as follows:

Year ending	
December 31,	
2010	\$ 308,034
2011	137,841
2012	34,890
2013	15,437
2014	16,969
Thereafter	 21,675
Total	\$ 534,846

#### 4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company was formed by its Parent on December 29, 2008. The initial capitalization of the Company was made primarily by the transfer of intellectual property (the intangible assets) of several of the Concepts held by the Parent, including: Samurai Sam's Teriyaki Grills, Taco Time, and The Great Steak & Potato Company. Those assets were transferred on September 30, 2009. The assets are recorded at the value of those assets as they were carried by the Parent and its affiliates as of the date of transfer.

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

#### 4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets at December 31, 2009 consisted of the following:

Franchise agreements:	
Gross value	\$ 6,615,732
Accumulated amortization	(3,267,093)
Impairment loss (prior year)	(708,470)
Net franchise agreements	\$ 2,640,169
Tradename	\$ 4,243,505
Goodwill	\$ 18,073,432

Amortization expense related to the franchise agreements for the year ended December 31, 2009 was \$129,169. Estimated aggregate amortization expense for each of the next five years and thereafter is as follows:

2010	\$ 516,676
2011	516,676
2012	516,676
2013	223,343
2014	223,343
Thereafter	 643,455
	\$ 2,640,169

The weighted average remaining life of the various franchise agreements is 6.68 years.

#### 5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On October 1, 2009, the Company entered into a management agreement with Kahala Management, LLC (the "Affiliate"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent, whereby the Affiliate would manage the Company's franchise systems and underlying businesses detailed in Note 1 above. Accordingly, the management and administrative functions of the Company are provided by the Affiliate. These functions include, but are not limited to: (i) general and administrative support services; (ii) legal services; (iii) distribution services; (iv) purchasing services; (v) research and development; (vi) training; (vii) pre and post opening support and assistance to franchisees; (viii) collection of and monitoring of royalties and advertising contributions; (ix) marketing, advertising and promotional support; and (x) informational support services (collectively, the "Services").

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

#### 5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

In exchange for the Services, the management agreement requires the Company to pay a fee to the Affiliate equal to the net income of the Company. The result is no income or losses on the accompanying statement of operations. The fees paid under this arrangement would likely not be similar had this management fee arrangement been consummated on terms equivalent to those that prevail in an arm's length transaction with an independent third party. During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company paid or accrued a total of \$1,960,116 to the Affiliate. The Company had net balances due to the Affiliate of \$270,057 at December 31, 2009.

Income tax obligations of the predecessor company, KFC were not transferred to the Company. Income taxes payable by KFC are past due and KFC has estimated that these obligations do not exceed \$6,000,000 at December 31 2009, including penalties and interest. These income taxes payable remain with KFC. KFC is a separate tax-paying entity. However, until the settlement and payment of these obligations, the full implications to the Parent, its affiliates and the Company are unknown.

#### 6. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Company becomes involved in legal disputes in the normal course of business. With respect to any claims existing at December 31, 2009, the Company believes that it has adequate counter claims or defenses and that the probability of incurring significant liability related to those claims is remote.

The Company is committed under the management agreement discussed in Note 5 to pay the Affiliate substantially all of the Company's excess cash flow. The Affiliate and Parent may draw upon the Company's cash balances as desired.

\* \* \* \* \* \* \*

# <u>EXHIBIT U</u>

# TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Form of Addendum for Sale of Company-Affiliated Owned Stores

# Addendum for Sale of Company-Affiliated Owned Stores #1

Below is information covering the last five fiscal years on a previously-owned franchised outlet now under the control of an affiliate of Franchisor.

Address of Outlet for Sale:
Previous Franchise Owner 1:
Name:
Telephone Number:
Telephone Number:
Reason for change in ownership:
Previous Franchise Owner 2(if applicable):
City, State:
Telephone Number:
Time period outlet was controlled by previous franchise owner:
Reason for change in ownership:
5 1
Previous Franchise Owner 3(if applicable):
Name:
City, State:
Telephone Number:

Time period outlet was controlled by previous franchise owner: \_\_\_\_\_\_\_

Note: The telephone number of the previous franchise owner(s) listed above is the current business telephone number, or if unknown, the last home telephone number Franchisor had for the previous franchise owner.

The time period(s) when affiliate of Franchisor retained control of the outlet:

Date: \_

(Do not leave blank)

Signature of Prospective Franchisee

Print Name

Addendum for Sale of Company-Affiliated Owned Stores #1 must be signed and dated and remains in the Franchise Disclosure Document as the prospective franchisee's copy. Addendum for Sale of Company-Affiliated Owned Stores #2 must be signed and dated by the prospective franchisee and returned to Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. either by mailing it to Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. at 9311 E. Via De Ventura, Scottsdale, Arizona 85258 or faxing it to Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. at (480) 362-4792.

# Addendum for Sale of Company-Affiliated Owned Stores #2

Below is information covering the last five fiscal years on a previously-owned franchised outlet now under the control of an affiliate of Franchisor.

Address of Outlet for Sale:
Previous Franchise Owner 1:
Name:
City, State:
Telephone Number:
Telephone Number:
Reason for change in ownership:
Previous Franchise Owner 2(if applicable):
City, State:
Telephone Number:
Time period outlet was controlled by previous franchise owner:
Reason for change in ownership:
Previous Franchise Owner 3(if applicable):
Name:
City, State:
Telephone Number:

Note: The telephone number of the previous franchise owner(s) listed above is the current business telephone number, or if unknown, the last home telephone number Franchisor had for the previous franchise owner.

The time period(s) when affiliate of Franchisor retained control of the outlet:

Date: \_

(Do not leave blank)

Signature of Prospective Franchisee

Print Name

Addendum for Sale of Company-Affiliated Owned Stores #1 must be signed and dated and remains in the Franchise Disclosure Document as the prospective franchisee's copy. Addendum for Sale of Company-Affiliated Owned Stores #2 must be signed and dated by the prospective franchisee and returned to Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. either by mailing it to Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. at 9311 E. Via De Ventura, Scottsdale, Arizona 85258 or faxing it to Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. at (480) 362-4792.

<u>EXHIBIT V</u>

TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Receipts

#### **RECEIPT #1**

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendardays before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

[New York, Oklahoma and Rhode Island require that we give you this disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.]

[Michigan and Washington require that we give you this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.]

If Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, DC 20580 and the state agency listed on Exhibit B.

The franchisor is Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., located at 9311 E. Via De Ventura, Scottsdale, Arizona 85258. Its telephone number is (480) 362-4800. The franchise seller for this offering is \_\_\_\_\_\_,

Issuance date: August 8, 2012, updated August 28, 2012, updated October 18, 2012.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. authorizes the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit C to receive service of process for it in the particular state.

I received an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Disclosure Document dated August 8, 2012, updated August 28, 2012, updated October 18, 2012 that included the following Exhibits:

- A. State Addenda to Franchise Disclosure Document
- B. Directory of State Agencies and Administrators
- C. Franchisor's Agent for Service of Process
- D. Asset Purchase Agreement (For Sale of a Corporate Store or store located within an LA Fitness health club to a Franchisee) with Promissory Note and Security Agreement (if applicable) and State Addenda
- E. Form of Franchise Agreement and State Addenda
- F. Form of Addendum to the Franchise Agreement for SBA Loans
- G. Form of Required Lease Terms
- H. Form of Lease Guaranty Acknowledgment
- I. Form of Lease Negotiation Acknowledgment
- J. Form of Lease Procurement Acknowledgment
- K. Pre-Authorized Electronic Funds Transfer Form

Date:

(Do not leave blank)

- L. Form of Single-Unit Facility License Agreement (for LA Fitness locations only)
- M. Form of Addendum to the Single-Unit Facility License Agreement for SBA Loans
- N. Form of Release and Consent Agreement to Assignment of Franchised Business
- O. Table of Contents–Confidential Operations Manual
- P. List of Franchise Owners
- Q. Form of Area Representative Agreement, State Addenda and General Release
- R. Table of Contents Confidential AR Operations Manual (For Area Representatives)
- S. List of Area Representatives
- T. Financial Statements
- U. Form of Addendum for Sale of Company-Affiliated Owned Stores
- V. Receipts

Signature of Prospective Franchisee

Print Name

Receipt #1 must be signed and dated and remains in the Franchise Disclosure Document as the prospective franchisee's copy. Receipt #2 must be signed and dated by the prospective franchisee and returned to Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. by mailing it to Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. at 9311 E. Via De Ventura, Scottsdale, Arizona 85258.

#### **RECEIPT #2**

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14 calendardays before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

[New York, Oklahoma and Rhode Island require that we give you this disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.]

[Michigan and Washington require that we give you this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.]

If Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, DC 20580 and the state agency listed on Exhibit B.

The franchisor is Kahala Franchising, L.L.C., located at 9311 E. Via De Ventura, Scottsdale, Arizona 85258. Its telephone number is (480) 362-4800. The franchise seller for this offering is , ( )

\_\_\_\_\_

Issuance date: August 8, 2012, updated August 28, 2012, updated October 18, 2012.

Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. authorizes the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit C to receive service of process for it in the particular state.

I received an NrGize Lifestyle Cafe Disclosure Document dated August 8, 2012, updated August 28, 2012, updated October 18, 2012 that included the following Exhibits:

State Addenda to Franchise Disclosure Document Α.

- Β. Directory of State Agencies and Administrators
- C. Franchisor's Agent for Service of Process
- D. Asset Purchase Agreement (For Sale of a Corporate Store or store located within an LA Fitness health club to a Franchisee) with Promissory Note and Security Agreement (if applicable) and State Addenda
- Form of Franchise Agreement and State Addenda E.
- Form of Addendum to the Franchise Agreement for F. SBA Loans
- G. Form of Required Lease Terms
- H. Form of Lease Guaranty Acknowledgment
- Form of Lease Negotiation Acknowledgment Ι.
- J. Form of Lease Procurement Acknowledgment
- K. Pre-Authorized Electronic Funds Transfer Form

Date: \_

(Do not leave blank)

- Form of Single-Unit Facility License Agreement L. (for LA Fitness locations only)
- Form of Addendum to the Single-Unit Facility Μ. License Agreement for SBA Loans
- N. Form of Release and Consent Agreement to Assignment of Franchised Business
- Table of Contents–Confidential Operations О. Manual
- Ρ. List of Franchise Owners
- Q. Form of Area Representative Agreement, State Addenda and General Release
- Table of Contents Confidential AR Operations R. Manual (For Area Representatives)
- S. List of Area Representatives
- Т. **Financial Statements**
- U. Form of Addendum for Sale of Company-Affiliated Owned Stores
- V. Receipts

Signature of Prospective Franchisee

#### Print Name

Receipt #1 must be signed and dated and remains in the Franchise Disclosure Document as the prospective franchisee's copy. Receipt #2 must be signed and dated by the prospective franchisee and returned to Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. by mailing it to Kahala Franchising, L.L.C. at 9311 E. Via De Ventura, Scottsdale, Arizona 85258.